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Mail Delivery Subsystem



From: Mail Delivery Subsystem



Sent: Wednesday, July 18, 2018 8:19 AM



To: mark.graff@noaa.gov



Subject: Delivery Status Notification (Failure)



Attachments: details.txt; Fwd: FW: Request Your Assistance



Address not found



Your message wasn't delivered to

Tejuana.Hickerson@noaa.gov because the address couldn't



be found, or is unable to receive mail.
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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 United States Department of the Interior


FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE


  


August 1, 2018


In Reply Refer To:


FWS/AES/DCC/BLPS/067231



FOIA #FWS-2018-00306



Margaret E. Townsend


Open Government Staff Attorney



Center for Biological Diversity



P.O. Box 11374



Portland, Oregon  97211


Email:  foia@biologicaldiversity.org    


Ms. Townsend:


The United States Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) received your Freedom of Information Act


(FOIA) request, dated December 19, 2017, and assigned it control number FWS-2018-00306. 


Please cite this number in any future communications with our office regarding your request. 


You requested the following:


“…from January 20, 2017 to the date of this search: all records mentioning,



including, referencing, and/or related to “Revision of the Regulations for Listing



Species and Designating Critical Habitat” as described in the Unified Agenda



RIN #: 1018-BC88.”


On May 9, 2018, we sent you a letter enclosing a CD containing 65 documents as a partial


response to your FOIA request.  We are writing to inform you that the Service has discovered



that it inadvertently included 11 documents that contain privileged attorney client


communications and/or deliberate process communications that are exempt from release in part


under Exemption 5 of the FOIA.  Because the release of this privileged information was


inadvertent, the Service has not waived the privilege as to this information.  The eleven



documents on the CD that contain inadvertently released privileged information are:


Privileged in Part – Deliberative Process Privilege Only



• 20171206_1042_15_TAB 11-2007 draft regs combined preamble 6-22-07.pdf



• 20171206_1042_16_TAB 12-2007 draft regs combined regulatory text 9_26_07 (Feb



11 2011)
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Privileged in Part – Attorney Client Communications and Deliberative Process Privilege


• 20171128_1241_1_Compiled Reg Review Comments Re ESA as of 11.27.2017.pdf



• 20180111_1555_1_draft proposed 424 rule_011918.pdf



• 20180111_1555_2_FF preamble and reg text_011118.pdf



• 20180111_1555_3_Delisting Clarification_011118.pdf



• 20180111_1555_4_CH sequencing_01118.pdf


• 20180111_1555_5_Not Prudent_revised_011118.pdf



• 20180118_1331_1_20180112_draft proposed 424 rule SOL_DCC_RO.odf



• 20180118_1348_1_Not-Prudent Options_ral.pdf (title has been updated)



• 20180206_1700_1_20180129_proposed 424 rule_clean_edits.pdf


Having notified you of the privileged nature of these documents, we ask that you honor



our invocation of the privilege by promptly returning, sequestering, or destroying the documents


identified above and any and all copies of these documents in your organization’s possession or



control.  In addition, if you have disseminated the documents, or any of the referenced



information derived from these documents, to anyone outside of your organization, we ask that


you please notify us immediately and provide us with their contact information so that we can



notify them of the privileged nature of these documents and include them in our claw back effort.


As noted above, the responsive privileged documents inadvertently released on the CD



are only privileged in part.  Accordingly, we will produce a copy of these documents that have



been redacted pursuant to FOIA Exemption 5 to withhold the privileged information they contain



in our next incremental release.  For your convenience, we have included a copy of the



documents as redacted with this letter. 


    
If you have any questions about our response to your request, you may contact Eileen Harke by

phone at 703-358-2096 or by email at eileen_harke@fws.gov.


Sincerely,


 


 


 


 


Carey Galst


Chief, Branch of Listing Policy and Support


Ecological Services Program


Enclosures


CAREY 
GALST



Digitally signed

by CAREY GALST

Date: 2018.08.01

16:31 :52 -04'00'
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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Bogomolny, Michael (Federal)



From: Bogomolny, Michael (Federal)



Sent: Thursday, August 2, 2018 4:54 PM



To: Graff, Mark (Federal); Nathanson, Stacey (Federal)



Subject: payment to ERF



Attachments: RE: ERF v. NMFS; FW: ERF v. NMFS



Can someone please confirm that payment was made to ERF?



Thanks,



bogo






		payment to ERF
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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August 3, 2018


VIA NOAA FOIA PORTAL


National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration



Attn:  FOIA Officer


Public Reference Facility (SOU1000)


1315 East-West Highway (SSMC3)



Room 9719



Silver Spring, MD 20910


Re:  Freedom of Information Act Request for Records on Oceanic Whitetip Shark Catch
in U.S. Fisheries


Dear FOIA Officer:


On behalf of Center for Biological Diversity, Earthjustice submits this request for records


pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552, and its implementing



regulations, 43 C.F.R. Part 2. 


DOCUMENTS REQUESTED



The National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) manages several fisheries that catch oceanic



whitetip sharks (Carcharhinus longimanus), either as bycatch or as a targeted species.  These



fisheries include:


− Caribbean Gillnet


− Gulf of Mexico Coastal Migratory Pelagic Troll


− Southeastern Atlantic Coastal Migratory Pelagic Troll


− Central Western Pacific Tuna Purse Seine


− Eastern Pacific Ocean Tuna Purse Seine


− California Pelagic Longline



− Eastern Tropical Pacific Baitboat


For each of the seven above-listed fisheries, we request all records which were generated,

received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS containing, describing, and/or referencing:


1. The data sources used to estimate the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip
sharks in each fishery;



2. Logbook data regarding the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in
each fishery;
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3. Observer data regarding the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in
each fishery and any associated observer reports and/or characterizations; and


4. Any other data related to oceanic whitetip shark bycatch and/or targeted catch in
each fishery. 


This request includes, but is not limited to, any documents, writings, materials, correspondence,



internal memoranda, memoranda and correspondence with any other federal, state, or foreign



agencies or individuals, papers, emails, files, photos, maps, data, scientific studies, field



notes/reports, telephone logs, notes documenting correspondence or reports generated, received



and/or issued by NMFS relating to the record categories listed above.  Pursuant to 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(3)(B) we ask that these records be provided in electronic and searchable format.


To the extent that providing individualized data on fishing boats or permits would implicate



confidentiality concerns, we request that such data be produced in response to these requests in



either a redacted or an aggregated format.  We also specifically exclude from this request any



reports, documents, or other documents that are currently available for public review on NMFS’s


website.



We request that responsive records be released as soon as they are available.  To the extent that


some subset of the requested records is readily available, such as those for a given fishery or one



of the listed categories of records for a given fishery (or fisheries), we would be happy to receive



them while NMFS processes other records.  Insofar as NMFS may choose to process each



fishery separately, we request that it prioritize documents from the Central Western Pacific and



Eastern Pacific Tuna Purse Seine fisheries.


REQUESTING ORGANIZATION


This request is made on behalf of the Center for Biological Diversity (Center).  The Center is a



501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that works to secure a future for all species hovering on the



brink of extinction through science, law, and creative media, and to fulfill the continuing



educational goals of its membership and the general public in the process.



FEE WAIVER REQUESTED



The Center requests a waiver of any fees associated with this request.  FOIA mandates that


agencies waive or reduce search and copying fees where the disclosure is “in the public interest


because it is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or



activities of the government and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester.” 


5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii).
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I. Background



In 1974, Congress amended the judicial review section for fee waivers under FOIA, replacing the



“arbitrary and capricious” threshold of review, by which courts are required to grant deference to



agencies, with the more rigorous de novo review standard.  See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(vii). 


The reason for this change is that Congress was concerned that agencies were using search and



copying costs to prevent critical monitoring of their activities:


Indeed, experience suggests that agencies are most resistant to granting fee



waivers when they suspect that the information sought may cast them in a less


than flattering light or may lead to proposals to reform their practices.  Yet that is


precisely the type of information which the FOIA is supposed to disclose, and



agencies should not be allowed to use fees as an offensive weapon against


requesters seeking access to Government information . . . .



132 Cong. Rec. S14298 (Sept. 30, 1986) (Sen. Leahy).


FOIA’s amended fee waiver provision was intended specifically to facilitate access to agency



records by citizen watchdog organizations, which utilize FOIA to monitor and mount challenges


to governmental activities.  See Better Gov’t Ass’n v. Dep’t of State, 780 F.2d 86, 93-94 (D.C.



Cir. 1986).  Fee waivers are essential to such groups, which:


rely heavily and frequently on FOIA and its fee waiver provision to conduct the



investigations that are essential to the performance of certain of their primary



institutional activities — publicizing governmental choices and highlighting



possible abuses that otherwise might go undisputed and thus unchallenged.  These



investigations are the necessary prerequisites to the fundamental publicizing and



mobilizing functions of these organizations.  Access to information through FOIA



is vital to their organizational missions . . . .



[The fee waiver] provision was added to FOIA “in an attempt to prevent


government agencies from using high fees to discourage certain types of



requesters and requests,” in a clear reference to requests from journalists, scholars


and, most importantly for our purposes, nonprofit public interest groups.



Id. (emphasis added) (quoting Ettlinger v. FBI, 596 F. Supp. 867, 872 (D. Mass. 1984)).  Thus,



one of the main goals of FOIA is to promote the active oversight roles of watchdog public



advocacy groups, organizations that actively challenge agency actions and policies.



Public interest fee waivers are to be “liberally construed in favor of waivers for noncommercial


requesters.”  McClellan Ecological Seepage Situation v. Carlucci, 835 F.2d 1282, 1284 (9th Cir.



1987) (quoting 132 Cong. Rec. S14298 (Sen. Leahy)).  “[T]he presumption should be that


requesters in these categories are entitled to fee waivers, especially if the requesters will publish



the information or otherwise make it available to the general public.”  Ettlinger, 596 F. Supp. at
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873 (quoting legislative history).  An agency may not refuse a fee waiver when “there is nothing



in the agency’s refusal of a fee waiver which indicates that furnishing the information requested



cannot be considered as primarily benefiting the general public.”  Id. at 874 (quoting Fitzgibbon



v. CIA, Civ. No. 76-700 (D.D.C. Jan. 10, 1977)).  A fee waiver should be granted when a



nonprofit organization has “identified why they wanted the administrative record, what they



intended to do with it, to whom they planned on distributing it, and the [relevant] expertise of



their membership.”  Ctr. for Biological Diversity v. Office of Mgmt. & Budget, 546 F. Supp. 2d



722, 727 (N.D. Cal. 2008).  “Once the FOIA requester has made a sufficiently strong showing of



meeting the public interest test of the statute, the burden, as in any FOIA proceeding, is on the



agency to justify the denial of a requested fee waiver.”  Ettlinger, 596 F. Supp. at 874 (citing



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B)).


II. The Center Meets the Department of Commerce’s Criteria for a Full Fee Waiver.


In addition to FOIA’s statutory direction, the U.S. Department of Commerce has issued



regulations outlining factors that it considers in deciding whether a fee waiver is warranted.  The



regulations state the Department should grant a fee waiver if:  (1) the disclosure of the requested



information is in the public interest because it is likely to contribute significantly to public



understanding of the operations or activities of the Government; and (2) disclosure of the



information is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requestor.  15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(1). 


The Center satisfies both of these criteria.


A. Disclosure of the Requested Information is in the Public Interest.



To determine whether a request is in the public interest, NMFS must consider four factors:


(1) whether the request concerns the operations or activities of the government; (2) whether the



disclosure will have value to the public and will likely contribute to public understanding of



government operations or activities; (3) whether the disclosure will contribute significantly to



public understanding; and (4) whether the disclosure is likely to contribute “significantly to



public understanding of the government’s operations or activities.”  15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2).


i. The Request Concerns Government Operations and Activities – 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l)(2)(i)



This FOIA request seeks information relevant to NMFS’s management of oceanic whitetip shark



bycatch and targeted catch in U.S. fisheries.  NMFS has recognized that catch in U.S. fisheries


has contributed to the species’ decline and remains a threat.  Accordingly, the FOIA request


directly concerns the operations and activities of NMFS in managing and protecting the species,



a public resource.  See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i).  This request will enable the Center to evaluate



the strength of and basis for the agency’s analysis of oceanic whitetip shark catch by U.S.



fisheries and the degree to which it is a threat or requires changes in management by the agency. 


The Center thus meets this factor.
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ii. The Requested Information Has Value to the Public and Will Likely



Contribute to Public Understanding of Government Operations or


Activities – 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(ii)



There is a direct connection between the requested records and NMFS’s operations and activities


in managing oceanic whitetip shark catch and bycatch.  The requested records relate to the



government’s evaluation of oceanic whitetip shark bycatch and targeted catch, and its


management of fisheries in the Gulf of Mexico, Pacific Ocean, and Atlantic Ocean.  Access to



these records will allow the Center to evaluate NMFS’s bycatch estimations for fisheries in these



areas.  It also will allow the Center to evaluate NMFS’s estimations and management of targeted



catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in these fisheries.  Consequently, the requested documents are



critical to a meaningful assessment of the agency’s actions and a thorough public understanding



of the government’s operations and activities in managing oceanic whitetip sharks and regulating



bycatch and targeted catch of the species.


The requested documents are necessary for the public to gain a complete understanding of the



government’s estimations of oceanic whitetip shark bycatch and targeted catch in certain



fisheries.  This information is critical to assessing the government’s actions in protecting these



public resources.  Accordingly, disclosure of the requested information will contribute



significantly to public understanding of the government’s operations and activities with respect


to these fisheries.  See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(ii).


The Center is a public-interest organization dedicated to protecting wildlife and the environment


by, among other mechanisms, monitoring government wildlife regulation, encouraging public



participation in government processes, and ensuring enforcement of applicable public laws.  The



Center will scrutinize the scientific underpinnings of the requested records, and its analyses will


form the basis for working to address threats to oceanic whitetip sharks and educating the public. 


The Center’s science and policy staff will also work with communications staff to disseminate



their analysis of the information to its members, supporters, and the general public. 


iii. Disclosure of the Requested Information Will Contribute to the



Understanding of a Reasonably Broad Audience – 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l)(2)(iii)



A broad audience of persons both in the United States and internationally is interested in the



subject of shark conservation generally and, specifically, oceanic whitetip shark conservation. 


Sharks are top apex predators in marine ecosystems, and their removal from those ecosystems


can have cascading effects on other trophic levels.  The killing of millions of sharks each year is


of serious concern to many people.  A number of domestic and international organizations


actively work to promote shark conservation, with objectives that include ending the wasteful


and cruel practice of shark finning and reducing the excessive numbers of sharks caught


deliberately and incidentally in fisheries.  The broader U.S. public has also supported legislation



banning shark fin trade at both the federal and state levels.
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A wide audience of persons is particularly interested in the protection of the oceanic whitetip



shark.  For example, the United States, with public support, cosponsored a proposal to list the



species under Appendix II of CITES in both 2010 and 2013.  And NMFS recently listed the



oceanic whitetip as a threatened species under the Endangered Species Act in response to a



petition from Defenders of Wildlife and after receiving public comments on the proposed rule



overwhelmingly supporting the listing.


While some of the technical reports related to the observer programs in these fisheries are



available to the public, to the best of our knowledge the remainder of the reports, data sources,



and documents requested by the Center are not.  As such, their release will significantly improve



the public understanding of fishery interactions with oceanic whitetip sharks.



Disclosure of the requested records will further the understanding of the public at large of this


species and the threats it faces, and is likely to be of interest to a broad audience that supports


shark conservation.  The Center has the institutional expertise to analyze and disseminate the



information contained in the requested records. 


The Center is a nonprofit organization that informs, educates, and counsels the public regarding



environmental issues, policies, and laws relating to environmental issues.  The Center has been



substantially involved in the activities of numerous government agencies for over 25 years.  The



Center has a number of staff, including scientists, lawyers, and communications personnel with



extensive experience in shark conservation and management.  Specific actions the Center has


taken to help conserve sharks have included petitioning NMFS to have the great white shark



listed under the ESA, seeking regulation of the California drift gillnet fishery to protect the



thresher shark, and moving to certify Mexico’s shark fisheries to prevent their harm to various


species of concern.  The Center also submitted technical comments in support of the oceanic



whitetip shark’s listing as threatened, both at the 12-month finding and proposed listing stages. 


The Center has consistently displayed its ability to disseminate information provided to it


through FOIA.  In regularly granting the Center’s fee waivers, agencies have recognized:


(1) that the information requested by the Center contributes significantly to the public’s


understanding of the government’s operations or activities; (2) that the information enhances the



public’s understanding to a greater degree than currently exists; (3) that the Center possesses the



expertise to explain the requested information to the public; (4) that the Center possesses the



ability to disseminate the requested information to the general public; (5) and that the news


media recognizes the Center as an established expert in the field of imperiled species,



biodiversity, and impacts on protected species.  The Center’s track record of active participation



in oversight of governmental activities and decision making, and its consistent contribution to the



public’s understanding of those activities as compared to the level of public understanding prior



to disclosure are well established.



The Center intends to use the records requested here similarly.  The Center’s work appears in



more than 2,500 news stories online and in print, radio and TV per month, including regular



reporting in such important outlets as The New York Times, Washington Post, The Guardian, and
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Los Angeles Times.  Many media outlets reporting on agency actions have utilized information



obtained by the Center from federal agencies, including from NMFS.  In 2016, more than 2



million people visited the Center’s extensive website, viewing a total of more than 5.2 million



pages.  The Center sends out more than 277 email newsletters and action alerts per year to more



than 1.5 million members and supporters.  Three times a year, the Center sends printed



newsletters to more than 61,443 members.  More than 259,900 people have “liked” the Center on



Facebook, and there are regular postings regarding protections of endangered and threatened



species.  The Center also regularly tweets to more than 55,000 followers on Twitter.  The Center



intends to use any or all of these far-reaching media outlets to share with the public information



obtained as a result of this request.  Therefore, the Center has the expertise and capacity



effectively to analyze and distribute information contained in records responsive to this request


to the interested public as per the third factor under the public interest determination for fee



waiver requests.  See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii).


iv. Disclosure Is Likely to Contribute “Significantly” to the Public



Understanding of Government Operations or Activities – 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l)(2)(iv)


As stated above, NMFS has recognized that the oceanic whitetip shark is imperiled by catch in



U.S. fisheries.  The latest data on oceanic whitetip bycatch and targeted catch in U.S. fisheries


will provide substantial and updated information on the magnitude and sources of the harm to the



species from these activities.  The records will provide Center and the public with a better



understanding of these risks.  And they will help the Center and the public to evaluate the degree



to which NMFS has and can further ameliorate those risks through its fisheries management.  See


15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iv).



B. The Center Has No Commercial Interest in the Requested Records.


Access to government records, disclosure forms, and similar materials through FOIA requests is


essential to the Center’s role of educating the general public.  Founded in 1994, the Center is a



501(c)(3) nonprofit conservation organization (EIN: 27-3943866) with more than 1.5 million



members and online activists dedicated to the protection of endangered and threatened species


and wild places.  The Center has no commercial interest and will realize no commercial benefit


from the release of the requested records.


CONCLUSION



For the foregoing reasons, this FOIA request satisfies the statutory and regulatory requirements


for a full waiver of all search and duplication fees under 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii) and



15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l). 


I request that, should this FOIA request take longer than ten days to process, you notify me of the



individualized tracking number that has been assigned to the request and information about how



I may receive information on the status of my request via telephone or Internet.  I also request
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that you provide the estimated date on which you will complete action on this request, pursuant


to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(7).


Please contact me if you have any questions, or if I can clarify this request in any way.  I can be



reached at (206) 343-7340 x1038.  As provided by FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A), I look



forward to a response within twenty working days.  Thank you in advance for your assistance.


        Sincerely,


        


        Christopher D. Eaton


        Associate Attorney



        Earthjustice
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 
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v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 
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)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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f̂nbĉ®_o®X_nnbfpbq®��®�J��6�®��®;C�®
���;�9®=;�
;�7®
��®�G���6�<®�8>�®���7;�;:;���®�K�߰<®ߙr߰<®r�7C
��J;��<®ߝ�®F>F@><®®����9ߝ��;߰®®



®®�D�#?6K?�A@>®®XY\s[VNOP®ZYW®TRX[VWVPYWt®VOT®߰�ߙ®���7®NOuSOXPNvR®WR[NRZ®®®®���9ߛ�G®��®�����G�;���®�6;®��7�®®®®®®®®
NOPWYTSXPNYO®®���
��;���®=;�B®
�����J�������J®�����7�;�®�C�������;��®
w�����;���x®��®w=��x$®H���
J7®;C�7®�6;���®;�®�
�9��77®K����;���7®
��®;C�®���9ߛ�G®��®�����G�;���®�6;®�wߛ���x$<®E®�߰=߰�߰®y®EEF
®z{|®lz}<®
�����;���®6C�����J�7®;C�®����:��®��®;C�®�߰=߰®ߝ�B��;G��;®��®��GG��6�®�C�������;��®w®w����9ߝ��;x®��®w��GG��6�x$®;�®��7B��9®��5�:���®;�®��®®߰;�7:���®���ߛ®7~���;���


����®�����������������®®®��������®�®®®�����®��������®®®����®�®��®��







®



®ߛ����ߜ®���ߚ�ߙ��ߙ�®ߝߙ� ®®�ߜ�ߚ�ߜ����ߝ
®ߜ�ߛ®ߚߙ�������®® �® ®



®®
��®
������®�����®
�������߰߰®�!"#!$�!%®����®�&''!��!®�!�!�$!®�!�&�%$®�&��!����(®)�*®+!���!�®'&%�߰�����&�®+�����®��!®,!���!�®-!�.��!®��(���/���&�®,&�0߰&��!®����1$�$�®��%®)�*®��!®
�!�$&�®߰&�®�%&2��&�®&߰®��!®�&�߰�%!�������1®2�&.�$�&�®&߰®��!®3�2!����&�$®��%®,&�0߰&��!®� ���1$�$®)�,�*®��&4!��5®�����!�®߰&�®�����®$67'�!ߚ®!�&�®'�!���0$&,®�����߰߰®�!"#!$�!%®��!$!®
�!�&
�%$®�&®
��߰&�'®
��!
®
2#8����® ��!®'!%��®��%®(&.!��'!��®
&߰߰�����$®�8&#�®+!���!�®'&%�߰�����&��®(&.!��'!��®

0�&+�!%(!®
&߰®+!���!�®'&%�߰�����&�®��%®(&.!��'!��®!߰߰&��$®�&®�!$�����®2#8���®0�&+�!%(!®�8&#�®+!���!�®'&%�߰�������߰®$��®���%�߰!!ߝ®®�6&�!%®�&®��'!�1®'�0!®��!®$���#�&���1®�!"#��!%®%!�!�'�����&�$®&�®�������߰߰9$®

#"!�®���ߛ!$�$®+�����®
��!®
��'!®
��%®
��®��!®'���!�®
�!"#��!%®
81®

®���%�!߰!ߝ ®
®���6ߛ��$®
�߰��
!%®�&®�!:
�!�$!®�!�&�
%$®�!$2&�$�.!®�&®��������®$#��®%��®�$�$!#"!�®���ߛ®9$߰߰$®#���+߰#��1®+����&�%��(®�!$2&�:$���߰®$��®���%�!߰!ߝ®��!���#ߛ®$6 %�&�!�®!.�!%®�&®2�&.�%!®!$��'��!%®�&'2�!��&�®%��!$®&�®+��
®���%�߰!:!ߝ®��+� ��®
�&'2�!�!®����&�®&�®�������
®®$6�$!#"!�®���ߛ®9$߰߰;!
�.®9$���%�!߰!ߝ®߰&®!$#��&������®����ߛ®߰&®$�&�����߰߰®��$®�&®
&��!�®�!�&#�$!®8#�®�&®$!!0®

%!������&�1
®�!��!߰®!$��8��$���(®����®
�.®$��®���%�!߰!ߝ&��4#�®0!!$®%��®���ߛ®%!������.!®�!��!߰®%��!��:
�!ߝ®)� !߰�%
���®�&®2�&'2��1®
2�&.�%!®�������߰߰®+���®��!®�!"#!$�!%®�!�&�%$6®®<=>?@A?BC?DEF®GHE=H®IEA®JI@?@®KD>®>HL?HK®®MN
OP®
QRSTU®NVP®WSTOPXOYUORZ®
R[\T®UNOP®VYUORZ®]STPSVZU®UR®̂_̀a®bc®defeQe®gcchbVibjibkiil®m\X\TVn®oS
\PUORZ®bhp®defeQe®g®
qrrqil®
VZX®]STPSVZU®
UR®UN\®s\YnVTVURTt®
uSXvw\ZU®aYU®bhp®defeQe®P\YUORZ®hhxqie®
®�!�#!®2�&2!��1®.!$�$®��®���$®�&#��®
2#�$#���®�&®y®�6-6�6®z®yy�)�*){*);*�®+����®2�&.�%!$®
.!�#!®
߰&�®���
®���ߛ®��$!$®��ߝ®!��®�$�����®&߰®�&�#'8��6®
�� !ߝ®�����1&®�!��!߰®�$®�22�&2����!®#�%!�®�|®
�6-6�6®z®����6®®��4#����.!®
�!��!߰®�$®�22�&2����!®#�%!�®�|®�6-6�6®z®����®��%®y®�6-6�6®z®yy�)�*){*);*6®


}~��®
�����������������®
®®��������®
�®®®�����®��������®®®�~��®�®��®��







®



®ߛ����ߜ®���ߚ�ߙ��ߙ�®ߝߙ�®®�ߜ�ߚ�ߜ����ߝ®ߜ�ߛ®ߚߙ�������®® � ® ®


�������®®��������®�ߚ�!�ߙߙ��®"ߙ�ߜ��ߙ�"ߙ���"®��ߚ!®߰߰#®��®$����%®&'(#$®)*+)(#$®�#®�(®$,*-��$®�'
$®)*.��-®�.(*�®'(&®/$($�/��$$+��/®��,®&$��'$+®0(,�߰�-���(�®-��®�0)�-�®)*.��-®'$���'1®
�������߰߰®�#
®�®)+(2$-�®(߰®�'$®�(�3)+(߰��®����$#(���ߙ®�*+��®4$���'®�(�����(�®&'�-'®�#®�®5678-98�9®��:®$:$0)
�®
�(�3)+(߰��®(+/���;���(�1®!"�®
+$/*��+�%®��߰(+0#<®$,*-��$#®��,®-(*�#$�#®�'$®)
*.��-®+$/�+,��/®&$��'$+®0(,�߰�-���(�®��,®/(=$+�0$��®��=(�=$0$��®��®�0)�$0$����/®��,®+$/* �����/®&$��'$+®0
(,�߰�-���(�1®
!"�®'�#®�®��+/$®��,®/+(&��/®.�#$®(߰®�))+(:�0��$�%®566®#*))(+�$+#1®��������+$,$߰®߰)®#,+)-$+®�#$*<$+®)�®���ߛ®#$#*®߰߰�®�/$�-�$#®��,®���$�,#®�(®,(®#(®��
®$'ߚ®$1+*�*߰®$'�®+$-(+,#®+$>
���®%.®���ߛ®'/*)+'�®,$�#$*����߰߰®��®�'�#®
0���$+®&���®.$®*#$,®.%®!"�®�(®�� (߰+0®���$+3
$#�$,®)�+��
$#®
��®/(=$+�0$��®8.(�'®$�$-�$,®(߰߰�-���#®��,®+$/*���(+%®�/$�-�$#9<®�'$®0$,��<®(�'$+®
$,*-���(��
�®�(�3)+(߰��#®��,®�'$®)*.��-®��®��+/$®�.(*�®&$��'$+®0(,�߰�-���(�<®/(=$+�0$��®?�(&�3
$,/$®(߰®&$
��'$+®0(,�߰�-���(�<®��,®/(=$+�0$��®$߰߰(+�#®�(®+$#�+�-�®)*.��-®?�(&�$,/$®�.(*�®&$��'$+®
0(,� �߰-���
(�1®�������߰߰®�#®�,=$+#$�%®��$߰$ߝ®%.®,$�-$߰߰,���@#®߰���*+$®
�(®-(0)�%®
&��'®

���ߛ®�#®
��3�$/$,®'$+$ ��<®ABCDE®FGAF<®.$-�*#$®�������߰߰®&���®�(�®.$®�.�$®�(®��0$�%®��,®$߰߰$-��=$�%®�� (߰+0
®�'$®)*.��-®�.(*�®&$��'$+®0(,�߰�-���(�<®/(=$+�0$��®?�(&�$,/$®(߰®&$��'$+®0(,�߰�-���(�<®��,®/(=3$+�0$��®$߰
߰(+�#®
�(®+$#�+�-�®
)*.��-®?�(&�$,/$®�.(*�®&$��'$+®0(,�߰�-���(�$ߝ®>+$'�+*ߛ®1 $߰� ,���@#®�߰��*+$®��,
®+$߰*#��®�(H®879®�##*$®�®��0$�%®߰����®,$�$+0�����(�®(߰®��������®I#�#$*<$+®���ߛ®#@߰߰�,®
8J9®)+(=�,$®�������߰߰®&��'®
�'$®$#��0��$,®
-(0)�$��(�®
,��$#®(߰®
�'$�+®+$>*$#�#<®
'�#®
��2*+$,®�����
��߰߰@#®��3
�$+$#�#® ��®)
*.��-®(=$+#�/'�®
(߰®/(=$+�0$����®()$+���(�#1®���$##®�'$®�(*+�®/+���#®�'$®+$>*$#�$,®
+$3
��$߰<®�������߰߰®&���®-(����*$®�(®.$®�,=$+#$�%®��$߰$ߝ®%.®,$�-$߰߰,���@#®߰���*+$®�(®-(0)�%®&��$߰ $ߝ®®���1ߛ®'�,���($ߝ®�+�0$��®
(߰®
�(00$+-$®�#®��®�/$�-%®(߰®�'$®$:$-*��=$®.+��-'®(߰®
�'$ ®����$,®!���$#®/(=$+�0$��<®��,®
�#®��®)(##$##�(�<®-*#�(,%®(+®-(��+(�®
(߰®
�'$®+$-(+,#®
#(*/'�®.%®�������߰߰<®��,®�#®#*-'<®��®�#®
#*.2$-�®
�*#+*)®���ߛ®(���®�(®5®
�1!1�1®K®55J8߰91®ߚ'$®
�ߙ��(���®
�-$���-®��,®��0(#3


LMNO®
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\Z]ẐZ®_®[[̀®
aObacbaDbaIIIbZ®®
ABCD®EFGHIJKL®
RSOR®O®EKFLGT®LSOVV®UK®JKKXKJ®RG®SOHK®KdSOQLRKJ®
RSKIF®OJXITILRFORIHK®FKXKJIKL®IM®
RSK®OeKTWY®MOIVL®RG®WGXEVY®NIRS®RSK®OEEVIWOUVK®RIXK®VIXIRORIGTL®EFGHIJKJ®UY®[
®\Z]ẐZ®
LKWRIGT®
[[ ̀aObafbaDbaIbgaIIbZ®[®
\Z]ẐZ®_®
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Tracking Number Type Requester Received Date Due Date



DOC-NOAA-2018-001884 Request Mr. Christopher Eaton 8/3/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001893 Request Mr. Scott W Clark 8/6/2018








DOC-NOAA-2018-001906 Request Sumona Majumdar 8/7/2018








Assigned To Status



DOC-NOAA - National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Initial Evaluation



DOC-NOAA - National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Submitted








DOC-NOAA - National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Submitted








Detail



The National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) manages several fisheries that catch oceanic



whitetip sharks (Carcharhinus longimanus), either as bycatch or as a targeted species. These



fisheries include:



− Caribbean Gillnet



− Gulf of Mexico Coastal Migratory Pelagic Troll



− Southeastern Atlantic Coastal Migratory Pelagic Troll



− Central Western Pacific Tuna Purse Seine



− Eastern Pacific Ocean Tuna Purse Seine



− California Pelagic Longline



− Eastern Tropical Pacific Baitboat



For each of the seven above-listed fisheries, we request all records which were generated,



received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS containing, describing, and/or referencing:



1. The data sources used to estimate the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip



sharks in each fishery;



2. Logbook data regarding the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in each



fishery;
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3. Observer data regarding the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in each



fishery and any associated observer reports and/or characterizations; and



4. Any other data related to oceanic whitetip shark bycatch and/or targeted catch in each



fishery.



Any documents, but not limited to, records, memos, emails, and/or reports used to



determine the Federal Flood Management Plan, with regards to the location in Long Island



New York on Erlwein Ct. Also, know as Narraskatuck Creek. Any, but not limited to, emails,



memo, permits or applications to build on the property known as 5850 Merrick Road



Massapequa, NY Nassau County Section 66, Block 137, Lots 549, 551-554, which is adjacent



to a tidal wetland Any studies, records, email, memos related to the how any flooding



would be affected by construction on 5850 Merrick Road Massapequa, NY Nassau County



Section 66, Block 137, Lots 549, 551-55, and the removal of the at minimum 15,000sq feet



of natural flood mitigation. Whether the department received any notice of possible



construction/change in zoning on 5850 Merrick Road Massapequa, NY Nassau County



Section 66, Block 137, Lots 549, 551-55 as required by the Town of Oyster Bay Zoning



ordinance that requires landowners within a 100ft radius of the property to be notified.



How does NOAA classify 5850 Merrick Road Massapequa, NY Nassau County Section 66,



Block 137, Lots 549, 551-55, is it considered marsh area? is that current state of the



property factored into the sea level rise, and flood mitigation, and any studies that



predicting the effect of developing the area and any resulting increase in flooding from the



removal of 15,000 sq ft of natural flood mitigation








All documents located in the Alaska



Regional Office related to the beluga whale stranded in Alaska’s Cook Inlet in September



2017



(known as “Tyonek”) and now housed in SeaWorld San Antonio. This includes but is not



limited



to: identification of all individuals, including third parties, involved in decisions related to



Tyonek; minutes, memos, notes, or other documents memorializing any meetings regarding



Tyonek; comments or requests received from the public regarding Tyonek, and NMFS’



response(s); and any additional documents related to NMFS’ decisions with respect to



Tyonek’s



care, releasability, and placement.
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August 3, 2018


VIA NOAA FOIA PORTAL


National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration



Attn:  FOIA Officer


Public Reference Facility (SOU1000)


1315 East-West Highway (SSMC3)



Room 9719



Silver Spring, MD 20910


Re:  Freedom of Information Act Request for Records on Oceanic Whitetip Shark Catch
in U.S. Fisheries


Dear FOIA Officer:


On behalf of Center for Biological Diversity, Earthjustice submits this request for records


pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552, and its implementing



regulations, 43 C.F.R. Part 2. 


DOCUMENTS REQUESTED



The National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) manages several fisheries that catch oceanic



whitetip sharks (Carcharhinus longimanus), either as bycatch or as a targeted species.  These



fisheries include:


− Caribbean Gillnet


− Gulf of Mexico Coastal Migratory Pelagic Troll


− Southeastern Atlantic Coastal Migratory Pelagic Troll


− Central Western Pacific Tuna Purse Seine


− Eastern Pacific Ocean Tuna Purse Seine


− California Pelagic Longline



− Eastern Tropical Pacific Baitboat


For each of the seven above-listed fisheries, we request all records which were generated,

received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS containing, describing, and/or referencing:


1. The data sources used to estimate the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip
sharks in each fishery;



2. Logbook data regarding the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in
each fishery;
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3. Observer data regarding the bycatch or targeted catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in
each fishery and any associated observer reports and/or characterizations; and


4. Any other data related to oceanic whitetip shark bycatch and/or targeted catch in
each fishery. 


This request includes, but is not limited to, any documents, writings, materials, correspondence,



internal memoranda, memoranda and correspondence with any other federal, state, or foreign



agencies or individuals, papers, emails, files, photos, maps, data, scientific studies, field



notes/reports, telephone logs, notes documenting correspondence or reports generated, received



and/or issued by NMFS relating to the record categories listed above.  Pursuant to 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(3)(B) we ask that these records be provided in electronic and searchable format.


To the extent that providing individualized data on fishing boats or permits would implicate



confidentiality concerns, we request that such data be produced in response to these requests in



either a redacted or an aggregated format.  We also specifically exclude from this request any



reports, documents, or other documents that are currently available for public review on NMFS’s


website.



We request that responsive records be released as soon as they are available.  To the extent that


some subset of the requested records is readily available, such as those for a given fishery or one



of the listed categories of records for a given fishery (or fisheries), we would be happy to receive



them while NMFS processes other records.  Insofar as NMFS may choose to process each



fishery separately, we request that it prioritize documents from the Central Western Pacific and



Eastern Pacific Tuna Purse Seine fisheries.


REQUESTING ORGANIZATION


This request is made on behalf of the Center for Biological Diversity (Center).  The Center is a



501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that works to secure a future for all species hovering on the



brink of extinction through science, law, and creative media, and to fulfill the continuing



educational goals of its membership and the general public in the process.



FEE WAIVER REQUESTED



The Center requests a waiver of any fees associated with this request.  FOIA mandates that


agencies waive or reduce search and copying fees where the disclosure is “in the public interest


because it is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or



activities of the government and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester.” 


5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii).
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I. Background



In 1974, Congress amended the judicial review section for fee waivers under FOIA, replacing the



“arbitrary and capricious” threshold of review, by which courts are required to grant deference to



agencies, with the more rigorous de novo review standard.  See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(vii). 


The reason for this change is that Congress was concerned that agencies were using search and



copying costs to prevent critical monitoring of their activities:


Indeed, experience suggests that agencies are most resistant to granting fee



waivers when they suspect that the information sought may cast them in a less


than flattering light or may lead to proposals to reform their practices.  Yet that is


precisely the type of information which the FOIA is supposed to disclose, and



agencies should not be allowed to use fees as an offensive weapon against


requesters seeking access to Government information . . . .



132 Cong. Rec. S14298 (Sept. 30, 1986) (Sen. Leahy).


FOIA’s amended fee waiver provision was intended specifically to facilitate access to agency



records by citizen watchdog organizations, which utilize FOIA to monitor and mount challenges


to governmental activities.  See Better Gov’t Ass’n v. Dep’t of State, 780 F.2d 86, 93-94 (D.C.



Cir. 1986).  Fee waivers are essential to such groups, which:


rely heavily and frequently on FOIA and its fee waiver provision to conduct the



investigations that are essential to the performance of certain of their primary



institutional activities — publicizing governmental choices and highlighting



possible abuses that otherwise might go undisputed and thus unchallenged.  These



investigations are the necessary prerequisites to the fundamental publicizing and



mobilizing functions of these organizations.  Access to information through FOIA



is vital to their organizational missions . . . .



[The fee waiver] provision was added to FOIA “in an attempt to prevent


government agencies from using high fees to discourage certain types of



requesters and requests,” in a clear reference to requests from journalists, scholars


and, most importantly for our purposes, nonprofit public interest groups.



Id. (emphasis added) (quoting Ettlinger v. FBI, 596 F. Supp. 867, 872 (D. Mass. 1984)).  Thus,



one of the main goals of FOIA is to promote the active oversight roles of watchdog public



advocacy groups, organizations that actively challenge agency actions and policies.



Public interest fee waivers are to be “liberally construed in favor of waivers for noncommercial


requesters.”  McClellan Ecological Seepage Situation v. Carlucci, 835 F.2d 1282, 1284 (9th Cir.



1987) (quoting 132 Cong. Rec. S14298 (Sen. Leahy)).  “[T]he presumption should be that


requesters in these categories are entitled to fee waivers, especially if the requesters will publish



the information or otherwise make it available to the general public.”  Ettlinger, 596 F. Supp. at
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873 (quoting legislative history).  An agency may not refuse a fee waiver when “there is nothing



in the agency’s refusal of a fee waiver which indicates that furnishing the information requested



cannot be considered as primarily benefiting the general public.”  Id. at 874 (quoting Fitzgibbon



v. CIA, Civ. No. 76-700 (D.D.C. Jan. 10, 1977)).  A fee waiver should be granted when a



nonprofit organization has “identified why they wanted the administrative record, what they



intended to do with it, to whom they planned on distributing it, and the [relevant] expertise of



their membership.”  Ctr. for Biological Diversity v. Office of Mgmt. & Budget, 546 F. Supp. 2d



722, 727 (N.D. Cal. 2008).  “Once the FOIA requester has made a sufficiently strong showing of



meeting the public interest test of the statute, the burden, as in any FOIA proceeding, is on the



agency to justify the denial of a requested fee waiver.”  Ettlinger, 596 F. Supp. at 874 (citing



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B)).


II. The Center Meets the Department of Commerce’s Criteria for a Full Fee Waiver.


In addition to FOIA’s statutory direction, the U.S. Department of Commerce has issued



regulations outlining factors that it considers in deciding whether a fee waiver is warranted.  The



regulations state the Department should grant a fee waiver if:  (1) the disclosure of the requested



information is in the public interest because it is likely to contribute significantly to public



understanding of the operations or activities of the Government; and (2) disclosure of the



information is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requestor.  15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(1). 


The Center satisfies both of these criteria.


A. Disclosure of the Requested Information is in the Public Interest.



To determine whether a request is in the public interest, NMFS must consider four factors:


(1) whether the request concerns the operations or activities of the government; (2) whether the



disclosure will have value to the public and will likely contribute to public understanding of



government operations or activities; (3) whether the disclosure will contribute significantly to



public understanding; and (4) whether the disclosure is likely to contribute “significantly to



public understanding of the government’s operations or activities.”  15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2).


i. The Request Concerns Government Operations and Activities – 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l)(2)(i)



This FOIA request seeks information relevant to NMFS’s management of oceanic whitetip shark



bycatch and targeted catch in U.S. fisheries.  NMFS has recognized that catch in U.S. fisheries


has contributed to the species’ decline and remains a threat.  Accordingly, the FOIA request


directly concerns the operations and activities of NMFS in managing and protecting the species,



a public resource.  See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i).  This request will enable the Center to evaluate



the strength of and basis for the agency’s analysis of oceanic whitetip shark catch by U.S.



fisheries and the degree to which it is a threat or requires changes in management by the agency. 


The Center thus meets this factor.
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ii. The Requested Information Has Value to the Public and Will Likely



Contribute to Public Understanding of Government Operations or


Activities – 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(ii)



There is a direct connection between the requested records and NMFS’s operations and activities


in managing oceanic whitetip shark catch and bycatch.  The requested records relate to the



government’s evaluation of oceanic whitetip shark bycatch and targeted catch, and its


management of fisheries in the Gulf of Mexico, Pacific Ocean, and Atlantic Ocean.  Access to



these records will allow the Center to evaluate NMFS’s bycatch estimations for fisheries in these



areas.  It also will allow the Center to evaluate NMFS’s estimations and management of targeted



catch of oceanic whitetip sharks in these fisheries.  Consequently, the requested documents are



critical to a meaningful assessment of the agency’s actions and a thorough public understanding



of the government’s operations and activities in managing oceanic whitetip sharks and regulating



bycatch and targeted catch of the species.


The requested documents are necessary for the public to gain a complete understanding of the



government’s estimations of oceanic whitetip shark bycatch and targeted catch in certain



fisheries.  This information is critical to assessing the government’s actions in protecting these



public resources.  Accordingly, disclosure of the requested information will contribute



significantly to public understanding of the government’s operations and activities with respect


to these fisheries.  See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(ii).


The Center is a public-interest organization dedicated to protecting wildlife and the environment


by, among other mechanisms, monitoring government wildlife regulation, encouraging public



participation in government processes, and ensuring enforcement of applicable public laws.  The



Center will scrutinize the scientific underpinnings of the requested records, and its analyses will


form the basis for working to address threats to oceanic whitetip sharks and educating the public. 


The Center’s science and policy staff will also work with communications staff to disseminate



their analysis of the information to its members, supporters, and the general public. 


iii. Disclosure of the Requested Information Will Contribute to the



Understanding of a Reasonably Broad Audience – 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l)(2)(iii)



A broad audience of persons both in the United States and internationally is interested in the



subject of shark conservation generally and, specifically, oceanic whitetip shark conservation. 


Sharks are top apex predators in marine ecosystems, and their removal from those ecosystems


can have cascading effects on other trophic levels.  The killing of millions of sharks each year is


of serious concern to many people.  A number of domestic and international organizations


actively work to promote shark conservation, with objectives that include ending the wasteful


and cruel practice of shark finning and reducing the excessive numbers of sharks caught


deliberately and incidentally in fisheries.  The broader U.S. public has also supported legislation



banning shark fin trade at both the federal and state levels.
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A wide audience of persons is particularly interested in the protection of the oceanic whitetip



shark.  For example, the United States, with public support, cosponsored a proposal to list the



species under Appendix II of CITES in both 2010 and 2013.  And NMFS recently listed the



oceanic whitetip as a threatened species under the Endangered Species Act in response to a



petition from Defenders of Wildlife and after receiving public comments on the proposed rule



overwhelmingly supporting the listing.


While some of the technical reports related to the observer programs in these fisheries are



available to the public, to the best of our knowledge the remainder of the reports, data sources,



and documents requested by the Center are not.  As such, their release will significantly improve



the public understanding of fishery interactions with oceanic whitetip sharks.



Disclosure of the requested records will further the understanding of the public at large of this


species and the threats it faces, and is likely to be of interest to a broad audience that supports


shark conservation.  The Center has the institutional expertise to analyze and disseminate the



information contained in the requested records. 


The Center is a nonprofit organization that informs, educates, and counsels the public regarding



environmental issues, policies, and laws relating to environmental issues.  The Center has been



substantially involved in the activities of numerous government agencies for over 25 years.  The



Center has a number of staff, including scientists, lawyers, and communications personnel with



extensive experience in shark conservation and management.  Specific actions the Center has


taken to help conserve sharks have included petitioning NMFS to have the great white shark



listed under the ESA, seeking regulation of the California drift gillnet fishery to protect the



thresher shark, and moving to certify Mexico’s shark fisheries to prevent their harm to various


species of concern.  The Center also submitted technical comments in support of the oceanic



whitetip shark’s listing as threatened, both at the 12-month finding and proposed listing stages. 


The Center has consistently displayed its ability to disseminate information provided to it


through FOIA.  In regularly granting the Center’s fee waivers, agencies have recognized:


(1) that the information requested by the Center contributes significantly to the public’s


understanding of the government’s operations or activities; (2) that the information enhances the



public’s understanding to a greater degree than currently exists; (3) that the Center possesses the



expertise to explain the requested information to the public; (4) that the Center possesses the



ability to disseminate the requested information to the general public; (5) and that the news


media recognizes the Center as an established expert in the field of imperiled species,



biodiversity, and impacts on protected species.  The Center’s track record of active participation



in oversight of governmental activities and decision making, and its consistent contribution to the



public’s understanding of those activities as compared to the level of public understanding prior



to disclosure are well established.



The Center intends to use the records requested here similarly.  The Center’s work appears in



more than 2,500 news stories online and in print, radio and TV per month, including regular



reporting in such important outlets as The New York Times, Washington Post, The Guardian, and
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Los Angeles Times.  Many media outlets reporting on agency actions have utilized information



obtained by the Center from federal agencies, including from NMFS.  In 2016, more than 2



million people visited the Center’s extensive website, viewing a total of more than 5.2 million



pages.  The Center sends out more than 277 email newsletters and action alerts per year to more



than 1.5 million members and supporters.  Three times a year, the Center sends printed



newsletters to more than 61,443 members.  More than 259,900 people have “liked” the Center on



Facebook, and there are regular postings regarding protections of endangered and threatened



species.  The Center also regularly tweets to more than 55,000 followers on Twitter.  The Center



intends to use any or all of these far-reaching media outlets to share with the public information



obtained as a result of this request.  Therefore, the Center has the expertise and capacity



effectively to analyze and distribute information contained in records responsive to this request


to the interested public as per the third factor under the public interest determination for fee



waiver requests.  See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii).


iv. Disclosure Is Likely to Contribute “Significantly” to the Public



Understanding of Government Operations or Activities – 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l)(2)(iv)


As stated above, NMFS has recognized that the oceanic whitetip shark is imperiled by catch in



U.S. fisheries.  The latest data on oceanic whitetip bycatch and targeted catch in U.S. fisheries


will provide substantial and updated information on the magnitude and sources of the harm to the



species from these activities.  The records will provide Center and the public with a better



understanding of these risks.  And they will help the Center and the public to evaluate the degree



to which NMFS has and can further ameliorate those risks through its fisheries management.  See


15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iv).



B. The Center Has No Commercial Interest in the Requested Records.


Access to government records, disclosure forms, and similar materials through FOIA requests is


essential to the Center’s role of educating the general public.  Founded in 1994, the Center is a



501(c)(3) nonprofit conservation organization (EIN: 27-3943866) with more than 1.5 million



members and online activists dedicated to the protection of endangered and threatened species


and wild places.  The Center has no commercial interest and will realize no commercial benefit


from the release of the requested records.


CONCLUSION



For the foregoing reasons, this FOIA request satisfies the statutory and regulatory requirements


for a full waiver of all search and duplication fees under 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii) and



15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l). 


I request that, should this FOIA request take longer than ten days to process, you notify me of the



individualized tracking number that has been assigned to the request and information about how



I may receive information on the status of my request via telephone or Internet.  I also request
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that you provide the estimated date on which you will complete action on this request, pursuant


to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(7).


Please contact me if you have any questions, or if I can clarify this request in any way.  I can be



reached at (206) 343-7340 x1038.  As provided by FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A), I look



forward to a response within twenty working days.  Thank you in advance for your assistance.


        Sincerely,


        


        Christopher D. Eaton


        Associate Attorney



        Earthjustice
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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U.S. Department of Commerce Privacy Threshold Analysis


NOAA/NOAA Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC)



Unique Project Identifier:  NOAA0520


Introduction:  This Privacy Threshold Analysis (PTA) is a questionnaire to assist with



determining if a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) is necessary for this IT system. This PTA is


primarily based from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) privacy guidance and the



Department of Commerce (DOC) IT security/privacy policy.  If questions arise or further



guidance is needed in order to complete this PTA, please contact your Bureau Chief Privacy



Officer (BCPO).


Description of the information system and its purpose:  NESCC SCADA integrated



information system (NOAA0520 or “0520”) is a general facility support system which provides


multiple environmental and physical access control resources to the NOAA Environmental


Security Computing Center facility (“NESCC”) and multiple NOAA programs.  NOAA0520



system is a supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system which monitors the



facility’s environment controls and physical access control points.  The NESCC facilities


primary function is to provide co-location resources and services, including common physical


and environmental controls, to the various NOAA programs that reside in the building.  The



tenants within the NESCC facility include:


1. NOAA Research and Development High Performance Computing System (R&D HPCS);


2. NOAA Cyber Security Division (CSD);



3. One (1) NOAA Leadership COOP site;



4. Bureau of Industry and Standards (BIS)


5. NESDIS (JPSS)



6. Information Technology Center (ITC)


7. NOAA Service Delivery Division (SDD)



NOAA0520 is under the Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric



Administration, Office of the Chief Information Officer (DOC/NOAA/OCIO). It is located



Fairmont, West Virginia inside a leased facility designed to support multiple mission



requirements for NOAA assisting in high availability and redundancy with high environmental


and physical capabilities. As a leased facility, NOAA0520 shares office and computer space with



all tenants listed above. 


PII consists of information provided for building and restricted area access, including video data.



PII inside of the NOAA0520 system boundary is only accessible by Federal employees and



NOAA0520 support contractors for the determination of access and badge coding.







  Version Number:  01-2017


2



Questionnaire:



1. What is the status of this information system?


____ This is a new information system. Continue to answer questions and complete certification.



____ This is an existing information system with changes that create new privacy risks.
Complete chart below, continue to answer questions, and complete certification.



Changes That Create New Privacy Risks (CTCNPR)


a. Conversions  d.   Significant Merging  g. New Interagency Uses 


b. Anonymous to Non- 


Anonymous 


 e.   New Public Access   h.  Internal Flow or 


Collection


c. Significant System 


Management Changes 


 f.  Commercial Sources  i.  Alteration in Character 


of Data


j.   Other changes that create new privacy risks (specify):


 ____ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is not a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment. Continue to answer



questions and complete certification.



__X_ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment (version 01-2015 or



later). Skip questions and complete certification.



2. Is the IT system or its information used to support any activity which may raise privacy



concerns?
NIST Special Publication 800-53 Revision 4, Appendix J, states “Organizations may also engage in activities that do not involve the



collection and use of PII, but may nevertheless raise privacy concerns and associated risk.  The privacy controls are equally applicable to



those activities and can be used to analyze the privacy risk and mitigate such risk when necessary.”  Examples include, but are not limited


to, audio recordings, video surveillance, building entry readers, and electronic purchase transactions.



 ____ Yes.  Please describe the activities which may raise privacy concerns.


 __X_ No



3. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate business identifiable information (BII)?
As per DOC Privacy Policy:  “For the purpose of this policy, business identifiable information consists of (a) information that is defined in


the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) as "trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person [that is]


privileged or confidential." (5 U.S.C.552(b)(4)). This information is exempt from automatic release under the (b)(4) FOIA exemption.



"Commercial" is not confined to records that reveal basic commercial operations" but includes any records [or information] in which the



submitter has a commercial interest" and can include information submitted by a nonprofit entity, or (b) commercial or other information


that, although it may not be exempt from release under FOIA, is exempt from disclosure by law (e.g., 13 U.S.C.).”


____ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates BII about:  (Check all that


apply.)



____ Companies


____ Other business entities


__X_ No, this IT system does not collect any BII.
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4. Personally Identifiable Information



4a. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate personally identifiable information



(PII)? 
As per OMB 07-16, Footnote 1: “The term ‘personally identifiable information’ refers to information which can be used to distinguish or



trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, biometric records, etc... alone, or when combined with other



personal or identifying information which is linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother’s maiden

name, etc...”


__X_ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII about:  (Check all that


apply.)



__X_ DOC employees


__X_ Contractors working on behalf of DOC


____ Members of the public


____ No, this IT system does not collect any PII.


If the answer is “yes” to question 4a, please respond to the following questions.



4b. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate PII other than user ID?



__X_ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII other than user ID.



____ No, the user ID is the only PII collected, maintained, or disseminated by the IT



system.


4c. Will the purpose for which the PII is collected, stored, used, processed, disclosed, or



disseminated (context of use) cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality impact


level?
Examples of context of use include, but are not limited to, law enforcement investigations, administration of benefits, contagious disease



treatments, etc.



____ Yes, the context of use will cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.



__X_ No, the context of use will not cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.



If any of the answers to questions 2, 3, 4b, and/or 4c are “Yes,” a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA)


must be completed for the IT system.  This PTA and the approved PIA must be a part of the IT system’s


Assessment and Authorization Package. 
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CERTIFICATION



__X_ I certify the criteria implied by one or more of the questions above apply to the NOAA



Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC) and as a consequence of this applicability,



I will perform and document a PIA for this IT system. 


_____ I certify the criteria implied by the questions above do not apply to the NOAA



Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC) and as a consequence of this non-


applicability, a PIA for this IT system is not necessary. 


Name of Information System Security Officer (ISSO) or System Owner (SO):


Justin May (ISSO)___________________________________________



 


Signature of ISSO or SO:  _____________________________________ Date:  ___________ 


Name of Information Technology Security Officer (ITSO):


Jean Apedo___________________



 


Signature of ITSO:   __________________________________________ Date:  ___________


Name of Authorizing Official (AO):


Douglas Perry_________________________



 


Signature of AO:   ____________________________________________ Date:  ___________


Name of Bureau Chief Privacy Officer (BCPO):


Mark Graff________________________



Signature of BCPO:  ___________________________________________ Date:  ___________


MAY.JUSTIN.NATHA 
NIEL.1039635980 


2018.08.08 10:04:37

-06'00' 08 Aug 18



ROGERS.WILLIAM.GUY 
.1520768811


Digitally signed by

ROGERS.WILLIAM.GUY.1520768811

Date: 2018.08.13 07:21:58 -04'00' 


8 Aug 2018



PERRY.DOUGLAS.A.1 3658472



70



Digitally signed by



PERRY.DOUGLAS.A.1 365847270



Date: 201 8.08.1 4 07:39:1 4 -04'00'



Signature of ISSO or SO

Date

Signature of ITSO

Date

Signature of AO

Date

Signature of BCPO

Date
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U.S. Department of Commerce Privacy Threshold Analysis


NOAA/NOAA Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC)



Unique Project Identifier:  NOAA0520


Introduction:  This Privacy Threshold Analysis (PTA) is a questionnaire to assist with



determining if a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) is necessary for this IT system. This PTA is


primarily based from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) privacy guidance and the



Department of Commerce (DOC) IT security/privacy policy.  If questions arise or further



guidance is needed in order to complete this PTA, please contact your Bureau Chief Privacy



Officer (BCPO).


Description of the information system and its purpose:  NESCC SCADA integrated



information system (NOAA0520 or “0520”) is a general facility support system which provides


multiple environmental and physical access control resources to the NOAA Environmental


Security Computing Center facility (“NESCC”) and multiple NOAA programs.  NOAA0520



system is a supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system which monitors the



facility’s environment controls and physical access control points.  The NESCC facilities


primary function is to provide co-location resources and services, including common physical


and environmental controls, to the various NOAA programs that reside in the building.  The



tenants within the NESCC facility include:


1. NOAA Research and Development High Performance Computing System (R&D HPCS);


2. NOAA Cyber Security Division (CSD);



3. One (1) NOAA Leadership COOP site;



4. Bureau of Industry and Standards (BIS)


5. NESDIS (JPSS)



6. Information Technology Center (ITC)


7. NOAA Service Delivery Division (SDD)



NOAA0520 is under the Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric



Administration, Office of the Chief Information Officer (DOC/NOAA/OCIO). It is located



Fairmont, West Virginia inside a leased facility designed to support multiple mission



requirements for NOAA assisting in high availability and redundancy with high environmental


and physical capabilities. As a leased facility, NOAA0520 shares office and computer space with



all tenants listed above. 


PII consists of information provided for building and restricted area access, including video data.



PII inside of the NOAA0520 system boundary is only accessible by Federal employees and



NOAA0520 support contractors for the determination of access and badge coding.
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Questionnaire:



1. What is the status of this information system?


____ This is a new information system. Continue to answer questions and complete certification.



____ This is an existing information system with changes that create new privacy risks.
Complete chart below, continue to answer questions, and complete certification.



Changes That Create New Privacy Risks (CTCNPR)


a. Conversions  d.   Significant Merging  g. New Interagency Uses 


b. Anonymous to Non- 


Anonymous 


 e.   New Public Access   h.  Internal Flow or 


Collection


c. Significant System 


Management Changes 


 f.  Commercial Sources  i.  Alteration in Character 


of Data


j.   Other changes that create new privacy risks (specify):


 ____ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is not a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment. Continue to answer



questions and complete certification.



__X_ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment (version 01-2015 or



later). Skip questions and complete certification.



2. Is the IT system or its information used to support any activity which may raise privacy



concerns?
NIST Special Publication 800-53 Revision 4, Appendix J, states “Organizations may also engage in activities that do not involve the



collection and use of PII, but may nevertheless raise privacy concerns and associated risk.  The privacy controls are equally applicable to



those activities and can be used to analyze the privacy risk and mitigate such risk when necessary.”  Examples include, but are not limited


to, audio recordings, video surveillance, building entry readers, and electronic purchase transactions.



 ____ Yes.  Please describe the activities which may raise privacy concerns.


 __X_ No



3. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate business identifiable information (BII)?
As per DOC Privacy Policy:  “For the purpose of this policy, business identifiable information consists of (a) information that is defined in


the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) as "trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person [that is]


privileged or confidential." (5 U.S.C.552(b)(4)). This information is exempt from automatic release under the (b)(4) FOIA exemption.



"Commercial" is not confined to records that reveal basic commercial operations" but includes any records [or information] in which the



submitter has a commercial interest" and can include information submitted by a nonprofit entity, or (b) commercial or other information


that, although it may not be exempt from release under FOIA, is exempt from disclosure by law (e.g., 13 U.S.C.).”


____ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates BII about:  (Check all that


apply.)



____ Companies


____ Other business entities


__X_ No, this IT system does not collect any BII.
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4. Personally Identifiable Information



4a. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate personally identifiable information



(PII)? 
As per OMB 07-16, Footnote 1: “The term ‘personally identifiable information’ refers to information which can be used to distinguish or



trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, biometric records, etc... alone, or when combined with other



personal or identifying information which is linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother’s maiden

name, etc...”


__X_ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII about:  (Check all that


apply.)



__X_ DOC employees


__X_ Contractors working on behalf of DOC


____ Members of the public


____ No, this IT system does not collect any PII.


If the answer is “yes” to question 4a, please respond to the following questions.



4b. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate PII other than user ID?



__X_ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII other than user ID.



____ No, the user ID is the only PII collected, maintained, or disseminated by the IT



system.


4c. Will the purpose for which the PII is collected, stored, used, processed, disclosed, or



disseminated (context of use) cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality impact


level?
Examples of context of use include, but are not limited to, law enforcement investigations, administration of benefits, contagious disease



treatments, etc.



____ Yes, the context of use will cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.



__X_ No, the context of use will not cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.



If any of the answers to questions 2, 3, 4b, and/or 4c are “Yes,” a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA)


must be completed for the IT system.  This PTA and the approved PIA must be a part of the IT system’s


Assessment and Authorization Package. 
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CERTIFICATION



__X_ I certify the criteria implied by one or more of the questions above apply to the NOAA



Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC) and as a consequence of this applicability,



I will perform and document a PIA for this IT system. 


_____ I certify the criteria implied by the questions above do not apply to the NOAA



Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC) and as a consequence of this non-


applicability, a PIA for this IT system is not necessary. 


Name of Information System Security Officer (ISSO) or System Owner (SO):


Justin May (ISSO)___________________________________________



 


Signature of ISSO or SO:  _____________________________________ Date:  ___________ 


Name of Information Technology Security Officer (ITSO):


Jean Apedo___________________



 


Signature of ITSO:   __________________________________________ Date:  ___________


Name of Authorizing Official (AO):


Douglas Perry_________________________



 


Signature of AO:   ____________________________________________ Date:  ___________


Name of Bureau Chief Privacy Officer (BCPO):


Mark Graff________________________



Signature of BCPO:  ___________________________________________ Date:  ___________
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U.S. Department of Commerce Privacy Threshold Analysis


NOAA/NOAA Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC)



Unique Project Identifier:  NOAA0520


Introduction:  This Privacy Threshold Analysis (PTA) is a questionnaire to assist with



determining if a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) is necessary for this IT system. This PTA is


primarily based from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) privacy guidance and the



Department of Commerce (DOC) IT security/privacy policy.  If questions arise or further



guidance is needed in order to complete this PTA, please contact your Bureau Chief Privacy



Officer (BCPO).


Description of the information system and its purpose:  NESCC SCADA integrated



information system (NOAA0520 or “0520”) is a general facility support system which provides


multiple environmental and physical access control resources to the NOAA Environmental


Security Computing Center facility (“NESCC”) and multiple NOAA programs.  NOAA0520



system is a supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system which monitors the



facility’s environment controls and physical access control points.  The NESCC facilities


primary function is to provide co-location resources and services, including common physical


and environmental controls, to the various NOAA programs that reside in the building.  The



tenants within the NESCC facility include:


1. NOAA Research and Development High Performance Computing System (R&D HPCS);


2. NOAA Cyber Security Division (CSD);



3. One (1) NOAA Leadership COOP site;



4. Bureau of Industry and Standards (BIS)


5. NESDIS (JPSS)



6. Information Technology Center (ITC)


7. NOAA Service Delivery Division (SDD)



NOAA0520 is under the Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric



Administration, Office of the Chief Information Officer (DOC/NOAA/OCIO). It is located



Fairmont, West Virginia inside a leased facility designed to support multiple mission



requirements for NOAA assisting in high availability and redundancy with high environmental


and physical capabilities. As a leased facility, NOAA0520 shares office and computer space with



all tenants listed above. 


PII consists of information provided for building and restricted area access, including video data.



PII inside of the NOAA0520 system boundary is only accessible by Federal employees and



NOAA0520 support contractors for the determination of access and badge coding.
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Questionnaire:



1. What is the status of this information system?


____ This is a new information system. Continue to answer questions and complete certification.



____ This is an existing information system with changes that create new privacy risks.
Complete chart below, continue to answer questions, and complete certification.



Changes That Create New Privacy Risks (CTCNPR)


a. Conversions  d.   Significant Merging  g. New Interagency Uses 


b. Anonymous to Non- 


Anonymous 


 e.   New Public Access   h.  Internal Flow or 


Collection


c. Significant System 


Management Changes 


 f.  Commercial Sources  i.  Alteration in Character 


of Data


j.   Other changes that create new privacy risks (specify):


 ____ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is not a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment. Continue to answer



questions and complete certification.



__X_ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment (version 01-2015 or



later). Skip questions and complete certification.



2. Is the IT system or its information used to support any activity which may raise privacy



concerns?
NIST Special Publication 800-53 Revision 4, Appendix J, states “Organizations may also engage in activities that do not involve the



collection and use of PII, but may nevertheless raise privacy concerns and associated risk.  The privacy controls are equally applicable to



those activities and can be used to analyze the privacy risk and mitigate such risk when necessary.”  Examples include, but are not limited


to, audio recordings, video surveillance, building entry readers, and electronic purchase transactions.



 ____ Yes.  Please describe the activities which may raise privacy concerns.


 __X_ No



3. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate business identifiable information (BII)?
As per DOC Privacy Policy:  “For the purpose of this policy, business identifiable information consists of (a) information that is defined in


the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) as "trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person [that is]


privileged or confidential." (5 U.S.C.552(b)(4)). This information is exempt from automatic release under the (b)(4) FOIA exemption.



"Commercial" is not confined to records that reveal basic commercial operations" but includes any records [or information] in which the



submitter has a commercial interest" and can include information submitted by a nonprofit entity, or (b) commercial or other information


that, although it may not be exempt from release under FOIA, is exempt from disclosure by law (e.g., 13 U.S.C.).”


____ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates BII about:  (Check all that


apply.)



____ Companies


____ Other business entities


__X_ No, this IT system does not collect any BII.
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4. Personally Identifiable Information



4a. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate personally identifiable information



(PII)? 
As per OMB 07-16, Footnote 1: “The term ‘personally identifiable information’ refers to information which can be used to distinguish or



trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, biometric records, etc... alone, or when combined with other



personal or identifying information which is linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother’s maiden

name, etc...”


__X_ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII about:  (Check all that


apply.)



__X_ DOC employees


__X_ Contractors working on behalf of DOC


____ Members of the public


____ No, this IT system does not collect any PII.


If the answer is “yes” to question 4a, please respond to the following questions.



4b. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate PII other than user ID?



__X_ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII other than user ID.



____ No, the user ID is the only PII collected, maintained, or disseminated by the IT



system.


4c. Will the purpose for which the PII is collected, stored, used, processed, disclosed, or



disseminated (context of use) cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality impact


level?
Examples of context of use include, but are not limited to, law enforcement investigations, administration of benefits, contagious disease



treatments, etc.



____ Yes, the context of use will cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.



__X_ No, the context of use will not cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.



If any of the answers to questions 2, 3, 4b, and/or 4c are “Yes,” a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA)


must be completed for the IT system.  This PTA and the approved PIA must be a part of the IT system’s


Assessment and Authorization Package. 
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CERTIFICATION



__X_ I certify the criteria implied by one or more of the questions above apply to the NOAA



Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC) and as a consequence of this applicability,



I will perform and document a PIA for this IT system. 


_____ I certify the criteria implied by the questions above do not apply to the NOAA



Environmental Security Computing Center (NESCC) and as a consequence of this non-


applicability, a PIA for this IT system is not necessary. 


Name of Information System Security Officer (ISSO) or System Owner (SO):


Justin May (ISSO)___________________________________________



 


Signature of ISSO or SO:  _____________________________________ Date:  ___________ 


Name of Information Technology Security Officer (ITSO):


Jean Apedo___________________



 


Signature of ITSO:   __________________________________________ Date:  ___________


Name of Authorizing Official (AO):


Douglas Perry_________________________



 


Signature of AO:   ____________________________________________ Date:  ___________


Name of Bureau Chief Privacy Officer (BCPO):


Mark Graff________________________



 


Signature of BCPO:  ___________________________________________ Date:  ___________
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2018.08.08 10:04:37
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TOP NEWS



SEC Rejects 9 Proposed Bitcoin Exchange-Traded Funds



The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission rejected applications for

nine separate bitcoin-based exchange-traded funds on Wednesday, once

again thwarting an attempt to build an ETF product based upon the volatile

cryptocurrency. Read full article »



Ga. Voters Fight State Opposition To Paper Ballot Switch



A voting integrity group and several Georgia residents have doubled down

on their bids to force the state to replace its allegedly insecure and

unreliable electronic voting system with paper ballots, telling a federal court

that the relief they request can and must be implemented before upcoming

elections. Read full article »



Feature



What To Watch As Privacy Shield Data Pact Scrutiny Heats Up



The Privacy Shield data transfer mechanism will soon face its latest and

potentially most serious test as European Union and U.S. officials gear up

to review the pact for a second time, and experts predict that its continued

viability is likely to hinge on how much weight EU policymakers choose to

give to competing input from their U.S. counterparts and EU lawmakers.

Read full article »



Atty Admits Cyberstalking Woman With Email, Blog Threats



A lawyer who was jailed in June on allegations of a long campaign of

harassment targeting a woman he briefly dated admitted to a count of

cyberstalking on Wednesday, telling a federal judge in Manhattan that he

"very much" knew his threatening emails and blog posts were illegal.

Read full article »



DOD Detainee Photos Exempt From FOIA, 2nd Circ. Says



The U.S. Department of Defense adequately supported its finding that

certain photographs of military detainees taken at facilities in Iraq and

Afghanistan are exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information

Act for security reasons, the Second Circuit has ruled, reversing a district

court's decision. Read full article »
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CTIA Unveils Internet Of Things Cybersecurity Certification
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Listen to our new podcast here
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McDermott Will

Wireless industry trade association CTIA announced the

creation Tuesday of a new certification program to sign off on the

cybersecurity in cellular-connected devices that are part of the so-called

internet of things.  Read full article »
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Wireless industry trade association CTIA announced the

creation Tuesday of a new certification program to sign off on the

cybersecurity in cellular-connected devices that are part of the so-called

internet of things.  Read full article »



Firms Must Embrace Ongoing Training To Thwart Cyberattacks



Maintaining security is a process that businesses must continually cultivate

and reevaluate as law firms and companies of all sizes face unprecedented

challenges from cyberattacks, a group of panelists said Wednesday during

an American Bar Association webinar. Read full article »



LITIGATION



Debt Collector Must Face Claim Over Voicemail, 3rd Circ. Says



The Third Circuit on Wednesday revived a putative class action alleging a

debt collector violated federal law when it didn’t use its actual corporate

name in a voicemail, reasoning in a precedential decision that the use of an

alternative business moniker was enough to support a Fair Debt Collection

Practices Act allegation. Read full article »



Men's Wearhouse Agrees To Settle Robotext Suit For $1 .8M



Men’s Wearhouse Inc. has agreed to pay $1 .8 million to settle class action

allegations that it violated the Telephone Consumer Protection Act by

texting customers too many advertisements, according to a bid for

settlement approval filed in California federal court Tuesday.

Read full article »



Chase Says Landry's Atty Can’t Be A Witness In $20M Suit



JPMorgan Chase's payment processing arm Paymentech told a Texas

federal judge that a Ropes & Gray attorney for Landry’s Inc. is violating

state ethics rules by trying to act as both an advocate and a witness in a

$20 million breach of contract lawsuit, saying the attorney’s declaration in a

summary judgment motion should be stricken. Read full article »



Kanye Fans Seek Cert. In Suit Over Tidal Release Tweet



A group of Kanye West fans who claim they were tricked into subscribing to

the Tidal music service and relinquishing personal information have asked a

New York federal judge to certify them as a class, arguing they were all

subject to the same lie in one of the rapper’s tweets. Read full article »



PEOPLE



Blockchain Developer Hires Clifford Chance Finance Partner



A Cayman Island-based blockchain developer has announced that it will be

snapping up a finance partner from Clifford Chance LLP’s London office to

head its legal, regulatory and compliance activities. Read full article »



EXPERT ANALYSIS



Clarity On Overlapping Background Check Laws In Calif.



On Monday, in Connor v. First Student, the California Supreme Court found

the state’s Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act was not

unconstitutionally vague as applied to employer background checks,

despite overlap with the Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Act. As a

result, consumer reporting agencies should carefully review their products

to assure compliance, say attorneys with Troutman Sanders LLP.

Read full article »
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Feature



Cohen Plea Brings Kavanaugh’s Indictment Views To The Fore



Michael Cohen's courtroom accusation Tuesday that President Donald

Trump directed him to break federal campaign finance law has put renewed

attention on U.S. Supreme Court nominee Brett Kavanaugh's suggestion

that a sitting president can't be indicted. Read full article »



Analysis



Cohen Guilty Pleas Bode Poorly For Trump Privilege Stance



Michael Cohen’s admissions that he broke federal tax and campaign

finance laws — and his direct implication of his former client, Donald Trump,

in two of those crimes — will severely restrict the president’s ability moving

forward to argue that related communications with Cohen are shielded by

attorney-client privilege, experts say. Read full article »



Federal Bench Nominees Duck Questions On Roe, Immigration



Nominees for the federal bench, including a candidate for the Eighth

Circuit, punted on questions related to loaded political issues at a Senate

Judiciary Committee hearing Wednesday morning, as senators grilled them

on their positions on fraught topics such as immigration and abortion rights.

Read full article »



Morgan Lewis Continues IP Expansion, Adds 9-Partner Team



Morgan Lewis & Bockius LLP has added a nine-partner intellectual property

team focused on patent prosecution and litigation from McDermott Will &

Emery in Orange County, California, the firm announced Wednesday.

Read full article »



BigLaw Innovators Tell How To Beat The Status Quo



BigLaw change-makers from Troutman Sanders LLP, Orrick Herrington &

Sutcliffe LLP, Littler Mendelson PC and Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer LLP

took the stage Wednesday at a legal technology conference in Maryland to

share stories about how they were able to shake things up in an industry

not known for embracing risk. Read full article »



Ex-ABA Employee Accused Of Stealing $1 .3M In Cellphones



A former American Bar Association finance administrator has been arrested

on felony theft charges alleging she stole nearly 2,000 cellphones and 1 0

iPads worth nearly $1 .3 million that she ordered in the name of the

association during an eight-year period, according to a filing by prosecutors.

Read full article »



Reed Smith Atty's Widow Loses $3M GSK Verdict On Appeal



The Seventh Circuit ruled in favor of GlaxoSmithKline on Wednesday in the

drug company's appeal of a $3 million jury award to the widow of a Reed

Smith LLP partner who committed suicide while taking a generic version of

Paxil, saying federal law barred the pharmaceutical company from adding a

warning about the risk of suicide in adults. Read full article »



Interview



Law Firm Leaders: DLA Piper's Roger Meltzer



Roger Meltzer has served as global co-chair of DLA Piper for the past three

years, before which he served as its co-chair of the Americas for two years.

During that time, the law firm added six offices and nearly 200 attorneys,

and increased its annual revenue by $150 million. Read full article »
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE


National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration


NATIO NAL MAR INE FISHER IES SERVICE


Joseph Sullivan


Law Office PLLC


4005 2011' Ave W, Suite 221



Seattle, WA gg199


Silv e r Sp rin g , MD 2 0 81  O



Re:
FOIARequest DOC-NOAA-2017-0001730


Dear Mr. Sullivan:



SEP Z 1 2017



This letter is in response to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request which was received


by our office on August 22, 2017, in Which you requested:



"1) All correspondence to or from Glenn Merrill, Assistant Regional Administrator for


the



Alaska Region of NMFS, from January 1, 2016 through the present relating to (a) the



interpretation and application of the arbitration system standards set forth at 50


C.F.R. §680.20(g) and/or (b) the Alaska state minimum wage increase approved by


voters in November 2014.



For purposes of this request, the term "correspondence" includes without limitation



all emails, text messages, social media messages, voice mails, facsimiles and


letters, regardless of whether sent from or received on government or personal


devices or transmitted through some other means."


We have located 146 records responsive to your request. An index is provided for your


convenience. A summary follows:



· 139 records are being released to you in their entirety.



· 6 records released in part under exemption 5 U.S.C. § 552 (b)(5) , which exempts from



disclosure inter-agency or intra-agency memorandums or letters which would not be



available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with the agency. The


records contain deliberations and legal advice between NMFS staff and attorneys.


· 1 record is released in part under exemption 5 U.S.C. § 552 (b)(6), which exempts


personnel and medical files and similar files when the disclosure of such information


would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. The records contain



personal medical information that would not be available to the public at large.



In your request, you agreed to pay up to $1000.00. Under 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(c)(1)(i) (2012) ,



you fall under the "Commercial Requester" category. Your chargeable fees for this FOIA


are for search, review, and duplication. You will be notified via FOIAonline regarding the


$154.00 applicable fees for processing this request.
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Your request is now complete.



You have the right to file an administrative appeal if you are not satisfied with our response to



your FOIA request. All appeals should include a statement of the reasons why you believe the



FOIA response was not satisfactory. An appeal based on documents in this release must be



received within 90 calendar days of the date of this response letter at the following address:



Assistant General Counsel for Litigation, Employment, and Oversight


U.S. Department of Commerce


Office of General Counsel


Room 5875


14th and Constitution Avenue, N.W.



Washington , D.C. 20230


An appeal may also be sent by e-mail to FOIAAppeals@doc.gov, by facsimile (fax) to 202-482-


2552, or by FOIAonline at https://foiaonline.regulations.gov/foia/action/public/home#.



For your appeal to be complete, it must include the following items:



· a copy of the original request,


· our response to your request,


· a statement explaining why the withheld records should be made available, and why the


denial of the records was in error.



· "Freedom of Information Act Appeal" must appear on your appeal letter. It should also be



written on your envelope, e-mail subject line, or your fax cover sheet.


FOIA appeals posted to the e-mail box, fax machine, FOIAonline, or Office after normal



business hours will be deemed received on the next business day. If the 90th calendar day for



submitting an appeal falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal public holiday, an appeal received by



5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, the next business day will be deemed timely.



FOIA grants requesters the right to challenge an agency's final action in federal court. Before


doing so, an adjudication of an administrative appeal is ordinarily required .



The Office of Government Information Services (OGIS), an office created with in the National


Archives and Records Administration , offers free mediation services to FOIA requesters. They


may be contacted in any of the following ways:



Office of Government Information Services


National Archives and Records Administration



Room 2510


8601 Adelphi Road


College Park, MD 207 40-6001



Email: ogis@nara.gov


Phone: 301-837-1996
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Fax: 301-837-0348


Toll-free: 1-877-684-6448


If you have questions regarding this correspondence please contact Ms. Ellen Sebastian at



ellen.sebastian@noaa.gov or by phone at (907) 586-7152, or the NOAA FOIA Public Liaison



Robert Swisher at (301) 628-5755.



Sincerely,


Samuel D. Rauch Ill,


Deputy Assistant Administrator


for Regulatory Programs
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December 15, 2017


Assistant General Counsel for Litigation, Employment and Oversight  Sent via Email


U.S. Department of Commerce


Office of General Counsel


Room 5875


14th and Constitution Avenue, N.W.


Washington, D.C.  20230


FOIAAppeals@doc.gov


Re:  Freedom of Information Act Appeal –  


FOIA Request DOC-NOAA-2017-0001730


To whom it concerns:


We represent Inter-Cooperative Exchange (ICE), a cooperative formed under the Bering



Sea/Aleutian Islands (BS/AI) crab rationalization program administered by the National Marine



Fisheries Service (NMFS).  As more fully described below, ICE hereby appeals the NMFS



decision not to review or produce Mr. Glenn Merrill’s text messages, social media messages and



voice mail messages that may be within the scope of the ICE FOIA request referenced above, and



appeals the NMFS decision to redact April 6, 2017 email correspondence among Mr. Merrill and



Mss. Smoker, Sullivan and Marrinan.  


1.  NMFS Decision Not to Review or Produce Text Messages, Social Media Messages


and Voice Mail Messages.  The ICE FOIA request referenced above requested copies of Mr.



Merrill’s correspondence relating to (a) interpretation and application of the binding arbitration



system standards set forth at 50 CFR § 680.20(g) and/or (b) the Alaska state minimum wage



increase approved by voters in November 2014.  The ICE FOIA request defines



“correspondence” as including without limitation emails, text messages, social media messages,



voice mails, facsimiles and letters, regardless of whether sent from or received on government or



personal devices or transmitted through some other means.  


The documents produced by NMFS in response to the ICE FOIA request do not include



any text messages, social media messages or voice mail messages.  On October 5, 2017, I met



with Ms. Lauren Smoker of the NOAA General Counsel Alaska Region office about NMFS



production in response to the ICE FOIA request.  She informed me that NMFS did not review Mr.



Merrill’s text messages or social media messages in response to the ICE FOIA request.  While the



basis for that decision was not entirely clear, it seems NMFS is assuming that text messages,



social media messages and voice mail messages are not “agency records” which would be



subject to production under the FOIA.  


The Federal Records Act defines “records” to include all recorded information, regardless



of form or characteristics, made or received by a Federal agency under Federal law or in
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connection with the transaction of public business and preserved or appropriate for preservation



by that agency or its legitimate successor.  See 44 U.S.C. § 3301.  The term “recorded



information” is defined as including all traditional forms of records, including information



created or stored in digital or electronic format.  Id.  Given the breadth of this description, we



see no basis for excluding text, social media or voice mail messages from the scope of records


within the ICE request.    


The Federal Records Act also provides that an officer or employee of an executive



agency may not create or send a record using a non-official electronic messaging account unless



such officer or employee copies an official electronic messaging account of the officer or



employee in the original creation or transmission of the record or forwards a complete copy of the



record to an official electronic messaging account of the officer or employee not later than 20



days after the original creation or transmission of the record.  See 44 U.S.C. § 2911.  The



Federal Records Act defines “electronic messages” as electronic mail and other electronic



messaging systems that are used for purposes of communicating between individuals.  Id.  This



definition has been interpreted by the National Archivist to include chat/instant messaging



services, text messages, voicemail messages and other messaging platforms, such as social



media.  See attached National Archives Bulletin 2015-02 (July 29, 2015).  


Per the Federal Records Act and the attached guidance from the National Archivist, all



text messages and social media messages Mr. Merrill sent or received and all voice mails left for



him in connection with the transaction of public business during the relevant time period should



have been reviewed to determine whether they fell within the scope of the ICE FOIA request, and



the messages that did should have been produced unless they fell within the scope of a FOIA



production prohibition or properly exercised exemption.  We see no basis in law for the agency to



have done otherwise, and we appeal the NMFS decision not to review or produce those records.    


2.  Records Redacted in Part under Exemption 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(5).   As stated



above, we are appealing the NMFS decision to not disclose the redacted portions of email



correspondence among Mr. Merrill and Mss. Smoker, Sullivan and Marrinan of April 6, 2017.



The agency asserts it is not disclosing the redacted portions of that correspondence under the



exemption cited above, because “the records contain deliberations and legal advice between



NMFS staff and attorneys”.  


 Ms. Marrinan is not a NMFS staff person.  She is employed by the North Pacific Fishery



Management Council (NPFMC), which is a separate, independent body.  On April 9, 2017, Ms.



Marrinan made a presentation to the NPFMC which addressed procedural options for action on



the arbitration standard issue before it.  Following her presentation and public comment, Mr.



Merrill, acting as a voting NPFMC member, made a motion proposing the NPFMC procedure he



considered appropriate for addressing the arbitration standard issue, and commented extensively



on the legality and appropriateness of that procedure during NPFMC deliberations.   


 Pursuant to 16 U.S.C. 1852(i)(2)(F), the administrative record for each Council meeting,



including records or other documents which were made available to or prepared for the Council,



shall be made available for public inspection and copying at a single location.  (Emphasis



added.)  The emails ICE is requesting were provided to Mr. Merrill in connection with an issue on



which he took action as a voting NPFMC member and Ms. Marrinan as NPFMC staff.  In this



context, the correspondence in question is properly part of the administrative record for the April




https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=44-USC-1074643773-380226945&term_occur=1&term_src=title:44:chapter:29:section:2911

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=44-USC-1074643773-380226945&term_occur=1&term_src=title:44:chapter:29:section:2911
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https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=44-USC-690423917-380226944&term_occur=2&term_src=title:44:chapter:29:section:2911
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2017 NPFMC meeting, and is therefore public information.  By participating in deliberations



with and providing legal advice to Mr. Merrill and Ms. Marrinan under these circumstances, the



agency waived its right to assert confidentiality pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(5).


 


 As a separate but related matter, the “FOIA Improvement Act of 2016”, which was



signed into law on June 30, 2016, codified the “foreseeable harm” standard for non-disclosure.



Under that standard, agencies shall withhold information under FOIA only if the agency



reasonably foresees that disclosure would harm an interest protected by the exemption, or



disclosure is prohibited by law.  See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(8)(A)(i) (Emphasis added.)  


 We do not believe this threshold is met in connection with the agency’s decision to



withhold the redacted portions of the correspondence at issue.  It appears that the guidance Ms.



Marrinan sought and obtained concerns the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and



Management Act and Administrative Procedures Act procedural requirements implicated by a



potential NPFMC decision to issue a written interpretation of an arbitration standard.  We fail to



see any foreseeable harm related to releasing that guidance to the public.  On the contrary, we



firmly believe that providing such guidance to the public is important to help participants in the



NPFMC process understand the appropriate parameters for choosing among various procedural



options the NPFMC may have with respect to a specific issue.  This function has traditionally



been served by the office of NOAA General Counsel, and we note that NOAA General Counsel



attorneys perform that function on the public record at NPFMC meetings on a regular basis.  We



fail to see any reason why the guidance in the correspondence at issue should be treated



differently.  We therefore request that the records which were redacted under exemption 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(b)(5) be produced in their full, unredacted form.  


        Sincerely,


                  Joe Sullivan Law Office PLLC


             s / Joe Sullivan


           Joseph M. Sullivan


cc:  Dr. James Balsiger (via email)


      Ms. Lauren Smoker (via email)
























































Attorney Date Description of task Hours billed



Jolie McLaughlin 10/31/2017 Initial legal and factual research and review of case file 4.2



Jolie McLaughlin 11/2/2017 Communicate with internal NRDC team regarding litigation strategy 1.3



Jolie McLaughlin 11/3/2017 Conduct legal research regarding administrative appeal requirements for FOIA requests 1.1



Jolie McLaughlin 11/6/2017 Conduct research on Department of Commerce FOIA regulations 1.0



Jolie McLaughlin 12/7/2017 Draft and revise FOIA complaint 0.8



Jolie McLaughlin 12/11/2017 Draft and revise FOIA complaint 1.0



Jolie McLaughlin 1/5/2018 Draft and revise FOIA complaint 0.8



Jolie McLaughlin 1/11/2018 Revise FOIA complaint 2.8



Jolie McLaughlin 1/16/2018 Revise FOIA complaint 1.0



Jolie McLaughlin 1/17/2018 Revise FOIA complaint 1.8



Jolie McLaughlin 1/18/2018 Draft and revise FOIA complaint 2.0



Jolie McLaughlin 1/18/2018 Draft case initiating documents 0.4



Jolie McLaughlin 1/24/2018 Prepare summonses for service of complaint 0.8



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/5/2018 Prepare notice of appearance 0.6



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/5/2018 Client meeting re: production schedule 0.3



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/6/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (email) 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/8/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.3



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/8/2018 Draft letter to Judge Nathan requesting clarification of initial pretrial conference date 0.5



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/8/2018 Communications with client re: production schedule 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/14/2018 Review case in preparation for call with opposing counsel 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/14/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/14/2018 Communications with client re: updated production schedule 0.2



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/16/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/16/2018 Communications with client re: production deadlines 0.5



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/16/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/28/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 3/29/2018 Review proposed letter to Judge Nathan re: schedule for production 0.3



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 4/24/2018 Review production from Defendant 2.4



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 4/24/2018 Communications with client re: latest production 0.4



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 4/24/2018 Strategy meeting with Catherine Rahm re: latest production 0.2



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 4/25/2018 Legal research re: (b)(5) redactions 1.9



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 5/2/2018 Review production for (b)(5) challenge 0.3



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 5/7/2018 Draft and send to opposing counsel questions re: deficiencies in production 1.0








Attorney Date Description of task Hours billed



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 5/16/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.0



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 5/25/2018 Communications with opposing counsel 0.5



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 5/30/2018 Communications with client re: developments in production schedule 0.2



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/1/2018 Review production from Defendant 0.4



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/7/2018 Review production from Defendant 1.3



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/7/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.2



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/7/2018 Communications with client re: latest production 0.2



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/18/2018 Communications with client re: latest production 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/19/2018 Review order for initial pre-trial conference 0.2



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/19/2018 Review Judge Nathan's individual rules 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/19/2018 Strategy meeting with Catherine Rahm 0.2



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/19/2018 Draft letter in response to Judge Nathan's order 1.5



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/20/2018 Communications with client 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/21/2018 Communications with opposing counsel (call) 0.1



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/21/2018 Draft letter and proposed case-management plan in response to Judge Nathan's order 1.0



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/21/2018 Finalize letter and proposed case-management plan 0.4



Daniel Carpenter-Gold 6/21/2018 Review opposing counsel's edits to letter and proposed case-management plan 0.2



Total 35.3









July 10, 2018


CONFIDENTIAL SETTLEMENT COMMUNICATION


By email
Jennifer Jude
Assistant United States Attorney
86 Chambers Street, 3rd Floor
New York, NY 10007
Jennifer.Jude@usdoj.gov


Re: Settlement of attorneys’ fees and costs in Natural Resources Defense

Council, Inc. v. United States Department of Commerce, 18-cv-583 (AJN)


Dear Jen:


I write to offer a settlement of plaintiff Natural Resource Defense Council’s

(NRDC’s) claim for attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this litigation. NRDC is entitled

to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in litigating this case because

the Department of Commerce voluntarily complied with NRDC’s Freedom of

Information Act request after NRDC filed this lawsuit. 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(E); Warren

v. Colvin, 744 F.3d 841, 844-45 (2d Cir. 2014) (per curiam). 


In the interest of settlement, NRDC offers to accept $14,545.38 to settle its claim

for fees and costs. The basis for this calculation is set forth below and in the attached

timesheet.


1. Attorneys’ Fees


A. Reasonable Hourly Rates


NRDC is entitled to recover attorneys’ fees based on reasonable hourly rates, i.e.,

the “prevailing market rates for counsel of similar experience to the fee applicant’s

counsel” in the forum district, here the Southern District of New York. Farbotko v.

Clinton Cty., 433 F.3d 204, 209 (2d Cir. 2005). Two junior attorneys and one senior

attorney billed time for this case; for the purposes of settlement, NRDC is seeking fees

only for the junior attorneys’ time. The rate of $400/hour has been found reasonable in

this District for junior attorneys in FOIA cases, and is the rate used here for purposes of

settlement. See New York Times Co. v. Central Intelligence Agency, 251 F. Supp. 3d

710, 715 (S.D.N.Y. 2017).  
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B. Reasonable Hours Expended


For purposes of settlement, NRDC seeks recovery for 35.3 hours of junior

attorney time, or $14,120 at a rate of $400/hour. These hours are reasonable and

include cuts made in the interest of settlement. To facilitate settlement, NRDC is seeking

no fees for (1) the time of Senior Attorney Catherine Rahm; (2) time spent by other

attorneys and legal assistants; (3) time spent drafting certain case-initiating documents;

and (4) time spent filing documents with the court. Please see the attached timesheet for

details.


2. Costs


NRDC offers to settle its claim for litigation costs for $425.38. This reflects the

$400 filing fee in the Southern District of New York, plus $25.38 in postage for service

of case-initiating documents on the Department of Commerce, the Attorney General,

and your office. 


3. Conclusion


In sum, NRDC offers to settle its claim for attorneys’ fees and costs in this case

for $14,120 in attorneys’ fees and $425.38 in costs, for a total of $14,545.38. 


If the parties are unable to reach an agreement, NRDC reserves the right to seek

full recovery of costs and fees from the Court, including those that were, in the interest

of settlement, excluded from this letter, and which may be billed at higher rates, as

appropriate. Plaintiffs would also seek to recover fees for the time spent preparing and

litigating a fee motion.


We look forward to your response.
 


Sincerely,


     
 Daniel Carpenter-Gold 


dgold@nrdc.org
(212) 727-4656
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE



Office of the General Counsel



Washington, DC 20230



Via FOIAOnline



Hallie Templeton



Friends of the Earth



1101 15thSt. NW 11thFloor



Washington, D.C. 20015



Re: Request No. DOC-NOAA-2018-000947



Appeal No. DOC-OS-2018-001100



Dear Ms. Templeton:



This responds to your administrative appeal under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)



(5 U.S.C. § 552) which you submitted on April 2, 2018. Your appeal challenges NOAA's denial



of your fee waiver request. As explained below, your appeal is denied.



FOIA provides for a waiver of all fees if disclosure of the information sought "is in the public



interest because it is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or



activities of the government and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester."



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii). Consistent with the statute, the Department's FOIA regulations



provide, in pertinent part, that



Fee Waiver



Records responsive to a request will be furnished without charge, or at a charge



reduced below that established under paragraph (c) of this section, if the requester



asks for such a waiver in writing and the responsible component determines, after



consideration of information provided by the requester, that the requester has



demonstrated that: (i) Disclosure of the requested information is in the public



interest because it is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of



the operations or activities of the Government; and (ii) Disclosure of the



information is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester.



15 C.F.R. § 4.11(1).



Both prongs of this two-step test, the public interest prong and the commercial interest prong,



must be satisfied by the requester before assessable fees are properly waived or reduced. See



S. Utah WildernessAlliance v. Us. Bureau of Land Mgmt., 402 F. Supp. 2d 82,86-87 (D.D.C.



2005). Department regulations establish how these two prongs may be satisfied pursuant to



the statutory standard. See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(1).



FOIA fee waiver determinations are made on a case-by-case basis. See Media Access Project v.



Fed. Commc'ns Comm'n, 883 F.2d 1063, 1065 (D.C. Cir. 1989). The requester has the burden of








demonstrating that it can meet the stated requirements and must meet that burdeii'~with ,~!;



"reasonable specificity" rather than by offering mere conclusory allegations. Pub. Emps.for



Envtl. Responsibility v.Dep't of Commerce, 968 F. Supp. 2d 88, 98 (D.D.C. 2013).



In order to determine whether disclosure is in the public interest, the Department's FOIA



regulations set forth four factors that must be met: (1) whether the subject of the requested



records concerns the operations or activities of the government; (2) whether the disclosure is



likely to contribute to an understanding of government operations or activities; (3) whether



disclosure of the requested information will contribute to the understanding of a reasonably



broad audience of persons interested in the subject as opposed to the individual understanding of



the requester; and (4) whether the disclosure is likely to contribute significantly to public



understanding of government operations or activities. 15 C.F .R. § 4.11 (1)(2). All four of these



factors must apply for a request to be considered in the public interest. Cause of Action v. Fed.



Trade Comm'n, 961 F. Supp. 2d 142, 154 (D.D.C. 2013) ("All four requirements must be met in



order to demonstrate that the request is in the public interest."); Judicial Watch,Inc. v.Dep 't of



Justice, 365 F.3d 1108, 1126 (D.C. Cir. 2004) (invoking the four-factor fee waiver test and



stating that "[the] four criteria must be satisfied" in order "for a request to be in the 'public



interest''').



Factor 1: Whether the Subject Matter of Records Sought Concern the Operations or Activities of



the Government



Under this factor, the subject of the requested records must concern identifiable operations or



activities of the government, with a connection that is direct and clear rather than remote or



attenuated. 15 C.F.R. § 4.11 (l)(2)(i).



The records you requested--records generated by NOAA or any of its IMFCs pertaining to



correspondence received from a member of the public, concern an "identifiable operation or



activity of the government," namely, how the agency handles incoming correspondence, and you



therefore satisfy this factor.



Factor 2: WhetherDisclosure of the Records Is Likely to Contribute to an Understanding of



Government Operations or Activities



In order for disclosure to be likely to contribute to an understanding of specific government



operations or activities, the disclosable portions of the requested documents must be



meaningfully informative about government operations or activities. 15 C.F .R. § 4.11 (l)(2)(ii).



See Citizensfor Responsibility and Ethics in Washington v. Dep 't of Health and Human Servs.,



481 F. Supp. 2d 99, 109 (D.D.C. 2006) (requester must show how documents would increase



public knowledge of the functions of the government with "reasonable specificity").



While you have asserted that the requested records "will be meaningfully informative" regarding



the federal government's financial support for marine finfish aquaculture and the government's



legal obligations to conduct environmental reviews, you failed to provide a convincing,



reasonably specific argument showing how requesting records which would reveal how the
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government handles correspondence from a member of the public would illuminate how the



government handles financial support to aquaculture.



In the absence of information reasonably specifying how the requested information would



increase the public's understanding of government operations, the second factor is not met in this



appeal.



Factor 3,' Whether Disclosure of the Requested Information Contributes to an Understanding of a



Reasonably Broad Audience of People Interested in the Subject, and Not Merely the



Individual Understanding of the Requester



Under the third factor, requesters who are not members of the news media must substantiate their



intention and ability to disseminate information to the public in order to show that the requested



information will contribute to the understanding of the subject by the public. 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11 (l)(2)(iii); see also Judicial Watch, Inc. v. Rossotti, 326 F.3d 1309 (D.C. Cir. 2003)



(requester must include details regarding its general methods for publicizing disclosed



information).



In your fee waiver appeal, you state that "once the records are made available" Friends of



the Earth will provide the information to its many members and activists, and the general public



and you provide details about the expertise and capability of Friends of the Earth to "contribute to



the understanding" of a "reasonable broad audience." Although Friends of the Earth convincingly



argues that they are capable of publicizing the requested records to a broad audience, this factor is



more focused on whether the records sought are of inherent interest to a reasonably broad audience



or, instead, of specific interest to the requester alone or a small audience. NOAA reasoned in its



denial of a fee waiver that the documents requested narrowly sought records generated in response



to correspondence co-signed by the requester itself. "As such, the interest served through



disclosure would primarily be to the benefit of the requester(s), rather than to a segment of



interested individuals."



In your appeal you state:



Disclosure of the requested records will allow Appellant to convey widely to the



public information about the amount and specific application of federal funds to



support bringing industrial ocean fish farming to domestic waterways, as well as



what review processes the government has taken to protect coastal communities



and prevent impairment to the environment, including endangered and threatened



species, from this support. How the government generally evaluates the impacts of



its funding decisions; the amount and specific application of federal funds to



support certain industries; and what review processes the government has taken to



protect coastal communities and prevent impairment to the environment, including



endangered and threatened species, are all areas of interest to a reasonably-broad



segment of the public.



Again, we find a logical gap between records that would reveal how the government handles



correspondence from a member of the public and records which would show how the government



3








handles financial support to aquaculture. The organization's ability to publish information to



millions of its own members and members ofthe public about how correspondence was addressed



is unrelated to whether the documents requested would contribute to an understanding of



government support of aquaculture.



Your appeal does not address whether the requested documents are of interest to a



reasonably broad audience beyond yourself, and you have therefore not satisfied the third public



interest factor.



Factor 4: WhetherDisclosure of the Requested Records Will Significantly Contribute to an



Understanding of Government Operations or Activities



Under the fourth and final factor of the public interest analysis, the disclosure of the requested



documents must be likely to contribute significantly to the public understanding of government



operations or activities. 15C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iv). The public's understanding ofthe subject in



question prior to the disclosure must be significantly enhanced by the disclosure. This factor



focuses on whether the information that is already available to the public is such that it would not



be in the public's interest to fund a search for further materials that would reveal little that is new



about the matter in question. This invites a comparison of the information sought to that which



already is publicly available. For example,



in some instances, it may be appropriate to deny a fee waiver because the



requested records are available from public sources. If, for example, at the time of



the request the requested records are readily available from other sources, then it



is logical to conclude that further disclosure by the agency will not significantly



contribute to the public's understanding.



Carney, 19F.3d at 815. As a result, fee waiver requests have been denied where the information



to be sought is already in the public domain. See Judicial Watchv.DOJ, 365 F.3d at 1127



(upholding denial of fee waiver request where plaintiff failed to counter government's



representations that requested information "was already in the public domain").



As discussed under the second and third factor, you did not adequately explain how a broader



public understanding of NOAA's activities with regard to aquaculture could be significantly



enhanced by requesting records regarding NOAA's handling of correspondence from your



organization. Despite conclusory claims that



the requested records will help reveal more about what steps the government has



taken to prevent impairment to the environment, including endangered and



threatened species, from federal funding and other support for the industry's



expansion. The records may also reveal whether the federal government has been



fulfilling its legal duties for previous grants or awards of funding assistance, as well



as whether the government was already planning on undertaking these duties for



the specific grants and awards at issue.... The records are [also]certain to shed light



on NOAA's compliancewith NEPA, ESA, and other environmentalprotection and



conservationlaws.
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Since all four factors must be met to satisfy the public interest prong, and since you did not make



a showing sufficient to satisfy three of the four factors, your request does not meet the standard



for the public interest prong.



you did not provide a convincing argument or analysis that the records requested would shed light



on any of those subjects. Therefore, the fourth factor is not met.



Because the request does not satisfy the public interest prong, you did not meet the burden of



showing that the disclosure of information in response to this request is in the public interest. The



fee waiver was therefore properly denied.



This is the final decision of the Department of Commerce. You have the right to obtain judicial



review of this decision as provided in 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).



~~~



Brian D. DiGiacomo



Assistant General Counsel



for Employment, Litigation, and Information
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Tracking NuType Request TypRequester NRequester ODescriptionReceived DaPerfected DDue Date


DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Dennis L Horn 


Workforce



Managem



ent



Investigati



on of



Michael C.



Ryan and



Mark



Wilson.



FOIA



regarding



a



Workforce



Managem



ent



Investigati



on in



Jackson



Mississipp



i Office of



the



National



Weather



Service.



Please



send me



copies of



any and ######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. David Lee Nyland 


Several



years ago



I was



working



as a



Geophysic



ist for the



National



Tsunami



Warning



Center in



Palmer



Alaska.



Several IG



complaint



s were



filed



against



the



Director



for



favoritism



and lying



on time



sheets



claiming



hours that



were not ######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Ann K. Brown 


The



Center



requests



the



following



from the



National



Marine



Fisheries



Service



(â€œNMF



Sâ€•):



From



January 1,



2015 to



the date



NMFS



conducts



this



search,



the



biological



assessme



nts,



biological



opinions,



concurren



ce letters, ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA geoff lang The Alaska F######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Lynn   M. Polgar 


I request



that a



copy of



the



following



document



s or



document



s



containing



the



following



informatio



n be



provided



to me:



â€¢ All



contracts



and



agreemen



ts entered



into with



Foresee



Results,



Inc.,



including



all



schedules, ######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. g. michael miller 


Request



all records



in excel



for all



purchase



card



holders.



The



following



data



fields:



a.Agency



:



b.Depart



ment



/Divisions



c.Street



Address



d.Addres



s 2



e.City



f.State



g.Zip



Code



h.Employ



ee Name



i.Email ######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Hal L Turley 


On or



about



January 8,



2018, the



NOAA Co-


Trustee



represent



ative of



the



PapahÄ•na



umokuÄ•ke



a Marine



National



Monumen



t's



(PMNM)



Managem



ent Board



met with



said Board



at a



scheduled



meeting in



Honolulu,



HI.



It is my



understan ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Brittany  Hanlon Pursuant to ######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Richard   Maximus Strah


Request



for Last



ten



personal



emails



Each to



Scott



Kraus and



Charles



Mayo.



This is a



request



for copies



of the last



ten emails



sent prior



to the



current



date from



any



NOAA



employee



â€™s



official



email



address to



the direct



email ######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Darlene Lindner 


Please



provide



complete



and



detailed



financial



document



s, to



include all



applicatio



ns,



questionn



aires and



disclosure



s  for the



following



NOAA



Grants



awarded



to Canaan



Valley



Institute,



Inc.;



NA86RP05



93,



NA16RP29



05,



NA04OAR ######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Elizabeth Potter 


This



request is



made



under the



Freedom



of



Informatio



n Act, 5



U.S.C. Â§



552



(â€œFOIA



â€•) on



behalf of



Native



Fish



Society



(â€œNFSâ



€•). NFS is



a non-


profit,



public



interest



conservati



on



organizati



on that



advocates



for the 7/9/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA John Schachel Jed Fiskes ve7/9/2018 ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Carwyn Hammond 


Report



from J.



Kirk



Essmyer,



Inquiry



Official /



Appeals



Officer,



NOAA



Fisheries



Service,



National



Appeals



Office



(NOAA



Fisheries



Service,



National



Appeals



Office,



1315 East



West



Hwy.,



Room 516



Silver



Spring,



MD



20910, 7/9/2018 ######## 8/7/2018








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Teresa  Dawson 


1.Any



records of



expenses



â€”



including



air and



ground



transporta



tion costs,



room



rentals,



food, per



diem



payments,



compensa



tion for



council



members



and other



miscellane



ous



expenses



â€” for



the



Western



Pacific



Fishery



Managem 7/6/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mark W Omo I am reques######## 7/9/2018 8/6/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Rose Santos [Reference F######## 7/9/2018 8/6/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Rose Santos [Reference F######## 7/2/2018 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Rose Santos [Reference F######## 7/9/2018 8/6/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Emily Berman I write to re######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Emily Berman Pursuant to ######## ######## 8/7/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Margaret Townsend The Center ######## ######## 8/7/2018








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Cherise  M. Gaffney 


 I request



a copy of



all records



including,



but not



limited to,



emails,



written



summarie



s, written



reports,



document



s,



telephone



logs of



phone



calls



placed or



received,



transcripts



of any in-


person or



telephonic



conversati



ons and



any other



document



ation in ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Travis Annatoyn The Nationa######## ######## 8/1/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Rachel D'Oro Dear FOIA O6/7/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Jeff Ruch 1. Northeas 6/6/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. David Moser All correspo 6/5/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Robert Ellenstein We are requ6/1/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Richard N Sieving 1. Any and a 6/1/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Sheila Sannadan On behalf o 6/1/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Dr. Jeremy Wu According to######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Elizabeth MurdockFOIA Reque######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Daniel Hubbell This is a req######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Jeff Ruch 1. All record######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Marie Lefton This request######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Anne McNamara Under the W######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Philip Kiley Please prov######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Spencer Nathan Thal l. All docum######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Abigail Smith Please see a######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ivy N Fredrickson Please see a######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Michael L Johnson I request co######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Harley Racer All documen######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Michael L Johnson Federal Reg######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Celeste Manapsal On behalf o######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Margaret Townsend The Center ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Daniel Bladele A copy of co######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Fred Millar Please furni######## 5/8/2018 6/6/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Sumona Majumdar 1. We reque######## 5/1/2018 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Nathaniel Benforado 1. All docum######## 5/1/2018 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Jesse Coleman All commun######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Todd B Kimberlain I am reques######## 5/1/2018 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Rose Santos Reference F######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Krystle Stump I believe the######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA John Greenewald, Jr. I respectfull 4/9/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Michael L Johnson I request co 4/5/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Margaret Townsend CBD is willin 4/4/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Hallie G TempletonPursuant to 4/3/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Georgia Hancock Pursuant to######## ######## 6/4/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Ryan P Mulvey Pursuant to######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Jane Davenport FOIA reques######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Michael L Johnson I request a c######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Hallie G TempletonPursuant to ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Hallie G TempletonPursuant to ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Beryl C Lipton This is a req######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Hallie G TempletonPursuant to ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Dr. Florian C Rabitz Dear Sir or M3/6/2018 ######## 4/9/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Rose Santos [FGI 53604] ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Rose Santos [Reference F######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA John B Mena All non-pers######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA John B Mena All non-pers######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Naja Girard Please prov 2/1/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Miss Mary McCulloughAny and all r######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Hallie G TempletonPursuant to ######## ######## 3/7/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Jeff Ruch Pursuant to ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Nicole Mason AJJ time and######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Terra Mowatt CLARIFIED R 1/8/2018 1/8/2018 2/6/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Russ Kick This is a req 1/5/2018 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Patricia Mann All pay reco######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Omar Purcell I would like ######## ######## 2/1/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Philip N Brown I request the######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Miss Sarah N Emerson Please prov######## ######## 1/9/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Ronald B Hardwig The final rep######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Andrew G Ogden TIRN reques######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Sean Ahern Chenier Ron######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Kaitlyn Shannon 1. The most######## ######## 2/8/2018



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Nicole Mason 1. Official re######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Susan Carroll Copies of al ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Patrick Martin Pursuant to######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA HASSELMAN, JAN 1) All record######## ######## ########








DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Cathy Readinger I am reques######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Alex Veeneman Per the Act, ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Ryan P Mulvey With the for######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Daniel Bladele A copy of co######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Brett Sommermeyer I am writing######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Margaret Townsend 1. All record######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Christine M Walker My request ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Jeff Tollefson I would like ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Lauren N Evans A copy of ea######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Vivian Wang Please prod######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Andrew C Revkin I request ac######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Michael Ravnitzky A copy of ea######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Vincent C Catania This is a Fre 8/9/2017 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA James Zeiler We are requ8/7/2017 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Molly Masterton Please find a######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Miss Sarah N Emerson Please prov######## ######## 9/5/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Brian L Kahn I request an######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Margaret Townsend The Center ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Thomas C Sullivan 2/13 SCOPE######## 2/5/2018 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Margaret Townsend The Center ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ivy N Fredrickson copies of all######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Charles Seife I therefore r######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Elizabeth A Mitchell On 28 June ######## ######## 8/1/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Chris Saeger SCOPE REVI 6/7/2017 6/8/2017 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Nathan Eagle I'd like to re######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Nathan Eagle I'd like to re######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Nathan Eagle I'd like to re######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA ERIC R BOLINDER Pursuant to 5/9/2017 ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Brettny E Hardy We request######## ######## 7/3/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Brettny E Hardy We request######## ######## 7/3/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Brettny E Hardy We request######## ######## 7/3/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ms. Mariel Combs REVISED SCO######## ######## 5/9/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Edward Duhe 1. Any and a######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Brian Gaffney ...all records######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Julio C Gomez Copies of al ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Karen MacDonald Please prov 2/7/2017 2/9/2017 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Arnold &amp; Porter KaREQUEST UP1/9/2017 ######## 3/7/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Charles Mouton We are repr######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Bryn Blomberg This request######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Brian D Israel 1. All inform######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Kara McKenna CoA Institut######## ######## 1/5/2017



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Thomas Knudson Copies of al ######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Stephen S Schwartz All documen######## 7/8/2016 ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Ryan P Mulvey All records o######## 1/6/2016 2/4/2016



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Mr. Lawrence A Kogan This new FO######## ######## ########



DOC-NOAA-Request FOIA Lawrence Kogan Enactment b######## 4/1/2014 ########
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DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination








Amanda PatAmanda PatAssignment Determination








Dalton CumDalton CumAssignment Determination








Shawn L MaShawn L MaProcessing Tasks



Arlyn E PenaArlyn E PenaProcessing Tasks








Samuel B DiSamuel B DiResearch Records








KehaupuaokKehaupuaokAssignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Dalton CumDalton CumAssignment Determination



Dalton CumDalton CumAssignment Determination



Dalton CumDalton CumAssignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Arlyn E PenaArlyn E PenaResearch Records Ex. 5 Deliberative Process Privileg








Ana Liza MaAna Liza MaProcessing Tasks



Cheyenne JoCheyenne JoAssignment Determination



Arlyn E PenaArlyn E PenaEvaluation of Records



Amanda PatAmanda PatResearch Records



Ana Liza MaAna Liza MaAssignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Research Records



Ana Liza MaAna Liza MaProcessing Tasks



Ana Liza MaAna Liza MaEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Arlyn E PenaArlyn E PenaAssignment Determination



Cheyenne JoCheyenne JoProcessing Tasks



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Processing Tasks



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Laurie MukaLaurie MukaProcessing Tasks



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Sonja KromaSonja KromaProcessing Tasks



Mark GraffMark Graff Assignment Determination



Mark GraffMark Graff Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Research Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination








Arlyn E PenaArlyn E PenaAssignment Determination



Dalton CumDalton CumAssignment Determination



Cheyenne JoCheyenne JoResearch Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Research Records



Tawand HodTawand HodProcessing Tasks



Amanda PatAmanda PatResearch Records Attorney Client Privilege, De



Nicole SkerrNicole SkerrAssignment Determination



Karen RobinKaren RobinAssignment Determination



Dalton CumDalton CumAssignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Lola Stith Lola Stith Research Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Trenika TapTrenika TapFinal Preparation of ResNo RecordsN\/A



Kelly MariskKelly MariskResearch Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Evaluation of Records



Ms. Ellen SeMs. Ellen SeEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Clete OtoshClete OtoshAssignment Determination



Clete OtoshClete OtoshEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Clete OtoshClete OtoshEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Shem YusufShem YusufAssignment Determination



Dalton CumDalton CumResearch Records



Karen RobinKaren RobinAssignment Determination



Karen RobinKaren RobinAssignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Dalton CumDalton CumAssignment Determination



Amanda PatAmanda PatResearch Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Final Preparation of Response



Annie ThomAnnie ThomEvaluation of Records



Karen RobinKaren RobinAssignment Determination



Lola Stith Lola Stith Assignment Determination



Karen RobinKaren RobinAssignment Determination



Lawanda FisLawanda FisEvaluation of Records



KehaupuaokKehaupuaokResearch Records



Robin SchnuRobin SchnuAssignment Determination



Lawanda FisLawanda FisResearch Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Evaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Lola Stith Lola Stith Assignment Determination



Ana Liza MaAna Liza MaResearch Records








Kelly MariskKelly MariskEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Evaluation of Records



Kelly MariskKelly MariskEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Kelly MariskKelly MariskResearch Records



Annie ThomAnnie ThomFinal Preparation of ResFull Grant N\/A N\/A



Nkolika NduNkolika NduResearch Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Cheyenne JoCheyenne JoEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Michael P HMichael P HEvaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Evaluation of Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Cheyenne JoCheyenne JoEvaluation of Records



David LandsDavid LandsResearch Records



Cheyenne JoCheyenne JoProcessing Tasks



Kelly MariskKelly MariskResearch Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Research Records



Arlyn E PenaArlyn E PenaResearch Records



Nicole SkerrNicole SkerrResearch Records



KehaupuaokKehaupuaokResearch Records



KehaupuaokKehaupuaokFinal Preparation of Response



KehaupuaokKehaupuaokResearch Records



Amanda PatAmanda PatAssignment Determination



Sophia HowSophia HowResearch Records



Sophia HowSophia HowResearch Records



Sophia HowSophia HowAssignment Determination



KehaupuaokKehaupuaokProcessing Tasks



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Research Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Evaluation of Records



Melissa R KaMelissa R KaResearch Records



Nkolika NduNkolika NduFinal Preparation of Response



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Research Records



Shem YusufShem YusufAssignment Determination



Cheyenne JoCheyenne JoResearch Records



DOC-NOAA-DOC-NOAA-Assignment Determination



Samuel B DiSamuel B DiResearch Records



Jennifer PraJennifer PraFinal Preparation of ResPartial Grant/Partial Denial



Amanda PatAmanda PatAssignment Determination



Samuel B DiSamuel B DiResearch Records Deliberative Process  And At



Annie ThomAnnie ThomAssignment Determination



Annie ThomAnnie ThomAssignment Determination
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UNITED STATESDISTRICTCOURT



FOR DISTRICTOFNEW HAMPSHIRE



Lliiv



RICHARD MAXIMUS STRAHAN



Plaintiff



V.



ADMINISTRATOR, NATIONAL OCEANICAND



ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION ("NOAA")



ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR, NATIONAL MARINE 


FISHERIES SERVICE ("NMFS")



Defendants



hljb 2U P 3: 15



Civil Act i on  No.



24 August 2018



VERIFIED COMPL AINTFORDECL ARATORY,INJUNCTIVE, AND



OTHERREL IEF AND AREQUESTFORAJURYTRIAL 



I t h e Plaintiff — Rich a rd Ma xi mu s Stra h a n —SPEAKS: 



1. Plaintiff Strah an is a conservation scientist petitioning th e Court to enforce th e



"take proh ib itions" imposed b y th e Endangered Species Act against all of th e Defendants to



stop their future killing and inj uring of species of wh ales and sea turtles listed as protected



species under th e Endangered Species Act. Th e Defendant are killing and inj uring Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles pursuant to their licensing and regulating commercial fish ing.



2. Th ese species include th e North ern Righ t Wh ales and oth er endangered species



of wh ales. FNl  Th is also includes Green Turtles and oth er endangered species of Sea Turtles.



FN2  Th e Defendants are killing and/or inj uring Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles incidental



'Th e Endangered Wh ales includes: (1) Th e Sei Wh ale, Balaenoptera borealis; (2) Th e North ern



Righ t Wh ale, Eub alaena glacialis: (3 ) Th e Hump b ack Wh ale Megaptera novaeangliae; (4) Th e



Fin Wh ale Balaenoptera ph ysalus: and (5) Th e Blue Wh ale, Balaenoptera musculus.



^ Th e Endangered Sea Turtles include: (1) Th e Green turtle, Chelonia mydas,; (2) Loggerh ead



turtle, Caretta caretta;, (3 ) Th e Olive Ridley turtle, Lepidoch elys olivacea; (4) Th e Hawksb ill



turtle, Eretmoch elys imbricate', (5) Th e Kemp's Ridley turtkle, Lepidoch elys kempit, and (6) Th e



Leath erb ack turtle, Dermoch elys coriacea.
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to their permitting and regulating th e deployment of pot fish ing gear ("Pot Gear") and gill net



fish ing gear ("Gill Nets") in marine waters with in th e United Sates ECZoff its north east



coastline. For th e last twenty years and b efore, Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles h ave b een



entangled b y Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at is b eing deployed in th e essential marine wilderness



inh ab ited b y th ese ESA listed species under license and regulation b y th e Defendants. Th e



principal feature of Pot Gear th at is entangling th ese ESA listed species is th e b uoy rope th at is



attach ed to th e pots deployed on th e seafloor and rises vertically to attach  to marker b uoys



floating on th e sea surface ("Vertical Buoy Rope" or "VBR"). For Gill Nets Endangered



Wh ales are entangled b y b oth  VB R and th e netting it is used to h old vertically in th e water



col umn .



NOAA/ NMFSOngoi ng "Wh a l e Fra ud"



3. Th e Defendants' entanglements of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles is



arresting th e recovery from their endangered species status. It is also significantly precipitating



their extinction. In th e case of a critically endangered species like th e North ern Righ t Wh ale,



their critically low population size and severely low birth rate insures th at a single killing fi-om



any anth ropogenic activity of th ese wh ales in a single a year is likely to precipitate their



imminent extinction. During its 2018- 2019 b reeding season, th e North ern Righ t Wh ale's



remaining population did not give birth to a single calf. Th is complete sh utdown of species



reproductivity during its annual b reeding season is incontrovertib le evidence th at North ern



Righ t Wh ale are experiencing a statistical certainty of extinction in th e immediate future



unless aggressive efforts are made to stop all anth ropogenic killings and also enh ance its



ab ility to reproduce.



4. It is estab lish ed l a w th at t h e Def en da n t s are liab le for t h e violation of  t h e ESA's 



Section 9  proh ib ition on taking listed endangered species wh en any of th e fish ing gear th at th ey



permit and regulate actually entangles an Endangered wh ale or Sea Turtle. FN3  It is



incontrovertib le th at th e Government Defendants current and past licensing and regulating Pot



Gear and Gill Net fish eries routinely causes th e killing and inj uring of ESA listed endangered



^ See Strah an v. Coxe, 93 9 F. Supp. 963  (Dist. Mass. 1996) and affirmed b y 127 F. 3d 155 (1st



Circuit, 1997) (Massach usetts marine fish ing agency liab le under ESA Section 9(a) for unlawful



taking of ESA listed species of endangered wh ales b y entanglements of endangered wh ales in



fish ing gear licensed and regulated th is agency).
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species of wh ales and sea turtles. It is also indisputab le th at th e Government Defendants in



doing so are violating th e ESA Section 9 take proh ib itions b y unlawfully talking endangered



species of wh ales and sea turtles. Th e Court h as little or no discretion b ut to enj oin th e



Goverrunent Defendants from auth orizing any furth er deployment of Pot Gear and Nets into US



coastal waters until th ey stop licensing Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at entangle Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles and th erefore cause th e incidental taking of listed species of wh ales and



sea turtles th at are proh ib ited b y ESA Section 9.



5. Th e Defendant agencies b y statutory mandate and culture serve only commercial



marine fisheries and this industry's commercial exploitation of th e marine environment. Th ey



officially consider compliance with  th e ESA's mandates and proh ib itions as an unacceptab le



threat to their governmental vested interests. Th e Defendants h ave always delib erately refused



to enforce th e ESA's Section 9  take proh ib itions against state and federally licensed



commercial fish ing operations. Instead NOAA/NMFS h as historically ch osen to protect th ese



commercial vested interests of th eirs from any adverse impact as a result of th e enforcement of



th e ESA. For similar reasons, th ese Defendants th emselves refuse to comply with  th e



mandatory and non-discretionary duties imposed on th em b y th e ESA;s Section 7 to conserve



and protect Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th is is wh y Endangered Wh ales are still b eing



entangled and killed b y Vertical Buoy Ropes two decades after a federal j udge in Strah an v.



Coxe ruled th at government agencies were liab le for th e killing and inj uring of Endangered



Wh ales caused b y th e lob ster pot fish ing th ey licensed and regulated.



6. Instead of complying with  th e Strah an v. Coxe decision, NOAA/ NMFS went on



th e defensive to concoct and implement an elab orate sch eme to evade Pub lic scrutiny and from



b eing compelled to enforce ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against th e commercial fish ing industry



(or th emselves h aving to comply with  th e mandates imposed on federal agencies b y ESA



Section 7). Th ey engaged in wh at I call "Wh a l e Fraud." FN4 NOAA/ NMFS employees



worked with  commercial fish ermen to solicit specific non-government organizations ("NGOs"),



with  generous grants of government funds and issuing th em permits to guarantee their



exclusive access to conduct field research  on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. In return



th ese NGOs agreed to conduct research on th ese species th at would only produce data b enign to



Stra h a n  B C L a w  rev i ew article
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commercial fish ing industry and never actually document th e entanglement of Endangered



Wh ales or Sea Turtles in fish ing gear. Th ese NGO's would never allow th eir field data to h e



used h y environmental activists in lawsuits against NOAA/NMFS or th e commercial fish ing



industry.



7. To enforce t h e ESA or Ma ri n e Ma mma l Protection Act. Th ese f a vored NG O's 



used their exclusive possession of ESA/MMPA research  permits to control all oth er research  on



th ese species to insure b oth  their own  dominance in research on th ese species an control all



oth er research ers b y allowing th em opportunity for field research  with  th em in exch ange for



th eir ow n  cooperation with  th e NGOs  and NOAA/NMFS Wh ale Fraud.



8. Th e Pub lic's access to records of fish ing gear entanglements of Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles is b eing stopped b y NOAA/NMFS and their Wh ale Fraud partner



NG Os .FN5  Th e  Def en da n t s refuse to a l low t h e Pub lic to h a v e routine access to records on 



events of Endangered Wh ale and Sea Turtle b eing entangled in US coastal waters. Th e



Defendants do so delib erately to th wart th e ability of unb iased scientists and conservationists to



rouse Pub lic support for programs to protect endangered species from entanglement in fish ing



gear. Additionally their Wh ale Fraud Partners refuse to allow th e Pub lic any access to th e field



data collected b y th em on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles as a result of th eir research 



activities funded and licensed b y NOAA/NMFS, wh ich  records of sigh ting of entangled wh ales



a n d  sea  turtles.



9. Th e Plaintiff and Wh ale Safe USA requests for access to Endangered Wh ale and



Sea Turtles entanglement records h ave b een repeatedly denied b y NOAA/NMFS. Th ey h ave



b een forced to utilize th e Freedom of Information Act as a "can opener" to get access



NOAA/NMFS' said entanglement records involving Endangered Wh ales h ales and Sea Turtles.



Pursuant to their Wh ale Fraud Program, th ese FOIA requests h ave eith er b een unlawfully



refused outrigh t or NOAA/NMFS h as attempted to bill th e Plaintiff th ousands of dollars to



ob tain a simple Excel™ spreadsh eet documenting th ese entanglement events. FN6



^ Th e NGO's working in concert with  NOAA/NMFS' Wh ale Fraud program ("Wh ale Fraud



Partners") include th e Ne w  England Aquarium, th e Center for Coastal Studies and th e Woods Hole



Oceanograph ic Institute.



^ In response to Plaintiff s 2018 FOIA request for records of wh ale entanglements, NOAA/NMFS



written response demanded a payment of over $20,000 just for th e Defendants to b egin "looking"



for th e requested records.
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10. Th e Plaintiff is seeking a Permanent Inj unction from th e Court against th e



Def en da n t s —



a. Enj oining th e Defendants from requiring th e furth er use of Vertical Buoy Ropes



h y th e commercial fish ermen th at it licenses and regulates.



b . Enj oining th e Defendants from furth er licensing th e use of fixed Gill Nets off



t h e US nort h east coastline.



c. Order th e Defendant to pub lish  with  month ly updates for routine Pub lic



inspection all its scientific records of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles



entangled and oth erwise sigh ted off th e US north east coast in its possession and



th at ws acquired b y research  efforts it eith er funds or licenses.



d. Order th e Defendants to supply th e Plaintiff th e documents h e seeks pursuant to



h is past and future FOIA requests to th em conceming Endangered Wh ales and



Sea turtles and to do so with out any cost to h im.



e. Order t h e Def en da n t  NOAA to comme n ce a n  ESA Section 7 rev i ew on  w h i ch 



infra-agency it will assign th e ESA/MMPA's supervisory and administrative



duties assigned to it b y Congress in preference to its h istorical assignment of



th em to NMFS, wh ich  was done with out th e requisite ESA Section 7  review.



f. Order t h e Def en da n t s to comme n ce  a n d con duct  a  l awful ESA Section 7 rev i ew



concerning th e adverse impact on Endangered Sea Turtles and Wh ales of th eir



licensing and regulating commercial fish ing operations.



g. Order th at th e Defendants must require th at commercial marine fish eries



licensed and regulated b y state governments in coastal waters under their state



j urisdiction b e sub j ect to an ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permit issued



individual state marine fish ing agencies or individual commercial fish ermen



licensed b y a state to use Lob ster Pots and Gill Nets in marine waters under its



state j urisdiction.



11. Th e Plaintiff is seeking a j ury trial on h is request for a declaratory j udgment



against th e Defendants. He is also seeking an award against th e Defendants of h is costs of



litigation in th e instant action.



Th e Pa rt i es



12. Plaintiff Rich ard Maximiis Strah an recently graduated ma gn um cum laucle with  a
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Bach elor of Arts degree in Classics Studies from th e University of Massach usetts in Boston MA.



He currently enrolled in th e graduate sch ool at th e University of New  Hampsh ire seeing a Master



of Arts degree in Lib eral Studies. He volunteers as th e Ch ief Science Officer of Wh a le Safe



USA, a campaign to make th e US coastline environmentally safe for endangered species of



coastal wh ales and sea turtles. Strah an is a conservation scientist wh ose profession activities



include designing and implementing conservation programs th at protect Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles in order to stop th eir extinction and to provide for th eir recovery from



th eir endangered species status. Every maj or conservation effort for Endangered Wh ales in US



coastal waters h as originated and designed b y h im. Th is includes imposing 500 yard protection



zones around th e North ern Righ t Wh ale and th e designation of protected critical h ab itat for it.



13. Strah an is a licensed commercial lob ster pot fish ermen in New Hampsh ire. He is



n ow b eing forced b y NHto use Vertical Buoy Ropes in h is lob ster pot gear. He does not want to



do so b ecause of VB R posing a th reat to entangle marine wildlife. He needs th e Court to stop th e



Defendants from permitting VB R in Pot Gear and require th at New Hampsh ire ob tain a ESA



Section 10 Incidental Take Permit in order to continue to license and regulate commercial fish ing



in its state waters. His b usiness mailing address is P. O. Box 82, Peterb orough  NH03458.



14. Defendant Administrator of th e National Oceanic and Atmosph eric



Administration is b eing sued in its official capacity as a violator of th e ESA Section 9 



proh ib itions on taking and for violating its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under



ESA Section 7. Its official b usiness address is 1401 Constitution Av en ue NW,Room



5128, Wash ington, DC2023 0.



15. Def en da n t  Assistant Administrator of  th e National Ma ri n e Fish eries Service is



b eing sued in its official capacity as a violator of th e ESA Section 9 proh ib itions on taking



and for violating its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under ESA Section 7. Its official



b usiness address is %Office of th e Assistant Administrator, National Marine Fish eries



Service, 13 15 East-West High way, Silver Spring MD 20910.



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 6 of 22








24 August 2018 Complaint in Strah an v. Administrator, NOAA et al. (D. NH2018) 7 



Jurisdiction a n d Standing



16. Th is Court h as j urisdiction over th is action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 13 3 1 (federal



question) under th e ESA, APA, 5  U.S.C. § 701 et seq. (APA), 28 U.S.C. § 13 61 (ma n damus) and



may issue a declaratory Judgment and furth er relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202 (declaratory



and inj unctive relief). An  actual, Justiciab le controversy now exists b etween Plaintiff and



Defendants, and th e requested relief is proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201- 2202,5 U.S.C. §§ 701-


706, and 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g). Pursuant to 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), Plaintiff on or ab out 4 June 2018



served a notice on each  of th e Defendants and th e Secretary of Commerce pursuant to 16 USC §



1540(g) more th an 60 days prior to h is commencing th e instant action ("ESA Notice"). In h is



ESA Notice Strah an notified th e Defendants th at h e was going to commence a civil action



against th e Defendants for th eir said violations of th e ESA. ' 



17. Venue in th is Judicial district is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e) b ecause th is is



an action against an agency of th e United States and officers of th e United States acting in their



official capacity. Additionally at least one plaintiff resides in th is district.



18. Th e Plaintiff h as Article 111 standing pursuant to h is professional involvement and



recreational ob servational activities of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles off th e US



north eastern coast. Additionally h e h as Article III standing to protect h is profession interests in



h is commercial fish ing activities from violating th e ESA Section 9 taking of Endangered Wh ales



a n d Se a  Turtles. FNS



Th e Regulatory Sch eme for th e Protection of Endangered Species



19. In enacting th e ESA, Congress recognized th at certain species "h ave b een so



depleted in numb ers th at th ey are in danger of or th reatened with  extinction" and th at th ese



species are "of esth etic, ecological, educational, historical, recreational, and scientific value to



' Strah an "confirmed" th e proper service of his ESA Notice on the Defendants b y his filing a copy



of h is ESA Notice in a prior action against th ese Defendants in th e US District Court for th e District



of Massach usetts. See Strah an v. Administrator NOAA, et al., 18-CV- 103 92-DJC (D. Mass 2018).



At no point h enceforth  h as th e Defendants claimed th at th ey did not receive Strah an's ESA Notice.



Th e Defendants were eventually dismissed with out prej udice pursuant to FRCP Rule 41(a) from



t h e Ma ssa ch uset t s lawsuit.



^ Japan Wh aling Association v. American Cetacean Society, 478 U.S. 221, 230 n.4 (1986)



(plaintiffs "wh ale watch ing" activities estab lish es Article III standing to seek enforcement of



conservation laws); Bennett r. Spear. 520 US 154 (1997) (Ranch er h as Article 111 standing to



protect h is commercial interests from enforcement of ESA).
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th e Nation and its people." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(a) (2) and (3).



20. Th e ESA protects imperiled species b y listing th em as "endangered" or



"th reatened." Aspecies is "endangered" if it "is in danger of extinction th rough out all or a



significant portion of its range." Id. § 1532(6). Aspecies is "th reatened" if it "is likely to b ecome



an endangered species with in th e foreseeab le future th rough out all or a significant portion of its



range." Id. § 1532(20). Th e Secretary of Commerce is ch arged with  administering and enforcing



th e ESA for most marine species, including North  Atlantic righ t wh ales, and h as delegated th is



responsib ility to NMFS. 50 C.F.R. § 402.01(b ).



21. Th e ESA seeks "to provide a means wh ereb y th e ecosystems upon wh ich 



endangered and th reatened species depend may b e conserved, [and] to provide a program for th e



conservation of such  ... species." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(b ). Th e ESA defines conservation as "th e



use of all meth ods and procedures wh ich  are necessary to b ring any endangered species or



th reatened species to th e point at wh ich  th e measures provided pursuant to [th e ESA] are no



longer necessary." Id. § 1532(3). Accordingly, th e ultimate goal of th e ESA is not only to



prevent listed species from going extinct, b ut also to recover th ese species to th e point wh ere



th ey no longer require ESA protection



22. To accomplish  th ese goals. Section 9 of th e ESA generally makes it unlawful for



"any person" to "take" an endangered species. Id. § 1538(a)(1). A"person" includes private



parties as well as local, state, and federal agencies. Id. § 1532(13). "Take" is defined b roadly



under th e ESA to include h arassing, h arming, wounding, killing, or capturing a protected species



(or attempting to engage in such  conduct), eith er directly or b y degrading its h ab itat enough  to



impair essential b eh avior patterns. Id. § 1532(19); 50 C.F.R. § 222.102. Th e ESA proh ib its th e



acts of parties directly causing a take as well as th e acts of third parties, such  as governmental



agencies, wh ose acts cause such  taking to occur. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(g). Additionally, Section



7(a)(2) of th e ESA requires federal agencies to "insure th at any action auth orized, funded, or



carried out b y such  agency ... is not likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of any"



endangered or th reatened species. Id. § 1536(a)(2).



23. To comply with  Section 7(a)(2)'s sub stantive mandate, federal agencies must



consult with  NMFSwh en their actions "ma y affect" a listed marine species. 16 U.S.C. §



1536(a)(2). NMFSand th e action agency must utilize th e "b est scientific and commercial data



availab le" during th e consultation process. Id.; 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a).
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24. Wh ere, as h ere, NMFSis th e action agency as well as th e expert consulting



agency, NMFS must undertake intra-agency consultation. At th e completion of consultation, th e



consulting b ranch  of NMFS issues a b iological opinion th at describ es th e expected impact of th e



agency action on listed species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b ); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14. Th e b iological opinion



must include a summary of th e information upon wh ich  th e opinion is b ased, an evaluation of



"th e current status of th e listed species," th e "effects of th e action," and th e "cumulative effects."



50 C.F.R. § 402.14(g)(2), (g)(3). "Effects of th e action" include b oth  direct and indirect effects



of an action "th at will b e added to th e environmental b aseline." Id. § 402.02. Th e "environmental



b aseline" includes "th e past and present impacts of all Federal, State or private actions and oth er



h uman activities in th e action area, th e anticipated impacts of all proposed Federal projects in th e



action area th at h ave already undergone formal or early section 7 consultation, and th e impact of



State or private actions wh ich  are contemporaneous with  th e consultation in process." Id.



"Cumulative effects" include "future State or private activities, not involving Federal activities,



th at are reasonab ly certain to occur with in th e action area." Id.



25. Th us, in issuing a b iological opinion, NMFS must consider not j ust th e isolated



sh are of responsibility for impacts to th e species traceab le to th e activity th at is th e sub j ect of th e



b iological opinion, b ut also th e effects of th at action wh en added to all oth er activities and



influences th at affect th e status of th at species. After NMFS h as added th e direct and indirect



effects of th e action to th e environmental b aseline and cumulative effects, it must make its



determination of "wh eth er th e action is likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of a listed



species." 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(3), (b)(4); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(h). A likelihood of j eopardy is



found wh en "an action [] reasonab ly would b e expected, directly or indirectly, to reduce



appreciab ly th e likelihood of b oth  th e survival and recovery of a listed species in th e wild b y



reducing th e reproduction, numb ers, or distribution of th at species." 50 C.F.R. § 402.02.



Recovery is defined as "improvement in th e status of listed species to th e point at wh ich  listing is



no longer appropriate." Id. A biological opinion th at concludes th at th e agency action is not



likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of a listed species b ut will result in take incidental to



th e agency action must include an incidental take statement. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(4).



26. Th e incidental take statement must specify th e amount or extent of incidental



taking on such  listed species, "reasonab le and prudent measures" that NMFS considers necessary



or appropriate to minimize such  impact, and set forth "terms and conditions" th at must b e
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complied with  b y th e action agency to implement th e reasonab le and prudent measures. Id.; 50



C.F.R. § 402.14(i). Additionally, wh en th e listed species to b e incidentally taken are marine



mammals, th e take must first b e auth orized b y NMFSpursuant to th e MMPA,and th e incidental



take statement must include any additional measures necessary to comply with  th e MMPAtake



auth orization. Th e take of a listed species in compliance with  th e terms of a valid incidental take



statement is not proh ib ited under Section 9  of th e ESA. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(h )(4), (o)(2); 50 C.F.R.



§ 402.14(i)(5). If NMFSdetermines in its b iological opinion th at th e action is likely to j eopardize



th e continued existence of a listed species, th e b iological opinion must include "reasonab le and



prudent alternatives" to th e action th at will avoid j eopardy. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(h )(3)(A); 50 C.F.R.



§ 402.14(h )(3).



27. Regardless of th e conclusion reach ed in th e b iological opinion, th e agency



undertaking th e federal action h as an independent duty to ensure th at its actions are not likely to



j eopardize th e continued existence of listed species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2). An  agency's



reliance on a legally flawed b iological opinion to auth orize an action does not satisfy its



sub stantive duty to ensure against j eopardy.



Moreover, th e ESA's implementing regulations furth er require an agency to reinitiate Section 7 



consultation wh en:  (a) th e amount of take specified in th e incidental take statement is exceeded;



(b ) n ew information reveals th at th e action ma y h ave effects not previously considered; (c) th e



action is modified in a wa y th at was not previously considered; or (d) a n ew species is listed or



critical h ab itat designated th at ma y b e affected b y th e identified action. 50 C.F.R. § 402.16. Th e



ESA specifies th at Section 7 consultation must typically b e completed with in ninety days after



initiation. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b )(1); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(e). Th e sub stantive duty to ensure against



j eopardy of listed species remains in effect regardless of th e status of th e consultation.



Th e  Admi n i s t ra t i v e Proce d ure  Act 



28. Th e APA governs j udicial review of federal agency actions. 5 U.S.C. §§ 701- 706.



Under th e APA, courts "sh all... h old unlawful and set aside agency action, findings, or



conclusions found to b e arb itrary, capricious, an ab use of discretion, or oth erwise not in



accordance with  law" or made "with out ob servance of procedure required b y law." Id. §



706(2)(A), (C), (D).



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 10 of 22








24 August 2018 Complaint in Strah an v. Administrator, NOAA et al. (D. NH2018) 11



Background on Endangered Species of Wh ales a nd Sea Turtles



Adversely Affected b y Commerci a l Fish ing



29. Th e North ern Righ t Wh ale is th e world's most critically endangered large wh ale



species and also one of th e world's most endangered mammals. North ern Righ t Wh ale's



essential marine h ab itat is with in th e 200 mile ECZ of mostly th e US h ut extends north wards into



Canada. Th ey live in th e "urb an sea" of th e United States. Th eir coastal marine h ab itat is no



longer marine wilderness from h aving so h ugely b een adversely impact from commercial



development of area with in 100 miles inland of th e US coast th at spills outward to th e Ocean.



Th e North ern Righ t Wh ale living along th e US coastline is more akin to a moose trying



to live in a sub urb  of an eastern city like Boston or Concord NH. Not a good situation. Righ t



wh ales migrate annually from their summer feeding grounds off th e North east coast of th e



United States to their winter b reeding grounds off th e South east coast.



30. Females typically reach  sexually maj ority at age nine or ten and give b irth to a



single calf. Th e gestation period lasts rough ly one year. From 2005 to 2014, th e average righ t



wh ale calving interval (i.e. th e amount of time b etween th e b irth of a righ t wh ale calf and a



sub sequent calf from th e same moth er) ranged from th ree to five years. Th e average righ t wh ale



calving interval h as increased every year since 2014, to a h igh  of 10 years in 2017. Righ t wh ales



h ave raised patch es of rough ened skin on th eir h eads, known  as callosities. Th ese callosities are



found only on righ t wh ales and, like h uma n fingerprints, h ave distinctive patterns th at enab le



scientists to individually identify righ t wh ales. Th e callosities are covered b y b arnacles and tiny



crust acea n s k n ow n a s w h a l e  lice.



3 1. NMFSamended th e Atlantic Large Wh a le Take Reduction Plan in 2015, b ut did



so to exempt certain waters from th e requirements of th e 2014 rule. 80 Fed. Reg. 30,367 (Ma y



28, 2015). make th e callosities appear wh ite or pale yellow and th us visib le from b oats or during



aerial surveys. Scientists maintain an extensive catalogue th at documents each  of th e North 



Atlantic righ t wh ales kn own  to exist. Alth ough  th e North ern righ t wh ale h as b een protected



under th e ESA since 1973, th e species h as not recovered to a sustainab le population level.



Scientists estimate th at th e species consisted of only 458 individuals as of 2016. Not a single new



b orn North ern Righ t wh ale calf was sigh ted b y dedicated survey efforts during th e 2017- 2018



calving season. NMFSh as previously admitted th at th e species' survival is dependent on



protecting every individual, concluding th at th e loss of even one wh ale ma y contrib ute to th e
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extinction of th e species. Entanglement in commercial fish ing gear and sh ip strikes are th e two



most significant documented sources of mortality and serious inj ury for North ern Righ t Wh ales.



Since 1973  Defendants NOAA/ NMFS h ave failed to meaningfully manage commercial fish ing



and vessel operations off th e US eastern coastline in order to significantly reduce th e unlawful



taking of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y commercial fish ing and vessel operations.



3 2. To reduce th e th reat of sh ip strikes, NMFSissued regulations in 2008 as a result



of th e Plaintiffs petition and th en in 2013  requiring sh ips 65 feet in length  and longer to slow to



ten knots or less in North ern Righ t wh ale h ab itat areas at certain times of year. 73  Fed. Reg.



60,173 (Oct. 10, 2008); 78 Fed. Reg. 73,726 (Dec. 9,2013). Th e rule h as not reduced righ t wh ale



mortalities from sh ip strikes. Entanglement in fish ing gear h as b een th e primary cause of death 



and serious inj uries to Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in recent years. NMFSh as acted



arbitrarily and capriciously in refusing to enforce ESA Section 9 proh ib itions against individual



commercial fish ermen or oth erwise regulate commercial fish ing operation to minimize their



causing th e entanglement and oth erwise unlawful taking of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



3 3. Wh en  North ern Righ t wh ales and oth er Endangered Wh ale s get tangled up in



fish ing gear, th ey can drown immediately. In a significant numb er of cases, h owever, th e animals



die over an extended time period as th ey b ecome incapacitated b y injuries or infections caused



b y th e entanglement or starve. Gear often wraps around wh ales' flippers, mouth s, and tails and,



particularly in growing animals, cinch es tigh ter over time. Such  inj ury often results in maj or



tissue and b one damage and systemic infection. Th e animals often lose weigh t, causing th em to



sink wh en dead so th at death  from entanglement is often underreported. From 2010 to 2014,



th ere were 24 records of serious inj uries and mortalities of righ t wh ales th at involved



entanglement or fish ery interactions - an average of 4.65 wh ales per year.



34. In 2015, th ere were at least 4 n ew confirmed entanglements of righ t wh ales in



fish ing gear; in 2016 th ere were at least 7  n ew confirmed righ t wh ale entanglements; and in



2017, th ere were at least 9 n ew confirmed righ t wh ale entanglements. From 2010 to 2016,



entanglement related death s accounted for 85% of diagnosed righ t wh ale mortalities. In its 2016



stock assessment report, NMFSestab lish ed an annual righ t wh ale PB R of 1. In oth er words,



NMFSh as determined th at only a single righ t wh ale ma y b e killed as a result of h uman activity



wh ile still allowing th e species to reach  its optimum sustainab le population under th e Marine
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Mamma l ;  Protection Act. 16 U.S.C. § 1362(20). Th erefore, current documented serious inj uries



and mortalities are unsustainab le and vastly exceed th e standards of th e MM?A.



35. Most righ t wh ale entanglements and mortalities are undocumented. Documented



serious inj ury and mortality rates ma y vastly underrepresent actual mortality. Scarring data ma y



b etter reflect actual entanglement rates. For example, a study of scarification data estimated th at



b etween 1980 and 2009, nearly 83 % of known righ t wh ales suffered entanglements and 5 9% of



righ t wh ales h ave b een entangled more th an once. Arecent follow-up study indicates th at th e



pattern persisted th rough  at least 2012, and th ere is no evidence to suggest th is threat h as b een



mitigated. In addition to causing serious injuries and mortalities, entanglement in fish ing gear



causes oth er significant h arm to Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles.. For example, research 



indicates th at survivorsh ip prob ab ility for individual North ern Righ t wh ales is reduced b y at least



40% after an entanglement event.



36. Ch ronic entanglement impairs foraging and locomotion. Impaired locomotion can



contrib ute to starvation, wh ile an entanglement of th e mouth  directly impedes foraging, causing



starvation. On e entangled North  Atlantic righ t wh ale gradually starved to death  over th e course



of 3 20 days owing solely to h is impairment of feeding and infection of wounds caused directly



b y entanglement. An  entanglement can also increase stress h ormone levels, wh ich  can contrib ute



to th e development of systematic infections. Severe wounding from an entanglement or repeated



entanglements of righ t wh ales can increase their susceptib ility to disease.



37. Entanglements are reducing th e reproductive success of righ t wh ales, inh ib iting



th e species' ability to recover from th e b rink of extinction. Studies sh ow th at severe wounding



and repeated entanglements of righ t wh ales can cause reduced reproduction. Studies h ave also



found th at female righ t wh ales seen alive and carrying gear or with  severe wounds from



entanglement h ad a significantly lower ch ance of calving again. Females th at experienced



moderate or severe entanglement wounds b etween calving events h ad a significantly longer



calving interval th an females th at experienced minor or no entanglement wounds. Oth er studies



h ave found th at significant energetic impacts also occur from entanglements, especially in



reproductive females. Th e drag from fish ing gear can delay righ t wh ale reproduction b y month s



or yea rs.



38. Th e myriad negative impacts from entanglements are contrib uting to th e dire



status of th e righ t wh ale population. Just since 2010, calving rates h ave dropped b y nearly 40%,
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and th e last four decades h ave seen increasing numb ers of righ t wh ales killed, primarily b y



entanglement in fish ing gear. Th e righ t wh ale population is n ow in decline.



39. Th e declining population trend was evident even b efore th e spring and summer of



2017, during wh ich  at least 17 North ern Righ t wh ales were found dead in th e United States and



Canada. Twelve wh ales were found dead in Canadian waters, and five were found dead in U.S.



waters. Th e cause of death  is still b eing investigated for ma ny of th ese death s, b ut necropsies



sh ow th at at least two of th e wh ales found dead in Canadian waters appear to h ave died from



entanglement in fish ing gear. Tw o of th e wh ales found dead in U.S. waters sh ow evidence of



entanglement. Some of th e wh ales were too decomposed to determine cause of death.



40. Th ese mortalities, wh ich  amount to nearly 1 0% of th e current righ t wh ale



population, will compound negative impacts to righ t wh ales, especially considering th at at least



four of th e dead wh ales h ave b een identified as females and only five calves were b om in 2017.



Conservation scientists assign a h igh  prob ab ility th at North ern Righ t wh ales owing to th eir



reduced viability cause j ust b y th e Defendants said commercial fish ing activities th at ESA



Section 9 proh ib its will b ecome b iologically incapab le of survival as a species b y th e second h alf



of th is century. If th e Court fails to order th e Defendants to stop th eir ongoing said proh ib ited



killing and inj uring of North ern Righ t wh ales, th ey will soon b e extinct even after b eing fully



protected under law b y th e ESA.



41. All Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b ecome routinely b ecome entangled in



th e Pot Gear and Gill Nets licensed and regulated b y th e Government Defendants. Th ese



Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles are th en killed and inj ured as a result. In recent years th e



incidents of entanglements h ave increased for Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th is is



b ecause th ere h as b een an explosion in th e population of Amerikan Lob sters off th e US



nort h eastern coast coi nciden t wi t h  a n  increase in t h e con s ume r ma rk e t  for lob ster. No w  more 



commercial fish ermen are deploying more commercial fish ing gear due to th e greater market



demand and th e larger lob ster population th at can meet th is demand.



42. It is important to note th at th ere are more lob sters b ecause th eir main predator —



th e Cod fish  —was recently wiped out b y overfish ing auth orized and encouraged b y Defendant



NMFS. Despite its constantly decreasing population over ma n y years, NOAA/ NMFS refused to



list th e Codfish  under th e ESA as an endangered/th reatened species and still refuses to do so to



th e current day. Th eir failure is a systemic error owing to th eir singular loyalty to th e commercial
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fish ing industry and not to th e Pub lic interest or to th e rule of law. If th e NOAATNMFS are not



ordered to do oth erwise, th ey will continue to ignore th e entanglement of Endangered Wh ales



and Sea Turtles b y th e Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at th ey license and regulate till th e North ern



Righ t Wh ale goes extinct. It will b e th e first and not last species of wh ale or sea turtle to b e



extirpated b y th e negligence and commercial loyalty of NOAA/NMFS —th e "foxes guarding



th e ch icken coop."



43 . B eca use of  t h e extinction of  Codf i sh  of f t h e US north eastern coast a s a  result of 



its b eing overfish ed, th e Amerikan Lob ster population greatly increased from it no longer b eing



preyed upon b y th e Codfish. Once its predator was eliminated b y overfish ing th e population of



Amerikan lobsters was no longer restrained b y predation. It must b e noted as a lesson of h istory



th at it was th e refusal of NOAA/NMFS to list th e Codfish  as an endangered species th at resulted



in its remaining population b eing totally depleted from overfish ing leading to its extirpation in



th e US north east coastal waters. Despite all th e data collected b y NMFS clearly sh owing th at th e



Codfish  population was decimated from overfish ing and it was facing imminent extinction,



NMFS refused to put any moratorium on its furth er commercial exploitation nor did it list th e



species as endangered under th e ESA. To this day, NMFS' complete dedication to th e



commercial exploitation b y commercial fish ing makes it incapab le of stopping its licensing th e



commercial fish ing of Cod.



44. All of th e ab ove sh ould b e a convincing example of wh y NOAA/NMFS must b e



ordered b y th e Court to ob ey th e ESA if th ere is any possibility of stopping commercial fish ing



from causing th e extinction of any of th e Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.
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Plaintiffs Claims Against th e Defendants



COUNTI: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1536(a)(1):Th e Defendants NOAA/NMFS



Failure to Comply with  th e Mandatory Duties Imposed on Th em b y ESA Section



7(a)(1) to Use Its Auth orities Under L a w to Insure th e Continued Survival of ESA



Listed Species of Endangered and Th reatened Wh ales a nd Sea Turtles. FN9 



45. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 44.



46. Th e Defendants (i. e. NOAA. NMFS) h ave completely refused and failed to



adequately comply with  their non-discretionary and mandatory duties under ESA Section



7(a)(1) to use their authorities to insure th at Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles



protected b y th e ESA will recover from their protected status as depleted species of wildlife.



NMFS h a s failed to enact such  consultations ov er its ma ri n e fish eries activities a n d h a s not used



its lawful authorities to assist in th e recovery of th ese ESA protected species from their depleted



b iological status. Th ey h ave wh olly failed to enforce th e ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against



state agencies and commercial fish ing operations th at license th em.



47. For their part, Defendants NOAAand NMFS h ave violated their mandatory and



non-discretionary duties imposed b y ESA section 7(a)(1) on th em b y wh olly refusing to do an



internal ESA Section 7 consultation in order to implement a program to effectively use their



authorities and responsibilities under ESA Section 7(a)(1) to assist th e recovery of



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles. For example, NMFS wh olly fails to



effectively enforce th e ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions against taking Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles against individual commercial fish ermen and state governments th at



license and regulate commercial fish ing in federal waters under concurrent state jurisdiction



of th ese states. Defendant NOAA violated its said ESA Section 7(a)(1) mandatory and non-


discretionary duties b y transferring to NMFS its duties and responsibilities assigned it b y



Congress under th e ESA in an arb itrary and capricious manner with out any concern for th e



adverse impact on listed endangered species from it doing so.



^ ESA Section 7(a)(1): Th e Secretary [i. e. Secretaries of the Departments of Commerce and



Agriculture] shall review oth er programs administered b y h im and utilize such  programs in



furth erance of th e purposes of this Act. All oth er Federal agencies shall, in consultation with  and



with  th e assistance of th e Secretary, utilize their authorities in furth erance of th e purposes of this



Act b y carrying out programs for th e conservation of endangered species and th reatened species



listed pursuant to section 4 of th is Act.
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48. Th ese said violations of th e Defendants will continue to reoccur daily until th e



Court orders th ese Defendants to comply with  th eir mandatory and non-discretionary duties



under ESA Section 7(a)(1).



COUNTII: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1536(a)(2): Th e Defendants NOAA/NMFS'



Failure to Engage in a  ESA Section 7(a) Consultation to Insure th at th e



Government Defendants Commercial Fish ing Operations a nd Enforcement



Practices of  ESA Section 9 Proh ib itions will Not Jeopardize th e Continued Survival



of Endangered a nd Th reatened Wh ales a n d Sea Turtles. FNIO



49. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 48.



50. Th ese Federal Defendants (i. e. NOAA. NMFS) are violating th e mandatory and



non-discretionary duties imposed on t h em b y ESA Section 7(a)(2) concerning th e adverse impact



on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles from commercial fish ing th at th ey license and regulate in



concert. Since 1973  and continuing to th e present, th ey h ave failed to adequately comply with 



th eir mandatory and non-discretionary duties to meaningfully consult on th e adverse impact on



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles of its auth orizing and regulating commercial



fish eries operations off th e US Atlantic coastline using Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at h as resulted



in th e continued killing and inj uring of th ese ESA listed species incidental to th eir entanglement



in th e said fish ing gear and currently th reatens th e continued survival of each  of th ese ESA listed



endangered species.



51. Defendant NOAA violated its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under ESA



Section 7(a)(2) b y transferring its ESA management auth ority assigned it b y Congress



concerning listed species of marine wildlife to its infra-agency NMFS. It did th is unlawfully



with out first conducting an internal ESA Section 7(a) consultation to insure th at such  a transfer



would not j eopardize th e continued survival of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



52. NOAA wh olly failed its lawful requirement to consider a more suitab le agency to



wh ich  it would transfer its ESA management responsib ility such  as th e National Ocean Service.



ESA Section 7(a)(2): Each  Federal agency sh all, in consultation with  and with  th e assistance of



th e Secretary [i. e. FWS/NMS], insure th at any action auth orized, funded, or carried out b y such 



agency (h ereinafter in th is section referred to as an "agency action") is not likely to j eopardize th e



continued existence of any endangered species or th reatened species or result in th e destruction or



adverse modification of h ab itat of such  species wh ich  is determined b y th e Secretary. ... In



fulfilling th e requirements of th is paragraph  each  agency sh all use th e b est scientific and



commerci a l  da t a availa b le.
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It was an act of arb itrary and capricious incompetence th at NOAA would h and Endangered



Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles over to th e custody to an agency like NMFSwh ose licensing



and regulation of commercial fish ing routinely kills and/or injures Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th e ESA Section 7  requires th at NOAAfirst produced a Biological



Assessment and th en a Biological Opinion b efore deciding to invoke th e said trans of its ESA



management auth ority for Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



53. Since 1973  Defendants NMFSh as wh olly failed in its mandatory and non-


discretionary duties imder ESA Section 7(a) to enter into an internal consultation over its



programs and policies concerning its enforcement of th e ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against th e



taking of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



54. As a result of th ese failures, commercial fish ermen now routinely kill and injure



memb ers Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles incidental to th eir commercial fish eries



operations with out a scintilla of fear th at th ey will b e prosecuted b y NMFS for th ese ESA



Section 9  proh ib ited takings of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles



56. For th eir part, Defendants NMFS/NOAA/ASMFC h ave violated th eir said



mandatory and non-discretionary duties imposed b y ESA section 7(a)(2) and th ey will continue



to do so unless compelled to do oth erwise b y th e Court.
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COUNTIII: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1538(a): Th e Defendants Violation of th e ESA



Section 9(a) Proh ib itions Against th e Incidental Taking of Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles Occurring as a Direct Result of th eir Respective



Individual Commercial Fish ing Operations FNl l 



57. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 56.



58. Th e Government Defendants (i. e. NOAA, NMFS) are licensing and regulating



commercial fish ing operation off th e Atlantic coastline th at violates th e ESA Section 9 



proh ib itions of th e ESA. Th e Defendants licensed fish ing operations and its individual memb ers



are violating th e ESA Sections 9  proh ib itions b y deploying lob ster pot gear in US coastal waters



th at incidentally entangles Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in a routine and continuous



manner since 1973. Defendants never issued any ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permit to



auth orize any incidental taking b y th em of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in th e



commercial fish ing gear th at th ey license and regulate to b e deployed in US coastal waters under



th e concurrent state j urisdiction of Massach usetts.



59. Th e Defendants h ave never issued any ESA Section 7 incidental take statement



auth orizing th eir incidental taking of said endangered species pursuant to their regulating and



licensing said commercial fish eries operations in US coastal waters. Th ese Defendants are



violating th e ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions in their incidental taking Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y their facilitating th e operation of commercial fish eries th at deploy Pot



Gear and Gill Nets in US coastal waters. Th is deployment of said fish ing gear continuously and



routinely kills and/or inj ures memb ers of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles from



th eir entanglements in th e said fish ing gear.



60. Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles are killed and inj ured from



entanglement in Pot Gear and Gill Nets deployed b y th e Defendant ML A memb ers and b y th e



Government Defendants licensing and regulating th ese commercial fish eries. Federal courts h ave



" ESA Section 9(a):[l]t is unlawful for any person sub j ect to th e j urisdiction of th e United States



t o— (A) import any such  species into, or export any such  species from th e United States; (B ) take



any such  species with in th e United States or th e territorial sea of th e United States; (C) take any



such  species upon th e h igh  seas; (D) possess, sell, deliver, carry, transport, or sh ip, b y any means



wh atsoever, any such  species taken in violation of sub paragraph s (B ) and (C); ... or (G) violate



any regulation pertaining to such  species or to any th reatened species of fish  or wildlife listed



pursuant to section 4 of th is Act and promulgated b y th e Secretary pursuant to auth ority provided



b y th is Act.
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repeatedly h eld federal agencies liab le for violating th e ESA's Section proh ib itions wh en their



agency actions expectedly and routinely cause commercial development in ecosystems utilized



b y ESA listed species and th at results in th e unlawful taking of th ese species in violation of th e



ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions. FN12 



61. Th e Defendants will continue their said ESA Section 9(a) proh ib ited taking of



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles into th e future unless ordered to stop b y th e



Court.



See Strah an v. Coxe, 93 9 F. Supp. 963  (Dist. Mass. 1996) and 127 P. 3 d 155 (1st Circuit, 1997)



(Massach usetts marine fish ing agency liab le under ESA Section 9(a) for unlawful taking of ESA



listed species of endangered wh ales b y entanglements of endangered wh ales in fish ing gear



licensed and regulated th is agency). See also Florida Key Deer v. Paulison, 522 F.3d 113 3  (11th 



Cir. 2008) and Florida Key Deer v. Stickney, 864 F. Supp. 1222 (Dist. FL  1994) (Federal



Emergency Man agemen t Agency violates ESA §§ 9  and 7 for its auth orizing, regulating, and



funding commercial development in h ab itat of ESA listed endangered deer species).
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PRAYER FOR REL IEF



I. For a Declaratory Judgment th atth at NOAA/NMFS are violating th e ESA Section 9 take



proh ib itions b y licensing and regulating Pot and Gill Net fish eries th at are killing, inj uring and



oth erwise taking Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y entanglement of memb ers of th ese



endangered species in Vertical Buoy Ropes and netting and th at its permitting of th ese said



fish eries in itself is now a categorical violation of ESA Section 9 proh ib itions as th ey pose a clear



and present danger to entangle said endangered species.



II. For a Declaratory Judgment th at NOAAis now in continuous violation of its mandatory and non-


discretionary duties under ESA Section 7 b y transferring its authority to supervise enforcement of



th e ESA for Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles to NMFSwith out th e required review and



b ecause NMFS b y statute is a dedicated commercial fish ing agency and th e "Fox guarding th e



ch icken coop and eating th e ch ickens." It th erefore is categorically unsuitab le under th e ESA to



assume such  supervisory responsib ility for any protected wildlife.



III. For an order, enj oining NMFS from licensing lob ster and crab  pot fish eries employing Vertical



Buoy Ropes in marine waters possib ly inh ab ited at any time of year b y Endangered Wh ales and



Sea Turtles or permitting states to do so in waters under th eir Jurisdiction.



IV. For an order, ordering th e Defendants to comply with  th eir mandatory and non-


discretionary duties under ESA Section 7  in regards to their licensing and regulating



commercial fish ing operations and to require th at states must apply for and b e issued



ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permits to license commercial fish ing operations in



coastal waters under th eir state Jurisdiction and to redo all relevant b iological opinions.



V. For an award of the Pl̂ ntiff's direct costs of his prosecution against the Defendants.



VI. For any funh er reli/f that the Court deems appropriate.



B Y: 



/s/ Richard Maxij^\is Strahan



Richard Maxiimis Str̂ an



FOB  82, Petemorough  03 458



esi stoo@ yahfflo .com. 61'̂17-4402



Pro Se a n d  Proud!



VERIFICATION OFTHE COMPL AINT



1 Richard Maxinf̂ s Strahan verify under the pains and penalties of perjury that all the facts alleged in the



above complaint ̂e known/o the best of my ability to be true. Signed under the pains and penalties of



perjury this 24th D̂ of Âust in the year 2018.



/s./ R ch a rd 


xi mus  Stra h a n 



Rich ard Ma xi mu s  Stra h a n
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RICHARD MAXIMUS STRAHAN



Plaintiff



ADMINISTRATOR,NATIONAL OCEANICAND



ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION ("NOAA")



ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR,NATIONAL MARINE



FISHERIES SERVICE ("NMFS")



Avib 2U P  3' IU



Civil Act i on  No.



24 August 2018



Defendants



PL AINTIFF'S MOTION FOR ACCESSTOTHEECFFIL ING SYSTEM SOTHAT HE MAY 



FIL EDOCUMENTS WITHTHE COURT I THEINSTANT ACTION



Plaintiff — Ri ch a rd Ma x Stra h a n  — SPEAKS: 



I a m asking th e Court to allow me to make filings with  th e Court th rough  its ECF filing



system. I h ave vast experience with  th e ECF system and its requirements. I currently h ave b een



auth orized to make ECF filings in several civil action pending in th e US District Courts.



For the ab <^e reasons, 1 ask the Court to grant my requested relief.



B Y: 



/ s/RL  M̂ i mus Strah an



Rich ard Maximu^ t ra h a n 



POB 8 2 



Peterb orough  NH03 4?



Pro Se a n d Prou d !
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UNITED STATESDISTRICTCOURT



FOR DISTRICTOFNEW HAMPSHIRE



Lliiv



RICHARD MAXIMUS STRAHAN



Plaintiff



V.



ADMINISTRATOR, NATIONAL OCEANICAND



ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION ("NOAA")



ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR, NATIONAL MARINE 


FISHERIES SERVICE ("NMFS")



Defendants



hljb 2U P 3: 15



Civil Act i on  No.



24 August 2018



VERIFIED COMPL AINTFORDECL ARATORY,INJUNCTIVE, AND



OTHERREL IEF AND AREQUESTFORAJURYTRIAL 



I t h e Plaintiff — Rich a rd Ma xi mu s Stra h a n —SPEAKS: 



1. Plaintiff Strah an is a conservation scientist petitioning th e Court to enforce th e



"take proh ib itions" imposed b y th e Endangered Species Act against all of th e Defendants to



stop their future killing and inj uring of species of wh ales and sea turtles listed as protected



species under th e Endangered Species Act. Th e Defendant are killing and inj uring Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles pursuant to their licensing and regulating commercial fish ing.



2. Th ese species include th e North ern Righ t Wh ales and oth er endangered species



of wh ales. FNl  Th is also includes Green Turtles and oth er endangered species of Sea Turtles.



FN2  Th e Defendants are killing and/or inj uring Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles incidental



'Th e Endangered Wh ales includes: (1) Th e Sei Wh ale, Balaenoptera borealis; (2) Th e North ern



Righ t Wh ale, Eub alaena glacialis: (3 ) Th e Hump b ack Wh ale Megaptera novaeangliae; (4) Th e



Fin Wh ale Balaenoptera ph ysalus: and (5) Th e Blue Wh ale, Balaenoptera musculus.



^ Th e Endangered Sea Turtles include: (1) Th e Green turtle, Chelonia mydas,; (2) Loggerh ead



turtle, Caretta caretta;, (3 ) Th e Olive Ridley turtle, Lepidoch elys olivacea; (4) Th e Hawksb ill



turtle, Eretmoch elys imbricate', (5) Th e Kemp's Ridley turtkle, Lepidoch elys kempit, and (6) Th e



Leath erb ack turtle, Dermoch elys coriacea.
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to their permitting and regulating th e deployment of pot fish ing gear ("Pot Gear") and gill net



fish ing gear ("Gill Nets") in marine waters with in th e United Sates ECZoff its north east



coastline. For th e last twenty years and b efore, Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles h ave b een



entangled b y Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at is b eing deployed in th e essential marine wilderness



inh ab ited b y th ese ESA listed species under license and regulation b y th e Defendants. Th e



principal feature of Pot Gear th at is entangling th ese ESA listed species is th e b uoy rope th at is



attach ed to th e pots deployed on th e seafloor and rises vertically to attach  to marker b uoys



floating on th e sea surface ("Vertical Buoy Rope" or "VBR"). For Gill Nets Endangered



Wh ales are entangled b y b oth  VB R and th e netting it is used to h old vertically in th e water



col umn .



NOAA/ NMFSOngoi ng "Wh a l e Fra ud"



3. Th e Defendants' entanglements of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles is



arresting th e recovery from their endangered species status. It is also significantly precipitating



their extinction. In th e case of a critically endangered species like th e North ern Righ t Wh ale,



their critically low population size and severely low birth rate insures th at a single killing fi-om



any anth ropogenic activity of th ese wh ales in a single a year is likely to precipitate their



imminent extinction. During its 2018- 2019 b reeding season, th e North ern Righ t Wh ale's



remaining population did not give birth to a single calf. Th is complete sh utdown of species



reproductivity during its annual b reeding season is incontrovertib le evidence th at North ern



Righ t Wh ale are experiencing a statistical certainty of extinction in th e immediate future



unless aggressive efforts are made to stop all anth ropogenic killings and also enh ance its



ab ility to reproduce.



4. It is estab lish ed l a w th at t h e Def en da n t s are liab le for t h e violation of  t h e ESA's 



Section 9  proh ib ition on taking listed endangered species wh en any of th e fish ing gear th at th ey



permit and regulate actually entangles an Endangered wh ale or Sea Turtle. FN3  It is



incontrovertib le th at th e Government Defendants current and past licensing and regulating Pot



Gear and Gill Net fish eries routinely causes th e killing and inj uring of ESA listed endangered



^ See Strah an v. Coxe, 93 9 F. Supp. 963  (Dist. Mass. 1996) and affirmed b y 127 F. 3d 155 (1st



Circuit, 1997) (Massach usetts marine fish ing agency liab le under ESA Section 9(a) for unlawful



taking of ESA listed species of endangered wh ales b y entanglements of endangered wh ales in



fish ing gear licensed and regulated th is agency).
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species of wh ales and sea turtles. It is also indisputab le th at th e Government Defendants in



doing so are violating th e ESA Section 9 take proh ib itions b y unlawfully talking endangered



species of wh ales and sea turtles. Th e Court h as little or no discretion b ut to enj oin th e



Goverrunent Defendants from auth orizing any furth er deployment of Pot Gear and Nets into US



coastal waters until th ey stop licensing Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at entangle Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles and th erefore cause th e incidental taking of listed species of wh ales and



sea turtles th at are proh ib ited b y ESA Section 9.



5. Th e Defendant agencies b y statutory mandate and culture serve only commercial



marine fisheries and this industry's commercial exploitation of th e marine environment. Th ey



officially consider compliance with  th e ESA's mandates and proh ib itions as an unacceptab le



threat to their governmental vested interests. Th e Defendants h ave always delib erately refused



to enforce th e ESA's Section 9  take proh ib itions against state and federally licensed



commercial fish ing operations. Instead NOAA/NMFS h as historically ch osen to protect th ese



commercial vested interests of th eirs from any adverse impact as a result of th e enforcement of



th e ESA. For similar reasons, th ese Defendants th emselves refuse to comply with  th e



mandatory and non-discretionary duties imposed on th em b y th e ESA;s Section 7 to conserve



and protect Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th is is wh y Endangered Wh ales are still b eing



entangled and killed b y Vertical Buoy Ropes two decades after a federal j udge in Strah an v.



Coxe ruled th at government agencies were liab le for th e killing and inj uring of Endangered



Wh ales caused b y th e lob ster pot fish ing th ey licensed and regulated.



6. Instead of complying with  th e Strah an v. Coxe decision, NOAA/ NMFS went on



th e defensive to concoct and implement an elab orate sch eme to evade Pub lic scrutiny and from



b eing compelled to enforce ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against th e commercial fish ing industry



(or th emselves h aving to comply with  th e mandates imposed on federal agencies b y ESA



Section 7). Th ey engaged in wh at I call "Wh a l e Fraud." FN4 NOAA/ NMFS employees



worked with  commercial fish ermen to solicit specific non-government organizations ("NGOs"),



with  generous grants of government funds and issuing th em permits to guarantee their



exclusive access to conduct field research  on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. In return



th ese NGOs agreed to conduct research on th ese species th at would only produce data b enign to



Stra h a n  B C L a w  rev i ew article
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commercial fish ing industry and never actually document th e entanglement of Endangered



Wh ales or Sea Turtles in fish ing gear. Th ese NGO's would never allow th eir field data to h e



used h y environmental activists in lawsuits against NOAA/NMFS or th e commercial fish ing



industry.



7. To enforce t h e ESA or Ma ri n e Ma mma l Protection Act. Th ese f a vored NG O's 



used their exclusive possession of ESA/MMPA research  permits to control all oth er research  on



th ese species to insure b oth  their own  dominance in research on th ese species an control all



oth er research ers b y allowing th em opportunity for field research  with  th em in exch ange for



th eir ow n  cooperation with  th e NGOs  and NOAA/NMFS Wh ale Fraud.



8. Th e Pub lic's access to records of fish ing gear entanglements of Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles is b eing stopped b y NOAA/NMFS and their Wh ale Fraud partner



NG Os .FN5  Th e  Def en da n t s refuse to a l low t h e Pub lic to h a v e routine access to records on 



events of Endangered Wh ale and Sea Turtle b eing entangled in US coastal waters. Th e



Defendants do so delib erately to th wart th e ability of unb iased scientists and conservationists to



rouse Pub lic support for programs to protect endangered species from entanglement in fish ing



gear. Additionally their Wh ale Fraud Partners refuse to allow th e Pub lic any access to th e field



data collected b y th em on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles as a result of th eir research 



activities funded and licensed b y NOAA/NMFS, wh ich  records of sigh ting of entangled wh ales



a n d  sea  turtles.



9. Th e Plaintiff and Wh ale Safe USA requests for access to Endangered Wh ale and



Sea Turtles entanglement records h ave b een repeatedly denied b y NOAA/NMFS. Th ey h ave



b een forced to utilize th e Freedom of Information Act as a "can opener" to get access



NOAA/NMFS' said entanglement records involving Endangered Wh ales h ales and Sea Turtles.



Pursuant to their Wh ale Fraud Program, th ese FOIA requests h ave eith er b een unlawfully



refused outrigh t or NOAA/NMFS h as attempted to bill th e Plaintiff th ousands of dollars to



ob tain a simple Excel™ spreadsh eet documenting th ese entanglement events. FN6



^ Th e NGO's working in concert with  NOAA/NMFS' Wh ale Fraud program ("Wh ale Fraud



Partners") include th e Ne w  England Aquarium, th e Center for Coastal Studies and th e Woods Hole



Oceanograph ic Institute.



^ In response to Plaintiff s 2018 FOIA request for records of wh ale entanglements, NOAA/NMFS



written response demanded a payment of over $20,000 just for th e Defendants to b egin "looking"



for th e requested records.
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10. Th e Plaintiff is seeking a Permanent Inj unction from th e Court against th e



Def en da n t s —



a. Enj oining th e Defendants from requiring th e furth er use of Vertical Buoy Ropes



h y th e commercial fish ermen th at it licenses and regulates.



b . Enj oining th e Defendants from furth er licensing th e use of fixed Gill Nets off



t h e US nort h east coastline.



c. Order th e Defendant to pub lish  with  month ly updates for routine Pub lic



inspection all its scientific records of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles



entangled and oth erwise sigh ted off th e US north east coast in its possession and



th at ws acquired b y research  efforts it eith er funds or licenses.



d. Order th e Defendants to supply th e Plaintiff th e documents h e seeks pursuant to



h is past and future FOIA requests to th em conceming Endangered Wh ales and



Sea turtles and to do so with out any cost to h im.



e. Order t h e Def en da n t  NOAA to comme n ce a n  ESA Section 7 rev i ew on  w h i ch 



infra-agency it will assign th e ESA/MMPA's supervisory and administrative



duties assigned to it b y Congress in preference to its h istorical assignment of



th em to NMFS, wh ich  was done with out th e requisite ESA Section 7  review.



f. Order t h e Def en da n t s to comme n ce  a n d con duct  a  l awful ESA Section 7 rev i ew



concerning th e adverse impact on Endangered Sea Turtles and Wh ales of th eir



licensing and regulating commercial fish ing operations.



g. Order th at th e Defendants must require th at commercial marine fish eries



licensed and regulated b y state governments in coastal waters under their state



j urisdiction b e sub j ect to an ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permit issued



individual state marine fish ing agencies or individual commercial fish ermen



licensed b y a state to use Lob ster Pots and Gill Nets in marine waters under its



state j urisdiction.



11. Th e Plaintiff is seeking a j ury trial on h is request for a declaratory j udgment



against th e Defendants. He is also seeking an award against th e Defendants of h is costs of



litigation in th e instant action.



Th e Pa rt i es



12. Plaintiff Rich ard Maximiis Strah an recently graduated ma gn um cum laucle with  a
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Bach elor of Arts degree in Classics Studies from th e University of Massach usetts in Boston MA.



He currently enrolled in th e graduate sch ool at th e University of New  Hampsh ire seeing a Master



of Arts degree in Lib eral Studies. He volunteers as th e Ch ief Science Officer of Wh a le Safe



USA, a campaign to make th e US coastline environmentally safe for endangered species of



coastal wh ales and sea turtles. Strah an is a conservation scientist wh ose profession activities



include designing and implementing conservation programs th at protect Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles in order to stop th eir extinction and to provide for th eir recovery from



th eir endangered species status. Every maj or conservation effort for Endangered Wh ales in US



coastal waters h as originated and designed b y h im. Th is includes imposing 500 yard protection



zones around th e North ern Righ t Wh ale and th e designation of protected critical h ab itat for it.



13. Strah an is a licensed commercial lob ster pot fish ermen in New Hampsh ire. He is



n ow b eing forced b y NHto use Vertical Buoy Ropes in h is lob ster pot gear. He does not want to



do so b ecause of VB R posing a th reat to entangle marine wildlife. He needs th e Court to stop th e



Defendants from permitting VB R in Pot Gear and require th at New Hampsh ire ob tain a ESA



Section 10 Incidental Take Permit in order to continue to license and regulate commercial fish ing



in its state waters. His b usiness mailing address is P. O. Box 82, Peterb orough  NH03458.



14. Defendant Administrator of th e National Oceanic and Atmosph eric



Administration is b eing sued in its official capacity as a violator of th e ESA Section 9 



proh ib itions on taking and for violating its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under



ESA Section 7. Its official b usiness address is 1401 Constitution Av en ue NW,Room



5128, Wash ington, DC2023 0.



15. Def en da n t  Assistant Administrator of  th e National Ma ri n e Fish eries Service is



b eing sued in its official capacity as a violator of th e ESA Section 9 proh ib itions on taking



and for violating its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under ESA Section 7. Its official



b usiness address is %Office of th e Assistant Administrator, National Marine Fish eries



Service, 13 15 East-West High way, Silver Spring MD 20910.
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Jurisdiction a n d Standing



16. Th is Court h as j urisdiction over th is action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 13 3 1 (federal



question) under th e ESA, APA, 5  U.S.C. § 701 et seq. (APA), 28 U.S.C. § 13 61 (ma n damus) and



may issue a declaratory Judgment and furth er relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202 (declaratory



and inj unctive relief). An  actual, Justiciab le controversy now exists b etween Plaintiff and



Defendants, and th e requested relief is proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201- 2202,5 U.S.C. §§ 701-


706, and 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g). Pursuant to 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), Plaintiff on or ab out 4 June 2018



served a notice on each  of th e Defendants and th e Secretary of Commerce pursuant to 16 USC §



1540(g) more th an 60 days prior to h is commencing th e instant action ("ESA Notice"). In h is



ESA Notice Strah an notified th e Defendants th at h e was going to commence a civil action



against th e Defendants for th eir said violations of th e ESA. ' 



17. Venue in th is Judicial district is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e) b ecause th is is



an action against an agency of th e United States and officers of th e United States acting in their



official capacity. Additionally at least one plaintiff resides in th is district.



18. Th e Plaintiff h as Article 111 standing pursuant to h is professional involvement and



recreational ob servational activities of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles off th e US



north eastern coast. Additionally h e h as Article III standing to protect h is profession interests in



h is commercial fish ing activities from violating th e ESA Section 9 taking of Endangered Wh ales



a n d Se a  Turtles. FNS



Th e Regulatory Sch eme for th e Protection of Endangered Species



19. In enacting th e ESA, Congress recognized th at certain species "h ave b een so



depleted in numb ers th at th ey are in danger of or th reatened with  extinction" and th at th ese



species are "of esth etic, ecological, educational, historical, recreational, and scientific value to



' Strah an "confirmed" th e proper service of his ESA Notice on the Defendants b y his filing a copy



of h is ESA Notice in a prior action against th ese Defendants in th e US District Court for th e District



of Massach usetts. See Strah an v. Administrator NOAA, et al., 18-CV- 103 92-DJC (D. Mass 2018).



At no point h enceforth  h as th e Defendants claimed th at th ey did not receive Strah an's ESA Notice.



Th e Defendants were eventually dismissed with out prej udice pursuant to FRCP Rule 41(a) from



t h e Ma ssa ch uset t s lawsuit.



^ Japan Wh aling Association v. American Cetacean Society, 478 U.S. 221, 230 n.4 (1986)



(plaintiffs "wh ale watch ing" activities estab lish es Article III standing to seek enforcement of



conservation laws); Bennett r. Spear. 520 US 154 (1997) (Ranch er h as Article 111 standing to



protect h is commercial interests from enforcement of ESA).
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th e Nation and its people." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(a) (2) and (3).



20. Th e ESA protects imperiled species b y listing th em as "endangered" or



"th reatened." Aspecies is "endangered" if it "is in danger of extinction th rough out all or a



significant portion of its range." Id. § 1532(6). Aspecies is "th reatened" if it "is likely to b ecome



an endangered species with in th e foreseeab le future th rough out all or a significant portion of its



range." Id. § 1532(20). Th e Secretary of Commerce is ch arged with  administering and enforcing



th e ESA for most marine species, including North  Atlantic righ t wh ales, and h as delegated th is



responsib ility to NMFS. 50 C.F.R. § 402.01(b ).



21. Th e ESA seeks "to provide a means wh ereb y th e ecosystems upon wh ich 



endangered and th reatened species depend may b e conserved, [and] to provide a program for th e



conservation of such  ... species." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(b ). Th e ESA defines conservation as "th e



use of all meth ods and procedures wh ich  are necessary to b ring any endangered species or



th reatened species to th e point at wh ich  th e measures provided pursuant to [th e ESA] are no



longer necessary." Id. § 1532(3). Accordingly, th e ultimate goal of th e ESA is not only to



prevent listed species from going extinct, b ut also to recover th ese species to th e point wh ere



th ey no longer require ESA protection



22. To accomplish  th ese goals. Section 9 of th e ESA generally makes it unlawful for



"any person" to "take" an endangered species. Id. § 1538(a)(1). A"person" includes private



parties as well as local, state, and federal agencies. Id. § 1532(13). "Take" is defined b roadly



under th e ESA to include h arassing, h arming, wounding, killing, or capturing a protected species



(or attempting to engage in such  conduct), eith er directly or b y degrading its h ab itat enough  to



impair essential b eh avior patterns. Id. § 1532(19); 50 C.F.R. § 222.102. Th e ESA proh ib its th e



acts of parties directly causing a take as well as th e acts of third parties, such  as governmental



agencies, wh ose acts cause such  taking to occur. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(g). Additionally, Section



7(a)(2) of th e ESA requires federal agencies to "insure th at any action auth orized, funded, or



carried out b y such  agency ... is not likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of any"



endangered or th reatened species. Id. § 1536(a)(2).



23. To comply with  Section 7(a)(2)'s sub stantive mandate, federal agencies must



consult with  NMFSwh en their actions "ma y affect" a listed marine species. 16 U.S.C. §



1536(a)(2). NMFSand th e action agency must utilize th e "b est scientific and commercial data



availab le" during th e consultation process. Id.; 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a).
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24. Wh ere, as h ere, NMFSis th e action agency as well as th e expert consulting



agency, NMFS must undertake intra-agency consultation. At th e completion of consultation, th e



consulting b ranch  of NMFS issues a b iological opinion th at describ es th e expected impact of th e



agency action on listed species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b ); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14. Th e b iological opinion



must include a summary of th e information upon wh ich  th e opinion is b ased, an evaluation of



"th e current status of th e listed species," th e "effects of th e action," and th e "cumulative effects."



50 C.F.R. § 402.14(g)(2), (g)(3). "Effects of th e action" include b oth  direct and indirect effects



of an action "th at will b e added to th e environmental b aseline." Id. § 402.02. Th e "environmental



b aseline" includes "th e past and present impacts of all Federal, State or private actions and oth er



h uman activities in th e action area, th e anticipated impacts of all proposed Federal projects in th e



action area th at h ave already undergone formal or early section 7 consultation, and th e impact of



State or private actions wh ich  are contemporaneous with  th e consultation in process." Id.



"Cumulative effects" include "future State or private activities, not involving Federal activities,



th at are reasonab ly certain to occur with in th e action area." Id.



25. Th us, in issuing a b iological opinion, NMFS must consider not j ust th e isolated



sh are of responsibility for impacts to th e species traceab le to th e activity th at is th e sub j ect of th e



b iological opinion, b ut also th e effects of th at action wh en added to all oth er activities and



influences th at affect th e status of th at species. After NMFS h as added th e direct and indirect



effects of th e action to th e environmental b aseline and cumulative effects, it must make its



determination of "wh eth er th e action is likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of a listed



species." 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(3), (b)(4); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(h). A likelihood of j eopardy is



found wh en "an action [] reasonab ly would b e expected, directly or indirectly, to reduce



appreciab ly th e likelihood of b oth  th e survival and recovery of a listed species in th e wild b y



reducing th e reproduction, numb ers, or distribution of th at species." 50 C.F.R. § 402.02.



Recovery is defined as "improvement in th e status of listed species to th e point at wh ich  listing is



no longer appropriate." Id. A biological opinion th at concludes th at th e agency action is not



likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of a listed species b ut will result in take incidental to



th e agency action must include an incidental take statement. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(4).



26. Th e incidental take statement must specify th e amount or extent of incidental



taking on such  listed species, "reasonab le and prudent measures" that NMFS considers necessary



or appropriate to minimize such  impact, and set forth "terms and conditions" th at must b e
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complied with  b y th e action agency to implement th e reasonab le and prudent measures. Id.; 50



C.F.R. § 402.14(i). Additionally, wh en th e listed species to b e incidentally taken are marine



mammals, th e take must first b e auth orized b y NMFSpursuant to th e MMPA,and th e incidental



take statement must include any additional measures necessary to comply with  th e MMPAtake



auth orization. Th e take of a listed species in compliance with  th e terms of a valid incidental take



statement is not proh ib ited under Section 9  of th e ESA. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(h )(4), (o)(2); 50 C.F.R.



§ 402.14(i)(5). If NMFSdetermines in its b iological opinion th at th e action is likely to j eopardize



th e continued existence of a listed species, th e b iological opinion must include "reasonab le and



prudent alternatives" to th e action th at will avoid j eopardy. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(h )(3)(A); 50 C.F.R.



§ 402.14(h )(3).



27. Regardless of th e conclusion reach ed in th e b iological opinion, th e agency



undertaking th e federal action h as an independent duty to ensure th at its actions are not likely to



j eopardize th e continued existence of listed species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2). An  agency's



reliance on a legally flawed b iological opinion to auth orize an action does not satisfy its



sub stantive duty to ensure against j eopardy.



Moreover, th e ESA's implementing regulations furth er require an agency to reinitiate Section 7 



consultation wh en:  (a) th e amount of take specified in th e incidental take statement is exceeded;



(b ) n ew information reveals th at th e action ma y h ave effects not previously considered; (c) th e



action is modified in a wa y th at was not previously considered; or (d) a n ew species is listed or



critical h ab itat designated th at ma y b e affected b y th e identified action. 50 C.F.R. § 402.16. Th e



ESA specifies th at Section 7 consultation must typically b e completed with in ninety days after



initiation. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b )(1); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(e). Th e sub stantive duty to ensure against



j eopardy of listed species remains in effect regardless of th e status of th e consultation.



Th e  Admi n i s t ra t i v e Proce d ure  Act 



28. Th e APA governs j udicial review of federal agency actions. 5 U.S.C. §§ 701- 706.



Under th e APA, courts "sh all... h old unlawful and set aside agency action, findings, or



conclusions found to b e arb itrary, capricious, an ab use of discretion, or oth erwise not in



accordance with  law" or made "with out ob servance of procedure required b y law." Id. §



706(2)(A), (C), (D).
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Background on Endangered Species of Wh ales a nd Sea Turtles



Adversely Affected b y Commerci a l Fish ing



29. Th e North ern Righ t Wh ale is th e world's most critically endangered large wh ale



species and also one of th e world's most endangered mammals. North ern Righ t Wh ale's



essential marine h ab itat is with in th e 200 mile ECZ of mostly th e US h ut extends north wards into



Canada. Th ey live in th e "urb an sea" of th e United States. Th eir coastal marine h ab itat is no



longer marine wilderness from h aving so h ugely b een adversely impact from commercial



development of area with in 100 miles inland of th e US coast th at spills outward to th e Ocean.



Th e North ern Righ t Wh ale living along th e US coastline is more akin to a moose trying



to live in a sub urb  of an eastern city like Boston or Concord NH. Not a good situation. Righ t



wh ales migrate annually from their summer feeding grounds off th e North east coast of th e



United States to their winter b reeding grounds off th e South east coast.



30. Females typically reach  sexually maj ority at age nine or ten and give b irth to a



single calf. Th e gestation period lasts rough ly one year. From 2005 to 2014, th e average righ t



wh ale calving interval (i.e. th e amount of time b etween th e b irth of a righ t wh ale calf and a



sub sequent calf from th e same moth er) ranged from th ree to five years. Th e average righ t wh ale



calving interval h as increased every year since 2014, to a h igh  of 10 years in 2017. Righ t wh ales



h ave raised patch es of rough ened skin on th eir h eads, known  as callosities. Th ese callosities are



found only on righ t wh ales and, like h uma n fingerprints, h ave distinctive patterns th at enab le



scientists to individually identify righ t wh ales. Th e callosities are covered b y b arnacles and tiny



crust acea n s k n ow n a s w h a l e  lice.



3 1. NMFSamended th e Atlantic Large Wh a le Take Reduction Plan in 2015, b ut did



so to exempt certain waters from th e requirements of th e 2014 rule. 80 Fed. Reg. 30,367 (Ma y



28, 2015). make th e callosities appear wh ite or pale yellow and th us visib le from b oats or during



aerial surveys. Scientists maintain an extensive catalogue th at documents each  of th e North 



Atlantic righ t wh ales kn own  to exist. Alth ough  th e North ern righ t wh ale h as b een protected



under th e ESA since 1973, th e species h as not recovered to a sustainab le population level.



Scientists estimate th at th e species consisted of only 458 individuals as of 2016. Not a single new



b orn North ern Righ t wh ale calf was sigh ted b y dedicated survey efforts during th e 2017- 2018



calving season. NMFSh as previously admitted th at th e species' survival is dependent on



protecting every individual, concluding th at th e loss of even one wh ale ma y contrib ute to th e
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extinction of th e species. Entanglement in commercial fish ing gear and sh ip strikes are th e two



most significant documented sources of mortality and serious inj ury for North ern Righ t Wh ales.



Since 1973  Defendants NOAA/ NMFS h ave failed to meaningfully manage commercial fish ing



and vessel operations off th e US eastern coastline in order to significantly reduce th e unlawful



taking of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y commercial fish ing and vessel operations.



3 2. To reduce th e th reat of sh ip strikes, NMFSissued regulations in 2008 as a result



of th e Plaintiffs petition and th en in 2013  requiring sh ips 65 feet in length  and longer to slow to



ten knots or less in North ern Righ t wh ale h ab itat areas at certain times of year. 73  Fed. Reg.



60,173 (Oct. 10, 2008); 78 Fed. Reg. 73,726 (Dec. 9,2013). Th e rule h as not reduced righ t wh ale



mortalities from sh ip strikes. Entanglement in fish ing gear h as b een th e primary cause of death 



and serious inj uries to Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in recent years. NMFSh as acted



arbitrarily and capriciously in refusing to enforce ESA Section 9 proh ib itions against individual



commercial fish ermen or oth erwise regulate commercial fish ing operation to minimize their



causing th e entanglement and oth erwise unlawful taking of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



3 3. Wh en  North ern Righ t wh ales and oth er Endangered Wh ale s get tangled up in



fish ing gear, th ey can drown immediately. In a significant numb er of cases, h owever, th e animals



die over an extended time period as th ey b ecome incapacitated b y injuries or infections caused



b y th e entanglement or starve. Gear often wraps around wh ales' flippers, mouth s, and tails and,



particularly in growing animals, cinch es tigh ter over time. Such  inj ury often results in maj or



tissue and b one damage and systemic infection. Th e animals often lose weigh t, causing th em to



sink wh en dead so th at death  from entanglement is often underreported. From 2010 to 2014,



th ere were 24 records of serious inj uries and mortalities of righ t wh ales th at involved



entanglement or fish ery interactions - an average of 4.65 wh ales per year.



34. In 2015, th ere were at least 4 n ew confirmed entanglements of righ t wh ales in



fish ing gear; in 2016 th ere were at least 7  n ew confirmed righ t wh ale entanglements; and in



2017, th ere were at least 9 n ew confirmed righ t wh ale entanglements. From 2010 to 2016,



entanglement related death s accounted for 85% of diagnosed righ t wh ale mortalities. In its 2016



stock assessment report, NMFSestab lish ed an annual righ t wh ale PB R of 1. In oth er words,



NMFSh as determined th at only a single righ t wh ale ma y b e killed as a result of h uman activity



wh ile still allowing th e species to reach  its optimum sustainab le population under th e Marine



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 12 of 22








24 August 2018 Complaint in Strah an v. Administrator, NOAA et al. (D. NH2018) 13 



Mamma l ;  Protection Act. 16 U.S.C. § 1362(20). Th erefore, current documented serious inj uries



and mortalities are unsustainab le and vastly exceed th e standards of th e MM?A.



35. Most righ t wh ale entanglements and mortalities are undocumented. Documented



serious inj ury and mortality rates ma y vastly underrepresent actual mortality. Scarring data ma y



b etter reflect actual entanglement rates. For example, a study of scarification data estimated th at



b etween 1980 and 2009, nearly 83 % of known righ t wh ales suffered entanglements and 5 9% of



righ t wh ales h ave b een entangled more th an once. Arecent follow-up study indicates th at th e



pattern persisted th rough  at least 2012, and th ere is no evidence to suggest th is threat h as b een



mitigated. In addition to causing serious injuries and mortalities, entanglement in fish ing gear



causes oth er significant h arm to Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles.. For example, research 



indicates th at survivorsh ip prob ab ility for individual North ern Righ t wh ales is reduced b y at least



40% after an entanglement event.



36. Ch ronic entanglement impairs foraging and locomotion. Impaired locomotion can



contrib ute to starvation, wh ile an entanglement of th e mouth  directly impedes foraging, causing



starvation. On e entangled North  Atlantic righ t wh ale gradually starved to death  over th e course



of 3 20 days owing solely to h is impairment of feeding and infection of wounds caused directly



b y entanglement. An  entanglement can also increase stress h ormone levels, wh ich  can contrib ute



to th e development of systematic infections. Severe wounding from an entanglement or repeated



entanglements of righ t wh ales can increase their susceptib ility to disease.



37. Entanglements are reducing th e reproductive success of righ t wh ales, inh ib iting



th e species' ability to recover from th e b rink of extinction. Studies sh ow th at severe wounding



and repeated entanglements of righ t wh ales can cause reduced reproduction. Studies h ave also



found th at female righ t wh ales seen alive and carrying gear or with  severe wounds from



entanglement h ad a significantly lower ch ance of calving again. Females th at experienced



moderate or severe entanglement wounds b etween calving events h ad a significantly longer



calving interval th an females th at experienced minor or no entanglement wounds. Oth er studies



h ave found th at significant energetic impacts also occur from entanglements, especially in



reproductive females. Th e drag from fish ing gear can delay righ t wh ale reproduction b y month s



or yea rs.



38. Th e myriad negative impacts from entanglements are contrib uting to th e dire



status of th e righ t wh ale population. Just since 2010, calving rates h ave dropped b y nearly 40%,
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and th e last four decades h ave seen increasing numb ers of righ t wh ales killed, primarily b y



entanglement in fish ing gear. Th e righ t wh ale population is n ow in decline.



39. Th e declining population trend was evident even b efore th e spring and summer of



2017, during wh ich  at least 17 North ern Righ t wh ales were found dead in th e United States and



Canada. Twelve wh ales were found dead in Canadian waters, and five were found dead in U.S.



waters. Th e cause of death  is still b eing investigated for ma ny of th ese death s, b ut necropsies



sh ow th at at least two of th e wh ales found dead in Canadian waters appear to h ave died from



entanglement in fish ing gear. Tw o of th e wh ales found dead in U.S. waters sh ow evidence of



entanglement. Some of th e wh ales were too decomposed to determine cause of death.



40. Th ese mortalities, wh ich  amount to nearly 1 0% of th e current righ t wh ale



population, will compound negative impacts to righ t wh ales, especially considering th at at least



four of th e dead wh ales h ave b een identified as females and only five calves were b om in 2017.



Conservation scientists assign a h igh  prob ab ility th at North ern Righ t wh ales owing to th eir



reduced viability cause j ust b y th e Defendants said commercial fish ing activities th at ESA



Section 9 proh ib its will b ecome b iologically incapab le of survival as a species b y th e second h alf



of th is century. If th e Court fails to order th e Defendants to stop th eir ongoing said proh ib ited



killing and inj uring of North ern Righ t wh ales, th ey will soon b e extinct even after b eing fully



protected under law b y th e ESA.



41. All Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b ecome routinely b ecome entangled in



th e Pot Gear and Gill Nets licensed and regulated b y th e Government Defendants. Th ese



Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles are th en killed and inj ured as a result. In recent years th e



incidents of entanglements h ave increased for Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th is is



b ecause th ere h as b een an explosion in th e population of Amerikan Lob sters off th e US



nort h eastern coast coi nciden t wi t h  a n  increase in t h e con s ume r ma rk e t  for lob ster. No w  more 



commercial fish ermen are deploying more commercial fish ing gear due to th e greater market



demand and th e larger lob ster population th at can meet th is demand.



42. It is important to note th at th ere are more lob sters b ecause th eir main predator —



th e Cod fish  —was recently wiped out b y overfish ing auth orized and encouraged b y Defendant



NMFS. Despite its constantly decreasing population over ma n y years, NOAA/ NMFS refused to



list th e Codfish  under th e ESA as an endangered/th reatened species and still refuses to do so to



th e current day. Th eir failure is a systemic error owing to th eir singular loyalty to th e commercial
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fish ing industry and not to th e Pub lic interest or to th e rule of law. If th e NOAATNMFS are not



ordered to do oth erwise, th ey will continue to ignore th e entanglement of Endangered Wh ales



and Sea Turtles b y th e Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at th ey license and regulate till th e North ern



Righ t Wh ale goes extinct. It will b e th e first and not last species of wh ale or sea turtle to b e



extirpated b y th e negligence and commercial loyalty of NOAA/NMFS —th e "foxes guarding



th e ch icken coop."



43 . B eca use of  t h e extinction of  Codf i sh  of f t h e US north eastern coast a s a  result of 



its b eing overfish ed, th e Amerikan Lob ster population greatly increased from it no longer b eing



preyed upon b y th e Codfish. Once its predator was eliminated b y overfish ing th e population of



Amerikan lobsters was no longer restrained b y predation. It must b e noted as a lesson of h istory



th at it was th e refusal of NOAA/NMFS to list th e Codfish  as an endangered species th at resulted



in its remaining population b eing totally depleted from overfish ing leading to its extirpation in



th e US north east coastal waters. Despite all th e data collected b y NMFS clearly sh owing th at th e



Codfish  population was decimated from overfish ing and it was facing imminent extinction,



NMFS refused to put any moratorium on its furth er commercial exploitation nor did it list th e



species as endangered under th e ESA. To this day, NMFS' complete dedication to th e



commercial exploitation b y commercial fish ing makes it incapab le of stopping its licensing th e



commercial fish ing of Cod.



44. All of th e ab ove sh ould b e a convincing example of wh y NOAA/NMFS must b e



ordered b y th e Court to ob ey th e ESA if th ere is any possibility of stopping commercial fish ing



from causing th e extinction of any of th e Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.
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Plaintiffs Claims Against th e Defendants



COUNTI: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1536(a)(1):Th e Defendants NOAA/NMFS



Failure to Comply with  th e Mandatory Duties Imposed on Th em b y ESA Section



7(a)(1) to Use Its Auth orities Under L a w to Insure th e Continued Survival of ESA



Listed Species of Endangered and Th reatened Wh ales a nd Sea Turtles. FN9 



45. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 44.



46. Th e Defendants (i. e. NOAA. NMFS) h ave completely refused and failed to



adequately comply with  their non-discretionary and mandatory duties under ESA Section



7(a)(1) to use their authorities to insure th at Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles



protected b y th e ESA will recover from their protected status as depleted species of wildlife.



NMFS h a s failed to enact such  consultations ov er its ma ri n e fish eries activities a n d h a s not used



its lawful authorities to assist in th e recovery of th ese ESA protected species from their depleted



b iological status. Th ey h ave wh olly failed to enforce th e ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against



state agencies and commercial fish ing operations th at license th em.



47. For their part, Defendants NOAAand NMFS h ave violated their mandatory and



non-discretionary duties imposed b y ESA section 7(a)(1) on th em b y wh olly refusing to do an



internal ESA Section 7 consultation in order to implement a program to effectively use their



authorities and responsibilities under ESA Section 7(a)(1) to assist th e recovery of



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles. For example, NMFS wh olly fails to



effectively enforce th e ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions against taking Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles against individual commercial fish ermen and state governments th at



license and regulate commercial fish ing in federal waters under concurrent state jurisdiction



of th ese states. Defendant NOAA violated its said ESA Section 7(a)(1) mandatory and non-


discretionary duties b y transferring to NMFS its duties and responsibilities assigned it b y



Congress under th e ESA in an arb itrary and capricious manner with out any concern for th e



adverse impact on listed endangered species from it doing so.



^ ESA Section 7(a)(1): Th e Secretary [i. e. Secretaries of the Departments of Commerce and



Agriculture] shall review oth er programs administered b y h im and utilize such  programs in



furth erance of th e purposes of this Act. All oth er Federal agencies shall, in consultation with  and



with  th e assistance of th e Secretary, utilize their authorities in furth erance of th e purposes of this



Act b y carrying out programs for th e conservation of endangered species and th reatened species



listed pursuant to section 4 of th is Act.
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48. Th ese said violations of th e Defendants will continue to reoccur daily until th e



Court orders th ese Defendants to comply with  th eir mandatory and non-discretionary duties



under ESA Section 7(a)(1).



COUNTII: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1536(a)(2): Th e Defendants NOAA/NMFS'



Failure to Engage in a  ESA Section 7(a) Consultation to Insure th at th e



Government Defendants Commercial Fish ing Operations a nd Enforcement



Practices of  ESA Section 9 Proh ib itions will Not Jeopardize th e Continued Survival



of Endangered a nd Th reatened Wh ales a n d Sea Turtles. FNIO



49. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 48.



50. Th ese Federal Defendants (i. e. NOAA. NMFS) are violating th e mandatory and



non-discretionary duties imposed on t h em b y ESA Section 7(a)(2) concerning th e adverse impact



on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles from commercial fish ing th at th ey license and regulate in



concert. Since 1973  and continuing to th e present, th ey h ave failed to adequately comply with 



th eir mandatory and non-discretionary duties to meaningfully consult on th e adverse impact on



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles of its auth orizing and regulating commercial



fish eries operations off th e US Atlantic coastline using Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at h as resulted



in th e continued killing and inj uring of th ese ESA listed species incidental to th eir entanglement



in th e said fish ing gear and currently th reatens th e continued survival of each  of th ese ESA listed



endangered species.



51. Defendant NOAA violated its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under ESA



Section 7(a)(2) b y transferring its ESA management auth ority assigned it b y Congress



concerning listed species of marine wildlife to its infra-agency NMFS. It did th is unlawfully



with out first conducting an internal ESA Section 7(a) consultation to insure th at such  a transfer



would not j eopardize th e continued survival of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



52. NOAA wh olly failed its lawful requirement to consider a more suitab le agency to



wh ich  it would transfer its ESA management responsib ility such  as th e National Ocean Service.



ESA Section 7(a)(2): Each  Federal agency sh all, in consultation with  and with  th e assistance of



th e Secretary [i. e. FWS/NMS], insure th at any action auth orized, funded, or carried out b y such 



agency (h ereinafter in th is section referred to as an "agency action") is not likely to j eopardize th e



continued existence of any endangered species or th reatened species or result in th e destruction or



adverse modification of h ab itat of such  species wh ich  is determined b y th e Secretary. ... In



fulfilling th e requirements of th is paragraph  each  agency sh all use th e b est scientific and



commerci a l  da t a availa b le.
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It was an act of arb itrary and capricious incompetence th at NOAA would h and Endangered



Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles over to th e custody to an agency like NMFSwh ose licensing



and regulation of commercial fish ing routinely kills and/or injures Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th e ESA Section 7  requires th at NOAAfirst produced a Biological



Assessment and th en a Biological Opinion b efore deciding to invoke th e said trans of its ESA



management auth ority for Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



53. Since 1973  Defendants NMFSh as wh olly failed in its mandatory and non-


discretionary duties imder ESA Section 7(a) to enter into an internal consultation over its



programs and policies concerning its enforcement of th e ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against th e



taking of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



54. As a result of th ese failures, commercial fish ermen now routinely kill and injure



memb ers Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles incidental to th eir commercial fish eries



operations with out a scintilla of fear th at th ey will b e prosecuted b y NMFS for th ese ESA



Section 9  proh ib ited takings of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles



56. For th eir part, Defendants NMFS/NOAA/ASMFC h ave violated th eir said



mandatory and non-discretionary duties imposed b y ESA section 7(a)(2) and th ey will continue



to do so unless compelled to do oth erwise b y th e Court.
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COUNTIII: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1538(a): Th e Defendants Violation of th e ESA



Section 9(a) Proh ib itions Against th e Incidental Taking of Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles Occurring as a Direct Result of th eir Respective



Individual Commercial Fish ing Operations FNl l 



57. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 56.



58. Th e Government Defendants (i. e. NOAA, NMFS) are licensing and regulating



commercial fish ing operation off th e Atlantic coastline th at violates th e ESA Section 9 



proh ib itions of th e ESA. Th e Defendants licensed fish ing operations and its individual memb ers



are violating th e ESA Sections 9  proh ib itions b y deploying lob ster pot gear in US coastal waters



th at incidentally entangles Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in a routine and continuous



manner since 1973. Defendants never issued any ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permit to



auth orize any incidental taking b y th em of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in th e



commercial fish ing gear th at th ey license and regulate to b e deployed in US coastal waters under



th e concurrent state j urisdiction of Massach usetts.



59. Th e Defendants h ave never issued any ESA Section 7 incidental take statement



auth orizing th eir incidental taking of said endangered species pursuant to their regulating and



licensing said commercial fish eries operations in US coastal waters. Th ese Defendants are



violating th e ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions in their incidental taking Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y their facilitating th e operation of commercial fish eries th at deploy Pot



Gear and Gill Nets in US coastal waters. Th is deployment of said fish ing gear continuously and



routinely kills and/or inj ures memb ers of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles from



th eir entanglements in th e said fish ing gear.



60. Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles are killed and inj ured from



entanglement in Pot Gear and Gill Nets deployed b y th e Defendant ML A memb ers and b y th e



Government Defendants licensing and regulating th ese commercial fish eries. Federal courts h ave



" ESA Section 9(a):[l]t is unlawful for any person sub j ect to th e j urisdiction of th e United States



t o— (A) import any such  species into, or export any such  species from th e United States; (B ) take



any such  species with in th e United States or th e territorial sea of th e United States; (C) take any



such  species upon th e h igh  seas; (D) possess, sell, deliver, carry, transport, or sh ip, b y any means



wh atsoever, any such  species taken in violation of sub paragraph s (B ) and (C); ... or (G) violate



any regulation pertaining to such  species or to any th reatened species of fish  or wildlife listed



pursuant to section 4 of th is Act and promulgated b y th e Secretary pursuant to auth ority provided



b y th is Act.
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repeatedly h eld federal agencies liab le for violating th e ESA's Section proh ib itions wh en their



agency actions expectedly and routinely cause commercial development in ecosystems utilized



b y ESA listed species and th at results in th e unlawful taking of th ese species in violation of th e



ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions. FN12 



61. Th e Defendants will continue their said ESA Section 9(a) proh ib ited taking of



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles into th e future unless ordered to stop b y th e



Court.



See Strah an v. Coxe, 93 9 F. Supp. 963  (Dist. Mass. 1996) and 127 P. 3 d 155 (1st Circuit, 1997)



(Massach usetts marine fish ing agency liab le under ESA Section 9(a) for unlawful taking of ESA



listed species of endangered wh ales b y entanglements of endangered wh ales in fish ing gear



licensed and regulated th is agency). See also Florida Key Deer v. Paulison, 522 F.3d 113 3  (11th 



Cir. 2008) and Florida Key Deer v. Stickney, 864 F. Supp. 1222 (Dist. FL  1994) (Federal



Emergency Man agemen t Agency violates ESA §§ 9  and 7 for its auth orizing, regulating, and



funding commercial development in h ab itat of ESA listed endangered deer species).
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PRAYER FOR REL IEF



I. For a Declaratory Judgment th atth at NOAA/NMFS are violating th e ESA Section 9 take



proh ib itions b y licensing and regulating Pot and Gill Net fish eries th at are killing, inj uring and



oth erwise taking Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y entanglement of memb ers of th ese



endangered species in Vertical Buoy Ropes and netting and th at its permitting of th ese said



fish eries in itself is now a categorical violation of ESA Section 9 proh ib itions as th ey pose a clear



and present danger to entangle said endangered species.



II. For a Declaratory Judgment th at NOAAis now in continuous violation of its mandatory and non-


discretionary duties under ESA Section 7 b y transferring its authority to supervise enforcement of



th e ESA for Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles to NMFSwith out th e required review and



b ecause NMFS b y statute is a dedicated commercial fish ing agency and th e "Fox guarding th e



ch icken coop and eating th e ch ickens." It th erefore is categorically unsuitab le under th e ESA to



assume such  supervisory responsib ility for any protected wildlife.



III. For an order, enj oining NMFS from licensing lob ster and crab  pot fish eries employing Vertical



Buoy Ropes in marine waters possib ly inh ab ited at any time of year b y Endangered Wh ales and



Sea Turtles or permitting states to do so in waters under th eir Jurisdiction.



IV. For an order, ordering th e Defendants to comply with  th eir mandatory and non-


discretionary duties under ESA Section 7  in regards to their licensing and regulating



commercial fish ing operations and to require th at states must apply for and b e issued



ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permits to license commercial fish ing operations in



coastal waters under th eir state Jurisdiction and to redo all relevant b iological opinions.



V. For an award of the Pl̂ ntiff's direct costs of his prosecution against the Defendants.



VI. For any funh er reli/f that the Court deems appropriate.



B Y: 



/s/ Richard Maxij^\is Strahan



Richard Maxiimis Str̂ an



FOB  82, Petemorough  03 458



esi stoo@ yahfflo .com. 61'̂17-4402



Pro Se a n d  Proud!



VERIFICATION OFTHE COMPL AINT



1 Richard Maxinf̂ s Strahan verify under the pains and penalties of perjury that all the facts alleged in the



above complaint ̂e known/o the best of my ability to be true. Signed under the pains and penalties of



perjury this 24th D̂ of Âust in the year 2018.



/s./ R ch a rd 


xi mus  Stra h a n 



Rich ard Ma xi mu s  Stra h a n
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ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION ("NOAA")



ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR,NATIONAL MARINE



FISHERIES SERVICE ("NMFS")
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Civil Act i on  No.



24 August 2018



Defendants



PL AINTIFF'S MOTION FOR ACCESSTOTHEECFFIL ING SYSTEM SOTHAT HE MAY 



FIL EDOCUMENTS WITHTHE COURT I THEINSTANT ACTION



Plaintiff — Ri ch a rd Ma x Stra h a n  — SPEAKS: 



I a m asking th e Court to allow me to make filings with  th e Court th rough  its ECF filing



system. I h ave vast experience with  th e ECF system and its requirements. I currently h ave b een



auth orized to make ECF filings in several civil action pending in th e US District Courts.



For the ab <^e reasons, 1 ask the Court to grant my requested relief.



B Y: 



/ s/RL  M̂ i mus Strah an



Rich ard Maximu^ t ra h a n 



POB 8 2 



Peterb orough  NH03 4?



Pro Se a n d Prou d !
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From:                 Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal

                         <matthew.borgia@noaa.gov>

To:                     John Sokich <john.sokich@noaa.gov>

Cc:



Subject:             Re: Fwd: WCM language



See my texts. I think we need to alert leadership, and take credit for this. I think this would be an

AWESOME achievement, if it gets enacted!



On Tue, Sep 27, 2016 at 12:13 PM, John Sokich <john.sokich@noaa.gov> wrote:



I'm not a lawyer, but I agree with Matt.  The language about IDSS is exactly with NWS needs.



On 9/27/2016 12:08 PM, Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal wrote:



So, here's what Senate staff came back with. A bit circular in logic perhaps, but I think it's VERY

positive and very much in line with what we'd like to do, esp w/r/t OWA.



SEC. 405. WARNING COORDINATION METEOROLOGISTS AT WEATHER FORECAST OFFICES

OF NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE.



(a) In General.—The Director of the National Weather Service shall designate at least 1  warning

coordination meteorologist at each weather forecast office of the National Weather Service.  The

primary role of the warning coordination meteorologists shall be to carry out the responsibilities required

by this section.  NOAA is not authorized to hire additional full-time equivalent employees for purposes of

carrying out this section.  Performance of the responsibilities outlined in this section is not limited to the

warning coordination meteorologist position.



(b) Responsibilities.— Consistent with the Operations and Workforce Analysis defined in Section 409,

to increase impact-based decision support services each weather forecast office of the National

Weather Service, through the warning coordination meteorologist designated under subsection (a), or

through such other staff deemed necessary to meet the following responsibilities, shall—  ...[rest of

section unchanged]



On Mon, Sep 26, 2016 at 10:44 AM, Hugh Schratwieser - NOAA Federal <hugh.c.schratwieser@noaa.

gov> wrote:



Matt,



Here is my suggested version.



Hugh



Date:                 Tue Sep 27 2016 12:20:01  EDT

Attachments:



Bcc:



Document ID: 0.7.783.18879
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On 9/26/2016 9:59 AM, Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal wrote:



Hi Hugh,

Can you read this over quickly? We're looking to get back to the Senate this morning on this. Attached

is the latest iteration that HQ folks came up with. We're attempting to have the language read as

intended by Senate staff: no additional/new authorized FTEs.

My read is that this proposed edit misses the mark, and is (unintentionally) overly restrictive, since it

says 'can't hire additional employees.' There is a HQ concerns that if we use the term "positions" we're

restricting ourselves to allow other, non-WCM personnel/positions to do similar duties. And in the future

NWS state (following OWA), the assumption is that non-WCMs will do these duties, too.



And perhaps ambiguity would be helpful in this case? Please let us know what you think. We need

ASAP.



Thanks!

Matt



---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Shali Mohleji - NOAA Federal <shalini.mohleji@noaa.gov>

Date: Fri, Sep 23, 2016 at 4:41  PM

Subject: Fwd: WCM language

To: John Sokich - NOAA Federal <John.Sokich@noaa.gov>, Michael Bilder - NOAA Federal <michael.

bilder@noaa.gov>, Darone Jones - NOAA Federal <darone.jones@noaa.gov>

Cc: Coby Dolan - NOAA Federal <coby.dolan@noaa.gov>, Robert Moller - NOAA Federal <robert.

moller@noaa.gov>, Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal <matthew.borgia@noaa.gov>



NWS Team,



Could we please get the attached reviewed and cleared by NWS asap? Deepest apologies for the late

request but we need to get this back to the Senate asap.



The background for the attached text: we tried to edit some language that needs to endorse the role of

the WCM but not limit to only the WCM's providing IDSS. Since OWA will open up that responsibility to

many staff, not just WCM's. Our team has gone back and forth and finally come up with the attached.



However, we won't officially submit until we have NWS review. Senate is waiting.



Please, very close hold on this other than sharing with your limited NWS folks for review.



Many Thanks,

Shali



Shalini Mohleji, Ph.D.



Senior Advisor to the Under Secretary

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

(202) 482-6005
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--


Matthew Borgia

Congressional Liaison for Weather

Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs

National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

Room 62012

1401  Constitution Ave. NW

Washington  DC  20230



Direct: 
Main: 202-482-4981

Email: matthew.borgia@noaa.gov



--
Hugh C. Schratwieser

Attorney-Adviser, Office of the General Counsel

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

1315 East-West Highway -- SSMC 3 15143

Silver Spring, Maryland  20910

301 -713-9684 Telephone

301 -713-1494 Facsimile



Confidentiality Notice:  This e-mail message is intended only for the named recipients. It contains

information that may be confidential, privileged,

attorney work product, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you have received

this message in error, are not a named  recipient,

or are not the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to a named recipient, be

advised that any review, disclosure, use, dissemination,

distribution, or reproduction of this message or its contents is strictly prohibited.  Please notify us

immediately that you have received this message

in error, and delete the message.



--


Matthew Borgia

Congressional Liaison for Weather

Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs

National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce
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Room 62012

1401  Constitution Ave. NW

Washington  DC  20230



Direct: 
Main: 202-482-4981

Email: matthew.borgia@noaa.gov



--


Matthew Borgia

Congressional Liaison for Weather

Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs

National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

Room 62012

1401  Constitution Ave. NW

Washington  DC  20230



Direct: 
Main: 202-482-4981

Email: matthew.borgia@noaa.gov
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I see you're on this thread. Is national guidance expected?  This message should hit ALL regions.



---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Stephen Brueske - NOAA Federal <stephen.brueske@noaa.gov>

Date: Wednesday, October 19, 2016

Subject: Request for Time to Listen to/View NWSEO Material

To: _NWS CR MIC/HIC <cr.mic@noaa.gov>, _NWS CR DIVISION_CHIEFS <cr.divchief@noaa.gov>

Cc: Ken Brown <kenneth.i.brown@noaa.gov>, David Murray - NOAA Federal <david.murray@noaa.

gov>



MIC/HICs,

Please share the following with your managers.



Be advised that bargaining unit people from multiple CR offices have asked their managers for time to

view "An OWA Briefing" or a presentation related to the future of NWS from Dan Sobien.  It has been

described in various ways.  NWSEO has evidently sent invitations to bargaining unit members to view

the presentation...and there may be multiple instances when the presentation is provided.



This is internal union business that is strictly prohibited while on duty time or in government facilities.

You must not allow this to happen in the office or during duty time.  The following statement from the

CBA, Article 7, Section 7 clearly applies:

"...activities related to the internal affairs of the Union will not be conducted within the working hours or

work areas of employees.  Management facilities and /or equipment and ADP equipment shall not be

used for any such purpose."

(Comes from "Title 5, United States Code, Section 7131  (b). Official time.")



If any of your bargaining unit employees ask for official time to view material related to "internal union

business", you should deny their request.  If you want to allow them leave to listen/view material from

NWSEO representatives, then you can do so, but the employees must be on leave and they cannot use

government equipment or government facilities to do so.



Take care,

Steve



Stephen Brueske

Deputy Regional Director

National Weather Service, Central Region

(816) 268-3131



Cell: 


--


Sally Pavlow Johnson

Meteorologist In Charge NWS Sioux Falls, SD

26 Weather Lane

Sioux Falls, SD 57104

605-330-4244 x642

sally.pavlow@noaa.gov
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From:                 Kenneth Brown - NOAA Federal

                         <kenneth.i.brown@noaa.gov>

To:                     Sally Pavlow Johnson

                         <sally.pavlow@noaa.gov>

Cc:                     David Murray - NOAA Federal

                         <david.murray@noaa.gov>; Stephen Brueske - NOAA Federal

                         <stephen.brueske@noaa.gov>; Michael Mercer - NOAA Federal

                         <michael.mercer@noaa.gov>



Subject:             Re: RD, Deputy RD or other NWS Manager Visits to discuss OWA



Thanks Sally.   I defer to Dave on this and to whom he will elevate.



Ken



On Oct 28, 2016, at 8:45 AM, Sally Pavlow Johnson <sally.pavlow@noaa.gov> wrote:



Someone from Eastern Region sent this to me.  Should they be using NOAA email to distribute this?



---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Frank Nocera - NOAA Federal <frank.nocera@noaa.gov>

Date: Fri, Oct 28, 2016 at 5:33 AM

Subject: Fwd: RD, Deputy RD or other NWS Manager Visits to discuss OWA

To: Kevin Cadima <kevin.cadima@noaa.gov>, Benjamin Sipprell <benjamin.sipprell@noaa.gov>,

Eleanor Vallier-Talbot <eleanor.vallier-talbot@noaa.-gov>, Hayden Frank <hayden.frank@noaa.gov>,

Matthew Belk <matthew.belk@noaa.gov>, Matthew Doody <matthew.doody@noaa.gov>, Nicole Belk

<nicole.belk@noaa.gov>, Rebecca Gould <rebecca.gould@noaa.gov>, Stephanie Dunten <stephanie.

dunten@noaa.gov>, William Babcock <william.babcock@noaa.gov>, William Simpson <william.

simpson@noaa.gov>, Kimberly Buttrick <kimberly.buttrick@noaa.gov>, Lenore Correia - NOAA Federal

<lenore.correia@noaa.gov>, Alan Dunham <alan.dunham@noaa.gov>



All,



An update from NWSEO regarding OWA.



Frank



---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: David Solano <
Date: Thu, Oct 27, 2016 at 10:58 PM

Subject: RD, Deputy RD or other NWS Manager Visits to discuss OWA

To: Alicia Miller <alicia.a.miller@noaa.gov>, Barry Lambert <Barry.Lambert@noaa.gov>, Brian Mitchell



>, Carl Morgan <carl.r.morgan@noaa.gov>, David Marsalek <david.

marsalek@noaa.gov>, Dean Iovino <dean.iovino@noaa.gov>, Dennis Sleighter <dennis.

sleighter@noaa.gov>, Frank Nocera <Frank.Nocera@noaa.gov>, Gred Hanson <


Date:                 Fri Oct 28 2016 08:58:19 EDT

Attachments:



Bcc:



Document ID: 0.7.783.20059
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net>, James Merrell <james.merrell@noaa.gov>, Jonathan Lamb <Jonathan.lamb@noaa.gov>, kevin

Lipton >, kevin Lipton <kevin.lipton@noaa.gov>, Kirk Apffel

< >, Kirk Apffel <kirk.apffel@noaa.gov>, Kirt Squires <kirt.squires@noaa.gov>,

Mark Pellerito <mark.pellerito@noaa.gov>, Mike Cempa <mike.cempa@noaa.gov>, Mike Longnecker

<Mike.Longnecker@noaa.gov>, Mike Proud <mike.proud@noaa.gov>, Norman-Bingham-Maas

<norman.bingham-maas@noaa.gov>-, Patrick Maloit <patrick.maloit@noaa.gov>, Patrick Maloit



, Phillip Badgett <Phillip.Badgett@noaa.gov>, Rodney Hinson <Rodney.

Hinson@noaa.gov>, Scott Kroczynski <th >-, Scott kroczynski <scott.

kroczynski@noaa.gov>, Thomas Janus <thomas.janus@noaa.gov>, Todd Baker <todd.w.baker@noaa.

gov>, Weir Lundstedt <weir.lundstedt@noaa.gov>

Cc: David Solano >



Stewards,



If anyone wants to contact me and discuss anything about OWA before the ER RD, Deputy Director or

other NWS manager visits your office I am here to serve your needs as best as I can and answer any

questions you may have.  I also strongly suggest you read the Minutes from the NWSEO Convention

which I sent to everyone as there is section just on OWA.  I copied an pasted that section below.  The

RD or NWS Designee is probably going to say something to the effect that “the NWSEO President Dan

Sobien has been involved with the pre-planning, that other NWSEO members including myself have

been involved with OWA and the hydro aspect of the OWA and that NWSEO has had people on almost

all of the phases of the OWA.  Sure NWSEO has Reps on some of these teams but in some case like

FIFS and NBM Team our opinions, ideas and comments are ignored and the NWS is going around

saying, “The Employees (wh0 NWSEO represents) is asking for this”.



On a recent visit to Maine, the RD said, “NWSEO has had people in almost all of the phases of the

OWA”.  Yes, that’s true to a small extent but he did not mention that NWSEO has strongly objected to

ideas on the FIFS and NBM Team, offered alternatives which were ignored and at times, especially on

the FIFS team, it’s been a war.



The NWS first informed NWSEO of this McKinsey study at an AOP meeting a couple years back.  It

was described as a staffing study because Louie said he was getting pushed by OMB to cut offices.

We neither consented or disagreed.  As part of the OWA the NWS created 5 teams that we were

allowed to be on.  In less than a month the NWS kicked us off all of their teams because we would not

sign a non-disclosure agreement.  We were briefed a couple times by the NWS and McKinsey.  The

briefings were not direct ideas they were talking about instead abstract what if kind of statements.  We

frequently objected to what they were doing and apparently it was ignored.  After that we were invited

back on three teams and this was only after Congress pressured them.  One team defined deep core

partners another designed the 5 through 12 progression for mets.  No complaints about either of these

teams.  The third team designed the forecast process, the idea that WPC would do the forecast.  We

had 2 members on that team Chris Jacobson and Shannon White.  Neither Shannon nor Chris were

allowed to object to anything discussed.  They were told they were not allowed to have a position.  If

you know either Shannon or Chris feel free to contact them.  Below are the OWA Minutes from the

NWSEO Convention.  Please review these minutes.  They will be helpful.  If anyone wants to discuss

anything, just reach me at or email 
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OWA Update



NWS Organization-Wide Operations and Workforce Analysis (OWA) assessing the current workforce

model, operating and organizational structure.  There are:



Communications & Stakeholder Engagement (No NWSEO members)



Workforce Workstream



Operating Model Workstream (IDSS focus)



Organizational Structure Workstream



Fully Integrated Field Structure (FIFS) Workstream



National Blend of Models Team



Related are the Model Blend Team(s) & Shiftwork Team



NWSEO is not on the communications team.  McKinsey is driving much of OWA.  The Workforce

Workstream goal is to build off NWS’s talented, motivated, and professional workforce by holistically

improving the way NWS hires, trains, develops, and empowers its workforce.  The first NWS New Hire

Training class held the week of Aug 8 - ONBOARDING.  29 New NWS Employees attended.  NWSEO

NCEP Chair, JoAnn Becker was NWSEO Rep for the class.  The Operating Model Workstream is

focused on understanding and enhancing Impact-Based Decision Support Services (IDSS), which is a

critical part of helping NWS achieve Weather-Ready Nation. The team is working to ensure a common

understanding across the NWS of the overarching goals and objectives for IDSS. The team also has

been working to identify policy guidance needs, training gaps, and specific actions that NWS can take

to address current challenges in providing consistent IDSS and transform the organization in support of

Weather-Ready Nation.  Positive feedback from EMA’s but they also don’t want to lose what they’re

currently getting from the WFOs/RFCs.  Organizational Structure Workstream works to help the agency

improve role clarity, create an open and trusting environment, and innovate, including capturing external

ideas.  The Organizational Health Index (OHI) survey from the OWA diagnostic shows that improving

these three capabilities are critical to building a healthy organization.  Shift Work Best Practices Team is

to make recommendations to the NWS-NWSEO Strategic Leadership Team about ways the NWS can

help lessen the challenges of shift work and:



•          Collect and analyze shift work research



•          Analyze other agencies’ and companies’ shift work practices



•          Survey NWS shift workers to find biggest issues and benefits as well as current best practices.



The vision would be to implement some of the recommendations from the Shift Work Team.
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FIFS/Digital Services/National Blend of Models – Shannon White/Chris Jacobson



The Fully Integrated Field Structure (FIFS) team has been a contentious team led by Dan Cobb (MIC

GRR) with reps from all regions, participation by several Centers, with Chris Jacobson and Shannon

White as NWSEO reps.  At times, it’s been a war and at times chaos.  The team has heard

presentations from Cobb and others on topics such as:



-         shifting primary forecast responsibility to the centers such as WPC



-         shifting watch/warning/advisory responsibility to centers



-         collaborative forecast process where WPC negotiates changes to the national forecast



-         Primary ownership of gridded forecast (NDFD) would be removed from WFOs and transferred to

National Centers



-         WFO staff shifting focus to being IDSS briefers rather than forecasters



These suggestions have met with vigorous disapproval from NWSEO.  One of the most critical resulting

problems would be the disconnect that would develop between the largely centralized “forecast” as

represented by the gridded database and the associated derived products, and the local Integrated

Decision Support Services (IDSS) that WFO forecasters would provide.



There are NO discussions of future staffing or office structure with this Team.  These discussions are

being held in secret by the Regional Directors and NWS HQ.  NWSEO believes staffing discussions

were previously conducted in the FIFS team but were moved elsewhere when NWSEO reps joined.



Part Timing Forecast Offices



“Part-timing” of some offices, with primary forecast and warning responsibility shifted elsewhere during

the hours of closure, and possibly during all hours.  These offices could be reduced to a liaison role with

limited IDSS offered primarily during normal business hours.



Both Dan Cobb and NWS Deputy Director, Laura Furgione have admitted that part-timing NWS Offices

is being discussed.



NWSEO is concerned the results of the upcoming NWS Shift Work Survey may be misused by NWS

management in an attempt to justify part-timing offices via getting rid of some shifts.



The National Blend of Models (NBM) Demonstration Team NWSEO advisors Barry Lambert and Dave

Bruno have expressed concern with several aspects of the NBM including:

        - Verification of the NBM versus the WFO forecasts (NDFD)

        - Overblown precipitation forecasts

        - Run-to-Run inconsistency introduced by using the NBM



NWSEO reps have objected vigorously and repeatedly to the various FIFS ideas and discussions.  The

input from NWSEO Representatives are either ignored or labeled as a “position” which is not allowed in

this process.



NWSEO Position - Response to FIFS
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-         WFOs must retain primary ownership of the gridded foundational forecast for all time periods

included within the current NDFD out to Day 7



-         Primary ownership of the forecast within the WFOs will allow these forecasts to remain focused

on local conditions, with rapid updates provided in order to provide the best possible IDSS to local

partners



Only the WFOs forecasters with extensive local knowledge can respond appropriately to quickly

changing conditions.  NCEP/WPC should provide enhanced guidance to the WFOs for use as a

common starting point in the forecast process. This guidance may include significant use of the National

Blend of Models (NBM). However, WFOs will not be required at any time to re-initialize their forecast

database with any NBM or WPC generated grids.



-         Primary watch/warning/advisory (W/W/A) responsibility must remain with the WFOs



There may be opportunities for WPC, other NCEP entities, or the Regional Operations Centers (ROCs)

to play a larger role in coordination and collaboration of W/W/A products in the future, especially for

synoptic-scale products that cover large geographic areas. However, the final decision-making authority

for any W/W/A product must always rest with the WFO.



24/7/365 meteorologist coverage must continue at all 122 existing WFOs.  This is absolutely critical for

maintenance of public safety.  NWSEO is against any part-timing WFOs.  It is recognized that future

gains in forecast production efficiency may allow for some shifts to be re-allocated to an increased IDSS

role, but there must always be a requirement to have at least one meteorologist on duty at all WFOs

24/7/365.



NWSEO will continue to oppose the current direction of FIFS with all available resources.



NBM Demo Team



Key NWSEO Concerns:



-         Verification - Need to more closely look at how it is done by stacking the deck due to algorithms.



-         Run-to-Run inconsistency



-         Lose valuable, well-collaborated data which affects IDSS



-         Can yield “flip-flopping” forecast
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-         Blend issues -Consistent use of “extreme” PoPs across 7+ days, Inability to depict sharp

gradients of elements, Low predictability with low pressure



How Can YOU Be Involved?  View the Data as NBM v1  can be seen in AWIPS now.  All of the data is

available on web along with verification against NDFD.  Provide Feedback and some offices are

officially providing feedback.  Anyone can provide feedback directly to the NBM team Via VLab if you

want to identify yourself Anonomously by emailing national.blend.feedback@noaa.g-ov



The more specific examples you can provide, the better!



--


==============================-===========

Frank Nocera

Senior Meteorologist

Weather Event Simulator (WES) & Training Team Lead



National Weather Service

445 Myles Standish Blvd.

Taunton, MA  02780

508.823.1983



http://www.weather.gov/box



facebook.com/NWSBoston



http://www.twitter.com/nwsbost-on

==============================-===========
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Weather Service - 1



National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration



Evolving the National Weather Service



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



Evolving the National Weather Service (NWS) is a significant and multifaceted organizational



effort, launched in response to Congressionally-mandated studies by the National Academy of



Sciences and the National Academy of Public Administration. This initiative, or “Evolve” as it is



commonly called, is a multiyear effort to transform the NWS into a streamlined, technologically



advanced organization with increased operational and workforce capacities. This will ultimately



contribute to building a Weather-Ready Nation, with improved weather products and services



and the ultimate goal of ensuring our nation is more prepared and resilient to high-impact



weather events.  The Evolve initiative capitalizes on emerging technologies, increases capacity



within its workforce, and produces more accurate, consistent, understandable products and



actionable information for its customers. Technological improvements include upgrades to NWS



operational models and implementing a “National Blend of Models” that produces a more



uniform and consistent forecast nationwide.



While some aspects of the Evolve initiative include improvements to NWS’ technology and



infrastructure, many of the most transformative goals involve changes to the NWS workforce.


The ongoing Operations and Workforce Analysis (OWA) is an organizational change



management assessment that is examining nearly every aspect of NWS’s operations, from



staffing models and workforce engagement to customer interaction and service delivery. The



findings of this analysis will chart the necessary evolution of the organizational structure and



workforce capabilities, resulting in improvements to weather services for users.



In order to make the NWS labor management relationship at NWS up-to-date with current labor



law and practices, it is necessary to negotiate and ratify a new Collective Bargaining Agreement



(CBA) with the NWS union, the National Weather Service Employees Organization (NWSEO). 


This is often a lengthy process, and while negotiations are conducted, provisions of the old



agreement remain in effect As a result, proposed changes will not be realized until the collective



bargaining process has concluded. The NWS CBA team has retained expert staff to manage the



negotiations and strategic communications processes.



As the Evolve initiative transitions to the next administration, close coordination and consistent



support between NWS, the Department of Commerce, and White House is necessary in order to



achieve success. 


NOAA Issue Paper-Evolve the Weather Service.docx for Printed Item: 5 ( Attachment 1 of 1)
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Weather Service - 2



BACKGROUND



Key Challenges to Date


Prior to the Evolve initiative, NWS went through a similar organizational change effort called



the Modernization of NWS in the 1990s, and it encountered challenges from its workforce,



including its labor union National Weather Service Employee Organization (NWSEO). NWS is



eager to avoid the same pitfalls that hindered the previous effort. In a general sense, the



workforce has a generational split. The older generation largely prefers the status quo for



process, whereas the younger generation wants to see changes in the organization that includes


new roles and responsibilities for forecasters. The older generation could prove resistant to some



of the process changes that NWS wants to implement. NWS has been sensitive to this fact and



works incrementally to socialize ideas for change and provide time to test out new changes



before implementing on a full scale.



There is recent history between NWS and NWSEO has been marked by regular confrontation.



When disagreements arise, parties often resort to third-party adjudication to resolve differences.



This process is slow, costly, and hinders NWS’ progress with the Evolve initiative. This bias



towards confrontation exists partly because some provisions within the existing CBA incentivize



NWSEO to favor third-party resolution. Another reason for conflict is the deterioration of trust



between the parties. To help improve the relationship, NWS management has engaged the



services of Overland Resources Group to facilitate regular “marriage counseling” sessions



between the parties. This engagement exists in addition to, and independent from, the process to



negotiate a new CBA.



Key Progress to Date



NWS has achieved recent technological advances such as upgrades to operational models, a new



water model, and advances in supercomputing. Testing of the “National Blend of Models” is



ongoing after which it will be implemented nationwide for operational forecasting. The



Operations and Workforce Analysis (OWA) has completed its first phase of assessing the NWS



and recommends actions to transform the workforce for new roles. The testing and evaluation



phase begins next to determine the viability of the recommendations.



With respect to negotiating a new CBA, NWS management notified NWSEO that it intended to



terminate the existing agreement in July 2015, and invited NWSEO to begin the process of



negotiating a new CBA. As of August 2016, the management and union negotiating teams have



nearly completed the process of establishing ground rules. It could take months or years to



conclude negotiations, depending on the issues raised during the bargaining process.



NOAA Issue Paper-Evolve the Weather Service.docx for Printed Item: 5 ( Attachment 1 of 1)
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Relevant Internal Stakeholders



The NWS workforce includes staff at national headquarters, national centers, regional



headquarters, and field offices in 122 locations across the country.  These staff members are key



stakeholders who carry out the operational mission of providing forecasts for the country and



who will feel the impact of changes. Technological advancements will allow them to do their



jobs better and more efficiently, while also changing their day-to-day experience on the job.



Organizational changes will alter their job roles and could also affect their job location, if their



position is shifted from one office to another.



Relevant External Stakeholders



Many stakeholders are monitoring NWS organizational changes for different reasons. OMB has



long believed that the NWS needs to face reductions and hopes that organizational changes will



reduce workforce levels. Some members of Congress want to ensure that the local NWS offices



in their jurisdiction do not see any relocation out of their area. Emergency managers are also



watching the organizational changes to ensure they do not lose any of the support services which



they depend on heavily. All three of these stakeholder groups should be engaged regularly when



major milestones in organizational changes are achieved. We interact with these groups on a



roughly quarterly timeline to ensure transparency and continued engagement as we socialize our



plans for organizational change.



Relevant Inter-Agency Groups



FEMA has been a fundamentally critical partner in considering these organizational changes,



because these changes focus on providing better public safety service to emergency managers.



FEMA and the emergency managers provide third party validation of the need for these



organizational changes.



Next Steps/Upcoming deadlines/Timing

Collective Bargaining Agreement:


October 2016 – Federal Services Impasses Panel (FSIP) decides whether to assert
 


jurisdiction over ground rules impasse. It is very likely they will assert jurisdiction. 


November 2016 (likely) – FSIP holds one-day mediation / arbitration meeting to settle
 


outstanding question for ground rules.



December 2016 – February 2017 (presumed) – NWS and NWSEO begins substantive
 


bargaining over a new CBA.



Operations and Workforce Analysis:



FY17-18:  Testing and evaluation of insights gained from initial OWA  assessment.
 


FY18 and beyond: Implementation of any recommendations adopted during testing and
 


evaluation.
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From:                 Brian Eiler - NOAA Federal

                         <brian.eiler@noaa.gov>

To:                     Troy Wilds - NOAA Federal

                         <troy.wilds@noaa.gov>

Cc:                     Shalini Mohleji - NOAA Federal

                         <shali.mohleji@noaa.gov>; Ciaran Clayton - NOAA Federal

                         <ciaran.clayton@noaa.gov>; Renee Stone - NOAA Federal

                         <renee.stone@noaa.gov>; Laura Morton <laura.morton@noaa.gov>;

                         Matthew Womble - NOAA Affiliate <matthew.womble@noaa.gov>



Subject:             Re: Need by 4pm today: Transition Policy Paper -- Evolving the NWS



Here attached are my edits. I just softened the language a little.



On Tue, Oct 25, 2016 at 2:19 PM, Troy Wilds - NOAA Federal <troy.wilds@noaa.gov> wrote:



Great.  Thank you, Shali et al.



On Tue, Oct 25, 2016 at 2:04 PM, Shali Mohleji - NOAA Federal <shalini.mohleji@noaa.gov> wrote:



Done! Many thanks for your guidance, Ciaran.



Troy, Matt - attached, please find a revised version with Ciaran's changes to the OWA text.



I can sign off on this now, it's good to go from my end. I'll let final clearance go to Brian after he sees

the labor comments.



Many Thanks,

Shali



Shalini Mohleji, Ph.D.



Senior Advisor to the Under Secretary

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

(202) 482-6005



On Tue, Oct 25, 2016 at 1 :27 PM, Ciaran Clayton - NOAA Federal <ciaran.clayton@noaa.gov> wrote:



Date:                 Tue Oct 25 2016 14:46:12 EDT

Attachments:     NOAA Issue Paper-Evolve the Weather Service.docx



Bcc:



Document ID: 0.7.783.16282
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I would rather the bit about OWA be significantly cut/changed:



Relevant External Stakeholders

Given NWS has a variety of stakeholders from various industries (emergency managers, private

weather companies, etc.), there is interest in monitoring OWA over the course of the next few months.



On Tue, Oct 25, 2016 at 1 :17 PM, Shali Mohleji - NOAA Federal <shalini.mohleji@noaa.gov> wrote:



Hi Team,



Renee/Brian - looking for some guidance from you.



Attached is the NWS transition doc that Brian and I submitted to DoC a few weeks ago. It's been

returned to us for review and the good news is that nobody has any issues with our writeup. They have

simply flagged three points where they want to ensure that it is okay with us if these docs were released

for public viewing.



Two of the points are NWSEO statements so I ask Renee/Brian for your thoughts on whether you're

okay with this for public release?



Ciaran/Renee -


The third is my point of how external stakeholders view OWA relocations.



Relevant External Stakeholders

Many stakeholders are monitoring NWS organizational changes for different reasons. OMB has long

believed that the NWS needs to face reductions and hopes that organizational changes will reduce

workforce levels. Some members of Congress want to ensure that the local NWS offices in their

jurisdiction do not see any relocation out of their area.



I'm okay with the statement going out because it's commonly known fact. However, if you think I should

remove the statement to be more diplomatic, I'm happy to delete it.



Thoughts? Troy/Matt need to send this back by CoB today.



Many Thanks,

Shali



Shalini Mohleji, Ph.D.



Senior Advisor to the Under Secretary

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

(202) 482-6005
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---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Matthew Womble - NOAA Affiliate <matthew.womble@noaa.gov>

Date: Mon, Oct 24, 2016 at 3:57 PM

Subject: Fwd: Transition Policy Paper -- Evolving the National Weather Service

To: Shalini Mohleji - NOAA Federal <shali.mohleji@noaa.gov>



Hi Shali,



See the message below and attached document .



Standing by to help as needed.



Thanks,

Matt



****************

Matt Womble

Knauss Marine Policy Fellow

Office of the NOAA Chief Scientist

U.S Department of Commerce

National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration

1401  Constitution Avenue, NW

Washington, DC 20230

(Tel) 202.482.8182 [Call this # on M, W, Th]

(Tel) 301 .628.1973 [Call this # on T, Fr]

(Cell) 


---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Shin, Laura (Federal) <LShin@doc.gov>

Date: Mon, Oct 24, 2016 at 3:40 PM

Subject: Transition Policy Paper -- Evolving the National Weather Service

To: "Womble, Matthew (Contractor)" <Matthew.Womble@noaa.gov>

Cc: "Wilds, Troy (Federal)" <Troy.Wilds@noaa.gov>, "Alvord, Dennis (Federal)" <DAlvord@doc.gov>,

"Patterson, Gerald (Federal)" <GPatterson1@doc.gov>



Matt –



Yet, still another…



Based on DOC leadership's review of the policy paper, there are some requested revisions to NOAA’s

Weather Service policy paper.  Please review the attached document to determine and incorporate your

edits:
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Due to tight timelines, we are requesting a 24-hour turnaround by this Tuesday COB. Once everyone

has completed these tasks, we anticipate providing the bureaus with a “final” version of your documents

ASAP. The Department will certify these and other transition documents to OMB by Tuesday,

November 1 .



We apologize for the tight timeframes. Thank you for working with us as we strive to hit the statutory

transition deadlines.



If you have any questions concerning the additional revisions, please do not hesitate to contact me.



V/R,



Laura



Laura Shin



Deputy Chief, Federal Assistance Law Division



Administration and Transactions



Office of the General Counsel



U.S. Department of Commerce



Desk:(202) 482-7953



Cell:


lshin@doc.gov



Laura Shin



Deputy Chief, Federal Assistance Law Division



Administration and Transactions



Office of the General Counsel



Page 22 of 135



(b) (6)








U.S. Department of Commerce



Desk:(202) 482-7953



Cell:


lshin@doc.gov



Confidentiality Notice:  This e-mail message is intended only for the named recipients.  It contains

information that may be confidential, privileged, attorney work product, or otherwise exempt from

disclosure under applicable law.  If you have received this message in error, are not a named recipient,

or are not the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to a named recipient, be

advised that any review, disclosure, use, dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this message or

its contents is strictly prohibited.  Please notify us immediately that you have received this message in

error, and delete the message.



--


Ciaran Clayton

Acting Deputy Chief of Staff and Director of Communications

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

(202) 482-0199, direct



 mobile

ciaran.clayton@noaa.gov



--


Troy S. Wilds

Deputy Chief of Staff - NOAA

Office: (202) 482-3193

Cell: 


National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
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1401  Constitution Ave., NW



Washington, D.C. 20230



--


Brian Eiler

Senior Advisor to the Under Secretary

NOAA: National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

202-482-7499
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From:                 Stanley Grell < t>

To:                     Undisclosed recipients: <undisclosed

                         recipients:>

Cc:



Subject:             IMPORTANT: NWSEO Response to NWS CONOPS Evolve Plan



Folks,



This is a big document, but one that should be read or looked at by all.  NWS management and

NWSEO are not on the same page as steps are taken to facilitate the OWA.



Stan



Dear Stewards,

In October, NWSEO distributed a news release and posted a press kit online detailing impacts of the

National Weather Service’s plans to consolidate offices and distribute the forecast from a national

center and part-time operations at many local forecasting offices (NWS CONOPS 2).



The NWS sent all managers a detailed list refuting NWSEO’s statements. Please know that NWSEO’s

information is gathered from OWA meetings where this plan was developed and specific data collected

by NWSEO over the years.



Below, in red text is the unedited version NWS sent to their managers including the NWSEO

statements.  Note, this sheet tells managers how to respond to your inquiries about the new NWS

CONOPS.  Please note that what you are told by your manager may not be what the manager actually

thinks about the CONOPS but is fact what they are told to think.



In black text, are NWSEO collected details and documentation that you may present during media

questions – or questions from members and non-members in your office – to verify NWSEO’s original

statements.



We realize this is a long document, a Table of Contents appears on the following page to guide you

directly to specific topics. We want you to have this documentation for your communications with media,

members and co-workers.



Thank you for your support of NWSEO.



Dan Sobien

NWSEO President



Lisa Luciani

Executive Director

National Weather Service Employees Organization

202-907-3036



Date:                 Sat Dec 03 2016 05:36:12 EST

Attachments:     16_12_02_NWSEO_ResponseNWS.pdf

                          Untitled attachment 00056.htm



Bcc:



Document ID: 0.7.783.17203
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Dear Stewards,


In October, NWSEO distributed a news release and posted a press kit online detailing impacts of



the National Weather Service’s plans to consolidate offices and distribute the forecast from a


national center and part-time operations at many local forecasting offices (NWS CONOPS 2).


The NWS sent all managers a detailed list refuting NWSEO’s statements. Please know that



NWSEO’s information is gathered from OWA meetings where this plan was developed and



specific data collected by NWSEO over the years.


Below, in red text is the unedited version NWS sent to their managers including the NWSEO



statements.  Note, this sheet tells managers how to respond to your inquiries about the new



NWS CONOPS.  Please note that what you are told by your manager may not be what the



manager actually thinks about the CONOPS but is fact what they are told to think.


In black text, are NWSEO collected details and documentation that you may present during



media questions – or questions from members and non-members in your office – to verify



NWSEO’s original statements. 


We realize this is a long document, a Table of Contents appears on the following page to guide



you directly to specific topics.


Thank you for your support of NWSEO.


Dan Sobien


NWSEO President
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NWSEO Documentation and Response


To the NWS work to refute the NWSEO Press Kit


Table of Contents


(There is some overlap in discussions, but similar topics are color-coded for ease of use.)
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use a “new tool.”
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Local Forecast Offices will no longer “own the forecast” - NBM focus on 
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20


Staffing levels at local offices will be diminished; Role of the local meteorologist 


will be diminished


23


Supercomputers and Model Upgrade vs. the Expertise of the Local Forecaster 25


Forecasts will be issued from a centralized location as a “blend” of computer 


models.


28


Removal of Local Forecast from the Forecast Model – discussions on Non- 


Meteorologists hired for traditional Meteorological positions
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Many local weather forecast offices will have reduced staffing; part-time hours. 30


Reduction in NWS positions nationwide 31


Collaboration vs. Forecasting 31


Documentation and discussions on Part-timing Weather Forecast Offices 32


The Shrinking NWS – Six years of Staffing Reductions and Shortfalls 33


NWS failure to obtain NWSEO input on staffing decisions 35


Many local weather forecast offices will become part-time offices. 38


Local Offices will no longer disseminate warnings; Warnings will come from distant 
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CONOPS 2 “Evolve” recommendations did not include input from  Forecast Office 
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40
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NWSEO Documentation and Response


To the NWS work to refute the NWSEO Press Kit


Origin of OWA (CONOPS 2) Plan- not a request by Core Partners; NWS efforts to



use a “new tool.”


The materials in this folder are for your use in responding to employee and stakeholder



questions about the issues NWSEO has recently raised.  


The Talking Points on Evolving the National Weather Service should be carefully reviewed,



understood and its basic concepts memorized.  These are the “go to” messages that employees



and others should know about the current state of the OWA project and evolution of the



National Weather Service.


The Facts About Evolve/NWSEO Claims is a more comprehensive document outlining specific



rebuttals to NWSEO claims in press kit and other materials it made available on its website.


The National Media Statement on Evolve was distributed to media across the country. Feel free



to handle inquiries about Evolve from your local media partners, if you are comfortable doing



so. You may also provide them with this national media statement and/or refer them to Susan



Buchanan in the NWS Public Affairs Office, 301-427-9000.


National Weather Service Responses to NWSEO Misstatements on Evolve


Introduction


Recently, the National Weather Service Employees Organization (NWSEO) issued several



documents that mischaracterize parts of the recent National Weather Service Operations and



Workforce Analysis (OWA), part of the Evolving the NWS initiative.  The following facts address



specific claims made by NWSEO in these documents.


NWSEO Claim:


Rather than filling the nearly 650 vacant positions in the National Weather Service, on



September 28 the agency’s senior leadership informed employees that it has decided to



automate the forecast and warning process, further reduce field staff, and close an unspecified



number of the nation’s 122 Weather Forecast Offices at night. The agency’s plans are similar to



a downsizing plan called “CONOPS” (or “Concept of Operations”) proposed by the NWS during



the Bush Administration and rejected by Congress. See Government Accountability Office,



Weather Forecasting: NWS Is Planning To Improve Service and Gain Efficiency, But Impacts Of



Potential Changes Are Not Yet Known, GAO Report-06-792 (July 2006).


Facts:
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NWSEO attempts to confuse facts in this claim. They are addressed separately here:


NWS is not automating the forecast and warning process. 


? In fact, NWS is creating a more robust collaborative forecast process that provides



forecast consistency demanded by NWS’ core partners in the Emergency Management



community who make life-saving decisions based on the information and decisions support



services NWS provides. 


? The Collaborative Forecast Process relies on the 1,200 local forecasters.


? Forecast staff at WFOs will continue to contribute to the forecast, working in



collaboration with other offices and centers. 


NWSEO Documentation and Response– No requests by Core Partners 


When asked by the NWSEO of a list of core partners demanding a more consistent forecast or



more specifically complaining about special consistency, management’s response was that list



did not exist (see email exchange below).
---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: XXXXXXXXXXXXX - NOAA Federal <XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX>


Date: Mon, Jul 18, 2016 at 4:12 PM


Subject: RE: IDSS Core Partner Responses?


To: XXXXXXXXXXXXX - NOAA Federal <xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx>, XXXXXXXXXXX- NOAA Federal



<xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx> XXXXXXXXXXX - NOAA Federal  XXXXXXXXXXX


Hi XXXXXXX,


 


We do not have a list of specific feedback given to the agency from core partners or deep relationship



partners. As XXXXXXX, indicated on that call, she did not believe a list of this information existed, and I



do not know of any specific list.


 


Regardless, the point of our NBM demo is not to solve that problem. Our challenge is that we’ve been



given this new tool, and we are to look into how best NWS can make use of it within operations. I



couched this in the updated NBM Demo sub-team plan  document, found at



https://docs.google.com/document/d/1rY4waVBKjQ20wBP4WzkKPKIBht3gHxeyYNLi648TP3w/edit#,



which I put together for our sub-team’s consideration and comments today. 


 


Our purpose is to demonstrate the new tool’s capabilities. Why it was developed, and issues related to



current processes not meeting our customer’s expectations, are good background info but they are not



the drivers behind the work we’re doing. 


 


A few other comments to your questions posed to XXXXXXX,  XXXXXXXX and I:


 Could you please elaborate on why you think this team and associated efforts are "without



complete transparency to internal and external stakeholders"? The Engagement Strategy is the



document that outlines exactly how we engage stakeholders and will lay out exactly how that is to be



done both internally and externally. We’re just starting the effort now – guess I am unclear what could



have been done prior to starting.
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 Once the Engagement Strategy is adopted and the NBMDT begins executing, there will be



additional ways for stakeholders to see this information. For internal stakeholders, we are already using



all-hands emails, Insider updates and a website on the NWS Insider dedicated to this effort. These



methods have been underway since January, and have given transparency to the team’s



work.   Information flow will grow deeper with the adoption of the Engagement Strategy., both to



internal and external stakeholders. 


 The 10-102 process requires us to have public comment and review periods.   There will be at



least 3 public comment and review periods for the NBM that will run for 3 months each starting with the



V2.0 release in September and continue with each subsequent version release. 


 


We are at the very beginning of the NBM demo process and are just now getting to the point where we



can fully advertise it. It is a process and we are trying to work it correctly. Hope this clarifies the



questions you had below. 


 


XXXXXXX,


 
From: XXXXXXXXXXXX - NOAA Federal [mailto:xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx] 


Sent: Monday, July 18, 2016 1:19 PM


To: XXXXXXX,- NOAA Federal; XXXXXXX, - NOAA Federal; XXXXXXXXXXXX, - NOAA Federal


Subject: IDSS Core Partner Responses?


 


 


Good afternoon XXXXXXX,


 


I'm writing to see if there has been any progress obtaining a list of complaints and suggestions from our



core Regional and National IDSS partners. This was an action item a few NBMDT calls back, and one that



NWSEO has requested on multiple occasions. 


Since so much of this NBM Demo Plan involves the quality (i.e., apparent spatial "Consistency") of the



NDFD grids, it's not only logical, but also highly informative to list and clarify such user input. 


It's alarming to see that the NWS is embarking on an internal, scatter-shot plan without such input to



greatly assist in designing and selling such a plan, and without complete transparency to internal and



external stakeholders.    


 


This will allow the NBMDT to work toward a unified and meaningful goal, that will provide the best



detail, spatial and temporal consistency, and most importantly, "Accuracy and value" to our core and



deep core partners, and the American pubic to help create the best possible Weather Ready Nation. 


I look forward to seeing this valuable information soon.


Thanks for your time and assistance in this matter, and have a nice afternoon.


XXXXXXX,


NWSEO Background on the OWA Fully Integrated Field Structure (FIFS) Teams


As to the forecast process the FIFS team proposed, over NWSEO objections, and the OWC



approved, over NWSEO objections, that WPC would put out one NWS forecast for all but the



first period or two of the forecast package.  The below slides are the pertinent ones for the
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OWC meeting. NOTE: The local impacts/threat are based on NCEP and NWC products – NOT the



expertise of local forecasters.


NCEP – National Centers for Environmental Prediction


NWC – National Water Center


WPC 


IDSS- Impact-based Decision Support Services – working with core partners to help them make



the best decisions in severe weather and emergencies.


WFO – Weather Forecast Offices (122 local forecast offices nationwide)


CONOPS – Concept of Operations, a 2006 plan to consolidate the NWS that failed due to the



likelihood of a degradation of service. 


Slide 8 from Attached 2016-06-09 OWC Briefing
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Slide 10 from Attached 2016-06-09 OWC Briefing



An interesting note is that the FIFs slides evolved from referring to WFOs doing IDSS to field



offices doing IDSS taking the word forecast out of their name.  The plan that the FIFS team



presented would provide a window (approximately one hour) for local offices to provide input



to WPC of local effects.  Ownership of the forecast however would belong to WPC, in other



words whether to include the local WFO’s input or not is WPC’s decision.  


 


16_12_02_NWSEO_ResponseNWS.pdf for Printed Item: 8 ( Attachment 1 of 2)



Page 44 of 135








8


NWSEO Concern over loss of jobs


NWS Comments


NWS is not reducing field staff nor closing offices. 


? In fact, the Evolve initiative’s blueprint for change specifically states that no jobs will be



eliminated. They might be relocated, but no jobs will be lost.


? The vision of the collaborative forecast process and the fully integrated field structure



do not reduce staff numbers. They envision a reallocation of staff and staff time to provide



better service.


? The blueprint for increased NWS collaboration through the fully integrated field



structure is expected to increase staff flexibility and free up staff time for enhanced Impact-


based Decision Support Service to partners.


NWSEO Documentation


We take NWS at their word that no net jobs will be lost.  Having said that if you work in a



community; you have roots in that community, your spouse works there, your kids go to school



there, and your church is there.  If you are given a directed reassignment to another location



perhaps hundreds of miles away, for many people they will chose to not go and therefore for



those people they will lose their jobs.  For the NWS to say they will not give you a directed



reassignment we believe to be disingenuous.  It would be unethical and perhaps illegal for them



to continue to pay you if you have no meaningful duties at a location just because you chose



not to leave it.  So while no net jobs will be lost, certainly some people will likely lose their jobs



as a result of the CONOPS 2.


Vacancies: Documentation of More than 650 NWS Vacancies
NWS Comments


NWSEO vacancy information is incorrect.


? NWSEO often uses a vacancies number that is inaccurate.  NWS can only fund positions



that fall within appropriated levels.  As of August 20, 2016, NWS had:


? 376 funded vacancies, of which


? 313 active recruitments were underway.


? NWS estimates approximately half of these recruitments will result in internal hires.


? NWS has, for years, struggled with filling vacancies due to a combination of budget



uncertainties faced by all federal agencies that was exacerbated by the Sequestration and



subsequent NOAA hiring freeze in place until January 31, 2014, and execution challenges within



NOAA’s Workforce Management Office.  


? NOAA and NWS have been aggressively addressing the vacancies and hiring backlog. 


NWSEO Documentation


Below is a slide from a document NOAA submitted to Congress concerning vacant positions in



NOAA.  You will note as of March 1, 2016, NOAA informed Congress there were 654 vacant
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positions in the NWS of the 4,874 appropriated positions within the National Weather Service.


The NWS’s documentation to Congress directly contradicts their above claim.   


Below is the NWSEO’s table of vacancies as of 10/21/2016.  You will see there are still 650



vacancies in the NWS not the 376 the NWS claims.
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Region/Organization Offices Total Bargaining Unit Management Total



Eastern Region WFOs 23 23 60 9 69



Southern Region WFOs 32 32 62 6 68



Central Region WFOs 38 38 78 5 83



Western Region WFOs 24 24 54 3 57



Alaska Region WFOs 3 3 13 3 16



Pacific Region WFOs 2 2 8 2 10



River Forecast Centers 13 13 23 3 26



Center Weather Service Units 20 21 3 1 4



National Centers for Environmental Prediction 10 10 65 9 74



Weather Service Offices / DCOs 15 15 12 0 12



Port Meteorological Officers 14 14 1 0 1



Weather Service Headquarters 1 1 164 19 183



Regional Headquarters 5 6 30 6 36



Regional Operations Centers 0 6



Pacific Tsunami Warning Center 1 1 2 1 3



National Tsunami Warning Center 1 1 2 0 2



International Tsunami Information Center 1 1 1 1 2



Alaska Aviation Weather Unit 1 1 1 0 1



Spaceflight Meteorology 1 1 0 1 1



FAA Academy 0 1



FAA Command Center 1 1 2 0 2



NWS total 206 215 581 69 650



WFO total 122 122 275 28 303



NWS vacancy summary - updated 10/21/2016 Pending vacancies are included in the totals below
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Below is the FY 17 NOAA Budget Submission to Congress.  You will note that in its submission to



Congress, the NWS has budget authority for 4,874 positions; this is exactly the same number of



appropriated positions as the March 1 document of p.7, where the NWS claimed 654 vacant



positions.  That does not include positions funded by other agencies such as CWSU



meteorologists.  This number exactly agrees with the NWSEO numbers and is the basis for our



claim of 650 vacancies.  The NWS’s claim of 376 funded vacancies is playing loose with the facts



and if the NWS has only 376 funded vacancies it is because that have chosen to spend the



money for those positions elsewhere, such as expensive contracts to develop this CONOPS.
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The graph below shows the decrease in NWS Bargaining Unit Employees from 2010 to 2016.


NWSEO stands behind our vacancy spreadsheet numbers, which are confirmed by some of



management’s own internal documents.


Again, sequestration and the associated hiring freeze ended almost three years ago. Why is no



one being held accountable for “execution challenges” which have lingered within WFMO for



years now? There are NWS “emergency essential” forecaster positions nationwide which have



been vacant anywhere from six months to 2+ years. There are more vacancies at weather



forecast offices today than in November 2015 and even January 2016. Bottom line, the number



of vacant positions have increased year over year, instead of decreased. These facts do not



indicate that NOAA/NWS is “aggressively addressing the vacancies and hiring backlog”.


Below are two and a half years’ worth of news articles.  In some the agency agrees with the



union’s numbers, in some they disagree.  In all they state the agency is actively working to fill



vacant positions, exactly as they state in this document.  However Two and a half years later



there are as many or more vacant positions in the NWS.  


Greenwire May 14, 2014


“Vaccaro confirmed the union's number as roughly accurate, though he said he could



not provide an official tally of vacancies.”


16_12_02_NWSEO_ResponseNWS.pdf for Printed Item: 8 ( Attachment 1 of 2)



Page 49 of 135








13


Chris Vaccaro, a spokesman for NWS, said that the agency is working as fast as it can to



fill such positions. So far, he said, NWS has posted job announcements for 200 positions,



prioritizing critical positions such as lead forecasters. But he acknowledged that some of



those positions are filled internally, merely switching one vacancy for another. He said



he could not say how many employees the agency has added to its workforce since it



lifted the hiring freeze in January; that number, he said, is a moving target. "It's been a



continuous stream in the hiring process -- from getting announcements on the street to



getting the list of best applicants to doing interviews to getting hired," he said. Vaccaro



confirmed the union's number as roughly accurate, though he said he could not provide



an official tally of vacancies. But he emphasized that "every role in every shift has always



been covered," even if managers have to step into positions themselves or forecasters



from other offices filling in. "Not at one point has the Weather Service dropped the ball



on forecasts," he said. “


May 5, 2014 NBC 5 Dallas (At the time there were 500 vacancies)


http://www.nbcdfw.com/investigations/Many-National-Weather-Service-Offices-Short-


Handed-This-Storm-Season-258023201.html  


“The NWS won’t confirm or deny the total number of vacant jobs on the union’s list but



told NBC 5 Investigates it’s aggressively trying to hire at least 190 people right now



including 43 forecasters to work in local weather service offices.”


May 6, 2014 http://www.nbcnews.com/news/investigations/budget-cuts-mean-weather-


forecaster-shortage-tornado-alley-n97341  


“NBC owned and operated station KXAS in Dallas/Ft. Worth has acquired union



documents showing as many as 500 vacancies at NWS offices around the country,



including nearly 200 unfilled jobs for front-line meteorologists….


Last summer a government report found “critical staff shortages” affected the



weather service’s response to Hurricane Sandy, which battered the East Coast in



October 2012.”


NBC Houston KPRC May 6, 2014


http://www.click2houston.com/news/national-weather-service-staffing-shortage  


“NWS spokesperson Chris Vaccaro says, “The NWS is working to fill almost 200 jobs.””


Sept. 30, 2014 Philadelphia Inquirer - Tony Wood


http://www.philly.com/philly/blogs/weather/Weather-warning.html  


“National Weather Service spokesman Chris Vaccaro said that of the 31 Eastern Region



vacancies for which it has funding, the weather service is in the process of filling 27 of



them.”


Energywire PM: NOAA: 2 NWS technicians worked 7 straight months without a day off.


November 14, 2014


http://www.eenews.net/eenewspm/stories/1060008967  


Also at http://nwseo.org/media_center_Archives.php  
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““Agencywide, he said, officials "are doing everything we can to expedite the filling of



vacancies within our ranks." That includes a new contract with the Office of Personnel



Management to speed up the process.”


Two National Weather Service employees worked seven consecutive months without a



day off, according to an email from the agency's director that addresses the



consequences of "budget uncertainty."


NWS Director Louis Uccellini sent the email yesterday to follow up on accusations made



at last week's All-Hands Town Hall webinar. At the meeting, the head of the agency's



union referenced employees working "at least seven straight months of rotating shift



work" at a weather forecasting office in American Samoa.


The National Weather Service Employees Organization has long railed against what it



says are widespread vacancies throughout the agency. Earlier this year, union officials



asserted that 14 percent of positions were vacant; NWS officials say they are filling them



as quickly as they can and are on an upward trend.”
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2016


Palm Beach Post – Kimberly Miller 


http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/news/weather/weather-service-vacancies-concern-during-


severe-we/np9x9/  


January 25, 2016


National Weather Service officials recognize more hiring is needed, although the



agency’s vacancy numbers may not exactly match those of the union. In a statement,



the service said there are five vacancies in Miami because of retirements and transfers.


“We continue to work through the hiring process to fill all operationally critical



vacancies across the National Weather Service, and staffing shortages haven’t affected



our ability to provide forecasts,” the statement read in part. “To assist in covering



forecast shifts while we fill these vacancies, we have provided meteorologists on



rotational assignment to Miami from other forecast offices.”


2015


December 28, 2015 


NBC 5 Investigates: Staff Shortage Left NWS Scrambling To Cover Tornado Outbreak


http://www.nbcdfw.com/investigations/NBC5-Investigates-Staff-Shortage-Left-NWS-


Scrambling-To-Cover-Tornado-Outbreak-363607261.html  


For more than a year, NBC 5 Investigates has reported on hundreds of vacant jobs at



NWS offices across the country. By the union’s count, there are currently more than 600



vacant positions nationwide, including hundreds of forecaster jobs in local offices



responsible for issuing critical weather warnings.


For months the weather service has blamed the shortage on federally mandated budget



cuts, and then on short staffing in the agency’s own human resources department.


Weather service spokeswoman Susan Buchanan said weather service administrators are



actively working to fill the vacant forecaster jobs in the Dallas-Fort Worth office.


Source: NBC 5 Investigates: Staff Shortage Left NWS Scrambling To Cover Tornado Outbreak |


NBC 5 Dallas-Fort Worth http://www.nbcdfw.com/investigations/NBC5-Investigates-Staff-


Shortage-Left-NWS-Scrambling-To-Cover-Tornado-Outbreak-363607261.html#ixzz4PM3Rj1o1  


Follow us: @nbcdfw on Twitter |  NBCDFW on Facebook


TODAY Show NBC May 15, 2015


Concerns grow over Weather Service staff shortage


Scott Friedman (KXAS)


“The weather service says it’s trying to hire 190 forecasters now.”


http://www.today.com/video/today/55138865/#55138865  


National Weather Service Office in Fort Worth Understaffed This Storm Season


May 14, 2015 – Position vacant for more than a year.


http://www.nbcdfw.com/investigations/National-Weather-Service-Office-in-Fort-Worth-


Understaffed-This-Storm-Season-303814841.html  
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In a statement, National Weather Service spokesman, Chris Vaccaro, wrote, “Recent delays we



have encountered are a result of constraints within NOAA's human resources division, and not



related to budget.”


Vaccaro added, “…we're actively filling vacant positions throughout the organization as quickly



as possible.


NWS “Evolve-OWA” is CONOPS 2


NWS comment


The OWA project and CONOPS program cannot and should not be compared.


? The OWA project was, in fact, supported by Congress


? The OWA project and its recommendations were a direct result of two Congressionally



mandated studies that recognized the NWS’ need for change.


? To accomplish the recommendations from these studies, NWS contracted with



McKinsey and Company to conduct the OWA - an independent, agency wide analysis.


NWSEO Documentation and Response: 


There are many similarities between CONOPS version 1 proposed in 2006 and CONOPS version



2 proposed in 2016.  CONOPS 1 proposed using “Clustered Peer Offices” with a super WFO



within each cluster.  The other WFOs would still issue warnings and local forecasts but with a



reduced number of people on shift.  Additional workload would be dynamically shifted among



the peer offices.  In CONOPS 2016, this current version, the NWS has been less transparent



about their plan likely because it is even more extreme.  They have mentioned there will be



their version on Cluster Peer Offices by stating that some WFOs will be part-timed and other



24/7 with the first period or two of the forecast being done at the 24/7 offices.  CONOPS 2016



is even more extreme than the 2006 CONOPS in that it centralizes all forecasts and warning



beyond the first period or two to the WPC.  Below are posted slides from then NWS Assistant



Administrator D.L. Johnson of a 2006 presentation to the National Weather Association



showing many similarities between what was proposed then and what is proposed now.


 


16_12_02_NWSEO_ResponseNWS.pdf for Printed Item: 8 ( Attachment 1 of 2)



Page 53 of 135








17


16_12_02_NWSEO_ResponseNWS.pdf for Printed Item: 8 ( Attachment 1 of 2)



Page 54 of 135








18


16_12_02_NWSEO_ResponseNWS.pdf for Printed Item: 8 ( Attachment 1 of 2)



Page 55 of 135








19


16_12_02_NWSEO_ResponseNWS.pdf for Printed Item: 8 ( Attachment 1 of 2)



Page 56 of 135








20


Local Forecast Offices will no longer “own the forecast” - NBM focus on



“consistency over accuracy”


NWS Comments  


NWSEO Claim:


Presently, the professional meteorologists at each forecast office utilize their years, if not



decades, of experience with local climatological conditions and weather patterns to prepare 7-


day forecasts for their area of responsibility, which averages a population of 3 million. In so



doing, these forecasters consult various computer model outputs and resolve conflicts between



inconsistent models based on updated weather observations and their knowledge of the



reliability of competing models under particular local conditions. 


Fact: 


These statements are true, but are used to bolster a claim that these skill sets will be “taken



away,” which is simply untrue.
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? Local Weather Forecast Offices (WFOs) will continue to have the “last touch” before a



forecast is published until tests and evaluations and other ways of doing it are proven to be



equally accurate.  


? The NWS recognizes the great value and importance of local WFOs in providing local



knowledge to local communities. For this very reason, a central tenet of the OWA



recommendations is to make more time available for local impact through the “last touch” on



the forecast and through the provision of Impact-based Decision Support Services (IDSS) to the



community.  


? The Collaborative Forecast Process is intended to streamline the process of consulting



various model outputs NWSEO describes in its claim. Streamlining this process gives forecasters



more time to deliver IDSS to partners.


? WFOs will work in closer collaboration with other offices and National Centers.


? WFO staff must keep local situation awareness -- local presence and expertise is



prerequisite to delivering IDSS to partners.


NWSEO Documentation and Response


This “last touch” mantra was never discussed in the FIFS meetings the NWSEO representatives



participated in.  Note also that their “last touch” promise is time-limited until “other ways of



doing it are proven to be equally accurate.” Management’s version of “equally accurate” during



FIFS discussions relied on use of URMA verification, which is known (particularly in areas of



complex terrain or strong gradients in forecast fields such as along the West Coast) to discount



actual point observations in favor of model first-guess fields. Therefore any changes that the



forecaster makes to the model guidance, even if those changes are supported/verified by actual



point data, will score as inferior to the model, since under URMA the model essentially verifies



itself.


Also regarding the “last touch,” it is difficult to give that management claim much credibility



when we already have reports from Central Region that local forecasters are being highly



discouraged or possibly even prohibited at certain WFOs from making changes to the raw



“Central Region Superblend” model output, which is being automatically loaded into the



forecast databases of those offices (wiping out the existing forecast) twice daily from the



second forecast period out through Day 7.


Management’s response does not address a central concern of NWSEO which was raised on



multiple FIFS calls – how can there be assurance that forecasters will maintain proper local



situational awareness when they have been largely removed from the forecast process? Even



the “last touch” process described above is a far cry from the level of forecaster involvement in



the current forecast process.  Inevitably, removal of local forecasters from the forecast process



beyond some “collaboration” and a “last touch” will result in degradation of the very local



knowledge necessary to provide high-quality IDSS.
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The NWSEO FIFS representative made this point about local situational awareness in written



comments submitted during a cross-workstream Google hangout session after the OWA call on



6/29/2016:


Question 2: What is the biggest cultural hurdle in terms of moving forward with the pyramid



CFP idea?  (i.e. Accuracy, Local Impacts, Ownership, Sci & Tech, Consistent Messaging, other)


My answer: Disconnect between the forecast and the messaging/IDSS flowing from the forecast.



If the forecast is largely produced from WPC with WFO input minimized as much as possible



(which appears to be the  direction that FIFS is going), how will WFO forecasters maintain the



proper SA for good IDSS? What happens when the WFO or a group of WFOs completely



disagrees with the WPC forecast and is unable to resolve those differences through



collaboration, then is left to provide IDSS on a forecast they totally disagree with? This is a



major culture/forecast ownership issue. Expecting forecasters to passively observe the



weather/forecast situation on D2D when their opportunity for input to the forecast is



deliberately minimized, but yet maintain good SA and understanding of the forecast is not



realistic.


Posted below is a repeat of an above slide, this is what was presented by the FIFS team and



agreed to by the OWC and the last specific information the NWS has provided to the union



about its plans. According to this slide and the 2016 plans, ownership of the forecast will belong



to WPC and whether to include the local WFO’s input or not is WPC’s decision.  Note: the NWS



is focusing on a “consistent” forecast over an accurate forecast.


In this plan forecasts and warnings will be done by National Centers, “Field Offices will do IDSS



based on common operating picture.”  While the NWS is being very opaque about their plans



for the future of the WFOs, for instance making vague comments about part-timing some
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offices.  The OWC agreed to a testing timeline that makes it very clear they want to test doing



days 1 through 7 of the forecast from a central location (see the following slide).


Slide 16 from Attached 2016-06-09 OWC Briefing
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Staffing levels at local offices will be diminished; Role of the local meteorologist



will be diminished
NWS Comments


NWSEO Claim:


The weather models that the forecasters consult lack the resolution to handle complex terrain,



so forecasters utilize their local knowledge and expertise to forecast for mountainous



communities where necessary. Forecasters on the next shift start with and modify the previous



shift’s forecast based on updated observations and changing conditions, and add a new 12-hour



period to the back end of the 7-day forecast. As an essential part of this process, the local



forecasters maintain “situational awareness” of radar and changing weather conditions, and



issue watches and warnings of emerging severe weather when needed.


Fact: 


As in the previous response, local presence most certainly matters and the Evolve initiative



works to enhance this. In addition, evolving the NWS is one of only four agency priorities for



NOAA and this includes major technological advancements that will allow the NWS models to



improve spatial and technological resolution


NWSEO Response 


    NWS does not guarantee (anywhere in writing) similar staffing levels, or even a presence of



these same local Weather Forecast and Warning Offices (WFOs) to continue critical IDSS



service, which ensures timely actions by Core and Deep Core Partners (such as state and local



Emergency Managers, law enforcement, school districts and the general public).   NWS's Senior



Management has already been insincere in their efforts to meet these requirements. NWS



Senior Management has allowed, and/or created severe staffing shortages throughout many of



its 122 WFOs over the past several years (stripping them of their injection of local forecaster



expertise), which severely hampers efforts for "Robust internal and external engagement" with



Deep Core partners going forward.    


Note that NWS completely fails to address our statement regarding the models’ difficulty with



handling complex terrain. NWSEO FIFS Team members made this point repeatedly during FIFS



calls – most of their testing of model blends so far has been over flat interior terrain (i.e. the



non-mountainous portions of Central Region). Our belief is that NBM or other model blends as



they are currently constructed will be disastrously bad over complex terrain, along land/marine



interfaces, or in areas with tight gradients of forecast fields (Appalachians, most of the Western



CONUS, Great Lakes, West Coast, Alaska, and Hawaii).
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Supercomputers and model upgrades cannot replace the expertise of the local



forecaster; Under the NWS CONOPS 2, staffing levels and role of the local



forecaster will be diminished.
(This is a complex issue and so there are several red NWS statements followed by NWSEO



documentation.)


? Thanks to the ongoing and long-lasting commitment and support of Congress, the NWS



continues to advance the science and technology through new supercomputers, better data



assimilation, and model upgrades.


NWSEO Response


NWS management has severely failed on this initiative, as its "Core" GFS model has fallen from



2nd to 4th place in rank among other International models (such as the ECMWF and it's



associated ensembles that accurately predicted the track of devastating Hurricane Sandy



several days out). Rather than focusing the NWS model developer's expertise on one (or a few)



model(s) to serve their stated, but quite simplistic goal of "One event, one forecast", NWS



Senior Management and Scientific Leaders have opted to continue their disjointed, scatter-shot



approach by developing, maintaining and running multiple models on various spatial and



temporal scales. While each of these models has great value to varying weather event types



and duration, attempts to "Blend" them with the 4th-rated GFS core model, creates



"inflexibility" in the forecast, while leading to internal boundary issues that pollute or corrupt



the data on a spatial and temporal scale, and create great inconsistency and unwanted



confusion for our valued partners. NWS meteorologists with years or decades of "local



experience and expertise" are needed to constantly monitor, adjust, and convey this critical



data to Core and Deep Core Partners (with the goal of the public's safety first in mind, rather



than the overly-simplistic and often inaccurate information resulting from the NWS



management's stated approach).  


 NWSEO strongly believes in creating the ability to meet the growing needs of IDSS throughout



the country by fully staffing the 122 WFOs with the our current blend of Expert Meteorologists



and Support Staff (comprised of Electronic Technicians and ITOs), while launching an initiative



to create "additional" positions such as "Social Media Experts" and "IDSS consultants."          


? The scientific expertise of NWS meteorologists and hydrologists are second-to-none,



they are what make NWS the best weather service provider in the world.


NWSEO Response


There are several facets of the Evolve Initiative that would seriously reduce the number of NWS



meteorologists available locally at WFOs to recognize critical and often life-threatening weather



situations, and share this expertise via a timely, accurate, consistent and trusted message



through increasingly important relationships and IDSS to our Deep Core partners (including the



General Public).  
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? NWS partners expect -- in fact, demand -- a high level of scientific expertise and rely on



that expertise to help them make decisions.


NWSEO Response


NWSEO consistently strives to meet the growing demands or our Core and Deep Core



Partners.   NWSEO envisions creating and conveying highly-valued and critical weather



information and customer service beyond the simplistic "One Event, One Forecast" stance of



Senior NWS management by developing and maintaining a flexible, temporally and spatially



detailed forecast database that's capable of being quickly adjusted (using the input and



expertise of local Meteorologists) to meet the diverse and changing needs of ALL partners that



exist on a National, Regional and Local level. NWSEO recognizes that the unbeatable



combination of "Local presence" and the globally unsurpassed   "Expertise" of our



meteorologists will create the best possible service to partners on ALL levels in meeting the



stated NWS initiative of creating the best possible Weather Ready Nation.      


? Local meteorological knowledge and related situational awareness will always be a vital



factor for delivering IDSS. Enabling local knowledge, relationships, and service to be maximized



is a core function of the Evolve initiative.


NWSEO Response


NWSEO completely agrees with this statement, but goes a few steps further in meeting this



highly valued objective. NWSEO sees it vital that NWS Management quickly works toward



returning staffing at WFOs to full levels that were noted several years ago, prior to the onset of



the current severe staffing shortages.  


 There's nothing stated that guarantees the combination of the 3 crucial elements noted by



NWS management, which are:


1) local WFO presence, 


2) the actual number of WFOs, and 


3) the exact staffing levels of the Expert Meteorologists (and supporting Bargaining Unit



staff) at these offices (WFOs).  


NWS Comments


NWSEO Claim:


The NWS has decided to eliminate local forecasting, and with it the thousands of years of



cumulative experience of the nation’s 1,200 local forecasters.


Fact: 


This is simply false.  


? The above facts convey the NWS and the “Evolve” commitment to enhance local



knowledge and presence.


? The Collaborative Forecast Process relies on the 1,200 local forecasters.  
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? Forecast staff at WFOs will continue to contribute to the forecast, working in



collaboration with other offices and centers. 


NWSEO Response


Again the NWS is being purposely opaque about their intentions.  They mention they will need



900 to 1200 forecasters to achieve their plan.  There are approximately 1900 operational WFO



positions in the NWS.  If they do away with local forecasting which is certainly implied in their



slides, are they saying they only need 900 to 1200 operational employees?  They have



mentioned in webinars of their plans to part-time some offices.  Weather forecasting is very



clearly a 24/7 function.  That along with the FIFS and OWC decisions certainly implies that the



only function of the part time offices will be IDSS and not a forecast function.  FIFS team



discussions certainly gave final ownership of the forecast to WPC allowing local offices to only



collaborate any changes they want to make.  The entire emphasis of this 2016 CONOPS is to



make a more consistent forecast, which in itself implies less local variations.  When Assistant



Administrator Louis Uccellini was asked who will own the forecast, meaning who will have the



final say, his response the NWS will own the forecast.
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Forecasts will be issued from a centralized location as a “blend” of computer



models.


NWS Comment


NWSEO Claim:


Forecasts will be issued from a centralized location and will be a “blend” of the various



computer models. Ironically, this “blend” will not include the European Center for Medium



Range Forecasting model, which is the most reliable even for U.S. weather, and which



forecasters can now consult when preparing their local forecasts. This blend of models will not



adjust for local weather effects or terrain, which are currently accounted for in local forecast



preparation.


Fact: 


NWS has never said it will centralize forecasts.  As noted previously:


? The National Blend of Models will serve as a nationally consistent starting point for the



gridded forecast, not the end. It will drive seamless gridded predictions that will be used to



create more consistent and skill products - something that our core EM partners have



requested, and was highlighted in NAPA’s findings - and will be the basis for improved IDSS.


? Local Weather Forecast Offices (WFOs) will continue to have the “last touch” before the



forecast is published until tests and evaluations and other ways of doing it are proven to be



equally accurate.  


? WFOs will work in closer collaboration with other offices and National Centers to create



a more efficient forecasting process in terms of hours spent developing and accurate and



consistent forecast.


? WFO staff must keep local situation awareness -- local presence and expertise is



prerequisite to delivering IDSS to partners.


NWSEO Response


This is simply not what has been presented to the NWSEO.  In all briefings the last touch will be



at WPC.  Local forecasters will be allowed to collaborate with WPC before the forecast is issued



but it is WPC’s call.  How can a WFO have a last touch on a forecast if it is closed, as is planned



for the majority of WFOs. The Weather Forecast Office title is no being changed to “Service



Delivery Outlet”, taking the word forecast from their name.
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Removal of Local Forecast from the Forecast Model – discussions on Non-


Meteorologists hired for traditional Meteorological positions


NWS Comments


NWSEO Claim:


According to the National Research Council, “local knowledge of phenomena, terrain, and



infrastructure is an important factor in forecasting, and it needs to be accounted for in any



potential regionalization of functions.” The Council therefore found that:


[A]n in-depth statistical analysis of the relative comparison of the local product to the NWP-


[numerical weather prediction] produced guidance will be necessary before the NWS considers



moving some or all of this public forecasting task to regional centers.


Such a consideration would include a statistical analysis of the added value of the human



element in day-to-day fair weather forecasting, as well as the value of experience in such



forecasting in improving severe weather forecast skill.


(National Research Council, Weather Services for the Nation: Becoming Second to None



(National Academies Press, 2012) at 42.) However, no such statistical analysis demonstrating



that an automated forecast based on computer models is as reliable as the experienced human



forecaster with local knowledge has been conducted.


Fact: 


The NWS, through the Evolve initiative or otherwise, has not made any claims that a computer



model -- or even a blend of models -- is as reliable or as accurate as forecasts involving human



scientific expertise.  The “claim” seems to bolster a perception that the NWS would be



removing the human element from the forecast process, which is simply false.


? The National Blend of Models will serve as a nationally consistent starting point for the



gridded forecast: it does not preclude local knowledge.


? The Evolve process is designed to test and evaluate the value of modeling on forecast



process and report the results, before any decisions are made. 


? This is a multi-year process; there will be many tests and evaluations made of related



components in the Collaborative Forecast Process that must be made.


NWSEO Response


The plan is to remove the local forecast element from the forecast process and replace it with



collaboration. NWSEO FIFS Team members distinctly note that there were discussions of



possibly hiring non-meteorologists for some WFO / local service outlet positions that have



historically been filled by meteorologists in the future.  This begs the questions, “How would



non-meteorologists be anything other than briefers at one of these local service outlets?”
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 No one argues that the NBM will be a very useful tool for forecasters but it should be just that -


a tool.  Using the NBM as a mandated starting point will be very inefficient costing the NWS and



thereby the taxpayers.  


We are certainly in favor of common starting grids, from an accurate model that has been



tested thoroughly. We just want the caveat that they not be mandated for all



circumstances.  For instance, if a national model or blend of models or even human created



starting grids have a very poor solution for an area, mandating that a forecaster clear an



already produced representative forecast and replace it with a poorly forecast common



operating picture - only to readjust that grid back to the original more accurate forecast would



be a waste of time and taxpayer money. 


Many Local Forecast Offices will have reduced staffing; part-time hours


NWS Comment


NWSEO Claim:


The number of positions at the local forecast offices will be reduced from approximately 2,800



now to between 900 and 1,200. The NWS also plans to automate weather balloon launches,



now being conducted by paraprofessional hydrometeorological technicians, whose positions



could be eliminated. An undisclosed number of offices would be closed at night, and others are



to be staffed by a single person on shift at some or all times. The remaining staff will be



relegated to “interpreting” the forecasts developed elsewhere and briefing local emergency



management personnel, which the NWS calls “decision support services.” It is unclear whether



this residual staff will be professional meteorologists since their primary responsibility will no



longer be forecasting.


Facts: 


These claims obfuscate the facts laid-out in recent webinars and other communications with



staff, emergency managers, media, Congress, industry partners -- and even directly with



NWSEO representatives themselves (although the union’s president sent a local delegate to a



briefing specifically designed for national union leadership) -- about the results of the OWA and



the blueprint for change.  


? It is important to recognize the the NWS is only now entering a multi-year test and



evaluation phase.  


? Some of the recommendations outlined in the blueprint for change will not even be



considered for several years as other key “unlocks” take higher priority and serve as



prerequisites for subsequent tests. 


NWSEO Response


We note that while the agency claims the union is obfuscating the facts, the agency does not



deny any of the assertions in its response.  


This concept was already tested by Environment Canada with very negative



results.  Environment Canada started with almost exactly the same plan that has been
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proposed by NWS. In less than 10 years, the Meteorological Service of Canada was reduced



from 54 weather offices and 8 forecast centers to 14 forecast centers.  The Meteorological



Service of Canada currently has 5 public weather forecast offices and two centers for aviation



weather forecasting.  A 2008 report “Degradation in Environment Canada's Network, Quality



Control and Data Storage Practices: A Call to Repair the Damage” stated Environment Canada



was 'unable to fulfil its goal of ensuring the safety and security of Canadians' and that the



Weather forecasting 'degraded' after the reduction of offices. NWSEO suspects that the NWS’



plan to “test” the concept is little more than an LMR maneuver to minimize their need to



negotiate this with the union. 


Reduction in NWS positions nationwide


NWS Comments


NWS will not reduce the total number of positions within its field workforce. 


? The number of hours those staff spend on IDSS will be increased by some of the ideas



we are testing to free up local forecasters’ time.  


? The 900 - 1,200 number relates to the number of person hours the NWS needs to free



up either in local offices or other parts of the NWS field in order to meet IDSS demand by our



partners across the country.  


NWSEO Response


The agency has already reduced the number of positions across the agency by 650.  They have



been disingenuous in their claims that they are trying to fill the positions for over four years.



The union also has a hard time believing that this or any future administration will pay for 1200



weather briefers across the country.


Collaboration vs. Forecasting


NWS Comments


NWS forecasters will not be relegated to “interpreting” the forecast developed elsewhere nor



strictly briefing others’ forecasts.  


? The role of local forecasters in the forecast process was explained above.  NWS



forecasters are meteorologists and hydrologists and their scientific expertise is what makes



NWS the best weather service provider in the world. 


? Local meteorological knowledge, and related situational awareness, will always be a



vital factor for IDSS.  


NWSEO Response


The plan is to remove the local forecast element from the forecast process and replace it with



collaboration.  Collaboration is not forecasting.  Ownership of the forecast and by that we mean



the final decision must be at the point of delivery to be effective.
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Documentation and discussions on Part-timing Weather Forecast Offices


NWS Comments


NWSEO Claim:


As the offices will no longer operate 24x7, severe weather warning functions will of necessity



be centralized elsewhere, and the NWS and NOAA are developing other computer models that



they hope will issue warnings of severe weather automatically. The National Research Council



wrote that even if it was demonstrated that centralized forecasts based on models were proven



to be as reliable as the human forecaster, “[t]he responsibility for hazardous weather outlooks,



advisories, and warnings would still reside at the local offices (as deployed today to coincide


with NEXRAD Doppler radar coverage).”


Fact:


The analysis concluded, and NWS has emphasized in every briefing, that 94 percent of IDSS is



provided at the local local.  That will not change. The claim implies every local office will not be



24/7, which is simply not true.  


? The NWS is looking at all options for all functions right now. 


? We said from the start that this is a comprehensive project, and we wouldn’t be doing



our jobs if we didn’t consider all options.  Delivering warning information is critical at the local



level for our mission and for IDSS; we will not jeopardize that.  


? NWS is exploring alternatives to more effectively communicate hazard messages,



through the FACETS and Hazard Simplification projects currently () underway. Through these



efforts warnings may change as we include a more probabilistic approach in the extended



timeframe, but they will still be provided at the local level  


? With that kind of change in mind, we are open to test ideas that will be vetted and



assessed with the engagement of you and our external partners. 


There is no implication that every office will not be 24/7, much like the original CONOPS which



was the basis for this 2016 CONOPS there will be two tiers of WFOs, some 24/7 others with


part-time operations.  Our claim speaks specifically of the offices that are not 24/7.  We note



again nothing in the agency’s comments rebuts the NWSEO’s claims.


It was very clear in multiple FIFS meetings that part-timing of offices is on the table.  Here are



the NWSEO Team member notes from the 6/23/2016 FIFS call:


6) Field Question of the Week - Mike Cantin (presented by Cobb)


Cantin is not on the call, Cobb shows the shift work slide with a supposed field question



about reducing midnight shifts and possibly closing some offices at night. Cobb - “DSS is



improved if we have more people around on the day shift”. “More flexible scheduling” so



that folks can respond to big events that happen at night. My question – is part-timing



offices on the table? Answer – it may be. I raised a scenario of a middle of the night toxic



chemical train derailment where the local WFO is closed, it would take an hour or more



to get anyone into the office, and the backup office is hundreds of miles away and the
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people (person?) on shift is unfamiliar with the local EMs/local area where the incident



occurred. Management did not really have an answer for this – floated the idea of



having folks respond from home using “AWIPS in the cloud”.  I also stated that shift work



is part of the NWS, there are plenty of jobs in the world that don’t involve shift work, and



people should know what they signed up for when they joined NWS. I also stated that



until management decides to be transparent with the staffing plan, there will continue



to be a widespread belief in the field that the real purpose of all this is to reduce staff by



cutting shifts and then stating that there is not enough DSS/partner work during the



daytime to support the existing staff numbers at some offices. Response was that the



Regional directors are still working on the “staffing exercise”.


The Shrinking NWS – Six years of Staffing Reductions and Shortfalls 


NWS Comments


NWSEO Claim:


These staffing reductions are not being driven by funding reductions or shortfalls. Not only has



Congress appropriated the full amount of funding requested for the NWS by the President each



year, but because of the bipartisan support the NWS employees and their mission receive,



Congress has actually increased the President’s request for the NWS every year for the past



several years, while rejecting requests to further cut the agency’s staff. In fact, the NWS ended



FY 2015 with over $52 million in unspent funds; it ended FY 2014 with $125 million in unspent



funds; and in FY 2013, during sequestration, the NWS ended the year with $144 million



unspent. NWS leadership has said that part of the staff savings achieved will be used to



significantly increase the number of managers in the agency.


Fact: 


The claim implies that NWS is seeking staff reductions, which is completely false.  


? As outlined earlier, NOAA and NWS are aggressively addressing the vacancies and hiring



backlog. 


? It should be recognized that many vacancies have been and will continue to be filled



through internal promotions.  


? Furthermore, NWSEO has often claimed that “carryover” (unobligated funds carried



from one fiscal year into the next) be reprogrammed to more rapidly fill vacancies in the



organization.  


? However, NWS hiring challenges are not a budget issue, but an execution issue.


? In FY2016, NWS had a budget execution rate of approximately 98 percent minimizing



carryover.


NWSEO Response


The agency’s reply is disingenuous.  The NWSEO has heard from almost all regions recently that



the money is not there to fill vacant positions or to pay PCS for filling these positions.  We have



heard from one region that they do not have enough money for the positions that are currently



filled.  At least one mass bid vacancy announcement has been canceled or delayed, that is not



an execution issue.  Several positions are being held for two even three years before being
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submitted to be filled, if that is an execution issue it is an internal NWS execution issue that has



not been fixed for over four years. 


We note the agency was not responsive to the claim that the agency wants to significantly



increase its number of managers.  


We also note the agency has decreased the size of the NWS workforce by 650 people over the



last few years.


NWSEO has been tracking vacancies and the hiring process for years, and in May of 2013



started a detailed spreadsheet that incorporates data from each office. The creator of the



spreadsheet noted the following:


“This “execution issue” has been lingering for years now. I started the vacancy



spreadsheet in May 2013. At that time an argument could be legitimately made that the



vacancies were due mainly to sequester and hiring freeze. The time during which that



argument held any weight has long ago passed. We have seen one excuse after another



used to try to explain away why positions are not being filled in a timely manner. After



being told for the past couple of years now that the main problem was in WFMO and



that coming reforms/changes there would fix the problem, now that a combination of



WFMO changes and increased utilization of HR contractors seems to be helping with the



problems in HR, NWS is now suddenly claiming (at least based on the reports we have



heard) that there is a shortage of PCS money or possibly an overall shortage of



budgetary authority in general. We can be sure that the incoming administration will



put a hiring freeze in place on or very soon after January 20. Although there are



supposed to be exemptions for public safety positions, will NWS even try to get secure



such an exemption? My guess is that they will not – an actual hiring freeze (on top of



the four-year long combination of hiring freezes and extreme hiring slowdowns) would



serve management’s purposes at this point.”


NWS Comments


NWSEO Claim:


In 2012, Congress requested an additional study to examine NWS operations. This mandate



reads: “NOAA shall enter into a contract with an independent organization with experience in



assessing Federal agencies for the purposes of evaluating efficiencies that can be made to NWS



operations. This review shall include consultations with emergency managers and other user



groups as well as NWS employees. Any recommended efficiencies should not result in any



degradation of service to the communities served by local forecast offices and River Forecast



Centers, nor should such recommendations place the safety of the public at greater risk.”


Fact: 


This statement is correct.  In fact, “No degradation of service” was a key project principle. The



request from Congress resulted in the NAPA study (2013). One of the key recommendations
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from the NAPA study was to conduct further “analyses of staff alignment and functions.”



McKinsey and Company was contracted to conduct this staffing and functional analysis (the



OWA).  McKinsey’s process included extensive consultations and interviews with all parties



including with emergency managers.   


NWSEO Claim:


The NWS’ Operations and Workforce Analysis has not even addressed the requirement to



ensure that there is no degradation of service nor has it established any criteria or process to



ensure that the automation of forecasts and additional staff reductions and office closures do



not place the public at risk.


Fact:  


This is absolutely not true. 


? Every idea presented in the blueprint for change is a recommendation based on



improvements in service. Tests and evaluations of these ideas will include criteria for success



and the tests will either prove or disprove the validity of the recommendations.


NWSEO Response


We respectfully disagree


NWS failure to obtain NWSEO input on staffing decisions


NWS Comment


NWSEO Claim:


The NWS has failed to obtain any input from NWSEO on these staffing decisions. In its May



2013 Report, the National Academy of Public Administration recommended that the agency



conduct a “zero-based analyses of staff alignment and functions” and that the “NWS should



involve employees from across the organization, including through NWSEO, in the development



of analyses and evaluation of results.” (Report at 50). “Such an analysis should . . . include the



National Weather Service Employees Organization.” (Report at 9). Although NWSEO has been



provided the opportunity to provide input on several aspects of the NWS ongoing Operations



and Workforce Analysis (virtually all of which was rejected by NWS), it has not been privy to,



nor was its input sought during, any discussions on staffing levels or hours of operations at the



forecast offices.


Fact:  


NWSEO had representatives on four OWA workstreams including the fully integrated field



structure workstream that discussed the collaborative forecast process.  


? OWA workstreams were not decision-making bodies, but rather places where the



diagnostic findings were analyzed and ideas generated to evolve NWS.  


? Workstream ideas and recommendations were presented to the Operations and



Workforce Committee (OWC); NWSEO leadership was invited to participate in the OWC.  
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? Additionally, NWS leadership briefed NWSEO leadership throughout the process



including before all hands with employees where new ideas and recommendations were



presented.  


NWSEO Response


It is true that the NWSEO was a member on four of the OWA teams.  On a few of these teams,



the NWSEO opinions were discussed and acted upon, although not all of them.  On one of the



teams, the FIFS team, NWSEO ideas were never considered and just added as a minority



opinion on their briefing slides. (FIFS is the Fully Integrated Field Structure team that planned



for the use of the consolidated forecast model.)  On one of the FIFS meetings NWSEO



representatives were told they were not allowed to have a dissenting opinion. (Team member



notes are included below.)


NWSEO President Dan Sobien does sit as an advisor to the Operational Workforce Committee,



the governing committee of the OWA. He is not a voting member and has only been invited to



three of their meetings. There have been references to OWC meetings to which, Mr. Sobien



was not invited. We have no idea how many times the OWC met when Mr. Sobien was not



invited.   Also, when the OWC meets, Mr. Sobien is not included for the entire meeting, just a



portion of it.   We have no idea what is discussed in the other portions of these meetings as they



are done in secret.   On the first and second of the meetings that Mr. Sobien attended, there



was nothing contentious discussed and Mr. Sobien consented on the action plan to move



forward.   The third meeting was done by phone and Mr. Sobien strongly dissented on their plan



to move forward and provided reasons for his objections. His objections were ignored, he did



not even have a vote, and the OWC pushed forward.   In none of these meetings were part



timing offices discussed.


From the NWSEO FIFS Team member:  


The NWS response is highly disingenuous, and nowhere do they refute our statement



that we did not have input into staffing levels or office hours of operation.


From my notes of the very first OWA call on which I participated (5/12/2016):


FIFS team restart - no longer considering office structure/staffing from now forward



(Cobb says “that has been broken off”), only considering collaborative forecast process


From my notes of FIFS team call on (5/19/2016):


My comment: “This is at least the second time during the OWA process that the



staffing/office structure discussions within “fully integrated field structure” were moved



to another team without NWSEO representation, just before the existing team that was



previously discussing those issues gained NWSEO representation. What team is now



handling staffing/office structure?”


Response from Courtney Draggon: “FMC directors have been involved in those



discussions (6 Regions, NWC, NCEP), FIFS was not previously involved” (note that this



appears to contradict statement made by Cobb on the May 12 OWA call)
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I also made a point regarding lack of transparency on staffing plans in written comments



submitted during a cross-workstream Google hangout session after the OWA call on



6/29/2016:


Question 2: What is the biggest cultural hurdle in terms of moving forward with the



pyramid CFP idea?  (i.e. Accuracy, Local Impacts, Ownership, Sci & Tech, Consistent



Messaging, other)


Lack of transparency from the RDs on the staffing/office structure plan. We are currently



having these discussions in a vacuum. RDs need to be forthcoming with their plans, even



if they are currently still under development. This lack of transparency causes folks to be



concerned about where their jobs will be located, what they will be doing, and what will



happen to their grades.


It was also stated on multiple calls ahead of the 6/8/2016 OWC briefing that NWSEO



questioning or outright opposition to ideas presented by management would not be



allowed:


From NAME REDACTED (NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2’s) notes of the 5/26/2016 FIFS



team call:


Local offices nature of warning changes, embedded in EOCs, warning changes based on



customer (???). Sounds like has to be based on NBM and regionalization. They asked for



comments, but I did not know where to begin. Dan (Cobb)said he didn’t want to take



anyone on when I asked where the slide came from. Ann Marie (McKinsey) said this is



just an idea and nothing has been decided. Sounded like Dan (Cobb) and others



developed it.


They had ground rules that did not allow for questioning the ideas, just the testing of



them.


From my notes of the 6/6/2016 FIFS team call:


I asked Dan (Cobb) if we could have our outright opposition to the centralized watch



issuance and transfer of grid production to NCEP placed on slide 8, but he said that



would not be allowed as NWSEO "would be telling the OWC what to do". I asked why



OWC was afraid of NWSEO input on those issues, but he did not really respond and just



said that all of the OWA teams have to operate under these same rules. I don't think that



is true based on what I've seen from the other teams.


PLEASE NOTE: I included (Cobb) in the first two cases for clarification, NAME



REDACTED(NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2) had it in the third.


NWS Comments  -- Do we want to keep these in here and respond to them – or just



remove them?


Claim: "This could be a huge mistake that could cost lives."  


Fact: Our goal is to save more lives by improving our products and services to America.  In no



way will services degrade as a result of the effort to Evolve the National Weather Service. Every
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idea will be tested and evaluated, and proven to work before implementation. Services will



continue to operate at the quality they are today, or better. 


NWSEO Respectfully disagrees.


Many local weather forecast offices will become part-time offices.


Claim:  "NWS is planning to go from a full to a part-time operation."


Fact: The National Weather Service will continue to provide forecast products and decision



support services 24/7/365 across every inch of the U.S., just as we do today. As we evolve the



National Weather Service, we will undergo a test and evaluation process to determine whether



some local offices do not need to be open 24/7/365, in order to better allocate staff time in



support of local partners, when local partners need them most. Rather than being on shift at



midnight during quiet weather when our partners are not at work, offices will collaborate to



provide coverage 24/7/365, enabling more local NWS employees to sit at the planning table, or



be side-by-side in the field with Emergency Management, for instance. We will be “users of our



own expertise.”  When weather is benign, we plan to explore not having staff on the midnight



shift so we can better engage our deep partners.  When the forecast is for dangerous weather,



we will certainly be there to meet the needs of our emergency managers. 


Many offices will remain 24/7.. Some offices may cover neighboring communities during



periods of quiet weather. This is a very similar concept to how we currently provide “service



back-up” when needed.  In the future, however, this coverage would be planned and scheduled



during calm weather to free up local forecasters' time to provide more robust decision support



services to local decision-makers. 


Our employees have overwhelmingly expressed that shift work is very difficult for work-life



balance, and studies have shown that overnight shifts have negative health implications. This



proposal would help mitigate the health issues associated with shift work as well as put our



people when and where they need to be - which is right alongside our partners who are on the



front lines saving lives. 


NWSEO Response and Documentation


 Many local offices will become part-time offices.


 NWS management has for years fought against NWSEO efforts to establish and maintain



alternate work schedules which help to mitigate the negative effects of rotating shift work.



Within the past few weeks, NWSEO has received several new anecdotal reports of management



at various WFOs/Regions trying to eliminate established alternate work schedules.


If management were really concerned about the health of their employees in regards to long-


term effects of rotating shift work, they would join with NWSEO in seeking early retirement



authority for NWS operational staff. Such authority is currently in place for many other rotating



shift workers in the federal government, including air traffic controllers, law enforcement, and



firefighters.
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NWS management plans would likely be even more detrimental to workers’ health than the



existing situation, as rather than being able to count on established shift schedules and plan



their work/life balance and sleep needs accordingly, employees would be subject to frequent



last-minute changes to the schedule in order to accommodate normally part-time offices



remaining open overnight during periods of active weather. Such last-minute schedule changes



would be extremely disruptive to employees’ lives, especially those who also must deal with



issues such as child care, elder care, or care of a sick significant other. This “on-demand” or “gig



economy” type of scheduling would be completely incompatible with the provision of high



quality local forecasts, warnings and IDSS from properly rested employees.


Regarding their claim that backup coverage would be planned during “calm weather”, again, it



is not possible to plan when an event such as a toxic chemical train derailment may occur in a



particular location (see example provided above). Will local EMs/partners receive the same



locally informed IDSS from a backup office hundreds of miles away, from forecasters they may



have never met, as they would from their local office forecasters?


Local Offices will no longer disseminate warnings; Warnings will come from



distant location


NWS Comment 


Claim: "These warnings would no longer be delivered from this office. The warnings would be



coming out of some distant location and the forecast would actually be coming out of



Washington D.C.”


Fact: This statement is completely false. The proposal calls for all forecasts and warnings to



continue to be issued to local communities from the local forecast offices. We are proposing to



use a national blend of models as an initial starting point for forecasts. This national blend of



models is currently undergoing rigorous testing to ensure it will improve our local forecast



capability while also providing more consistency in our suite of forecast products nation-wide.



Once implemented, local forecasters would then take that initial forecast and contribute their



unique knowledge and expertise, adding local weather nuances before they issue the forecast



to their local communities. 


We believe that using the National Blend of Models as an initial starting point for our forecasts



nation-wide will result in better consistency, without hard starts and stops at artificial forecast



office boundaries, and will enhance our forecasters’ ability to collaborate across the nation.



This will enable us to more efficiently use our national forecast assets and capabilities for the



benefit of local communities.


NWSEO Response: 


 FIFS team discussions certainly gave final ownership of the forecast to WPC allowing local



offices to only collaborate any changes they want to make.  The entire emphasis of this 2016



CONOPS is to make a more consistent forecast that in itself implies less local variations.  When
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Assistant Administrator Louis Uccellini was asked who will own the forecast, meaning who will



have the final say, his response the NWS will own the forecast.


NWS Comment


Claim: NWSEO believes forecasts should be kept local, instead of using blended forecast models



from other parts of the country. “It will degrade services and potentially even costs lives. We



have no idea how they could’ve of come up with this kind of solution,” Sobien stresses.


Fact: NWS agrees that forecasts and warnings should emanate from the local level, but in this



statement NWSEO President Dan Sobien blatantly misstates the facts. Anything NWS eventually



implements will be proven - through rigorous testing and evaluation - to maintain or improve



forecast accuracy and allow NWS to increase the quantity and quality of decision support



services we provide to local communities. We would never implement a change to our products



and services that “cost lives.” The idea to test the use of a National Blend of Models to initiate



the forecast was developed with the help of our workforce, working on teams that included



NWSEO representation.


NWSEO Documentation: 


From a member on the FIFS team: 


FIFS team discussions certainly gave final ownership of the forecast to WPC allowing



local offices to only collaborate any changes they want to make.  The entire emphasis of



this 2016 CONOPS is to make a more consistent forecast, that in itself implies less local



variations.  When Assistant Administrator Louis Uccellini was asked who will own the



forecast, meaning who will have the final say, his response the NWS will own the



forecast.


CONOPS 2 “Evolve” recommendations did not include input from  Forecast


Office Meteorologists


NWS Comment


Claim:  “But the idea should come from the meteorologist doing the job, not bureaucrats in



Washington.”


Fact: This quote is completely off-base. These ideas and recommendations were developed



through extensive internal engagement with our employees. Local teams staffed by our field



personnel with NWSEO representation developed these recommendations.


NWSEO Documentation


We would like to invite you to interview the NWSEO team members to learn how their input



was restricted.  


1. The OWA communications team talked about using “appropriate transparency” in



communications with employees.  
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2. NWSEO team members were initially asked to sign a non-disclosure agreement, but



upon their refusal last fall, they were “uninvited” from the teams. A few months later,



they were invited back. However, they were not permitted input, the issues raised by



NWSEO team members were dismissed, and the team meetings were then changed to



schedules that would not permit the NWSEO members to attend the meetings. 


3. NWSEO has a vision for advancing the NWS; only the NWS is forging ahead with their



plans without accepting employee input.


4. Below NWSEO Team member detail how their input was restricted:


 Regarding “appropriate transparency”, not being permitted input, and being unable to



provide the best possible input due to agenda/call materials not being provided in



advance, during the 6/29/2016 cross-workstream Google hangout session, Cobb and I



had the following discussion (from my call notes):


Heated discussion between Dan Cobb and I about management not providing the



agendas/slides in advance. I asked how NWSEO Team members and I provide pre-


decisional input for NWSEO as a whole when I don’t know what will be discussed, Dan



said that none of our participation in FIFS is actually PDI, but is just “talking” and



“brainstorming”. Dan also said that NAME REDACTED(NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2) and I



were not “special” team members, and that he didn’t have the authority to negotiate with



me. I responded that PDI is not “special” input, nor is it negotiation. Dan also stated that if



the materials from today ended up on Facebook (specifically the breakout session



document) that NWSEO would be excluded from future activities. I responded that Dan



knows very well that I am expected to share FIFS materials with NWSEO leadership.


From notes of the 5/26/2016 FIFS team call:


Local offices nature of warning changes, embedded in EOCs, warning changes based on



customer (???). Sounds like has to be based on NBM and regionalization. They asked for



comments, but I did not know where to begin. Dan said he didn’t want to take anyone on



when I asked where the slide came from. Ann Marie (McKinsey) said this is just an idea and



nothing has been decided. Sounded like Dan and others developed it.


They had ground rules that did not allow for questioning the ideas, just the testing of



them.


From my notes of the 6/6/2016 FIFS team call:


I asked Dan (Cobb) if we could have our outright opposition to the centralized watch



issuance and transfer of grid production to NCEP placed on slide 8, but he said that would



not be allowed as NWSEO "would be telling the OWC what to do". I asked why OWC was



afraid of NWSEO input on those issues, but he did not really respond and just said that all of



the OWA teams have to operate under these same rules. I don't think that is true based on



what I've seen from the other teams.


Note that this pattern of call materials not being provided in advance and agendas not



being followed or changed at the last minute continued throughout NAME



REDACTED(NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2)’s and my participation on the FIFS team.
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I cannot comment regarding being uninvited and then invited back onto the OWA teams, as



those events preceded my involvement on the FIFS team.


Regarding Cobb unilaterally changing the call schedule to make it difficult or impossible for



FIFS NWSEO team members to attend the calls, here are the relevant parts of the email



exchange Cobb, NAME REDACTED (NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2) and I had on this subject:


------------------


Cobb (8/14/2016):


I need to adjust the weekly FIFS calls due to multiple upcoming conflicts that look to be on



the horizon for several upcoming Thursday afternoon. The new weekly meeting will be at



3pm EDT every Wed through early Dec...


NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2(8/14/2016):


This time does not work for me at all due to a standing weekly meeting for which my



attendance is critical. I could make 4 pm ET or 2 ET. It would be helpful if you would ask the



rest of the team before unilaterally changing the meeting times as it will likely impact



others' ability to attend.


FIFS Team Member (8/14/2016):


Changing the day of the week for the FIFS meetings will make it very difficult for me to



consistently attend. We work 12 hour shifts at HFO, and I work almost all night shifts 6pm-


6am HST (12am-12pm EDT). I had swapped a number of shifts through the fall to free



myself up as much as possible on Thursday mornings and avoid having night shifts on both



Wednesday and Thursday nights. With the meetings changing to Wednesdays, there are



many weeks during the remainder of the year where I am currently scheduled to work



Tuesday and Wednesday nights, making it impossible for me to make a 9am HST



Wednesday call and still get any decent sleep between shifts. I can try to rearrange my



schedule once again with further swaps, but we are 3 forecasters down so the schedules are



very tight. It is also extremely difficult to get management to cover a 12 hour night shift in



the middle of the week, as doing so disrupts their schedule for most of the work week.


I formally request that the FIFS meetings remain at 9am HST on Thursdays as previously



scheduled.


As NAME REDACTED(NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2) stated, it would be best if you would



ask the other team members before unilaterally changing the meeting days or times.


Cobb (8/15/2016):


Would earlier Wed, 11a EDT work better for you?  Everyone wants to have conference calls



on Thu and it is becoming a headache.  I could also do about anytime on Fri although may



not have high attendance on Fri afternoons.
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FIFS Team Member (8/15/2016):


Wednesdays at 11am EDT (5am HST) would not work well either, as I would either be



finishing up a night shift (6p-6a HST) or likely sleeping. Getting up on my days off at 445am



HST for the FIFS calls would not be appealing. 


Friday would present the same problem of working night shifts on both ends as Wednesday



- just different weeks affected. Since I had done all of my shift swaps to accommodate



Thursday calls and had also informed our scheduler to try and keep me away from having to



work both Wed & Thu nights in a given week, there are a number of weeks where I'm



scheduled to work both Thursday and Friday nights.


I had really counted on the FIFS calls remaining at their current time on Thursdays when I



made all of these swaps and schedule requests during the next few months to



accommodate them.


FIFS Team Member (8/15/2016):


Please advise as soon as possible what the final decision will be for the FIFS conference calls



weekly day/time. If the final decision is to shift the calls to Wednesdays as per your original



email, I will need to notify my supervisor (Director of Operations Tom Evans) of the need for



the office and myself to try and re-arrange my schedules over the next few months to



accommodate the change.


I once again formally request that the FIFS calls remain at their previously scheduled



day/time of 3pm EDT / 9am HST Thursdays.


Cobb (8/16/2016):


Wednesday is the day and can shift to either 2p or 4p to facilitate NAME REDACTED (the



other NWSEO FIFS Team Member’s) schedule.  Which time do you prefer of those two and I



will adjust.  


NWSEO Team Member 2 (8/16/2016):


OK, 4 pm ET Wednesday but we cannot keep changing this meeting date/time. XXXXX is not



the only operational person on the team and this is within the fixed schedule.


FIFS Team Member (8/16/2016):


As I discussed in our earlier email exchange, this abrupt change to the weekly call day/time



causes difficulties for those team members like myself who work operational shifts, as well



as for folks like NAME REDACTED(NWSEO FIFS Team Member 2) and possibly others who



have other scheduled weekly calls.


I will do what I can to reshuffle my schedule here and free myself up for these calls going



forward, but this change will force me to miss today's call and the August 24 call, since



those dates are in the fixed schedule.
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I request that there be no further changes to the weekly call day/time through at least



December 14 (I'm assuming that the Dec 21 and Dec 28 calls will likely be skipped due to



the holidays). If there is a need to change the call day/time again starting in January, the



entire FIFS team could be consulted via call discussion, email and Doodle poll well in



advance, so that the situation of changing the call day/time within the fixed schedule would



be avoided in the future.


-----------------


Cobb subsequently attempted to change the FIFS call days/times yet again, after I had done



several additional schedule swaps to accommodate the rescheduled Wednesday calls.



Intervention at the OWA level (DeLyne) was required to prevent this further change.
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From:                 Robert Moller - NOAA Federal

                         <robert.moller@noaa.gov>

To:                     Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal

                         <matthew.borgia@noaa.gov>

Cc:                     John Sokich - NOAA Federal

                         <john.sokich@noaa.gov>; Shalini Mohleji - NOAA Federal

                         <shali.mohleji@noaa.gov>; Coby Dolan - NOAA Federal

                         <coby.dolan@noaa.gov>



Subject:             Re: new Wx Bill version



Can the five of us get on the phone at 10:15?  Use this call-in:



Call in number 1
Leader: 
Participant: 


On Wed, Sep 21 , 2016 at 9:49 AM, Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal <matthew.borgia@noaa.gov>

wrote:



The entire FTE-related part is NEW from the Reported version. We've never seen it before.



Sent from my mobile device - please excuse brevity and typos



On Sep 21 , 2016, at 9:23 AM, Robert Moller - NOAA Federal <robert.moller@noaa.gov> wrote:



But that last sentence, was that in there too? The last sentence in 405(a)?



Sent from my iPhone



On Sep 21 , 2016, at 9:16 AM, John Sokich - NOAA Federal <john.sokich@noaa.gov> wrote:



This is substitute language from the original Thune Bill that consolidated WFOs and created 6 forecast

centers. We raised the restrictive language (I believe to Majority) at that time, especially in the context

that it codified the current WCM position description, and did not adequately provide leeway for any

changes in workforce in the upcoming years (OWA).



j



On Wed, Sep 21 , 2016 at 9:09 AM, Robert Moller - NOAA Federal <robert.moller@noaa.gov> wrote:



Oye. This is new language right?  It wasn't in 1331 , correct? I'm pretty sure it was added to appease the

House. I think I need to add this to the list for Sara and talk to her about how best to raise this with Fern

who has not sent us any text.



Date:                 Wed Sep 21  2016 10:04:56 EDT

Attachments:



Bcc:



Document ID: 0.7.783.16679



Page 2 of 135



(b) (2)



(b) (2)



(b) (2)








Sent from my iPhone



On Sep 21 , 2016, at 8:43 AM, John Sokich - NOAA Federal <john.sokich@noaa.gov> wrote:



GCWs interpretation.  Next step?



j



---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Hugh Schratwieser - NOAA Federal <hugh.c.schratwieser@noaa.gov>

Date: Wed, Sep 21 , 2016 at 8:19 AM

Subject: Re: Fwd: new Wx Bill version

To: John Sokich - NOAA Federal <john.sokich@noaa.gov>, Glenn Tallia - NOAA Federal <glenn.e.

tallia@noaa.gov>

Cc: Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal <Matthew.Borgia@noaa.gov>



John,



That is a confusing bit of drafting but it does appear to limit the performance of the duties exclusively to

the WCM.  Was the drafter trying to force NWS to appoint multiple WCMs?  I can see the "at least one"

who will be responsible for the duties, but when it says, "No additional full-time equivalent employees

are authorized to carry out this section," the text lends itself to the interpretation that only the WCM can

"carry out" the duties set forth in "this section."  In my opinion, the duties could not realistically be

carried out by the WCM, alone, without this being a very debilitating provision for the function of the

WFOs.



Hugh



On 9/21 /2016 7:50 AM, John Sokich - NOAA Federal wrote:



Would you please review ASAP sec. 405 about the warning coordination meteorologist.  Does this limit

and prohibit other meteorologists/hydrologists from performing those functions? MIC and SOO and

other mets typically do some of those tasks now and will be doing more in the future.  Language says

"at lease one..."  but does that mean that anyone who does those functions must be a WCM

classification?  Matt, did I capture the concern?



j



---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Matthew Borgia - NOAA Federal <matthew.borgia@noaa.gov>

Date: Mon, Sep 19, 2016 at 4:52 PM

Subject: new Wx Bill version

To: John Sokich <John.Sokich@noaa.gov>, Mike Bilder <Michael.Bilder@noaa.gov>



A "compromise" from the Senate side. They're shopping it - and may move it - this week.
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Upon quick review, I don't see anything substantially different on the NWS sections which came from

the earlier Senate bills (S1331  and 1573). I've not checked all the House side (HR 1561 ) sections.

Please give it a look as soon as you can on Tuesday, and LMK what you think.



I'm guessing that even if it passes the senate, it may not be a bridge far enough on the Satellite data

provisions for the House.  But.... we'll see, I guess.



Matt



--


Matthew Borgia

Congressional Liaison for Weather

Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs

National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

Room 62012

1401  Constitution Ave. NW

Washington  DC  20230



Direct: 202-482-1939

Main: 202-482-4981

Email: matthew.borgia@noaa.gov



--
Hugh C. Schratwieser

Attorney-Adviser, Office of the General Counsel

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

1315 East-West Highway -- SSMC 3 15143

Silver Spring, Maryland  20910

301 -713-9684 Telephone

301 -713-1494 Facsimile



Confidentiality Notice:  This e-mail message is intended only for the named recipients. It contains

information that may be confidential, privileged,

attorney work product, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you have received

this message in error, are not a named  recipient,

or are not the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to a named recipient, be

advised that any review, disclosure, use, dissemination,

distribution, or reproduction of this message or its contents is strictly prohibited.  Please notify us

immediately that you have received this message

in error, and delete the message.



Page 4 of 135








--


Robert Moller

Deputy Director

Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs



National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

U.S. Department of Commerce

1401  Constitution Ave., NW

Washington, DC 20230

Phone: 202-482-3596

Fax:     202-482-4960
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Rashada Jenkins - NOAA Affiliate



From: Rashada Jenkins - NOAA Affiliate



Sent: Friday, September 7, 2018 3:02 PM



To: brian@gaffneylegal.com



Cc: Mark Graff - NOAA Federal; Roxie Allison-Holman - NOAA Federal;



MBogomolny@doc.gov



Subject: DOC-NOAA-[2017-000790], Final Release



Attachments: Borgia Email 1_Redacted.pdf; Brown Email 1_Redacted.pdf; Eiler Document 1.pdf;



Eiler Email 1_Redaction.pdf; Grell Email 1_Redacted.pdf; Moller Email



1_Redacted.pdf; FAL_NOAA-2017-000790_Final Release_Signed.pdf



Dear Mr. Gaffney,



Please see the attached Final Release Letter and responsive records pertaining to DOC-NOAA-
[2017-000790], the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request which was received by our office on

March 20, 2017, in which you requested:



“...all records from January 1 , 2015 to the present discussing, documenting, memorializing, or

otherwise concerning: (1 ) weather modification within the Weather Service Organization Workforce

Analysis; (2) the reason for adoption of the "Operations and Workforce Analysis (OWA) Project:

Charter for All Workstream Core Teams".



Should you have any questions, please contact me at any time.



Kindly,



Rashada Jenkins



--


Rashada Jenkins, MPS



HR Administrative Specialist



NOAA, National Weather Service



Management & Organization Division



(301) 427.6936
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M att K enna , A ttorney                                                                   679 E. 2nd Ave., Suite 11B



Public Interest Environmental Law                                                             Durango, Colorado 81301



      (970) 749-9149



                                                                                                                  matt@kenna.net 


Septem ber 7, 2018



CONFIDENTIAL SETTLEMENT DOCUMENT



W yneva Johnson, USDOJ, wyneva.johnson@usdoj.gov



Joseph “M ark” Finnegan, USDOJ, Joseph.Finnigan@ usdoj.gov



Michael Bogomolny, NOAA Counsel, Mbogomolny@doc.gov


RE : Litigation Costs, Including A ttorney Fees, in AquAlliance v. N OAA,



1:17-cv-02108-CRC (D. D.C.)



Dear Counsel,



N ow  that the m erits of this case have concluded in this m atter, I am  sending



this letter in regards to settlem ent of our claim  for litigations costs, including



reasonable attorney fees.



A s the attached tim e and expense sheets show , A quA lliance has incurred a



to tal of $20,871.40 in reim bursable litigation costs, including reasonable attorney



fees.  A ll attorney hours claim ed were recorded contem poraneously and spent on



bona fide litigation tasks, and w e have exercised billing judgm ent and have not



included in the claim  tim e spent on potentially duplicative w ork, w ork that could



have been perform ed by secretaries, etc.  The rates are U SD O J Laffey m atrix rates,



and resumes for co-counsel Rachel D oughty and m yself are attached (C arla B arraez



is a  lega l assistant for M s. Doughty).



I believe the claim  is reasonable, and hope that the governm ent w ill agree to



pay it so as to avoid any further litigation.  Of course, if we are required to spend



further tim e on the fee claim , w e w ill seek com pensation for that tim e as w ell.



Sincerely,



      /s/M att K enna



M att K enna



Co-Counsel for AquAlliance




mailto:wyneva.johnson@usdoj.gov
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Tim esheet for M att Kenn a  and Costs- AquAlliance v. N OAA ,


                   1:17-cv-02108-CRC (D. D.C.)



09/26/17 0.3 Review FOIA request & em ail from client r e w hether



to sue & advise client to m ake follow-up efforts w ith



agency



10/09/17 1.8 D raft com plaint (.8); em a ils w/client r e facts (.2); d raft



CCS, su m m onses & corp disc s ta tem en t (.6); em a il



potential co-counsel (.2)



10/10/17 0.1 Em ails w/co-counsel & client r e com plaint



10/11/17 0.4 F in a lize a ll docs for filing (.3); em a il client re  sam e (.1)



10/12/17 0.5 Em ail client & co-counsel r e judge assignm ent & costs



(.2); call court r e adding co-counsel to E CF  system  (.2)



10/17/17 0.3 P rep  proof of service for filing



10/30/17 0.2 Ca ll w/client r e contact from /with agency (.1); review



acknowledgm ent em a ils from agency (.1)



11/09/17 0.1 Em ail opp & co-counsel r e next steps



11/10/17 0.2 Em ail co-counsel r e client’s em a il



12/04/17 0.5 Em ails e/client, co & opp counsel r e docum ent review



& answ er extension (.3); review NOAA production



le tte r of 11/13 (.2)



12/15/17 0.4 W rite le tte r to opp counsel r e referred em ails, inc. lega l



research



01/15/18 0.3 Em ail w/client r e fina l determ ination  le tte rs  (.1); brief



review of paralegal sum m ary  of provided docs r e



redactions (.2)



01/16/18 0.2 review F WS determ ination , em a il client r e sam e



01/17/18 0.2 Em ails w/opp counsel a ss is tan t r e answ er extension



01/23/18 0.1 Review F E RC determ ination  le tte r



01/25/18 0.4 Review F E RC docum ent redactions & em ail client r e



sam e (.3); ta lk  to opp counsel a ss t. r e answ er extension



(.1)



01/29/18 0.7 Ta lk  to client r e redactions (.3); em a ils w/opp counsel



& ass t. r e docum ent production (.2); review A-C priv



docum ent & em ail client r e sam e (.2)



02/01/18 1.0 Ta lk  to opp counsel r e doc production (.2); d raft s ta tu s



report w/proposed schedu le



02/02/18 0.2 W rite em a il to client re  schedu le








02/07/18 0.2 Em ail client r e schedu le (.1); listen  to opp counsel



voicemail r e ACE  determ ination/production (.1)



02/08/18 0.3 Review order setting  schedu le (.1); em a ils w/client &



opp counsel r e doc production (.2)



02/21/18 0.2 Em ails to opp counsel & client r e s ta tu s  of ACE 



docum ents



02/27/18 0.1 Ta lk  to opp counsel r e ACE  doc production



02/28/18 0.2 Em ails w/client r e ACE  docs & redactions in  o ther



docum ents



03/12/18 0.3 Em ail opp counsel r e ACE  production (.1); em a il to



client r e redactions in  o ther docum ents (.2)



03/13/18 0.6 Ta lk  to client r e redactions (.2); exam ine client



sum m ary  of redactions to cha llenge & tak e  notes (.4)



03/14/18 2.7 E xam ine docum ents & client sum m ary, em a ils w ith



client r e sam e including d raft m em o to client about



which  to cha llenge



03/15/18 7.4 Review produced ACE  docum ents (.2); go through



redactions in  a ll docum ents & prepare  list for D (5.8);



em a ils and call w ith  client (.3) & opp counsel (.1) r e



sam e



04/11/18 0.3 Em ail opp counsel r e Vaughn  index (.1); 2 phone ca lls



re sam e (.2)



04/17/18 0.3 Review responsive em a il from agency r e docs to



cha llenge & vaughn  index, send to client



04/19/18 2.5 Review Vaughn  index, cross-checking w ith our



previous cha llenge list & develop new list ba sed on



Vaughn  index & send to client for review



04/26/18 0.4 F in a lize list of docs to cha llenge after client review,



send to opp counsel w/email r e JSR 



04/22/18 0.3 Review em ail from opp counsel a sking for answ er



extension & d raft responsive em ail for co-counsel



review & send to opp counsel



04/23/18 1.8 Review D’s motion to extend answ er tim e, review &



draft response for co-counsel review (1.3); fina lize afte r



co-counsel edits for filing (.3); em a ils w/co-counsel r e



sam e (.2)



04/24/18 0.2 Review order & em ail client & co-counsel r e sam e



05/04/18 0.1 Ca ll w/opp counsel r e list of docs








05/10/18 2.9 D raft JSR  & send to opp counsel for review (.3); ta lk  to



opp counsel r e sam e & fina lize for filing (.2); review



new vaughn  index & le tte r from NOAA, d raft new



narrow ed list for client review (2.4)



05/11/18 0.2 F in a lize updated  cha llenge list & send to opp counsel



05/14/18 0.1 Em ail & phone call w/opp counsel r e fina l list



06/04/18 0.2 Ta lk  to opp counsel r e docs & extension



06/06/18 0.1 Em ail w/opp paralegal r e certificate of service



06/26/18 2.1 Review 6/22 le tte r, compare w/our 5/11 le tte r, com pare



provided docum ents w/previously-listed docum ents &



develop recom m endation for client (1.8); ta lk  to client



re response (.3)



06/27/18 0.7 D raft le tte r to NOAA & DOJ for client review



07/20/18 1.1 P rep  for call w ith  client (.3); call w ith  client re



responding to la te s t se ttlem ent le tte r (.3); w rite  em a il



to NOAA & opp counsel r e rem aining  docum ents (.5)



08/08/18 0.1 Review case s ta tu s  & em ail NOAA counsel r e sam e



08/30/18 0.9 Review new release  le tte r & provided docum ents,



com pare to la s t se ttlem ent le tte r, em a il client re  sam e



(.8); approve opp counsel extension request (.1)



09/05/18 0.5 Review client satisfaction em a il & em ail opp counsel r e



sam e & re next steps (.2); review tim esheet & d raft fee



le tte r (.3)



29.0 h r s x $563/hr = $16,327.00



5.7 h r s   x $572/hr = $  3,260.40



Total Kenn a  fees:     $19,597.40



Costs:



Filin g fee: $400.00



Certified m a il: $  16.50



Total costs: $416.50









Matt Ke nna



P u blic  In terest En viron mental Law 



679 E. 2n d Ave., Suite 11B



Duran go, CO  81301



      (970) 749-9149  m att@ kenna.net



      w w w .mattken na.com



LEGAL EXPERIENCE



Attorney in Private Practice, Durango, Colorado, October 1992 to M arch 2005 and



October 2009 to present.  R epresent citizen groups and individuals



throughout the country in suits and appeals seeking to enforce public-interest



environm ental law s, including the Endangered Species A ct, N ational



Environm ental Policy Act, Freedom of Information Act, and Clean W ater Act.



See list of published opinions, below.



Staff A ttorney , W estern Environm ental Law Center, Durango, Colorado, April 2005



to Septem ber 2009. Practice involved the sam e kinds of clients and cases as



above.  W as lead counsel and argued Sum m ers v. E arth  Island Institute ,555



U.S. 488 (2009) to the U .S. Suprem e Court (for plaintiffs/respondents).  I



remain “Of Counsel” with WELC.



Conferences, Publications & Awards



Received the 2003 Kerry L. Rydberg Award for excellence in public-interest



environm ental litigation , presented  at the annual Public In terest 


Environm ental Law Conference sponsored by the organization Land,



Air & W ater, at the University of Oregon School of Law



Panelist, Annua l Public Interest Environm ental Law Conference, Eugene,



Oregon, annually 1993-2016 (except 2001).  H ave presented panels on



various topics, including ‘The Record and Discovery in Administrative



Procedure Act Suits,”  “Forest Service Appeals and Categorical



Exclusions,” “Ethics in Environm ental Litigation,” “Forest Litigation



in the Tw enty-First Century,” “A ttorney Fees in Environm ental



Litigation,” “Starting and R unning an Environm ental Law Practice,”



“The Effect of FW S’s Candidate Species Program on Listing Species



under the ESA,” and “Developm ents in Suprem e Court and 9 th  C ircuit



Environm ental Law.”



Authored Chevron Deference to Agencies: A Two-Way Street, 15 Southeastern



E nvtl. L.J. 395 (2007).



Author of quarterly “On the Law” colum n for the Durango Herald.



Authored Chapter Two of the 2011 textbook “Cum ulative Effects in W ildlife



Management” (CRC Press), “The NEPA Process: W hat the Law Says.”




http://www.mattkenna.com





Admitted to Practice in the Following Courts: State of Colorado; U.S. Suprem e



Court; U .S. Courts of A ppeals for the Sixth, Seventh, E ighth, N inth, Tenth,



and District of Colum bia Circuits; U .S. D istrict Courts for the D istrict of



Colorado and District of Colum bia; previous and/or current pro hac vice



practice in Arizona, California, Illinois, Nevada, New M exico, Oregon, Texas,



and  U tah .



EDUCATION



University of Oregon, Eugene, Oregon.  J.D., 1992. 


Order of the Coif (top 10% of class).



A rticles Editor, Journal of Environm ental Law  and Litigation.



Certificate of Com pletion, Environm ental and  N atura l Resources Law



Program .



Founding Co-Chair, O regon Law  Students' Public Interest Fund.



University of Vermont, Burlington, Verm ont.  B .A . in Environm ental Studies, 1988.



COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT



La Plata County United W ay Allocations Com m ittee m em ber



Southwest Colorado Bar Association Grant Com m ittee m em ber



Volunteer, Southwest Colorado Bar Sm all C laim s M ediation Program 



Form er Colorado Backcountry Hunters &  Anglers Vice-Chair for Finance



Form er board m em ber, Energy M inerals Law  Center



Form er board m em ber, D urango Early Learning C enter



REPORTED CASES (through Au gust, 2018)



(Counsel for plaintiffs unless otherwise indicated)



Sum m ers v. E arth  Island Institute , 555 U .S. 488 (2009)



Wild  E qu ity In st. v. E PA, 696 Fed. Appx. 843, 705 Fed. Appx. 572 (9th Cir. 2017)



AquAlliance v. U .S. Bureau of Reclamation , 856 F.3d 101 (D.C. Cir. 2017)



Cottonwood Environmental Law Center v. U.S. Forest Service,



789 F.3d 1075 (9th Cir. 2015)



Black M esa W ater Coalition v. Jewell, 776 F.3d 1055 (9th Cir. 2015)



W ildEarth G uardians v. Jewell, 738 F.3d 298 (D.C. Cir 2013)



Adams v. U .S. Forest Service, 671 F.3d 1138 (9th Cir. 2012)
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Ark Initiative v. U .S. Forest Service, 660 F.3d 1256 (10th Cir. 2011)



Diné Citizen s Against R u in ing our E nvironm en t v. Klein , 439 Fed. Appx. 679,



 2011 W L 3793969 (10th Cir. 2011)



Scherer v. U.S. Forest Service, 653 F.3d 1241 (10th Cir. 2011)



Arizona Cattle Growers' Ass'n v. Salazar, 606 F.3d 1160 (9th Cir. 2010)



(counsel for intervenor-defendant)



Arizona Public Service Co. v. U.S. EPA , 562 F.3d 1116 (10th Cir. 2009)
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Biodiversity Conservation Alliance v. Stem ,519 F.3d 1226 (10th Cir. 2008)
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Colorado Wild v. U.S. Forest Service, 435 F.3d 1204 (10th Cir. 2006)



Heartwood v. U.S. Forest Service, 380 F.3d 428 (8th Cir. 2004)



Heartwood v. U.S. Forest Service, 316 F.3d 694 (7th Cir. 2003)
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Center for Biological Diversity v. Norton, 262 F.3d 1077 (10th Cir. 2001)



Center for Biological Diversity v. Norton, 254 F.3d 833 (9th Cir. 2001)



Heartwood v. U.S. Forest Service, 230 F.3d 947 (7th Cir. 2000)



Forest Guardians v. Babbitt, 174 F.3d 1178 (10th Cir. 1999)



M aier v. U .S. EPA , 114 F.3d 1032 (10th Cir. 1997)



Maricopa Audubon Soc. v. U.S. Forest Service, 108 F.3d 1082 (9th Cir. 1997)



Maricopa Audubon Soc. v. U.S. Forest Service, 108 F.3d 1089 (9th Cir. 1997)



M ount Graham Coalition v. U.S. Forest Service, 108 F.3d 1100 (9th Cir. 1997)
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Audubon Soc. v. U .S. Forest Service, 104 F.3d 1201 (10th Cir. 1997)
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Diné Citizen s Against R u in ing Ou r E nviron m en t v. B u reau  of In d ian  Affairs,
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Center for Biological Diversity v. U.S. Forest Service, 2016 WL 5334474
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Center for Biological Diversity v. U.S. Forest Service,
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TimeEntry 10/10/2017 0.2 A103 Draft/reL210 Pleading



TimeEntry 10/12/2017 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 10/18/2017 0.3 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 11/8/2017 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 11/11/2017 0.1 A105 CommuL120 Analysis/



TimeEntry 11/13/2017 0.1 A107 CommuL140 Docume



TimeEntry 11/14/2017 0.2 A106 CommuL140 Docume



TimeEntry 11/14/2017 0.2 A104 Review/L430 Written



TimeEntry 11/15/2017 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 11/16/2017 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 11/28/2017 0.2 A106 CommuL110 Fact Inve



TimeEntry 12/1/2017 0.2 A107 CommuL210 Pleading



TimeEntry 12/15/2017 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 12/18/2017 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 1/18/2018 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 1/19/2018 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 1/26/2018 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 1/29/2018 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 2/1/2018 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume



TimeEntry 2/8/2018 0.1 A110 ManageL140 Docume
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Description Rate Amount User



Draft complaint 483 96.6 Rachel Doughty



Docket complaint; enter judge into



clio 483 48.3 Rachel Doughty



Docket 4 5 and 6 164 49.2 Carla Barraez



DKT 7 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



Review email from client re direct



communication with agency 483 48.3 Rachel Doughty



Confer with opposing counsel re



stipulation on enlargement of time 483 48.3 Rachel Doughty



Discuss document review for



exemptions with client 483 96.6 Rachel Doughty



Review proposed stipulation to



enlarge time and respond to



opposing counsel re same 483 96.6 Rachel Doughty



Docket 8 and 8-1 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



Docket Minute Order 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



Confer with opposing counsel and



then client re the status of the FOIA



response review of redactions 483 96.6 Rachel Doughty



Communicate re document review 483 96.6 Rachel Doughty



DKT 9 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



Minute order extending time for def



response to 2018-01-18 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



DKT 10



164 16.4 Carla Barraez



Minute Order granting Defendant's



Motion for Extension of Time 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



docket 11 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



MINUTE ORDER GRANTING



EXTENSION OF TIME



164 16.4 Carla Barraez



DKT 12 164 16.4 Carla Barraez



minute order 164 16.4 Carla Barraez
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RACHEL S. DOUGHTY
 rdoughty@greenfirelaw.com


(828) 424-2005


EXPERIENCE: 
 Greenfire Law, PC, Berkeley, CA


Founder, July 2011 -- Present


• Litigation and legislative drafting


• Representative legal authority: Clean Water Act, Proposition 65, Wild and Scenic Rivers Act,

Transportation Act (Section 4(f)), Refuge Management Act, National Environmental Policy Act,



Freedom of Information Act, California Environmental Quality Act


• Legislative drafting: plastic microbeads ban in personal care products


• Representative clients: Earth Island Institute, Georgia ForestWatch, 5 Gyres, Story of Stuff,



Center for Biological Diversity, individuals


 Paul, Hastings, Janofsky & Walker LLP, San Francisco, CA


Associate, November 2007 – August 2010


• Environmental compliance counseling


• Representative legal authority: California environmental and land use law, Resource

Conservation and Recovery Act, National Environmental Policy Act, Clean Water Act, Clean



Air Act, laws and regulations pertaining to federal lands management


• Representative clients: solar power producers, geothermal power producers, industrial

recyclers, manufacturers of consumer goods, public lands management citizen groups


Gary A. Davis & Associates, Hot Springs, NC
Associate, June 2006 -- June 2007


• Litigation and state and federal administrative actions


• Representative legal authority: Clean Water Act, Freedom of Information Act, North

Carolina’s Sedimentation Pollution Control Act, local land use and environmental ordinances  


• Representative clients: individual land owners, public interest groups in North Carolina,



Alabama, Tennessee, and Florida


 WildLaw, Asheville, NC
Attorney, September 2004 -- April 2006


• Federal administrative law, media, organizing 


• Representative legal authority: National Forest Management Act, Federal Lands Policy and

Management Act, National Environmental Policy Act, Freedom of Information Act,



Administrative Policy Act, Clean Water Act, state and local ordinances; corresponding

regulations 


• Representative clients: Wild South, South Carolina Native Plant Society 


 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Water, Wetlands Division, Washington, DC
National Network for Environmental Management Studies Fellow, 2000 -- 2001


• Bronze Medal Award for Commendable Service for preparation of multi-state/federal action

plan for remediation of hypoxia in Gulf of Mexico


• Policy analysis: hypoxia in the Gulf of Mexico and USDA Farm Bill programs







BAR ADMISSIONS: 


• California (active); North Carolina (inactive)


COURT ADMISSIONS: 


• United States District Court for the Central, Eastern, and Northern Districts of California,



Western District North Carolina, Fourth and Ninth Circuit Courts of Appeal, D.C. (pending)


EDUCATION: 


University of Virginia School of Law, Charlottesville, VA


J.D., 2004; GPA 3.49


• Environmental Law Forum (President), William Minor Lile Moot Court Competition,
National Environmental Moot Court Competition 


• Conference on Public Service and the Law (panel organizer)


 Cornell University, Ithaca, NY
M.S. Natural Resources, Minor Concentration: Biogeochemistry, 2003; GPA 3.97


• Thesis: Use of Wetlands to Reduce Nitrogen Loads in the Mississippi Atchafalaya River

Basin


• Teaching Assistant, Introductory Biology Laboratory


 University of Tennessee, Knoxville, TN


B.S. Biochemistry, Cellular and Molecular Biology, 1998; magna cum laude


• Howard Hughes Threshold Honors in Biology Scholar


• Beta Beta Beta Biology Honor Society


• Laboratory Research Assistant to Dr W. O. Smith as part of Joint Global Ocean Flux Study

in Antarctica, funded by National Science Foundation


PUBLICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:


• Speaker, Public Interest Environmental Law Conference: Land Use Regulation in the Age of

Marijuana Legalization (2017)


• Speaker, Hammer Museum, Ocean Plastic Pollution (2015)


• Speaker, Public Interest Environmental Law Conference, Plastics: Changing the Rules Panel

(2015)


• Speaker, Tulane Summit on Environmental Law & Policy, Plastics Panel (2014)


• Co-author, The Case for a Ban on Microplastics in Personal Care Products, Tulane



Environmental Law Journal (Summer 2014)


• Speaker, Public Interest Environmental Law Conference, Ethics Panel (2013)


• Speaker, Plastic Pollution Solutions:  Effective Legal Tools Panel, Blue Ocean Film

Festival (2012)


• Co-author, “Energy Inputs in Crop Production in Developing and Developed Countries” in

Rattan Lal et al., Food Security and Environmental Quality in the Developing World (2003)


• Author, Types of Wetlands (http://water.epa.gov/type/wetlands/types_index.cfm).


COMMUNITY:


Dogwood Alliance


• Board of Directors: chair (current), vice chair (2013-2015), Board Governance Committee

Chair (2012)


Women in Greentech & Sustainability


• Founding board member (2010)
Cleantech Open Competition


• Volunteer (2009-2010)



http://water.epa.gov/type/wetlands/types_index.cfm)






UNITED STATESDISTRICTCOURT



FOR DISTRICTOFNEW HAMPSHIRE



Lliiv



RICHARD MAXIMUS STRAHAN



Plaintiff



V.



ADMINISTRATOR, NATIONAL OCEANICAND



ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION ("NOAA")



ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR, NATIONAL MARINE 


FISHERIES SERVICE ("NMFS")



Defendants



hljb 2U P 3: 15



Civil Act i on  No.



24 August 2018



VERIFIED COMPL AINTFORDECL ARATORY,INJUNCTIVE, AND



OTHERREL IEF AND AREQUESTFORAJURYTRIAL 



I t h e Plaintiff — Rich a rd Ma xi mu s Stra h a n —SPEAKS: 



1. Plaintiff Strah an is a conservation scientist petitioning th e Court to enforce th e



"take proh ib itions" imposed b y th e Endangered Species Act against all of th e Defendants to



stop their future killing and inj uring of species of wh ales and sea turtles listed as protected



species under th e Endangered Species Act. Th e Defendant are killing and inj uring Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles pursuant to their licensing and regulating commercial fish ing.



2. Th ese species include th e North ern Righ t Wh ales and oth er endangered species



of wh ales. FNl  Th is also includes Green Turtles and oth er endangered species of Sea Turtles.



FN2  Th e Defendants are killing and/or inj uring Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles incidental



'Th e Endangered Wh ales includes: (1) Th e Sei Wh ale, Balaenoptera borealis; (2) Th e North ern



Righ t Wh ale, Eub alaena glacialis: (3 ) Th e Hump b ack Wh ale Megaptera novaeangliae; (4) Th e



Fin Wh ale Balaenoptera ph ysalus: and (5) Th e Blue Wh ale, Balaenoptera musculus.



^ Th e Endangered Sea Turtles include: (1) Th e Green turtle, Chelonia mydas,; (2) Loggerh ead



turtle, Caretta caretta;, (3 ) Th e Olive Ridley turtle, Lepidoch elys olivacea; (4) Th e Hawksb ill



turtle, Eretmoch elys imbricate', (5) Th e Kemp's Ridley turtkle, Lepidoch elys kempit, and (6) Th e



Leath erb ack turtle, Dermoch elys coriacea.
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to their permitting and regulating th e deployment of pot fish ing gear ("Pot Gear") and gill net



fish ing gear ("Gill Nets") in marine waters with in th e United Sates ECZoff its north east



coastline. For th e last twenty years and b efore, Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles h ave b een



entangled b y Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at is b eing deployed in th e essential marine wilderness



inh ab ited b y th ese ESA listed species under license and regulation b y th e Defendants. Th e



principal feature of Pot Gear th at is entangling th ese ESA listed species is th e b uoy rope th at is



attach ed to th e pots deployed on th e seafloor and rises vertically to attach  to marker b uoys



floating on th e sea surface ("Vertical Buoy Rope" or "VBR"). For Gill Nets Endangered



Wh ales are entangled b y b oth  VB R and th e netting it is used to h old vertically in th e water



col umn .



NOAA/ NMFSOngoi ng "Wh a l e Fra ud"



3. Th e Defendants' entanglements of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles is



arresting th e recovery from their endangered species status. It is also significantly precipitating



their extinction. In th e case of a critically endangered species like th e North ern Righ t Wh ale,



their critically low population size and severely low birth rate insures th at a single killing fi-om



any anth ropogenic activity of th ese wh ales in a single a year is likely to precipitate their



imminent extinction. During its 2018- 2019 b reeding season, th e North ern Righ t Wh ale's



remaining population did not give birth to a single calf. Th is complete sh utdown of species



reproductivity during its annual b reeding season is incontrovertib le evidence th at North ern



Righ t Wh ale are experiencing a statistical certainty of extinction in th e immediate future



unless aggressive efforts are made to stop all anth ropogenic killings and also enh ance its



ab ility to reproduce.



4. It is estab lish ed l a w th at t h e Def en da n t s are liab le for t h e violation of  t h e ESA's 



Section 9  proh ib ition on taking listed endangered species wh en any of th e fish ing gear th at th ey



permit and regulate actually entangles an Endangered wh ale or Sea Turtle. FN3  It is



incontrovertib le th at th e Government Defendants current and past licensing and regulating Pot



Gear and Gill Net fish eries routinely causes th e killing and inj uring of ESA listed endangered



^ See Strah an v. Coxe, 93 9 F. Supp. 963  (Dist. Mass. 1996) and affirmed b y 127 F. 3d 155 (1st



Circuit, 1997) (Massach usetts marine fish ing agency liab le under ESA Section 9(a) for unlawful



taking of ESA listed species of endangered wh ales b y entanglements of endangered wh ales in



fish ing gear licensed and regulated th is agency).
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species of wh ales and sea turtles. It is also indisputab le th at th e Government Defendants in



doing so are violating th e ESA Section 9 take proh ib itions b y unlawfully talking endangered



species of wh ales and sea turtles. Th e Court h as little or no discretion b ut to enj oin th e



Goverrunent Defendants from auth orizing any furth er deployment of Pot Gear and Nets into US



coastal waters until th ey stop licensing Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at entangle Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles and th erefore cause th e incidental taking of listed species of wh ales and



sea turtles th at are proh ib ited b y ESA Section 9.



5. Th e Defendant agencies b y statutory mandate and culture serve only commercial



marine fisheries and this industry's commercial exploitation of th e marine environment. Th ey



officially consider compliance with  th e ESA's mandates and proh ib itions as an unacceptab le



threat to their governmental vested interests. Th e Defendants h ave always delib erately refused



to enforce th e ESA's Section 9  take proh ib itions against state and federally licensed



commercial fish ing operations. Instead NOAA/NMFS h as historically ch osen to protect th ese



commercial vested interests of th eirs from any adverse impact as a result of th e enforcement of



th e ESA. For similar reasons, th ese Defendants th emselves refuse to comply with  th e



mandatory and non-discretionary duties imposed on th em b y th e ESA;s Section 7 to conserve



and protect Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th is is wh y Endangered Wh ales are still b eing



entangled and killed b y Vertical Buoy Ropes two decades after a federal j udge in Strah an v.



Coxe ruled th at government agencies were liab le for th e killing and inj uring of Endangered



Wh ales caused b y th e lob ster pot fish ing th ey licensed and regulated.



6. Instead of complying with  th e Strah an v. Coxe decision, NOAA/ NMFS went on



th e defensive to concoct and implement an elab orate sch eme to evade Pub lic scrutiny and from



b eing compelled to enforce ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against th e commercial fish ing industry



(or th emselves h aving to comply with  th e mandates imposed on federal agencies b y ESA



Section 7). Th ey engaged in wh at I call "Wh a l e Fraud." FN4 NOAA/ NMFS employees



worked with  commercial fish ermen to solicit specific non-government organizations ("NGOs"),



with  generous grants of government funds and issuing th em permits to guarantee their



exclusive access to conduct field research  on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. In return



th ese NGOs agreed to conduct research on th ese species th at would only produce data b enign to



Stra h a n  B C L a w  rev i ew article
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commercial fish ing industry and never actually document th e entanglement of Endangered



Wh ales or Sea Turtles in fish ing gear. Th ese NGO's would never allow th eir field data to h e



used h y environmental activists in lawsuits against NOAA/NMFS or th e commercial fish ing



industry.



7. To enforce t h e ESA or Ma ri n e Ma mma l Protection Act. Th ese f a vored NG O's 



used their exclusive possession of ESA/MMPA research  permits to control all oth er research  on



th ese species to insure b oth  their own  dominance in research on th ese species an control all



oth er research ers b y allowing th em opportunity for field research  with  th em in exch ange for



th eir ow n  cooperation with  th e NGOs  and NOAA/NMFS Wh ale Fraud.



8. Th e Pub lic's access to records of fish ing gear entanglements of Endangered



Wh ales and Sea Turtles is b eing stopped b y NOAA/NMFS and their Wh ale Fraud partner



NG Os .FN5  Th e  Def en da n t s refuse to a l low t h e Pub lic to h a v e routine access to records on 



events of Endangered Wh ale and Sea Turtle b eing entangled in US coastal waters. Th e



Defendants do so delib erately to th wart th e ability of unb iased scientists and conservationists to



rouse Pub lic support for programs to protect endangered species from entanglement in fish ing



gear. Additionally their Wh ale Fraud Partners refuse to allow th e Pub lic any access to th e field



data collected b y th em on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles as a result of th eir research 



activities funded and licensed b y NOAA/NMFS, wh ich  records of sigh ting of entangled wh ales



a n d  sea  turtles.



9. Th e Plaintiff and Wh ale Safe USA requests for access to Endangered Wh ale and



Sea Turtles entanglement records h ave b een repeatedly denied b y NOAA/NMFS. Th ey h ave



b een forced to utilize th e Freedom of Information Act as a "can opener" to get access



NOAA/NMFS' said entanglement records involving Endangered Wh ales h ales and Sea Turtles.



Pursuant to their Wh ale Fraud Program, th ese FOIA requests h ave eith er b een unlawfully



refused outrigh t or NOAA/NMFS h as attempted to bill th e Plaintiff th ousands of dollars to



ob tain a simple Excel™ spreadsh eet documenting th ese entanglement events. FN6



^ Th e NGO's working in concert with  NOAA/NMFS' Wh ale Fraud program ("Wh ale Fraud



Partners") include th e Ne w  England Aquarium, th e Center for Coastal Studies and th e Woods Hole



Oceanograph ic Institute.



^ In response to Plaintiff s 2018 FOIA request for records of wh ale entanglements, NOAA/NMFS



written response demanded a payment of over $20,000 just for th e Defendants to b egin "looking"



for th e requested records.
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10. Th e Plaintiff is seeking a Permanent Inj unction from th e Court against th e



Def en da n t s —



a. Enj oining th e Defendants from requiring th e furth er use of Vertical Buoy Ropes



h y th e commercial fish ermen th at it licenses and regulates.



b . Enj oining th e Defendants from furth er licensing th e use of fixed Gill Nets off



t h e US nort h east coastline.



c. Order th e Defendant to pub lish  with  month ly updates for routine Pub lic



inspection all its scientific records of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles



entangled and oth erwise sigh ted off th e US north east coast in its possession and



th at ws acquired b y research  efforts it eith er funds or licenses.



d. Order th e Defendants to supply th e Plaintiff th e documents h e seeks pursuant to



h is past and future FOIA requests to th em conceming Endangered Wh ales and



Sea turtles and to do so with out any cost to h im.



e. Order t h e Def en da n t  NOAA to comme n ce a n  ESA Section 7 rev i ew on  w h i ch 



infra-agency it will assign th e ESA/MMPA's supervisory and administrative



duties assigned to it b y Congress in preference to its h istorical assignment of



th em to NMFS, wh ich  was done with out th e requisite ESA Section 7  review.



f. Order t h e Def en da n t s to comme n ce  a n d con duct  a  l awful ESA Section 7 rev i ew



concerning th e adverse impact on Endangered Sea Turtles and Wh ales of th eir



licensing and regulating commercial fish ing operations.



g. Order th at th e Defendants must require th at commercial marine fish eries



licensed and regulated b y state governments in coastal waters under their state



j urisdiction b e sub j ect to an ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permit issued



individual state marine fish ing agencies or individual commercial fish ermen



licensed b y a state to use Lob ster Pots and Gill Nets in marine waters under its



state j urisdiction.



11. Th e Plaintiff is seeking a j ury trial on h is request for a declaratory j udgment



against th e Defendants. He is also seeking an award against th e Defendants of h is costs of



litigation in th e instant action.



Th e Pa rt i es



12. Plaintiff Rich ard Maximiis Strah an recently graduated ma gn um cum laucle with  a
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Bach elor of Arts degree in Classics Studies from th e University of Massach usetts in Boston MA.



He currently enrolled in th e graduate sch ool at th e University of New  Hampsh ire seeing a Master



of Arts degree in Lib eral Studies. He volunteers as th e Ch ief Science Officer of Wh a le Safe



USA, a campaign to make th e US coastline environmentally safe for endangered species of



coastal wh ales and sea turtles. Strah an is a conservation scientist wh ose profession activities



include designing and implementing conservation programs th at protect Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles in order to stop th eir extinction and to provide for th eir recovery from



th eir endangered species status. Every maj or conservation effort for Endangered Wh ales in US



coastal waters h as originated and designed b y h im. Th is includes imposing 500 yard protection



zones around th e North ern Righ t Wh ale and th e designation of protected critical h ab itat for it.



13. Strah an is a licensed commercial lob ster pot fish ermen in New Hampsh ire. He is



n ow b eing forced b y NHto use Vertical Buoy Ropes in h is lob ster pot gear. He does not want to



do so b ecause of VB R posing a th reat to entangle marine wildlife. He needs th e Court to stop th e



Defendants from permitting VB R in Pot Gear and require th at New Hampsh ire ob tain a ESA



Section 10 Incidental Take Permit in order to continue to license and regulate commercial fish ing



in its state waters. His b usiness mailing address is P. O. Box 82, Peterb orough  NH03458.



14. Defendant Administrator of th e National Oceanic and Atmosph eric



Administration is b eing sued in its official capacity as a violator of th e ESA Section 9 



proh ib itions on taking and for violating its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under



ESA Section 7. Its official b usiness address is 1401 Constitution Av en ue NW,Room



5128, Wash ington, DC2023 0.



15. Def en da n t  Assistant Administrator of  th e National Ma ri n e Fish eries Service is



b eing sued in its official capacity as a violator of th e ESA Section 9 proh ib itions on taking



and for violating its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under ESA Section 7. Its official



b usiness address is %Office of th e Assistant Administrator, National Marine Fish eries



Service, 13 15 East-West High way, Silver Spring MD 20910.
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Jurisdiction a n d Standing



16. Th is Court h as j urisdiction over th is action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 13 3 1 (federal



question) under th e ESA, APA, 5  U.S.C. § 701 et seq. (APA), 28 U.S.C. § 13 61 (ma n damus) and



may issue a declaratory Judgment and furth er relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2202 (declaratory



and inj unctive relief). An  actual, Justiciab le controversy now exists b etween Plaintiff and



Defendants, and th e requested relief is proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201- 2202,5 U.S.C. §§ 701-


706, and 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g). Pursuant to 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), Plaintiff on or ab out 4 June 2018



served a notice on each  of th e Defendants and th e Secretary of Commerce pursuant to 16 USC §



1540(g) more th an 60 days prior to h is commencing th e instant action ("ESA Notice"). In h is



ESA Notice Strah an notified th e Defendants th at h e was going to commence a civil action



against th e Defendants for th eir said violations of th e ESA. ' 



17. Venue in th is Judicial district is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e) b ecause th is is



an action against an agency of th e United States and officers of th e United States acting in their



official capacity. Additionally at least one plaintiff resides in th is district.



18. Th e Plaintiff h as Article 111 standing pursuant to h is professional involvement and



recreational ob servational activities of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles off th e US



north eastern coast. Additionally h e h as Article III standing to protect h is profession interests in



h is commercial fish ing activities from violating th e ESA Section 9 taking of Endangered Wh ales



a n d Se a  Turtles. FNS



Th e Regulatory Sch eme for th e Protection of Endangered Species



19. In enacting th e ESA, Congress recognized th at certain species "h ave b een so



depleted in numb ers th at th ey are in danger of or th reatened with  extinction" and th at th ese



species are "of esth etic, ecological, educational, historical, recreational, and scientific value to



' Strah an "confirmed" th e proper service of his ESA Notice on the Defendants b y his filing a copy



of h is ESA Notice in a prior action against th ese Defendants in th e US District Court for th e District



of Massach usetts. See Strah an v. Administrator NOAA, et al., 18-CV- 103 92-DJC (D. Mass 2018).



At no point h enceforth  h as th e Defendants claimed th at th ey did not receive Strah an's ESA Notice.



Th e Defendants were eventually dismissed with out prej udice pursuant to FRCP Rule 41(a) from



t h e Ma ssa ch uset t s lawsuit.



^ Japan Wh aling Association v. American Cetacean Society, 478 U.S. 221, 230 n.4 (1986)



(plaintiffs "wh ale watch ing" activities estab lish es Article III standing to seek enforcement of



conservation laws); Bennett r. Spear. 520 US 154 (1997) (Ranch er h as Article 111 standing to



protect h is commercial interests from enforcement of ESA).
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th e Nation and its people." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(a) (2) and (3).



20. Th e ESA protects imperiled species b y listing th em as "endangered" or



"th reatened." Aspecies is "endangered" if it "is in danger of extinction th rough out all or a



significant portion of its range." Id. § 1532(6). Aspecies is "th reatened" if it "is likely to b ecome



an endangered species with in th e foreseeab le future th rough out all or a significant portion of its



range." Id. § 1532(20). Th e Secretary of Commerce is ch arged with  administering and enforcing



th e ESA for most marine species, including North  Atlantic righ t wh ales, and h as delegated th is



responsib ility to NMFS. 50 C.F.R. § 402.01(b ).



21. Th e ESA seeks "to provide a means wh ereb y th e ecosystems upon wh ich 



endangered and th reatened species depend may b e conserved, [and] to provide a program for th e



conservation of such  ... species." 16 U.S.C. § 1531(b ). Th e ESA defines conservation as "th e



use of all meth ods and procedures wh ich  are necessary to b ring any endangered species or



th reatened species to th e point at wh ich  th e measures provided pursuant to [th e ESA] are no



longer necessary." Id. § 1532(3). Accordingly, th e ultimate goal of th e ESA is not only to



prevent listed species from going extinct, b ut also to recover th ese species to th e point wh ere



th ey no longer require ESA protection



22. To accomplish  th ese goals. Section 9 of th e ESA generally makes it unlawful for



"any person" to "take" an endangered species. Id. § 1538(a)(1). A"person" includes private



parties as well as local, state, and federal agencies. Id. § 1532(13). "Take" is defined b roadly



under th e ESA to include h arassing, h arming, wounding, killing, or capturing a protected species



(or attempting to engage in such  conduct), eith er directly or b y degrading its h ab itat enough  to



impair essential b eh avior patterns. Id. § 1532(19); 50 C.F.R. § 222.102. Th e ESA proh ib its th e



acts of parties directly causing a take as well as th e acts of third parties, such  as governmental



agencies, wh ose acts cause such  taking to occur. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(g). Additionally, Section



7(a)(2) of th e ESA requires federal agencies to "insure th at any action auth orized, funded, or



carried out b y such  agency ... is not likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of any"



endangered or th reatened species. Id. § 1536(a)(2).



23. To comply with  Section 7(a)(2)'s sub stantive mandate, federal agencies must



consult with  NMFSwh en their actions "ma y affect" a listed marine species. 16 U.S.C. §



1536(a)(2). NMFSand th e action agency must utilize th e "b est scientific and commercial data



availab le" during th e consultation process. Id.; 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a).
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24. Wh ere, as h ere, NMFSis th e action agency as well as th e expert consulting



agency, NMFS must undertake intra-agency consultation. At th e completion of consultation, th e



consulting b ranch  of NMFS issues a b iological opinion th at describ es th e expected impact of th e



agency action on listed species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b ); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14. Th e b iological opinion



must include a summary of th e information upon wh ich  th e opinion is b ased, an evaluation of



"th e current status of th e listed species," th e "effects of th e action," and th e "cumulative effects."



50 C.F.R. § 402.14(g)(2), (g)(3). "Effects of th e action" include b oth  direct and indirect effects



of an action "th at will b e added to th e environmental b aseline." Id. § 402.02. Th e "environmental



b aseline" includes "th e past and present impacts of all Federal, State or private actions and oth er



h uman activities in th e action area, th e anticipated impacts of all proposed Federal projects in th e



action area th at h ave already undergone formal or early section 7 consultation, and th e impact of



State or private actions wh ich  are contemporaneous with  th e consultation in process." Id.



"Cumulative effects" include "future State or private activities, not involving Federal activities,



th at are reasonab ly certain to occur with in th e action area." Id.



25. Th us, in issuing a b iological opinion, NMFS must consider not j ust th e isolated



sh are of responsibility for impacts to th e species traceab le to th e activity th at is th e sub j ect of th e



b iological opinion, b ut also th e effects of th at action wh en added to all oth er activities and



influences th at affect th e status of th at species. After NMFS h as added th e direct and indirect



effects of th e action to th e environmental b aseline and cumulative effects, it must make its



determination of "wh eth er th e action is likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of a listed



species." 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(3), (b)(4); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(h). A likelihood of j eopardy is



found wh en "an action [] reasonab ly would b e expected, directly or indirectly, to reduce



appreciab ly th e likelihood of b oth  th e survival and recovery of a listed species in th e wild b y



reducing th e reproduction, numb ers, or distribution of th at species." 50 C.F.R. § 402.02.



Recovery is defined as "improvement in th e status of listed species to th e point at wh ich  listing is



no longer appropriate." Id. A biological opinion th at concludes th at th e agency action is not



likely to j eopardize th e continued existence of a listed species b ut will result in take incidental to



th e agency action must include an incidental take statement. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(4).



26. Th e incidental take statement must specify th e amount or extent of incidental



taking on such  listed species, "reasonab le and prudent measures" that NMFS considers necessary



or appropriate to minimize such  impact, and set forth "terms and conditions" th at must b e
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complied with  b y th e action agency to implement th e reasonab le and prudent measures. Id.; 50



C.F.R. § 402.14(i). Additionally, wh en th e listed species to b e incidentally taken are marine



mammals, th e take must first b e auth orized b y NMFSpursuant to th e MMPA,and th e incidental



take statement must include any additional measures necessary to comply with  th e MMPAtake



auth orization. Th e take of a listed species in compliance with  th e terms of a valid incidental take



statement is not proh ib ited under Section 9  of th e ESA. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(h )(4), (o)(2); 50 C.F.R.



§ 402.14(i)(5). If NMFSdetermines in its b iological opinion th at th e action is likely to j eopardize



th e continued existence of a listed species, th e b iological opinion must include "reasonab le and



prudent alternatives" to th e action th at will avoid j eopardy. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(h )(3)(A); 50 C.F.R.



§ 402.14(h )(3).



27. Regardless of th e conclusion reach ed in th e b iological opinion, th e agency



undertaking th e federal action h as an independent duty to ensure th at its actions are not likely to



j eopardize th e continued existence of listed species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2). An  agency's



reliance on a legally flawed b iological opinion to auth orize an action does not satisfy its



sub stantive duty to ensure against j eopardy.



Moreover, th e ESA's implementing regulations furth er require an agency to reinitiate Section 7 



consultation wh en:  (a) th e amount of take specified in th e incidental take statement is exceeded;



(b ) n ew information reveals th at th e action ma y h ave effects not previously considered; (c) th e



action is modified in a wa y th at was not previously considered; or (d) a n ew species is listed or



critical h ab itat designated th at ma y b e affected b y th e identified action. 50 C.F.R. § 402.16. Th e



ESA specifies th at Section 7 consultation must typically b e completed with in ninety days after



initiation. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b )(1); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(e). Th e sub stantive duty to ensure against



j eopardy of listed species remains in effect regardless of th e status of th e consultation.



Th e  Admi n i s t ra t i v e Proce d ure  Act 



28. Th e APA governs j udicial review of federal agency actions. 5 U.S.C. §§ 701- 706.



Under th e APA, courts "sh all... h old unlawful and set aside agency action, findings, or



conclusions found to b e arb itrary, capricious, an ab use of discretion, or oth erwise not in



accordance with  law" or made "with out ob servance of procedure required b y law." Id. §



706(2)(A), (C), (D).



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 10 of 22








24 August 2018 Complaint in Strah an v. Administrator, NOAA et al. (D. NH2018) 11



Background on Endangered Species of Wh ales a nd Sea Turtles



Adversely Affected b y Commerci a l Fish ing



29. Th e North ern Righ t Wh ale is th e world's most critically endangered large wh ale



species and also one of th e world's most endangered mammals. North ern Righ t Wh ale's



essential marine h ab itat is with in th e 200 mile ECZ of mostly th e US h ut extends north wards into



Canada. Th ey live in th e "urb an sea" of th e United States. Th eir coastal marine h ab itat is no



longer marine wilderness from h aving so h ugely b een adversely impact from commercial



development of area with in 100 miles inland of th e US coast th at spills outward to th e Ocean.



Th e North ern Righ t Wh ale living along th e US coastline is more akin to a moose trying



to live in a sub urb  of an eastern city like Boston or Concord NH. Not a good situation. Righ t



wh ales migrate annually from their summer feeding grounds off th e North east coast of th e



United States to their winter b reeding grounds off th e South east coast.



30. Females typically reach  sexually maj ority at age nine or ten and give b irth to a



single calf. Th e gestation period lasts rough ly one year. From 2005 to 2014, th e average righ t



wh ale calving interval (i.e. th e amount of time b etween th e b irth of a righ t wh ale calf and a



sub sequent calf from th e same moth er) ranged from th ree to five years. Th e average righ t wh ale



calving interval h as increased every year since 2014, to a h igh  of 10 years in 2017. Righ t wh ales



h ave raised patch es of rough ened skin on th eir h eads, known  as callosities. Th ese callosities are



found only on righ t wh ales and, like h uma n fingerprints, h ave distinctive patterns th at enab le



scientists to individually identify righ t wh ales. Th e callosities are covered b y b arnacles and tiny



crust acea n s k n ow n a s w h a l e  lice.



3 1. NMFSamended th e Atlantic Large Wh a le Take Reduction Plan in 2015, b ut did



so to exempt certain waters from th e requirements of th e 2014 rule. 80 Fed. Reg. 30,367 (Ma y



28, 2015). make th e callosities appear wh ite or pale yellow and th us visib le from b oats or during



aerial surveys. Scientists maintain an extensive catalogue th at documents each  of th e North 



Atlantic righ t wh ales kn own  to exist. Alth ough  th e North ern righ t wh ale h as b een protected



under th e ESA since 1973, th e species h as not recovered to a sustainab le population level.



Scientists estimate th at th e species consisted of only 458 individuals as of 2016. Not a single new



b orn North ern Righ t wh ale calf was sigh ted b y dedicated survey efforts during th e 2017- 2018



calving season. NMFSh as previously admitted th at th e species' survival is dependent on



protecting every individual, concluding th at th e loss of even one wh ale ma y contrib ute to th e
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extinction of th e species. Entanglement in commercial fish ing gear and sh ip strikes are th e two



most significant documented sources of mortality and serious inj ury for North ern Righ t Wh ales.



Since 1973  Defendants NOAA/ NMFS h ave failed to meaningfully manage commercial fish ing



and vessel operations off th e US eastern coastline in order to significantly reduce th e unlawful



taking of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y commercial fish ing and vessel operations.



3 2. To reduce th e th reat of sh ip strikes, NMFSissued regulations in 2008 as a result



of th e Plaintiffs petition and th en in 2013  requiring sh ips 65 feet in length  and longer to slow to



ten knots or less in North ern Righ t wh ale h ab itat areas at certain times of year. 73  Fed. Reg.



60,173 (Oct. 10, 2008); 78 Fed. Reg. 73,726 (Dec. 9,2013). Th e rule h as not reduced righ t wh ale



mortalities from sh ip strikes. Entanglement in fish ing gear h as b een th e primary cause of death 



and serious inj uries to Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in recent years. NMFSh as acted



arbitrarily and capriciously in refusing to enforce ESA Section 9 proh ib itions against individual



commercial fish ermen or oth erwise regulate commercial fish ing operation to minimize their



causing th e entanglement and oth erwise unlawful taking of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



3 3. Wh en  North ern Righ t wh ales and oth er Endangered Wh ale s get tangled up in



fish ing gear, th ey can drown immediately. In a significant numb er of cases, h owever, th e animals



die over an extended time period as th ey b ecome incapacitated b y injuries or infections caused



b y th e entanglement or starve. Gear often wraps around wh ales' flippers, mouth s, and tails and,



particularly in growing animals, cinch es tigh ter over time. Such  inj ury often results in maj or



tissue and b one damage and systemic infection. Th e animals often lose weigh t, causing th em to



sink wh en dead so th at death  from entanglement is often underreported. From 2010 to 2014,



th ere were 24 records of serious inj uries and mortalities of righ t wh ales th at involved



entanglement or fish ery interactions - an average of 4.65 wh ales per year.



34. In 2015, th ere were at least 4 n ew confirmed entanglements of righ t wh ales in



fish ing gear; in 2016 th ere were at least 7  n ew confirmed righ t wh ale entanglements; and in



2017, th ere were at least 9 n ew confirmed righ t wh ale entanglements. From 2010 to 2016,



entanglement related death s accounted for 85% of diagnosed righ t wh ale mortalities. In its 2016



stock assessment report, NMFSestab lish ed an annual righ t wh ale PB R of 1. In oth er words,



NMFSh as determined th at only a single righ t wh ale ma y b e killed as a result of h uman activity



wh ile still allowing th e species to reach  its optimum sustainab le population under th e Marine
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Mamma l ;  Protection Act. 16 U.S.C. § 1362(20). Th erefore, current documented serious inj uries



and mortalities are unsustainab le and vastly exceed th e standards of th e MM?A.



35. Most righ t wh ale entanglements and mortalities are undocumented. Documented



serious inj ury and mortality rates ma y vastly underrepresent actual mortality. Scarring data ma y



b etter reflect actual entanglement rates. For example, a study of scarification data estimated th at



b etween 1980 and 2009, nearly 83 % of known righ t wh ales suffered entanglements and 5 9% of



righ t wh ales h ave b een entangled more th an once. Arecent follow-up study indicates th at th e



pattern persisted th rough  at least 2012, and th ere is no evidence to suggest th is threat h as b een



mitigated. In addition to causing serious injuries and mortalities, entanglement in fish ing gear



causes oth er significant h arm to Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles.. For example, research 



indicates th at survivorsh ip prob ab ility for individual North ern Righ t wh ales is reduced b y at least



40% after an entanglement event.



36. Ch ronic entanglement impairs foraging and locomotion. Impaired locomotion can



contrib ute to starvation, wh ile an entanglement of th e mouth  directly impedes foraging, causing



starvation. On e entangled North  Atlantic righ t wh ale gradually starved to death  over th e course



of 3 20 days owing solely to h is impairment of feeding and infection of wounds caused directly



b y entanglement. An  entanglement can also increase stress h ormone levels, wh ich  can contrib ute



to th e development of systematic infections. Severe wounding from an entanglement or repeated



entanglements of righ t wh ales can increase their susceptib ility to disease.



37. Entanglements are reducing th e reproductive success of righ t wh ales, inh ib iting



th e species' ability to recover from th e b rink of extinction. Studies sh ow th at severe wounding



and repeated entanglements of righ t wh ales can cause reduced reproduction. Studies h ave also



found th at female righ t wh ales seen alive and carrying gear or with  severe wounds from



entanglement h ad a significantly lower ch ance of calving again. Females th at experienced



moderate or severe entanglement wounds b etween calving events h ad a significantly longer



calving interval th an females th at experienced minor or no entanglement wounds. Oth er studies



h ave found th at significant energetic impacts also occur from entanglements, especially in



reproductive females. Th e drag from fish ing gear can delay righ t wh ale reproduction b y month s



or yea rs.



38. Th e myriad negative impacts from entanglements are contrib uting to th e dire



status of th e righ t wh ale population. Just since 2010, calving rates h ave dropped b y nearly 40%,
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and th e last four decades h ave seen increasing numb ers of righ t wh ales killed, primarily b y



entanglement in fish ing gear. Th e righ t wh ale population is n ow in decline.



39. Th e declining population trend was evident even b efore th e spring and summer of



2017, during wh ich  at least 17 North ern Righ t wh ales were found dead in th e United States and



Canada. Twelve wh ales were found dead in Canadian waters, and five were found dead in U.S.



waters. Th e cause of death  is still b eing investigated for ma ny of th ese death s, b ut necropsies



sh ow th at at least two of th e wh ales found dead in Canadian waters appear to h ave died from



entanglement in fish ing gear. Tw o of th e wh ales found dead in U.S. waters sh ow evidence of



entanglement. Some of th e wh ales were too decomposed to determine cause of death.



40. Th ese mortalities, wh ich  amount to nearly 1 0% of th e current righ t wh ale



population, will compound negative impacts to righ t wh ales, especially considering th at at least



four of th e dead wh ales h ave b een identified as females and only five calves were b om in 2017.



Conservation scientists assign a h igh  prob ab ility th at North ern Righ t wh ales owing to th eir



reduced viability cause j ust b y th e Defendants said commercial fish ing activities th at ESA



Section 9 proh ib its will b ecome b iologically incapab le of survival as a species b y th e second h alf



of th is century. If th e Court fails to order th e Defendants to stop th eir ongoing said proh ib ited



killing and inj uring of North ern Righ t wh ales, th ey will soon b e extinct even after b eing fully



protected under law b y th e ESA.



41. All Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b ecome routinely b ecome entangled in



th e Pot Gear and Gill Nets licensed and regulated b y th e Government Defendants. Th ese



Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles are th en killed and inj ured as a result. In recent years th e



incidents of entanglements h ave increased for Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th is is



b ecause th ere h as b een an explosion in th e population of Amerikan Lob sters off th e US



nort h eastern coast coi nciden t wi t h  a n  increase in t h e con s ume r ma rk e t  for lob ster. No w  more 



commercial fish ermen are deploying more commercial fish ing gear due to th e greater market



demand and th e larger lob ster population th at can meet th is demand.



42. It is important to note th at th ere are more lob sters b ecause th eir main predator —



th e Cod fish  —was recently wiped out b y overfish ing auth orized and encouraged b y Defendant



NMFS. Despite its constantly decreasing population over ma n y years, NOAA/ NMFS refused to



list th e Codfish  under th e ESA as an endangered/th reatened species and still refuses to do so to



th e current day. Th eir failure is a systemic error owing to th eir singular loyalty to th e commercial
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fish ing industry and not to th e Pub lic interest or to th e rule of law. If th e NOAATNMFS are not



ordered to do oth erwise, th ey will continue to ignore th e entanglement of Endangered Wh ales



and Sea Turtles b y th e Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at th ey license and regulate till th e North ern



Righ t Wh ale goes extinct. It will b e th e first and not last species of wh ale or sea turtle to b e



extirpated b y th e negligence and commercial loyalty of NOAA/NMFS —th e "foxes guarding



th e ch icken coop."



43 . B eca use of  t h e extinction of  Codf i sh  of f t h e US north eastern coast a s a  result of 



its b eing overfish ed, th e Amerikan Lob ster population greatly increased from it no longer b eing



preyed upon b y th e Codfish. Once its predator was eliminated b y overfish ing th e population of



Amerikan lobsters was no longer restrained b y predation. It must b e noted as a lesson of h istory



th at it was th e refusal of NOAA/NMFS to list th e Codfish  as an endangered species th at resulted



in its remaining population b eing totally depleted from overfish ing leading to its extirpation in



th e US north east coastal waters. Despite all th e data collected b y NMFS clearly sh owing th at th e



Codfish  population was decimated from overfish ing and it was facing imminent extinction,



NMFS refused to put any moratorium on its furth er commercial exploitation nor did it list th e



species as endangered under th e ESA. To this day, NMFS' complete dedication to th e



commercial exploitation b y commercial fish ing makes it incapab le of stopping its licensing th e



commercial fish ing of Cod.



44. All of th e ab ove sh ould b e a convincing example of wh y NOAA/NMFS must b e



ordered b y th e Court to ob ey th e ESA if th ere is any possibility of stopping commercial fish ing



from causing th e extinction of any of th e Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.
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Plaintiffs Claims Against th e Defendants



COUNTI: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1536(a)(1):Th e Defendants NOAA/NMFS



Failure to Comply with  th e Mandatory Duties Imposed on Th em b y ESA Section



7(a)(1) to Use Its Auth orities Under L a w to Insure th e Continued Survival of ESA



Listed Species of Endangered and Th reatened Wh ales a nd Sea Turtles. FN9 



45. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 44.



46. Th e Defendants (i. e. NOAA. NMFS) h ave completely refused and failed to



adequately comply with  their non-discretionary and mandatory duties under ESA Section



7(a)(1) to use their authorities to insure th at Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles



protected b y th e ESA will recover from their protected status as depleted species of wildlife.



NMFS h a s failed to enact such  consultations ov er its ma ri n e fish eries activities a n d h a s not used



its lawful authorities to assist in th e recovery of th ese ESA protected species from their depleted



b iological status. Th ey h ave wh olly failed to enforce th e ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against



state agencies and commercial fish ing operations th at license th em.



47. For their part, Defendants NOAAand NMFS h ave violated their mandatory and



non-discretionary duties imposed b y ESA section 7(a)(1) on th em b y wh olly refusing to do an



internal ESA Section 7 consultation in order to implement a program to effectively use their



authorities and responsibilities under ESA Section 7(a)(1) to assist th e recovery of



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles. For example, NMFS wh olly fails to



effectively enforce th e ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions against taking Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles against individual commercial fish ermen and state governments th at



license and regulate commercial fish ing in federal waters under concurrent state jurisdiction



of th ese states. Defendant NOAA violated its said ESA Section 7(a)(1) mandatory and non-


discretionary duties b y transferring to NMFS its duties and responsibilities assigned it b y



Congress under th e ESA in an arb itrary and capricious manner with out any concern for th e



adverse impact on listed endangered species from it doing so.



^ ESA Section 7(a)(1): Th e Secretary [i. e. Secretaries of the Departments of Commerce and



Agriculture] shall review oth er programs administered b y h im and utilize such  programs in



furth erance of th e purposes of this Act. All oth er Federal agencies shall, in consultation with  and



with  th e assistance of th e Secretary, utilize their authorities in furth erance of th e purposes of this



Act b y carrying out programs for th e conservation of endangered species and th reatened species



listed pursuant to section 4 of th is Act.
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48. Th ese said violations of th e Defendants will continue to reoccur daily until th e



Court orders th ese Defendants to comply with  th eir mandatory and non-discretionary duties



under ESA Section 7(a)(1).



COUNTII: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1536(a)(2): Th e Defendants NOAA/NMFS'



Failure to Engage in a  ESA Section 7(a) Consultation to Insure th at th e



Government Defendants Commercial Fish ing Operations a nd Enforcement



Practices of  ESA Section 9 Proh ib itions will Not Jeopardize th e Continued Survival



of Endangered a nd Th reatened Wh ales a n d Sea Turtles. FNIO



49. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 48.



50. Th ese Federal Defendants (i. e. NOAA. NMFS) are violating th e mandatory and



non-discretionary duties imposed on t h em b y ESA Section 7(a)(2) concerning th e adverse impact



on Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles from commercial fish ing th at th ey license and regulate in



concert. Since 1973  and continuing to th e present, th ey h ave failed to adequately comply with 



th eir mandatory and non-discretionary duties to meaningfully consult on th e adverse impact on



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles of its auth orizing and regulating commercial



fish eries operations off th e US Atlantic coastline using Pot Gear and Gill Nets th at h as resulted



in th e continued killing and inj uring of th ese ESA listed species incidental to th eir entanglement



in th e said fish ing gear and currently th reatens th e continued survival of each  of th ese ESA listed



endangered species.



51. Defendant NOAA violated its mandatory and non-discretionary duties under ESA



Section 7(a)(2) b y transferring its ESA management auth ority assigned it b y Congress



concerning listed species of marine wildlife to its infra-agency NMFS. It did th is unlawfully



with out first conducting an internal ESA Section 7(a) consultation to insure th at such  a transfer



would not j eopardize th e continued survival of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



52. NOAA wh olly failed its lawful requirement to consider a more suitab le agency to



wh ich  it would transfer its ESA management responsib ility such  as th e National Ocean Service.



ESA Section 7(a)(2): Each  Federal agency sh all, in consultation with  and with  th e assistance of



th e Secretary [i. e. FWS/NMS], insure th at any action auth orized, funded, or carried out b y such 



agency (h ereinafter in th is section referred to as an "agency action") is not likely to j eopardize th e



continued existence of any endangered species or th reatened species or result in th e destruction or



adverse modification of h ab itat of such  species wh ich  is determined b y th e Secretary. ... In



fulfilling th e requirements of th is paragraph  each  agency sh all use th e b est scientific and



commerci a l  da t a availa b le.
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It was an act of arb itrary and capricious incompetence th at NOAA would h and Endangered



Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles over to th e custody to an agency like NMFSwh ose licensing



and regulation of commercial fish ing routinely kills and/or injures Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles. Th e ESA Section 7  requires th at NOAAfirst produced a Biological



Assessment and th en a Biological Opinion b efore deciding to invoke th e said trans of its ESA



management auth ority for Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



53. Since 1973  Defendants NMFSh as wh olly failed in its mandatory and non-


discretionary duties imder ESA Section 7(a) to enter into an internal consultation over its



programs and policies concerning its enforcement of th e ESA Section 9  proh ib itions against th e



taking of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles.



54. As a result of th ese failures, commercial fish ermen now routinely kill and injure



memb ers Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles incidental to th eir commercial fish eries



operations with out a scintilla of fear th at th ey will b e prosecuted b y NMFS for th ese ESA



Section 9  proh ib ited takings of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles



56. For th eir part, Defendants NMFS/NOAA/ASMFC h ave violated th eir said



mandatory and non-discretionary duties imposed b y ESA section 7(a)(2) and th ey will continue



to do so unless compelled to do oth erwise b y th e Court.
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COUNTIII: Defendants Violation of 16 USC § 1538(a): Th e Defendants Violation of th e ESA



Section 9(a) Proh ib itions Against th e Incidental Taking of Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles Occurring as a Direct Result of th eir Respective



Individual Commercial Fish ing Operations FNl l 



57. Th e Plaintiff re-alleges h is claims of fact and law asserted in paragraph s 1 - 56.



58. Th e Government Defendants (i. e. NOAA, NMFS) are licensing and regulating



commercial fish ing operation off th e Atlantic coastline th at violates th e ESA Section 9 



proh ib itions of th e ESA. Th e Defendants licensed fish ing operations and its individual memb ers



are violating th e ESA Sections 9  proh ib itions b y deploying lob ster pot gear in US coastal waters



th at incidentally entangles Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in a routine and continuous



manner since 1973. Defendants never issued any ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permit to



auth orize any incidental taking b y th em of Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles in th e



commercial fish ing gear th at th ey license and regulate to b e deployed in US coastal waters under



th e concurrent state j urisdiction of Massach usetts.



59. Th e Defendants h ave never issued any ESA Section 7 incidental take statement



auth orizing th eir incidental taking of said endangered species pursuant to their regulating and



licensing said commercial fish eries operations in US coastal waters. Th ese Defendants are



violating th e ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions in their incidental taking Endangered Species of



Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y their facilitating th e operation of commercial fish eries th at deploy Pot



Gear and Gill Nets in US coastal waters. Th is deployment of said fish ing gear continuously and



routinely kills and/or inj ures memb ers of Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles from



th eir entanglements in th e said fish ing gear.



60. Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles are killed and inj ured from



entanglement in Pot Gear and Gill Nets deployed b y th e Defendant ML A memb ers and b y th e



Government Defendants licensing and regulating th ese commercial fish eries. Federal courts h ave



" ESA Section 9(a):[l]t is unlawful for any person sub j ect to th e j urisdiction of th e United States



t o— (A) import any such  species into, or export any such  species from th e United States; (B ) take



any such  species with in th e United States or th e territorial sea of th e United States; (C) take any



such  species upon th e h igh  seas; (D) possess, sell, deliver, carry, transport, or sh ip, b y any means



wh atsoever, any such  species taken in violation of sub paragraph s (B ) and (C); ... or (G) violate



any regulation pertaining to such  species or to any th reatened species of fish  or wildlife listed



pursuant to section 4 of th is Act and promulgated b y th e Secretary pursuant to auth ority provided



b y th is Act.
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repeatedly h eld federal agencies liab le for violating th e ESA's Section proh ib itions wh en their



agency actions expectedly and routinely cause commercial development in ecosystems utilized



b y ESA listed species and th at results in th e unlawful taking of th ese species in violation of th e



ESA Section 9(a) proh ib itions. FN12 



61. Th e Defendants will continue their said ESA Section 9(a) proh ib ited taking of



Endangered Species of Wh ales and Sea Turtles into th e future unless ordered to stop b y th e



Court.



See Strah an v. Coxe, 93 9 F. Supp. 963  (Dist. Mass. 1996) and 127 P. 3 d 155 (1st Circuit, 1997)



(Massach usetts marine fish ing agency liab le under ESA Section 9(a) for unlawful taking of ESA



listed species of endangered wh ales b y entanglements of endangered wh ales in fish ing gear



licensed and regulated th is agency). See also Florida Key Deer v. Paulison, 522 F.3d 113 3  (11th 



Cir. 2008) and Florida Key Deer v. Stickney, 864 F. Supp. 1222 (Dist. FL  1994) (Federal



Emergency Man agemen t Agency violates ESA §§ 9  and 7 for its auth orizing, regulating, and



funding commercial development in h ab itat of ESA listed endangered deer species).
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PRAYER FOR REL IEF



I. For a Declaratory Judgment th atth at NOAA/NMFS are violating th e ESA Section 9 take



proh ib itions b y licensing and regulating Pot and Gill Net fish eries th at are killing, inj uring and



oth erwise taking Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles b y entanglement of memb ers of th ese



endangered species in Vertical Buoy Ropes and netting and th at its permitting of th ese said



fish eries in itself is now a categorical violation of ESA Section 9 proh ib itions as th ey pose a clear



and present danger to entangle said endangered species.



II. For a Declaratory Judgment th at NOAAis now in continuous violation of its mandatory and non-


discretionary duties under ESA Section 7 b y transferring its authority to supervise enforcement of



th e ESA for Endangered Wh ales and Sea Turtles to NMFSwith out th e required review and



b ecause NMFS b y statute is a dedicated commercial fish ing agency and th e "Fox guarding th e



ch icken coop and eating th e ch ickens." It th erefore is categorically unsuitab le under th e ESA to



assume such  supervisory responsib ility for any protected wildlife.



III. For an order, enj oining NMFS from licensing lob ster and crab  pot fish eries employing Vertical



Buoy Ropes in marine waters possib ly inh ab ited at any time of year b y Endangered Wh ales and



Sea Turtles or permitting states to do so in waters under th eir Jurisdiction.



IV. For an order, ordering th e Defendants to comply with  th eir mandatory and non-


discretionary duties under ESA Section 7  in regards to their licensing and regulating



commercial fish ing operations and to require th at states must apply for and b e issued



ESA Section 10 Incidental Take Permits to license commercial fish ing operations in



coastal waters under th eir state Jurisdiction and to redo all relevant b iological opinions.



V. For an award of the Pl̂ ntiff's direct costs of his prosecution against the Defendants.



VI. For any funh er reli/f that the Court deems appropriate.



B Y: 



/s/ Richard Maxij^\is Strahan



Richard Maxiimis Str̂ an



FOB  82, Petemorough  03 458



esi stoo@ yahfflo .com. 61'̂17-4402



Pro Se a n d  Proud!



VERIFICATION OFTHE COMPL AINT



1 Richard Maxinf̂ s Strahan verify under the pains and penalties of perjury that all the facts alleged in the



above complaint ̂e known/o the best of my ability to be true. Signed under the pains and penalties of



perjury this 24th D̂ of Âust in the year 2018.



/s./ R ch a rd 


xi mus  Stra h a n 



Rich ard Ma xi mu s  Stra h a n



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 21 of 22








UNITEDSTATESDISTRICT COURT if' '



FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW HAMP̂ IRE :^ LJ-


RICHARD MAXIMUS STRAHAN



Plaintiff



ADMINISTRATOR,NATIONAL OCEANICAND



ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION ("NOAA")



ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR,NATIONAL MARINE



FISHERIES SERVICE ("NMFS")



Avib 2U P  3' IU



Civil Act i on  No.



24 August 2018



Defendants



PL AINTIFF'S MOTION FOR ACCESSTOTHEECFFIL ING SYSTEM SOTHAT HE MAY 



FIL EDOCUMENTS WITHTHE COURT I THEINSTANT ACTION



Plaintiff — Ri ch a rd Ma x Stra h a n  — SPEAKS: 



I a m asking th e Court to allow me to make filings with  th e Court th rough  its ECF filing



system. I h ave vast experience with  th e ECF system and its requirements. I currently h ave b een



auth orized to make ECF filings in several civil action pending in th e US District Courts.



For the ab <^e reasons, 1 ask the Court to grant my requested relief.



B Y: 



/ s/RL  M̂ i mus Strah an



Rich ard Maximu^ t ra h a n 



POB 8 2 



Peterb orough  NH03 4?



Pro Se a n d Prou d !



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 22 of 22








JS44 (Rev. 06/17) 


CIVIL COVER SHEET



Th e JS 44 civil cover sh eet and th e information contained h erein neith er replace nor supplement th e tiling and service of pleadings or oth er papers as required b y law, except as



provided b y local rules of court. Th is form, approved b y th e Judicial Conference of th e United States in Septemb er 1974, is required for th e use of th e Clerk of Court tor th e



purpose of initiating th e civil docket sh eet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)



MPmDANTS



w  -  -


r ; ' ·



UI *■



(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff



f f I j (EXCEPTm U.S. PLAINTIFFCAS p Ml 2U 



(c ) A ttom eys (Firm  Nam e, A ddress, and Telephone N um ber)



G
P(Z(


10(3 /t-j



'R e s i d e n t o f F i r s t L i iL i s t e d  De fe n d a n t



(I N  U . S .  PL A I N T I F F CA S E S  ON LY)



N OT E : I N  L A N D CON DE MN A T ION  CA S E S , U S E  T HE  LOC A T ION  OF



T H E  T R A C T  OF  L A N D I N VO L VE D. 



A tto rne ys (I f Known)



I I .  BA S I S  OF  JU R I S DI C T I O N  (Place an "X " in One Box Only)



□ I U . S .  Go ve r n m e n t



P la i n t i f f



N i


U . S .  G o ve r n m e n t 



De fe n d a n t



□ 3 Federal Question



(U . S . Governm ent N ot a Party)



□ 4 Dive rs ity



(Ind icate Citizensh ip  o f Partie s in Item  I I I )



I I I .  C I T I Z E N S HI P  OF P R I N C I P A L  P A R T I E S  (P/ace an "X " in One Box for Plaintiff



(F o r Dive rs ity Cases Only)



C i t i z e n  o f T h i s  S ta te 



C i t i z e n  o f A n o t h e r  S ta te 



Citizen or S ubject o f a



F o re ign  C o u n t rv



and One Box fo r Defendant)



PT E ^ DE E  PT E  DE E 



1  Incorp orated o r Princ ip al Place □ 4 0  4



o f Bu s in e s s  I n  T h i s  S ta te 



Incorp orate d and Princ ip al Place 


o f  Bu s in e s s  I n  A n o t h e r  S ta te 



□ 2 


□ 5 a s 



□ 3 0  3 Fore ign N ation □ 6 a  6



I V.  N A T U R E  OF  S U I T  (Place an "X " in One Box Only) 


C l i c k h e re  fo r : N a tu re  o f S u i t C o d e  De s c r i p t io n s . 



L  


C O N T R A C T  


T O R T S  


F O R F E I T U R E d P E N A L T Y  BA N K R U P T C Y  


O T H E R  S T A T U T E S 



1 1 0  I n s u r a n c e  


1 2 0  Ma r i n e  


1 3 0  Mi l l e r  A c t  


140 N egotiable Ins trum ent 


150 Recovery o f Ove rp aym ent 


& E nforcem ent o f Judgm ent 


1 51  Me d i c a r e  A c t  


152 Recovery o f De faulte d 


S tu d e n t L o an s  


(E x c lud e s Ve te rans) 


153 Recove ry o f Ove rp aym ent 


o f  Ve te ra n 's  Be n e fi t s  


1 60  S to c kh o ld e r s ' S u i t s  


1 90  O th e r C o n t r a c t 


195 Contrac t Produc t L iabili ty 


1 96 F ra n c h is e  


L  


R E A L  P R O P E R T Y 



P E R S O N A L  I N JU R Y 



□ 3 1 0  A irp lane 



□ 3 1 5 A irp lane Produc t



L iabili ty 



□ 3 20  A s s au lt, L ibe l &



S la n d e r



□ 3 3 0  Fede ral E m p loye rs '



L iabili ty 



□ 3 40  Ma r in e 



□ 3 45 Ma r in e  P ro d u c t



L iabili ty 



□ 3 50  Mo to r Ve h ic le 



□ 3 55 Mo t o r  Ve h i c le 



Produc t L iabili ty



□ 3 60  O t h e r  P e r s o n a l



I n ju ry



□ 362 Personal In ju ry -


Med ic al Malp rac tic e 



P E R S O N A L  I N JU R Y 



□ 365 Personal In ju ry -


Produc t L iabili ty



□ 3 67 He a lt h  C a r«/ 



P h a r m a c e u t i c a l



Personal In ju ry



Produc t L iabili ty 



□ 3 68 A s be s to s  Pe rs o n a l



I n ju ry Produc t



L iabili ty 



P E R S O N A L  P R O P E R T Y 



□ 3 70  O th e r F ra u d 



□ 371 T ruth in Lend ing



□ 3 80  O th e r Pe rs o n a l



Prop e rty Dam age



□ 385 Prop erly Dam age



Product L iability



□ 625 Dm g Related S e izure



o f Prop e rly 21 U S C 881



□ 690  O th e r



□ 422 A p p eal 28 U S C 158



□ 42 3  Wi t h d r a w a l



28 U S C  1 57



PR p P E R T YR IQ ip p i



□ 820 Cop yrigh ts



□ 83 0  Pate n t



□ 83 5 P a t e n t - A bb r e via t e d 



N ew Drug A p p lic ation



□ 840  T ra d e m a rk



L A BO R 



C I VU .  R I G H T S 



□ 2 1 0  L a n d  C o n d e m n a t io n 



□ 2 2 0  F o r e c lo s u r e 



□ 23 0  Rent Lease & E je c tm ent



□ 240  T o r t s  to  L a n d 



□ 245 T o rt Produc t L iabili ty 



□ 290 A ll Oth e r Real Prop e rty



□ 440  Oth e r C ivi l R igh ts



□ 441 Vo ting



□ 442 E m p loym e nt



□ 443 Hous ing/



A c c o m m o d a t io n s 



□ 445 A m e r .  w /Dis a b i l i t i e s 



E m p loym e nt



□ 446 A m e r .  w /Dis a bi l i t i e s 



O t h e r 



□ 448 E d u c a t io n 



P R I S O N E R  P E T I T I O N S 



Habeas C o rp u s :



□ 463  A l i e n  De ta in e e 



□ 51 0  Mo t io n s  to  Vac a te 



S e n t e n c e 



□ 53 0  Ge n e ra l



□ 535 Death Penalty



O t h e r :



□ 540  Man d am u s  & Oth e r



□ 550 C ivil R igh ts



□ 555 P r is o n  C o n d i t i o n 



□ 560  C ivi l De ta in e e  -


C o n d i t i o n s  o f 



C o n f i n e m e n t 



□ 71 0  F a i r L a bo r S tan d a rd s 



A c t 



□ 720 Labor/Managem ent



R e la t io n s 



□ 740 Railway Labor A c t



□ 751 Fam ily and Med ical



L e a ve  A c t 



□ 790 Oth e r Labor L itigation



□ 791 E m p loyee R e tire m ent



Incom e S e curity A c t



S O C I A L  S E C U R I T Y 



□ 861 HI A (I 3 95ff)



□ 862 Black Lung (923 )



□ 863 DIWC /DIWW (40 5(g))



□ 864 S S ID T i t le  X VI 



□ 865 R S I (40 5(g))



F E DE R A L  T A X  S U I T S 



□ 870 T axes (U . S .  P la in t i ff



o r De fe nd an t)



□ 871 IR S — T̂ h ird Party



2 6 U S C  760 9



I MM I G R A T I O N 



□ 3 75 F a ls e  C la im s  A c t 



□ 3 76Qu iT am (3 1  U S C



3 729(a))



□ 40 0  S tate R eap p ortionm ent



□ 41 0  A n t i t r u s t 



□ 43 0  Banks and Banking



□ 450  C o m m e r c e 



□ 460  Dep ortation



□ 470  R ac ke te e r I n flu e n c e d  an d 



Corrup t Organizations



□ 480  C o n s u m e r C r e d i t



□ 490  C able / S a t T V



□ 850  S e c u r i t i e s / C o m m o d i t i e s / 



E xchange



□ 890 Oth e r S tatutory A c tions



1 A gric u ltu ral A c ts



193 E n vi r o n m e n ta l Ma t te r s 



895 F re e d o m  o f I n fo r m a t i o n 



A c t 



□ 896 A r b i t r a t i o n 



□ 899 A d m in i s t r a t ive  P ro c e d u re 



A c t/R e view o r A p p e al o f



A gency Dec is ion



□ 950 Cons titu tionality o f



S ta t e  S ta tu t e s 



□ 462 N aturalization A p p lication



□ 465 Oth e r Im m igration



A c t i o n s 



^V̂ C)R IGIN  (Place an "X " in OneBoxOnly)



i S ^^r igin al □ 2 Removed fi* om □ 3 Remanded from  □ 4 Reinstated or 0  5 Transferred from ^ 6 Multidistrict □ 8 Multidistrict



Proceed ing S tate Court A p p e llate Court Reop ened A noth e r Dis tric t L itigation - L itigation -


(specify)
 T ransfer Direct File



VI .  C A U S E  O F  A C T I O N  


Cit̂ i^̂ . S . ^̂ i0t̂ rte jurisdictional
statutesunlessdiversity)'.



Bile f descrip tion



VI I .  R E QU E S T E D I N  


C O MP L A I N T : 


□ CHE CK. IF T HIS  IS  A  CLA S S  A CT IC



U N DE R  R U L E  23 , F . R . Cv. P. 



CH^K YE S  only if denjanded in com plaint:



JU R Y DE MA N D: □ N o 



VI I I .  R E L A T E D C A S E (S )



I F  A N Y  


(S ee in s tru c t io n s ):



JU DG E 



DA T E  


S I G N A T U R E  OF  A T T O R N E Y  OF  R E C OR D



F O R  O E E I C E  U S E  O N L Y 



R E C E I P T  # A MO U N T  A P P L Y I N G  I F P  


JU DG E  MA G .  JU DG E 



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1-1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 1 of 2








JS 44 Reverse (Rev. 06/17)



INSTRUCTIONSFOR ATTORNEYS COMPL ETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS44



Auth ority For Civil Cover Sh eet



Th e JS 44 civil cover sh eet and th e information contained h erein neith er replaces nor supplements th e filings and service of pleading or oth er papers as



required b y law, except as provided b y local rules of court. Th is form, approved b y th e Judicial Conference of th e United States in Septemb er 1974, is



required for th e use of th e Clerk of Court for th e purpose of initiating th e civil docket sh eet. Consequently, a civil cover sh eet is sub mitted to th e Clerk of



Court for each  civil complaint filed. Th e attorney filing a case sh ould complete th e form as follows:



I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If th e plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use



only th e full n ame or standard ab b reviations. If th e plaintiff or defendant is an official with in a government agency, identify first th e agency and



th en th e official, giving b oth  n ame and title.



(b ) County of Residence. For each  civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter th e n ame of th e county wh ere th e first listed plaintiff resides at th e



time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter th e n ame of th e county in wh ich  th e first listed defendant resides at th e time of filing. (NOTE:  In land



condemnation cases, th e county of residence of th e "defendant" is th e location of th e tract of land involved.)



(c) Attorneys. Enter th e firm name, address, teleph one numb er, and attorney of record. If th ere are several attorneys, list th em on an attach ment, noting



in th is section "(see attach ment)".



II. Jurisdiction. Th e b asis of jurisdiction is set forth  under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., wh ich  requires th at j urisdictions b e sh own in pleadings. Place an "X"



in one of th e b oxes. If th ere is more th an one b asis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in th e order sh own b elow.



United States plaintiff. (I) Jurisdiction b ased on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits b y agencies and officers of th e United States are included h ere.



United States defendant. (2) Wh en  th e plaintiff is suing th e United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in th is b ox.



Federal question. (3 ) Th is refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 13 31, wh ere jurisdiction arises under th e Constitution of th e United States, an amendment



to th e Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of th e United States. In cases wh ere th e U.S. is a party, th e U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes



precedence, and b ox 1 or 2 sh ould b e marked.



Diversity of citizensh ip. (4) Th is refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 13 32, wh ere parties are citizens of different states. Wh en  Box 4 is ch ecked, th e



citizensh ip of th e different parties must b e ch ecked. (See Section III b elow; NOTE:  federal question actions take precedence over diversity



cases.)



III. Residence (citizensh ip) of Principal Parties. Th is section of th e JS 44 is to b e completed if diversity of citizensh ip was indicated ab ove. Mark th is



section for each  principal party.



IV. Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in th e appropriate b ox. If th ere are multiple nature of suit codes associated with  th e case, pick th e nature of suit code



th at is most applicab le. Click h ere for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.



V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of th e seven b oxes.



Original Proceedings. (I) Cases wh ich  originate in th e United States district courts.



Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts ma y b e removed to th e district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.



Wh en  th e petition for removal is granted, ch eck th is b ox.



Remanded from Appellate Court. (3 ) Ch eck th is b ox for cases remanded to th e district court for furth er action. Use th e date of remand as th e filing



date.



Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Ch eck th is b ox for cases reinstated or reopened in th e district court. Use th e reopening date as th e filing date.



Transferred from Anoth er District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use th is for with in district transfers or



multidistrict litigation transfers.



Multidistrict Litigation - Transfer. (6) Ch eck this b ox wh en a multidistrict case is transferred into th e district under auth ority of Title 28 U.S.C.



Sect ion 1407.



Multidistrict Litigation - Direct File. (8) Ch eck th is b ox wh en a multidistrict case is filed in th e same district as th e Master MDL docket.



PL EASE NOTETHATTHEREIS NOTANORIGIN CODE7. Origin Code 7  was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to



ch anges in statue.



VI. Cause of Action. Report th e civil statute directly related to th e cause of action and give a brief description of th e cause. Do not cite j urisdictional



statutes unless diversity. Example:  U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553  Brief Description: Unauth orized reception of cab le service



VH. Requested in Comp la i n t Class Action. Place an "X" in th is b ox if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.



Dema n d. In th is space enter th e actual dollar amount b eing demanded or indicate oth er demand, such  as a preliminary inj unction.



Jury Demand. Ch eck th e appropriate b ox to indicate wh eth er or not a j ury is b eing demanded.



VHI. Related Cases. Th is section of th e JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If th ere are related pending cases, insert th e docket



numb ers and th e corresponding j udge names for such  cases.



Date a nd Attorney Signature. Date and sign th e civil cover sh eet.



Case 1:18-cv-00752-LM   Document 1-1   Filed 08/24/18   Page 2 of 2









2



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT



FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND



OCEAN CONSERVANCY 


1300 19th Street, NW, Eighth Floor 
Washington, DC 20036 
 


   Plaintiff, 


 v. 
 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE 
U.S. Department of Commerce  


Room 14555 


1315 East-West Highway   
Silver Spring, Montgomery County, MD 20910



NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC

ADMINISTRATION



U.S. Department of Commerce



Room 5128 
1401 Constitution Avenue, NW



Washington, DC 20230



   Defendants.


No. _______________________



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY

AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF



INTRODUCTION



 Plaintiff Ocean Conservancy brings this case to remedy violations of the Freedom



of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552, by the National Marine Fisheries Service and



National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (collectively, Defendants).  The violations



arise out of Defendants’ continuing failure to respond to Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request.



 In June 2017, Defendants issued a Temporary Rule reopening the Gulf of Mexico



private angler red snapper fishing season and extending the fishing season from 3 to 42 days.



82 Fed. Reg. 27,777 (June 19, 2017).  Defendants admitted that the action would cause the



private recreational fishing sector to substantially exceed the annual catch limit set for that sector



and delay rebuilding for the overfished population of red snapper, id. at 27,779, in violation of a
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number of statutes.



 Ocean Conservancy filed a FOIA request with the National Marine Fisheries



Service (Fisheries Service), an agency of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration



(NOAA), on June 19, 2017, seeking pertinent records to enable Ocean Conservancy to analyze



the basis for and impact of the Temporary Rule and disseminate the information to the public.



The records sought in the FOIA request are essential to Ocean Conservancy’s advocacy and



public education missions to support protecting the red snapper population.  Defendants failed to



provide Ocean Conservancy a determination on its FOIA request within the time required under



FOIA and have not to date provided Ocean Conservancy a determination on its request.



 Although Defendants have provided Ocean Conservancy a small, partial release



of responsive records, Defendants continue to unlawfully withhold the information sought by



Ocean Conservancy.  Defendants have provided Ocean Conservancy no information on



additional responsive records in their possession.  By failing to provide the requested records,



Defendants are actively impeding Ocean Conservancy’s access to government information and



blocking its ability to carry out its organizational missions.



 Having constructively exhausted its administrative remedies with Defendants,



Ocean Conservancy now turns to this Court to enforce FOIA’s guarantee of public access to



agency records and to remedy Defendants’ withholding of that access.  Accordingly, Ocean



Conservancy asks this Court to declare that Defendants have violated FOIA by failing to make a



determination on Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request and by withholding the requested records,



to order Defendants to immediately provide Ocean Conservancy with a legally compliant



response to its outstanding record request, to order Defendants to promptly provide Ocean



Conservancy all responsive records, and to grant other appropriate relief, including attorneys’
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fees and costs.



JURISDICTION AND VENUE



 This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1333 (federal



question) and 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B) (FOIA).



 Venue properly vests in this District pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B) because,



on information and belief, the requested agency records are situated in this District.  Venue also



properly vests in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and (e)(i) because:  (1) the



principal office of each Defendant is located in this District and (2) a substantial part of the



events and omissions which gave rise to this action occurred in this District.



 This Court has authority to grant the requested relief in this case pursuant to



FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B), (E), and the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201–



2202.



PARTIES



 Plaintiff OCEAN CONSERVANCY is a nonprofit, science-based conservation



organization dedicated to healthy oceans and the wildlife and communities that depend on them.



Since 1972, Ocean Conservancy has sought to improve the health of our nation’s marine wildlife



and fish.  To that end, and as part of its organizational goals, Ocean Conservancy seeks to



prevent degradation of marine habitats and end overfishing (i.e., catching more fish than the



remaining population can replace).  Ocean Conservancy has over 125,000 members and



supporters worldwide, including over 14,000 in the five Gulf of Mexico states.  The organization



publishes numerous reports, articles, newsletters, and other analyses on ocean and fishery



sustainability topics each year.  The organization is routinely called upon to brief and educate



federal and state policymakers, and Ocean Conservancy staff are frequently quoted in the media



Case 8:18-cv-00208-TDC   Document 1   Filed 01/23/18   Page 3 of 14








5



and invited to present and speak at various conferences and events.  Ocean Conservancy’s



headquarters are located in Washington, DC.  It also has offices in Alaska, California,



Washington, Oregon, Florida, and Texas.



 In the 1990s, Ocean Conservancy became involved in the conservation and



management of the red snapper fishery.  For the past three decades, Ocean Conservancy has



worked to promote a healthy red snapper fishery for the benefit of the Gulf of Mexico’s



ecosystem and coastal communities.  Ocean Conservancy staff have regularly attended meetings



of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council and have been involved in public awareness



events concerning fisheries for decades.



 In 2005, Ocean Conservancy successfully challenged the Fisheries Service’s



rebuilding plan for red snapper.  Coastal Conservation Ass’n v. Gutierrez, 512 F. Supp. 2d 896



(S.D. Tex. 2007).  In 2015, Ocean Conservancy filed amicus curiae briefs in support of the



federal government in two lawsuits challenging the Fisheries Service’s red snapper management.



 Defendant NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE is an agency of the



U.S. Department of Commerce that has been delegated the responsibility to manage the Gulf of



Mexico red snapper fishery under the authority of the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation



and Management Act.  16 U.S.C. §§ 1801 et seq.  The Fisheries Service has authority to issue



regulations governing the red snapper fishery seasons and other management measures.  The



principal office of the Fisheries Service is located in Silver Spring, Montgomery County,



Maryland.  The Fisheries Service is in possession and control of the records that Ocean



Conservancy seeks, and therefore it is subject to FOIA pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(f). 


 Defendant NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION



is an agency of the U.S. Department of Commerce with supervisory responsibility for the
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Fisheries Service.  The principal office of NOAA is located in Silver Spring, Montgomery



County, Maryland.  NOAA administers and oversees FOIA requests made to the Fisheries



Service.  NOAA’s FOIA office is located in Silver Spring, Montgomery County, Maryland.



NOAA is in possession and control of the records that Ocean Conservancy seeks, and therefore



is subject to FOIA pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(f).


STATUTORY BACKGROUND



 FOIA’s basic purpose is to ensure government transparency and the expeditious



disclosure of government records.  FOIA creates a statutory right of public access to agency



records by requiring that federal agencies make records available to any person upon request.



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(3)(A).



 FOIA imposes strict deadlines on federal agencies to respond to requests.  FOIA



requires an agency to issue a final determination resolving an information request within 20



business days from the date of its receipt and to immediately notify the requester of its



determination and the reasons therefore.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).  This provision requires the



agency to “(i) gather and review the documents; (ii) determine and communicate the scope of the



agency’s documents it intends to produce and withhold, and the reasons for withholding any



documents; and (iii) inform the requester that it can appeal whatever portion of the



‘determination’ is adverse.”  Citizens for Responsibility & Ethics in Wash. v. Fed. Election


Comm’n, 711 F.3d 180, 188 (D.C. Cir. 2013); see 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).



 An agency may extend this 20-day period only in “unusual circumstances,” as



defined by 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(B)(iii), and only for a maximum of ten working days.  Id.



§ 552(a)(6)(B)(i); see also 15 C.F.R. § 4.6(b), (d).



 Agencies are required to provide “an estimated date on which the agency will
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complete action on the request” whenever a request will take more than ten days to resolve.



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(7)(B).  Agencies extending the period for unusual circumstances must, when



providing notice of the extension, provide “the date on which a determination is expected to be



dispatched.”  Id. § 552(a)(6)(B)(i); see also 15 C.F.R. § 4.6(d)(1).



 The agency must then make the requested records “promptly” available.  5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(3)(A).  In so doing, the agency must make reasonable efforts to search for records in a



manner that is reasonably calculated to locate all records responsive to the FOIA request.  Id.


§ 552(a)(3)(C), (D).



 The agency may withhold from production the limited classes of records



exempted under 5 U.S.C. § 552(b).  For any record withheld, the agency bears the burden of



proving that one of the statutory exemptions applies.  Id. § 552(a)(4)(B).  Even if some



information is exempt from disclosure, “[a]ny reasonably segregable portion of a record shall be



provided to any person requesting such record after deletion of the portions which are exempt.”



Id. § 552(b).



 An agency’s failure to comply with FOIA’s deadlines constitutes a constructive



denial of the request, and the requester’s administrative remedies are deemed exhausted for



purposes of litigation.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i).



STATEMENT OF FACTS



 On June 19, 2017, Defendants issued a Temporary Rule reopening the Gulf of



Mexico private angler red snapper fishing season and extending that fishing season from 3 to 42



days.  82 Fed. Reg. 27,777 (June 19, 2017).



 The same day, June 19, 2017, Ocean Conservancy submitted a FOIA request to



the Fisheries Service seeking records related to the reopening of the private angler red snapper
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fishing season.  The request sought all documents relating to the reopening of the red snapper



season within the date range of January 20, 2017, through June 19, 2017.



 Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request furthers the organization’s objectives to end



overfishing and inform its members and the public about conservation and management of the



red snapper fishery to benefit the Gulf of Mexico’s ecosystem and coastal communities.


 On June 20, 2017, Ocean Conservancy received a form email from Defendants



acknowledging receipt of the request and assigning the request a tracking number, DOC-NOAA-


2017-001394.  The acknowledgement did not indicate the scope of the documents Defendants



would produce, nor did it indicate any planned withholdings or exemptions.



 The due date for Defendants to issue a determination on Ocean Conservancy’s



FOIA request was July 18, 2017, under 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).



 On July 6, 2017, NOAA notified Ocean Conservancy that the agency had granted



Ocean Conservancy’s fee waiver request.  See id. 552(a)(4)(A)(i); 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l).



 On July 11, 2017, Ocean Conservancy clarified the scope of its request on a



phone call with the Fisheries Service’s Southeast Region FOIA Coordinator.



 On July 17, 2017—the day before FOIA required the Fisheries Service to respond



to Ocean Conservancy’s request—the Fisheries Service requested to extend the due date from



July 18, 2017, to August 11, 2017—more than the ten working days allowed for unusual



circumstances under 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(B)(i) and 15 C.F.R. § 4.6(b), (d).  Ocean Conservancy



agreed to the request.



 On July 17, 2017, Ocean Conservancy and another organization filed a federal



lawsuit challenging Defendants’ unilateral decision to extend the private angler red snapper



fishing season in the Gulf of Mexico.  Ocean Conservancy v. Ross, No. 1:17-cv-01408-ABJ
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(D.D.C. filed July 17, 2017).



 On July 25, 2017, NOAA’s FOIA Officer emailed Ocean Conservancy requesting



additional information in order to make a determination on Ocean Conservancy’s eligibility for a



waiver of fees.  Although NOAA already had granted Ocean Conservancy’s fee waiver request,



NOAA’s FOIA Officer asserted Ocean Conservancy might use the requested records in its



lawsuit, which, according to the FOIA Officer, may constitute a “commercial interest” in the



records that Ocean Conservancy had not previously disclosed.  The FOIA Officer requested



additional information on Ocean Conservancy’s purported commercial interests in the records.



 Ocean Conservancy responded via email on July 26, 2017, reiterating that it is a



nonprofit organization that has no commercial interest in the requested records.



 Defendants did not acknowledge or respond to Ocean Conservancy’s July 26,



2017 email.



 On August 2, 2017, Ocean Conservancy sent NOAA an email to inquire about the



agency’s determination whether Ocean Conservancy has a “commercial interest” in the



requested records.



 On August 3, 2017, Ocean Conservancy received an email from NOAA alleging



that Ocean Conservancy had substantively failed to answer the underlying question regarding its



commercial interest.



 Ocean Conservancy emailed NOAA that same day—August 3, 2017—recounting



and further explaining the ways in which it would use the records.



 NOAA did not provide any response.



 Ocean Conservancy sent NOAA an email on August 28, 2017, to inquire as to the



status of the request.  NOAA responded that same day via email granting a full fee waiver for the
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second time.



 On August 31, 2017, NOAA telephoned Ocean Conservancy asking to further



postpone the agency’s response to Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request.  Ocean Conservancy



declined NOAA’s request during that call.



 On September 12, 2017, Ocean Conservancy received an email from the Fisheries



Service stating the Fisheries Service’s Southeast Regional Office would be closed due to



Hurricane Irma.  The email did not provide a timetable for responding to Ocean Conservancy’s



FOIA request.



 On September 12, 2017, Ocean Conservancy sent NOAA an email narrowing the



date range of its FOIA request to March 13, 2017, through June 19, 2017, to lessen the burden of



its request on the agency.  NOAA did not acknowledge that email or enter it into the agency’s



FOIA correspondence log.



 On September 18, 2017, Ocean Conservancy received an email from the Fisheries



Service stating that the Southeast Regional Office reopened on September 15, 2017.  The



Fisheries Service also stated that the server housing the agency’s FOIA application and



responsive records was not yet operating, but was anticipated to be running by the end of the day



on September 18, 2017.  The Fisheries Service stated that it had on September 5, 2017, provided



the NOAA Office of General Counsel, Southeast Region with an interim records response for



that office’s legal review and clearance.  The email did not provide any further timetable for



responding to Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request, any statement on the scope of records that the



agency had sent to the General Counsel or that the agency would produce, or any statement on



the agency’s planned withholdings or exemptions.



 On October 12, 2017, having not received any interim records response, Ocean
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Conservancy sent an email to NOAA requesting an update on the status of its FOIA request.



 On October 17, 2017, Ocean Conservancy received an email from the Fisheries



Service stating that “a records response has been provided to [the Fisheries Service] and NOAA



FOIA for release approval.”



 On November 14, 2017, Ocean Conservancy sent NOAA an email requesting that



Defendants commit to providing the requested documents by a date certain.



 Later that day, November 14, 2017, NOAA informed Ocean Conservancy it



would provide a partial, interim release of 38 documents “shortly.”



 On November 28, 2017, Ocean Conservancy received an “interim response” from



Defendants transmitting 38 documents.  The majority of the 38 documents consist of



correspondence discussing how to set up an email account to accept public comments on the



Temporary Rule.  The response did not indicate how many or the scope of any other records



Defendants were processing or would produce.  Nor did the response provide any information on



what documents Defendants planned to withhold or the reasons for any withholding.



 On December 15, 2017, NOAA informed Ocean Conservancy that additional



records were undergoing legal review and clearance and a response to the request would be



provided “shortly.”  This correspondence did not convey the number or scope of the records



under review, or any statement on the agency’s planned withholdings or exemptions.



 On January 5, 2018, Ocean Conservancy sent NOAA an email requesting an



update on the status of its FOIA request.



 Ocean Conservancy has received no further correspondence from the Fisheries



Service or NOAA to date.



 Ocean Conservancy has not received all the responsive records or the reasonably
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segregable portion of non-exempt responsive records to date.



 The due date for Defendants’ FOIA determination remains August 11, 2017.



 While Defendants acknowledged receipt of the FOIA request and granted the fee



waiver twice, Defendants have failed to substantively respond to Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA



request.  None of Defendants’ responses indicated the scope of the documents they would



produce.  Nor did any response include information on planned withholdings or exemptions.



Defendants thus never provided Ocean Conservancy with the determination required by FOIA



and the governing regulations—more than seven months after acknowledging receipt of the



request, more than six months after initially granting the fee waiver, more than six months after



the statutory due date for issuing a determination, and more than five months after the agreed-


upon extended due date for issuing a determination.



CLAIMS FOR RELIEF



Count I – Failure to Make a Determination on a FOIA Request, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6), (7)



 The allegations made in all preceding paragraphs are realleged and incorporated



by this reference.



 NOAA and the Fisheries Service are “agencies” under FOIA.  5 U.S.C.



§ 552(f)(1).  NOAA and the Fisheries Service have possession and control of the requested



records.



 Defendants were required to provide a determination within 20 working days on



Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request, dated June 19, 2017.  Id. § 552(a)(6).



 Defendants were required to provide “an estimated date on which the agency



[would] complete action on the request.”  Id. § 552(a)(7)(B); accord id. § 552(a)(6)(B)(i).



 Ocean Conservancy agreed to extend Defendants’ deadline to respond to Ocean



Conservancy’s FOIA request from July 18, 2017, to August 11, 2017.  Even so, Defendants have
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not issued a determination on Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request, more than six months after



the statutory deadline and more than five months after the agreed-upon extended deadline.



 Ocean Conservancy has constructively and fully exhausted all administrative



remedies required by FOIA.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(A), (C).



 Defendants violated FOIA by failing to make the required determination within



20 working days in response to Ocean Conservancy’s June 19, 2017 FOIA request.  Id.


§ 552(a)(6).



 Defendants violated FOIA by failing to provide an estimated date by which they



would complete action on Ocean Conservancy’s June 19, 2017 FOIA request.  Id.


§ 552(a)(6)(B)(i), (7)(B).



Count II – Failure to Respond to a FOIA Request, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(3), (b)



 The allegations made in all preceding paragraphs are realleged and incorporated



by this reference.



 FOIA requires Defendants to process records requests and promptly provide the



requested records or the reasonably segregable portion of the requested records not subject to a



FOIA exemption.  5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(3), (b).



 Defendants have provided Ocean Conservancy only a subset of the requested



records.  Defendants have not claimed that any of the records they have not yet provided are



exempt from disclosure.  Therefore, the interim response does not constitute the reasonably



segregable portion of the requested records not subject to a FOIA exemption.



 Defendants have acknowledged they are in possession of additional responsive



records they have not provided to Ocean Conservancy to date.
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 Defendants have not provided Ocean Conservancy all the requested records.



Defendants have not provided Ocean Conservancy the reasonably segregable portion of the



requested records not subject to a FOIA exemption.



 Defendants have violated FOIA by failing to promptly provide the responsive



records or the reasonably segregable portion of lawfully exempt responsive records to Ocean



Conservancy.  Id.


REQUEST FOR RELIEF



 WHEREFORE, Ocean Conservancy prays that this Court:



 Declare that Defendants failed to make a timely determination on Ocean



Conservancy’s records request in violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6), (7);



 Declare that Defendants failed to promptly provide records in response to Ocean



Conservancy’s information request in violation of 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(3), (b);



 Order Defendants to provide a determination on Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA



request, as required by FOIA;



 Order Defendants to conduct searches that are reasonably calculated to locate all



records responsive to Ocean Conservancy’s FOIA request, as required by FOIA;



 Order Defendants to provide Ocean Conservancy all responsive records or the



reasonably segregable portions of lawfully exempt records, as required by FOIA, within 20 days



of this Court’s order;



 Maintain jurisdiction over this action until Defendants are in compliance with



FOIA and every order of this Court;



 Award Ocean Conservancy its costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(E) or 28 U.S.C. § 2412; and
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 Grant such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.



Respectfully submitted this 23rd day of January, 2018.



/s/ Khushi Desai 


      Khushi Desai (MD Bar 17444)



EARTHJUSTICE

1625 Mass. Ave., NW, Ste. 702



Washington, DC 20036

202-667-4500 Telephone



202-667-2356 Fax

kdesai@earthjustice.org



Christopher D. Eaton (pro hac vice pending)

EARTHJUSTICE



705 2nd Ave., Suite 203



Seattle, WA 98104   
206-343-7340 Telephone



206-343-1526 Fax



ceaton@earthjustice.org



Brettny Hardy (pro hac vice pending) 


EARTHJUSTICE

50 California St., Suite 500



San Francisco, CA 94111   


415-217-2000 Telephone

415-217-2040 Fax



bhardy@earthjustice.org



Attorneys for Plaintiff Ocean Conservancy
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Tracking Number Type Requester



DOC-NOAA-2018-001525 Request Matthew Chapman

DOC-NOAA-2018-001602 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-001603 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-001604 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-001698 Request Mark W. Omo

DOC-NOAA-2018-001489 Request David Moser

DOC-NOAA-2018-001494 Request Sheila Sannadan

DOC-NOAA-2018-001495 Request Jeff Ruch

DOC-NOAA-2018-001509 Request Rachel D'Oro

DOC-NOAA-2018-001510 Request Jordan Waltz

DOC-NOAA-2018-001518 Request Michael L. Johnson

DOC-NOAA-2018-001520 Request Jackson Wallace

DOC-NOAA-2018-001524 Request Dr. Laurice Dee

DOC-NOAA-2018-001528 Request Megan E. Boyd

DOC-NOAA-2018-001530 Request Richard N. Sieving

DOC-NOAA-2018-001546 Request Max Walker

DOC-NOAA-2018-001555 Request Travis Annatoyn

DOC-NOAA-2018-001566 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2018-001569 Request Stephanie Hunter

DOC-NOAA-2018-001563 Request Ahmad C. Chamseddine

DOC-NOAA-2018-001593 Request Emily Berman

DOC-NOAA-2018-001599 Request Robert Ellenstein

DOC-NOAA-2018-001592 Request Emily Berman

DOC-NOAA-2018-001594 Request Emily Berman








Requester Organization Submitted Received Assigned To



Chapman Appraisals LLC 06/13/2018 06/13/2018 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 06/28/2018 06/28/2018 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 06/28/2018 06/28/2018 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 06/28/2018 06/28/2018 AGO



06/29/2018 06/29/2018 NESDIS

06/05/2018 06/05/2018 NMFS



Adams Broadwell Joseph &amp; Cardozo 06/01/2018 06/01/2018 NMFS

PEER 06/06/2018 06/06/2018 NMFS

The Associated Press 06/07/2018 06/07/2018 NMFS



06/07/2018 06/07/2018 NMFS

06/11/2018 06/11/2018 NMFS

06/12/2018 06/12/2018 NMFS

06/04/2018 06/04/2018 NMFS



Georgia State University College of Law 06/13/2018 06/13/2018 NMFS

THE SIEVI G LAW FIRM, A.P.C. 06/01/2018 06/01/2018 NMFS

ABC15 Arizona 06/18/2018 06/18/2018 NMFS

Democracy Forward Foundation 06/11/2018 06/11/2018 NMFS



06/20/2018 06/20/2018 NMFS

Crenshaw Ware &amp; Martin 06/21/2018 06/21/2018 NMFS

Secrest Wardle 06/20/2018 06/20/2018 NOAA FOIA

Union of Concerned Scientists 06/26/2018 06/26/2018 NOAA FOIA

JAQUES ADMIRALTY LAW FIRM, P.C. 06/01/2018 06/01/2018 NOS

Union of Concerned Scientists 06/26/2018 06/26/2018 USEC

Union of Concerned Scientists 06/26/2018 06/26/2018 USEC








Perfected? Due Closed Date Status Dispositions



Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/31/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

No TBD TBD Assignment Determination

No TBD TBD Submitted

No TBD TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/30/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/30/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/16/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/13/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/18/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/18/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/24/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/24/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

No TBD TBD Assignment Determination

No TBD TBD Initial Evaluation

Yes 07/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

No TBD TBD Initial Evaluation








Detail



Hi! Would you please send me the financial assistance awards (or details of) NA86RP0593, NA04OAR4600006, NA06OAR4600190.

[Reference FGI#18-57511] Relevant to NOAA DOCST133017CQ0024, specifically the clearly releasable (1) Copy Contract sections

[Reference FGI#18-57512] Relevant to NOAA DOCST133014BU0002, specifically the clearly releasable (1) Copy Contract sections

[Reference FGI#18-57513] Relevant to NOAA DOCDG133W12CQ0008, specifically the clearly releasable (1) Copy Contract sections

I am requesting documents concerning the contents including the restrictions of the License to Operate a Private Remote Sensing Space System

All correspondence, emails, memos, notes, reports, or other documents pertaining to the Caltrans Lagunitas Bridge Replacement Project (located in western Marin County, California), generated or received by NOAA since June 1, 2017, including all draft and final Biological Opinions

On behalf of California Unions for Reliable Energy (&quot;CURE&quot;) and pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (&quot;FOIA&quot;), we request that the National Oceanic

1. Northeast Fisheries Science Center (NEFSC) reviews of the North Atlantic Right Whale Endangered Species Act Section 7 Consultations

Dear FOIA Officer: This is a request under the Freedom of Information Act. I request that a copy of the following docume



I would like to request a digital or DVD hard copy of a VHS or VHS-c tape from Terry L. Kennemore. This tape has footage of

I request a copy of the report “Hawaii Fishing Vessel Monitoring System: Report of the Pilot Project” to include “Appendix



I am requesting a copy of the marine mammal inventory report (MMIR/NIMM), I want this copy to include all marine mammals

Two Bottlenose dolphins have died at Dolphinaris Arizona in Scottsdale, Arizona. Bodie: 23 September 2017 Alia: 22 May 2018 I would like to request a statement that shows

I am seeking the most current Marine Mammal Inventory Report for all beluga whales held by all aquariums subject to the reporting requirements

1. Any and all records including communications, authorizations, restrictions or agreements between NMFS and Shannon W

Hello, This is a request filed under the Freedom of Information Act. I would like to request the NOAA Fisheries National Marine Mammal Inventory information for all animals

The National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) and the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, a division of the Depart



The Center requests from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”), National Marine Fisheries Se



Please accept this letter as a request for records under the provisions of the Federal Freedom of Information Act. We are



The hourly temperatures from December 21, 2016 through December 22, 2016 for Westland, MI. All zip codes

See attached document.

We are requesting information on the history and status of an overhead power line over the Grand River in Grand Haven, Ml and as

I write to request access to and copies of all communications or documents to, from, or in the custody of Taylor Jordan, f



See attached document.








 NA86RP0593, NA04OAR4600006, NA06OAR4600190.

 Copy Contract sections A-M and all attachments.

 Copy Contract sections A-M and all attachments.



 Copy Contract sections A-M and all attachments.

 the License to Operate a Private Remote Sensing Space System issued to SpaceX issued on May 2, 2018. I am an individual seeking information for personal use and not for commercial use. I am



 Bridge Replacement Project (located in western Marin County, California), generated or received by NOAA since June 1, 2017, including all draft and final Biological Opinions

 Information Act (&quot;FOIA&quot;), we request that the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (&quot;NOAA&quot;)



 Act Section 7 Consultations done for the Greater Atlantic Regional Fisheries Office (GARFO), and before it was

ing documents [or documents containing the following information] be provided to me: — Copies of any and all corr



 footage of a violent incident between two killer whales, Kandu and Corky, at SeaWorld San Diego on August 21, 1989. The VHS tape was

e “Appendix A – Chronology of VMS Activities.” The report was published by the National Marine Fisheries Service



 copy to include all marine mammals (cetaceans &amp; pinnipeds), also all dispositions (living, dead, released, etc.) and all facilities

 2017 Alia: 22 May 2018 I would like to request a statement that shows the cause of Alia's recent death. I would also like to request the following on both Alia and Bodie: BODIE: A complete necropsy report on Bodie - the 7-year-old male Bottlenose dolphin - who passed away at Dolphinaris



 subject to the reporting requirements of NOAA. Specifically, I am looking for reports from the Georgia Aquarium, Mystic

 between NMFS and Shannon W. Davis (a researcher working with the Oregon Department of Fish &amp; Wildlife) related to his



 National Marine Mammal Inventory information for all animals that have ever been in the custody of Dolphinaris

f the Department of Interior, jointly oversee implementation of the Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act. Demo



Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) from January 1 , 2018 to the date NMFS conducts this search: The electronic mail within



Act. We are pleased to receive the requested materials in electronic form, if available. I consent to the withholding



 an overhead power line over the Grand River in Grand Haven, Ml and as depicted on NOAA Charts and cited in the NOAA U.S. Coast Pilot. NOAA Charts 14933 and 14931 depict an overhead power cable (OPC)

or Jordan, from May 20, 2018 to June 26, 2018, that mention “mission” or “vision setting” or “regulation” or “deregu








 an individual seeking information for personal use and not for commercial use. I am willing to pay fees for this request up to a maximum

 Bridge Replacement Project (located in western Marin County, California), generated or received by NOAA since June 1, 2017, including all draft and final Biological Opinions and associated Incidental Take Statements; and also the Programmatic



 Administration (&quot;NOAA&quot;) make available any and all public 1&middot;ecords regarding the proposed Doheny Ocean Desalination Project (SCH No. 2016031038)

 Office (GARFO), and before it was known as GARFO, Northeast Regional Fisheries Office (NRFO). This should include, but is not limited to, NEFSC comments



and all correspondence with Alaska communities including but not exclusive of the communities of Napaskiak, Atm



 a violent incident between two killer whales, Kandu and Corky, at SeaWorld San Diego on August 21, 1989. The VHS tape was originally sent to then Attorney General John Van de Kamp of California. The postmark

es Service (NMFS), Office of Enforcement, Southwest Region, Honolulu, Hawaii in 1997.



 and all facilities.

 recent death. I would also like to request the following on both Alia and Bodie: BODIE: A complete necropsy report on Bodie - the 7-year-old male Bottlenose dolphin - who passed away at Dolphinaris



 the Georgia Aquarium, Mystic Aquarium, Shedd Aquarium, Sea World Texas (San Antonio), Sea World California (San Diego), and Sea World Florida (Orlando)

 Fish &amp; Wildlife) related to his receipt, use and dissemination of any Pacific Fisheries Information Network (PacFIN) information provided to Mr



 Dolphinaris Arizona, 9500 E. Via de Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona, including those that have been transferred away or have died. I am

Act. Democracy Forward Foundation therefore requests that NMFS produce the following within twenty (20) busine



 mail within NMFS mentioning, including, referencing, and/or generated in connection with the U.S. Environmental



withholding of personal privacy information. Please provide the following documents: 1 . All warranties received by N



 14933 and 14931 depict an overhead power cable (OPC) that spans the Grand River between approximately1 43&deg;03'1.2&quot;N; 86&deg;09'33&quot;W

or “deregulation” or “regulate.”  I write to request access to and copies of all communications to, from, or in the cus








 request up to a maximum of $50. If you estimate that the fees will exceed this limit, please inform me first. Thank you for your

 and associated Incidental Take Statements; and also the Programmatic Biological Opinion issued by NOAA Fisheries to Caltrans in approximately October 2013.



 regarding the proposed Doheny Ocean Desalination Project (SCH No. 2016031038) (&quot;Project&quot;), proposed by the South Coast Water

 not limited to, NEFSC comments on both draft and final Section 7 consultation documents; and 2. GARFO/NRFO

askiak, Atmautluak, Bethel, Akiachak, Tuluksak and Akiak in regard to the illegal killing of a protected gray whale b



 California. The postmark of this video is between August 22 - September 30, 1989.



 recent death. I would also like to request the following on both Alia and Bodie: BODIE: A complete necropsy report on Bodie - the 7-year-old male Bottlenose dolphin - who passed away at Dolphinaris Arizona in Scottsdale, AZ on the 23rd of

 (San Antonio), Sea World California (San Diego), and Sea World Florida (Orlando). The most current reports that I can locate on the NOAA website are from



 information provided to Mr. Davis. 2. Any and all records including communications, authorizations, restrictions or agreements

 Arizona, 9500 E. Via de Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona, including those that have been transferred away or have died. I am willing to pay reasonable fees associated with the processing of this request.



(20) business days: 1 . All e-mails, including attachments, to or from Susan Combs (Senior Advisor to the Secretary



ronmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) “strawman” on pesticides. See Attachment A (FWS’s October 23, 2017 Ema



ceived by NOAA from Safe Boats International related to NOAA’s 27 Foot Safe Boats vessel, Hull Number: EGO00



 the Grand River between approximately1 43&deg;03'1.2&quot;N; 86&deg;09'33&quot;W and 43&deg;02'46&quot;N; 86&deg;9'56&quot;W. The notation on both charts

r in the custody of Taylor Jordan, from May 20, 2018 to June 26, 2018, that mention “Brazauskas” or “Wydler” or “G








 you for your consideration of this request. Sincerely, Mark Omo

 in approximately October 2013.



 (&quot;Project&quot;), proposed by the South Coast Water District (&quot;District&quot;), since the date of our last request on March 30. 2017. The Project includes

2. GARFO/NRFO emails, meeting minutes, memos, or other documents regarding these NEFSC comments and concerns



ay whale by Alaska Native hunters after the animal strayed into the Kuskokwim River in July 2017 near the commu



 on the 23rd of September 2017. Bodie was born on the 7th of June in 2010 at Six Flags Discovery Kingdom in Vallejo, CA. All c

 that I can locate on the NOAA website are from 2012. If the 2018 reports are not yet available, please provide the 2017 reports.



 or agreements between NMFS and The Research Group, LLC ( a research firm working with the Oregon Department of



e Secretary of the Interior), David Bernhardt (Deputy Secretary of the Interior), or Daniel Jorjani (Principal Deputy S



 2017 Email).



er: EGO00553K404V1745. 2. All operator’s manuals received by NOAA from Safe Boats International related to NO



. The notation on both charts states, &quot;OVHD PWR CAB AUTH CL 90 FT&quot;. The only clearance citation on these charts

ydler” or “Gibbons.” This request for communications includes all email attachments to, from, or in the cus








 last request on March 30. 2017. The Project includes construction of an ocean water desalination facili

 and concerns. This request covers



the communities of Bethel an



 in Vallejo, CA. All c



 working with the Oregon Department of Fish &amp; Wildlife) related to its rec



al Deputy Solicitor at the Department of Interior). 2. Al



elated to NOAA’s 27 Foot Safe Boats v



 states, &quot;OVHD PWR CAB AUTH CL 90 FT&quot;. The only clearance citation on these charts for the OPC extending across the Main Channel and the Lost Channel portions of the Grand River is, &








 the Grand River is, &

























Tracking Number Type Requester



DOC-NOAA-2018-000511 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2017-000298 Request Charles Mouton

DOC-NOAA-2018-000784 Request Sean Ahern

DOC-NOAA-2018-001602 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-001525 Request Matthew Chapman

DOC-NOAA-2018-001367 Request Celeste Manapsal

DOC-NOAA-2018-001299 Request Benita Whitfield

DOC-NOAA-2018-001263 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-000855 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-000836 Request Christopher W. Moores

DOC-NOAA-2018-000803 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-000670 Request Rose Santos

DOC-NOAA-2018-000604 Request Mary McCullough

DOC-NOAA-2018-000449 Request Omar Purcell

DOC-NOAA-2018-000303 Request Ronald B. Hardwig

DOC-NOAA-2018-000536 Request Michael C. Ryan

DOC-NOAA-2018-000765 Request Naja Girard

DOC-NOAA-2017-002002 Request Daniel Bladele

DOC-NOAA-2018-001419 Request Daniel Bladele

DOC-NOAA-2018-001421 Request Krystle Stump

DOC-NOAA-2018-001418 Request Karsten Shein

DOC-NOAA-2018-001166 Request Joseph P. Green

DOC-NOAA-2018-001090 Request Oryx Gazella

DOC-NOAA-2016-000423 Request Ryan P. Mulvey

DOC-NOAA-2018-000459 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2018-000422 Request Philip N. Brown

DOC-NOAA-2017-000304 Request Bryn Blomberg

DOC-NOAA-2018-000318 Request Sarah N. Emerson

DOC-NOAA-2017-000170 Request Kara McKenna

DOC-NOAA-2018-000183 Request Sean Sherman

DOC-NOAA-2018-000126 Request HASSELMAN, JAN

DOC-NOAA-2018-000070 Request Cathy Readinger

DOC-NOAA-2017-001992 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2017-001974 Request Ryan P. Mulvey

DOC-NOAA-2016-001763 Request Thomas Knudson

DOC-NOAA-2017-001798 Request Brett Sommermeyer

DOC-NOAA-2017-001741 Request Vivian Wang

DOC-NOAA-2017-001606 Request Molly Masterton

DOC-NOAA-2017-001431 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2016-001402 Request Stephen S. Schwartz

DOC-NOAA-2017-001991 Request Thomas C. Sullivan

DOC-NOAA-2017-001411 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2018-001566 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2017-001394 Request Ivy N. Fredrickson

DOC-NOAA-2018-001546 Request Max Walker

DOC-NOAA-2017-001391 Request Elizabeth A. Mitchell

DOC-NOAA-2018-001528 Request Megan E. Boyd

DOC-NOAA-2018-001550 Referral Jeff TenPas

DOC-NOAA-2018-001520 Request Jackson Wallace

DOC-NOAA-2018-001555 Request Travis Annatoyn

DOC-NOAA-2018-001518 Request Michael L. Johnson








DOC-NOAA-2018-001552 Referral Geoffrey Gisler

DOC-NOAA-2018-001510 Request Jordan Waltz

DOC-NOAA-2018-001509 Request Rachel D'Oro

DOC-NOAA-2017-001316 Request Chris Saeger

DOC-NOAA-2018-001495 Request Jeff Ruch

DOC-NOAA-2018-001489 Request David Moser

DOC-NOAA-2018-001524 Request Dr. Laurice Dee

DOC-NOAA-2018-001494 Request Sheila Sannadan

DOC-NOAA-2018-001530 Request Richard N. Sieving

DOC-NOAA-2018-001463 Request Elizabeth Murdock

DOC-NOAA-2018-001458 Request Daniel Hubbell

DOC-NOAA-2018-001448 Request Anne McNamara

DOC-NOAA-2018-001440 Request Spencer N. Thal

DOC-NOAA-2018-001424 Request Michael G. Squires

DOC-NOAA-2018-001427 Request Spencer Nathan Thal

DOC-NOAA-2018-001411 Request Jeremy D. Mckay

DOC-NOAA-2017-001220 Request Nathan Eagle

DOC-NOAA-2017-001219 Request Nathan Eagle

DOC-NOAA-2017-001217 Request Nathan Eagle

DOC-NOAA-2018-001388 Request Michael L. Johnson

DOC-NOAA-2018-001386 Request Jared Cox

DOC-NOAA-2018-001372 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2017-001190 Request ERIC R. BOLINDER

DOC-NOAA-2018-001289 Request Sumona Majumdar

DOC-NOAA-2017-001094 Request Brettny E. Hardy

DOC-NOAA-2017-001093 Request Brettny E. Hardy

DOC-NOAA-2017-001092 Request Brettny E. Hardy

DOC-NOAA-2018-001280 Request John R. Leek

DOC-NOAA-2018-001341 Request Jesse Coleman

DOC-NOAA-2018-001294 Request Nathaniel Benforado

DOC-NOAA-2018-001330 Request T. Geoffrey Heekin

DOC-NOAA-2018-001422 Request David Abell

DOC-NOAA-2018-001707 Request Tom Buchele

DOC-NOAA-2017-000994 Request Mariel Combs

DOC-NOAA-2018-001254 Request Georgia Hancock

DOC-NOAA-2018-001037 Request Jane Davenport

DOC-NOAA-2018-001005 Request Anne Philbrick

DOC-NOAA-2018-000948 Request Hallie G. Templeton

DOC-NOAA-2018-000947 Request Hallie G. Templeton

DOC-NOAA-2018-000918 Request Hallie G. Templeton

DOC-NOAA-2018-000881 Request Jeffrey Leary

DOC-NOAA-2018-000763 Request Adam Carlesco

DOC-NOAA-2018-000587 Request Hallie G. Templeton

DOC-NOAA-2018-000585 Request Andrew Hitchings

DOC-NOAA-2018-001569 Request Stephanie Hunter

DOC-NOAA-2018-001465 Request Jeremy Wu

DOC-NOAA-2018-000428 Request Ryan P. Mulvey

DOC-NOAA-2018-000802 Request Patrick Martin

DOC-NOAA-2018-001393 Request Ivy N. Fredrickson

DOC-NOAA-2018-001392 Request Abigail Smith

DOC-NOAA-2018-001252 Request John Greenewald, Jr.

DOC-NOAA-2018-000781 Request Russ Kick








DOC-NOAA-2017-000268 Request Brian D. Israel

DOC-NOAA-2018-000273 Request Andrew G. Ogden

DOC-NOAA-2018-000798 Request Jonathan Clark

DOC-NOAA-2018-000202 Request Kaitlyn Shannon

DOC-NOAA-2017-001782 Request Christine M. Walker

DOC-NOAA-2017-001676 Request Vincent C. Catania

DOC-NOAA-2017-001678 Request James Zeiler

DOC-NOAA-2017-001569 Request Sarah N. Emerson

DOC-NOAA-2018-001599 Request Robert Ellenstein

DOC-NOAA-2018-001417 Request Harley Racer

DOC-NOAA-2018-001336 Request Fred Millar

DOC-NOAA-2017-001009 Request Edward Duhe

DOC-NOAA-2017-000572 Request Karen MacDonald

DOC-NOAA-2018-000572 Request Jeff Ruch

DOC-NOAA-2017-000414 Request Arnold &amp; Porter Kaye Scholer LLP

DOC-NOAA-2018-000580 Referral Allan Blutstein

DOC-NOAA-2018-000816 Request Susan Carroll

DOC-NOAA-2018-001451 Request Jeff Ruch

DOC-NOAA-2017-001059 Request Richard Hirn

DOC-NOAA-2017-000790 Request Brian Gaffney

DOC-NOAA-2017-000768 Request Julio C. Gomez

DOC-NOAA-2018-000561 Request Stephanie Kuzydym

DOC-NOAA-2014-001694 Request Lawrence A. Kogan

DOC-NOAA-2017-001796 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2017-001975 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2018-001291 Request Heather Coleman

DOC-NOAA-2018-001214 Request Jason Bien

DOC-NOAA-2018-001106 Request Hallie G. Templeton

DOC-NOAA-2014-000714 Request Lawrence Kogan

DOC-NOAA-2018-000671 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2018-000638 Request Nicole Mason

DOC-NOAA-2017-001954 Request Alex Veeneman

DOC-NOAA-2017-001523 Request Brian L. Kahn

DOC-NOAA-2017-001565 Request Charles Seife

DOC-NOAA-2018-000951 Request Beryl C. Lipton

DOC-NOAA-2018-000204 Request Nicole Mason

DOC-NOAA-2018-001453 Request Marie Lefton

DOC-NOAA-2018-001391 Request Michael L. Johnson

DOC-NOAA-2018-001163 Request Michael L. Johnson

DOC-NOAA-2018-001058 Request Ryan P. Mulvey

DOC-NOAA-2018-001022 Request Michael L. Johnson

DOC-NOAA-2018-000892 Request Florian C. Rabitz

DOC-NOAA-2017-001756 Request Jeff Tollefson

DOC-NOAA-2017-001739 Request Lauren N. Evans

DOC-NOAA-2017-001734 Request Andrew C. Revkin

DOC-NOAA-2017-001722 Request Michael Ravnitzky

DOC-NOAA-2018-001592 Request Emily Berman

DOC-NOAA-2018-001447 Request Philip Kiley

DOC-NOAA-2018-001322 Request Liz Charboneau

DOC-NOAA-2018-001143 Request Margaret Townsend

DOC-NOAA-2018-000622 Request Patricia Mann

DOC-NOAA-2018-001266 Request Todd B. Kimberlain








DOC-NOAA-2018-000760 Request John B. Mena

DOC-NOAA-2018-000755 Request John B. Mena

DOC-NOAA-2018-000554 Request Terra Mowatt








Requester Organization Submitted Received Assigned To



FOIA GROUP INC 12/30/2017 01/02/2018 AGO

Mahtook &amp; Lafleur 11/30/2016 11/30/2016 AGO

Manson Construction Co. 11/10/2017 11/13/2017 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 06/28/2018 06/28/2018 AGO

Chapman Appraisals LLC 06/13/2018 06/13/2018 AGO

Credence Management Solutions, LLC 05/14/2018 05/14/2018 AGO

ERT, Inc. 05/01/2018 05/01/2018 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 04/21/2018 04/23/2018 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 02/27/2018 02/27/2018 AGO

Cook Brown LLP 02/23/2018 02/23/2018 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 02/21/2018 02/21/2018 AGO

FOIA GROUP INC 01/31/2018 01/31/2018 AGO



01/20/2018 01/22/2018 AGO

NOAA 12/14/2017 12/14/2017 CAO



11/17/2017 11/17/2017 CAO

01/06/2018 01/08/2018 CAO



Key West The Newspaper [The Blue Paper] 02/01/2018 02/01/2018 CAO

09/15/2017 09/15/2017 LA

04/27/2018 04/27/2018 LA

04/20/2018 04/20/2018 LA

04/27/2018 04/27/2018 NESDIS



DoC/NOAA/NESDIS 04/05/2018 04/05/2018 NESDIS

None 03/30/2018 03/30/2018 NESDIS

Cause of Action 12/21/2015 12/21/2015 NMFS



12/18/2017 12/18/2017 NMFS

12/08/2017 12/08/2017 NMFS



Western Resources Legal Center 11/30/2016 11/30/2016 NMFS

VICE 11/21/2017 11/21/2017 NMFS

Cause of Action 11/09/2016 11/09/2016 NMFS

Public Citizen, Inc 10/25/2017 10/25/2017 NMFS

Earthjustice 10/18/2017 10/18/2017 NMFS



10/03/2017 10/03/2017 NMFS

09/26/2017 09/26/2017 NMFS



Cause of Action Institute 09/21/2017 09/21/2017 NMFS

Center for Investigative Reporting 09/14/2016 09/15/2016 NMFS



08/31/2017 08/31/2017 NMFS

Natural Resources Defense Council 08/22/2017 08/22/2017 NMFS

Natural Resources Defense Council 07/26/2017 07/26/2017 NMFS



06/27/2017 06/27/2017 NMFS

Cause of Action Institute 06/27/2016 06/27/2016 NMFS

Moseley Prichard Parrish Knight &amp; Jones 06/23/2017 06/23/2017 NMFS



06/22/2017 06/23/2017 NMFS

06/20/2018 06/20/2018 NMFS



Ocean Conservancy 06/19/2017 06/19/2017 NMFS

ABC15 Arizona 06/18/2018 06/18/2018 NMFS

Association for Professional Observers 06/16/2017 06/16/2017 NMFS

Georgia State University College of Law 06/13/2018 06/13/2018 NMFS



06/13/2018 06/13/2018 NMFS

06/12/2018 06/12/2018 NMFS



Democracy Forward Foundation 06/11/2018 06/11/2018 NMFS

06/11/2018 06/11/2018 NMFS








Southern Environmental Law Center 06/11/2018 06/11/2018 NMFS

06/07/2018 06/07/2018 NMFS



The Associated Press 06/07/2018 06/07/2018 NMFS

Western Values Project 06/07/2017 06/07/2017 NMFS

PEER 06/06/2018 06/06/2018 NMFS



06/05/2018 06/05/2018 NMFS

06/04/2018 06/04/2018 NMFS



Adams Broadwell Joseph &amp; Cardozo 06/01/2018 06/01/2018 NMFS

THE SIEVI G LAW FIRM, A.P.C. 06/01/2018 06/01/2018 NMFS

Natural Resources Defense Council 05/30/2018 05/30/2018 NMFS

Environmental Investigation Agency 05/30/2018 05/30/2018 NMFS

Salish Sea Foundation 05/27/2018 05/29/2018 NMFS

Vanguard Law 05/24/2018 05/24/2018 NMFS

Arizona Republic 05/22/2018 05/22/2018 NMFS

VANGUARD LAW 05/22/2018 05/22/2018 NMFS

Environmental and Animal Defense 05/21/2018 05/21/2018 NMFS

Honolulu Civil Beat 05/16/2017 05/17/2017 NMFS

Honolulu Civil Beat 05/16/2017 05/17/2017 NMFS

Honolulu Civil Beat 05/16/2017 05/17/2017 NMFS



05/15/2018 05/15/2018 NMFS

05/15/2018 05/15/2018 NMFS

05/14/2018 05/14/2018 NMFS



Cause of Action Institute 05/09/2017 05/09/2017 NMFS

Earth Island Institute 04/26/2018 04/26/2018 NMFS

Earthjustice 04/26/2017 04/26/2017 NMFS

Earthjustice 04/26/2017 04/26/2017 NMFS

Earthjustice 04/26/2017 04/26/2017 NMFS

San Diego Council of Divers 04/25/2018 04/25/2018 NMFS



04/24/2018 04/24/2018 NMFS

SOUTHERN ENVIRONMENTAL LAW CENTER 04/24/2018 04/24/2018 NMFS

HEEKIN LITIGATION GROUP 04/19/2018 04/19/2018 NMFS

Sierra Club 04/18/2018 04/18/2018 NMFS

Earthrise Law Center at Lewis &amp; Clark Law School 04/13/2018 04/13/2018 NMFS

Oceana 04/10/2017 04/11/2017 NMFS

Animal Welfare Institute 03/29/2018 03/29/2018 NMFS

Defenders of Wildlife 03/27/2018 03/27/2018 NMFS



03/25/2018 03/26/2018 NMFS

Friends of the Earth 03/15/2018 03/15/2018 NMFS

Friends of the Earth 03/15/2018 03/15/2018 NMFS

Friends of the Earth 03/12/2018 03/12/2018 NMFS

Miami Dade Citizen’s for Property Rights 02/27/2018 02/27/2018 NMFS

Public Employees for Environmental Responsibility (PEER) 02/14/2018 02/14/2018 NMFS

Friends of the Earth 01/17/2018 01/17/2018 NMFS

SOMACH SIMMONS &amp; DUNN 01/16/2018 01/16/2018 NMFS

Crenshaw Ware &amp; Martin 06/21/2018 06/21/2018 NMFS

Sherry Chen Legal Defense Fund 05/31/2018 05/31/2018 NOAA FOIA

Cause of Action Institute 12/11/2017 12/11/2017 NOAA FOIA

NBC News 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 NOAA FOIA

Ocean Conservancy 05/16/2018 05/16/2018 NOAA FOIA

Bloomberg Environment 05/16/2018 05/16/2018 NOAA FOIA

The Black Vault 04/09/2018 04/09/2018 NOAA FOIA



01/05/2018 01/05/2018 NOAA FOIA








ARNOLD &amp; PORTER LLP 11/28/2016 11/28/2016 NOS

Turtle Island Restoration Network 11/14/2017 11/14/2017 NOS

Ursinus College 11/04/2017 11/06/2017 NOS

Beveridge & Diamond 11/01/2017 11/01/2017 NOS

Fowler White Burnett 08/29/2017 08/29/2017 NOS



08/09/2017 08/09/2017 NOS

Citizens for Responsible Zoning and Landowner Rights 08/07/2017 08/07/2017 NOS

VICE 07/19/2017 07/19/2017 NOS

JAQUES ADMIRALTY LAW FIRM, P.C. 06/01/2018 06/01/2018 NOS

LURIE FRIEDMAN LLP 05/16/2018 05/16/2018 NOS



04/26/2018 04/26/2018 NOS

LISKOW &amp; LEWIS 03/31/2017 03/31/2017 NOS



02/07/2017 02/07/2017 NOS

PEER 01/16/2018 01/16/2018 NOS

Arnold &amp; Porter Kaye Scholer LLP 01/09/2017 01/09/2017 NOS

America Rising Squared 12/22/2017 12/22/2017 NWS

Houston Chronicle 10/25/2017 10/25/2017 NWS

PEER 05/29/2018 05/29/2018 NWS

National Weather Service Employees 04/18/2017 04/18/2017 NWS

Law Office of Brian Gaffney 03/14/2017 03/14/2017 NWS

GOMEZ LLC Attorney At Law 03/10/2017 03/10/2017 NWS

KHOU-TV 01/12/2018 01/12/2018 NWS

Institute for Trade, Standards and Sustainable Development 09/22/2014 09/22/2014 OAR

Center for Biological Diversity 08/31/2017 08/31/2017 OAR



08/31/2017 08/31/2017 OAR

Oxfam America 04/27/2018 04/27/2018 OAR



04/12/2018 04/12/2018 OAR

Friends of the Earth 04/03/2018 04/03/2018 OAR

ITSSD 03/26/2014 03/26/2014 OAR



02/01/2018 02/01/2018 OAR

01/11/2018 01/11/2018 OAR



Kettle Magazine, London 09/28/2017 09/28/2017 OC

Climate Central 07/14/2017 07/14/2017 OC



06/19/2017 06/19/2017 OC

MuckRock 03/13/2018 03/13/2018 OC



11/01/2017 11/01/2017 OGC

05/29/2018 05/29/2018 OGC

05/16/2018 05/16/2018 OGC

04/05/2018 04/05/2018 OGC



Cause of Action Institute 03/28/2018 03/28/2018 OGC

03/27/2018 03/27/2018 OGC



Kaunas University of Technology 03/06/2018 03/06/2018 OGC

Nature 08/24/2017 08/24/2017 USEC



08/22/2017 08/22/2017 USEC

ProPublica 08/21/2017 08/21/2017 USEC



08/21/2017 08/21/2017 USEC

Union of Concerned Scientists 06/26/2018 06/26/2018 USEC



05/27/2018 05/29/2018 USEC

American Bridge 21st Century 05/03/2018 05/03/2018 USEC



04/04/2018 04/04/2018 USEC

Ferguson Case Orr Paterson LLP 12/28/2017 12/28/2017 WFMO



04/23/2018 04/23/2018 WFMO








National Weather Service 02/14/2018 02/14/2018 WFMO

National Weather Service 02/14/2018 02/14/2018 WFMO



01/08/2018 01/08/2018 WFMO








Perfected? Due Closed Date Status Dispositions



Yes 02/08/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 01/13/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/19/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/31/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/13/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/30/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/21/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/13/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 02/22/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 02/01/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 12/20/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 02/08/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 03/29/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/20/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/02/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 02/04/2016 TBD Research Records

Yes 09/20/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response Partial grant/partial denial

Yes 01/16/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 01/13/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 01/09/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 01/05/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 12/13/2017 TBD Final Preparation of Response Partial grant/partial denial

Yes 05/18/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 12/14/2017 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 09/14/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 11/21/2017 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 10/27/2016 TBD Final Preparation of Response Partial grant/partial denial

Yes 10/25/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 10/06/2017 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 09/21/2017 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 07/28/2017 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 08/19/2016 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/20/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 08/10/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/24/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 08/11/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/18/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 08/01/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/18/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response Full grant

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/18/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination








Yes 07/24/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/16/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/21/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/30/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/30/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/13/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 08/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/21/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/03/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 08/16/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 06/20/2017 TBD Final Preparation of Response

Yes 06/20/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 06/28/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/28/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 06/28/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/22/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/30/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 07/03/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/03/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/03/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 05/23/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response Full grant

Yes 06/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/13/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 06/04/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response Request withdrawn

Yes 06/20/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/31/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/09/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/04/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/13/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 05/31/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 04/26/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 04/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 04/26/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 04/02/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response Partial grant/partial denial

Yes 03/29/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 03/07/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/10/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/24/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/17/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 02/01/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response Partial grant/partial denial

Yes 03/21/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/19/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/19/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/21/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/19/2018 TBD Assignment Determination








Yes 01/10/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 12/14/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/21/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 02/08/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 09/27/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 09/19/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 10/02/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 09/05/2017 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 07/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/06/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/23/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 03/10/2017 TBD Final Preparation of Response

Yes 02/21/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response

Yes 03/07/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 01/24/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 03/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/19/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 04/17/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 04/12/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 02/14/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 10/22/2014 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 10/25/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 10/30/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 05/30/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/10/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/29/2018 TBD Research Records

Yes 05/13/2014 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 03/14/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 02/26/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 11/08/2017 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 08/16/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 08/30/2017 TBD Research Records

Yes 07/18/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 12/01/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/19/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/14/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 04/25/2018 TBD Evaluation of Records

Yes 04/25/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 04/09/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 09/22/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 09/20/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 09/20/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 09/19/2017 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/26/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 07/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 06/06/2018 TBD Final Preparation of Response Partial grant/partial denial

Yes 05/29/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 02/27/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 05/30/2018 TBD Assignment Determination








Yes 04/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 04/12/2018 TBD Assignment Determination

Yes 02/06/2018 TBD Assignment Determination








Detail



[Reference FGI 17- 55437] relevant to DOCDG133W10CQ0049 Orders 8,12,14,15,18-23,25 we seek the following: (1)

We are representing Harvest Pipeline Company in connection with an incident which occurred on 5 September 2016 involving the Harvest BOA Pipeline System

Chenier Ronquille Barrier Island Restoration Project (BA-76); Solicitation/Contract # WC133F-15-RB-0008/WC133F-16-CN-0007. Copies

[Reference FGI#18-57511] Relevant to NOAA DOCST133017CQ0024, specifically the clearly releasable (1) Copy Contract sections

Hi! Would you please send me the financial assistance awards (or details of) NA86RP0593, NA04OAR4600006, NA06OAR4600190.

On behalf of Credence Management Solutions, LLC, I am requesting the following documents in relation to task order nu



Solicitation Number: EA133C-13-RQ-0099

Reference FGI 18-56960] relevant to NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION award DOCDG133012CQ0004 (WCOSS -
[FGI 53604] Relevant to DOCAB133F14CQ0017 and DOCAB133F14CQ0018, we seek contract with SOW/PWS for each

Please accept this letter as a Freedom of Information Act request for all documents relating to Contract# AB-133M-15CQ-0020 for the repair

[Reference FGI# 18-56371] Relevant to NOAA ST133015CQ0053/DOCST133015CQ0053 for PUBLIC CLOUD INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SERVICE ACQUISITION we seek

[FGI 18-56059] Relevant to Contract No. DOCEA133C17BA0062, National Oceanic And Atmospheric Administration (“N



Any and all records, files, notes, personnel actions, contracts regarding my contract and temporary employment at NOAA's

I would like a copy of final findings or response made by the inquiry officials at NMFS for OIG complaint number 17-0561. The investigation was

The final report for Case Number 17-1346

In September of 2017 an investigation into the Conduct of William Parker Meteorologist In Charge of the National Weather

Please provide a copy of the full report on the investigation by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, launched on or

A copy of correspondence from Congresswoman Diane Black or her staff and the response to the correspondence. Please search for documents

A copy of correspondence from Congresswoman Diane Black or her staff and the response to the correspondence. Please search for documents

I believe the correspondence are most likely to be held by your Office of Congressional Affairs. I am specifically looking for correspondence regarding policy, legislation, or



Request the deleted Emails and the computer IP addressed that deleted the Emails from: Primary account: Joseph.P.Green@noaa.gov secondary emails: Phil.Green@noaa.gov, Phil.Greene@noaa.gov, J

Please provide a copy of the remote sensing space system license granted to SpaceX for the Iridium-5 mission which placed 10 Iridium

All records of communications between (i) Eileen Sobeck, Assistant Administrator for Fisheries; (ii) Samuel Rauch, Depu



The Center requests from National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”): all records generated in connection with the deni



I request the following information through the Freedom of Information Act pertaining to my work as a NMFS fisheries

This request generally concerns records related to the NMFS document entitled &quot; Technical Guidance for Assessing the Effects

Please provide all records generated in connection with the deployment of US Navy dolphins to locate endangered vaqui



CoA Institute hereby requests access to the following records for the time period of January 1, 2014, to the present:4 1. All records

Any and ​​all records concerning the effect of Executive Order 13771 , entitled “Reducing Regulation and Controlling Regul



1) All records reflecting or relating to inter-agency analysis, discussion or correspondence regarding the boundaries

I am requesting the following: 1 ) Copy of Cathy Readinger’s personnel file from October 27, 1982 to present in its entirety



1 . All records generated in connection with Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. &sect;&sect; 1531 - 1544 (“ESA”), Sectio



With the foregoing as background, and pursuant to the FOIA, 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, CoA Institute hereby requests access



Copies of all emails pertaining to observer health and safety written or received by National Marine Fisheries Service National Observer Program

I am writing on behalf of Sea Shepherd Legal (“SSL”) with a request for records maintained by the National Marine Fishe



Please find attached a FOIA request from the Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC) for records regarding the Sec



The Center requests the following records from the U.S. Department of Commerce (“DOC”) from April 1 , 2017 to the dat



All documents, including intra-agency discussions and communications with outside parties, related to (1) NOAA's June 23, 2016 announcement attached as

2/13 SCOPE CLARIFICATION:  Ask that NOAA prioritize review and release of NOAA's April 14, 2017 and January 22, 2018 responses

The Center requests from the National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) all records generated in connection with the is



The Center requests from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”), National Marine Fisheries Se



copies of all memoranda, studies, reports, data, correspondence, comments, conversation records, files, electronic

Hello, This is a request filed under the Freedom of Information Act. I would like to request the NOAA Fisheries National Marine Mammal Inventory information for all animals

On 28 June 2017, via email, the requester clarified the search scope of the request to:  "I would like both foreign observers

I am seeking the most current Marine Mammal Inventory Report for all beluga whales held by all aquariums subject to the reporting requirements

REFERRAL FROM USACE: 1 .    The complete project file for the Section 404 project – City of Winters Putah Creek Natu



I am requesting a copy of the marine mammal inventory report (MMIR/NIMM), I want this copy to include all marine mammals

The National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) and the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, a division of the Depart



I request a copy of the report “Hawaii Fishing Vessel Monitoring System: Report of the Pilot Project” to include “Appendix








REFERRAL FROM USFWS: Pursuant to the Freedom oflnformation Act ("FOIA"), 5 U.S.C. § 552, on behalf of the

I would like to request a digital or DVD hard copy of a VHS or VHS-c tape from Terry L. Kennemore. This tape has footage of

Dear FOIA Officer: This is a request under the Freedom of Information Act. I request that a copy of the following docume



SCOPE REVISION 6/20 -  To exclude the following information: out-of-office replies, duplicates of the same emails and d



1. Northeast Fisheries Science Center (NEFSC) reviews of the North Atlantic Right Whale Endangered Species Act Section 7 Consultations

All correspondence, emails, memos, notes, reports, or other documents pertaining to the Caltrans Lagunitas Bridge Replacement Project (located in western Marin County, California), generated or received by NOAA since June 1, 2017, including all draft and final Biological Opinions

Two Bottlenose dolphins have died at Dolphinaris Arizona in Scottsdale, Arizona. Bodie: 23 September 2017 Alia: 22 May 2018 I would like to request a statement that shows

On behalf of California Unions for Reliable Energy (&quot;CURE&quot;) and pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (&quot;FOIA&quot;), we request that the National Oceanic

1. Any and all records including communications, authorizations, restrictions or agreements between NMFS and Shannon W

FOIA Request for Records concerning law enforcement actions relating to the import of shark fins into or transit of shark

This is a request (complete request attached as supporting file) on behalf of the Environmental Investigation Agency und



Under the Washington Public Records Act, &sect;42.56 et seq., I am requesting an opportunity to inspect or obtain copies

1. All documents that relate to the observer program including, without limitation, any documents that relate to the assessment of

I'm requesting a copy of the Marine Mammal Inventory. According to NOAA's website it is &quot;An inventory of all marine mammals

l. All documents that relate to the observer program including, without limitation, any documents that relate to the assessment of

Environmental and Animal Defense, (hereinafter “eaDefense”) requests all “agency records” of the National Oceanic and



I'd like to request information related to lobbying by the Western Pacific Regional Fishery Management Council (WPRFMC)

I'd like to request information related to the staff, consultants, and members of the Western Pacific Regional Fishery Man



I'd like to request financial information concerning the Western Pacific Regional Fishery Management Council (WPRFMC)

Federal Register/Vol. 63, No. 47/Wednesday, March 11, 1998/Rules and Regulations covers an entry from NOAA relative to Vessel Tracking Systems

I am submitting this FOIA request for the following documents: (1 ) A copy of the permit under which Lolita, the killer whal



The Center requests from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”), National Marine Fisheries Se



1. We request all permits issued by NMFS in existence for living dolphin species in captivity (with the exception of orcas)

We request copies of all memoranda, studies, reports, data, correspondence, comments, conversation records, files, electronic

We request copies of all memoranda, studies, reports, data, correspondence, comments, conversation records, files, electronic

We request copies of all memoranda, studies, reports, data, correspondence, comments, conversation records, files, electronic

The Pacific Scientific Review Group was scheduled to meet in San Diego in March of 2018 to review data for SARS 2018. The meeting was

All communications, including emails and attachments, including or mentioning "Vincent DeVito"; or "DeVito"; All communications, including emails

1. All documents concerning the proposed incidental take permit for Chesterfield Power Station, Docket Number NOAA-NMFS-2017-0051, including the associated Draft Habitat Conservation Plan and Draft Environmental Assessment. 2. All studies, information, data relied upon in creating the Draft Environmental Assessment, Docket Number

1. Copies of any and contracts, agreements or other paperwork relating to Rick Johnston's (&quot;Johnston&quot;)

Louisiana Offshore Oil Port. Requesting the following documentation relating to the Louisiana Offshore Oil Port between



Camp Lick Project Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request. All records concerning any potential or ongoing Endangered Species

REVISED SCOPE: PART 1 : You request the following information for the HI SSLL Fishery from 2014 to 2017 (Priority): 



Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, et seq., and the regulations of the Departmen



FOIA request for records relating to the decision by the National Marine Fisheries Service to list the oceanic whitetip shar



Looking for any information documents about harassment of NMFS observers working aboard foreign fish processors

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, Friends of the Earth requests all records pertaining to the attached correspondence from

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, Friends of the Earth requests all records pertaining to the attached correspondence from

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, Friends of the Earth requests all records pertaining to Rose Canyon Fisheries, from

1.) Any and all communications regarding an Endangered Species Act Section 7 consultation carried out between the National Marine Fisheries

A summary of all incidents of violence, threats, or harassment against NOAA employees that occurred in calendar year

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, Friends of the Earth requests all records pertaining to Manna Fish Farms

The request seeks all records and documents subject to disclosure under FOIA within the following nine categories

Please accept this letter as a request for records under the provisions of the Federal Freedom of Information Act. We are



According to the public announcement in https://research.noaa.gov/article/ArtMID/587/ArticleID/999/Army-Corps-hydrolo



1 . All weekly reports, charts, and transmittal e-mails that identify “high visibility” or otherwise “sensitive” FOIA requests. T



Pursuant to the federal Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, a copy of the agency’s FOIA log for the past 12



Please see attached request. We request the records that have been or will be released in response to Cause of Action I



Please see attached request for all records responsive to Cause of Action Institute’s December 1 1 , 2017, FOIA request t



I respectfully request a copy of records, electronic or otherwise, of the following: 1) FOIA Case Log for calendar year

This is a request under the Freedom of Information Act. I hereby request the following records: your agency's FOIA request log covering 2017, which includes




https://research.noaa.gov/article/ArtMID/587/ArticleID/999/Army-Corps-hydrolo





1. All information (including work plans, quality assurance plans, validated and unvalidated data, results, correspondence, reports

TIRN requests from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), the Office of National Marine Sanctua



I’m an academic researcher who's interested in learning more about the history of the the Marine Debris Program’s curre



1. The most recent index for the administrative record of the Portland Harbor natural resource damage assessment. 2. All external correspondence (including letters, emails, and memoranda)

My request is for any and all documents, including internal emails, that discuss NOAA’s decision to remove the magenta



This is a Freedom of Information Act Request on behalf of Alliance of Communities for Sustainable Fisheries (ACSF), for copies

We are requesting copies of all emails, sent or received, of NOAA employees Ellen Brody and Russ Green that contain the &quot;key words&quot; Lake Michigan, Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary, Lake Michigan NMS, Wisconsin, or any combination of

Please provide all records generated in connection to complaints made to the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary a



We are requesting information on the history and status of an overhead power line over the Grand River in Grand Haven, Ml and as

All documents relating to any application for funding from or through the National Science Foundation submitted from

Please furnish all documents from year 2010- present in NOAA’s possession, relating to: 1 . NOAA’s adoption of the new



1. Any and all records, photographs, correspondence, documents, including email communication, pertaining to the National Oceanic

Please provide the following from NOAA Office of Response and Restoration, regarding the Carla Maersk/Conti Peridot ship collision on 3/9/2015 in the Houston Ship Channel: 1 -
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 552, as amended, Public Employees for Environmental Responsibility (PEER), requests

REQUEST UPDATED 3/27 - The requester has approved that the $18,212 refund for FOIA #2017-000320 be rolled into the cost of

Please accept this email as a request pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act for access to any email sent by Kathleen Hibbard from

Copies of all weather and forecast communication with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers regarding Addicks/Barker reservoir

1 . All records that document, reference, or mention any kind of contact or communication between National Oceanic & At



1. A copy of any and all reports on the testing of the radiosonde autolauncher manufactured by the Vaisala Corporation conducted by the National Weather

...all records from January 1, 2015 to the present discussing, documenting, memorializing, or otherwise concerning: (1)

Copies of all reports submitted to the Secretary of Commerce pursuant to 15 U.S.C. &sect;330a, concerning “weather m



January 12, 2018 Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, KHOU-TV respectfully requests: Copies of any and all em



This new FOIA Request seeks disclosure of as yet publicly disclosed documents substantiating the IQA conformance of

All records mentioning, including and/or referencing timing for release of 4th National Climate Assessment, whether

1 . All records mentioning, including, and/or referencing the decision to terminate, or otherwise not renew, the Federal Ad



Please find attached a formal FOIA request from Oxfam America requesting disclosure of records that affect the public

For educational purposes, I am requesting information regarding the historical data and analysis of ground level ultraviolet radiation from

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, Friends of the Earth requests all records pertaining to any applications

Enactment by the USEPA of a series of national greenhouse gass (GHG) emission regulations based primarily upon reviews

All records mentioning, including, and/or referencing the Seventh Climate Action Report (“CAR-7”), which is bifurcated in



AJJ time and attendance records and computer records retrieved and submitted to the Office of Audits and lnvestigations

Per the Act, I am requesting copies of correspondence or memorandums dated from January 20, 2017 to the date of

I request any records and email communications relating to drafting the press release on the 2017 edition of NOAA’s Ann



I therefore request the following documents: Any e-mails, memos, presentations, or other documents that a) are dated from

This is a request under the Freedom of Information Act. I hereby request the following records: For the 16-month, 5-day period from

1. Official record from The Office of Special Counsel indicating that I was in violation of the Hatch Act in Aug 2016 2. Official record of

This request is for the National Marine Fisheries Service. I am an attorney doing volunteer work for Conservation Law Foundation. I am

I request copies of Respondent Exhibits (listed below) from: UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE NATION



I request copies of Agency (NOAA) Exhibits (listed below) from: UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE NAT



Pursuant to the FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552, CoA Institute hereby requests access to the following records. The time period for



I request a copy of Exhibit 31  from UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATM



Dear Sir or Madam, Under the Freedom of Information Act, I seek to obtain any documents which the National Oceanic

I would like copies of all emails including the word CLIMATE or the word CHARTER or the phrase &quot;ADVISORY COMMITTEE&quot;. I limit this

A copy of each email that includes the word CLIMATE or the word CHARTER or the phrase &quot;ADVISORY COMMITTEE&quot;. I limit this

I request access to and copies of all email correspondence to and from Acting NOAA Administrator (and Under Secretary



A copy of each email that includes the word CLIMATE or the word CHARTER or the phrase &quot;ADVISORY COMMITTEE&quot;. I limit this

I write to request access to and copies of all communications or documents to, from, or in the custody of Taylor Jordan, f



Please provide all email sent by Benjamin Friedman Deputy Under Secretary of Commerce for Oceans and Atmosphere to Craig McLean Acting Chief

Travel Records: I am requesting copies of any and all travel records, including expenses and reimbursements, for Timothy Gallaudet from

CBD is willing to narrow the scope of their request to exclude housekeeping emails (cc's, forwards, out-of-office replies, s



All pay records from January l, 2015, to the date of production for the EMPLOYEE: a. All annual gross income from

I am requesting copies of my own personal CD-326 documents or award justifications while as a federal employee in the Department of








All non-personal identifying information concerning the person selected for position Management and Program Analyst GS-0343-13/14 (MAP), position number

All non-personal identifying information concerning the person selected for position number NWS-ER-2017-0083 located at NOAA-OPPSD. I request full disclosure of

CLARIFIED REQUEST SCOPE 1/23/18: A FOIA request for job announcement number (Financial Management Specialist SO-CFO-2017-0020/SO-CFO-2017-0021)








 the following: (1) specified task orders with current SOW/PWS, labor rates and all modifications

 2016 involving the Harvest BOA Pipeline System in Plaquemine Parish, Louisiana. Pursuant to the Freedom



Chenier Ronquille Barrier Island Restoration Project (BA-76); Solicitation/Contract # WC133F-15-RB-0008/WC133F-16-CN-0007. Copies of the daily production reports (4267s), daily QC reports, all pay estimates (ENG

 Copy Contract sections A-M and all attachments.



 NA86RP0593, NA04OAR4600006, NA06OAR4600190.

ask order number DOCST133016NC1161 , held by contractor Actionet with a period of performance of 09/14/2016 –



Reference FGI 18-56960] relevant to NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION award DOCDG133012CQ0004 (WCOSS - DOC NOAA NCEP WEATHER AND CLIMATE OPERATIONAL SUPERCOMPUTING

 contract with SOW/PWS for each



 relating to Contract# AB-133M-15CQ-0020 for the repair of the vessel known as the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration ("NOAA")

[Reference FGI# 18-56371] Relevant to NOAA ST133015CQ0053/DOCST133015CQ0053 for PUBLIC CLOUD INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SERVICE ACQUISITION we seek the (1) Contract sections A-M (including SOW/PWS), attachments



istration (“NOAA”) Blanket Purchase Agreement (“BPA”) for Life Science And Technical Support Services, issued u



 regarding my contract and temporary employment at NOAA's CPO, NOS and other departments within NOAA. Location: Silver Spring, Maryland. (1)Sole Source Contract in my name Mary McCullough, Company: Hometown Events

 17-0561. The investigation was handled by Kirk Essmyer. The focus of the OIG complaint was Jeff Radonski. The final response or



 the National Weather Service Forecast Office in Jackson Mississippi was conducted. This investigation was conducted by J

 Administration, launched on or about July 2016, after allegations were made of a hostile work environment by staff in the National Marine Sanctuaries



 and the response to the correspondence. Please search for documents from January 2011 through present. A copy of all correspondence from the majority staff

 and the response to the correspondence. Please search for documents from January 2011 through present. A copy of all correspondence from the majority staff



 specifically looking for correspondence regarding policy, legislation, or regulations, recommendations for executive branch positions



 from: Primary account: Joseph.P.Green@noaa.gov secondary emails: Phil.Green@noaa.gov, Phil.Greene@noaa.gov, J.Philip.Green@noaa.gov

 for the Iridium-5 mission which placed 10 Iridium satellites into orbit. The launch mission which occurred on March 30th, 2018 at 10:13 a.m



auch, Deputy Assistant Administrator for Regulatory Programs; (iii) Brian Pawlak, Director of the Office of Managem



ith the denial of the Pacific bluefin tuna listing petition under the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. &sect;&sect; 1



 a NMFS fisheries observer in the Pacific Islands Regional Observer Program from 2006 through my last trip and subsequent decertification or ineligibility as

 related to the NMFS document entitled &quot; Technical Guidance for Assessing the Effects of Anthropogenic Sound on Marine Mammal Hearing: Underwater Acoustic Thresholds



gered vaquita porpoises near the Gulf of California. For this request, the term “all records” refers to, but is not limite



 January 1, 2014, to the present:4 1. All records or communications (including emails, text messages, and voicemails) referring or relating to a NOAA Town Hall meeting held on or

olling Regulatory Costs” and associated guidance from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB Guidance) on



 reflecting or relating to inter-agency analysis, discussion or correspondence regarding the boundaries of the Corps' CWA &sect; 404 jurisdiction in Puget Sound's tidally influenced waters. 2) All records reflecting or relating to intra-agency analysis, discussion or internal correspondence regarding the boundaries

n its entirety, including documents that are retained in separate employee files; 2) Copy of Cathy Readinger’s time



SA”), Section 7 consultation conducted concerning the International Maritime Organization’s (“IMO”) June 1 , 2013 a



ests access to all communications—including, but not limited to, e-mail, instant messages, Google Hangouts or Go



 Service National Observer Program managers for the time period September 1, 2015 to September 14, 2016 (including attachments)

Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) regarding the mass stranding (“Stranding”) of nearly 100 false killer whales (Pseu



ding the Secretary of Commerce’s decision determining that the state of New Jersey was in compliance with regard



7 to the date of this search: 1 . All records mentioning, including, and/or referencing the draft and/or final biological e



 June 23, 2016 announcement attached as Exhibit A, and (2) NOAA 's underlying decision to partially reimburse the expenses

 April 14, 2017 and January 22, 2018 responses to the NPFC's requests for additional information.  On behalf of SIGCo, we request, pursuant to the Freedom



n with the issuance of incidental harassment authorizations for oil and gas seismic exploration in the Atlantic Ocean



Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) from January 1 , 2018 to the date NMFS conducts this search: The electronic mail within



 all memoranda, studies, reports, data, correspondence, comments, conversation records, files, electronic mail records, or other documents, which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS relating to the reopening of

 National Marine Mammal Inventory information for all animals that have ever been in the custody of Dolphinaris



 "I would like both foreign observers (on US vessels) and US observers. For all observers I would like to know the regional observer program

 subject to the reporting requirements of NOAA. Specifically, I am looking for reports from the Georgia Aquarium, Mystic



Creek Nature Park Project Phase III (previously permitted under SPK-2011 -00371 ), including correspondence, em



 copy to include all marine mammals (cetaceans &amp; pinnipeds), also all dispositions (living, dead, released, etc.) and all facilities

f the Department of Interior, jointly oversee implementation of the Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act. Demo



e “Appendix A – Chronology of VMS Activities.” The report was published by the National Marine Fisheries Service








 the North Carolina Coastal Federation ("NCCF"), the Southern Environmental Law Center ("SELC") respectfully requests

 footage of a violent incident between two killer whales, Kandu and Corky, at SeaWorld San Diego on August 21, 1989. The VHS tape was



ing documents [or documents containing the following information] be provided to me: — Copies of any and all corr



emails and duplicate attachments disseminated to large volumes of recipients.   I request access to and copies of a



 Act Section 7 Consultations done for the Greater Atlantic Regional Fisheries Office (GARFO), and before it was

 Bridge Replacement Project (located in western Marin County, California), generated or received by NOAA since June 1, 2017, including all draft and final Biological Opinions



 2017 Alia: 22 May 2018 I would like to request a statement that shows the cause of Alia's recent death. I would also like to request the following on both Alia and Bodie: BODIE: A complete necropsy report on Bodie - the 7-year-old male Bottlenose dolphin - who passed away at Dolphinaris

 Information Act (&quot;FOIA&quot;), we request that the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (&quot;NOAA&quot;)



 between NMFS and Shannon W. Davis (a researcher working with the Oregon Department of Fish &amp; Wildlife) related to his

 shark fins through the United States.  (1) NOAA reports documenting the inspection of shipments of shark



Agency under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. &sect; 552, as amended (“FOIA”) for records from 1  April 2



 obtain copies of public records that contain Pacific Herring stock population numbers between the years 1700 and 2018. Of

 that relate to the assessment of the effectiveness of the observer program in reducing bycatch; 2. All documents that relate to dockside monitoring; 3. All documents



 all marine mammals held in permanent captivity under NOAA Fisheries' jurisdiction. The Marine Mammal Protection Act (MMPA)

 that relate to the assessment of the effectiveness of the observer program in reducing bycatch; 2. All documents that relate to dockside monitoring; 3. All documents



Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA” or &quot;NOAA Fisheries”) associated with: I. A recovery plan, p



 Regional Fishery Management Council (WPRFMC). Specifically, I'm requesting: 1) Documents sufficient to show the amount of time spent by WPRFMC staff

Fishery Management Council (WPRFMC). Specifically, I'm requesting: 1 ) Documents sufficient to identify the name



 Regional Fishery Management Council (WPRFMC). Specifically, I'm requesting: 1) The WPRFMC formal books of accounts over the 5 years preceding a response to this

 NOAA relative to Vessel Tracking Systems. The entry includes a passage: &quot;On October 29, 1996, NMFS announced an experiment to test VTS between January 2, 1997, and September



e killer whale, is currently being held at the Miami Seaquarium, and (2) Any and all correspondence between NMFS



Fisheries Service (“NMFS”): the request, draft request, and records generated in connection to a request from the U



 orcas).  2. Any necropsy reports received for any captive dolphins (except for orcas) that died between January 1, 2008 and the date of

comments, conversation records, files, electronic mail records, or other documents, which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS Southeast

comments, conversation records, files, electronic mail records, or other documents, which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS relating to:

comments, conversation records, files, electronic mail records, or other documents, which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS relating to:



 2018 to review data for SARS 2018. The meeting was supposed to be open to the public. I am told this happened, though the notice of

 "DeVito"; All communications, including emails and attachments, including or mentioning "David Bernhardt" or "Bernhardt";. All communications, including emails



 NOAA-NMFS-2017-0051, including the associated Draft Habitat Conservation Plan and Draft Environmental Assessment. 2. All studies, information, data relied upon in creating the Draft Environmental Assessment, Docket Number

 (&quot;Johnston&quot;) proposal and/or agreement with You to allow Johnston to perform any work on or around the Property or for the benefit of



ort between 2008 to present: 1 . All Clean Water Act and Clean Air Act permitting files, including permit applications



 concerning any potential or ongoing Endangered Species Act (ESA) consultations for the Camp Lick Project in the Malheur National Forest, including but not limited to: a. Any internal correspondence referencing the Camp Lick

 (Priority):  ·         All video and photographs of injured or dead sea turtles and marine mammals  ·         All photogra



Department of Commerce, 15 C.F.R., Part 4; the regulations of the Department of the Interior, 43 C.F.R., Part 2; a



whitetip shark as a threatened species pursuant to the Endangered Species Act.  We request that you provide certa



 working aboard foreign fish processors within the 200 mile zone between 1980 and 1991. Specifically Anne Hartmann, Anne Hartmann Burnham, Kyung Yang Ho 6 NBI, Dae Jin Ho No 52, Dae Sung Ho, Korean ships, Soviet processors, Marine Resources

 pertaining to the attached correspondence from Manna Fish Farms Owner and Chief Executive Officer, Donna Lanzetta, dated January 15, 2018. This

 pertaining to the attached correspondence from Friends of the Earth, Center for Biological Diversity, Center for Food Safety, Food and Water

 pertaining to Rose Canyon Fisheries, from January 1, 2016 to present.  REQUESTER AGREED TO NARROW



 Act Section 7 consultation carried out between the National Marine Fisheries Service and the United States Army Corps of Engineers for a proposed shoreline restoration/expansion of

 year 2017. The summary should include the date, location, and nature of the incident or threat together with a summary of

 pertaining to Manna Fish Farms or its Chief Executive Officer, Donna Lanzetta, from January 1, 2016 to present.



 FOIA within the following nine categories of records. In this request, we use the terms &quot;National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Fisheries&quot; (NOAA Fisheries)

Act. We are pleased to receive the requested materials in electronic form, if available. I consent to the withholding



rps-hydrologist-named-new-director-of-NOAAs-Great-Lakes-Environmental-Research-Laboratory-, the position of d



requests. The time period for this item of the request is December 2015 to the present. 2. All memoranda, guidelin



 the past 12 months.



e of Action Institute’s FOIA request with tracking number DOC-NOAA-2018-000428.



IA request to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) concerning records related to NOAA’s



 year 2017 (if your agency operates off of a fiscal year, that is also ok) 2) FOIA Appeals Log for calendar years

 FOIA request log covering 2017, which includes a field showing the subject of each request and a field for the final disposition. Further, I request that this








 plans, quality assurance plans, validated and unvalidated data, results, correspondence, reports and presentations) related to the &quot;Avian Injury Study egg injection studies conducted in 2006 and 2007 Hudson River PCBs

rine Sanctuaries (“ONMS”), the Flower Garden Banks National Marine Sanctuary (FGBNMS) and any other subage



gram’s current definition of &quot;marine debris.&quot; I write to request any and all records relating to the developm



 natural resource damage assessment. 2. All external correspondence (including letters, emails, and memoranda) created or received between January 1, 2007, and June 1, 2009, to or from

he magenta line from its navigational chart



 (ACSF), for copies of all internal and external communications concerning and regarding proposed wave or wind energy projects

 Green that contain the &quot;key words&quot; Lake Michigan, Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary, Lake Michigan NMS, Wisconsin, or any combination of



Sanctuary about wildlife being harassed or disturbed by drones or unmanned aerial vehicles. This request is limited



 an overhead power line over the Grand River in Grand Haven, Ml and as depicted on NOAA Charts and cited in the NOAA U.S. Coast Pilot. NOAA Charts 14933 and 14931 depict an overhead power cable (OPC)

 or through the National Science Foundation submitted from January I, 20 12 through present by or on behalf of Northeastern University; Northeastern University College of



 of the new gas science module [ALOHA RAILCAR] into the ALOHA program for railcar dispersion of chlorine gas.



1. Any and all records, photographs, correspondence, documents, including email communication, pertaining to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's approval of Louisiana's State and Local Coastal Resources

 Response and Restoration, regarding the Carla Maersk/Conti Peridot ship collision on 3/9/2015 in the Houston Ship Channel: 1 - Fate and transport forecast for both the potential air



 for Environmental Responsibility (PEER), requests information concerning recent actions to comply with the requirements of the Animal Welfare Act by two components

 approved that the $18,212 refund for FOIA #2017-000320 be rolled into the cost of this FOIA (#2017-000414).  As such, this FOIA has been narrowed to the production of the native MATLAB files



Kathleen Hibbard from June 14, 2017, through June 27, 2017 that mentions or refers to the Climate Science Special Report (CSSR)

 regarding Addicks/Barker reservoir releases from Aug. 23 through Sept 8.



Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) officials and Mr. Barry Myers, or any representatives of AccuWeathe



 manufactured by the Vaisala Corporation conducted by the National Weather Service. We understand that such testing has been conducted by the NWS at Sterling, Virginia and possibly at one or

 otherwise concerning: (1) weather modification within the Weather Service Organization Workforce Analysis; (2) the reason for adoption of



“weather modification” as defined by federal law 15 U.S.C. &sect;330, from 1971  (the date this federal law was ena



y and all email between August 23 to August 30 sent or received by Weather Prediction Center director David Nova



 substantiating the IQA conformance of NOAA and NOAA third-party contractor peer reviews of ten NOAA-developed climate assessments

 4th National Climate Assessment, whether it will be issued in final form by the statutory deadline, obstacles for completing by the deadline, and whether



Federal Advisory Committee Act charter for the “Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessme



 that affect the public pertaining to the Paris Agreement, the UNFCCC, the IPCC and the Kyoto Protocol from January 20, 2017 through April 27, 2018.

 ground level ultraviolet radiation from the sun. Specifically, I am seeking information on UVA, UVB, and UVC wavelengths



 pertaining to any applications or proposals for certain finfish aquaculture projects submitted pursuant to the National Sea Grant College Program

 based primarily upon reviews of third-party (including NOAA) prepared scientific assessments.



ifurcated into both the Seventh U.S. National Communication (“NC-7”) and the Third U.S. Biennial Report (“BR-3”)



 and lnvestigations Unit pertaining to the Office of Inspector General complaint filed by Katy Stewart referencing Nicole Mason; 2. The first management inquiry written by Glenn Boledorich for OAR Leadership and submitted to the Office of

 January 20, 2017 to the date of this request originating from the Office of the Administrator or the Office of Communications when it came to requests



NOAA’s Annual Greenhouse Gas Index found here: http://www.noaa.gov/news/noaa-s-greenhouse-gas-index-up-4



 that a) are dated from 1/1/2015 onward b) originate with, or are sent to or from personnel in the following offices: Communications

 the 16-month, 5-day period from Tuesday, November 8, 2016 through Tuesday, March 13, 2018: (SUMMARY) Any and all talking points



 the Hatch Act in Aug 2016 2. Official record of my ethical violation in having a NOAA logo on my personal website under coaching services

 for Conservation Law Foundation. I am seeking a list of Notices of Intent (NOIs) and/or lawsuits filed against the National Marine Fisheries



RCE NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION DOCKET NUMBER NE980310FM/V (F/V Ind



MERCE NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION DOCKET NUMBER NE980310FM/V (F/V



e period for all items of this request is July 1 , 2017 to the present.  1 . All communications between NOAA and the A



C AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION DOCKET NUMBER NE980310FM/V (F/V Independence) IN THE MAT



 which the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration may be holding in regards to diplomatic negotiations and technical deliberations

 including the word CLIMATE or the word CHARTER or the phrase &quot;ADVISORY COMMITTEE&quot;. I limit this search to an electronic search of emails in the email accounts of the Acting Administrator



 the word CLIMATE or the word CHARTER or the phrase &quot;ADVISORY COMMITTEE&quot;. I limit this search to an electronic search of emails in the email accounts of the Acting Administrator

er Secretary of Commerce for Oceans and Atmosphere) Ben Friedman, his senior advisor, special assistant, chief



 the word CLIMATE or the word CHARTER or the phrase &quot;ADVISORY COMMITTEE&quot;. I limit this search to an electronic search of emails in the email accounts of the Acting Administrator

or Jordan, from May 20, 2018 to June 26, 2018, that mention “mission” or “vision setting” or “regulation” or “deregu



 and Atmosphere to Craig McLean Acting Chief Scientist from January 1, 2018 to May 15, 2018.

 and reimbursements, for Timothy Gallaudet from October 5, 2017 through the present.



ce replies, scheduler invitations, personal emails, and similar non-substantive discussions).  In order to avoid cons



 income from all sources including, but not limited to, regular pay, overtime, bonuses, cash, profit sharing, commissions

 a federal employee in the Department of Commerce from 2004-2017. Also, and as a separate matter, I am requesting a copy of




http://www.noaa.gov/news/noaa-s-greenhouse-gas-index-up-4





 Analyst GS-0343-13/14 (MAP), position number NWS-ER-2017-0074 located at NOAA-NWS-Office of Facilities

 NWS-ER-2017-0083 located at NOAA-OPPSD. I request full disclosure of the selectee's 1. Age at time of selection 2. Declared race at time of



 (Financial Management Specialist SO-CFO-2017-0020/SO-CFO-2017-0021) for which I interviewed for on 8 September 2017 at 17:00 PST








 in Plaquemine Parish, Louisiana. Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, we request you provide us with a true and correct copy of the official records o f the United States

 (ENG 93), and the BD &amp; AD hydrographic/land surveys (.xyz format) for the above referenced project.



9/14/2016 – 02/14/2020: -All solicitation documents for contract DOCST133016NC1161  -All solicitation amendmen



 DOC NOAA NCEP WEATHER AND CLIMATE OPERATIONAL SUPERCOMPUTING SYSTEM) we seek the following items: (1) all Task Orders and Delivery Orders issued to date; (2)



 Administration ("NOAA") Oscar Elton Sette ("Sette") between Mare Island Dry Dock LLC ("MIDD") and the NOAA. Specifically, I request that you provide any and all documents

 A-M (including SOW/PWS), attachments and modifications



es, issued under GSA Schedule No. GS00F217CA, we seek a copy of the BPA Contract, all task orders issued ther



 within NOAA. Location: Silver Spring, Maryland. (1)Sole Source Contract in my name Mary McCullough, Company: Hometown Events and Management. (2) Temporary worker through a temporary service, I cannot recall the name of

 Radonski. The final response or findings was sent to OCAO.



 conducted by J. Kirk Essmyer Inquiry Official / Appeals Officer NOAA Fisheries Service, National Appeals Office and Mr. Steven Goodman NOAA Fisheries

 in the National Marine Sanctuaries program in the Florida Keys. Please also provide copies of financial audits



 the majority staff of the House Budget Committee from January 1, 2017 through present. I believe the correspondence are most likely to be held by your

 the majority staff of the House Budget Committee from January 1, 2017 through present. I believe the correspondence are most likely to be held by your



 for executive branch positions or appointments, or support or opposition to federal funding for programs, projects, or companies



.Philip.Green@noaa.gov  Selective emails were deleted made by another, not by me. Request all deleted emails be recovered along with the computer IP address

 into orbit. The launch mission which occurred on March 30th, 2018 at 10:13 a.m. EDT. In addition, please include the application and any or all addendum, correspondences, and any other



of Management and Budget; (iv) Alan Risenhoover, Director of the Office of Sustainable Fisheries; or (v) John Bulla



ect;&sect; 1531 -1544 (“ESA”). See Attachment A (12 Month Decision Not To List Pacific Bluefin Tuna).



 2006 through my last trip and subsequent decertification or ineligibility as an observer in this program: 1) All my sea time with dates of embarkation and disembarkation, number

 Thresholds for Onset of Permanent and Temporary Threshold Shifts&quot; (&quot;Technical Guidance&quot;). 1. Information not cited in the final version of



is not limited to, any and all documents, correspondence (including, but not limited to, inter and/or intra-agency corr



 referring or relating to a NOAA Town Hall meeting held on or about September 15, 2015, in Providence, Rhode Island, and publicized on NOAA's

uidance) on:  1 ) the rulemaking entitled Designation of Critical Habitat for Threatened Indo-Pacific Reef-building Cor



 reflecting or relating to intra-agency analysis, discussion or internal correspondence regarding the boundaries

nger’s time and attendance records for the 24-month period preceding March 8, 2016; 3) Copy of Cathy Readinger’



e 1 , 2013 amendment of traffic separation schemes (“TSS”), and associated federal rulemaking process, in the Sa



gouts or Google Chat messages, text messages, SMS messages, Blackberry messages, Skype messages, Micros



 14, 2016 (including attachments).

hales (Pseudorca crassidens) at Hog Key, on Florida’s southwestern coast, on or about January 14, 2017.  Unless



with regard to management of its recreational summer flounder fishery under the Atlantic Coastal Fisheries Cooper



 biological evaluation of chlorpyrifos under the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. &sect;&sect; 1531 -1544 (“ESA”



 underlying decision to partially reimburse the expenses of industry-funded at-sea monitoring.

 SIGCo, we request, pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, that the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration produce for inspection and copying its



antic Ocean under the Marine Mammal Protection Act, 16 U.S.C. &sect;&sect; 1361 -1389 (“MMPA”), from January



 mail within NMFS mentioning, including, referencing, and/or generated in connection with the U.S. Environmental



 documents, which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS relating to the reopening of the red snapper season, between the dates of January 20, 2017 and June 19, 2017. This

 Dolphinaris Arizona, 9500 E. Via de Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona, including those that have been transferred away or have died. I am



 I would like to know the regional observer program from which the observers are deployed. " Through the Freedom of Information Act, I request the following documents: A summary of

 the Georgia Aquarium, Mystic Aquarium, Shedd Aquarium, Sea World Texas (San Antonio), Sea World California (San Diego), and Sea World Florida (Orlando)



ndence, emails, and notes.    2.    The complete project file for the Section 404 project - North American Wetlands C



 and all facilities.

Act. Democracy Forward Foundation therefore requests that NMFS produce the following within twenty (20) busine



es Service (NMFS), Office of Enforcement, Southwest Region, Honolulu, Hawaii in 1997.








 respectfully requests all records in the possession of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service ("FWS") regarding the Town of

 a violent incident between two killer whales, Kandu and Corky, at SeaWorld San Diego on August 21, 1989. The VHS tape was originally sent to then Attorney General John Van de Kamp of California. The postmark



and all correspondence with Alaska communities including but not exclusive of the communities of Napaskiak, Atm



copies of any information used to inform the development of the following national monument proclamations or exp



 Office (GARFO), and before it was known as GARFO, Northeast Regional Fisheries Office (NRFO). This should include, but is not limited to, NEFSC comments

 Bridge Replacement Project (located in western Marin County, California), generated or received by NOAA since June 1, 2017, including all draft and final Biological Opinions and associated Incidental Take Statements; and also the Programmatic



 recent death. I would also like to request the following on both Alia and Bodie: BODIE: A complete necropsy report on Bodie - the 7-year-old male Bottlenose dolphin - who passed away at Dolphinaris

 Administration (&quot;NOAA&quot;) make available any and all public 1&middot;ecords regarding the proposed Doheny Ocean Desalination Project (SCH No. 2016031038)



 Fish &amp; Wildlife) related to his receipt, use and dissemination of any Pacific Fisheries Information Network (PacFIN) information provided to Mr

 shark fins that were imported into or transiting through the United States, from January 1, 2010, through and including May 30, 2018;



om 1  April 2016 regarding AGDC’s petition for incidental take regulations for construction of the Alaska LNG Projec



 1700 and 2018. Of particular interest is data pertaining to the Puget Sound, Georgia Strait, Strait of Juan de Fuca, and Salish Sea regions

 that relate to dockside monitoring; 3. All documents that relate to the observation in the 2017 annual report that: &quot;The results



 NOAA Fisheries' jurisdiction. The Marine Mammal Protection Act (MMPA) requires NOAA Fisheries to maintain this inventory. The inventory includes all whales, dolphins, porpoises, seals, and sea lions

 that relate to dockside monitoring; 3. All documents that relate to the observation in the 2017 annual report that: &quot;The results



ery plan, per ESA sections 4(f)(1 ) and 4(f)(1 )(A), or lack thereof with associated findings that such a plan will not pr



 time spent by WPRFMC staff on lobbying activities from 2014 to 2017.&nbsp; By lobbying activities, I am referring to any effort to influence legislation or executive action, including indirect or

y the name and position of all WPRFMC staff for the 5 years preceding a response to this request. 2) For each per



 preceding a response to this request, including a cash receipts and disbursements journal, a general journal, and a general ledger, in the greatest level of

 a passage: &quot;On October 29, 1996, NMFS announced an experiment to test VTS between January 2, 1997, and September 30, 1997, to determine the effectiveness



ween NMFS and the Miami Seaquarium pertaining to Lolita, from the time the agency decided to propose granting h



 from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) to reinitiate informal consultations, consultations, or other



 that died between January 1, 2008 and the date of your request, April 26, 2018.  3. You requested clarification on the information we are seeking related to permits

which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS Southeast Regional Office relating to: 1. The data sources used to estimate the bycatch of sharks

which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS relating to: 1. The data sources used to estimate shark bycatch in the Gulf of Mexico reef fish

which were generated, received, kept, and/or considered by NMFS relating to: 1. The data sources used to estimate shark bycatch in the HMS pelagic longline



 happened, though the notice of the meeting had disappeared. I am requesting a copy of the draft minutes of Pacific Scientific Review Group for 2018, or if

 and attachments, including or mentioning "David Bernhardt" or "Bernhardt";. All communications, including emails and attachments, including or mentioning Scott Angelle; Please limit your



 NOAA-NMFS-2017-0051, including the associated Draft Habitat Conservation Plan and Draft Environmental Assessment. 2. All studies, information, data relied upon in creating the Draft Environmental Assessment, Docket Number

 on or around the Property or for the benefit of the subject Property, together with any drafts, exhibits, changes, amendments or addendums



pplications and permits; 2. All air emission or water discharge compliance or monitoring reports; all documents rela



 Project in the Malheur National Forest, including but not limited to: a. Any internal correspondence referencing the Camp Lick Project b. Any external correspondence referencing the Camp Lick

All photograph of injured or dead seabirds (up to 10 per year/species)  ·         All photographs of each fish species d



R., Part 2; and the regulations of the Marine Mammal Commission, 50 C.F.R., Part 520; I am writing on behalf of the



ovide certain records in your possession, whether received, created, and/or distributed by NMFS, in connection wit



 within the 200 mile zone between 1980 and 1991. Specifically Anne Hartmann, Anne Hartmann Burnham, Kyung Yang Ho 6 NBI, Dae Jin Ho No 52, Dae Sung Ho, Korean ships, Soviet processors, Marine Resources

 Executive Officer, Donna Lanzetta, dated January 15, 2018. This request encompasses any records in the possession of NOAA or its



 the Earth, Center for Biological Diversity, Center for Food Safety, Food and Water Watch, and Recirculating Farms Coalition, dated January 24, 2018. This

 NARROW THE SCOPE AS FOLLOWS: -only the final or major substantive revisions to drafts need be produced



 for a proposed shoreline restoration/expansion of uplands project located at 17575/17505 Old Cutler Road assigned a NMFS tracking number

 with a summary of what, if any, outcomes stemmed from the incident or threat (e.g., arrest, conviction, ongoing investigation)



 January 1, 2016 to present.

 Administration Fisheries&quot; (NOAA Fisheries) and &quot;National Marine Fisheries Service&quot; (NMFS). All such usages



withholding of personal privacy information. Please provide the following documents: 1 . All warranties received by N



position of director of NOAA’s Great Lakes Environmental Research Laboratory (GLERL) was filled in December 20



da, guidelines, procedures, processing metrics, or communications concerning any type of “sensitive review,” or ha



to NOAA’s handling of “sensitive” or “high-visibility” FOIA requests.  (tracking number DOC-NOAA-2018-000428).



 years 2017 (if your agency operates off of a fiscal year, that is also ok) 3) Mandatory Declassification Review (MDR)

 each request and a field for the final disposition. Further, I request that this document be sent in any digital formats in which it exists (such as








 conducted in 2006 and 2007 Hudson River PCBs Superfund Site Natural Resource Damages Trustees (&quot;Trustees&quot;), as

her subagencies or divisions under the supervision and administration of NOAA, all “records” as defined in this req



he development of the regulatory definition of &quot;marine debris&quot; for purposes of the Marine Debris Researc



 created or received between January 1, 2007, and June 1, 2009, to or from the Yakama Nation, or its designated representatives and consultants



 wind energy projects offshore California between January 1, 2010, to date. This request includes, but is not exclusive of, any policy-development discussions

 Green that contain the &quot;key words&quot; Lake Michigan, Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary, Lake Michigan NMS, Wisconsin, or any combination of those words related to the creation of an National Marine Sanctuary in Lake Michigan. The period for the requested emails



est is limited to the time-frame between January 1 , 2016 and the time this request is processed. For this request, th



 14933 and 14931 depict an overhead power cable (OPC) that spans the Grand River between approximately1 43&deg;03'1.2&quot;N; 86&deg;09'33&quot;W

 Northeastern University; Northeastern University College of Science; or Northeastern University Marine and Environmental Sciences which concerns: a. The Northeastern University Marine Science Center



hlorine gas. 2. Budget documents related to this adoption, including any related interagency agreements, contracts,



 State and Local Coastal Resources Management Act of 1978 and/or Louisiana's Coastal Resources Program. 2. Any and all records, photographs, correspondence, documents, including email communication, related to every periodic

 Fate and transport forecast for both the potential air plume and contaminated water 2- The human health hazard assessment 3- The environmental impact analysis



 the Animal Welfare Act by two components of the National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration (NOAA): the Oceanic

 the native MATLAB files used in the publication, L. Jay Field et al., Re-visiting projections of PCBs in Lower Hudson River fish using model emulation, Science of



 to the Climate Science Special Report (CSSR).



ccuWeather, or Thomas (Tom) Fahy, its lobbyist; and 2. Records reflecting any NOAA response or action taken rela



 been conducted by the NWS at Sterling, Virginia and possibly at one or more locations in Alaska, and that the report may be located in or

 the reason for adoption of the &quot;Operations and Workforce Analysis (OWA) Project: Charter for All Workstream



aw was enacted) to the present.



David Novak, deputy director Kathy Gilbert, administrative officer Crystal Rickett and secretary Dawn Cyrus includin



 ten NOAA-developed climate assessments that NOAA knew or had reason to know the EPA Administrator would use as the scientific foundation, in part, of

 for completing by the deadline, and whether the recent decision to terminate the 'Advisory Committee for Sustained National Climate Assessment' will impact the date for issuance of



e Assessment” (hereafter “Committee”) including, but not limited to: a. Who participated in this decision-making pro



 January 20, 2017 through April 27, 2018.

 seeking information on UVA, UVB, and UVC wavelengths. Most importantly UVC a.k.a. UV-C. Historical data will not need to exceed 50 years if more exsists. Furthermore, if



 submitted pursuant to the National Sea Grant College Program 2018 Ocean, Coastal and Great Lakes National Aquaculture Initiative (Sea Grant)



ort (“BR-3”), as mandated to be submitted under the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (“U



 Inspector General complaint filed by Katy Stewart referencing Nicole Mason; 2. The first management inquiry written by Glenn Boledorich for OAR Leadership and submitted to the Office of

 when it came to requests from members of the media. This information is being requested in light of recent reports



-index-up-40-percent-since-1990 I would prefer to receive these in electronic format if possible.



 personnel in the following offices: Communications Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs c) include one or more of the following terms: &quot;embargo&quot; &quot;embargoed until&quot; &quot;press

 Any and all talking points and similar memorandums, emails, and transcripts providing advice or direction on how to handle the media, media interviews, and statements



 coaching services versus &quot;as seen at&quot; section for where I have been a speaker 3. Official record of my ethical violation in sending sensitive information about a pending investigation to those that needed to know (ie management officials

 filed against the National Marine Fisheries Service, the Department of Commerce, and/or any other government entity or private party under



M/V (F/V Independence) IN THE MATTER OF: Lobster's Inc. Lawrence M. Yacubian, Respondents. Respondent Ex



0FM/V (F/V Independence) IN THE MATTER OF: Lobster's Inc. Lawrence M. Yacubian, Respondents. Agency Exh



A and the Attorney General of the United States concerning records created or received by NOAA employees throu



N THE MATTER OF: Lobster's Inc. Lawrence M. Yacubian, Respondents. Exhibit 31  contains information and data



 and technical deliberations under the United Nations Convention on Biological Diversity insofar that they relate to the following themes: climate engineering, geoengineering, negative emissions

 the Acting Administrator Ben Friedman, and those of his Senior Advisor, Special Assistant, Chief of Staff, Deputy Chief



 the Acting Administrator Ben Friedman, and those of his Senior Advisor, Special Assistant, Chief of Staff, Deputy Chief

stant, chief of staff, deputy chief of staff and policy director, between the dates of July 1 , 2017, and the date this req



 the Acting Administrator Ben Friedman, and those of his Senior Advisor, Special Assistant, Chief of Staff, Deputy Chief

or “deregulation” or “regulate.”  I write to request access to and copies of all communications to, from, or in the cus



avoid consultations with other agencies, they also were willing to exclude emails that involved third party domains,



 including, but not limited to, regular pay, overtime, bonuses, cash, profit sharing, commissions and expense accounts, identifying said sources other than regular income. b. The annual deductions

 requesting a copy of a document I signed in 2008 with regard to a NOAA ADR mediation between me and Dr. Lixion Avila.








 Facilities. I request full disclosure of the selectee's 1. Age at time of selection 2. Declared race at time of selection 3. Veterans

 selection 2. Declared race at time of selection 3. Veterans status 4. Length of service with NWS prior to appointment. 5. Total length of



 2017 at 17:00 PST via telephone in Seattle, WA with Angela Hunter.  Request the following:   Hiring decision documents, interview notes








 the United States Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, concerning the Cheniere Ronquille Barrier Island Coastal Restoration Project FED NO



amendments for contract DOCST133016NC1161  -Any Q&amp;As from the solicitation period for contract DOCST1



 issued to date; (2) all invoices submitted to the government or paid under the contract; (3) Any and all NOAA Letters



NOAA. Specifically, I request that you provide any and all documents maintained by the NOAA which related to Contract# AB-133M-15CQ-0020 including but not



issued thereunder, all modifications issued thereto, and all communications between the Contracting Officer and th



 Temporary worker through a temporary service, I cannot recall the name of the temp agency. (3) Copy of IBSS contract with NOAA for my services



 Office and Mr. Steven Goodman NOAA Fisheries Chief National Appeals Office, Office of Management and Budget. These gentlemen have interviewed numerous

 financial audits that were done in relation to the investigation.



 January 1, 2017 through present. I believe the correspondence are most likely to be held by your Office of Congressional Affairs, Office of Legislative Affairs, or

 January 1, 2017 through present. I believe the correspondence are most likely to be held by your Office of Congressional Affairs, Office of Legislative Affairs, or



 companies. I am not seeking individual casework, although I am interested in any correspondence regarding advocacy for grants



 be recovered along with the computer IP address that deleted the email. The primary email address is: Joseph.P.Green@noaa.gov The secondary email addresses

. In addition, please include the application and any or all addendum, correspondences, and any other records pertaining to the remote sensing space system license referenced above.



) John Bullard, Regional Administrator for the Greater Atlantic Region, and any person associated with the following



 embarkation and disembarkation, number of sea days, and names of vessels; 2) All performance evaluations

. 1. Information not cited in the final version of the Technical Guidance or released to the public that NMFS relied upon in the Technical Guidance, including scientific



agency correspondence as well as correspondence with entities or individuals outside the federal government), em



 15, 2015, in Providence, Rhode Island, and publicized on NOAA's website on or about September 3, 2015 (attached as Exhibit 1 to this FOIA request), including &middot; but not limited to all written comments, as

building Corals, including the timing and content of any such designation.   2) ​the rulemaking entitled Designation of



 reflecting or relating to intra-agency analysis, discussion or internal correspondence regarding the boundaries of the Corps' CWA &sect; 404 jurisdiction in Puget Sound's tidally influenced waters. 3) Any records reflecting Army Corps' directives, guidance, rules, or

Readinger’s time and attendance records from March 8, 2016 through June 27, 2017; 4) Listing of administrative h



s, in the Santa Barbara Channel (“SBC”) and approach to the ports of Long Beach and Los Angeles; 2. All records



ges, Microsoft Exchange Server messages, handwritten notes, or correspondence through any other medium—sen



Unless otherwise stated below, and for purposes of this request, SSL seeks only those records produced or rec



ies Cooperative Management Act.  1 . Decision memoranda, letters, emails, situation summaries, discussion docum



544 (“ESA”); 2. All records mentioning, including, and/or referencing the draft and/or final biological evaluation of m



 Administration produce for inspection and copying its full investigation file pertaining to this matter. This includes but is

m January 20, 2017 to the date of the search.



ronmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) “strawman” on pesticides. See Attachment A (FWS’s October 23, 2017 Ema



 January 20, 2017 and June 19, 2017. This includes documents, records, and materials regarding: 1. extension or reopening of the private recreational red snapper season;

 Arizona, 9500 E. Via de Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona, including those that have been transferred away or have died. I am willing to pay reasonable fees associated with the processing of this request.



 Information Act, I request the following documents: A summary of all complaints of violence, threats, or harassment against fisheries

 (San Antonio), Sea World California (San Diego), and Sea World Florida (Orlando). The most current reports that I can locate on the NOAA website are from



Wetlands Conservation Act 3 – Lower Putah Creek Floodplain Restoration Project (NAWCA 3) (SPK-2015-00307)



(20) business days: 1 . All e-mails, including attachments, to or from Susan Combs (Senior Advisor to the Secretary








 regarding the Town of Holden Beach Shoreline Management Project ("Project").

 California. The postmark of this video is between August 22 - September 30, 1989.

askiak, Atmautluak, Bethel, Akiachak, Tuluksak and Akiak in regard to the illegal killing of a protected gray whale b



tions or expansions during the specified time periods: Northeast Canyons and Seamounts Marine National Monum



 not limited to, NEFSC comments on both draft and final Section 7 consultation documents; and 2. GARFO/NRFO

 and associated Incidental Take Statements; and also the Programmatic Biological Opinion issued by NOAA Fisheries to Caltrans in approximately October 2013.



 recent death. I would also like to request the following on both Alia and Bodie: BODIE: A complete necropsy report on Bodie - the 7-year-old male Bottlenose dolphin - who passed away at Dolphinaris Arizona in Scottsdale, AZ on the 23rd of

 regarding the proposed Doheny Ocean Desalination Project (SCH No. 2016031038) (&quot;Project&quot;), proposed by the South Coast Water



 information provided to Mr. Davis. 2. Any and all records including communications, authorizations, restrictions or agreements

and including May 30, 2018; (2) Complaints and judgments from law enforcement actions pertaining to the import of



LNG Project in Cook Inlet, Alaska, including: (1 ) All correspondence between NOAA Fisheries and AGDC regarding



 Juan de Fuca, and Salish Sea regions. Please include any government reports, primary documents from precolonial fisheries, fishery catch and stock

 that relate to the observation in the 2017 annual report that: &quot;The results of dockside monitoring from 2016 represent the third year in which the observer program



 all whales, dolphins, porpoises, seals, and sea lions held for: public display, scientific research, enhancement, national defense purpose.&quot;

 that relate to the observation in the 2017 annual report that: &quot;The results of dockside monitoring from 2016 represent the third year in which the observer program



n will not promote the conservation of the species, of the Beringia Distinct Population Segment (“DPS”) of the Bear



 referring to any effort to influence legislation or executive action, including indirect or grassroots lobbying. 2) All WPRFMC letters, testimony, or

or each person identified, documents sufficient to identify the individual’s employment status, including but not limite



 journal, a general journal, and a general ledger, in the greatest level of detail available without need for redaction. I would like this record(s)

 30, 1997, to determine the effectiveness of VTS units supplied by vendors for VTS monitoring. Limited access multispecies permit holders



e granting her ‘endangered’ status under the ESA, to a year after she was officially listed.



ns, or otherwise review the NMFS Biological Opinion on Environmental Protection Agency’s Registration of Pesticid



3. You requested clarification on the information we are seeking related to permits for research on captive dolphins. Specifically, we request the following records

 sharks in the Gulf of Mexico reef fish fishery (bottom longline and vertical line) and the Southeastern Atlantic



 fish fishery (bottom longline and vertical line) and the Southeastern Atlantic snapper ‐grouper fishery (bottom

 longline and shark bottom longline fisheries. 2. Logbook data related to shark bycatch, by species, in the HMS shark

 Review Group for 2018, or if none some document describing how SARS 2018 data is going to be reviewed and published.



 and attachments, including or mentioning Scott Angelle; Please limit your search the following people: Neil Jacobs Tim Gallaudet Sam Rauch Craig Mclean Paul Doremus

 NOAA-NMFS-2017-0051, including the associated Draft Habitat Conservation Plan and Draft Environmental Assessment. 2. All studies, information, data relied upon in creating the Draft Environmental Assessment, Docket Number NOAA-NMFS-2017-0051. 3. All documents concerning Atlantic sturgeon impacts



 or addendums thereto. 2. Copies of any Documents which reflect or depict the amount of money paid to You for Your

uments related to the discharge of any oil or hazardous substance, or any other pollutant; 3. All records reflecting co



 Project b. Any external correspondence referencing the Camp Lick Project, including correspondence with any state or federal agencies

h species discarded dead (up to 10 per year/species)  *(Prioritizing images of sea turtles and marine mammals for t



ehalf of the Animal Welfare Institute (“AWI”) to request from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration



nection with the development of the 90-day finding, the proposed rule, and the final rule. Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 55



 within the 200 mile zone between 1980 and 1991. Specifically Anne Hartmann, Anne Hartmann Burnham, Kyung Yang Ho 6 NBI, Dae Jin Ho No 52, Dae Sung Ho, Korean ships, Soviet processors, Marine Resources Company, Thorne Tasker, Alaska Joint Venture Fisheries, groundfish fishery 1980-1990.

 NOAA or its Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission.



 Coalition, dated January 24, 2018. This request includes any records in the possession of NOAA or any of its Interstate Marine Fisheries

 need be produced -only communications at the Section Chief level or above need be produced -no cc's, bcc's, non-substantive forwards, out of



 project located at 17575/17505 Old Cutler Road assigned a NMFS tracking number SER-2017-18430 or including the following individuals: -Ingrid Gilbert -Megan Clouser -Thomas

 the incident or threat (e.g., arrest, conviction, ongoing investigation). A summary of all incidents of violence, threats, or harassment against professional observers, including government contractors, that occurred in calendar



 Service&quot; (NMFS). All such usages refer to the United States Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries

ceived by NOAA from Safe Boats International related to NOAA’s 27 Foot Safe Boats vessel, Hull Number: EGO00



ecember 2014. It is a SES position. This is a request for information related to the following question: 1 . Was the va



iew,” or handling of “high visibility” FOIA requests, including politically-sensitive requests or those submitted by new



8-000428).



 3) Mandatory Declassification Review (MDR) Log for calendar year2017 (if your agency operates off of a fiscal year, that is also ok) At the minimum, if

 (such as PDF and Excel). Under the terms of the E-FOIA Amendments of 1996, Section 5, if a document exists








 (&quot;Trustees&quot;), as well as all information generated by the Trustees as part of the 2008, 2009 and any post-2009 avian egg injection work

d in this request, including without limitation all inter and intra-agency communications and data, used, consulted, re



bris Research, Prevention, and Reduction Act. I have already reviewed the records in the relevant regulatory docket



 and consultants (including Ridolfi Environmental), where the correspondence refers to Portland Harbor, the Lower Columbia River, the Multnomah Channel, or



 not exclusive of, any policy-development discussions for these types of energy projects, and/or discussions

 an National Marine Sanctuary in Lake Michigan. The period for the requested emails is January 1, 2017 through July 31, 2017.



request, the term “all records” refers to, but is not limited to, any and all complaints submitted to the Monterey Bay



 the Grand River between approximately1 43&deg;03'1.2&quot;N; 86&deg;09'33&quot;W and 43&deg;02'46&quot;N; 86&deg;9'56&quot;W. The notation on both charts

 which concerns: a. The Northeastern University Marine Science Center located in Nahant, Massachusetts; b. Northeastern University's



, contracts, descriptions of work, progress reports, draft and final reports.



. 2. Any and all records, photographs, correspondence, documents, including email communication, related to every periodic

 The environmental impact analysis report Thank you



 Administration (NOAA): the Oceanic & Atmospheric Research (OAR) and the National Ocean Service (NOS). Specifically, we request the following:

 in Lower Hudson River fish using model emulation, Science of the Total Environment 557-558:489-501 (July 2016), and as



n taken relative to the February 2018 “false” tsunami warning incident. This request is limited to records created on



 in Alaska, and that the report may be located in or maintained by Joe Pica, the Director of the NWS Office of Observations. 2. Documents

 for All Workstream Core Teams&quot; a copy of which is attached.



rus including the keyword(s): • rain • flood • Houston • Hurricane • Harvey • tropical storm • inches • disaster  Copies



 foundation, in part, of the Clean Air Act endangerment analysis the EPA had been required to undertake in response to the U.S. Supreme Court's

 the recent decision to terminate the 'Advisory Committee for Sustained National Climate Assessment' will impact the date for issuance of the final 4th National Climate Assessment.



making process, both within and outside the agency and the U.S. Department of Commerce; b. What factors were



. Furthermore, if information exists, I am requesting information on programs/operations in place to combat these rising levels

 National Aquaculture Initiative (Sea Grant). This request pertains specifically to all applications or proposals for marine aquaculture projects



Change (“UNFCCC”) Articles 4 and 12, including but not limited to: a. All records mentioning, including, and/or refer



 Inspector General complaint filed by Katy Stewart referencing Nicole Mason; 2. The first management inquiry written by Glenn Boledorich for OAR Leadership and submitted to the Office of Audits and Investigations Unit regarding the Office of Inspector General complaint filed by Katy Stewart referencing Nicole Mason and all documents

 recent reports surrounding concerns on relationships between other federal agencies and journalists, particularly the CDC, especially agencies



 the following terms: &quot;embargo&quot; &quot;embargoed until&quot; &quot;press conference&quot; &quot;press briefing&quot; &quot;press

 direction on how to handle the media, media interviews, and statements. ---- (SPECIFICALLY) Please include in your responsive materials



 my ethical violation in sending sensitive information about a pending investigation to those that needed to know (ie management officials

 government entity or private party under the citizen's suit provisions of the Endangered Species Act (ESA). The information should include the identity of



pondent Exhibit #10 – Expert Witness Report of Dr. Peter H. Dana dated 30 January 2001 . Respondent Exhibit #2



Agency Exhibit #3 – Enforcement Action Report. Agency Exhibit #1 1  – Offense Investigation Report (OIR) by Lt. Ti



yees through Google Chat, Google Hangouts, Skype, or any other similar electronic messaging system.9 2. All rec



on and data relevant to the “USCG Research &amp; Development Center and Eight Coast Guard District BOATRAC



 Convention on Biological Diversity insofar that they relate to the following themes: climate engineering, geoengineering, negative emissions technology, carbon dioxide removal, solar radiation management, albedo modification, bioenergy with carbon capture and storage (BECCS) or

 Staff, Deputy Chief of Staff and Policy Director. I limit this search to the dates July 1, 2017 to the present.



 Staff, Deputy Chief of Staff and Policy Director. I limit this search to the dates July 1, 2017 to the present.

ate this request is fulfilled with the following search terms: n “climate assessment” n “advisory committee” A copy of



 Staff, Deputy Chief of Staff and Policy Director. I limit this search to the dates July 1, 2017 to the present.

r in the custody of Taylor Jordan, from May 20, 2018 to June 26, 2018, that mention “Brazauskas” or “Wydler” or “G



y domains, and restricted responsiveness to emails to and from noaa.gov email addresses  The Center requests fro



 than regular income. b. The annual deductions from pay, identifying the nature of said deductions. c. Bonuses: All records necessary to reflect any bonuses

. Lixion Avila.








 selection 3. Veterans status 4. Length of service with NWS prior to appointment. 5. Total length of government service prior to appointment. 6. Gender

 service with NWS prior to appointment. 5. Total length of government service prior to appointment. 6. Gender of appointee. I also request how many candidates



Hiring decision documents, interview notes and associated correspondence Rating sheets listing all applicants identified as Not qualified, Qualified, and Best Qualified








 Administration, concerning the Cheniere Ronquille Barrier Island Coastal Restoration Project FED NO. BA-76 and the pipeline spill which occur red on 5 September



ct DOCST133016NC1161  Thank you



 Any and all NOAA Letters of concern, show cause etc. and their associated responses; (4) GFE Property List; (5) Over All Program



by the NOAA which related to Contract# AB-133M-15CQ-0020 including but not limited to: 1. All contract documents, reports, memoranda, change orders



ficer and the contractor arising out of or relating to the subject contract. [Agency POC is EMILY.CLARK@NOAA.G



 IBSS contract with NOAA for my services as a temporary/contract worker at NOAA, including rate of pay, reason for my removal from



 Management and Budget. These gentlemen have interviewed numerous NOAA employees and were directed to submit a written repo



 Legislative Affairs, or the office of the Executive Secretariat and likely tracked within a correspondence management system

 Legislative Affairs, or the office of the Executive Secretariat and likely tracked within a correspondence management system



 interested in any correspondence regarding advocacy for grants or contracts for businesses.



 is: Joseph.P.Green@noaa.gov The secondary email addresses are: Phil.Green@noaa.gov, Phil.Greene@noaa.gov, and J



he following entities concerning industry funding for the Northeast Multispecies Fishery’s At-Sea Monitor Prog



 All performance evaluations made by NMFS and/or Techsea International, Inc. staff after each trip; 3) The original complaint from Morgan Lynne Miller filed with NMFS detail

 that NMFS relied upon in the Technical Guidance, including scientific documents, studies, and reports. 2. Technical tools



nment), emails, letters, notes, telephone records, telephone notes, minutes, memoranda, comments, files, presenta



 FOIA request), including &middot; but not limited to all written comments, as well as all communications with nongovernm

signation of Critical Habitat for the Arctic Ringed Seal, including the timing and content of any such designation.  



 reflecting Army Corps' directives, guidance, rules, or other authorities regarding the appropriate tidal

nistrative hours provided to Council staff from March 8, 2016 through June 27, 2017; 5) Confirmation from the Cou



All records generated in connection with ESA Section 7 consultation conducted with respect to the IMO’s June 1 , 20



edium—sent or received by all NOAA employees and members of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council



uced or received by NMFS since May 25, 2017. SSL selected this date on the basis of representations by NMFS th



sion documents, or briefing documents that discuss summer flounder and New Jersey’s 2017 recreational season;



uation of malathion under the ESA; 3. All records mentioning, including, and/or referencing the draft and/or final bio



 but is not limited to, any and all reports, findings, documents, photographs, films, sketches, plans, drawings, emails, damage assess



 2017 Email).



 the private recreational red snapper season; 2. how or whether this action would affect progress toward rebuilding under



 harassment against fisheries observers in US fisheries observer programs that occurred in calendar year 2013, 2014, 2015, and 2016, separated by: 1. Year; 2. Whether

 that I can locate on the NOAA website are from 2012. If the 2018 reports are not yet available, please provide the 2017 reports.



15-00307) including correspondence, emails, and notes.    3.    The complete project file for the Section 408 appro



e Secretary of the Interior), David Bernhardt (Deputy Secretary of the Interior), or Daniel Jorjani (Principal Deputy S








ay whale by Alaska Native hunters after the animal strayed into the Kuskokwim River in July 2017 near the commu



nal Monument (01 /01 /14 – 12/31 /16) Papahanaumokuakea Marine National Monument Expansion (01 /01 /14 – 12/3



2. GARFO/NRFO emails, meeting minutes, memos, or other documents regarding these NEFSC comments and concerns

 in approximately October 2013.



 on the 23rd of September 2017. Bodie was born on the 7th of June in 2010 at Six Flags Discovery Kingdom in Vallejo, CA. All c

 (&quot;Project&quot;), proposed by the South Coast Water District (&quot;District&quot;), since the date of our last request on March 30. 2017. The Project includes



 or agreements between NMFS and The Research Group, LLC ( a research firm working with the Oregon Department of

 pertaining to the import of shark fins into or transit of shark fins through the United States, from January 1, 2010, through and inc



C regarding the development and submission of AGDC’s petition dated 20 February 2018 for incidental take regula



 precolonial fisheries, fishery catch and stock records, as well as any studies that contain biological data related to Pacific

 in which the observer program failed to obtain a random sample of partial-coverage trawl deliveries due w tendering acrivity.&quot; 4. All comm



 research, enhancement, national defense purpose.&quot;

 in which the observer program failed to obtain a random sample of partial-coverage trawl deliveries due lo tendering activity.&quot; 4. All com



of the Bearded Seal (Erignathus barbatus nauticus). The request in (I) includes, but is not limited to, the following a



 All WPRFMC letters, testimony, or presentations for federal or state legislators, the President, or state governors for the 10 years

ut not limited to whether the individual is a contractor, volunteer, or federal employee and whether the individual se



 record(s) provided in electronic format; if the information cannot be exported in an Excel or comma-delimited format, please let

 permit holders in the individual DAS and combination DAS permit categories, as well as scallop limited access



 of Pesticides containing Chlorpyrifos, Diazinon, and Malathion. See generally, NOAA Fisheries, Biological Opini



. Specifically, we request the following records associated with permits: (1) The permit application submitted by the entity

Atlantic snapper ‐grouper fishery (bottom longline and vertical line). 2. Logbook data regarding the bycatch of



 fishery (bottom longline and vertical line) in the First Edition of the U.S. National Bycatch Report and the First and Second Updates

 bycatch, by species, in the HMS shark bottom longline and pelagic longline fisheries. 3. Observer data and reports related to shark bycatch, by species, in the HMS



 going to be reviewed and published. I was requested to allow more time, to which I agreed, but added since the meeting minutes

 Rauch Craig Mclean Paul Doremus Ben Friedman Chris Oliver Brian Pawlak   Please limit your search to the following



 sturgeon impacts or other interactions at Chesterfield Power Station, not otherwise encompassed by Requests I and 2.

 money paid to You for Your agreement to provide any goods or services to the Property or to or for the benefit of the Property. 3. Your



eflecting communications within the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”), including the Nat



 federal agencies c. Any biological opinions, biological assessments, or biological evaluations, in draft form or final form, concerning

mmals for the HI SSLL)   Data collected by the NMFS-Pacific Islands Regional Observer Program for all species, in



ministration (“NOAA”), the National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”), documents related to the proposed/approve



U.S.C. § 552(a)(3)(B) we ask that these records be provided in electronic and searchable format.  To streamline this



 Interstate Marine Fisheries Commissions, which also received a copy of the correspondence.

-no cc's, bcc's, non-substantive forwards, out of office replies, or scheduling acceptances need be produced -rolling releases



 including the following individuals: -Ingrid Gilbert -Megan Clouser -Thomas Dolan -Karla Reece -Teletha Mincey -Nicole Bonine -Robert Kirby -Any other ACOE employees

 harassment against professional observers, including government contractors, that occurred in calendar year 2017. The summary should include incidents



 Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service, and their employees, agents, attorneys, and consultants. In this

er: EGO00553K404V1745. 2. All operator’s manuals received by NOAA from Safe Boats International related to NO



Was the vacancy announced? If it was, please provide information about the vacancy announcement, including



tted by news-media requesters. The scope of this item includes records defining or describing “high



 At the minimum, if possible, I would ask for the above to include the case number, date submitted, date c

 a document exists in electronic format, it must be released in that format upon request. The requested documents will be made avail








 the 2008, 2009 and any post-2009 avian egg injection work. 2. All information (including work plans, quality assurance plans, validated and unvalidated

onsulted, referenced or relied upon to prepare the following: (1 ) that certain “Environmental Assessment for



tory docket (https://www.regulations.gov/docket?D=USCG-2007-0164). What I'm looking for now are any other rec



 to Portland Harbor, the Lower Columbia River, the Multnomah Channel, or the Willamette River. For the Lower Columbia River, this



 energy projects, and/or discussions of the fiscal implications to the national marine sanctuary program, or to individual sanctuary sites, and

 January 1, 2017 through July 31, 2017.



nterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary (via email, mail, fax, and phone) about wildlife being harassed or disturbed b



. The notation on both charts states, &quot;OVHD PWR CAB AUTH CL 90 FT&quot;. The only clearance citation on these charts

 located in Nahant, Massachusetts; b. Northeastern University's Urban Coastal Sustainability Initiative; c. Northeastern University's Coastal Sustainability Institute; d. &quot;coastal sustainability&quot;; e. &quot;climate change&qu



. 2. Any and all records, photographs, correspondence, documents, including email communication, related to every periodic evaluation by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration of Louisiana's State and Local Coastal Resources



. Specifically, we request the following: 1. The roster for the IACUC members for OAR and NOS; 2. Minutes of the IACUC meetings

 the Total Environment 557-558:489-501 (July 2016), and as time permits, John Kern and Jay Field will organize and provide computer code to read the data files



created on or after February 5, 2018.



. 2. Documents that reveal the cost of the Vaisala radiosonde autolaunchers procured by the National Weather Service; estimated cost of



ster  Copies of any and all email between August 23 to August 30 sent or received by Storm Prediction Center direc



 the EPA had been required to undertake in response to the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Massachusetts v. EPA, and of the positive 2009 Clean Air Act GHG



ctors were considered in making this decision; and c. How the Committee’s unfinished work will now be completed



 in place to combat these rising levels of radiation and its effects on plant and animal life.

 for marine aquaculture projects involving the culturing, rearing, and/or harvesting of finfish species in the ocean, which have been received pursuant to the Sea Grant by NOAA or any of



and/or referencing the substantive content of the CAR-7, NC-7, and BR-3, including but not limited to U.S. greenho



 Inspector General complaint filed by Katy Stewart referencing Nicole Mason and all documents attached to the management inquil); 3. The cover letter by OAR Leadership to Mack

 and journalists, particularly the CDC, especially agencies with a science focus.



 briefing&quot; &quot;press call&quot; &quot;press event&quot; &quot;press strategy&quot; &quot;presser&quot; &quot;media event&quot; &quot;media call&quot; &quot;

 responsive materials any documents, emails, or communications with the following phrases in the title or



 my ethical violation in sending sensitive information about a pending investigation to those that needed to know (ie management officials and the Office of General Counsel representative).

. The information should include the identity of the plaintiff(s) for each suit. (I am primarily interested in the past ten years, but would be pleased to receive any inform



 Exhibit #23 –Report of Dr. Peter H. Dana dated 3 May 2001 . Thank you for your assistance.



R) by Lt. Timothy Brown. Agency Exhibit #12 – Offense Investigation Report (OIR) by Lt. Chris Mooradian. Agency



2. All records reflecting notification by NOAA to the Archivist of the United States or NARA under 44 U.S.C. § 310



t BOATRACS Test and Evaluation Project Test Report” dated July 1998; and may in fact be the Test Report. Than



 technology, carbon dioxide removal, solar radiation management, albedo modification, bioenergy with carbon capture and storage (BECCS) or



A copy of each email that includes the phrase “CLIMATE ASSESSMENT” or the phrase "ADVISORY COMM



ydler” or “Gibbons.” This request for communications includes all email attachments to, from, or in the cus



equests from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) from Januar



 necessary to reflect any bonuses paid to EMPLOYEE, including but not limited to the following information. 1. Date(s) ofbonus(es) declared; n




https://www.regulations.gov/docket?D=USCG-2007-0164).





 government service prior to appointment. 6. Gender of appointee. I also request how many candidates were on the hiring list from

 appointee. I also request how many candidates were on the hiring list from OPM, and how many were actually interviewed.



 Not qualified, Qualified, and Best Qualified Resumes of all applicants








. BA-76 and the pipeline spill which occur red on 5 September 2 01 6 . This request i



 Over All Program Schedule; (6) Weekly, Monthly, Quarterly and Annual Program Management/Status Reports; (7)



1. All contract documents, reports, memoranda, change orders and any



@NOAA.GOV]



 pay, reason for my removal from support position. Any and all records or reports fr



 and were directed to submit a written repo



 the Executive Secretariat and likely tracked within a correspondence management system. I am spe

 the Executive Secretariat and likely tracked within a correspondence management system. I am spe



 are: Phil.Green@noaa.gov, Phil.Greene@noaa.gov, and J.Philip.Green@noaa.gov



 Prog



 Morgan Lynne Miller filed with NMFS detail

. 2. Technical tools and modeli



es, presentations, consultation



 with nongovernm

gnation.   3) the critical habitat desi



om the Council’s contracted Information Technology Company regarding the date of



s June 1 , 2013 amendm



ent Council (“Gulf Council”) who attended the Gulf



by NMFS that it considered May 25 as the “cutoff” date



nal season; 2. Communications pertai



/or final biological evaluation of diaz



 not limited to, any and all reports, findings, documents, photographs, films, sketches, plans, drawings, emails, damage assess



 toward rebuilding under the red snapper rebuilding plan; 3. how or whether



 2013, 2014, 2015, and 2016, separated by: 1. Year; 2. Whether the complaint was i



408 approval including the NEPA and environmental analysis an



al Deputy Solicitor at the Department of Interior). 2. Al








the communities of Bethel an



1 /14 – 12/31 /16) Pacific Remote Islands Marine National Mo



 and concerns. This request covers



 in Vallejo, CA. All c

 last request on March 30. 2017. The Project includes construction of an ocean water desalination facili



 working with the Oregon Department of Fish &amp; Wildlife) related to its rec

2010, through and inc



take regulations for construction of the A
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U.S. Department of Commerce Privacy Threshold Analysis



Unique Project Identifier:  


Introduction:  This Privacy Threshold Analysis (PTA) is a questionnaire to assist with



determining if a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) is necessary for this IT system. This PTA is



primarily based from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) privacy guidance and the


Department of Commerce (DOC) IT security/privacy policy.  If questions arise or further guidance



is needed in order to complete this PTA, please contact your Bureau Chief Privacy Officer


(BCPO).


Description of the information system and its purpose:  Provide a general description of the



information system in a way that a non-technical person can understand.
The E-Government Act of 2002 defines “information system” by reference to the definition section of Title 44 of the United States Code.  The

following is a summary of the definition:  “Information system” means a discrete set of information resources organized for the collection,



processing, maintenance, use, sharing, dissemination, or disposition of information. See:  44. U.S.C. § 3502(8).



NOAA5050/GOES-R



The NOAA5050/GOES-R Ground System (GS) is a Major Application and is comprised of the



Satellite Operations Zone (SOZ) which operates from three sites which include: The NOAA



Satellite Operations Facility (NSOF) in Suitland, MD which houses the primary Mission



Management (MM), and selected Product Generation (PG), Product Distribution (PD),



Enterprise Management (EM), and Infrastructure (IS) functions. The Wallops Command and



Data Acquisition Station (WCDAS), located in Wallops, VA, provides the primary space



communications services, MM, EM, and IS functions, and selected PG and PD functions. The



third site is a geographically diverse Consolidated Backup facility (CBU) located at Fairmont,



WV sometimes also referred to as the RBU. It functions as a completely independent backup for



the MM and selected PG and PD functions for the production of Key Performance Parameters



(KPPs) and GOES Rebroadcast (GRB) data, and is capable of concurrent and remote operations



from NSOF and WCDAS. The CBU has visibility to all operational and on-orbit spare satellites.



The KPPs consist of the L2+ Cloud and Moisture Imagery (CONUS, Full Disk, and Mesoscale)



product and its sectorized products. The EM function is integrated across all ground segment



components and locations. The IS Element's primary purpose is to provide common services for



the Ground Segment that are utilized by all GS elements. The GS Antenna System provides the



Space-to-Ground and Ground-to-Space interface with the GOES-R series satellites. 


The GOES-R GS also includes the Product Processing Zone (PPZ), a separate operational



enclave within the NOAA5050 Assessment and Authorization (A&A) boundary that is logically



separated via distinct access controls and mechanisms. The GOES-R PPZ is comprised of its



own implementations of PG, PD, EM, IS and includes the PPZ Edge. 


The GOES-R PPZ PG Element produces Level 1b and Level 2+ end-products from the data



collected by the GOES-R instruments and turn hands these products over to the PPZ PD Element



where it distributes the following product files to PDA: L1b and L2+ GOES-R Products,



Metadata, Mission Operations Data, L1b and L2+ Algorithm Packages, GRB Information files,



NOAA GOES-R Ground System
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Questionnaire:



1. What is the status of this information system?



____ This is a new information system. Continue to answer questions and complete certification.



____ This is an existing information system with changes that create new privacy risks.
Complete chart below, continue to answer questions, and complete certification.



Changes That Create New Privacy Risks (CTCNPR)


a. Conversions d. Significant Merging g. New Interagency Uses



b. Anonymous to Non- 


Anonymous 


e. New Public Access h. Internal Flow or



Collection



c. Significant System 


Management Changes 


f. Commercial Sources i. Alteration in Character



of Data



j. Other changes that create new privacy risks (specify):



____ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is not a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment. Continue to answer



questions and complete certification.


____ This is an existing information system in which changes do not create new privacy



risks, and there is a SAOP approved Privacy Impact Assessment (version 01-2015 or



later). Skip questions and complete certification.



Instrument Calibration Data, Sample Outlier Files, L2+ and L1b Processing Parameters. The



GOES-R Edge, in turn, distributes instrument calibration data, GRB info and sample outlier files



that are forwarded to NSOF for distribution to PDA. 


The raw sensor data is received by WCDAS, processed by the PG function at WCDAS to create

L1b and L2+ GLM products. These L1b and L2+ GLM products are then rebroadcasted through

the spacecraft GRB transponder. The GRB data are then received at NSOF where the rest of the

L2+ products are created. Ancillary data used in generating the L2+ products are ingested from

the Ancillary Data Relay System (ADRS)  - (external to NOAA5050/GOES-R). Applicable

products are directly distributed to 1) the National Weather Service (NWS) Advanced Weather

Interactive Processing System (AWIPS)  - (external to NOAA5050/GOES-R) where key NWS

Weather Forecast Offices (WFO) and other AWIPS users get their data, and 2) the Product

Distribution and Access (PDA) component of the Environmental Satellite Processing and

Distribution System (ESPDS)  - (external to NOAA5050/GOES-R), which includes the GOES-R

Access Subsystem (GAS) functionality and ADRS functionality, provides data to NESDIS,

NWS, and other GOES data users. There are approximately 300 users of NOAA5050/GOES-R

(primarily at the NSOF and WCDAS sites).
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2. Is the IT system or its information used to support any activity which may raise privacy



concerns?
NIST Special Publication 800-53 Revision 4, Appendix J, states “Organizations may also engage in activities that do not involve the collection



and use of PII, but may nevertheless raise privacy concerns and associated risk.  The privacy controls are equally applicable to those activities



and can be used to analyze the privacy risk and mitigate such risk when necessary.”  Examples include, but are not limited to, audio recordings,



video surveillance, building entry readers, and electronic purchase transactions.


 ____ Yes.  Please describe the activities which may raise privacy concerns.


 ____ No



3. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate business identifiable information (BII)?
As per DOC Privacy Policy:  “For the purpose of this policy, business identifiable information consists of (a) information that is defined in



the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) as "trade secrets and commercial or financial information obtained from a person [that is] privileged


or confidential." (5 U.S.C.552(b)(4)). This information is exempt from automatic release under the (b)(4) FOIA exemption. "Commercial" is



not confined to records that reveal basic commercial operations" but includes any records [or information] in which the submitter has a



commercial interest" and can include information submitted by a nonprofit entity, or (b) commercial or other information that, although it



may not be exempt from release under FOIA, is exempt from disclosure by law (e.g., 13 U.S.C.).”


____ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates BII about:  (Check all that


apply.)



____ Companies


____ Other business entities


____ No, this IT system does not collect any BII.


4. Personally Identifiable Information


4a. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate personally identifiable information



(PII)?
 As per OMB 07-16, Footnote 1: “The term ‘personally identifiable information’ refers to information which can be used to distinguish or



trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, biometric records, etc... alone, or when combined with other personal



or identifying information which is linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother’s maiden name, etc...” 


____ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII about:  (Check all that



apply.)



       DOC employees


       Contractors working on behalf of DOC


___  Members of the public


       No, this IT system does not collect any PII.
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If the answer is “yes” to question 4a, please respond to the following questions.


4b. Does the IT system collect, maintain, or disseminate PII other than user ID?


____ Yes, the IT system collects, maintains, or disseminates PII other than user ID.


____ No, the user ID is the only PII collected, maintained, or disseminated by the IT



system.


4c. Will the purpose for which the PII is collected, stored, used, processed, disclosed, or


disseminated (context of use) cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality impact level?
Examples of context of use include, but are not limited to, law enforcement investigations, administration of benefits, contagious disease



treatments, etc.



____ Yes, the context of use will cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.


____ No, the context of use will not cause the assignment of a higher PII confidentiality



impact level.


If any of the answers to questions 2, 3, 4b, and/or 4c are “Yes,” a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) must



be completed for the IT system.  This PTA and the approved PIA must be a part of the IT system’s



Assessment and Authorization Package.
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CERTIFICATION



_____ I certify the criteria implied by one or more of the questions above apply to



__________________ and as a consequence of this applicability, I will perform and document a



PIA for this IT system. 


_____ I certify the criteria implied by the questions above do not apply to __________________ 


and as a consequence of this non-applicability, a PIA for this IT system is not necessary. 


Name of Information System Security Officer (ISSO) or System Owner (SO): _______________



__________________________________________________________


Signature of ISSO or SO:  _____________________________________ Date: ______________



Name of Information Technology Security Officer (ITSO):  _____________________________


Signature of ITSO:  __________________________________________ Date: ______________



Name of Authorizing Official (AO):  ______________________________________


Signature of AO:  ____________________________________________ Date: _____________


Name of Bureau Chief Privacy Officer (BCPO):  __________________________________


Signature of BCPO:  ___________________________________________Date: _____________


NOAA5050/GOES-R 


NOAA5050/GOES-R



Victor Kalu, ISSO



KALU.VICTOR.E 
YE.1510028933 


Digitally signed by

KALU.VICTOR.EYE.15100289

33

Date: 2018.05.04 11:33:15 
-04'00' 


05/04/2018




Signature of ISSO or SO

Date

Signature of ITSO

Date

Signature of AO

Date

Signature of BCPO

Date
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


ANIMAL WELFARE INSTITUTE    )



900 Pennsylvania Avenue, SE   )



Washington, D.C. 20003,    )



        )



    Plaintiff,    ) 


   v.     ) Civ. No. 


        )



NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC  )



ADMINISTRATION,      )



 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Room 5128  )



 Washington, D.C.  20230    )



        )



   and     )



        )



NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE,  )



 1315 East-West Highway    )



 Silver Spring, MD  20910,    )



        )



    Defendants.   )



________________________________________________)



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 


1. The Animal Welfare Institute brings this action against defendants National


Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and National Marine Fisheries Service for violations


of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 (“FOIA”).


PARTIES



2. Plaintiff Animal Welfare Institute (“AWI”) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization



that seeks to protect animals from human inflicted suffering.  In particular, AWI has advocated



for the protection of whales and other marine life from life from human activities such as


harmful fishing practices, hunting, underwater noise production, and inhumane practices


resulting from captive maintenance for purposes of public display and scientific research.  AWI



is the requester of the records at issue.
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3. Defendant National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) is an



agency of the federal government within the U.S. Department of Commerce that focuses on the



conditions of the oceans and the atmosphere, including marine wildlife.


4. Defendant National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) is an agency of the



federal government within NOAA that has jurisdiction over whales under the Marine Mammal


Protection Act (“MMPA”), 16 U.S.C. §§ 1361 - 1423h, and is in possession of the records


requested by AWI.


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


5. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


FACTS GIVING RISE TO PLAINTIFF’S CLAIM


A. FOIA Requirements


7. The purpose of FOIA is to “pierce the veil of administrative secrecy and to open



agency action to the light of public scrutiny.”  Public Citizen, Inc. v. Office of Management and



Budget, 598 F.3d 865, 869 (D.C. Cir. 2010) (quotations omitted).  In enacting FOIA, Congress


intended the primary objective of the Act to be the full disclosure of federal agency records so



long as information is not exempted by clearly delineated statutory language.  Id.


8. FOIA establishes a broad right of public access to federal agency records, subject


only to nine delineated exemptions.  5 U.S.C. § 552(b).  “Each agency, upon any request” for



enumerated records must “determine within 20 days (excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and legal


holidays) after the receipt of any such request whether to comply with such request and shall


immediately notify the person making such a request” of the “determination and the reasons


therefor . . . .”  Id. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).  A requester “shall be deemed to have exhausted [its]
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administrative remedies”—and hence may file suit under the Act’s citizen suit provision—“with



respect to [a] request if the agency fails to comply with the . . . time limit” set forth in the statute



for a substantive response.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


9. The federal regulations implementing FOIA for NOAA and NMFS are located at


15 C.F.R. § 4.1, et seq.  15 C.F.R. § 4.6 codifies the requirement that NOAA/NMFS respond



within 20 working days of receiving a FOIA request with a determination of compliance. 


B. The Public Interest Need for the Documents Subject to the FOIA Request


10. In 2013, the documentary film Blackfish drew public attention to the plight of



Tilikum, an orca held in captivity by SeaWorld Parks & Entertainment (“SeaWorld”), and other



orcas now maintained in aquariums and theme parks around the world.  Blackfish set off a strong



negative public reaction to SeaWorld and the conditions under which orcas are held in captivity.


11. On March 8, 2016, SeaWorld released a video on its website describing Tilikum’s


declining health and indicating that he was not expected to survive.


12. Beginning in October 2016, the People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals


(“PETA”) initiated the first of what would be several meetings and communications with



NOAA/NMFS regarding Tilikum.  AWI joined this effort by December 2016.  In anticipation of



Tilikum’s death, NOAA/NMFS was presented with a draft legal opinion explaining why the



1992 MMPA permit authorizing the importation of Tilikum requires SeaWorld to submit to



NOAA/NMFS the necropsy report and clinical history for Tilikum in the event of his death.  In



these meetings and communications, and through the draft legal opinion, AWI (with PETA)



sought NOAA/NMFS input and comments on the applicability of the necropsy and clinical


history permit requirement. 
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13. In the following months, AWI also presented its views on the necropsy and



clinical history requirements of MMPA permits to the other federal agencies with jurisdiction



over marine mammals ─ the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“FWS”), the Marine Mammal


Commission (“MMC”), and the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Animal and Plant Health



Inspection Service (“APHIS”).
1


14. In these agency meetings and communications, AWI repeatedly stressed the



importance of necropsy reports and clinical histories for purposes of scientific research, medical


care (including for free-ranging, stranded individuals), animal husbandry, and public education,



and demonstrated that the benefits resulting from this information applied to whales held both in



captivity and in the wild. 


15. In these meetings and communications, NOAA/NMFS never took a position on



whether SeaWorld had to comply with the necropsy and clinical history requirements of



Tilikum’s permit. 


16. Tilikum died on January 6, 2017 at SeaWorld’s Orlando facility.  AWI and other



animal welfare organizations immediately notified NOAA/NMFS that Tilikum’s MMPA permit


required SeaWorld to submit the necropsy and clinical history report within 30 days.  Based on



information and belief, SeaWorld never submitted the necropsy and clinical history report


required by the permit to NOAA/NMFS.


17. On March 10, 2017, NOAA/NMFS responded to the animal welfare



organizations’ notice with an email stating that it was willing to meet to discuss the issue but that


it had concluded that the necropsy and clinical history provisions of Tilikum’s permit had been



1
 Under the MMPA, NOAA/NMFS has jurisdiction over whales, dolphins and seals.  FWS has jurisdiction over


polar bears, manatees, walrus and sea otters.  16 U.S.C. § 1362(12)(A).  The MMC serves in an independent



advisory and oversight role.  Id. §§ 1401-1407.  APHIS jurisdiction is not under the MMPA but applies to marine


mammals in certain captive maintenance facilities under the Animal Welfare Act.  7 U.S.C. §§ 2131-2159.
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extinguished by amendments to the MMPA in 1994 and that “the legal analysis supporting this


determination is exempt from disclosure under the attorney-client privilege, and we will not be



discussing it in any detail at the meeting.”  Thus, after months of effort to engage NOAA/NMFS


in a collaborative dialogue regarding the permit requirements for SeaWorld to release Tilikum’s


health records, AWI and the other organizations had no explanation from NOAA/NMFS for the



legal conclusion, contrary to the plain language of the permit, that the necropsy and clinical


history requirement did not apply and were told that none would be provided. 


18. AWI contacted SeaWorld directly by email on March 25, 2017 asking for



voluntary release of Tilikum’s records.  SeaWorld refused to do so in an April 13, 2017 email. 


Five animal welfare organizations sent a letter to SeaWorld on August 8, 2017, again asking for



voluntary compliance.  SeaWorld has not replied and continues to withhold the documents.



19. On July 24, 2017, Tilikum’s granddaughter Kyara died at SeaWorld’s San



Antonio facility.  The draft legal opinion previously provided to NOAA/NMFS confirmed that


Kyara was covered by the necropsy and clinical history provision of Tilikum’s permit.



20. On July 31, 2017, AWI and other animal welfare organizations wrote to



NOAA/NMFS asking for enforcement of the necropsy and clinical history provision of



Tilikum’s permit for Kyara’s records.  Counsel to AWI submitted a revised version of the draft


legal opinion supporting this conclusion to NOAA/NMFS on August 14, 2017. 


21. NOAA/NMFS responded on September 7, 2017, simply restating its March 10,



2017 email message that the permit had been extinguished by the 1994 MMPA amendments.



22. On August 15, 2017, Kasatka, an orca held at SeaWorld’s San Diego facility, was


euthanized due to a bacterial infection.  Kasatka’s 1978 MMPA permit included a necropsy and



clinical history requirement.  AWI, and the other organizations promptly requested
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NOAA/NMFS to enforce the permit, by letter dated August 25, 2017, and by an updated version



of the legal opinion, by letter from counsel dated August 30, 2017. 


23. By letter dated October 18, 2017, NOAA/NMFS issued the same response as in



its March 10, 2017 email on Tilikum’s death and its September 7, 2017 letter on Kyara’s death,



stating that the necropsy and clinical history requirement in Kasatka’s permit had been



extinguished.  Again, NOAA/NMFS provided no explanation for its legal conclusion. 


24. After the death of three SeaWorld orcas over a seven-month period,



NOAA/NMFS has refused to release or disclose the legal rationale for its conclusion that


SeaWorld can ignore clearly stated permit requirements and withhold information that would



shed light on the cause of death and medical condition of these whales during their lives in



captivity and benefit science and marine mammal husbandry, stranding response, and medical


care.  SeaWorld refuses to release the whales’ clinical histories or necropsy reports. 


C. The AWI FOIA Request 


25. By letters sent by email on September 29, 2017, AWI submitted FOIA requests to



NOAA/NMFS, FWS, and MMC for all documents from January 1, 2017 to May 1, 2017



regarding NMFS’ March 10, 2017 determination that the necropsy and clinical history



requirements of Public Display Permit No. 774 for Tilikum were extinguished by the 1994



MMPA amendments.  Exhibit 1, Declaration of Donald C. Baur, dated January 8, 2018 (“Baur



Decl.”) at ¶ 2, Attachment A.  On the same date, AWI submitted a FOIA request to APHIS,



asking for “all requests that APHIS has submitted since January 1, 1994 under 9 C.F.R. §



3.110(g) requesting necropsy records for marine mammals that have died in captivity, and all


necropsy records that APHIS has received in response to those requests.” 
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26. Under FOIA, the deadline for agency response to the requests was October 30,



2017. 


27. By letter to AWI dated October 5, 2017, APHIS’s FOIA Director confirmed



receipt of the FOIA request.  The letter identified an anticipated response date of October 30,



2017.  On December 8, 2017, APHIS responded to AWI’s FOIA request.
2


28. By voice message on October 4, 2017, the MMC confirmed receipt of AWI’s


FOIA request.  In a letter sent by email, dated December 18, 2017, Michael L. Gosliner, MMC


General Counsel, responded to the FOIA request with a partial release of documents.  In the



MMC response letter, Mr. Gosliner stated:


I am sympathetic to the position that your organization finds itself in ─ the



responsible agency (NMFS) has given you its legal conclusion that the 1994



amendments to the MMPA extinguished the permit terms and conditions related



to necropsies and clinical histories, but has declined to provide you with its


rationale for this conclusion.  I can see where that agency would not want to share



its draft legal analysis outside of the government, but once a conclusion has been



reached, its final position no longer is pre-decisional.
3


The MMC also stated that it could not release its own documents that would shed light on the



NOAA/NMFS legal position without concurrence from NOAA/NMFS.
4


2
 APHIS confirmed that, since 1994, it has not required licensees to submit necropsy reports for any marine


mammals.  As a result, it had no documents to release.
3
 The MMC’s FOIA response indicates that NOAA/NMFS had not completed its consultation with its sister


agencies on the legal question at the time it announced its conclusion on March 10, 2017.
4
 The MMC request revealed the limited nature of the AWI request, by identifying only nine responsive documents



withheld based on the NOAA/NMFS position.  The MMC letter also confirmed that it had coordinated its response


“with the other agencies,” indicating that NOAA/NMFS is aware of the FOIA request.
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29. By email on September 29, 2017, FWS’s Headquarters FOIA Office



acknowledged receipt of the FOIA request.  The email stated that the request was forwarded to



the Division of Management Authority for processing. 


30. The initial FOIA request letter to NMFS was confirmed delivered to



NOAA/NMFS by AWI email on September 29, 2017.  A follow-up letter was also sent by email


to NMFS on December 4, 2017, asking for a response by December 15, 2017.  Baur Decl. ¶ 3,



Attachment B.  Finally, on December 22, 2017, a copy of the December 4 letter was sent again



by email, with a specific request that NMFS acknowledge receipt.  Id. ¶ 4, Attachment C.



31. As of the date of this complaint, NOAA/NMFS has never even acknowledged



receipt of the September 29, 2017 request, the December 4, 2017 follow-up letter, or the



December 22, 2017 email confirmation request.


32. To date, more than three months after AWI’s initial letter, and more than two



months after the statutory deadline, NOAA/NMFS has not responded in any way to the



September 29, 2017 AWI FOIA request.  Nor has the Agency provided AWI with any



explanation for the ongoing delay.  The other agencies have either responded in full (APHIS and



MMC) or acknowledged receipt and confirmed that review is underway (FWS).



CLAIM FOR RELIEF


33. AWI has a statutory right to the requested records.  NOAA/NMFS, in violation of



FOIA and AWI’s rights under FOIA, has failed to provide the records, or any substantive



determination regarding them, by the mandatory deadline set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). 


REQUESTED RELIEF


34. AWI respectfully requests that the Court grant the following relief:


a. Declare that NMFS is in violation of FOIA;
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b. Enjoin NMFS from continuing to withhold the requested records and order



NMFS immediately to release the records in full to AWI;


c. Make a written finding pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(F)(i) that the



“circumstances surrounding the withholding raise questions whether



agency personnel acted arbitrarily or capriciously with respect to the



withholding . . . .”;


d. Award Plaintiff its attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E);


e. Award any other relief this Court finds just and proper. 


Dated this 9th day of January, 2018


Respectfully submitted,


/s/Donald C. Baur  


Donald C. Baur


D.C. Bar No. 393621


Perkins Coie LLP


700 13th Street, NW, Suite 600



Washington, D.C.  20005-3960



(202) 654-6200


DBaur@perkinscoie.com


Sunny Tsou


(pro hac vice application pending)


Perkins Coie LLP


505 Howard Street


Suite 1000



San Francisco, CA 94105



(415) 344-7000


STsou@perkinscoie.com


Counsel for Plaintiff
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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Christopher Keifer - NOAA Federal



From: Christopher Keifer - NOAA Federal



Sent: Monday, July 16, 2018 3:39 PM



To: Mark Graff - NOAA



Subject: Fwd: Ecological Rights Foundation v. NMFS FOIA Litigation



Attachments: Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice 13 JUL 18.pdf



I should have included you on this email.



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Christopher Keifer - NOAA Federal <christopher.keifer@noaa.gov>



Date: Mon, Jul 16, 2018 at 12:31 PM



Subject: Ecological Rights Foundation v. NMFS FOIA Litigation



To: Samuel Rauch <samuel.rauch@noaa.gov>, Paul Ortiz <paul.ortiz@noaa.gov>, Maria Rea



<maria.rea@noaa.gov>, Howard Brown <howard.brown@noaa.gov>, Barry Thom <barry.thom@noaa.gov>



Cc: Stacey Nathanson <Stacey.Nathanson@noaa.gov>, Deanna Harwood <deanna.harwood@noaa.gov>



Folks -


I don't know if this Stipulation of Settlement that was filed Friday was forwarded to you already by Michael



Bogomolny, the lead on the case, or by Stacey Nathanson, who contributed mightily to the litigation effort, so I'm



sending to ensure you have it.



--


Christopher Keifer



Attorney



NOAA Office of General Counsel, Southwest Section



U.S. Dep't of Commerce



Long Beach, CA



(562) 980-4076



Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message is intended only for the named recipients. It contains



information that may be confidential, privileged, attorney work product, or otherwise exempt from



disclosure under applicable law. If you have received this message in error, are not a named recipient, or



are not the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to a named recipient, be advised that



any review, disclosure, use, dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this message or its contents is



strictly prohibited. Please notify us immediately that you have received this message in error, and delete



the message.



--


Christopher Keifer



Attorney



NOAA Office of General Counsel, Southwest Section



U.S. Dep't of Commerce




mailto:christopher.keifer@noaa.gov

mailto:samuel.rauch@noaa.gov

mailto:paul.ortiz@noaa.gov

mailto:maria.rea@noaa.gov

mailto:howard.brown@noaa.gov

mailto:barry.thom@noaa.gov

mailto:Stacey.Nathanson@noaa.gov

mailto:deanna.harwood@noaa.gov





Attorney



NOAA Office of General Counsel, Southwest Section



U.S. Dep't of Commerce



Long Beach, CA



(562) 980-4076



Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message is intended only for the named recipients. It contains



information that may be confidential, privileged, attorney work product, or otherwise exempt from



disclosure under applicable law. If you have received this message in error, are not a named recipient, or



are not the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to a named recipient, be advised that



any review, disclosure, use, dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this message or its contents is



strictly prohibited. Please notify us immediately that you have received this message in error, and delete



the message.
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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138041402.3


IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


ANIMAL WELFARE INSTITUTE    )



900 Pennsylvania Avenue, SE   )



Washington, D.C. 20003,    )



        )



    Plaintiff,    ) 


   v.     ) Civ. No. 


        )



NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC  )



ADMINISTRATION,      )



 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Room 5128  )



 Washington, D.C.  20230    )



        )



   and     )



        )



NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE,  )



 1315 East-West Highway    )



 Silver Spring, MD  20910,    )



        )



    Defendants.   )



________________________________________________)



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 


1. The Animal Welfare Institute brings this action against defendants National


Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and National Marine Fisheries Service for violations


of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 (“FOIA”).


PARTIES



2. Plaintiff Animal Welfare Institute (“AWI”) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization



that seeks to protect animals from human inflicted suffering.  In particular, AWI has advocated



for the protection of whales and other marine life from life from human activities such as


harmful fishing practices, hunting, underwater noise production, and inhumane practices


resulting from captive maintenance for purposes of public display and scientific research.  AWI



is the requester of the records at issue.
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3. Defendant National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) is an



agency of the federal government within the U.S. Department of Commerce that focuses on the



conditions of the oceans and the atmosphere, including marine wildlife.


4. Defendant National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) is an agency of the



federal government within NOAA that has jurisdiction over whales under the Marine Mammal


Protection Act (“MMPA”), 16 U.S.C. §§ 1361 - 1423h, and is in possession of the records


requested by AWI.


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


5. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


FACTS GIVING RISE TO PLAINTIFF’S CLAIM


A. FOIA Requirements


7. The purpose of FOIA is to “pierce the veil of administrative secrecy and to open



agency action to the light of public scrutiny.”  Public Citizen, Inc. v. Office of Management and



Budget, 598 F.3d 865, 869 (D.C. Cir. 2010) (quotations omitted).  In enacting FOIA, Congress


intended the primary objective of the Act to be the full disclosure of federal agency records so



long as information is not exempted by clearly delineated statutory language.  Id.


8. FOIA establishes a broad right of public access to federal agency records, subject


only to nine delineated exemptions.  5 U.S.C. § 552(b).  “Each agency, upon any request” for



enumerated records must “determine within 20 days (excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and legal


holidays) after the receipt of any such request whether to comply with such request and shall


immediately notify the person making such a request” of the “determination and the reasons


therefor . . . .”  Id. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).  A requester “shall be deemed to have exhausted [its]
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administrative remedies”—and hence may file suit under the Act’s citizen suit provision—“with



respect to [a] request if the agency fails to comply with the . . . time limit” set forth in the statute



for a substantive response.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


9. The federal regulations implementing FOIA for NOAA and NMFS are located at


15 C.F.R. § 4.1, et seq.  15 C.F.R. § 4.6 codifies the requirement that NOAA/NMFS respond



within 20 working days of receiving a FOIA request with a determination of compliance. 


B. The Public Interest Need for the Documents Subject to the FOIA Request


10. In 2013, the documentary film Blackfish drew public attention to the plight of



Tilikum, an orca held in captivity by SeaWorld Parks & Entertainment (“SeaWorld”), and other



orcas now maintained in aquariums and theme parks around the world.  Blackfish set off a strong



negative public reaction to SeaWorld and the conditions under which orcas are held in captivity.


11. On March 8, 2016, SeaWorld released a video on its website describing Tilikum’s


declining health and indicating that he was not expected to survive.


12. Beginning in October 2016, the People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals


(“PETA”) initiated the first of what would be several meetings and communications with



NOAA/NMFS regarding Tilikum.  AWI joined this effort by December 2016.  In anticipation of



Tilikum’s death, NOAA/NMFS was presented with a draft legal opinion explaining why the



1992 MMPA permit authorizing the importation of Tilikum requires SeaWorld to submit to



NOAA/NMFS the necropsy report and clinical history for Tilikum in the event of his death.  In



these meetings and communications, and through the draft legal opinion, AWI (with PETA)



sought NOAA/NMFS input and comments on the applicability of the necropsy and clinical


history permit requirement. 
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13. In the following months, AWI also presented its views on the necropsy and



clinical history requirements of MMPA permits to the other federal agencies with jurisdiction



over marine mammals ─ the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“FWS”), the Marine Mammal


Commission (“MMC”), and the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Animal and Plant Health



Inspection Service (“APHIS”).
1


14. In these agency meetings and communications, AWI repeatedly stressed the



importance of necropsy reports and clinical histories for purposes of scientific research, medical


care (including for free-ranging, stranded individuals), animal husbandry, and public education,



and demonstrated that the benefits resulting from this information applied to whales held both in



captivity and in the wild. 


15. In these meetings and communications, NOAA/NMFS never took a position on



whether SeaWorld had to comply with the necropsy and clinical history requirements of



Tilikum’s permit. 


16. Tilikum died on January 6, 2017 at SeaWorld’s Orlando facility.  AWI and other



animal welfare organizations immediately notified NOAA/NMFS that Tilikum’s MMPA permit


required SeaWorld to submit the necropsy and clinical history report within 30 days.  Based on



information and belief, SeaWorld never submitted the necropsy and clinical history report


required by the permit to NOAA/NMFS.


17. On March 10, 2017, NOAA/NMFS responded to the animal welfare



organizations’ notice with an email stating that it was willing to meet to discuss the issue but that


it had concluded that the necropsy and clinical history provisions of Tilikum’s permit had been



1
 Under the MMPA, NOAA/NMFS has jurisdiction over whales, dolphins and seals.  FWS has jurisdiction over


polar bears, manatees, walrus and sea otters.  16 U.S.C. § 1362(12)(A).  The MMC serves in an independent



advisory and oversight role.  Id. §§ 1401-1407.  APHIS jurisdiction is not under the MMPA but applies to marine


mammals in certain captive maintenance facilities under the Animal Welfare Act.  7 U.S.C. §§ 2131-2159.
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extinguished by amendments to the MMPA in 1994 and that “the legal analysis supporting this


determination is exempt from disclosure under the attorney-client privilege, and we will not be



discussing it in any detail at the meeting.”  Thus, after months of effort to engage NOAA/NMFS


in a collaborative dialogue regarding the permit requirements for SeaWorld to release Tilikum’s


health records, AWI and the other organizations had no explanation from NOAA/NMFS for the



legal conclusion, contrary to the plain language of the permit, that the necropsy and clinical


history requirement did not apply and were told that none would be provided. 


18. AWI contacted SeaWorld directly by email on March 25, 2017 asking for



voluntary release of Tilikum’s records.  SeaWorld refused to do so in an April 13, 2017 email. 


Five animal welfare organizations sent a letter to SeaWorld on August 8, 2017, again asking for



voluntary compliance.  SeaWorld has not replied and continues to withhold the documents.



19. On July 24, 2017, Tilikum’s granddaughter Kyara died at SeaWorld’s San



Antonio facility.  The draft legal opinion previously provided to NOAA/NMFS confirmed that


Kyara was covered by the necropsy and clinical history provision of Tilikum’s permit.



20. On July 31, 2017, AWI and other animal welfare organizations wrote to



NOAA/NMFS asking for enforcement of the necropsy and clinical history provision of



Tilikum’s permit for Kyara’s records.  Counsel to AWI submitted a revised version of the draft


legal opinion supporting this conclusion to NOAA/NMFS on August 14, 2017. 


21. NOAA/NMFS responded on September 7, 2017, simply restating its March 10,



2017 email message that the permit had been extinguished by the 1994 MMPA amendments.



22. On August 15, 2017, Kasatka, an orca held at SeaWorld’s San Diego facility, was


euthanized due to a bacterial infection.  Kasatka’s 1978 MMPA permit included a necropsy and



clinical history requirement.  AWI, and the other organizations promptly requested
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NOAA/NMFS to enforce the permit, by letter dated August 25, 2017, and by an updated version



of the legal opinion, by letter from counsel dated August 30, 2017. 


23. By letter dated October 18, 2017, NOAA/NMFS issued the same response as in



its March 10, 2017 email on Tilikum’s death and its September 7, 2017 letter on Kyara’s death,



stating that the necropsy and clinical history requirement in Kasatka’s permit had been



extinguished.  Again, NOAA/NMFS provided no explanation for its legal conclusion. 


24. After the death of three SeaWorld orcas over a seven-month period,



NOAA/NMFS has refused to release or disclose the legal rationale for its conclusion that


SeaWorld can ignore clearly stated permit requirements and withhold information that would



shed light on the cause of death and medical condition of these whales during their lives in



captivity and benefit science and marine mammal husbandry, stranding response, and medical


care.  SeaWorld refuses to release the whales’ clinical histories or necropsy reports. 


C. The AWI FOIA Request 


25. By letters sent by email on September 29, 2017, AWI submitted FOIA requests to



NOAA/NMFS, FWS, and MMC for all documents from January 1, 2017 to May 1, 2017



regarding NMFS’ March 10, 2017 determination that the necropsy and clinical history



requirements of Public Display Permit No. 774 for Tilikum were extinguished by the 1994



MMPA amendments.  Exhibit 1, Declaration of Donald C. Baur, dated January 8, 2018 (“Baur



Decl.”) at ¶ 2, Attachment A.  On the same date, AWI submitted a FOIA request to APHIS,



asking for “all requests that APHIS has submitted since January 1, 1994 under 9 C.F.R. §



3.110(g) requesting necropsy records for marine mammals that have died in captivity, and all


necropsy records that APHIS has received in response to those requests.” 
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26. Under FOIA, the deadline for agency response to the requests was October 30,



2017. 


27. By letter to AWI dated October 5, 2017, APHIS’s FOIA Director confirmed



receipt of the FOIA request.  The letter identified an anticipated response date of October 30,



2017.  On December 8, 2017, APHIS responded to AWI’s FOIA request.
2


28. By voice message on October 4, 2017, the MMC confirmed receipt of AWI’s


FOIA request.  In a letter sent by email, dated December 18, 2017, Michael L. Gosliner, MMC


General Counsel, responded to the FOIA request with a partial release of documents.  In the



MMC response letter, Mr. Gosliner stated:


I am sympathetic to the position that your organization finds itself in ─ the



responsible agency (NMFS) has given you its legal conclusion that the 1994



amendments to the MMPA extinguished the permit terms and conditions related



to necropsies and clinical histories, but has declined to provide you with its


rationale for this conclusion.  I can see where that agency would not want to share



its draft legal analysis outside of the government, but once a conclusion has been



reached, its final position no longer is pre-decisional.
3


The MMC also stated that it could not release its own documents that would shed light on the



NOAA/NMFS legal position without concurrence from NOAA/NMFS.
4


2
 APHIS confirmed that, since 1994, it has not required licensees to submit necropsy reports for any marine


mammals.  As a result, it had no documents to release.
3
 The MMC’s FOIA response indicates that NOAA/NMFS had not completed its consultation with its sister


agencies on the legal question at the time it announced its conclusion on March 10, 2017.
4
 The MMC request revealed the limited nature of the AWI request, by identifying only nine responsive documents



withheld based on the NOAA/NMFS position.  The MMC letter also confirmed that it had coordinated its response


“with the other agencies,” indicating that NOAA/NMFS is aware of the FOIA request.
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29. By email on September 29, 2017, FWS’s Headquarters FOIA Office



acknowledged receipt of the FOIA request.  The email stated that the request was forwarded to



the Division of Management Authority for processing. 


30. The initial FOIA request letter to NMFS was confirmed delivered to



NOAA/NMFS by AWI email on September 29, 2017.  A follow-up letter was also sent by email


to NMFS on December 4, 2017, asking for a response by December 15, 2017.  Baur Decl. ¶ 3,



Attachment B.  Finally, on December 22, 2017, a copy of the December 4 letter was sent again



by email, with a specific request that NMFS acknowledge receipt.  Id. ¶ 4, Attachment C.



31. As of the date of this complaint, NOAA/NMFS has never even acknowledged



receipt of the September 29, 2017 request, the December 4, 2017 follow-up letter, or the



December 22, 2017 email confirmation request.


32. To date, more than three months after AWI’s initial letter, and more than two



months after the statutory deadline, NOAA/NMFS has not responded in any way to the



September 29, 2017 AWI FOIA request.  Nor has the Agency provided AWI with any



explanation for the ongoing delay.  The other agencies have either responded in full (APHIS and



MMC) or acknowledged receipt and confirmed that review is underway (FWS).



CLAIM FOR RELIEF


33. AWI has a statutory right to the requested records.  NOAA/NMFS, in violation of



FOIA and AWI’s rights under FOIA, has failed to provide the records, or any substantive



determination regarding them, by the mandatory deadline set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). 


REQUESTED RELIEF


34. AWI respectfully requests that the Court grant the following relief:


a. Declare that NMFS is in violation of FOIA;
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b. Enjoin NMFS from continuing to withhold the requested records and order



NMFS immediately to release the records in full to AWI;


c. Make a written finding pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(F)(i) that the



“circumstances surrounding the withholding raise questions whether



agency personnel acted arbitrarily or capriciously with respect to the



withholding . . . .”;


d. Award Plaintiff its attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E);


e. Award any other relief this Court finds just and proper. 


Dated this 9th day of January, 2018


Respectfully submitted,


/s/Donald C. Baur  


Donald C. Baur


D.C. Bar No. 393621


Perkins Coie LLP


700 13th Street, NW, Suite 600



Washington, D.C.  20005-3960



(202) 654-6200


DBaur@perkinscoie.com


Sunny Tsou


(pro hac vice application pending)


Perkins Coie LLP


505 Howard Street


Suite 1000



San Francisco, CA 94105



(415) 344-7000


STsou@perkinscoie.com


Counsel for Plaintiff




mailto:DBaur@perkinscoie.com

mailto:STsou@perkinscoie.com
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May 16, 2018


Mr. Adam Carlesco


Public Employees for Environmental Responsibility (PEER)


962 Wayne Ave Suite 610


Silver Spring, MD 20910


Re:  FOIA Request No. DOC-NOAA-2018-000763


Dear Mr. Carlesco, 


This letter is in response to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request, which was received by



our office on February 21, 2018. You requested for: 


(1) Summary of all incidents of violence, threats, or harassment against NOAA employees that



occurred in calendar year 2017. The summary should include the date, location, and nature



of the incident or threat together with a summary of what, if any, outcomes stemmed from



the incident or threat (e.g., arrest, conviction, ongoing investigation). 


(2) A summary of all incidents of violence, threats, or harassment against professional



observers, including government contractors, that occurred in calendar year 2017. The



summary should include incidents against observers aboard NOAA vessels or while



otherwise carrying out their duties as NOAA contractors, and include the date, location, and



nature of the incident or threat together with a summary of what, if any, outcomes stemmed



from the incident or threat (e.g., arrest, conviction, ongoing investigation).”


On March 29, 2018, we provided you with the first interim release of “summary of all incidents of


violence, threats, or harassment against professional observers, including government contractors that



occurred in calendar year 2017” and a tally of open incidents that are still pending enforcement action



from the Office of Law Enforcement Pacific Islands and Southeast Divisions. Subsequently, on April


30, 2018, we provided you with the second interim release of “summary of all incidents of violence,



threats, or harassment against professional observers, including government contractors that occurred



in calendar year 2017” from the Office of Law Enforcement West Coast Division. You were granted


full access to this record, and a copy is enclosed. 


For this third interim release, we are providing you with records responsive to Request One of your


FOIA request, “Summary of all incidents of violence, threats, or harassment against NOAA employees

that occurred in calendar year 2017.”  The Office of Security’s Investigation and Threat Management



Division, NOAA-ERSO and NOAA- WRSO, conducted searches on behalf of the Office of Security.


This search found 2 documents responsive to your request. You are granted full access to the records,



and a copy is enclosed.


UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
National Marine Fisheries Service



Office of Law Enforcement



Headquarters


1315 East West Highway



Silver Spring, MD 20910







To ensure the inclusiveness and accuracy of the responsive records, the National Oceanic and



Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service, Office of Law Enforcement is


continuing the review of the records responsive to your request.  When we complete processing them,



we will produce all non-exempt portions to you as soon as possible. Please note that Request One of



your FOIA request is being processed by other establishments separate from the National Oceanic and



Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service Office of Law Enforcement. 


Although we do not consider this to be a denial of your request, you have the right to file an



administrative appeal if you are not satisfied with our response to your FOIA request. All appeals



should include a statement of the reasons why you believe the FOIA response was not satisfactory. 


An appeal based on documents in this release must be received within 90 calendar days of the date of



this response letter at the following address:


Assistant General Counsel for Litigation, Employment, and Oversight


U.S. Department of Commerce


Office of General Counsel


Room 5875


14th and Constitution Avenue, N.W.


Washington, D.C. 20230


An appeal may also be sent by e-mail to FOIAAppeals@doc.gov, by facsimile (fax) to 202-482-2552,



or by FOIAonline at https://foiaonline.regulations.gov/foia/action/public/home#.


For your appeal to be complete, it must include the following items:


 a copy of the original request,


 our response to your request,


 a statement explaining why the withheld records should be made available, and why the denial



of the records was in error.


 “Freedom of Information Act Appeal” must appear on your appeal letter. It should also be



written on your envelope, e-mail subject line, or your fax cover sheet.


FOIA appeals posted to the e-mail box, fax machine, FOIAonline, or Office after normal business



hours will be deemed received on the next business day.  If the 90th calendar day for submitting an



appeal falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal public holiday, an appeal received by 5:00 p.m., Eastern



Time, the next business day will be deemed timely.


FOIA grants requesters the right to challenge an agency's final action in federal court. Before doing so,



an adjudication of an administrative appeal is ordinarily required.


The Office of Government Information Services (OGIS), an office created within the National



Archives and Records Administration, offers free mediation services to FOIA requesters. They may be



contacted in any of the following ways:


Office of Government Information Services


National Archives and Records Administration


Room 2510


8601 Adelphi Road


College Park, MD 20740-6001



mailto:FOIAAppeals@doc.gov

tel:202-482-2552

https://foiaonline.regulations.gov/foia/action/public/home

https://foiaonline.regulations.gov/foia/action/public/home#





Email: ogis@nara.gov


Phone: 301-837-1996


Fax: 301-837-0348


Toll-free: 1-877-684-6448


If you have questions regarding your request, please contact Arlyn Penaranda at



Arlyn.Penaranda@noaa.gov, or call (301) 427-8256 or the NOAA FOIA Public Liaison



Robert Swisher at (301) 628-5755.


 


Sincerely,


 


Logan Gregory


Deputy Director


Office of Law Enforcement


Logan Gregory Digitally signed by Logan Gregory



Date: 2018.05.22 07:29:59 -04'00'




mailto:ogis@nara.gov

mailto:Arlyn.Penaranda@noaa.gov






Arlyn Penaranda - NOAA Federal



From: Arlyn Penaranda - NOAA Federal



Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2018 11:24 AM



To: Mark Graff - NOAA Federal



Subject: Fwd: DOC-NOAA-2018-00763



Attachments: DOC-NOAA-2018-000763_InterimRelease3_FULL GRANT.PDF



Please approve  DOC-NOAA-2018-00763. Thank you.



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Adam Carlesco <acarlesco@peer.org>



Date: Tue, Jul 17, 2018 at 11:17 AM



Subject: DOC-NOAA-2018-00763



To: "Arlyn.Penaranda@noaa.gov" <Arlyn.Penaranda@noaa.gov>



Good morning, Ms. Penaranda



I wanted to follow up on this FOIA request concerning violence against NOAA employees and observers for

2017.  We have received 3 partial productions, on a semi-regular basis since March and wanted to follow up

since we have yet to receive complete production on this request. I believe we have received final production

for part 1 , but for part 2 – concerning observers – we only have the Southeast, West Coast, and Pacific Islands

divisions (see attached) and are still missing records from the Alaska and the New England/Mid-Atlantic

offices. I received an email saying that NOAA had uploaded additional supporting files to the FOIA Online

page, but do not see any further production uploaded, so I wanted to inquire as to when we should expect

complete production on this request.



Thanks,



Adam



------------------


Adam Carlesco, Staff Counsel



Public Employees for Environmental Responsibility (PEER)



962 Wayne Ave., Suite 610



Silver Spring, Maryland  20910



Main Office: 202.265.PEER (7337) / Direct: 240.247.0298



Fax: 202.265.4192



acarlesco@peer.org



www.peer.org




mailto:acarlesco@peer.org

mailto:Arlyn.Penaranda@noaa.gov

mailto:Arlyn.Penaranda@noaa.gov

mailto:acarlesco@peer.org

http://www.peer.org/

http://www.peer.org





www.peer.org



CAUTION:  If you attempt to send an email with a total attachment size exceeding 8 MB, it will not come through, and neither of us will

receive a "failed delivery" message.  Please contact me directly for alternate instructions for sending large files.



This message may contain information that is confidential or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately

advise the sender by reply email and delete this email from your system. The unauthorized review and/or dissemination of this email is

strictly prohibited.  The transmission of this email shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of any privileges or confidences.



--


Arlyn Penaranda



Records Management Specialist



Office of Law Enforcement



NOAA, National Marine Fisheries Service



Office: 301-427-8256



arlyn.penaranda@noaa.gov <arlyn.penaranda@noaa.gov>




mailto:arlyn.penaranda@noaa.gov

mailto:arlyn.penaranda@noaa.gov
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


ANIMAL WELFARE INSTITUTE    )



900 Pennsylvania Avenue, SE   )



Washington, D.C. 20003,    )



        )



    Plaintiff,    ) 


   v.     ) Civ. No. 


        )



NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC  )



ADMINISTRATION,      )



 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Room 5128  )



 Washington, D.C.  20230    )



        )



   and     )



        )



NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE,  )



 1315 East-West Highway    )



 Silver Spring, MD  20910,    )



        )



    Defendants.   )



________________________________________________)



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 


1. The Animal Welfare Institute brings this action against defendants National


Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and National Marine Fisheries Service for violations


of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 (“FOIA”).


PARTIES



2. Plaintiff Animal Welfare Institute (“AWI”) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization



that seeks to protect animals from human inflicted suffering.  In particular, AWI has advocated



for the protection of whales and other marine life from life from human activities such as


harmful fishing practices, hunting, underwater noise production, and inhumane practices


resulting from captive maintenance for purposes of public display and scientific research.  AWI



is the requester of the records at issue.
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3. Defendant National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) is an



agency of the federal government within the U.S. Department of Commerce that focuses on the



conditions of the oceans and the atmosphere, including marine wildlife.


4. Defendant National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) is an agency of the



federal government within NOAA that has jurisdiction over whales under the Marine Mammal


Protection Act (“MMPA”), 16 U.S.C. §§ 1361 - 1423h, and is in possession of the records


requested by AWI.


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


5. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


FACTS GIVING RISE TO PLAINTIFF’S CLAIM


A. FOIA Requirements


7. The purpose of FOIA is to “pierce the veil of administrative secrecy and to open



agency action to the light of public scrutiny.”  Public Citizen, Inc. v. Office of Management and



Budget, 598 F.3d 865, 869 (D.C. Cir. 2010) (quotations omitted).  In enacting FOIA, Congress


intended the primary objective of the Act to be the full disclosure of federal agency records so



long as information is not exempted by clearly delineated statutory language.  Id.


8. FOIA establishes a broad right of public access to federal agency records, subject


only to nine delineated exemptions.  5 U.S.C. § 552(b).  “Each agency, upon any request” for



enumerated records must “determine within 20 days (excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and legal


holidays) after the receipt of any such request whether to comply with such request and shall


immediately notify the person making such a request” of the “determination and the reasons


therefor . . . .”  Id. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).  A requester “shall be deemed to have exhausted [its]
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administrative remedies”—and hence may file suit under the Act’s citizen suit provision—“with



respect to [a] request if the agency fails to comply with the . . . time limit” set forth in the statute



for a substantive response.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


9. The federal regulations implementing FOIA for NOAA and NMFS are located at


15 C.F.R. § 4.1, et seq.  15 C.F.R. § 4.6 codifies the requirement that NOAA/NMFS respond



within 20 working days of receiving a FOIA request with a determination of compliance. 


B. The Public Interest Need for the Documents Subject to the FOIA Request


10. In 2013, the documentary film Blackfish drew public attention to the plight of



Tilikum, an orca held in captivity by SeaWorld Parks & Entertainment (“SeaWorld”), and other



orcas now maintained in aquariums and theme parks around the world.  Blackfish set off a strong



negative public reaction to SeaWorld and the conditions under which orcas are held in captivity.


11. On March 8, 2016, SeaWorld released a video on its website describing Tilikum’s


declining health and indicating that he was not expected to survive.


12. Beginning in October 2016, the People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals


(“PETA”) initiated the first of what would be several meetings and communications with



NOAA/NMFS regarding Tilikum.  AWI joined this effort by December 2016.  In anticipation of



Tilikum’s death, NOAA/NMFS was presented with a draft legal opinion explaining why the



1992 MMPA permit authorizing the importation of Tilikum requires SeaWorld to submit to



NOAA/NMFS the necropsy report and clinical history for Tilikum in the event of his death.  In



these meetings and communications, and through the draft legal opinion, AWI (with PETA)



sought NOAA/NMFS input and comments on the applicability of the necropsy and clinical


history permit requirement. 
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13. In the following months, AWI also presented its views on the necropsy and



clinical history requirements of MMPA permits to the other federal agencies with jurisdiction



over marine mammals ─ the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“FWS”), the Marine Mammal


Commission (“MMC”), and the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Animal and Plant Health



Inspection Service (“APHIS”).
1


14. In these agency meetings and communications, AWI repeatedly stressed the



importance of necropsy reports and clinical histories for purposes of scientific research, medical


care (including for free-ranging, stranded individuals), animal husbandry, and public education,



and demonstrated that the benefits resulting from this information applied to whales held both in



captivity and in the wild. 


15. In these meetings and communications, NOAA/NMFS never took a position on



whether SeaWorld had to comply with the necropsy and clinical history requirements of



Tilikum’s permit. 


16. Tilikum died on January 6, 2017 at SeaWorld’s Orlando facility.  AWI and other



animal welfare organizations immediately notified NOAA/NMFS that Tilikum’s MMPA permit


required SeaWorld to submit the necropsy and clinical history report within 30 days.  Based on



information and belief, SeaWorld never submitted the necropsy and clinical history report


required by the permit to NOAA/NMFS.


17. On March 10, 2017, NOAA/NMFS responded to the animal welfare



organizations’ notice with an email stating that it was willing to meet to discuss the issue but that


it had concluded that the necropsy and clinical history provisions of Tilikum’s permit had been



1
 Under the MMPA, NOAA/NMFS has jurisdiction over whales, dolphins and seals.  FWS has jurisdiction over


polar bears, manatees, walrus and sea otters.  16 U.S.C. § 1362(12)(A).  The MMC serves in an independent



advisory and oversight role.  Id. §§ 1401-1407.  APHIS jurisdiction is not under the MMPA but applies to marine


mammals in certain captive maintenance facilities under the Animal Welfare Act.  7 U.S.C. §§ 2131-2159.
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extinguished by amendments to the MMPA in 1994 and that “the legal analysis supporting this


determination is exempt from disclosure under the attorney-client privilege, and we will not be



discussing it in any detail at the meeting.”  Thus, after months of effort to engage NOAA/NMFS


in a collaborative dialogue regarding the permit requirements for SeaWorld to release Tilikum’s


health records, AWI and the other organizations had no explanation from NOAA/NMFS for the



legal conclusion, contrary to the plain language of the permit, that the necropsy and clinical


history requirement did not apply and were told that none would be provided. 


18. AWI contacted SeaWorld directly by email on March 25, 2017 asking for



voluntary release of Tilikum’s records.  SeaWorld refused to do so in an April 13, 2017 email. 


Five animal welfare organizations sent a letter to SeaWorld on August 8, 2017, again asking for



voluntary compliance.  SeaWorld has not replied and continues to withhold the documents.



19. On July 24, 2017, Tilikum’s granddaughter Kyara died at SeaWorld’s San



Antonio facility.  The draft legal opinion previously provided to NOAA/NMFS confirmed that


Kyara was covered by the necropsy and clinical history provision of Tilikum’s permit.



20. On July 31, 2017, AWI and other animal welfare organizations wrote to



NOAA/NMFS asking for enforcement of the necropsy and clinical history provision of



Tilikum’s permit for Kyara’s records.  Counsel to AWI submitted a revised version of the draft


legal opinion supporting this conclusion to NOAA/NMFS on August 14, 2017. 


21. NOAA/NMFS responded on September 7, 2017, simply restating its March 10,



2017 email message that the permit had been extinguished by the 1994 MMPA amendments.



22. On August 15, 2017, Kasatka, an orca held at SeaWorld’s San Diego facility, was


euthanized due to a bacterial infection.  Kasatka’s 1978 MMPA permit included a necropsy and



clinical history requirement.  AWI, and the other organizations promptly requested
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NOAA/NMFS to enforce the permit, by letter dated August 25, 2017, and by an updated version



of the legal opinion, by letter from counsel dated August 30, 2017. 


23. By letter dated October 18, 2017, NOAA/NMFS issued the same response as in



its March 10, 2017 email on Tilikum’s death and its September 7, 2017 letter on Kyara’s death,



stating that the necropsy and clinical history requirement in Kasatka’s permit had been



extinguished.  Again, NOAA/NMFS provided no explanation for its legal conclusion. 


24. After the death of three SeaWorld orcas over a seven-month period,



NOAA/NMFS has refused to release or disclose the legal rationale for its conclusion that


SeaWorld can ignore clearly stated permit requirements and withhold information that would



shed light on the cause of death and medical condition of these whales during their lives in



captivity and benefit science and marine mammal husbandry, stranding response, and medical


care.  SeaWorld refuses to release the whales’ clinical histories or necropsy reports. 


C. The AWI FOIA Request 


25. By letters sent by email on September 29, 2017, AWI submitted FOIA requests to



NOAA/NMFS, FWS, and MMC for all documents from January 1, 2017 to May 1, 2017



regarding NMFS’ March 10, 2017 determination that the necropsy and clinical history



requirements of Public Display Permit No. 774 for Tilikum were extinguished by the 1994



MMPA amendments.  Exhibit 1, Declaration of Donald C. Baur, dated January 8, 2018 (“Baur



Decl.”) at ¶ 2, Attachment A.  On the same date, AWI submitted a FOIA request to APHIS,



asking for “all requests that APHIS has submitted since January 1, 1994 under 9 C.F.R. §



3.110(g) requesting necropsy records for marine mammals that have died in captivity, and all


necropsy records that APHIS has received in response to those requests.” 
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26. Under FOIA, the deadline for agency response to the requests was October 30,



2017. 


27. By letter to AWI dated October 5, 2017, APHIS’s FOIA Director confirmed



receipt of the FOIA request.  The letter identified an anticipated response date of October 30,



2017.  On December 8, 2017, APHIS responded to AWI’s FOIA request.
2


28. By voice message on October 4, 2017, the MMC confirmed receipt of AWI’s


FOIA request.  In a letter sent by email, dated December 18, 2017, Michael L. Gosliner, MMC


General Counsel, responded to the FOIA request with a partial release of documents.  In the



MMC response letter, Mr. Gosliner stated:


I am sympathetic to the position that your organization finds itself in ─ the



responsible agency (NMFS) has given you its legal conclusion that the 1994



amendments to the MMPA extinguished the permit terms and conditions related



to necropsies and clinical histories, but has declined to provide you with its


rationale for this conclusion.  I can see where that agency would not want to share



its draft legal analysis outside of the government, but once a conclusion has been



reached, its final position no longer is pre-decisional.
3


The MMC also stated that it could not release its own documents that would shed light on the



NOAA/NMFS legal position without concurrence from NOAA/NMFS.
4


2
 APHIS confirmed that, since 1994, it has not required licensees to submit necropsy reports for any marine


mammals.  As a result, it had no documents to release.
3
 The MMC’s FOIA response indicates that NOAA/NMFS had not completed its consultation with its sister


agencies on the legal question at the time it announced its conclusion on March 10, 2017.
4
 The MMC request revealed the limited nature of the AWI request, by identifying only nine responsive documents



withheld based on the NOAA/NMFS position.  The MMC letter also confirmed that it had coordinated its response


“with the other agencies,” indicating that NOAA/NMFS is aware of the FOIA request.
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29. By email on September 29, 2017, FWS’s Headquarters FOIA Office



acknowledged receipt of the FOIA request.  The email stated that the request was forwarded to



the Division of Management Authority for processing. 


30. The initial FOIA request letter to NMFS was confirmed delivered to



NOAA/NMFS by AWI email on September 29, 2017.  A follow-up letter was also sent by email


to NMFS on December 4, 2017, asking for a response by December 15, 2017.  Baur Decl. ¶ 3,



Attachment B.  Finally, on December 22, 2017, a copy of the December 4 letter was sent again



by email, with a specific request that NMFS acknowledge receipt.  Id. ¶ 4, Attachment C.



31. As of the date of this complaint, NOAA/NMFS has never even acknowledged



receipt of the September 29, 2017 request, the December 4, 2017 follow-up letter, or the



December 22, 2017 email confirmation request.


32. To date, more than three months after AWI’s initial letter, and more than two



months after the statutory deadline, NOAA/NMFS has not responded in any way to the



September 29, 2017 AWI FOIA request.  Nor has the Agency provided AWI with any



explanation for the ongoing delay.  The other agencies have either responded in full (APHIS and



MMC) or acknowledged receipt and confirmed that review is underway (FWS).



CLAIM FOR RELIEF


33. AWI has a statutory right to the requested records.  NOAA/NMFS, in violation of



FOIA and AWI’s rights under FOIA, has failed to provide the records, or any substantive



determination regarding them, by the mandatory deadline set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). 


REQUESTED RELIEF


34. AWI respectfully requests that the Court grant the following relief:


a. Declare that NMFS is in violation of FOIA;
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b. Enjoin NMFS from continuing to withhold the requested records and order



NMFS immediately to release the records in full to AWI;


c. Make a written finding pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(F)(i) that the



“circumstances surrounding the withholding raise questions whether



agency personnel acted arbitrarily or capriciously with respect to the



withholding . . . .”;


d. Award Plaintiff its attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E);


e. Award any other relief this Court finds just and proper. 


Dated this 9th day of January, 2018


Respectfully submitted,


/s/Donald C. Baur  


Donald C. Baur


D.C. Bar No. 393621


Perkins Coie LLP


700 13th Street, NW, Suite 600



Washington, D.C.  20005-3960



(202) 654-6200


DBaur@perkinscoie.com


Sunny Tsou


(pro hac vice application pending)


Perkins Coie LLP


505 Howard Street


Suite 1000



San Francisco, CA 94105



(415) 344-7000


STsou@perkinscoie.com


Counsel for Plaintiff
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.,   )



425 Third Street SW, Suite 800  )



Washington, DC 20024,   )



      )



Plaintiff,  ) 


) Civil Action No.



v.      )



)



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT )



OF COMMERCE, )



1401 Constitution Avenue, NW )



Washington, DC 20230, )



  )     


   Defendant.  )



____________________________________)



COMPLAINT


 Plaintiff Judicial Watch, Inc. brings this action against Defendant U.S. Department of



Commerce to compel compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552



(“FOIA”).  As grounds therefor, Plaintiff alleges as follows:


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


 1. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B)



and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.


 2. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).


PARTIES



 3.  Plaintiff Judicial Watch, Inc. is a not-for-profit, educational organization



incorporated under the laws of the District of Columbia and headquartered at 425 Third Street



SW, Suite 800, Washington, DC 20024.  Plaintiff seeks to promote transparency, accountability,



and integrity in government and fidelity to the rule of law.  As part of its mission, Plaintiff



regularly requests records from federal agencies pursuant to FOIA.  Plaintiff analyzes the
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responses and disseminates its findings and the requested records to the American public to



inform them about “what their government is up to.”


 4. Defendant U.S. Department of Commerce is an agency of the United States



Government.  Defendant has possession, custody, and control of records to which Plaintiff seeks



access.  Defendant is headquartered at 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20230. 


STATEMENT OF FACTS


 5. On February 6, 2017 Plaintiff submitted a FOIA request to the National Oceanic



and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”), a component of Defendant, seeking the following:


Any and all records of communications between NOAA scientist



Thomas Karl and Director of the Office of Science and



Technology Policy John Holdren. 


 


The timeframe of the request was identified as “January 20, 2009 through January 20, 2017.”



The request was submitted by certified mail.


 6. According to U.S. Postal Service records, the request was received by NOAA on



February 7, 2017.


7. NOAA confirmed that it received the request on February 8, 2017, assigning the



request Tracking Number DOC-NOAA-2017-000580. 


 8. As of the date of this Complaint, Defendant has failed to: (i) produce the



requested records or demonstrate that the requested records are lawfully exempt from



production; (ii) notify Plaintiff of the scope of any responsive records Defendant intends to



produce or withhold and the reasons for any withholdings; or (iii) inform Plaintiff that it may



appeal any adequately specific, adverse determination. 
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COUNT I


Violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552



 9. Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1 through 8 as if fully stated herein.


 10. Plaintiff is being irreparably harmed by reason of Defendant’s violation of FOIA,



and Plaintiff will continue to be irreparably harmed unless Defendant is compelled to comply



with FOIA.


11. To trigger FOIA’s administrative exhaustion requirement, Defendant was



required to determine whether to comply with Plaintiff’s request by March 9, 2017 at the latest. 


At a minimum, Defendant was required to: (i) gather and review the requested documents; (ii)



determine and communicate to Plaintiff the scope of any responsive records Defendant intended



to produce or withhold and the reasons for any withholdings; and (iii) inform Plaintiff that it may



appeal any adequately specific, adverse determination.  See, e.g., Citizens for Responsibility and


Ethics in Washington v. Federal Election Commission, 711 F.3d 180, 188-89 (D.C. Cir. 2013). 


12.  Because Defendant failed to determine whether to comply with Plaintiff’s request



within the time period required by FOIA, Plaintiff is deemed to have exhausted its administrative



appeal remedies.  5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court: (1) order Defendant to



conduct searches for any and all records responsive to Plaintiff’s FOIA request and demonstrate



that it employed search methods reasonably likely to lead to the discovery of records responsive



to Plaintiff’s FOIA request; (2) order Defendant to produce, by a date certain, any and all non-


exempt records to Plaintiff’s FOIA request and a Vaughn index of any responsive records



withheld under claim of exemption; (3) enjoin Defendant from continuing to withhold any and



all non-exempt records responsive to Plaintiff’s FOIA request; (4) grant Plaintiff an award of
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attorneys’ fees and other litigation costs reasonably incurred in this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E); and (5) grant Plaintiff such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 


Dated:  March 27, 2017     Respectfully submitted,


         s/ Chris Fedeli  


        Chris Fedeli


        D.C. Bar No. 472919 


        JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.
        425 Third Street SW, Suite 800


        Washington, DC 20024


        (202) 646-5172


        Counsel for Plaintiff
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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ALEX G. TSE (CABN 152348)     
Acting United States Attorney

SARA WINSLOW (DCBN 457643)
Chief, Civil Division

JENNIFER S WANG (CABN 233155)
Assistant United States Attorney



450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055

San Francisco, California 94102-3495

Telephone: (415) 436-6967

FAX: (415) 436-6748
jennifer.s.wang@usdoj.gov


Attorneys for Defendant
NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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Fate upon release 


Condition upon capture 
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Red grouper 200,770 128,728 40,636 79,000 302 8,790 49,566



Tilefish 19,387 15,572 4,610 10,851 57 54 337



Yellowedge grouper 17,284 17,074 954 15,753 358 9 12



Red snapper 14,409 6,544 4,313 1,984 33 214 5,746



Scamp 6,509 6,346 4,532 1,584 36 194 42



Gag 5,677 4,693 2,878 1,594 7 214 666



Blueline tilefish 5,303 3,242 2,193 1,039 10 204



Cuban dogfish 5,222 1 1 4,174



Atlantic sharpnose shark 5,155 1 1 4,190



King snake eel 4,504 1 1 203



Smooth dogfish shark 3,267 3,006



Snowy grouper 2,676 2,649 161 2,472 13 3 8



Mutton snapper 2,517 2,508 2,169 323 2 14 2



Sharks grouped 2,226 2 2 2,031



Hake (genus) 1,960 233 6 225 2 22



Jolthead porgy 1,710 1,635 1,537 80 5 13 12



Greater amberjack 1,314 281 273 5 3 770



Gray snapper 1,112 1,075 535 436 2 102 27



Sharksucker 1,097 5 5 608



Blacknose shark 1,076 1,005



Blackfin snapper 1,014 1,003 894 109 2



Red porgy 966 800 740 31 2 27 75



Sandbar shark 894 889



Lane snapper 773 688 236 306 7 139 52



Tiger shark 771 736



Speckled hind 769 689 267 411 1 10 40



Blacktail moray 609 99



Dogfish (genus) 570 476



Smooth pufferfish 543 176 173 3 257



Almaco jack 526 353 350 2 1 124



Nurse shark 493 493



Spinycheek scorpionfish 477 409 69 336 3 1 3



Bonito 472 29 10 19 17



Vermilion (b-liner) snapper 455 324 282 22 4 16 69



Dogfish shark 451 392



Sand diver 449 58



Leopard toadfish 444 1 1 95



Spotted moray 403 8 8 14



Pale spotted eel 343 2 2 112



Live



Kept



Table 7.—Number, condition (when brought onboard), and fate of fish species caught based on observer coverage








Banded rudderfish 341 93 86 7 179



Blackfin tuna 340 165 95 70 11



Shortspine dogfish 334 297



Great barracuda 331 10 7 3 100



Silky shark 330 2 1 1 236



Blacktip shark 314 270



Reticulate moray 294 1 1 23



Hammerhead scalloped shark 280 193



Jack (genus) 255 54 51 3 138



Spotted hake 237 12 12 1



Bearded brotula 229 186 80 103 3 9



Southern hake 221 15 2 13 16



Bigeye sixgill shark 217 180



Black grouper 215 210 115 89 6 4



Ling cobia 214 128 126 2 75



Red lionfish 207 52 38 14 22



Gray triggerfish 198 119 102 15 2 48



Squirrelfish 169 16 15 1 85



Queen snapper 164 163 105 58



Snakefish 159 1 1 23



Night shark 150 94



Gulf hake 146 4



Clearnose skate 145 42



Sand perch 142 1 1 26



Sevengill shark 113 67



Dolphin 111 100 51 49



Inshore lizardfish 106 9



Purplemouth moray 103 4



Warsaw grouper 102 102 6 84 12



Hammerhead (genus) shark 100 71



Sand tilefish 92 10 8 1 1 20



Blackedge moray 90 6



Yellowtail snapper 84 78 74 3 1 4



Conger eel 73 9 9 5



King mackerel 73 7 5 2 13



Dogfish (order) shark 72 67



Silk snapper 72 71 52 19



Gulper shark 68 12



African pompano 59 48 46 2 5



Wenchman 50 15 7 7 1 2



Wahoo 44 38 10 28



Common crevalle jack 41 1 1 24



Rock seabass 36 9



Roughskin dogfish 36 27



Blackbelly rosefish 35 31 17 14



Great hammerhead shark 35 32



Goldface tilefish 34 20 20 8








White grunt 34 34 33 1



Chain dogfish 33 26



Queen triggerfish 31 18



Knobbed porgy 30 27 27 1



Bank seabass 28 5



Honeycomb moray 28 3



Goliath (jewfish) grouper 27 7



Barrelfish 25 25 20 5



Green moray 25



Grouper (genus) 25 24 4 20 1



Broad flounder 23 19 19 4



Littlehead porgy 23 16 16 3



Dusky flounder 22 6



Margate 22 22 18 3 1



Shortfin mako shark 21 4 3 1 8



Red drum 19 17



Rock hind 19 9 3 6 2



Yellowmouth grouper 19 19 16 3



Bull shark 18 18



Lizardfish (family) 18 2



Dusky shark 17 14



Spinner shark 17 14



Lesser amberjack 16 5 5 4



Longspine scorpionfish 16 2 2



Short bigeye 16 2 2 12



Graysby 14 4 1 3 2



Swordfish 14 5 2 3 3



Moray (genus) 13 4



Porgy (genus) 13 12 11 1



Blackpored eel 11 1



Saucereye porgy 11 9 7 2 2



Stingray (genus) 11 11



Florida smoothhound shark 10 10



Cubera snapper 8 8 4 4



Sixgill (genus) shark 8 7



Yellowfin tuna 8 4 2 2



Blue runner 7 2



Bonnethead shark 7 4



Cardinal snapper 7 6 6



Largescale lizardfish 7



Scorpionfish (genus) 7 1 1



Skipjack tuna 7 3 2 1



Big scale pomfret 6 5



Cownose ray 6 3



Stout beardfish 6 6 5 1



Southern flounder 5 5 5



Stingray (family) 5 4








Tilefish (genus) 5 2 1 1 1



Blunthead pufferfish 4 2 1 1



Lemon shark 4 4



Longtail bass 4 4 4



Oceanic pufferfish 4 2 2 2



Shortjaw lizardfish 4



Skates and rays (superorder) 4 4



Southern stingray 4 1



Angel shark 3 3



Bignose shark 3 1 1 2



Blackbar drum 3



Blackpored skate 3 1



Dog snapper 3 3 2 1



Flying gurnard 3 2



Hooktail skate 3 2



Ocellated frogfish 3 1



Remora 3



Saddled grenadier 3 1 1



Sailfish 3



Sea bass (family) 3 1



Six gill shark 3 3



Tomtate 3



Unknown fish 3 1 1 1



Yellowfin grouper 3 3 3



Blackline tilefish 2 1



Bluefish 2 1 1



Bullnose ray 2 2



Conger (family) eel 2 1



Cow shark (family) 2 2



Dogfish (family) 2 1



Finetooth shark 2 2



Flounder (family) 2



Horse-eye jack 2 1



Lionfish (genus) 2 2 1 1



Longspine squirrelfish 2 2 2



Misty grouper 2 2 2



Roughtail stingray 2 2



Sheepshead porgy 2 2 2



Skate (genus) 2 1



Snapper (genus) 2 1 1



Spotted spoonnose eel 2



Spreadfin skate 2 1



Yellow conger 2



Armored searobin 1 1 1



Atlantic bonito 1



Atlantic stingray 1 1



Bandtail pufferfish 1 1








Bigeye 1 1 1



Black seabass 1 1



Butterfly ray 1 1



Carolina hake 1



Darwin's slimehead 1 1 1



Dwarf sand perch 1



Gulf flounder 1 1 1



Lefteye (genus) flounder 1



Mackerel (genus) 1



Olifish 1 1 1



Pufferfish (genus) 1 1



San blas skate 1 1



Searobin (genus) 1 1



Seatrout (genus) 1



Skate and ray (order) 1 1



Smooth butterfly ray 1



Southern eagle ray 1 1



Spotfin flounder 1 1 1



Spotted scorpionfish 1 1



Tattler 1 1



Whitebone porgy 1 1 1



Total (all species) 322,765 197,137 69,197 117,070 1,046 9,824 79,371



Nocatch 7
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17,720 30,006 1,840 2 2 21,115 5,619



168 168 1 104 32 68 3 1 3,276 787



3 9 194 6



3,375 2,252 119 1,937 893



38 4 120 50



322 344 307 109



140 63 1 54 25 29 1,792 648



4,173 1 181 181 750 552



4,190 3 3 937 318



198 5 3,768 3,727 14 22 5 517 500



3,004 1 1 33 33 177 130



5 3 19 1



2 7 1



2,027 4 3 3 63 28



9 13 729 61 560 108 912 66



10 2 24 4 20 39 15



760 7 3 3 3 218 168



14 13 10 1



588 1 19 457 428 29 24 19



1,005 68 47



2 9



74 1 34 18 13 3 53 29



889 1 1 3



19 30 3 1 1 31 8



736 25 17



22 18 38 17



99 343 315 1 26 1 164 133



476 94 93



255 2 59 59 50 47



124 24 24 24 15



492 1



2 1 64 15



17 246 128 113 5 179 26



62 5 2 14 12 1 1 47 23



392 59 53



57 1 307 282 1 24 82 57



60 35 192 101 83 2 6 149 76



14 361 349 12 20 15



111 1 191 189 1 1 37 33



Live Live Liv



Released alive Kept for bait Dis



e of the U.S. Gulf of Mexico bottom longline reef fish fishery from January 2012 to December 2016.








179 40 39 1 27 20



11 18 1 17 146 23



297 33 27



100 134 126 8 85 54



236 82 32



270 2 1 1 42 2



23 232 207 19 6 34 23



191 2 87 8



138 3 3 59 44



1 162 2 135 9 16 62 3



4 5 13 1 12 19 3



1 15 9 1 8 180 9



180 37 22



4 1



72 3 1 1 10 8



19 2 1 131 92



43 5 1 1 29 15



77 8 57 39
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23 98 77 3 10 8 34 18



94 50 22



4 80 80 62



42 96 95 1 7 7



22 4 86 47 35 2 2 28 7



67 45 16



4 2 2 7 1



7 2 70 66 2 2 27 12



4 82 80 2 16 9



71 29 1



17 3 49 39 9 1 13 3



6 69 68 1 15 10



3 1 2 1



5 50 50 5 5



13 8 5 3 45 20



67 5 4



1 1



12 56 55



5 6 6



2 4 2 2 29 14



6



24 4 4 12 5



6 3 13 3 9 1 13 5



27 8 8



1 1 2 1



32 2



7 1 6 6








26 2 2



9 9 13 4



1 2 1



4 1 13 8 5 10 9



3 24 21 3 1



1 6 17 2
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3 1 1 3 3
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2 8 3



18



2 11 9 2 5



14 3 3



14 3



4 2 2 5 5
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44,294 33,066 2,011 8,606 7,022 1,100 402 82 35,426 11,342
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13,405 1,510 581 1,359 233 712 414



2,119 349 21 98 41 51 6



36 152 4 3 1



780 248 16 182 83 55 1 43



20 49 1 1 1



163 32 3 11 4 6 1



1,082 62 11 2 8 1



198 116 93 1 22



1 603 15 24 16 8



1 15 1 15 15



47 51 48 3



11 7



6



34 1 127 20 107



693 152 1 64 12 41 11



1 23



16 31 3 42 38 1 3



2 7



5 3 2 1



21 3 3



2 7



1 23 4 3 1



3 1 1
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8 10 7 3
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9 1 1
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153 1 1



13 10 1 1 1
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66 7 7 4 2 1
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1 3 1 1
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18,903 4,512 669 2,225 699 889 3 634
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Red snapper 116,905 102,481 70,261 31,586 11 623 10,735



Vermilion (b-liner) snapper 109,637 100,866 96,065 4,137 37 627 4,653



Red grouper 65,260 46,209 13,414 32,402 6 387 16,403



Red porgy 31,879 30,039 28,474 1,455 3 107 756



Yellowtail snapper 8,193 7,586 6,849 618 6 113 530



Gag 7,450 5,603 3,144 2,408 51 1,771



White grunt 4,239 3,799 3,684 114 1 172



Gray triggerfish 3,974 1,645 1,290 352 1 2 1,970



Scamp 3,940 3,526 2,345 1,155 3 23 315



Gray snapper 3,225 3,122 2,075 1,040 3 4 91



Greater amberjack 3,046 1,088 1,073 7 1 7 1,703



Tomtate 2,884 62 62 729



King mackerel 2,852 2,756 2,746 10 56



Lane snapper 2,500 2,205 934 1,269 2 214



Blue runner 2,000 445 441 4 558



Almaco jack 1,909 1,446 1,394 6 46 272



Chub mackerel 1,820 26 26 28



Banded rudderfish 1,644 840 836 4 470



Pinfish 919 14 14 49



Sand perch 881 5 4 1 68



Black seabass 718 464 379 85 231



Littlehead porgy 642 550 532 11 7 28



Atlantic sharpnose shark 636 9 9 587



Knobbed porgy 616 597 589 8 6



Sharksucker 585 5 5 474



Sharks grouped 523 497



Jolthead porgy 499 445 423 21 1 28



Saucereye porgy 492 469 468 1 4



Snowy grouper 460 445 51 388 5 1 5



Bonito 442 79 73 5 1 54



Jack (genus) 436 112 106 6 269



Porgy (genus) 430 412 406 4 2 5



Creole-fish 379 242 148 92 2 17



Speckled hind 349 287 59 228 43



Silky shark 301 253



Barrelfish 295 295 268 27



Queen snapper 274 274 234 40



Silk snapper 273 262 171 91 5



Rock seabass 272 3 3 63



Kept



Live



Table 8.—Number, condition (when brought onboard), and fate of fish species caught based on observer coverage








Yellowedge grouper 256 222 18 202 2 3



Bigeye scad 235 19



Pigfish 217 3 3 4



Blueline tilefish 188 104 70 31 3 30



Squirrelfish 168 72 70 2 64



Mutton snapper 155 136 97 39 18



Porgie (family) 154 142 141 1 3



Rough scad 154



Blackfin snapper 149 145 82 61 2 1



Sheepshead 137 136 136 1



Sand diver 124 3 3 54



Red drum 119 104



Lesser amberjack 117 26 26 62



Tattler 114 3 1 2 23



Short bigeye 113 47 35 12 38



Graysby 97 49 38 11 31



Common crevalle jack 96 17 17 65



Longtail bass 94 94 30 63 1



Blacknose shark 92 87



Nurse shark 90 89



Bigeye 89 58 53 4 1 16



Ling cobia 88 47 46 1 41



Bank seabass 84 1 1 23



Warsaw grouper 82 82 9 72 1



Rock hind 75 55 29 26 12



Sand tilefish 74 48 43 5 20



Spanish mackerel 74 57 57 12



Spotted moray 73 15 14 1 48



Dolphin 71 65 65 3



Wenchman 70 13 8 5 1



Blackfin tuna 68 61 61 2



Whitebone porgy 67 61 53 7 1 5



Leopard toadfish 62 4 4 40



Goldface tilefish 61 19 11 8 16



Bluefish 58 24 24 10



Seatrout (genus) 58 16 13 3 3



Black grouper 54 31 12 18 1 23



Great barracuda 50 14 14 22



Tiger shark 48 45



Spottail pinfish 47



Goliath (jewfish) grouper 46 31



Southern pufferfish 44 2 2 28



Round scad 43 2



Bermuda chub 42 4 4 34



Atlantic croaker 41 20 17 3 10



Cubbyu drum 41 1 1 6



Tilefish 40 37 15 22 2








Blacktip shark 38 37



Hogfish 38 22 20 2 13



Cero mackerel 37 32 32



Sandbar shark 37 36



Inshore lizardfish 29 8



Guaguanche 28 24 23 1 1



Smooth dogfish shark 28 20



Blackbar drum 27 2 2 3



Red lionfish 27 16 11 5 1



Atlantic moonfish 24 18



Snapper (genus) 23 15 5 10 4



Spinycheek scorpionfish 22 21 5 16 1



Bearded brotula 21 20 5 15 1



Spanish flag 21 4 1 3 1



Dusky flounder 20 14



Purplemouth moray 20 10



Reticulate moray 20 10



Jack (family) 19 15



Lookdown 19



Rainbow runner 18 9 9 5



Whitespotted soapfish 18 9



Hardhead catfish 17 16



Spinner shark 17 14



Blackbelly rosefish 16 15 12 3



Gafftopsail catfish 16 15



Smooth pufferfish 16 4 4 11



Hake (genus) 15 11 3 8 1



Margate 15 6 6 2



Moray (genus) 15 11



Yellowmouth grouper 13 13 10 2 1



Grouper (genus) 11 2 1 1 8



Hammerhead scalloped shark 11 11



Unknown fish 11 4 4 5



Marbled grouper 10 9 4 5



Pufferfish (genus) 10 10 10



Atlantic bonito 9



Blacktail moray 9 4



Cardinal soldierfish 9 1 1 2



Spanish hogfish 9 4



Spotfin hogfish 9 4 4



Atlantic spadefish 8 3 3 4



Hammerhead (genus) shark 8 8



Porkfish 8 8



Sand seatrout 8 4 4 2



Triggerfish/filefish (family) 8 8



Bar jack 7 4 4 1



Red (strawberry grouper) hind 7 4 4 3








Sheepshead porgy 7 7 6 1



Silver seatrout 7 7 6 1



Cottonwick 6 2 2 1



Cuban dogfish 6 6



Octopus (order) 6 1



Puddingwife 6 5



African pompano 5 5 5



Blackear seabass 5



Blackedge moray 5 4



Grunt (family) 5 3



Red hogfish 5 2 2 2



Snakefish 5 1



Southern flounder 5 3 3 2



Bluestriped grunt 4 4 4



Grunt (genus) 4 3



Gulf flounder 4 4 4



Gulf toadfish 4 2 2



Horse-eye jack 4 2 2



Lizardfish (family) 4



Mackerel (family) 4 1 1 3



Ocellated frogfish 4 2



Threadfin shad 4



Wahoo 4 4 4



Yellow jack 4 3 3 1



Yellowfin grouper 4 3 3 1



Atlantic bumper 3 1



Atlantic cutlassfish 3 1 1 1



Blue angelfish 3 1 1 2



Conger eel 3 1



Gulf hake 3 2 2



Honeycomb moray 3 3



Longspine scorpionfish 3 2 2



Redtail scad 3 2 2



Scad mackerel 3 3 3



Sea bass (family) 3 1



Sea catfish (family) 3 1 1 2



Southern hake 3



Tilefish (genus) 3 1



Black jack 2 1 1 1



Blackline tilefish 2 2 2



Clearnose skate 2 1



Dogfish (genus) 2



Dusky shark 2 2



Herrings (family) 2



Ladyfish 2 1 1 1



Misty grouper 2 2 1 1



Ocean triggerfish 2 1 1 1








Offshore lizardfish 2



Pompano dolphin 2 2 2



Red dory 2 2 2



Snapper (family) 2 2



Spinycheek soldierfish 2



Spot (flat croaker) 2 2



Atlantic manta 1 1



Bandtail pufferfish 1 1



Bigeye soldierfish 1



Bighead searobin 1



Bluntnose jack 1 1



Common octopus 1



Common thresher shark 1 1



Cubera snapper 1 1 1



Dogfish shark 1 1



Florida pompano 1 1 1



Grass porgy 1 1



Gulf kingfish 1



Houndfish 1



King snake eel 1 1



Mackerel (genus) 1



Night shark 1 1



Octopus (genus) 1



Pale spotted eel 1 1



Planehead filefish 1 1



Porcupinefish 1 1



Queen triggerfish 1 1 1



Remora 1 1



Round herring 1



Scad (genus) 1



Scorpionfish 1 1 1



Scrawled filefish 1



Seabass (genus) 1 1



Searobin (genus) 1 1



Sharksucker (family) 1 1



Shortfin mako shark 1 1



Shortspine dogfish 1 1



Slippery dick 1 1



Smalltail shark 1 1



Spanish sardine 1



Splitlure (striated) frogfish 1



Squirrelfishes (family) 1 1



Swordfish 1 1 1



Tarpon 1 1



Tripletail 1 1



Unicorn filefish 1 1 1



White fin sharksucker 1








Yellowfin aulopus 1



Total (all species) 389,356 320,984 240,621 78,246 94 2,023 45,687



Nocatch 39,910
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6,739 3,898 98 50 17 33 3,515 1,729



4,494 130 29 546 480 59 4 3 3,415 3,065



6,725 9,592 86 30 3 25 2 2,565 679



708 38 10 833 751 55 8 19 221 160



490 33 7 9 5 2 2 67 34



1,362 400 9 1 1 70 24



153 17 2 254 241 11 1 1 12 9



1,587 330 53 3 3 330 223



247 63 5 1 1 94 46



80 10 1 12 3



1,669 3 31 93 91 2 157 139



725 2 2 1,911 1,586 31 294 134 133



42 14 12 8 4 27 15



132 78 4 26 14 11 1 55 22



547 10 1 916 877 33 4 2 71 65



270 2 128 127 1 57 52



28 1,744 1,649 3 5 87 22 13



463 4 3 310 309 1 23 23



49 853 753 2 98 3 2



60 8 776 540 207 29 29 13



217 14 12 6 6 10 8



28 63 59 4 1 1



587 3 3 37 36



5 1 13 13



473 1 14 14 88 86



496 1 1 1 11 11



26 2 23 22 1 3 2



4 19 18 1



1 4 1 1 9 3



53 1 287 280 6 1 22 14



262 4 3 26 26 22 16



5 13 13



7 10 75 37 36 2 45 9



17 26 19 5



253 5 5 42 42



5 4 2 2 2



51 11 1 157 109 43 5 45 23



Released alive Kept for bait Dis



Live Live Liv



e of the U.S. Gulf of Mexico vertical line reef fish fishery from January 2012 to December 2016.
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30,442 14,844 401 10,266 8,726 625 46 869 11,883 7,036
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1,584 154 48 124 59 42 23



201 105 44 157 97 60



1,835 46 5 53 14 31 8



24 36 1 30 15 2 13
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38 8 5 3 2
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4,254 473 120 536 306 93 1 136
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.,   )



425 Third Street SW, Suite 800  )



Washington, DC 20024,   )



      )



Plaintiff,  ) 


) Civil Action No.



v.      )



)



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT )



OF COMMERCE, )



1401 Constitution Avenue, NW )



Washington, DC 20230, )



  )     


   Defendant.  )



____________________________________)



COMPLAINT


 Plaintiff Judicial Watch, Inc. brings this action against Defendant U.S. Department of



Commerce to compel compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552



(“FOIA”).  As grounds therefor, Plaintiff alleges as follows:


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


 1. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B)



and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.


 2. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).


PARTIES



 3.  Plaintiff Judicial Watch, Inc. is a not-for-profit, educational organization



incorporated under the laws of the District of Columbia and headquartered at 425 Third Street



SW, Suite 800, Washington, DC 20024.  Plaintiff seeks to promote transparency, accountability,



and integrity in government and fidelity to the rule of law.  As part of its mission, Plaintiff



regularly requests records from federal agencies pursuant to FOIA.  Plaintiff analyzes the
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responses and disseminates its findings and the requested records to the American public to



inform them about “what their government is up to.”


 4. Defendant U.S. Department of Commerce is an agency of the United States



Government.  Defendant has possession, custody, and control of records to which Plaintiff seeks



access.  Defendant is headquartered at 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20230. 


STATEMENT OF FACTS


 5. On February 6, 2017 Plaintiff submitted a FOIA request to the National Oceanic



and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”), a component of Defendant, seeking the following:


Any and all records of communications between NOAA scientist



Thomas Karl and Director of the Office of Science and



Technology Policy John Holdren. 


 


The timeframe of the request was identified as “January 20, 2009 through January 20, 2017.”



The request was submitted by certified mail.


 6. According to U.S. Postal Service records, the request was received by NOAA on



February 7, 2017.


7. NOAA confirmed that it received the request on February 8, 2017, assigning the



request Tracking Number DOC-NOAA-2017-000580. 


 8. As of the date of this Complaint, Defendant has failed to: (i) produce the



requested records or demonstrate that the requested records are lawfully exempt from



production; (ii) notify Plaintiff of the scope of any responsive records Defendant intends to



produce or withhold and the reasons for any withholdings; or (iii) inform Plaintiff that it may



appeal any adequately specific, adverse determination. 
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COUNT I


Violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552



 9. Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1 through 8 as if fully stated herein.


 10. Plaintiff is being irreparably harmed by reason of Defendant’s violation of FOIA,



and Plaintiff will continue to be irreparably harmed unless Defendant is compelled to comply



with FOIA.


11. To trigger FOIA’s administrative exhaustion requirement, Defendant was



required to determine whether to comply with Plaintiff’s request by March 9, 2017 at the latest. 


At a minimum, Defendant was required to: (i) gather and review the requested documents; (ii)



determine and communicate to Plaintiff the scope of any responsive records Defendant intended



to produce or withhold and the reasons for any withholdings; and (iii) inform Plaintiff that it may



appeal any adequately specific, adverse determination.  See, e.g., Citizens for Responsibility and


Ethics in Washington v. Federal Election Commission, 711 F.3d 180, 188-89 (D.C. Cir. 2013). 


12.  Because Defendant failed to determine whether to comply with Plaintiff’s request



within the time period required by FOIA, Plaintiff is deemed to have exhausted its administrative



appeal remedies.  5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court: (1) order Defendant to



conduct searches for any and all records responsive to Plaintiff’s FOIA request and demonstrate



that it employed search methods reasonably likely to lead to the discovery of records responsive



to Plaintiff’s FOIA request; (2) order Defendant to produce, by a date certain, any and all non-


exempt records to Plaintiff’s FOIA request and a Vaughn index of any responsive records



withheld under claim of exemption; (3) enjoin Defendant from continuing to withhold any and



all non-exempt records responsive to Plaintiff’s FOIA request; (4) grant Plaintiff an award of
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attorneys’ fees and other litigation costs reasonably incurred in this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E); and (5) grant Plaintiff such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 


Dated:  March 27, 2017     Respectfully submitted,


         s/ Chris Fedeli  


        Chris Fedeli


        D.C. Bar No. 472919 


        JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.
        425 Third Street SW, Suite 800


        Washington, DC 20024


        (202) 646-5172


        Counsel for Plaintiff
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


ANIMAL WELFARE INSTITUTE    )



900 Pennsylvania Avenue, SE   )



Washington, D.C. 20003,    )



        )



    Plaintiff,    ) 


   v.     ) Civ. No. 


        )



NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC  )



ADMINISTRATION,      )



 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Room 5128  )



 Washington, D.C.  20230    )



        )



   and     )



        )



NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE,  )



 1315 East-West Highway    )



 Silver Spring, MD  20910,    )



        )



    Defendants.   )



________________________________________________)



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 


1. The Animal Welfare Institute brings this action against defendants National


Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and National Marine Fisheries Service for violations


of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 (“FOIA”).


PARTIES



2. Plaintiff Animal Welfare Institute (“AWI”) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization



that seeks to protect animals from human inflicted suffering.  In particular, AWI has advocated



for the protection of whales and other marine life from life from human activities such as


harmful fishing practices, hunting, underwater noise production, and inhumane practices


resulting from captive maintenance for purposes of public display and scientific research.  AWI



is the requester of the records at issue.
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3. Defendant National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) is an



agency of the federal government within the U.S. Department of Commerce that focuses on the



conditions of the oceans and the atmosphere, including marine wildlife.


4. Defendant National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) is an agency of the



federal government within NOAA that has jurisdiction over whales under the Marine Mammal


Protection Act (“MMPA”), 16 U.S.C. §§ 1361 - 1423h, and is in possession of the records


requested by AWI.


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


5. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


FACTS GIVING RISE TO PLAINTIFF’S CLAIM


A. FOIA Requirements


7. The purpose of FOIA is to “pierce the veil of administrative secrecy and to open



agency action to the light of public scrutiny.”  Public Citizen, Inc. v. Office of Management and



Budget, 598 F.3d 865, 869 (D.C. Cir. 2010) (quotations omitted).  In enacting FOIA, Congress


intended the primary objective of the Act to be the full disclosure of federal agency records so



long as information is not exempted by clearly delineated statutory language.  Id.


8. FOIA establishes a broad right of public access to federal agency records, subject


only to nine delineated exemptions.  5 U.S.C. § 552(b).  “Each agency, upon any request” for



enumerated records must “determine within 20 days (excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and legal


holidays) after the receipt of any such request whether to comply with such request and shall


immediately notify the person making such a request” of the “determination and the reasons


therefor . . . .”  Id. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).  A requester “shall be deemed to have exhausted [its]
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administrative remedies”—and hence may file suit under the Act’s citizen suit provision—“with



respect to [a] request if the agency fails to comply with the . . . time limit” set forth in the statute



for a substantive response.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


9. The federal regulations implementing FOIA for NOAA and NMFS are located at


15 C.F.R. § 4.1, et seq.  15 C.F.R. § 4.6 codifies the requirement that NOAA/NMFS respond



within 20 working days of receiving a FOIA request with a determination of compliance. 


B. The Public Interest Need for the Documents Subject to the FOIA Request


10. In 2013, the documentary film Blackfish drew public attention to the plight of



Tilikum, an orca held in captivity by SeaWorld Parks & Entertainment (“SeaWorld”), and other



orcas now maintained in aquariums and theme parks around the world.  Blackfish set off a strong



negative public reaction to SeaWorld and the conditions under which orcas are held in captivity.


11. On March 8, 2016, SeaWorld released a video on its website describing Tilikum’s


declining health and indicating that he was not expected to survive.


12. Beginning in October 2016, the People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals


(“PETA”) initiated the first of what would be several meetings and communications with



NOAA/NMFS regarding Tilikum.  AWI joined this effort by December 2016.  In anticipation of



Tilikum’s death, NOAA/NMFS was presented with a draft legal opinion explaining why the



1992 MMPA permit authorizing the importation of Tilikum requires SeaWorld to submit to



NOAA/NMFS the necropsy report and clinical history for Tilikum in the event of his death.  In



these meetings and communications, and through the draft legal opinion, AWI (with PETA)



sought NOAA/NMFS input and comments on the applicability of the necropsy and clinical


history permit requirement. 
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13. In the following months, AWI also presented its views on the necropsy and



clinical history requirements of MMPA permits to the other federal agencies with jurisdiction



over marine mammals ─ the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“FWS”), the Marine Mammal


Commission (“MMC”), and the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Animal and Plant Health



Inspection Service (“APHIS”).
1


14. In these agency meetings and communications, AWI repeatedly stressed the



importance of necropsy reports and clinical histories for purposes of scientific research, medical


care (including for free-ranging, stranded individuals), animal husbandry, and public education,



and demonstrated that the benefits resulting from this information applied to whales held both in



captivity and in the wild. 


15. In these meetings and communications, NOAA/NMFS never took a position on



whether SeaWorld had to comply with the necropsy and clinical history requirements of



Tilikum’s permit. 


16. Tilikum died on January 6, 2017 at SeaWorld’s Orlando facility.  AWI and other



animal welfare organizations immediately notified NOAA/NMFS that Tilikum’s MMPA permit


required SeaWorld to submit the necropsy and clinical history report within 30 days.  Based on



information and belief, SeaWorld never submitted the necropsy and clinical history report


required by the permit to NOAA/NMFS.


17. On March 10, 2017, NOAA/NMFS responded to the animal welfare



organizations’ notice with an email stating that it was willing to meet to discuss the issue but that


it had concluded that the necropsy and clinical history provisions of Tilikum’s permit had been



1
 Under the MMPA, NOAA/NMFS has jurisdiction over whales, dolphins and seals.  FWS has jurisdiction over


polar bears, manatees, walrus and sea otters.  16 U.S.C. § 1362(12)(A).  The MMC serves in an independent



advisory and oversight role.  Id. §§ 1401-1407.  APHIS jurisdiction is not under the MMPA but applies to marine


mammals in certain captive maintenance facilities under the Animal Welfare Act.  7 U.S.C. §§ 2131-2159.
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extinguished by amendments to the MMPA in 1994 and that “the legal analysis supporting this


determination is exempt from disclosure under the attorney-client privilege, and we will not be



discussing it in any detail at the meeting.”  Thus, after months of effort to engage NOAA/NMFS


in a collaborative dialogue regarding the permit requirements for SeaWorld to release Tilikum’s


health records, AWI and the other organizations had no explanation from NOAA/NMFS for the



legal conclusion, contrary to the plain language of the permit, that the necropsy and clinical


history requirement did not apply and were told that none would be provided. 


18. AWI contacted SeaWorld directly by email on March 25, 2017 asking for



voluntary release of Tilikum’s records.  SeaWorld refused to do so in an April 13, 2017 email. 


Five animal welfare organizations sent a letter to SeaWorld on August 8, 2017, again asking for



voluntary compliance.  SeaWorld has not replied and continues to withhold the documents.



19. On July 24, 2017, Tilikum’s granddaughter Kyara died at SeaWorld’s San



Antonio facility.  The draft legal opinion previously provided to NOAA/NMFS confirmed that


Kyara was covered by the necropsy and clinical history provision of Tilikum’s permit.



20. On July 31, 2017, AWI and other animal welfare organizations wrote to



NOAA/NMFS asking for enforcement of the necropsy and clinical history provision of



Tilikum’s permit for Kyara’s records.  Counsel to AWI submitted a revised version of the draft


legal opinion supporting this conclusion to NOAA/NMFS on August 14, 2017. 


21. NOAA/NMFS responded on September 7, 2017, simply restating its March 10,



2017 email message that the permit had been extinguished by the 1994 MMPA amendments.



22. On August 15, 2017, Kasatka, an orca held at SeaWorld’s San Diego facility, was


euthanized due to a bacterial infection.  Kasatka’s 1978 MMPA permit included a necropsy and



clinical history requirement.  AWI, and the other organizations promptly requested
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NOAA/NMFS to enforce the permit, by letter dated August 25, 2017, and by an updated version



of the legal opinion, by letter from counsel dated August 30, 2017. 


23. By letter dated October 18, 2017, NOAA/NMFS issued the same response as in



its March 10, 2017 email on Tilikum’s death and its September 7, 2017 letter on Kyara’s death,



stating that the necropsy and clinical history requirement in Kasatka’s permit had been



extinguished.  Again, NOAA/NMFS provided no explanation for its legal conclusion. 


24. After the death of three SeaWorld orcas over a seven-month period,



NOAA/NMFS has refused to release or disclose the legal rationale for its conclusion that


SeaWorld can ignore clearly stated permit requirements and withhold information that would



shed light on the cause of death and medical condition of these whales during their lives in



captivity and benefit science and marine mammal husbandry, stranding response, and medical


care.  SeaWorld refuses to release the whales’ clinical histories or necropsy reports. 


C. The AWI FOIA Request 


25. By letters sent by email on September 29, 2017, AWI submitted FOIA requests to



NOAA/NMFS, FWS, and MMC for all documents from January 1, 2017 to May 1, 2017



regarding NMFS’ March 10, 2017 determination that the necropsy and clinical history



requirements of Public Display Permit No. 774 for Tilikum were extinguished by the 1994



MMPA amendments.  Exhibit 1, Declaration of Donald C. Baur, dated January 8, 2018 (“Baur



Decl.”) at ¶ 2, Attachment A.  On the same date, AWI submitted a FOIA request to APHIS,



asking for “all requests that APHIS has submitted since January 1, 1994 under 9 C.F.R. §



3.110(g) requesting necropsy records for marine mammals that have died in captivity, and all


necropsy records that APHIS has received in response to those requests.” 
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26. Under FOIA, the deadline for agency response to the requests was October 30,



2017. 


27. By letter to AWI dated October 5, 2017, APHIS’s FOIA Director confirmed



receipt of the FOIA request.  The letter identified an anticipated response date of October 30,



2017.  On December 8, 2017, APHIS responded to AWI’s FOIA request.
2


28. By voice message on October 4, 2017, the MMC confirmed receipt of AWI’s


FOIA request.  In a letter sent by email, dated December 18, 2017, Michael L. Gosliner, MMC


General Counsel, responded to the FOIA request with a partial release of documents.  In the



MMC response letter, Mr. Gosliner stated:


I am sympathetic to the position that your organization finds itself in ─ the



responsible agency (NMFS) has given you its legal conclusion that the 1994



amendments to the MMPA extinguished the permit terms and conditions related



to necropsies and clinical histories, but has declined to provide you with its


rationale for this conclusion.  I can see where that agency would not want to share



its draft legal analysis outside of the government, but once a conclusion has been



reached, its final position no longer is pre-decisional.
3


The MMC also stated that it could not release its own documents that would shed light on the



NOAA/NMFS legal position without concurrence from NOAA/NMFS.
4


2
 APHIS confirmed that, since 1994, it has not required licensees to submit necropsy reports for any marine


mammals.  As a result, it had no documents to release.
3
 The MMC’s FOIA response indicates that NOAA/NMFS had not completed its consultation with its sister


agencies on the legal question at the time it announced its conclusion on March 10, 2017.
4
 The MMC request revealed the limited nature of the AWI request, by identifying only nine responsive documents



withheld based on the NOAA/NMFS position.  The MMC letter also confirmed that it had coordinated its response


“with the other agencies,” indicating that NOAA/NMFS is aware of the FOIA request.
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29. By email on September 29, 2017, FWS’s Headquarters FOIA Office



acknowledged receipt of the FOIA request.  The email stated that the request was forwarded to



the Division of Management Authority for processing. 


30. The initial FOIA request letter to NMFS was confirmed delivered to



NOAA/NMFS by AWI email on September 29, 2017.  A follow-up letter was also sent by email


to NMFS on December 4, 2017, asking for a response by December 15, 2017.  Baur Decl. ¶ 3,



Attachment B.  Finally, on December 22, 2017, a copy of the December 4 letter was sent again



by email, with a specific request that NMFS acknowledge receipt.  Id. ¶ 4, Attachment C.



31. As of the date of this complaint, NOAA/NMFS has never even acknowledged



receipt of the September 29, 2017 request, the December 4, 2017 follow-up letter, or the



December 22, 2017 email confirmation request.


32. To date, more than three months after AWI’s initial letter, and more than two



months after the statutory deadline, NOAA/NMFS has not responded in any way to the



September 29, 2017 AWI FOIA request.  Nor has the Agency provided AWI with any



explanation for the ongoing delay.  The other agencies have either responded in full (APHIS and



MMC) or acknowledged receipt and confirmed that review is underway (FWS).



CLAIM FOR RELIEF


33. AWI has a statutory right to the requested records.  NOAA/NMFS, in violation of



FOIA and AWI’s rights under FOIA, has failed to provide the records, or any substantive



determination regarding them, by the mandatory deadline set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). 


REQUESTED RELIEF


34. AWI respectfully requests that the Court grant the following relief:


a. Declare that NMFS is in violation of FOIA;







9



138041402.3


b. Enjoin NMFS from continuing to withhold the requested records and order



NMFS immediately to release the records in full to AWI;


c. Make a written finding pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(F)(i) that the



“circumstances surrounding the withholding raise questions whether



agency personnel acted arbitrarily or capriciously with respect to the



withholding . . . .”;


d. Award Plaintiff its attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E);


e. Award any other relief this Court finds just and proper. 


Dated this 9th day of January, 2018


Respectfully submitted,


/s/Donald C. Baur  


Donald C. Baur


D.C. Bar No. 393621


Perkins Coie LLP


700 13th Street, NW, Suite 600



Washington, D.C.  20005-3960



(202) 654-6200


DBaur@perkinscoie.com


Sunny Tsou


(pro hac vice application pending)


Perkins Coie LLP


505 Howard Street


Suite 1000



San Francisco, CA 94105



(415) 344-7000


STsou@perkinscoie.com


Counsel for Plaintiff
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;


Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 40   Filed 07/13/18   Page 1 of 8








STIP RE SETTLEMENT


CASE NO. 18-CV-888 JSC 


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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Organization 


Open Requests 


Previous Month End Incoming Requests Closed Requests 


Open Requests Current 


Month End Backlog 21-120 days Backlog 121-364 days 


Backlog 365 or 


more days 


Total


Backlog



AGO 11 4 0 13 8 1 0 9



CAO 3 0 0 4 2 1 0 3



CFO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO/FOIA 6 2 0 7 6 0 0 6



GC 6 0 0 7 6 0 0 6



IA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



LA 3 0 0 3 2 0 0 2



NESDIS 3 1 0 3 1 0 0 1



NMFS 60 14 12 73 22 19 3 44



NOS 12 1 0 15 7 5 0 12



NWS 7 0 1 7 3 3 0 6



OAR 13 0 5 9 5 2 0 7



OMAO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



OC 4 0 0 4 1 2 0 3



PPI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



USEC 6 2 0 8 2 4 0 6



WFMO 5 0 0 5 3 0 0 3



NOAA Totals 139 24 18 158 68 37 3 108
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Organization 


Open Requests 


Previous Month End Incoming Requests Closed Requests 


Open Requests Current 


Month End Backlog 21-120 days Backlog 121-364 days 


Backlog 365 or 


more days 


Total


Backlog



AGO 11 4 0 13 8 1 0 9



CAO 3 0 0 4 2 1 0 3



CFO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO/FOIA 6 2 0 7 6 0 0 6



GC 6 0 0 7 6 0 0 6



IA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



LA 3 0 0 3 2 0 0 2



NESDIS 3 1 0 3 1 0 0 1



NMFS 60 14 12 73 22 19 3 44



NOS 12 1 0 15 7 5 0 12



NWS 7 0 1 7 3 3 0 6



OAR 13 0 5 9 5 2 0 7



OMAO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



OC 4 0 0 4 1 2 0 3



PPI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



USEC 6 2 0 8 2 4 0 6



WFMO 5 0 0 5 3 0 0 3



NOAA Totals 139 24 18 158 68 37 3 108
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postmaster@DOCGOV.onmicrosoft.com



From: postmaster@DOCGOV.onmicrosoft.com



Sent: Wednesday, July 18, 2018 7:49 AM



To: Mark.Graff@noaa.gov



Subject: Undeliverable: June Monthly FOIA Report



Attachments: details.txt; June Monthly FOIA Report



Your message to cholmes@doc.gov couldn't be delivered.



cholmes wasn't found at doc.gov.



Mark.GraffMark.Graff Office 365Office 365 cholmescholmes

Action Required Recipient



Unknown To address



How to Fix It

The address may be misspelled or may not exist. Try one or more of the

following:



Send the message again following these steps: In Outlook, open this

non-delivery report (NDR) and choose Send Again from the

Report ribbon. In Outlook on the web, select this NDR, then select

the link "To send this message again, click here." Then delete and

retype the entire recipient address. If prompted with an Auto-
Complete List suggestion don't select it. After typing the complete

address, click Send.

Contact the recipient (by phone, for example) to check that the

address exists and is correct.

The recipient may have set up email forwarding to an incorrect

address. Ask them to check that any forwarding they've set up is

working correctly.

Clear the recipient Auto-Complete List in Outlook or Outlook on the

web by following the steps in this article: Fix email delivery issues

for error code 5.1 .1 0 in Office 365, and then send the message

again. Retype the entire recipient address before selecting Send.



If the problem continues, forward this message to your email admin. If

you're an email admin, refer to the More Info for Email Admins section

below.



Was this helpful? Send feedback to Microsoft.



More Info for Email Admins

Status code: 550 5.1.10


This error occurs because the sender sent a message to an email address hosted by Office



365 but the address is incorrect or doesn't exist at the destination domain. The error is



reported by the recipient domain's email server, but most often it must be fixed by the



person who sent the message. If the steps in the How to Fix It section above don't fix



the problem, and you're the email admin for the recipient, try one or more of the



following:



The email address exists and is correct - Confirm that the recipient address exists, is



correct, and is accepting messages.



Synchronize your directories - If you have a hybrid environment and are using



directory synchronization make sure the recipient's email address is synced correctly in



both Office 365 and in your on-premises directory.



Errant forwarding rule - Check for forwarding rules that aren't behaving as expected.



Forwarding can be set up by an admin via mail flow rules or mailbox forwarding address



settings, or by the recipient via the Inbox Rules feature.




https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=532972

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=525921





Errant forwarding rule - Check for forwarding rules that aren't behaving as expected.



Forwarding can be set up by an admin via mail flow rules or mailbox forwarding address



settings, or by the recipient via the Inbox Rules feature.



Recipient has a valid license - Make sure the recipient has an Office 365 license



assigned to them. The recipient's email admin can use the Office 365 admin center to



assign a license (Users > Active Users > select the recipient > Assigned License > Edit).



Mail flow settings and MX records are not correct - Misconfigured mail flow or MX



record settings can cause this error. Check your Office 365 mail flow settings to make



sure your domain and any mail flow connectors are set up correctly. Also, work with your



domain registrar to make sure the MX records for your domain are configured correctly.



For more information and additional tips to fix this issue, see Fix email delivery issues for



error code 5.1 .1 0 in Office 365.



Original Message Details

Created Date: 7/1 8/201 8 1 1 :48:33 AM



Sender Address: Mark.Graff@noaa.gov



Recipient Address: cholmes@doc.gov



Subject: June Monthly FOIA Report



Error Details

Reported error: 550 5.1.10 RESOLVER.ADR.RecipientNotFound; Recipient



cholmes@doc.gov not found by SMTP address lookup



DSN generated by: BN6PR09MB21 29.namprd09.prod.outlook.com



Message Hops



HOP TIME (UTC) FROM TO WITH RELAY TIME



1 
7/18/2018

11:48:33 
AM



2002:ab3:78a:0:0:0:0:0 HTTP *



2 
7/18/2018

11:49:19

AM



mail-lj1-x230.google.com SMTP 46 sec



3 
7/18/2018

11:49:19 
AM



mail-lj1-x230.google.com DM2GCC01FT008.mail.protection.outlook.com

Microsoft SMTP Server (version=TLS1_2,

cipher=TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA_P256)



*



4

7/18/2018

11:49:19

AM



DM2GCC01FT008.eop-
gcc01.prod.protection.outlook.com



BL2PR09CA0079.outlook.office365.com

Microsoft SMTP Server (version=TLS1_2,

cipher=TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA384)



*



5 
7/18/2018

11:49:20 
AM



BL2PR09CA0079.namprd09.prod.outlook.com BN6PR09MB2129.namprd09.prod.outlook.com

Microsoft SMTP Server (version=TLS1_2,

cipher=TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384)



1 sec



Original Message Headers

Received:  from BL2PR09CA0079. namprd09. prod. outlook. com



 (2a01: 111: e400: c744: : 47)  by BN6PR09MB2129. namprd09. prod. outlook. com



 (2603: 10b6: 404: 7f: : 17)  with Microsoft SMTP Server (version=TLS1_2,



 cipher=TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384)  id 15. 20. 973. 16;  Wed,  18 Jul



 2018 11: 49: 20 +0000



Received:  from DM2GCC01FT008. eop-gcc01. prod. protection. outlook. com



 (2a01: 111: f400: 7d01: : 207)  by BL2PR09CA0079. outlook. office365. com



 (2a01: 111: e400: c744: : 47)  with Microsoft SMTP Server (version=TLS1_2,



 cipher=TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA384)  id 15. 20. 973. 16 via Frontend



 Transport;  Wed,  18 Jul 2018 11: 49: 19 +0000



Authentication-Results:  spf=pass (sender IP is 2a00: 1450: 4864: 20: : 230)



 smtp. mailfrom=noaa. gov;  doc. gov;  dkim=pass (signature was verified)



 header. d=noaa. gov; doc. gov;  dmarc=pass action=none header. from=noaa. gov;



Received-SPF:  Pass (protection. outlook. com:  domain of noaa. gov designates



 2a00: 1450: 4864: 20: : 230 as permitted sender)  receiver=protection. outlook. com;



 client-ip=2a00: 1450: 4864: 20: : 230;  helo=mail-lj 1-x230. google. com;



Received:  from mail-lj 1-x230. google. com (2a00: 1450: 4864: 20: : 230)  by



 DM2GCC01FT008. mail. protection. outlook. com (2a01: 111: e400: 7d01: : 449)  with



 Microsoft SMTP Server (version=TLS1_2,



 cipher=TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_CBC_SHA_P256)  id 15. 20. 952. 17 via Frontend



 Transport;  Wed,  18 Jul 2018 11: 49: 19 +0000



Received:  by mail-lj 1-x230. google. com with SMTP id l15-v6so3833870lj i. 6



        for <cholmes@doc. gov>;  Wed,  18 Jul 2018 04: 49: 19 -0700 (PDT)



DKIM-Signature:  v=1;  a=rsa-sha256;  c=relaxed/relaxed;




https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=532972





        d=noaa. gov;  s=google;



        h=mime-version: from: date: message-id: subj ect: to: cc;



        bh=AIX39xGOACnhFm7hokD/Iqpd1Vz+9OHxcaKbDbDcrdc=;



        b=j OvaHlNNmqbxqBmu/4iW41fxh7yMWVQSxPmzZJbjd/2WSOog4x7RMcbfj cB2b8hUt0



         qmfOs6FS/msf1GPVxkqGev5ofsGGUxwLzZVZ3LiwntdJSng/L7+JXrI+SRNufIRFulqk



         HfVFWReh1Z3aWDSb9Ilk/znJvjPZr937mpBYeJ9AmtIv4UqZg0v0suTm6hqiu4VpSrC6



         Oo6j 7HU1lcv4qttn2iPBBnaQnXTpWsJMdHa7imiv7pvl/4KG1GVLu1gFFTtPh0Udhf82



         ZvHQZMTKq0jH1KOWgu7dbKEF2Aqb+yqVMEdYmvNhgONaO5sMHkXd6KSL6G2HpToR4vJo



         wYbA==



X-Google-DKIM-Signature:  v=1;  a=rsa-sha256;  c=relaxed/relaxed;



        d=1e100. net;  s=20161025;



        h=x-gm-message-state: mime-version: from: date: message-id: subj ect: to: cc;



        bh=AIX39xGOACnhFm7hokD/Iqpd1Vz+9OHxcaKbDbDcrdc=;



        b=j 3b8JaDi5INPSrqcaTHmY8oF2U0Wm1xINlxiNmsfDr+Z0Hyj BCSlI9yB1KmFxWpNXU



         nCfj 1Kvj ns5bLHpRrvUQqvkZfCzqwaHNgG3H5riYddnJ+8T/hqEOoaG3yw6iUk8Zj rIX



         1nshyH7wgUT9kSej hh+6w7bxamzCZCFvBcV4VLhznn2vrmCxjKj cGq5U/pEVF3D0IU/n



         KEdmkwX/TiTTWhJNDqkuVHSDqbdOfseIQG+6lknigktvO9Qg0uA1y7fkSjVkkU792xLs



         6qUkM5fqOiuyUiXCuKM2nyMQ/yaB3GTb7/1dLHLtSvwSvbTxZopeUTukxsZ/zRjRiH/f



         TtxQ==



X-Gm-Message-State:  AOUpUlGmcz22dCn2+p89h1y7jdPKcneBDapzBsULetD/ulY4iQMoVUI7



97o4Vj l68EFaVq47EB2vOsSs+ybj LYW/c7rUdWKW7Q==



X-Google-Smtp-Source:  AAOMgpdl6OlKLYSnj 2L8l/gFeklLUVWG6swunW/Rb/kWd2rCOpyoPiK7vj ebquF/0rL6QAAup7KwuxeJWar0VA5sgHw=



X-Received:  by 2002: a2e: 4951: :  with SMTP id b17-v6mr4301091ljd. 67. 1531914555231;



 Wed,  18 Jul 2018 04: 49: 15 -0700 (PDT)



MIME-Version:  1. 0



Received:  by 2002: ab3: 78a: 0: 0: 0: 0: 0 with HTTP;  Wed,  18 Jul 2018 04: 48: 33 -0700 (PDT)



From:  Mark Graff - NOAA Federal <mark. graff@noaa. gov>Date:  Wed,  18 Jul 2018 07: 48: 33 -0400



Message-ID:  <CAFHw6A9bmo24_pyovykJS=7jMYDgteDfDtDR=0yXQqv6_19vKg@mail. gmail. com>Subj ect:  June Monthly FOIA Report



To:  Shawn Puyear - NOAA Federal <shawn. puyear@noaa. gov>,  bbearden@theambitgroup. com, 



Annie Thomson - NOAA Federal <annie. thomson@noaa. gov>,  Trenika Tapscott <trenika. tapscott@noaa. gov>, 



Stephen Lipps - NOAA Federal <stephen. lipps@noaa. gov>, 



John Almeida - NOAA Federal <j ohn. almeida@noaa. gov>,  "Holmes,  Colin" <cholmes@doc. gov>, 



Robert Moller - NOAA Federal <robert. moller@noaa. gov>, 



Scott Smullen - NOAA Federal <scott. smullen@noaa. gov>,  Jeff Dillen - NOAA Federal <j eff. dillen@noaa. gov>, 



Kristen Gustafson - NOAA Federal <kristen. l. gustafson@noaa. gov>, 



Stephanie Altman - NOAA Federal <stephanie. altman@noaa. gov>, 



Jackie Rolleri - NOAA Federal <j ackie. rolleri@noaa. gov>, 



Kimberly Katzenbarger - NOAA FEDERAL <kimberly. katzenbarger@noaa. gov>, 



Mike Devany - NOAA Federal <mike. devany@noaa. gov>, 



Kelly Quickle - NOAA Federal <kelly. quickle@noaa. gov>, 



Kelly Turner - NOAA Federal <kelly. turner@noaa. gov>, 



Zachary Goldstein - NOAA Federal <zachary. goldstein@noaa. gov>, 



Althea Lee - NOAA Federal <althea. lee@noaa. gov>, 



Denise Hamilton - NOAA Federal <Denise. Hamilton@noaa. gov>, 



Elizabeth McLanahan - NOAA Federal <elizabeth. mclanahan@noaa. gov>, 



Jerome McNamara - NOAA Federal <Jerome. McNamara@noaa. gov>, 



Karen Robin - NOAA Federal <karen. robin@noaa. gov>, 



Lesa Jeanpierre - NOAA Federal <lesa. j eanpierre@noaa. gov>, 



Nkolika Ndubisi - NOAA Federal <nkolika. ndubisi@noaa. gov>, 



NMFS FOIA1 - NOAA Service Account <nmfs. foia1@noaa. gov>,  OMAO FOIA <omao. foia@noaa. gov>, 



Tej uana Michael - NOAA Federal <Tejuana. Hickerson@noaa. gov>, 



James Crocker - NOAA Federal <j ames. m. crocker@noaa. gov>, 



Beverly Hernandez - NOAA Affiliate <beverly. hernandez@noaa. gov>, 



Mary Ann Whitmeyer - NOAA Federal <mary. ann. whitmeyer@noaa. gov>, 



Shem Yusuf - NOAA Federal <shem. s. yusuf@noaa. gov>,  _NOAA Assistant CIOs <assistant. cios@noaa. gov>, 



Gregory Raymond - NOAA Federal <gregory. raymond@noaa. gov>, 



Kathryn Kempton - NOAA Federal <kathryn. kempton@noaa. gov>, 



James LeDuc - NOAA Federal <j ames. leduc@noaa. gov>, 



Velna Bullock - NOAA Federal <velna. l. bullock@noaa. gov>, 



Lanetta Gray - NOAA Federal <lanetta. gray@noaa. gov>, 



Corinne Brown - NOAA Federal <corinne. brown@noaa. gov>,  Lisa Love - NOAA Federal <lisa. love@noaa. gov>, 



Karla Burch-White - NOAA Affiliate <karla. burch-white@noaa. gov>, 



Maria Williams - NOAA Federal <maria. williams@noaa. gov>, 



Douglas Perry - NOAA Federal <Douglas. A. Perry@noaa. gov>, 



Bruce Gibbs - NOAA Federal <Bruce. T. Gibbs@noaa. gov>, 



Roxie Allison-Holman - NOAA Federal <Roxie. Allison-Holman@noaa. gov>, 



Lindsey Averill - NOAA Affiliate <lindsey. p. averill@noaa. gov>, 



Steven Goodman - NOAA Federal <Steven. Goodman@noaa. gov>, 



Benjamin Friedman - NOAA Federal <benj amin. friedman@noaa. gov>,  Robert Hogan <robert. j . hogan@noaa. gov>, 



Symone Stone - NOAA Affiliate <symone. stone@noaa. gov>,  _DUS Staff <duso. staff@noaa. gov>, 



Tanya Dobrzynski - NOAA Federal <tanya. dobrzynski@noaa. gov>, 



Edward J Vandenameele - NOAA Federal <edward. j . vandenameele@noaa. gov>, 



Shepherd Grimes - NOAA Federal <shepherd. grimes@noaa. gov>, 



Heather Book - NOAA Federal <heather. book@noaa. gov>,  Michelle Reed <Michelle. Reed@noaa. gov>CC:  Mark Graff - NOAA Federal <mark



. graff@noaa. gov>, 



Dennis Morgan - NOAA Federal <dennis. morgan@noaa. gov>, 



Robert Swisher - NOAA Federal <robert. swisher@noaa. gov>, 



Lola Stith - NOAA Affiliate <lola. m. stith@noaa. gov>,  Rodney Vieira - NOAA Federal <rod. vieira@noaa. gov>, 



Jolie Harrison - NOAA Federal <j olie. harrison@noaa. gov>, 



"Bogomolny,  Michael (Federal) " <MBogomolny@doc. gov>, 



Ruth Ann Lowery - NOAA Federal <ruthann. lowery@noaa. gov>, 



David Bedell - NOAA Federal <David. Bedell@noaa. gov>,  Ann Madden - NOAA Federal <Ann. Madden@noaa. gov>, 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


ANIMAL WELFARE INSTITUTE    )



900 Pennsylvania Avenue, SE   )



Washington, D.C. 20003,    )



        )



    Plaintiff,    ) 


   v.     ) Civ. No. 


        )



NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC  )



ADMINISTRATION,      )



 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Room 5128  )



 Washington, D.C.  20230    )



        )



   and     )



        )



NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE,  )



 1315 East-West Highway    )



 Silver Spring, MD  20910,    )



        )



    Defendants.   )



________________________________________________)



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 


1. The Animal Welfare Institute brings this action against defendants National


Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration and National Marine Fisheries Service for violations


of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 (“FOIA”).


PARTIES



2. Plaintiff Animal Welfare Institute (“AWI”) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization



that seeks to protect animals from human inflicted suffering.  In particular, AWI has advocated



for the protection of whales and other marine life from life from human activities such as


harmful fishing practices, hunting, underwater noise production, and inhumane practices


resulting from captive maintenance for purposes of public display and scientific research.  AWI



is the requester of the records at issue.
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3. Defendant National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) is an



agency of the federal government within the U.S. Department of Commerce that focuses on the



conditions of the oceans and the atmosphere, including marine wildlife.


4. Defendant National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) is an agency of the



federal government within NOAA that has jurisdiction over whales under the Marine Mammal


Protection Act (“MMPA”), 16 U.S.C. §§ 1361 - 1423h, and is in possession of the records


requested by AWI.


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


5. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).


FACTS GIVING RISE TO PLAINTIFF’S CLAIM


A. FOIA Requirements


7. The purpose of FOIA is to “pierce the veil of administrative secrecy and to open



agency action to the light of public scrutiny.”  Public Citizen, Inc. v. Office of Management and



Budget, 598 F.3d 865, 869 (D.C. Cir. 2010) (quotations omitted).  In enacting FOIA, Congress


intended the primary objective of the Act to be the full disclosure of federal agency records so



long as information is not exempted by clearly delineated statutory language.  Id.


8. FOIA establishes a broad right of public access to federal agency records, subject


only to nine delineated exemptions.  5 U.S.C. § 552(b).  “Each agency, upon any request” for



enumerated records must “determine within 20 days (excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and legal


holidays) after the receipt of any such request whether to comply with such request and shall


immediately notify the person making such a request” of the “determination and the reasons


therefor . . . .”  Id. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).  A requester “shall be deemed to have exhausted [its]
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administrative remedies”—and hence may file suit under the Act’s citizen suit provision—“with



respect to [a] request if the agency fails to comply with the . . . time limit” set forth in the statute



for a substantive response.  Id. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


9. The federal regulations implementing FOIA for NOAA and NMFS are located at


15 C.F.R. § 4.1, et seq.  15 C.F.R. § 4.6 codifies the requirement that NOAA/NMFS respond



within 20 working days of receiving a FOIA request with a determination of compliance. 


B. The Public Interest Need for the Documents Subject to the FOIA Request


10. In 2013, the documentary film Blackfish drew public attention to the plight of



Tilikum, an orca held in captivity by SeaWorld Parks & Entertainment (“SeaWorld”), and other



orcas now maintained in aquariums and theme parks around the world.  Blackfish set off a strong



negative public reaction to SeaWorld and the conditions under which orcas are held in captivity.


11. On March 8, 2016, SeaWorld released a video on its website describing Tilikum’s


declining health and indicating that he was not expected to survive.


12. Beginning in October 2016, the People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals


(“PETA”) initiated the first of what would be several meetings and communications with



NOAA/NMFS regarding Tilikum.  AWI joined this effort by December 2016.  In anticipation of



Tilikum’s death, NOAA/NMFS was presented with a draft legal opinion explaining why the



1992 MMPA permit authorizing the importation of Tilikum requires SeaWorld to submit to



NOAA/NMFS the necropsy report and clinical history for Tilikum in the event of his death.  In



these meetings and communications, and through the draft legal opinion, AWI (with PETA)



sought NOAA/NMFS input and comments on the applicability of the necropsy and clinical


history permit requirement. 
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13. In the following months, AWI also presented its views on the necropsy and



clinical history requirements of MMPA permits to the other federal agencies with jurisdiction



over marine mammals ─ the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“FWS”), the Marine Mammal


Commission (“MMC”), and the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Animal and Plant Health



Inspection Service (“APHIS”).
1


14. In these agency meetings and communications, AWI repeatedly stressed the



importance of necropsy reports and clinical histories for purposes of scientific research, medical


care (including for free-ranging, stranded individuals), animal husbandry, and public education,



and demonstrated that the benefits resulting from this information applied to whales held both in



captivity and in the wild. 


15. In these meetings and communications, NOAA/NMFS never took a position on



whether SeaWorld had to comply with the necropsy and clinical history requirements of



Tilikum’s permit. 


16. Tilikum died on January 6, 2017 at SeaWorld’s Orlando facility.  AWI and other



animal welfare organizations immediately notified NOAA/NMFS that Tilikum’s MMPA permit


required SeaWorld to submit the necropsy and clinical history report within 30 days.  Based on



information and belief, SeaWorld never submitted the necropsy and clinical history report


required by the permit to NOAA/NMFS.


17. On March 10, 2017, NOAA/NMFS responded to the animal welfare



organizations’ notice with an email stating that it was willing to meet to discuss the issue but that


it had concluded that the necropsy and clinical history provisions of Tilikum’s permit had been



1
 Under the MMPA, NOAA/NMFS has jurisdiction over whales, dolphins and seals.  FWS has jurisdiction over


polar bears, manatees, walrus and sea otters.  16 U.S.C. § 1362(12)(A).  The MMC serves in an independent



advisory and oversight role.  Id. §§ 1401-1407.  APHIS jurisdiction is not under the MMPA but applies to marine


mammals in certain captive maintenance facilities under the Animal Welfare Act.  7 U.S.C. §§ 2131-2159.
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extinguished by amendments to the MMPA in 1994 and that “the legal analysis supporting this


determination is exempt from disclosure under the attorney-client privilege, and we will not be



discussing it in any detail at the meeting.”  Thus, after months of effort to engage NOAA/NMFS


in a collaborative dialogue regarding the permit requirements for SeaWorld to release Tilikum’s


health records, AWI and the other organizations had no explanation from NOAA/NMFS for the



legal conclusion, contrary to the plain language of the permit, that the necropsy and clinical


history requirement did not apply and were told that none would be provided. 


18. AWI contacted SeaWorld directly by email on March 25, 2017 asking for



voluntary release of Tilikum’s records.  SeaWorld refused to do so in an April 13, 2017 email. 


Five animal welfare organizations sent a letter to SeaWorld on August 8, 2017, again asking for



voluntary compliance.  SeaWorld has not replied and continues to withhold the documents.



19. On July 24, 2017, Tilikum’s granddaughter Kyara died at SeaWorld’s San



Antonio facility.  The draft legal opinion previously provided to NOAA/NMFS confirmed that


Kyara was covered by the necropsy and clinical history provision of Tilikum’s permit.



20. On July 31, 2017, AWI and other animal welfare organizations wrote to



NOAA/NMFS asking for enforcement of the necropsy and clinical history provision of



Tilikum’s permit for Kyara’s records.  Counsel to AWI submitted a revised version of the draft


legal opinion supporting this conclusion to NOAA/NMFS on August 14, 2017. 


21. NOAA/NMFS responded on September 7, 2017, simply restating its March 10,



2017 email message that the permit had been extinguished by the 1994 MMPA amendments.



22. On August 15, 2017, Kasatka, an orca held at SeaWorld’s San Diego facility, was


euthanized due to a bacterial infection.  Kasatka’s 1978 MMPA permit included a necropsy and



clinical history requirement.  AWI, and the other organizations promptly requested
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NOAA/NMFS to enforce the permit, by letter dated August 25, 2017, and by an updated version



of the legal opinion, by letter from counsel dated August 30, 2017. 


23. By letter dated October 18, 2017, NOAA/NMFS issued the same response as in



its March 10, 2017 email on Tilikum’s death and its September 7, 2017 letter on Kyara’s death,



stating that the necropsy and clinical history requirement in Kasatka’s permit had been



extinguished.  Again, NOAA/NMFS provided no explanation for its legal conclusion. 


24. After the death of three SeaWorld orcas over a seven-month period,



NOAA/NMFS has refused to release or disclose the legal rationale for its conclusion that


SeaWorld can ignore clearly stated permit requirements and withhold information that would



shed light on the cause of death and medical condition of these whales during their lives in



captivity and benefit science and marine mammal husbandry, stranding response, and medical


care.  SeaWorld refuses to release the whales’ clinical histories or necropsy reports. 


C. The AWI FOIA Request 


25. By letters sent by email on September 29, 2017, AWI submitted FOIA requests to



NOAA/NMFS, FWS, and MMC for all documents from January 1, 2017 to May 1, 2017



regarding NMFS’ March 10, 2017 determination that the necropsy and clinical history



requirements of Public Display Permit No. 774 for Tilikum were extinguished by the 1994



MMPA amendments.  Exhibit 1, Declaration of Donald C. Baur, dated January 8, 2018 (“Baur



Decl.”) at ¶ 2, Attachment A.  On the same date, AWI submitted a FOIA request to APHIS,



asking for “all requests that APHIS has submitted since January 1, 1994 under 9 C.F.R. §



3.110(g) requesting necropsy records for marine mammals that have died in captivity, and all


necropsy records that APHIS has received in response to those requests.” 







7



138041402.3


26. Under FOIA, the deadline for agency response to the requests was October 30,



2017. 


27. By letter to AWI dated October 5, 2017, APHIS’s FOIA Director confirmed



receipt of the FOIA request.  The letter identified an anticipated response date of October 30,



2017.  On December 8, 2017, APHIS responded to AWI’s FOIA request.
2


28. By voice message on October 4, 2017, the MMC confirmed receipt of AWI’s


FOIA request.  In a letter sent by email, dated December 18, 2017, Michael L. Gosliner, MMC


General Counsel, responded to the FOIA request with a partial release of documents.  In the



MMC response letter, Mr. Gosliner stated:


I am sympathetic to the position that your organization finds itself in ─ the



responsible agency (NMFS) has given you its legal conclusion that the 1994



amendments to the MMPA extinguished the permit terms and conditions related



to necropsies and clinical histories, but has declined to provide you with its


rationale for this conclusion.  I can see where that agency would not want to share



its draft legal analysis outside of the government, but once a conclusion has been



reached, its final position no longer is pre-decisional.
3


The MMC also stated that it could not release its own documents that would shed light on the



NOAA/NMFS legal position without concurrence from NOAA/NMFS.
4


2
 APHIS confirmed that, since 1994, it has not required licensees to submit necropsy reports for any marine


mammals.  As a result, it had no documents to release.
3
 The MMC’s FOIA response indicates that NOAA/NMFS had not completed its consultation with its sister


agencies on the legal question at the time it announced its conclusion on March 10, 2017.
4
 The MMC request revealed the limited nature of the AWI request, by identifying only nine responsive documents



withheld based on the NOAA/NMFS position.  The MMC letter also confirmed that it had coordinated its response


“with the other agencies,” indicating that NOAA/NMFS is aware of the FOIA request.
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29. By email on September 29, 2017, FWS’s Headquarters FOIA Office



acknowledged receipt of the FOIA request.  The email stated that the request was forwarded to



the Division of Management Authority for processing. 


30. The initial FOIA request letter to NMFS was confirmed delivered to



NOAA/NMFS by AWI email on September 29, 2017.  A follow-up letter was also sent by email


to NMFS on December 4, 2017, asking for a response by December 15, 2017.  Baur Decl. ¶ 3,



Attachment B.  Finally, on December 22, 2017, a copy of the December 4 letter was sent again



by email, with a specific request that NMFS acknowledge receipt.  Id. ¶ 4, Attachment C.



31. As of the date of this complaint, NOAA/NMFS has never even acknowledged



receipt of the September 29, 2017 request, the December 4, 2017 follow-up letter, or the



December 22, 2017 email confirmation request.


32. To date, more than three months after AWI’s initial letter, and more than two



months after the statutory deadline, NOAA/NMFS has not responded in any way to the



September 29, 2017 AWI FOIA request.  Nor has the Agency provided AWI with any



explanation for the ongoing delay.  The other agencies have either responded in full (APHIS and



MMC) or acknowledged receipt and confirmed that review is underway (FWS).



CLAIM FOR RELIEF


33. AWI has a statutory right to the requested records.  NOAA/NMFS, in violation of



FOIA and AWI’s rights under FOIA, has failed to provide the records, or any substantive



determination regarding them, by the mandatory deadline set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). 


REQUESTED RELIEF


34. AWI respectfully requests that the Court grant the following relief:


a. Declare that NMFS is in violation of FOIA;
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b. Enjoin NMFS from continuing to withhold the requested records and order



NMFS immediately to release the records in full to AWI;


c. Make a written finding pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(F)(i) that the



“circumstances surrounding the withholding raise questions whether



agency personnel acted arbitrarily or capriciously with respect to the



withholding . . . .”;


d. Award Plaintiff its attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E);


e. Award any other relief this Court finds just and proper. 


Dated this 9th day of January, 2018


Respectfully submitted,


/s/Donald C. Baur  


Donald C. Baur


D.C. Bar No. 393621


Perkins Coie LLP


700 13th Street, NW, Suite 600



Washington, D.C.  20005-3960



(202) 654-6200


DBaur@perkinscoie.com


Sunny Tsou


(pro hac vice application pending)


Perkins Coie LLP


505 Howard Street


Suite 1000



San Francisco, CA 94105



(415) 344-7000


STsou@perkinscoie.com


Counsel for Plaintiff
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NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE


UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION


ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS FOUNDATION, 


Plaintiff, 


v. 


NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE, 
 


Defendant. 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
)
)
)
)


CASE NO.  18-cv-888 JSC


STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND



DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE


Plaintiff Ecological Rights Foundation, and defendant, National Marine Fisheries Service



(“NMFS”), hereby enter into this Stipulation of Settlement and Dismissal with Prejudice (“Stipulation”),



as follows:


WHEREAS, plaintiff filed the above-captioned action under the Freedom of Information Act


(“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended, regarding the FOIA request submitted to defendant on



December 6, 2016, DOC NOAA-2017-000257 (the “FOIA Request”);


WHEREAS, the parties wish to avoid any further litigation and controversy and to settle and



compromise fully any and all claims and issues that have been raised, or could have been raised in this


action;
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Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Stipulation, and other



good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties stipulate as


follows:


1. The parties do hereby agree to settle and compromise each and every claim of any kind, whether



known or unknown, arising directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions that gave rise to the above-


captioned action under the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation. 


2. Defendant NMFS is a component of the United States Department of Commerce (“DOC”).  As


used in this Stipulation, “defendant” shall refer to DOC as well as its component, NMFS. 


3. Defendant agrees to (i) conduct a search of emails sent or received by NMFS Special Agent


Donald Tanner between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2014 for documents potentially responsive



to the FOIA Request using only the search terms listed in Exhibit A; (ii) review the potentially



responsive documents that are returned by the search described in this paragraph and produce any



responsive, nonexempt records to plaintiff; (iii) make reasonable efforts to produce any responsive,



nonexempt records located through the search described in this paragraph within 30 days of the entry of



this Stipulation onto the Court’s docket; and (iv) within 30 days of the entry of this Stipulation onto the



Court’s docket, provide to plaintiff a declaration from Agent Tanner regarding the emails deleted during



the incident referenced in paragraph 13 of the Declaration of Donald Tanner In Support of Defendant’s


Reply In Support of Motion for Summary Judgment, filed on June 22, 2018, ECF No. 33-3.  Defendant


further agrees to pay the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) (“Settlement Amount”) for



plaintiff’s reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, which sum shall be in full and final satisfaction of all


plaintiff’s rights and claims in this case, including but not limited to those for attorney’s fees, costs and



other litigation expenses, including interest, and defendant shall have no further liability for any further



amounts.  Electronic payment of the Settlement Amount will be made to plaintiff by payment to



Environmental Advocates' IOLTA trust account. 


4. Plaintiff agrees to promptly furnish defendant with the information necessary to effectuate



payment pursuant to Paragraph 3, including but not limited to, bank name and address, wire transfer



number, ABA number, routing number, account number, name of account, and federal taxpaper



identification number.  Defendant’s counsel agrees to submit all paperwork necessary to effectuate the
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electronic funds transfer to National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within



fourteen calendar days of either entry of this Stipulation onto the Court's docket, or receipt from plaintiff



of the information described in this Paragraph, whichever is later.  Payment shall be made as promptly



as practicable, consistent with normal processing procedures followed by NOAA, after plaintiff provides


the necessary information for the electronic funds transfer to the undersigned Assistant United States


Attorney.  Counsel for plaintiff agrees to send confirmation of the receipt of the payment to counsel for



defendant within fourteen calendar days of such payment. 


5. Plaintiff hereby agrees to accept production of the responsive, nonexempt records identified by



defendant as described in Paragraph 3, and the Settlement Amount in full settlement and satisfaction of



all claims, and hereby releases and forever discharges defendant, its successors, the United States of



America, and any department, agency, or establishment of the United States, and any officers,



employees, agents, successors or assigns of such department, agency or establishment, from any and all


claims and causes of action that plaintiff asserts or could have asserted in this litigation, or which



hereafter could be asserted by reason of, or with respect to, or in connection with, or which arise out of,



the FOIA request on which this action is based or any other matter alleged in the Complaint, including



but not limited to all past, present or future claims for attorneys’ fees or costs, or litigation expenses in



connection with the above-captioned litigation.  Plaintiff further specifically agrees that it may not


contest or challenge in any way (i) the adequacy of defendant’s search as described in Paragraph 3,



including, but not limited to, the agency records searched, the date range used, the method of search, or



the search terms used; or (ii) defendant’s determination to withhold any record located in the search



described Paragraph 3, in whole or in part, on the ground that it is either subject to a FOIA statutory



exemption or not responsive to plaintiff’s FOIA Request. 


6. This Stipulation shall not constitute an admission of liability or fault on the part of the defendant


or the United States or their agents, agencies, servants, or employees, and is entered into by both parties


for the sole purpose of compromising disputed claims and avoiding the expenses and risks of further



litigation.  This Stipulation shall not be construed as evidence or as an admission on the part of



defendant, the United States, its agents, servants, or employees regarding any issues of law or fact, or


regarding the truth or validity of any allegation or claim raised in this action, or as evidence or as an
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admission by the defendant regarding plaintiff’s entitlement to attorney’s fees, costs, or other litigation



expenses under FOIA.  This Stipulation shall not be used in any manner to establish liability for fees or



costs in any other case or proceeding involving defendant. 


7. This Stipulation shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their



respective successors and assigns.


8. Execution of this Stipulation by counsel for the parties shall constitute a dismissal of all claims in



this action with prejudice, effective upon entry of this stipulation onto the Court’s docket, pursuant to



Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 41(a)(1)(A)(ii).


9. The persons signing this Agreement warrant and represent that they possess full authority to bind



the persons on whose behalf they are signing to the terms of the settlement. 


10. The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542 are set forth below:


“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have

materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”


Plaintiff, having, been apprised of the statutory language of Civil Code Section 1542, and fully



understanding the same, nevertheless elects to waive the benefits of any and all rights it may have



pursuant to the provision of that statute and any similar provision of federal law.  Plaintiff understands


that, if the facts concerning plaintiff’s claim and the liability of the government for damages pertaining



thereto are found hereinafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed by it to be true, the



Stipulation shall be and remain effective notwithstanding such material difference. 


11.  If any withholding or income tax liability is imposed upon plaintiff or plaintiff’s counsel based



on the Settlement Amount or any other term of this Stipulation, plaintiff and plaintiff’s counsel shall be



solely responsible for paying any such determined liability from any government agency.  Nothing in



this Stipulation constitutes an agreement by defendant concerning the characterization of the Settlement


Amount for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. 


12. If any provision of this Stipulation shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity,



legality, and enforceability of the remaining provision shall not in any way be affected or impaired



thereby.
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13. This Stipulation may be pled as a full and complete defense to any action or other proceeding,



including any local, state or federal administrative action, involving any person or party which arises out



of the claims released and discharged by this Stipulation.



14. This Stipulation shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties, and it is expressly



understood and agreed that this Stipulation has been freely and voluntarily entered into by the parties



hereto.  The parties further acknowledge that no warranties or representations have been made on any



subject other than as set forth in this Stipulation.



15. This Stipulation may not be altered, modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except in



writing, duly executed by all parties or their authorized representatives.



16. This Stipulation may be executed in counterparts and is effective on the date by which both



parties have executed the Stipulation.



IT IS SO STIPULATED.


DATED: July 13, 2018 Respectfully submitted,


ALEX TSE

Acting United States Attorney



/s/ Jennifer S Wang

JENNIFER S WANG

Assistant United States Attorney
Attorneys for Defendant National
Marine Fisheries Service


DATED: July 13, 2018


/s/ Patricia Linn

PATRICIA LINN

Attorney for Plaintiff Ecological
Rights Foundation


Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 40   Filed 07/13/18   Page 5 of 8








Exhibit A



Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 40   Filed 07/13/18   Page 6 of 8








1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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Organization 


Open Requests 


Previous Month End Incoming Requests Closed Requests 


Open Requests Current 


Month End Backlog 21-120 days Backlog 121-364 days 


Backlog 365 or 


more days 


Total


Backlog



AGO 11 4 0 13 8 1 0 9



CAO 3 0 0 4 2 1 0 3



CFO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO/FOIA 6 2 0 7 6 0 0 6



GC 6 0 0 7 6 0 0 6



IA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



LA 3 0 0 3 2 0 0 2



NESDIS 3 1 0 3 1 0 0 1



NMFS 60 14 12 73 22 19 3 44



NOS 12 1 0 15 7 5 0 12



NWS 7 0 1 7 3 3 0 6



OAR 13 0 5 9 5 2 0 7



OMAO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



OC 4 0 0 4 1 2 0 3



PPI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



USEC 6 2 0 8 2 4 0 6



WFMO 5 0 0 5 3 0 0 3



NOAA Totals 139 24 18 158 68 37 3 108
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA


JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.,   )



425 Third Street SW, Suite 800  )



Washington, DC 20024,   )



      )



Plaintiff,  ) 


) Civil Action No.



v.      )



)



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT )



OF COMMERCE, )



1401 Constitution Avenue, NW )



Washington, DC 20230, )



  )     


   Defendant.  )



____________________________________)



COMPLAINT


 Plaintiff Judicial Watch, Inc. brings this action against Defendant U.S. Department of



Commerce to compel compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552



(“FOIA”).  As grounds therefor, Plaintiff alleges as follows:


JURISDICTION AND VENUE


 1. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B)



and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.


 2. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).


PARTIES



 3.  Plaintiff Judicial Watch, Inc. is a not-for-profit, educational organization



incorporated under the laws of the District of Columbia and headquartered at 425 Third Street



SW, Suite 800, Washington, DC 20024.  Plaintiff seeks to promote transparency, accountability,



and integrity in government and fidelity to the rule of law.  As part of its mission, Plaintiff



regularly requests records from federal agencies pursuant to FOIA.  Plaintiff analyzes the
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responses and disseminates its findings and the requested records to the American public to



inform them about “what their government is up to.”


 4. Defendant U.S. Department of Commerce is an agency of the United States



Government.  Defendant has possession, custody, and control of records to which Plaintiff seeks



access.  Defendant is headquartered at 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20230. 


STATEMENT OF FACTS


 5. On February 6, 2017 Plaintiff submitted a FOIA request to the National Oceanic



and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”), a component of Defendant, seeking the following:


Any and all records of communications between NOAA scientist



Thomas Karl and Director of the Office of Science and



Technology Policy John Holdren. 


 


The timeframe of the request was identified as “January 20, 2009 through January 20, 2017.”



The request was submitted by certified mail.


 6. According to U.S. Postal Service records, the request was received by NOAA on



February 7, 2017.


7. NOAA confirmed that it received the request on February 8, 2017, assigning the



request Tracking Number DOC-NOAA-2017-000580. 


 8. As of the date of this Complaint, Defendant has failed to: (i) produce the



requested records or demonstrate that the requested records are lawfully exempt from



production; (ii) notify Plaintiff of the scope of any responsive records Defendant intends to



produce or withhold and the reasons for any withholdings; or (iii) inform Plaintiff that it may



appeal any adequately specific, adverse determination. 
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COUNT I


Violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552



 9. Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1 through 8 as if fully stated herein.


 10. Plaintiff is being irreparably harmed by reason of Defendant’s violation of FOIA,



and Plaintiff will continue to be irreparably harmed unless Defendant is compelled to comply



with FOIA.


11. To trigger FOIA’s administrative exhaustion requirement, Defendant was



required to determine whether to comply with Plaintiff’s request by March 9, 2017 at the latest. 


At a minimum, Defendant was required to: (i) gather and review the requested documents; (ii)



determine and communicate to Plaintiff the scope of any responsive records Defendant intended



to produce or withhold and the reasons for any withholdings; and (iii) inform Plaintiff that it may



appeal any adequately specific, adverse determination.  See, e.g., Citizens for Responsibility and


Ethics in Washington v. Federal Election Commission, 711 F.3d 180, 188-89 (D.C. Cir. 2013). 


12.  Because Defendant failed to determine whether to comply with Plaintiff’s request



within the time period required by FOIA, Plaintiff is deemed to have exhausted its administrative



appeal remedies.  5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i). 


 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court: (1) order Defendant to



conduct searches for any and all records responsive to Plaintiff’s FOIA request and demonstrate



that it employed search methods reasonably likely to lead to the discovery of records responsive



to Plaintiff’s FOIA request; (2) order Defendant to produce, by a date certain, any and all non-


exempt records to Plaintiff’s FOIA request and a Vaughn index of any responsive records



withheld under claim of exemption; (3) enjoin Defendant from continuing to withhold any and



all non-exempt records responsive to Plaintiff’s FOIA request; (4) grant Plaintiff an award of
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attorneys’ fees and other litigation costs reasonably incurred in this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(E); and (5) grant Plaintiff such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 


Dated:  March 27, 2017     Respectfully submitted,


         s/ Chris Fedeli  


        Chris Fedeli


        D.C. Bar No. 472919 


        JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.
        425 Third Street SW, Suite 800


        Washington, DC 20024


        (202) 646-5172


        Counsel for Plaintiff
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 



Craig, 



Per our discussion yesterday, please find attached a brief document that 



summarizes the salient facts about the Advisory Committee for the 



Sustained National Climate Assessment. This was prepared with the help



of the Chair of the ACSNCA, Richard Moss. There is a separate



one-paragraph Summary statement that you might find useful as well as 



two pages that outline the context of this activity with the USGCRP, the 



definition of "sustained assessment", the role of the ACSNCA, and the 



current work of the committee. The document should also be sent with 



the attached Excel spreadsheet of the members and their terms. 



The statement does not discuss the details of the terms but this



information can be derived from the spreadsheet. There are fifteen 



members, five each with 1, 2 and 3-year initial terms. The members with 



1-year terms would have expired in early 2017 so they were renewed, per 



the current charter, for a second term of two years. The members with 



2-year terms are due to expire in spring 2018 and could be renewed or 



replaced (note that the Chair, Richard Moss, is one of these). The five



members with 3-year terms will expire in spring 2019. The revised



charter that is up for renewal states that second terms may be for 1-3 



years rather than just 2 years. This is because we now have 10 members



whose terms expire in 2019 - five with a 2nd term and five with a 1st 



term of 3 years. If there is a decision not to renew the five members 



with a 3-year first term, that means 2/3 of the committee would rotate 



off in 2019, The new charter language would enable a briefer or longer 



2nd term to offset that. I hope this is clear. 



Please let me know if you have any questions or comments about the 



attached documents. I am happy to revise if necessary. 



Thank you, 



Cynthia 



Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



From: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 9:10 AM 



To: Craig Mclean 



Cc: Ko Barrett; Noha Gaber - NOAA Federal; Lauren Koellermeier; Katelyn Robinson; 



Wayne Higgins; Benjamin DeAngelo - NOAA Federal 



Subject: Statement on ACSNCA & Membership List w terms 



Attachments: ACSNCA Statement 06-16-17-Final.docx; SNCA FAC membership June 2017.xlsx 



Importance: High 








 



--


********************************************* 



Cynthia J. Decker, Ph.D 



Executive Director 



NOAA Science Advisory Board 



and 



NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



SSMC3, Room 11230 



1315 East-West Hwy 



Silver Spring, MD 20910 



Phone 301-734-1156 



Fax 301-713-1459 



Email: cynthia.decker@noaa.gov 



******************************************** 
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Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessment 



Summary



This NOAA committee develops recommendations to make better use of data produced by the

US Global Change Research Program (USGCRP), a Congressionally-mandated interagency 



research program. Specifically, this Advisory Committee provides advice on making USGCRP

data more accessible and useful to private sector/civic organizations and state/municipal 

governments for their use in planning and decision-making in domains such as transportation, 

energy, water resources, and other infrastructure, or planning for coastal developments affected 

by expected changes in weather patterns and climate extremes. The committee is composed of 15 

members from academia, the private sector, municipal government, and non-governmental 

organizations from across the country. The committee is currently preparing a report in response

to a request from NOAA on behalf of the USGCRP. The report will provide options and 

recommendations on (1) identifying what data from the USGCRP is most needed to improve the

effectiveness and profitability of  regional and local level decision-making; (2) facilitating use of



USGCRP data by private sector and other non-governmental groups to develop products tailored 

for users; (3) improving interactions with end users, and (4) evaluating program effectiveness. 

The committee is currently seeking input from the public, including private sector and other 

groups that have been working with the data, to consider for its recommendations.
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Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessment 


This document provides an overview of the Advisory Committee for the Sustained National 

Climate Assessment. This NOAA committee provides advice on a Congressionally-mandated

research program that integrates scientific investigation of global environmental changes across

13 Federal agencies. This overview document covers the following topics: (1) the context of the



committee with respect to the interagency US Global Change Research Program, (2) definition 

and goals of “sustained assessment”, (3) the terms of reference and membership of the

committee, and (4) the committee’s current task and pending request for public input. 



1. Committee context: US Global Change Research Program (USGCRP)



The USGCRP was established by an act of Congress in 1990 to coordinate research on how 

natural environmental processes and Earth systems (for example, oceans, glaciers/ice sheets, 

chemical composition of the atmosphere, weather patterns, flows of surface/sub-surface water, 

coastal processes, biodiversity) are being influenced by a wide variety of human activities. The

Global Change Research Act (PL101-606) establishes the program and requires (inter alia) the

participating agencies (including NOAA) to prepare coordinated budget submissions to the

Office of Management and Budget; coordinate US scientific research with other countries; and 

prepare “assessments” (evaluations of scientific information relevant for understanding changes 



and their impacts) not less frequently than every four years.



2. Sustained Assessment



“Assessments” are products that evaluate the state of science relevant to different policy-related 



and practical questions. The USGCRP has produced three such assessments in the form of

extensive technical reports. Such reports have been evaluated as necessary but insufficient for 

informing decisions in sectors such as energy, water resources, forestry, ecosystem management, 

coastal development, agriculture, public health, national security, and other areas. Thus, the

National Academy of Sciences and other bodies have recommended that the USGCRP develop a

“sustained assessment” process that provides a more diverse set of data and information that 



better meet the needs of users. Such information can reduce losses in natural disasters and 

identify opportunities for sustainable development. “Sustained assessment” engages scientists

and stakeholders (end users in these and other sectors) in discovery, communication, and use of

scientific knowledge of global change. In addition to preparing reports, the sustained assessment

will provide a wider range of products including data sets, visualizations, maps and geographical 



information systems, decision support tools, and other science-based tools. A key objective is to 

increase access of the private sector and other groups to basic data provided by the USGCRP to 

enable them to develop needed products, including on a commercial basis, for end users, hence

increasing diversity of data interpretation and evaluation of impacts and response strategies.



3. History of the Advisory Committee 



The ACSNCA was established in 2015 by NOAA in consultation with the Office of Science and 

Technology Policy (in the Executive Office of the President) to provide advice on the sustained 
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assessment process to NOAA and, through the agency, to all 13 agencies of the USGCRP. The

language in the charter states that the purpose of the committee is to provide advice on 

assessment products and activities, including “engagement of stakeholders and on sustained 



assessment activities and the quadrennial National Climate Assessment Report.” Under the

Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), a federal advisory committee can only be hosted and

funded by one agency. NOAA agreed to take on this responsibility because of its existing 



portfolio of research and because of its experience in hosting previous FACA committees in

support of the National Climate Assessment efforts. The current membership is provided as an 

attachment to this document and consists of 15 members from academia, the private sector, non-
governmental organizations, and municipal governments. The chair of the committee is Dr. 

Richard H. Moss, a senior scientist with the Joint Global Change Research Program at the

University of Maryland.



4. Current Activity:  Developing Recommendations on Sustained Assessment 



The committee is currently preparing a short report (expected to be ~50 pages) in response to a

request made at its March 2017 meeting by NOAA on behalf of the USGCRP. The request 

states:



“In order for the USG to implement a vision for Sustained Assessment in time for the 5th 



(and future) National Climate Assessment, NOAA requests, on behalf of the USGCRP

and its member agencies, that the Advisory Committee for the Sustained National 



Climate Assessment develop a set of recommendations for a Sustained Assessment

process by Spring 2018. We also request a progress or interim report by September 30, 

2017. The recommendations should be feasible, realistic in terms of budget implications, 

and grounded in the Congressional mandate for a quadrennial assessment.”



The committee is developing recommendations on four key topics: 



1. Identifying the most important data, information, and activities for USGCRP to support 

assessment of the extent and implications of global change in the United States; 



2. Facilitating use of core USGCRP data by the private sector, state/local governments, and 

university-based and other groups to develop specialized (and potentially commercially-
provided) sustained assessment products for end users; 



3. Improving the development of partnerships and engagement with users of the assessment;

4. Evaluating the assessment for accuracy, trustworthiness, and utility to end users, to 



facilitate improvements in the USGCRP and activities of its participating agencies.



The committee is attempting to prepare an interim report by September 2017 and a final report in 

the spring of 2018. It is using a process that includes opportunities for public input and review, 

consistent with the intent of the FACA. Its ability to keep to its timeline depends on being able to 

obtain public input in a timely fashion.
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 



One change made to the Statement document. Re-sent here with new 



filename to distinguish it. Sorry! 



Craig, 



Per our discussion yesterday, please find attached a brief document that 



summarizes the salient facts about the Advisory Committee for the 



Sustained National Climate Assessment. This was prepared with the help



of the Chair of the ACSNCA, Richard Moss. There is a separate



one-paragraph Summary statement that you might find useful as well as 



two pages that outline the context of this activity with the USGCRP, the 



definition of "sustained assessment", the role of the ACSNCA, and the 



current work of the committee. The document should also be sent with 



the attached Excel spreadsheet of the members and their terms. 



The statement does not discuss the details of the terms but this



information can be derived from the spreadsheet. There are fifteen 



members, five each with 1, 2 and 3-year initial terms. The members with 



1-year terms would have expired in early 2017 so they were renewed, per 



the current charter, for a second term of two years. The members with 



2-year terms are due to expire in spring 2018 and could be renewed or 



replaced (note that the Chair, Richard Moss, is one of these). The five



members with 3-year terms will expire in spring 2019. The revised



charter that is up for renewal states that second terms may be for 1-3 



years rather than just 2 years. This is because we now have 10 members



whose terms expire in 2019 - five with a 2nd term and five with a 1st 



term of 3 years. If there is a decision not to renew the five members 



with a 3-year first term, that means 2/3 of the committee would rotate 



off in 2019, The new charter language would enable a briefer or longer 



2nd term to offset that. I hope this is clear. 



Please let me know if you have any questions or comments about the 



attached documents. I am happy to revise if necessary. 



Thank you, 



Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



From: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 9:15 AM 



To: Craig Mclean 



Cc: Ko Barrett; Noha Gaber - NOAA Federal; Lauren Koellermeier; Katelyn Robinson; 



Wayne Higgins; Benjamin DeAngelo - NOAA Federal 



Subject: NEW VERSION Statement on ACSNCA & Membership List w terms 



Attachments: SNCA FAC membership June 2017.xlsx; ACSNCA Statement 06-16-17-Finalv2.docx 



Importance: High 








 



Thank you, 



Cynthia 



--


********************************************* 



Cynthia J. Decker, Ph.D 



Executive Director 



NOAA Science Advisory Board 



and 



NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



SSMC3, Room 11230 



1315 East-West Hwy 



Silver Spring, MD 20910 



Phone 301-734-1156 



Fax 301-713-1459 



Email: cynthia.decker@noaa.gov 



******************************************** 
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 GSA Office of Governmentwide Policy 

 Office of Committee and Regulatory Management



Preparing Federal Advisory 

Committee Charters 


GSA Committee Management Secretariat 



Background: 



The Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) 5 U.S.C. , 

App. ,  and the FACA Implementing Regulations (41 CFR 

102-3) provide the basis for and guidance concerning the 

management and operation of federal advisory 

committees (FACs).



Regardless of whether a FAC is Presidential, statutory, 

or discretionary, it will require a formal federal advisory 

committee charter before it can conduct business.  The 

charter marks the formal establishment of the FAC. 



A charter contains certain specific components,  and 

requires specific approval and handling.   This guidance 

document provides a combination of statutory, 

regulatory,  and best practice guidance to ensure proper 

charter preparation.  Transparency and clarity are the 

primary objectives. 



Current statutory and regulatory requirements for the 

components of a FAC charter are identified in §9 of 

FACA (5 U.S.C. App.),  and are repeated in the FACA 

implementing regulations in 41 CFR 102-3.75.   The 

guidance provided in both documents is broad and 

leaves room for interpretation.  As a result, some 

departments and agencies choose a minimalist approach 

to writing charters, while other departments and 

agencies provide excessive information, some of which is



This is a best practices guidance document prepared by the U.S. General 

Services Administration (GSA) Committee Management Secretariat,  the statutory 

government entity responsible for FACA oversight.   Please send comments to: 

CMS@GSA.GOV.  Please cite the title of this guidance in any correspondence. 



better suited to advisory committee by-laws or operating 

instructions.  Insertion into the charter of excessive and 

often unnecessary procedural requirements can leave the 

department or agency subject to legal challenge. 



Introduction: 



This guidance is provided by the GSA Committee 

Management Secretariat (“Secretariat”) to help executive 

agencies comply with federal statutes regarding 

preparation of charters in the establishment of federal 

advisory committees (FACs).  The Secretariat provides 

interpretation of statutory language in the Federal 

Advisory Committee Act, clarification of regulatory 

language contained in the FACA implementing 

regulations (41  CFR 102-3), and best practice guidance 

for writing effective and compliant advisory committee 

charters. 



It is GSA’s goal to ensure agencies produce FAC 

charters that provide the necessary information to inform 

readers without adding unnecessary litigation risk, while 

at the same time, meeting the requirements of FACA, the 

FACA implementing regulations, guidance from GAO 

and other appropriate sources, and ensuring transparency 

and clarity.



Consultation with GSA:



For discretionary FACs, agencies are required to consult 

with the Secretariat when they establish, reestablish, or 

renew an advisory committee, or when they make major 

amendments to an existing advisory committee charter.

Although agencies are not required to consult with the 

Secretariat for non-discretionary advisory committees,
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the Secretariat requests that agencies provide a draft copy 

of the charter for format and content review.  Our 

experience and knowledge concerning the format and 

content of charters will help agencies produce a well 

written charter that will limit mistakes and problems. 



Frequently Asked 

Questions:



1.   Who prepares the charter for a FAC? 



The agency creating or housing the FAC 

will prepare the charter.  In most cases, the 

charter will be drafted by the Designated 

Federal Officer (DFO) assigned to the 

committee.  If the DFO is not yet appointed, 

the charter may be drafted by staff of the 

office that will support the FAC.  In some 

agencies, the Committee Management

Officer (CMO) may be involved.  GSA does

not prepare agency charters.



2.  Can an agency ask GSA for informal advice in 

the development or preparation of a new charter? 



Yes.  GSA encourages informal

coordination between the CMO and GSA 

regarding the format and content of new 

advisory committee charters.



3.  How long should a typical charter be?  What

should be included?



As noted elsewhere in this guidance, there 

are 15 statutory and recommended 

components that should be incorporated into 

a FAC charter.  Typically, this will require 

about two or three pages.



4.  Does a charter have to be signed for it to be 

approved?



No.  An approval signature is not required.

Some agencies have the approving official

sign a separate approval document and, in 

some cases, agency officials do sign the 

charter.  That is an agency decision. 



5.  Should a charter for a non-discretionary advisory 

committee contain extensive language from the 

enabling document or statute? 



No.  The enabling document should be 

properly cited in the charter, and where 

appropriate, clarification can be included in 

the charter to briefly explain details relevant

to the 15 charter components (see below). 



6.  Should a charter for an advisory committee 

contain language that prescribes behavior of

advisory committee members? 



No.  The charter sets parameters for the 

committee as an entity, and should not set

behavior for specific individuals (e.g., 

guidance on ethics).  Such language is best

conveyed in appointment letters. 



7.  Are the charter filing requirements for major and 

minor amendments the same?



Yes.  All amended charters are required to 

be filed as outlined in the Charter Filing 

Requirements section below.  Amending any 

existing advisory committee charter does not

constitute renewal of the advisory 

committee.



8.  Are subcommittees required to file a charter?



Subcommittees that report directly to a 

Federal officer or agency require a formal

charter and must follow the same public 

notification and filing procedures as the 

parent committee.



Format and Content of an 

Advisory Committee 

Charter: 



 Before you do anything else, agency staff or 

Designated Federal Officers (DFOs) who are 

developing an advisory committee should first 

contact the Committee Management Officer 

(CMO) at your agency for advice and guidance. 
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 The purpose of the advisory committee charter 

is to specify the committee’s mission or charge, 

and general operational characteristics (not 

membership behavior).  The charter should 

include all of the statutorily required 

components, as well as five other components 

(*) that are not explicitly required (at this time) 

but improve the overall charter and provide 

valuable additional information for interested 

parties.  The fifteen sections, in order, are: 



1.  Committee’s Official Designation (Title).

Provide the committee’s exact legal name. 



* 2.  Authority.  Provide the authority for the 

establishment of the committee (e.g., cite the 

statute, Executive Order, or note that the 

committee is agency authority) and reference 

that the committee is being established in 

accordance with the provisions of the Federal 

Advisory Committee Act (FACA), as amended, 

5 U.S.C. App. 



3.  Objectives and Scope of Activities.

Describe the objectives and scope of the 

committee’s mission or charge. 



4.  Description of Duties.  Describe the 

particular functions the advisory committee is 

expected to perform.  In the absence of specific 

statutory authority or Presidential directive to 

the contrary, these duties must be advisory only. 



5.  Agency or Official to Whom the 

Committee Reports.  Identify the agency or 

official (by title or position) to whom the 

advisory committee provides its advice.

Normally, this is the agency head. 



6.  Support.  Identify the agency (and 

component/office) responsible for providing 

necessary support for the committee. 



7.  Estimated Annual Operating Costs and 

Staff Years.  Provide the estimated annual fiscal 

year costs to operate the advisory committee in 

dollars and staff years (in full-time equivalent, 

or FTE).  The cost expenditure categories used 

in the Annual Comprehensive Review of 



Federal Advisory Committees should be used to 

estimate these costs.  The cost estimates include 

the salary cost of staff support with benefits. 



* 8.  Designated Federal Officer.  This 

paragraph should indicate that a full-time or 

permanent part-time employee, appointed in 

accordance with agency procedures, will serve 

as the DFO (or designee).  It should also state 

that the DFO will approve or call all of the 

advisory committee’s and subcommittees’ 

meetings, prepare and approve all meeting 

agendas, attend all committee and subcommittee 

meetings, adjourn any meeting when the DFO 

determines adjournment to be in the public 

interest, and chair meetings when directed to do 

so by the official to whom the advisory 

committee reports. 



9.  Estimated Number and Frequency of 

Meetings.  Provide the estimated number of 

meetings anticipated within a fiscal year and, if 

known, how frequently (e.g., “approximately 

every four months”) the meetings will occur. 



10.  Duration.  State the period of time 

anticipated to be necessary for the advisory 

committee to carry out its purposes.   For a 

committee that will exist for a longer period, 

“continuing” is appropriate. 



11.  Termination.  Provide the committee’s 

termination date, if less than two years from the 

date of the committee’s establishment.



* 12.  Membership and Designation.  Provide 

the estimated number of members, a description 

of the expertise required, and/or groups to be 

represented in order to achieve a fairly balanced 

membership and whether the committee will be 

composed of Special Government Employees 

(SGEs), Representative members, Regular 

Government Employees (RGE), or members 

from several categories. 



* 13.  Subcommittees.  Provide a statement as

to whom (the agency) has the authority to 

create subcommittees and states that
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subcommittees must report back to the

parent committee, and must not provide 

advice or work products directly to the 

agency.



* 14.  Recordkeeping.  State that the records of 

the committee, formally and informally 

established subcommittees, or other subgroups 

of the committee, shall be handled in 

accordance with General Records Schedule 6.2 

or other approved agency records disposition 

schedule.  These records shall be available for 

public inspection and copying, subject to the 

Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 552. 



15.  Filing Date.  This is the date that the 

charter is filed with Congress.  See Charter

filing Requirements section for more 

information. 



Public Notification 

Requirements: 



A notice to the public in the Federal Register is required 

when a discretionary advisory committee is established, 

renewed, or reestablished.  Upon receiving notice from 

the Secretariat that its review is complete, the agency 

must publish a notice in the Federal Register announcing 

that the advisory committee is being established, 

renewed, or reestablished.  For the establishment of a 

new advisory committee, the notice also must describe 

the nature and purpose of the advisory committee and 

affirm that the advisory committee is necessary and in 

the public interest. 



Notices of establishment and reestablishment of advisory 

committees must appear at least 15 calendar days before 

the charter is filed, except that the Secretariat may 

approve less than 15 calendar days when requested by 

the agency for good cause.  This requirement for 

advanced notice does not apply to advisory committee 

renewals, notices of which may be published 

concurrently with the filing of the charter. 



Charter Filing Requirements: 



No advisory committee may meet or take any action 

until a charter has been filed by the CMO or by 

another agency official designated by the agency 

head to act on the behalf of the CMO. 



To establish, renew, or reestablish a discretionary 

advisory committee, a charter must be filed with: the 

agency head; the standing committees of the Senate 

and the House of Representatives having legislative 

jurisdiction of the agency, the date of filing with 

which constitutes the official date of establishment

for the advisory committee; the Library of Congress, 

Federal Advisory Committee Desk, Government

Documents Section, 101 Independence Avenue, SE 

Washington, DC 20540-4174; and the Secretariat, 

by adding the chartered date to the Shared 

Management System (SMS).  Charter filing 

requirements for non-discretionary advisory 

committees are the same as those outlined above, 

except the date of establishment for a Presidential

advisory committee is the date the charter is filed 

with the Secretariat.



FACA WEB References: 



The Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) –

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/100916



Implementing Regulations (41  CFR 1 01 -6 and 1 02-3) –



http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104034



Committee Management Secretariat Website -
http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104514



Finding FACA Information (www.eFACA.gov) or 



http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/101111



The GSA FACA Database (www.FACA.gov) or 



http://www.fido.gov/facadatabase/
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Federal Advisory Committee 

Membership Balance Plan



GSA Committee Management Secretariat 



Background: 



The Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), as 

amended (5 U.S.C. App.) and the FACA Implementing 

Regulations (FACA Regulations) (41 CFR 101-6 and 

102-3) provide the basis for and guidance concerning the 

management and operation of Federal advisory 

committees.  Typically, groups subject to FACA require 

open, pre-announced meetings; public access to 

discussions, deliberations, records and documents; 

opportunity for the public to provide, at a minimum, 

written  comments; fairly balanced membership; and the 

evaluation of conflicts of interest for certain members.  In 

general,  the provisions of FACA apply when the 

government establishes or utilizes (i.e. ,  manages and 

controls) a group, made up of two or more individuals 

which includes at least one non-Federal employee, to 

provide collective advice and recommendations to a 

Federal official.  There are also exceptions and best 

practices that allow managers to solicit advice outside of 

the FACA structure. 



This document provides guidance to Federal agencies on 

how to prepare the Membership Balance Plan that is 

required for discretionary,  and is strongly recommended 

for non-discretionary, Federal advisory committees.

Please work with your department or agency Committee 

Management Officer to ensure that applicable internal 

requirements are followed. 



This is a best practices guidance document prepared by the U.S. General 

Services Administration (GSA) Committee Management Secretariat,  the statutory 

government entity responsible for FACA oversight.   Please send comments to: 

CMS@GSA.GOV.  Please cite the title of this guidance in any correspondence. 



Introduction:



Section 5(b)(2) of the FACA  requires “…the 

membership of the advisory committee to be fairly 

balanced in terms of the points of view represented 

and the functions to be performed by the advisory 

committee.”  The corresponding FACA regulations 

reiterate this requirement at 41  CFR § 102-3.30(c), 

and, for discretionary committees being established, 

renewed, or reestablished, require agencies to 

provide a description of their plan to attain fairly 

balanced membership during the charter 

consultation process with GSA (41 CFR § 102-
3.60(b)(3)).  The document created through this 

process is the Membership Balance Plan.  The 

regulations further clarify that (1) the purpose of the 

membership balance plan is to ensure “that, in the 

selection of members for the advisory committee, 

the agency will consider a cross-section of those 

directly affected, interested, and qualified, as 

appropriate to the nature and functions of the 

advisory committee;” and (2) “[a]dvisory 

committees requiring technical expertise should 

include persons with demonstrated professional or 

personal qualifications and experience relevant to 

the functions and tasks to be performed.”  (41 CFR 

§ 102-3.60(b)(3)). 



FACA mandates that Federal advisory committees 

be balanced in the points of view represented by the 

members, but leaves it to the discretion of each 

agency on how to do this.  The FACA regulations 
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2 



offer guidance in achieving a balanced Federal

advisory committee membership, which include

considering:

 (i)  The Federal advisory committee’s 



mission; 

 (ii)  The geographic, ethnic, social,

  economic, or scientific impact of



the Federal advisory committee’s 

recommendations; 



 (iii) The types of specific perspectives 

required, such as those of 

consumers, technical experts, the 

public at-large, academia, business, 

or other sectors; 



 (iv) The need to obtain divergent points

of view on the issues before the 

Federal advisory committee; and 



 (v)  The relevance of State, local, or 

  tribal governments to the



development of the Federal 

advisory committee’s 

recommendations.”  (41 CFR § III 

of App. A to Subpart B)



FACA requires all Federal advisory committees to 

be balanced, regardless of whether they are

discretionary (agency authority) or non-
discretionary (statutory or Presidential) committees.

Although the FACA regulations only address the 

Membership Balance Plan requirements for 

discretionary committees, GSA recommends that 

Executive departments and agencies apply these

requirements to non-discretionary committees as 

well.  This is a good practice and is consistent with 

Section 5(b)(2) of FACA which requires balanced 

advisory committees.



This guidance document is intended to provide a 

framework for prospective, analytical thinking 

regarding committee membership balance, and 

further agency FACA compliance.  Agencies 

are encouraged to include additional 



information beyond what is suggested in this 

guidance document, as they deem appropriate.



Elements of the 

Membership Balance Plan:



The FACA Membership Balance Plan informs, and 

is consistent with, the federal advisory committee’s 

charter, especially the section on advisory 

committee membership and designation.  The plan 

is submitted as supporting documentation when an 

agency establishes a Federal advisory committee.

The agency should update the plan whenever a 

Federal advisory committee is renewed or 

reestablished, and also when a Federal advisory 

committee’s charter is amended.  The plan is a 

stand-alone document that describes how the 

agency intends to achieve balance in terms of the 

points of view represented and the functions to be 

performed by the Federal advisory committee.

Elements of a Membership Balance Plan include: 



(1) Name.  State the legal name of the Federal 

advisory committee. 



(2) Authority.  Identify the authority for 

establishing the Federal advisory committee 

(e.g., cite the statute, Executive Order, or 

note that the Federal advisory committee is 

established under agency authority).



(3) Mission/Function.  Describe the 

mission/function of the Federal advisory 

committee. 

(a) If the Federal advisory committee is 



discretionary, the mission/function will 

be a primary factor influencing the 

balance of the Federal advisory 

committee. 
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(b) If the Federal advisory committee is

statutory or created by Executive Order,

the composition of the Federal advisory

committee may already be prescribed

by the authorizing legislation (which

may result in a pre-determined balance

of the members). 


(4) Points of View.  Based on the purpose of

the Federal advisory committee, this

section:

(a)  should describe the process that will be



used to ensure the committee is

balanced in terms of the points of view

represented for the function(s) to be

performed by the committee.  This

should include identifying the

categories (e.g., individual expertise or

represented interests) from which

candidates will be considered; 


(b)  could identify an anticipated relative

distribution of candidates across the

categories; and 


(c)  should discuss how a determination was

made to appoint any individuals as

Special Government Employee (SGE)

or Representative (Rep) members.



This analysis will affect the size of the

Federal advisory committee, how it will be

structured, and whether it is balanced. 
Although numerical parity is not required,

too many or too few individuals

representing one interest or area of expertise

could result in the Federal advisory

committee not being balanced in the

viewpoints represented.  If the Federal

advisory committee is statutory or created

by Executive Order, the exact number of

members or a cap on the total number of

members may be specified in the

authorizing legislation.



This section should clearly state that 

membership balance is not static and may 

change, depending on the work of the 

committee.



(5)  Other Balance Factors.  List any other 

factors your agency identifies as important 

in achieving a balanced Federal advisory 

committee.  These factors, which are not 

legally required, could include, the 

geographic location of candidates, 

importance of including regional, state, or 

local government expertise, consideration 

of the impact on local or specific 

communities, diversity in work sector (e.g., 

private industry, academia), etc. 



(6) Candidate Identification Process.

Summarize the process intended to be used 

to identify candidates for the Federal 

advisory committee, key resources expected 

to be tapped to identify candidates (e.g., 

recommendations from current and former 

Federal advisory committee members, 

publication of nomination notices, search of 

relevant professional associations, etc), and 

the key persons (by position, not name) 

who will evaluate Federal advisory 

committee balance (e.g., the Designated 

Federal Official, agency FACA attorney, 

agency head, etc).  The summary should: 



(a)  describe how the process will result in 

consideration of a cross-section of those 

directly affected, interested, and 

qualified, and/or will identify 

individuals with demonstrated 

professional or personal qualifications 

and experience relevant to the functions 

and tasks to be performed (41  CFR § 

102-3.60(b)(3));
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(b) identify the key agency staff (again, by 

position, not name) involved in 

determining balance on the Federal 

advisory committee; 



 (c) briefly describe how Federal advisory 

committee vacancies, if any, will be 

handled by the agency (vacancies, and 

the length of time they remain unfilled, 

can impact the balance of the Federal 

advisory committee); and 



 (d) state the membership term limit of 

Federal advisory committee members, 

if applicable.  Term limits result in 

turnover of membership and new 

perspectives, which affects the balance 

of a Federal advisory committee. 



(7) Subcommittee Balance.  Subcommittees 

subject to FACA should either state that the 

process for determining Federal advisory 

committee member balance on 

subcommittees is the same as the process 

for the parent Federal advisory committee, 

or describe how it is different. 



(8) Other.  Provide any additional information 

that supports the balance of the Federal 

advisory committee. 



(9) Date Prepared/Updated.  Insert the actual 

date the Membership Balance Plan was 

initially prepared, along with the date(s) the 

Plan is updated.  This is not the date the 

charter consultation is held with GSA. 



FACA WEB References: 



The Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) –

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/100916



Implementing Regulations (41  CFR 101 -6 and 102-3) –

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104034



Committee Management Secretariat Website -
http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104514



Finding FACA Information (www.eFACA.gov) or 

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/101111



The GSA FACA Database (www.FACA.gov) or 

http://www.fido.gov/facadatabase/



Committee Management Secretariat 

Office of Committee and Regulatory Management 



January 2011 
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http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/100916
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http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/101111

http://www.FACA.gov)
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 



FYI, I know you are both already working on this or have already submitted the

renewal packages but wanted to send this along just in case. 



Regards, 

Amanda 



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) <JHarris@doc.gov> 



Date: Tue, Jun 6, 2017 at 6:22 PM 



Subject: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



To: "Baggatts, Brandie" <Brandie.Baggatts@trade.gov>, "Basuel, Amanda (Federal)" 



<Amanda.Basuel@noaa.gov>, "Springer, Yvette" <Yvette.Springer@bis.doc.gov>, "Harman, Michelle C" 



<michelle.harman@nist.gov>, "Remaley, Evelyn" <ERemaley@ntia.doc.gov>, "Fisanich, Andria (Federal)" 



<AFisanich@eda.gov> 



Cc: "OPOG, FACA" <FACA@doc.gov>, "Zambrano, Luis" <LZambrano@ntia.doc.gov>, "Smith, Eric 



(Federal)" <ESmith@eda.gov>, "Martin, Lisa (Federal)" <LMartin1@doc.gov> 



Dear Committee Liaison Officers (CLOs), et. al.: 



You are receiving this email notification because your bureau/operating unit (BOU) has a charter expiring in 

the next 6 months.   If you have not already, please begin preparing your charter renewal package in order to 

ensure a timely submission.   Charter renewal packages are due in the Office of Privacy and Open Government 

(OPOG) 60 days prior to its expiration.   For example: if your charter expiration date is 08/06/2017 ,  then 

your package is due to OPOG 06/06/2017.   Some bureaus have a lengthy FACA clearance process, so keep that 

in mind when preparing your charter renewal.   If packages are not received 60 days prior to its expiration day, 

OPOG policy dictates the matter be escalated to your management and then senior management if the second 

deadline is missed. 



Please notify the DFOs for the below committees of the upcoming charter renewals and their responsibility to 

submit on-time and complete charter packages.   Charter renewal packages consist of the charter, membership 

balance plan, justification, and cover memo to the CFO/ASA.   For discretionary committees, please include a 

Federal Register (FR) notice with your packages. 



In addition, attached is GSA’s guidance for DOC’s charters and Membership Balance Plans.   Sections 10-15 has 

changed.   Be sure to format your charters accordingly. 



Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal 



From: Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 11:06 AM 



To: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal; Lynne Mersfelder-Lewis - NOAA Federal 



Subject: Fwd: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



Attachments: GSA Guidance for Doc Charters rev 11-17-15.doc; GSA Membership Balance Plan 



guidance.pdf 
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You may download the current charter and membership balance plan at:   https://database.faca.gov 



B 

e 

l 

o 

w 

, 

I 

’ 

m 

p 

r 



oviding additional guidance on renewing a charter: 



Renew a Committee Charter 



a. Any advisory committee established by an Act of Congress or required by the President shall file 

a charter upon the expiration of each successive two-year period following the date of enactment 

of the Act establishing such advisory committee. Non-Discretionary Committees, i.e. statutory 

committees and those required by the President, do not require clearance from GSA for renewal 

but will be submitted to GSA by the CMO for review and comment. 



BOU Date Of



Renewal



Charter 



Committee


No  


Committee Name Establishment 



Authority 



ITA 8/17/2017 25137

United States Travel and Tourism 

Advisory Board



Agency Authority



NOAA 8/20/2017 2544 
Advisory Committee for the

Sustained National Climate 
Assessment 



Agency Authority



BIS 9/1/2017 370 

Sensors and Instrumentation 
Technical Advisory Committee 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



NOAA 9/4/2017 16608 Hydrographic Services Review Panel 

Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



NIST 9/30/2017 2568 

National Advisory Committee on 
Windstorm Impact Reduction 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



NIST 10/19/2017 2013 

Manufacturing Extension 
Partnership Advisory Board 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 361 

Materials Processing Equipment 
Technical Advisory Committee 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 360 

Materials Technical Advisory 
Committee 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



ITA 10/28/2017 366 President's Export Council Presidential 



BIS 10/28/2017 367 
President's Export Council

Subcommittee on Export 
Administration 



Presidential 



NIST 11/5/2017 356 

Judges Panel of the Malcolm Baldrige 
National Quality Award 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



NIST 11/6/2017 317 

Board of Overseers of the Malcolm 
Baldrige National Quality Award 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



ITA 11/17/2017 76884 
Advisory Committee on Supply Chain

Competitiveness 



Agency Authority 



EDA 12/1/2017 72237 

National Advisory Council on 
Innovation and Entrepreneurship 


Statutory 

(Congress Created) 



NTIA 12/22/2017 2558 Digital Economy Board of Advisors Agency Authority 
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but will be submitted to GSA by the CMO for review and comment. 

b. To renew a committee charter, you will follow the same procedures as you do to establish both 



discretionary and non-discretionary committees except for the following: 



i. Make sure to start with the electronic copies of the current 

charter, justification, and membership balance plan.   Request the CMO send you the MS 

word copy of the standing charter; do not assume that the charter you submitted with 

the last renewal package is identical to what was signed. 



ii. The Secretary’s approval, which is needed to establish a 

discretionary committee, is not needed for a renewal. 



iii. A Federal Register notice for renewal of discretionary committees 

(rather than a notice of establishment) must be done but it is done after the filing of 

the charter.   A Federal Register notice for renewal of a non-discretionary committee 

can be done but is not required. 



iv. A justification needs to be attached to the request for both 

discretionary and non-discretionary committees.   The justification needs to state: 



1. A summary of the committee's accomplishments and activities for the 

period covered by the extant charter.   Include the number of meetings held, the 

titles and dates of any reports (not minutes) issued, an accounting of the 

committee's significant recommendations and their disposition, and the annual 

cost of operations. 



2. A statement that renewal is essential to the conduct of agency business and 

in the public interest and the reasons therefore. 



3. An explanation of why the committee's functions-cannot be performed by 

the Department or by an existing advisory committee or Federal agency. 



4. Balance plan for membership 



5. An estimated target date for the committee's completion of its functions. 



6. A proposed renewal charter, both in hard copy and electronic format. 



v. Requests for renewal must be received by the CFO/ASA no later 

than 60 days before the expiration of your charter. If the paperwork is not turned in 

on time, you may have to reestablish your committee. 



Please let me know if there are any questions. 



Respectfully, 



Jacqui 



Jacqueline E. Harris



Committee Management Officer 



Office of Privacy and Open Government 








 



  



U.S. Dept. of Commerce 



Telephone:  202-482-4011 



Email: jharris@doc.gov 



--


Amanda Basuel 

Analyst 

DOC/NOAA Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 



Phone - 301-628-0977 

amanda.basuel@noaa.gov 
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 



Jacqui, 



Thank you for sharing this information. Just wanted to let you  know that the 

expiration date is slightly off for the Hydrographic Survey Review Panel. The date 

should be September 7, not the 4th. 



Regards, 

Amanda 



On Tue, Jun 6, 2017 at 6:22 PM, Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) <JHarris@doc.gov> wrote: 



Dear Committee Liaison Officers (CLOs), et. al.: 



You are receiving this email notification because your bureau/operating unit (BOU) has a charter expiring in 

the next 6 months.   If you have not already, please begin preparing your charter renewal package in order to 

ensure a timely submission.   Charter renewal packages are due in the Office of Privacy and Open Government 

(OPOG) 60 days prior to its expiration.   For example: if your charter expiration date is 08/06/2017 ,  then 

your package is due to OPOG 06/06/2017.   Some bureaus have a lengthy FACA clearance process, so keep that 

in mind when preparing your charter renewal.   If packages are not received 60 days prior to its expiration day, 

OPOG policy dictates the matter be escalated to your management and then senior management if the second 

deadline is missed. 



Please notify the DFOs for the below committees of the upcoming charter renewals and their responsibility to 

submit on-time and complete charter packages.   Charter renewal packages consist of the charter, membership 

balance plan, justification, and cover memo to the CFO/ASA.   For discretionary committees, please include a 

Federal Register (FR) notice with your packages. 



In addition, attached is GSA’s guidance for DOC ’s charters and Membership Balance Plans.   Sections 10 -15 has 

changed.   Be sure to format your charters accordingly. 



You may download the current charter and membership balance plan at:   https://database.faca.gov 



Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal 



From: Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 3:25 PM 



To: Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) 



Subject: Re: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



BOU Date Of 
Renewal 


Charter 



Committee
No  


Committee Name Establishment 

Authority 



ITA 8/17/2017 25137 

United States Travel and Tourism 

Advisory Board 



Agency Authority 
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roviding additional guidance on renewing a charter: 



Renew a Committee Charter 



a. Any advisory committee established by an Act of Congress or required by the President shall file 

a charter upon the expiration of each successive two-year period following the date of enactment 

of the Act establishing such advisory committee. Non-Discretionary Committees, i.e. statutory 

committees and those required by the President, do not require clearance from GSA for renewal 

but will be submitted to GSA by the CMO for review and comment. 



b. To renew a committee charter, you will follow the same procedures as you do to establish both 

discretionary and non-discretionary committees except for the following: 



i. Make sure to start with the electronic copies of the current 

charter, justification, and membership balance plan.   Request the CMO send you the MS 

word copy of the standing charter; do not assume that the charter you submitted with 

the last renewal package is identical to what was signed. 



ii. The Secretary’s approval, which is needed to establish a 

discretionary committee, is not needed for a renewal. 



iii. A Federal Register notice for renewal of discretionary committees 



Advisory Board 



NOAA 8/20/2017 2544 

Advisory Committee for the Sustained 

National Climate Assessment 



Agency Authority 



BIS 9/1/2017 370 

Sensors and Instrumentation 
Technical Advisory Committee 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NOAA 9/4/2017 16608 Hydrographic Services Review Panel 

Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NIST 9/30/2017 2568 

National Advisory Committee on 
Windstorm Impact Reduction 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NIST 10/19/2017 2013 

Manufacturing Extension Partnership 
Advisory Board 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 361 

Materials Processing Equipment 
Technical Advisory Committee 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 360 

Materials Technical Advisory 
Committee 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



ITA 10/28/2017 366 President's Export Council Presidential 



BIS 10/28/2017 367 
President's Export Council 

Subcommittee on Export 
Administration 



Presidential 



NIST 11/5/2017 356 

Judges Panel of the Malcolm Baldrige 
National Quality Award 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NIST 11/6/2017 317 

Board of Overseers of the Malcolm 
Baldrige National Quality Award 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



ITA 11/17/2017 76884 
Advisory Committee on Supply Chain 

Competitiveness 



Agency Authority 



EDA 12/1/2017 72237 

National Advisory Council on 
Innovation and Entrepreneurship 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NTIA 12/22/2017 2558 Digital Economy Board of Advisors Agency Authority 








iii. A Federal Register notice for renewal of discretionary committees 

(rather than a notice of establishment) must be done but it is done after the filing of 

the charter.   A Federal Register notice for renewal of a non-discretionary committee 

can be done but is not required. 



iv. A justification needs to be attached to the request for both 

discretionary and non-discretionary committees.   The justification needs to state: 



1. A summary of the committee's accomplishments and activities for the 

period covered by the extant charter.   Include the number of meetings held, the 

titles and dates of any reports (not minutes) issued, an accounting of the 

committee's significant recommendations and their disposition, and the annual 

cost of operations. 



2. A statement that renewal is essential to the conduct of agency business and 

in the public interest and the reasons therefore. 



3. An explanation of why the committee's functions-cannot be performed by 

the Department or by an existing advisory committee or Federal agency. 



4. Balance plan for membership 



5. An estimated target date for the committee's completion of its functions. 



6. A proposed renewal charter, both in hard copy and electronic format. 



v. Requests for renewal must be received by the CFO/ASA no later 

than 60 days before the expiration of your charter. If the paperwork is not turned in 

on time, you may have to reestablish your committee. 



Please let me know if there are any questions. 



Respectfully, 



Jacqui 



Jacqueline E. Harris



Committee Management Officer 



Office of Privacy and Open Government 



U.S. Dept. of Commerce 



Telephone:  202-482-4011 



Email: jharris@doc.gov 



-- 
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 



  



--


Amanda Basuel 



Analyst 

DOC/NOAA Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 



Phone - 301-628-0977 

amanda.basuel@noaa.gov 
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No problem.   According to the date HSRP was signed (see attached) two years would be 9/4/17. 



Respectfully, 

Jacqui 



Jacqueline E. Harris

Committee Management Officer 

Office of Privacy and Open Government 

U.S. Dept. of Commerce 

Telephone:  202 -482-4011 

Email: jharris@doc.gov 



From:  Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal [mailto:amanda.basuel@noaa.gov] 

Sent:  Wednesday, June 07, 2017 3:25 PM 

To:  Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) <JHarris@doc.gov> 



Subject: Re: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



Jacqui, 



Thank you for sharing this information. Just wanted to let you  know that the expiration date is slightly off for the Hydrographic Survey Review Panel. The date should be September 7, not the 4th. 



Regards, 

Amanda 



On Tue, Jun 6, 2017 at 6:22 PM, Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) < JHarris@doc.gov> wrote: 



Dear Committee Liaison Officers (CLOs), et. al.: 



You are receiving this email notification because your bureau/operating unit (BOU) has a charter expiring in the next 6 months.   If you have not already, please begin preparing your charter renewal package in order to ensure a timely submission.   Charter renewal packages are due in the Office of Privacy and Open Government (OPOG) 60 days prior to its expiration .   For example: if your charter expiration date is 08/06/2017, then your package is due to OPOG 06/06/2017.

Some bureaus have a lengthy FACA clearance process, so keep that in mind when preparing your charter renewal.   If packages are not received 60 days prior to its expiration day, OPOG policy dictates the matter be escalated to your management and then senior management if the second deadline is missed. 



Please notify the DFOs for the below committees of the upcoming charter renewals and their responsibility to submit on-time and complete charter packages.   Charter renewal packages consist of the charter, membership balance plan, justification, and cover memo to the CFO/ASA.   For discretionary committees, please include a Federal Register (FR) notice with your packages. 

In addition, attached is GSA ’s guidance for DOC’s charters and Membership Balance Plans.   Sections 10 -15 has changed.   Be sure to format your charters accordingly. 

You may download the current charter and membership balance plan at:   https://database.faca.gov 



Below, I ’m providing additional guidance on renewing a charter: 

Renew a Committee Charter 



a. Any advisory committee established by an Act of Congress or required by the President shall file a charter upon the expiration of each successive two -year period following the date of enactment of the Act establishing such advisory committee. Non -Discretionary Committees, i.e. statutory committees and those 



required by the President, do not require clearance from GSA for renewal but will be submitted to GSA by the CMO for review and comment. 

b. To renew a committee charter, you will follow the same procedures as you do to establish both discretionary and non- discretionary committees except for the following: 



i. Make sure to start with the electronic copies of the current charter, justification, and membership balance plan.   Request the CMO send you the MS word copy of the standing charter; do not assume that the charter you submitted with the last renewal package is identical to what was signed. 

ii. The Secretary’s approval, which is needed to establish a discretionary committee, is not needed for a renewal. 



iii. A Federal Register notice for renewal of discretionary committees (rather than a notice of establishment) must be done but it is done after the filing of the charter.   A Federal Register notice for renewal of a non -discretionary committee can be done but is not required. 

iv. A justification needs to be attached to the request for both discretionary and non- discretionary committees.   The justification needs to state: 



1. A summary of the committee's accomplishments and activities for the period covered by the extant charter.   Include the number of meetings held, the titles and dates of any reports (not minutes) issued, an accounting of the committee's significant recommendations and their disposition, and the annual cost of operations. 

2. A statement that renewal is essential to the conduct of agency business and in the public interest and the reasons therefore. 

3. An explanation of why the committee's functions-cannot be performed by the Department or by an existing advisory committee or Federal agency. 

4. Balance plan for membership 

5. An estimated target date for the committee's completion of its functions. 

6. A proposed renewal charter, both in hard copy and electronic format. 



v. Requests for renewal must be received by  the CFO/ASA no later than 60 days before the expiration of your charter. If the paperwork is not turned in on time, you may have to reestablish your committee. 

Please let me know if there are any questions. 

Respectfully, 

Jacqui 



Jacqueline E. Harris

Committee Management Officer 

Office of Privacy and Open Government 

U.S. Dept. of Commerce 

Telephone:  202- 482-4011 

Email: jharris@doc.gov 



--


Amanda Basuel 

Analyst 

DOC/NOAA Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 

Phone - 301 - 628- 0977 



amanda.basuel@noaa.gov 



Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) 



From: Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) 



Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 4:02 PM 



To: Basuel, Amanda (Federal) 



Cc: OPOG, FACA 



Subject: RE: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



Attachments: HSRP Signed Charter 9- 4- 15.pdf 



BOU Date Of 


Renewal 
Charter 



Committee 


No 



Committee Name Establishment Authority 



ITA 8/17/2017 25137 United States Travel and Tourism Advisory Board Agency Authority 



NOAA 8/20/2017 2544 Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessment Agency Authority 



BIS 9/1/2017 370 Sensors and Instrumentation Technical Advisory Committee Statutory (Congress Created) 



NOAA 9/4/2017 16608 Hydrographic Services Review Panel Statutory (Congress Created) 



NIST 9/30/2017 2568 National Advisory Committee on Windstorm Impact Reduction Statutory (Congress Created) 



NIST 10/19/2017 2013 Manufacturing Extension Partnership Advisory Board Statutory (Congress Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 361 Materials Processing Equipment Technical Advisory Committee Statutory (Congress Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 360 Materials Technical Advisory Committee Statutory (Congress Created) 



ITA 10/28/2017 366 President's Export Council Presidential 


BIS 10/28/2017 367 President's Export Council Subcommittee on Export Administration Presidential 



NIST 11/5/2017 356 Judges Panel of the Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award Statutory (Congress Created) 


NIST 11/6/2017 317 Board of Overseers of the Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award Statutory (Congress Created) 


ITA 11/17/2017 76884 Advisory Committee on Supply Chain Competitiveness Agency Authority  


EDA 12/1/2017 72237 National Advisory Council on Innovation and Entrepreneurship Statutory (Congress Created) 


NTIA 12/22/2017 2558 Digital Economy Board of Advisors Agency Authority 
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		RE Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals























FYI, the charter does have the 9/4/15 date on it. Let me know if you have a different document. 



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) < JHarris@doc.gov > 

Date: Wed, Jun 7, 2017 at 4:01 PM 



Subject: RE: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



To: "Basuel, Amanda (Federal)" <Amanda.Basuel@noaa.gov > 

Cc: "OPOG, FACA" < FACA@doc.gov> 



No problem.   According to the date HSRP was signed (see attached) two years would be 9/4/17. 



Respectfully, 



Jacqui 



Jacqueline E. Harris



Committee Management Officer 



Office of Privacy and Open Government 



U.S. Dept. of Commerce 



Telephone:  202 -482-4011 



Email: jharris@doc.gov 



From:  Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal [mailto:amanda.basuel@noaa.gov ] 



Sent:  Wednesday, June 07, 2017 3:25 PM 

To:  Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) <JHarris@doc.gov> 

Subject: Re: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



Jacqui, 



Thank you for sharing this information. Just wanted to let you  know that the expiration date is slightly off for the Hydrographic Survey Review Panel. The date should be September 7, not the 4th. 



Regards, 



Amanda 



On Tue, Jun 6, 2017 at 6:22 PM, Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) < JHarris@doc.gov> wrote: 



Dear Committee Liaison Officers (CLOs), et. al.: 



You are receiving this email notification because your bureau/operating unit (BOU) has a charter expiring in the next 6 months.   If you have not already, please begin preparing your charter renewal package in order to ensure a timely submission.   Charter renewal packages are due in the Office of Privacy and Open Government (OPOG) 60 days prior to its expiration .   For example: if your charter expiration date is 08/06/2017, then your package is due to OPOG 06/06/2017.

Some bureaus have a lengthy FACA clearance process, so keep that in mind when preparing your charter renewal.   If packages are not received 60 days prior to its expiration day, OPOG policy dictates the matter be escalated to your management and then senior management if the second deadline is missed. 



Please notify the DFOs for the below committees of the upcoming charter renewals and their responsibility to submit on-time and complete charter packages.   Charter renewal packages consist of the charter, membership balance plan, justification, and cover memo to the CFO/ASA.   For discretionary committees, please include a Federal Register (FR) notice with your packages. 



In addition, attached is GSA ’s guidance for DOC’s charters and Membership Balance Plans.   Sections 10 -15 has changed.   Be sure to format your charters accordingly. 



You may download the current charter and membership balance plan at:   https://database.faca.gov 



Below, I’m providing additional guidance on renewing a charter: 



Renew a Committee Charter 



a. Any advisory committee established by an Act of Congress or required by the President shall file a charter upon the expiration of each successive two -year period following the date of enactment of the Act establishing such advisory committee. Non -Discretionary Committees, i.e. statutory committees and those required by the President, do not require clearance from GSA for renewal but will be submitted to GSA by the CMO for review and comment. 

b. To renew a committee charter, you will follow the same procedures as you do to establish both discretionary and non -discretionary committees except for the following: 



i. Make sure to start with the electronic copies of the current charter, justification, and membership balance plan.   Request the CMO send you the MS word copy of the standing charter; do not assume that the charter you submitted with the last renewal package is identical to what was signed. 



ii. The Secretary’s approval, which is needed to establish a discretionary committee, is not needed  for a renewal. 



iii. A Federal Register notice for renewal of discretionary committees (rather than a notice of establishment) must be done but it is done after the filing of the charter.   A Federal Register notice for renewal of a non -discretionary committee can be done but is not required. 



iv. A justification needs to be attached to the request for both discretionary and non-discretionary committees.   The justification needs to state: 



1. A summary of the committee's accomplishments and activities for the period covered by the extant charter.   Include the number of meetings held, the titles and dates of any reports (not minutes) issued, an accounting of the committee's significant recommendations and their disposition, and the annual cost of operations. 



2. A statement that renewal is essential to the conduct of agency business and in the public interest and the reasons therefore. 



3. An explanation of why the committee's functions-cannot be performed by the Department or by an existing advisory committee or Federal agency. 



4. Balance plan for membership 



5. An estimated target date for the committee's completion of its functions. 



6. A proposed renewal charter, both in hard copy and electronic format. 



v. Requests for renewal must be received by  the CFO/ASA no later than 60 days before the expiration of your charter. If the paperwork is not turned in on time, you may have to reestablish your committee. 



Please let me know if there are any questions. 



Respectfully, 



Jacqui 



Jacqueline E. Harris



Committee Management Officer 



Office of Privacy and Open Government 



U.S. Dept. of Commerce 



Telephone:  202- 482-4011 



Email: jharris@doc.gov 



--


Amanda Basuel 



Analyst 



DOC/NOAA Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 



Phone - 301 - 628- 0977 



amanda.basuel@noaa.gov 



--


Amanda Basuel 



Analyst 

DOC/NOAA Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 



Phone - 301 - 628- 0977 



amanda.basuel@noaa.gov 



Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal 



From: Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2017 4:22 PM 



To: Lynne Mersfelder -Lewis - NOAA Federal 



Subject: Fwd: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



Attachments: HSRP Signed Charter 9- 4- 15.pdf 



BOU Date Of 
Renewal 


Charter 



Committee 
No 



Committee Name Establishment Authority 



ITA 8/17/2017 25137 United States Travel and Tourism Advisory Board Agency Authority 



NOAA 8/20/2017 2544 Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessment Agency Authority 



BIS 9/1/2017 370 Sensors and Instrumentation Technical Advisory Committee Statutory (Congress Created) 



NOAA 9/4/2017 16608 Hydrographic Services Review Panel Statutory (Congress Created) 



NIST 9/30/2017 2568 National Advisory Committee on Windstorm Impact Reduction Statutory (Congress Created) 



NIST 10/19/2017 2013 Manufacturing Extension Partnership Advisory Board Statutory (Congress Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 361 Materials Processing Equipment Technical Advisory Committee Statutory (Congress Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 360 Materials Technical Advisory Committee Statutory (Congress Created) 



ITA 10/28/2017 366 President's Export Council Presidential 



BIS 10/28/2017 367 President's Export Council Subcommittee on Export Administration Presidential 



NIST 11/5/2017 356 Judges Panel of the Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award Statutory (Congress Created) 



NIST 11/6/2017 317 Board of Overseers of the Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award Statutory (Congress Created) 



ITA 11/17/2017 76884 Advisory Committee on Supply Chain Competitiveness Agency Authority 



EDA 12/1/2017 72237 National Advisory Council on Innovation and Entrepreneurship Statutory (Congress Created) 



NTIA 12/22/2017 2558 Digital Economy Board of Advisors Agency Authority 
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		Fwd Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals






 



Amanda, 



Both of my charter renewal packages have been submitted.  Jacqui has the SAB package.  The ACSNCA 



package is still downtown to my knowledge going through NOAA clearance.  I believe they are aware there 



is a June 20 deadline to get it to CMO.  I have sent messages down there reminding them of this before I 



went out on leave.  That's all I can do at this point. 



Thanks, 



Cynthia 



On Wed, Jun 7, 2017 at 11:06 AM, Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal <amanda.basuel@noaa.gov> wrote: 



FYI, I know you are both already working on this or have already submitted the 

renewal packages but wanted to send this along just in case. 



Regards, 

Amanda 



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Harris, Jacqueline (Federal) <JHarris@doc.gov> 



Date: Tue, Jun 6, 2017 at 6:22 PM 



Subject: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 



To: "Baggatts, Brandie" <Brandie.Baggatts@trade.gov>, "Basuel, Amanda (Federal)" 



<Amanda.Basuel@noaa.gov>, "Springer, Yvette" <Yvette.Springer@bis.doc.gov>, "Harman, Michelle C" 



<michelle.harman@nist.gov>, "Remaley, Evelyn" <ERemaley@ntia.doc.gov>, "Fisanich, Andria (Federal)" 



<AFisanich@eda.gov> 



Cc: "OPOG, FACA" <FACA@doc.gov>, "Zambrano, Luis" <LZambrano@ntia.doc.gov>, "Smith, Eric 



(Federal)" <ESmith@eda.gov>, "Martin, Lisa (Federal)" <LMartin1@doc.gov> 



Dear Committee Liaison Officers (CLOs), et. al.: 



You are receiving this email notification because your bureau/operating unit (BOU) has a charter expiring in 

the next 6 months.   If you have not already, please begin preparing your charter renewal package in order to 

ensure a timely submission.   Charter renewal packages are due in the Office of Privacy and Open Government 

(OPOG) 60 days prior to its expiration.   For example: if your charter expiration date is 08/06/2017 ,  then 

your package is due to OPOG 06/06/2017.   Some bureaus have a lengthy FACA clearance process, so keep that 



Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



From: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Friday, June 9, 2017 8:15 AM 



To: Amanda Basuel - NOAA Federal 



Cc: Lynne Mersfelder-Lewis - NOAA Federal 



Subject: Re: Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals 
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your package is due to OPOG 06/06/2017.   Some bureaus have a lengthy FACA clearance process, so keep that 

in mind when preparing your charter renewal.   If packages are not received 60 days prior to its expiration day, 

OPOG policy dictates the matter be escalated to your management and then senior management if the second 

deadline is missed. 



Please notify the DFOs for the below committees of the upcoming charter renewals and their responsibility to 

submit on-time and complete charter packages.   Charter renewal packages consist of the charter, membership 

balance plan, justification, and cover memo to the CFO/ASA.   For discretionary committees, please include a 

Federal Register (FR) notice with your packages. 



In addition, attached is GSA’s guidance for DOC ’s charters and Membership Balance Plans.   Sections 10 -15 has 

changed.   Be sure to format your charters accordingly. 



You may download the current charter and membership balance plan at:   https://database.faca.gov 



BOU Date Of

Renewal



Charter 



Committee
No  


Committee Name Establishment 

Authority 



ITA 8/17/2017 25137 

United States Travel and Tourism 

Advisory Board 



Agency Authority 



NOAA 8/20/2017 2544 

Advisory Committee for the Sustained 

National Climate Assessment 



Agency Authority 



BIS 9/1/2017 370 

Sensors and Instrumentation 
Technical Advisory Committee 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NOAA 9/4/2017 16608 Hydrographic Services Review Panel 

Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NIST 9/30/2017 2568 

National Advisory Committee on 
Windstorm Impact Reduction 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NIST 10/19/2017 2013 

Manufacturing Extension Partnership 
Advisory Board 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 361 

Materials Processing Equipment 
Technical Advisory Committee 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



BIS 10/21/2017 360 

Materials Technical Advisory 
Committee 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



ITA 10/28/2017 366 President's Export Council Presidential 



BIS 10/28/2017 367 
President's Export Council 

Subcommittee on Export 
Administration 



Presidential 



NIST 11/5/2017 356 

Judges Panel of the Malcolm Baldrige 
National Quality Award 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



NIST 11/6/2017 317 

Board of Overseers of the Malcolm 
Baldrige National Quality Award 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 



ITA 11/17/2017 76884 
Advisory Committee on Supply Chain 

Competitiveness 



Agency Authority 



EDA 12/1/2017 72237 

National Advisory Council on 
Innovation and Entrepreneurship 


Statutory (Congress 

Created) 
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roviding additional guidance on renewing a charter: 



Renew a Committee Charter 



a. Any advisory committee established by an Act of Congress or required by the President shall file 

a charter upon the expiration of each successive two-year period following the date of enactment 

of the Act establishing such advisory committee. Non-Discretionary Committees, i.e. statutory 

committees and those required by the President, do not require clearance from GSA for renewal 

but will be submitted to GSA by the CMO for review and comment. 



b. To renew a committee charter, you will follow the same procedures as you do to establish both 

discretionary and non-discretionary committees except for the following: 



i. Make sure to start with the electronic copies of the current 

charter, justification, and membership balance plan.   Request the CMO send you the MS 

word copy of the standing charter; do not assume that the charter you submitted with 

the last renewal package is identical to what was signed. 



ii. The Secretary’s approval, which is needed to establish a 

discretionary committee, is not needed for a renewal. 



iii. A Federal Register notice for renewal of discretionary committees 

(rather than a notice of establishment) must be done but it is done after the filing of 

the charter.   A Federal Register notice for renewal of a non-discretionary committee 

can be done but is not required. 



iv. A justification needs to be attached to the request for both 

discretionary and non-discretionary committees.   The justification needs to state: 



1. A summary of the committee's accomplishments and activities for the 

period covered by the extant charter.   Include the number of meetings held, the 

titles and dates of any reports (not minutes) issued, an accounting of the 

committee's significant recommendations and their disposition, and the annual 

cost of operations. 



2. A statement that renewal is essential to the conduct of agency business and 

in the public interest and the reasons therefore. 



3. An explanation of why the committee's functions-cannot be performed by 

the Department or by an existing advisory committee or Federal agency. 



4. Balance plan for membership 



5. An estimated target date for the committee's completion of its functions. 



6. A proposed renewal charter, both in hard copy and electronic format. 



v. Requests for renewal must be received by the CFO/ASA no later 

than 60 days before the expiration of your charter. If the paperwork is not turned in 

on time, you may have to reestablish your committee. 



Please let me know if there are any questions. 



Respectfully, 



NTIA 12/22/2017 2558 Digital Economy Board of Advisors Agency Authority 








 



  



Jacqui 



Jacqueline E. Harris



Committee Management Officer 



Office of Privacy and Open Government 



U.S. Dept. of Commerce 



Telephone:  202-482-4011 



Email: jharris@doc.gov 



--


Amanda Basuel 



Analyst 

DOC/NOAA Office of the Chief Administrative Officer 



Phone - 301 -628-0977 

amanda.basuel@noaa.gov 



--


********************************************* 



Cynthia J. Decker, Ph.D 



Executive Director 



NOAA Science Advisory Board 



and 



NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



SSMC3, Room 11230 



1315 East-West Hwy 



Silver Spring, MD  20910 



Phone 301-734-1156 



Fax      301-713-1459 



Email: cynthia.decker@noaa.gov 



********************************************* 
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		Re Upcoming FACA Charter Renewals






 



Chris, 



Thanks for the follow-up and affirmation of the McKinsey email.  Since the email was sent at 12:44 AM 



and from a non-governmental email address, I can see how it raised eyebrows about its authenticity. 



Probably not a wise move considering the recent and massive OPM security breach. 



Walt Z. 



On Wed, Jul 15, 2015 at 7:50 PM, Chris McKinney - NOAA Federal <chris.mckinney@noaa.gov> wrote: 



Walt, 



Patrick Dunnigan with the McKinsey team has confirmed that this is in fact the survey and the link is



legitimate. It was sent out via the external email to ensure confidentiality of responses. Please have



the WCMs send them to our external partners. 



Thanks, 



Chris 



Sent from my iPad 



On Jul 15, 2015, at 5:16 PM, Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal <walt.zaleski@noaa.gov> wrote: 



Hello Chris, 



You may have already received other inquiries about the legitimacy of the request 



below.  I had previously notified our SR WCMs that a survey was pending from McKinsey 



and Company and information pertaining to the survey would be forwarded once the 



Regions were notified.  However, the apparent McKinsey email below was sent to all 



WCMs and not routed through official channels/protocols (WSH through the Regions to 



the WFOs). 



Just to confirm, is this legitimate?  Your subsequent confirmation most appreciated. 



Walt Z. 



817-966-4268 (work cell) 



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Patrick Dunnigan <diy@esurveydesigns.com> 



Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



From: Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 10:22 PM 



To: Chris McKinney - NOAA Federal 



Cc: Timothy Oram - NOAA Federal; Jeffrey Cupo - NOAA Federal 



Bcc: Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



Subject: Re: NWS IDSS Stakeholder Survey 
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Date: Wed, Jul 15, 2015 at 12:44 AM 



Subject: NWS IDSS Stakeholder Survey 



To: sr.wcm@noaa.gov 



WCMs: 



As most of you are aware, the National Weather Service has partnered with an external 



consultant group—McKinsey and Company—to launch the NWS Operations and 



Workforce Analysis (OWA) project. The OWA team is requesting your help in better 



understanding how external stakeholders perceive IDSS products, services and 



communications. 



The OWA team is launching a stakeholder survey to gather these insights. The ask is for



you to forward the survey email and link (below) to your most important external 



stakeholders for IDSS. The results will be submitted directly to the OWA team to assess



what IDSS means to stakeholders and how they perceive its effectiveness. It is not



evaluative of any given person or office. 



A few important points to note about the survey: 



l We request that you send both the text below and the survey link to ~10-20 



external stakeholders who you interact in your regular capacities 



l Please send it as soon as possible so that we have time to review the results



l It should take approximately 20-30 minutes to complete 



l Participation is voluntary and submissions will be sent directly to the OWA team 



via the online survey platform 



l The results will only be reported in aggregate, not attributed to a particular 



respondent or office; they will be used to better understand how stakeholders 



perceive and value IDSS, not to assess who is “good ” at IDSS 



l Participants will have until July 24 to respond once the survey is launched. 



Please reach out with any questions to Andrea Bleistein (Andrea.Bleistein@noaa.gov) 



and thank you in advance for your help. 



Kind regards, 



NWS OWA Team 



**This is a system-generated email. Please do not respond to this email.** 



______________________________________________________ 



Dear NWS Core Partner: 



The National Weather Service (NWS) is evaluating its Impact-based Decision Support 



Services (IDSS) as it evolves to achieve a Weather-Ready Nation. 



You were identified by your local NWS office as a critical stakeholder in the emergency 



response community and we invite you to take a brief survey (link below) about your 



impressions of IDSS. The survey takes just 20-30 minutes and is vital to this project. We
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 



ask that you complete it by July 24 and very much appreciate your fast attention to it. 



A few important points about the survey: 



l It is voluntary and submissions will be sent directly to the NWS team via the



online survey platform 



l The results will not be attributed to a particular respondent or office; results will 



only be reported in aggregate. 



l No personally identifiable information (PII) is requested, and we ask that you do 



not include any in the open-response questions on the survey instrument 



l The results will be used to help evaluate overall external satisfaction with IDSS



and any similarities or differences to internal NWS evaluations. They will not be



used to evaluate whether a particular office is “good ” at IDSS. 



We ask that you complete the survey by July 24 by clicking on the link below.  Thank you 



for your support. 



Kind regards, 



NWS Team 



http://diy.esurveydesigns.com/wix/p45445038.aspx 



+===========================================================+ 



This email is confidential and may be privileged. If you have received it 



in error, please notify us immediately and then delete it. Please do not 



copy it, disclose its contents or use it for any purpose. 



+===========================================================+ 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE
1325 East-West Highway
Silver Spring, Maryland  20910-3283



 


Mr. Brian Gaffney



446 Old Country Road


Suite 100-310



Pacifica, CA 94044


Re: Request No. DOC-NOAA-[2017-000790]


Dear Mr. Gaffney, 


This letter is in response to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request which was



received by our office on March 20, 2017, in which you requested:


“...all records from January 1, 2015 to the present discussing, documenting, memorializing, or



otherwise concerning: (1) weather modification within the Weather Service Organization



Workforce Analysis; (2) the reason for adoption of the "Operations and Workforce Analysis


(OWA) Project: Charter for All Workstream Core Teams".


Of the 1400 potentially responsive records we reviewed this month, we have located one record



deemed to be responsive to your request for this interim release.


Although we do not consider this to be a denial of your request, you have the right to file an



administrative appeal if you are not satisfied with our response to your FOIA request. All appeals



should include a statement of the reasons why you believe the FOIA response was not


satisfactory. An appeal based on documents in this release must be received within 90 calendar



days of the date of this response letter at the following address:


Assistant General Counsel for Litigation, Employment, and Oversight


U.S. Department of Commerce


Office of General Counsel


Room 5875


14
th


 and Constitution Avenue, N.W.


Washington, D.C. 20230 


An appeal may also be sent by e-mail to FOIAAppeals@doc.gov, by facsimile (fax) to 202-482-


2552, or by FOIAonline at https://foiaonline.regulations.gov/foia/action/public/home#.



For your appeal to be complete, it must include the following items:


 a copy of the original request,


 our response to your request,


 a statement explaining why the withheld records should be made available, and why the



denial of the records was in error.
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 “Freedom of Information Act Appeal” must appear on your appeal letter. It should also

be written on your envelope, e-mail subject line, or your fax cover sheet.


FOIA appeals posted to the e-mail box, fax machine, FOIAonline, or Office after normal



business hours will be deemed received on the next business day.  If the 90th calendar day for



submitting an appeal falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal public holiday, an appeal received by



5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, the next business day will be deemed timely.


FOIA grants requesters the right to challenge an agency's final action in federal court. Before



doing so, an adjudication of an administrative appeal is ordinarily required.


The Office of Government Information Services (OGIS), an office created within the National



Archives and Records Administration, offers free mediation services to FOIA requesters. They



may be contacted in any of the following ways:


Office of Government Information Services


National Archives and Records Administration


Room 2510


8601 Adelphi Road


College Park, MD 20740-6001



Email: ogis@nara.gov


Phone: 301-837-1996


Fax: 301-837-0348


Toll-free: 1-877-684-6448


If you have questions regarding this correspondence please contact Denise Hamilton at


Denise.Hamilton@noaa.gov or by phone at 301-427-6935. 


Sincerely, 


 


 


Mark Graff



NOAA FOIA Officer   
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Digitally signed by



GRAFF.MARK.HYRUM.1 51 4447892



DN: c=US, o=U.S. Government,



ou=DoD, ou=PKI, ou=OTHER,



cn=GRAFF.MARK.HYRUM.1 51 4447892


Date: 2018.07.05 1 5:33:08 -04'00'




mailto:ogis@nara.gov






 



Chris, 



Thanks for the follow-up and affirmation of the McKinsey email.  Since the email was sent at 12:44 AM 



and from a non-governmental email address, I can see how it raised eyebrows about its authenticity. 



Probably not a wise move considering the recent and massive OPM security breach. 



Walt Z. 



On Wed, Jul 15, 2015 at 7:50 PM, Chris McKinney - NOAA Federal <chris.mckinney@noaa.gov> wrote: 



Walt, 



Patrick Dunnigan with the McKinsey team has confirmed that this is in fact the survey and the link is



legitimate. It was sent out via the external email to ensure confidentiality of responses. Please have



the WCMs send them to our external partners. 



Thanks, 



Chris 



Sent from my iPad 



On Jul 15, 2015, at 5:16 PM, Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal <walt.zaleski@noaa.gov> wrote: 



Hello Chris, 



You may have already received other inquiries about the legitimacy of the request 



below.  I had previously notified our SR WCMs that a survey was pending from McKinsey 



and Company and information pertaining to the survey would be forwarded once the 



Regions were notified.  However, the apparent McKinsey email below was sent to all 



WCMs and not routed through official channels/protocols (WSH through the Regions to 



the WFOs). 



Just to confirm, is this legitimate?  Your subsequent confirmation most appreciated. 



Walt Z. 



817-966-4268 (work cell) 



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Patrick Dunnigan <diy@esurveydesigns.com> 



Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



From: Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 10:22 PM 



To: Chris McKinney - NOAA Federal 



Cc: Timothy Oram - NOAA Federal; Jeffrey Cupo - NOAA Federal 



Bcc: Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



Subject: Re: NWS IDSS Stakeholder Survey 
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Date: Wed, Jul 15, 2015 at 12:44 AM 



Subject: NWS IDSS Stakeholder Survey 



To: sr.wcm@noaa.gov 



WCMs: 



As most of you are aware, the National Weather Service has partnered with an external 



consultant group—McKinsey and Company—to launch the NWS Operations and 



Workforce Analysis (OWA) project. The OWA team is requesting your help in better 



understanding how external stakeholders perceive IDSS products, services and 



communications. 



The OWA team is launching a stakeholder survey to gather these insights. The ask is for



you to forward the survey email and link (below) to your most important external 



stakeholders for IDSS. The results will be submitted directly to the OWA team to assess



what IDSS means to stakeholders and how they perceive its effectiveness. It is not



evaluative of any given person or office. 



A few important points to note about the survey: 



l We request that you send both the text below and the survey link to ~10-20 



external stakeholders who you interact in your regular capacities 



l Please send it as soon as possible so that we have time to review the results



l It should take approximately 20-30 minutes to complete 



l Participation is voluntary and submissions will be sent directly to the OWA team 



via the online survey platform 



l The results will only be reported in aggregate, not attributed to a particular 



respondent or office; they will be used to better understand how stakeholders 



perceive and value IDSS, not to assess who is “good ” at IDSS 



l Participants will have until July 24 to respond once the survey is launched. 



Please reach out with any questions to Andrea Bleistein (Andrea.Bleistein@noaa.gov) 



and thank you in advance for your help. 



Kind regards, 



NWS OWA Team 



**This is a system-generated email. Please do not respond to this email.** 



______________________________________________________ 



Dear NWS Core Partner: 



The National Weather Service (NWS) is evaluating its Impact-based Decision Support 



Services (IDSS) as it evolves to achieve a Weather-Ready Nation. 



You were identified by your local NWS office as a critical stakeholder in the emergency 



response community and we invite you to take a brief survey (link below) about your 



impressions of IDSS. The survey takes just 20-30 minutes and is vital to this project. We
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 



ask that you complete it by July 24 and very much appreciate your fast attention to it. 



A few important points about the survey: 



l It is voluntary and submissions will be sent directly to the NWS team via the



online survey platform 



l The results will not be attributed to a particular respondent or office; results will 



only be reported in aggregate. 



l No personally identifiable information (PII) is requested, and we ask that you do 



not include any in the open-response questions on the survey instrument 



l The results will be used to help evaluate overall external satisfaction with IDSS



and any similarities or differences to internal NWS evaluations. They will not be



used to evaluate whether a particular office is “good ” at IDSS. 



We ask that you complete the survey by July 24 by clicking on the link below.  Thank you 



for your support. 



Kind regards, 



NWS Team 



http://diy.esurveydesigns.com/wix/p45445038.aspx 



+===========================================================+ 



This email is confidential and may be privileged. If you have received it 



in error, please notify us immediately and then delete it. Please do not 



copy it, disclose its contents or use it for any purpose. 



+===========================================================+ 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE
1325 East-West Highway
Silver Spring, Maryland  20910-3283



 


Mr. Brian Gaffney



446 Old Country Road


Suite 100-310



Pacifica, CA 94044


Re: Request No. DOC-NOAA-[2017-000790]


Dear Mr. Gaffney, 


This letter is in response to your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request which was



received by our office on March 20, 2017, in which you requested:


“...all records from January 1, 2015 to the present discussing, documenting, memorializing, or



otherwise concerning: (1) weather modification within the Weather Service Organization



Workforce Analysis; (2) the reason for adoption of the "Operations and Workforce Analysis


(OWA) Project: Charter for All Workstream Core Teams".


Of the 1400 potentially responsive records we reviewed this month, we have located one record



deemed to be responsive to your request for this interim release.


Although we do not consider this to be a denial of your request, you have the right to file an



administrative appeal if you are not satisfied with our response to your FOIA request. All appeals



should include a statement of the reasons why you believe the FOIA response was not


satisfactory. An appeal based on documents in this release must be received within 90 calendar



days of the date of this response letter at the following address:


Assistant General Counsel for Litigation, Employment, and Oversight


U.S. Department of Commerce


Office of General Counsel


Room 5875


14
th


 and Constitution Avenue, N.W.


Washington, D.C. 20230 


An appeal may also be sent by e-mail to FOIAAppeals@doc.gov, by facsimile (fax) to 202-482-


2552, or by FOIAonline at https://foiaonline.regulations.gov/foia/action/public/home#.



For your appeal to be complete, it must include the following items:


 a copy of the original request,


 our response to your request,


 a statement explaining why the withheld records should be made available, and why the



denial of the records was in error.
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 “Freedom of Information Act Appeal” must appear on your appeal letter. It should also

be written on your envelope, e-mail subject line, or your fax cover sheet.


FOIA appeals posted to the e-mail box, fax machine, FOIAonline, or Office after normal



business hours will be deemed received on the next business day.  If the 90th calendar day for



submitting an appeal falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal public holiday, an appeal received by



5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, the next business day will be deemed timely.


FOIA grants requesters the right to challenge an agency's final action in federal court. Before



doing so, an adjudication of an administrative appeal is ordinarily required.


The Office of Government Information Services (OGIS), an office created within the National



Archives and Records Administration, offers free mediation services to FOIA requesters. They



may be contacted in any of the following ways:


Office of Government Information Services


National Archives and Records Administration


Room 2510


8601 Adelphi Road


College Park, MD 20740-6001



Email: ogis@nara.gov


Phone: 301-837-1996


Fax: 301-837-0348


Toll-free: 1-877-684-6448


If you have questions regarding this correspondence please contact Denise Hamilton at


Denise.Hamilton@noaa.gov or by phone at 301-427-6935. 


Sincerely, 


 


 


Mark Graff



NOAA FOIA Officer   


GRAFF.MARK.HY


RUM.1 51444789 


2


Digitally signed by



GRAFF.MARK.HYRUM.1 51 4447892



DN: c=US, o=U.S. Government,



ou=DoD, ou=PKI, ou=OTHER,



cn=GRAFF.MARK.HYRUM.1 51 4447892


Date: 2018.07.05 1 5:33:08 -04'00'
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 



Chris, 



Thanks for the follow-up and affirmation of the McKinsey email.  Since the email was sent at 12:44 AM 



and from a non-governmental email address, I can see how it raised eyebrows about its authenticity. 



Probably not a wise move considering the recent and massive OPM security breach. 



Walt Z. 



On Wed, Jul 15, 2015 at 7:50 PM, Chris McKinney - NOAA Federal <chris.mckinney@noaa.gov> wrote: 



Walt, 



Patrick Dunnigan with the McKinsey team has confirmed that this is in fact the survey and the link is



legitimate. It was sent out via the external email to ensure confidentiality of responses. Please have



the WCMs send them to our external partners. 



Thanks, 



Chris 



Sent from my iPad 



On Jul 15, 2015, at 5:16 PM, Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal <walt.zaleski@noaa.gov> wrote: 



Hello Chris, 



You may have already received other inquiries about the legitimacy of the request 



below.  I had previously notified our SR WCMs that a survey was pending from McKinsey 



and Company and information pertaining to the survey would be forwarded once the 



Regions were notified.  However, the apparent McKinsey email below was sent to all 



WCMs and not routed through official channels/protocols (WSH through the Regions to 



the WFOs). 



Just to confirm, is this legitimate?  Your subsequent confirmation most appreciated. 



Walt Z. 



817-966-4268 (work cell) 



---------- Forwarded message ----------


From: Patrick Dunnigan <diy@esurveydesigns.com> 



Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



From: Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 10:22 PM 



To: Chris McKinney - NOAA Federal 



Cc: Timothy Oram - NOAA Federal; Jeffrey Cupo - NOAA Federal 



Bcc: Walt Zaleski - NOAA Federal 



Subject: Re: NWS IDSS Stakeholder Survey 
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Date: Wed, Jul 15, 2015 at 12:44 AM 



Subject: NWS IDSS Stakeholder Survey 



To: sr.wcm@noaa.gov 



WCMs: 



As most of you are aware, the National Weather Service has partnered with an external 



consultant group—McKinsey and Company—to launch the NWS Operations and 



Workforce Analysis (OWA) project. The OWA team is requesting your help in better 



understanding how external stakeholders perceive IDSS products, services and 



communications. 



The OWA team is launching a stakeholder survey to gather these insights. The ask is for



you to forward the survey email and link (below) to your most important external 



stakeholders for IDSS. The results will be submitted directly to the OWA team to assess



what IDSS means to stakeholders and how they perceive its effectiveness. It is not



evaluative of any given person or office. 



A few important points to note about the survey: 



l We request that you send both the text below and the survey link to ~10-20 



external stakeholders who you interact in your regular capacities 



l Please send it as soon as possible so that we have time to review the results



l It should take approximately 20-30 minutes to complete 



l Participation is voluntary and submissions will be sent directly to the OWA team 



via the online survey platform 



l The results will only be reported in aggregate, not attributed to a particular 



respondent or office; they will be used to better understand how stakeholders 



perceive and value IDSS, not to assess who is “good ” at IDSS 



l Participants will have until July 24 to respond once the survey is launched. 



Please reach out with any questions to Andrea Bleistein (Andrea.Bleistein@noaa.gov) 



and thank you in advance for your help. 



Kind regards, 



NWS OWA Team 



**This is a system-generated email. Please do not respond to this email.** 



______________________________________________________ 



Dear NWS Core Partner: 



The National Weather Service (NWS) is evaluating its Impact-based Decision Support 



Services (IDSS) as it evolves to achieve a Weather-Ready Nation. 



You were identified by your local NWS office as a critical stakeholder in the emergency 



response community and we invite you to take a brief survey (link below) about your 



impressions of IDSS. The survey takes just 20-30 minutes and is vital to this project. We
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ask that you complete it by July 24 and very much appreciate your fast attention to it. 



A few important points about the survey: 



l It is voluntary and submissions will be sent directly to the NWS team via the



online survey platform 



l The results will not be attributed to a particular respondent or office; results will 



only be reported in aggregate. 



l No personally identifiable information (PII) is requested, and we ask that you do 



not include any in the open-response questions on the survey instrument 



l The results will be used to help evaluate overall external satisfaction with IDSS



and any similarities or differences to internal NWS evaluations. They will not be



used to evaluate whether a particular office is “good ” at IDSS. 



We ask that you complete the survey by July 24 by clicking on the link below.  Thank you 



for your support. 



Kind regards, 



NWS Team 



http://diy.esurveydesigns.com/wix/p45445038.aspx 



+===========================================================+ 



This email is confidential and may be privileged. If you have received it 



in error, please notify us immediately and then delete it. Please do not 



copy it, disclose its contents or use it for any purpose. 



+===========================================================+ 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK



 
NATURAL RESOURCES DEFENSE 
COUNCIL, INC., 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 v. 
 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
 
and 
 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, 
 
 Defendants.   
 


 ) 
) 
) 
)

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)

)

)

)



Civil Action No. 18-cv-650



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF



INTRODUCTION



1. Plaintiff Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (NRDC or Plaintiff),



brings this case to compel Defendants, the U.S. Department of the Interior (Interior



Department) and the U.S. Department of Commerce (Commerce Department)



(collectively, Defendants), to disclose records relating to the agencies’ reviews of



certain national monuments.



2. Over the course of the past year, Defendants have conducted



controversial “reviews” of at least twenty-seven national monuments established by



former Presidents Clinton, G.W. Bush, and Obama—including the Bears Ears



National Monument in Utah, the Grand Staircase-Escalante National Monument in
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Utah, and the Northeast Canyons and Seamounts Marine National Monument in



the Atlantic Ocean—for the purpose of making recommendations to the President



about whether to preserve those monuments, or to dismantle them and open them



to industrial resource extraction and other destructive uses. Despite an outpouring



of popular support for preserving existing national monuments, the President has



already acted to revoke national monument protections for huge swaths of Bears



Ears and Grand Staircase-Escalante.



3. In September and October 2017, NRDC sought production under the



Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552, of records relating to the



agencies’ review processes. As explained below, NRDC sought records relating to



the public comments that Defendants received, the meetings and communications



Defendants’ leadership had with non-governmental individuals and entities



(including industry groups), and the criteria by which Defendants weighed the



information they gathered. NRDC, its members, and the American public at large



have a right to know who is influencing the federal government’s decisions about



the fate of these iconic American lands and waters.



4. FOIA required Defendants to respond within twenty business days.



Yet Defendants did not respond substantively by that deadline, and they still have



not done so. Their failure to timely disclose the requested records violates FOIA.



5. NRDC seeks a declaration that Defendants violated FOIA by failing to



provide a final determination by the statutory deadline as to whether they will



comply with NRDC’s requests, and by failing to produce any responsive documents
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promptly thereafter. NRDC seeks an injunction ordering that Defendants disclose,



without further delay, all non-exempt, responsive records and portions of records to



NRDC. NRDC also seeks a declaration that, pursuant to FOIA, it is entitled to a fee



waiver in connection with its FOIA requests to the Interior Department.



JURISDICTION AND VENUE



6. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal



question) and 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B) (FOIA).



7. Venue is proper in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of



New York because NRDC resides and has its principal place of business in this



judicial district. 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B); 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e)(1).



THE PARTIES



8. Plaintiff NRDC is a national nonprofit advocacy organization with



hundreds of thousands of members nationwide. On behalf of its members, NRDC



engages in research, advocacy, public education, and litigation to protect public



health and the environment. NRDC has a long history of disseminating information



of public interest, including information obtained from FOIA requests.



9. Defendant Interior Department is an agency within the meaning of



5  U.S.C. §§ 551(1) and 552(f)(1), and it has possession or control of documents



NRDC seeks. The Office of the Secretary of the Interior is a component of the



Interior Department.



10. Defendant Commerce Department is an agency within the meaning of



5 U.S.C. §§ 551(1) and 552(f)(1), and it has possession or control of documents
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NRDC seeks. The Office of the Secretary of Commerce is a component of the



Commerce Department.



STATUTORY AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK



11. FOIA requires federal agencies to release records to the public upon



request, unless one of nine statutory exemptions from disclosure applies. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)-(b).



12. Within twenty business days of an agency’s receipt of a FOIA request,



the agency must “determine . . . whether to comply” with the request. Id.



§ 552(a)(6)(A)(i); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.16(a) (Interior FOIA regulation); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.6(b) (Commerce FOIA regulation). The agency must “immediately notify” the



requester of “such determination and the reasons therefor.” 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(6)(A)(i)(I); 43 C.F.R. § 2.21(b) (requiring Interior Department to



“immediately” send a written acknowledgement and tracking number if a request



will take longer than ten workdays to process).



13. Once an agency determines that it will comply with a FOIA request, it



must “promptly” release responsive, non-exempt records to the requester. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(6)(C)(i); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.22(c) (Interior FOIA regulation); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.7(c) (Commerce FOIA regulation).



14. In “unusual circumstances,” an agency may extend the twenty-day



time limit for responding to a FOIA request by up to ten working days. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(6)(B)(i); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.19(a)(1) (Interior FOIA regulation); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.6(b) (Commerce FOIA regulation).
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15. The agency must provide requested records at no or reduced cost “if



disclosure of the information is in the public interest because it is likely to



contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the



government and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester.”



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a) (Interior FOIA regulation);



15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l) (Commerce FOIA regulation).



16. If the agency fails to notify the requester of its determination within



the statutory time limit, the requester is “deemed to have exhausted his



administrative remedies” and may immediately file suit. 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i).



17. FOIA grants federal district courts authority to “enjoin [an] agency



from withholding agency records and to order the production of any agency records



improperly withheld from the complainant.” Id. § 552(a)(4)(B).



FACTS



18. On April 26, 2017, President Donald J. Trump issued Executive Order



13,792, titled “Review of Designations Under the Antiquities Act,” which directed



Secretary of the Interior Ryan Zinke to conduct a review of twenty-seven national



monuments created by President Trump’s predecessors. Exec. Order 13,792, 82 Fed.



Reg. 20,429 (Apr. 26, 2017). The Executive Order directed Secretary Zinke to



provide “recommendations for such Presidential actions, legislative proposals, or



other actions consistent with the law as the Secretary may consider appropriate” to
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“balance the protection of . . . objects against the appropriate use of Federal lands



and the effects on surrounding lands and communities.” Id.


19. Two days later, on April 28, 2017, President Trump issued another



executive order, this one titled “Implementing an America-First Offshore Energy



Strategy.” Exec. Order 13,795, 82 Fed. Reg. 20,815 (April 28, 2017). The order,



among other things, directed Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross to review marine



national monuments and national marine sanctuaries that had been designated or



expanded within the previous ten years. The executive order required the Secretary



of Commerce to “report the results of the review” within 180 days. Id.


20. The Interior Department and the Commerce Department subsequently



accepted public comments regarding the covered national monuments and marine



sanctuaries. See 82 Fed. Reg. 22,016 (May 11, 2017) (Interior review); 82 Fed. Reg.



28,827 (June 26, 2017) (Commerce review). On information and belief, Secretaries



Zinke and Ross and other agency officials also met with a variety of stakeholders,



including representatives of industry groups expressing interest in commercial



exploitation of the national monuments and marine sanctuaries under review.



21. On information and belief, Defendants collectively received over three



million public comments during their review period, and the overwhelming majority



of those comments called on Defendants and the Trump Administration to preserve



existing national monuments and marine sanctuaries.



22. Plaintiff NRDC submitted comments to the Interior and Commerce



Departments in support of national monuments in general, and in support of Bears
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Ears National Monument, Grand Staircase-Escalante National Monument, and



Northeast Canyons and Seamounts Marine National Monument in particular. In



addition, tens of thousands of NRDC’s individual members submitted comments to



the Interior and Commerce Departments in support of national monuments and



marine sanctuaries.



23. On August 24, 2017, Interior Secretary Zinke submitted his final



report to the President. Neither Secretary Zinke nor President Trump released the



report publicly at the time, but national news reporters obtained what appears to be



a leaked copy of the report, and Secretary Zinke released a substantially similar



version to the public on December 5, 2017. Both versions of the Interior report



recommended that the President unilaterally revoke or substantially weaken



protections for several national monuments, including the Bears Ears National



Monument, the Grand Staircase-Escalante National Monument, and the Northeast



Canyons and Seamounts Marine National Monument.



24. On October 25, 2017, Secretary Ross’s report describing the results of



the Commerce review was due to be completed and submitted to the President. To



date, neither Secretary Ross nor any other government official has released the



Commerce report publicly.



25. On December 4, 2017, President Trump issued two proclamations



dismantling Bears Ears National Monument and Grand Staircase-Escalante



National Monument. President Trump and other federal officials have indicated



that additional proclamations dismantling other national monuments would follow.
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26. The American public has a strong interest in understanding the



Interior and Commerce Departments’ monument review processes and the basis for



the Secretaries’ reports and recommendations to the President. That includes



understanding the criteria by which Interior and Commerce Department officials



reviewed, weighed, or discounted the public comments they received; the contents of



those comments; and the identities of industry representatives with whom Interior



and Commerce Department officials met and the contents of those meetings.



27. The Interior and Commerce Departments’ reviews of national



monuments and marine sanctuaries have generated intense, widespread, and



sustained public interest and concern. NRDC and its members are particularly



keenly interested in these review processes and their outcomes. Yet, despite the



public’s desire for transparency and input into the Administration’s review process,



Defendants have made very little information publicly available about their



information-gathering and review processes.



28. To better inform the American public at large, and NRDC members in



particular, about a topic of intense public concern, NRDC submitted the following



FOIA requests to the Interior Department and the Commerce Department.



NRDC’s first FOIA request to the Interior Department



# OS-2017-01247



29. According to the Regulations.gov website, the Interior Department



received more than 2.8 million public comments through its online portal relating to



the Department’s national monument review. Only 782,460 comments—less than a
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third of the total count of online submissions—were made publicly available online



as of the close of the comment period. The Regulations.gov website notes that



“agencies may choose to redact, or withhold, certain submissions . . . such as those



containing private or proprietary information . . . or duplicate/near duplicate



examples of a mass-mail campaign.”



30. Interior Secretary Zinke’s report to President Trump acknowledged



that the public “[c]omments received were overwhelmingly in favor of maintaining



existing monuments.” Memorandum for the President from Secretary Zinke, “Final



Report Summarizing Findings of the Review of Designations Under the Antiquities



Act” at 3 (Aug. 24, 2017). Secretary Zinke nevertheless opined that the



overwhelming public support for national monuments reflected not genuine popular



will, but rather, in his words, “a well-orchestrated national campaign organized by



multiple organizations.” Id. The report went on to dismiss what it called “form



comments associated with NGO-organized campaigns, which far outnumbered



individual comments,” opining that “[t]oo often it is the local stakeholders who lack



the organization, funding, and institutional support to compete with well-funded



NGOs.” Id. at 3, 8.



31. On September 22, 2017, in an effort to better understand the Interior



Department’s review process and the information underlying Secretary Zinke’s



report and recommendations, NRDC submitted a FOIA request to the Interior



Department. See Exhibit A.
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32. NRDC’s request sought the following records:



a. “Any and all comments the [Interior] Department received on or after



April 26, 2017 (whether via online submission, by mail, or by any other



means) that relate to national monuments, and that are not among the



782,460 comments publicly available on the Regulations.gov website.



This includes but is not limited to comments that include “private or



proprietary information” or that are considered “duplicate/near



duplicate examples of a mass-mail campaign.” If you determine that



any such comments (or any portions thereof) are exempt from



disclosure, please produce a detailed ledger explaining the basis for



each withheld comment or portion thereof.



b. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the Department’s or the Secretary’s directives,



policies, standards, or procedures for reviewing or analyzing public



comments relating to national monuments.



c. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the Department’s or the Secretary’s review of,



assessment of, or findings about public comments relating to national



monuments.



d. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the Department’s or the Secretary’s inquiry



into or findings about “NGO-organized campaigns” relating to the
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Department’s monument review, or directions or instructions



concerning such inquiry or findings.



e. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the basis for the Secretary’s statement that



there was “a well-orchestrated national campaign organized by



multiple organizations” to submit public comments.



f. “Any records created or transmitted by the Department (or any official



or staff-member thereof) on or after April 26, 2017, that relate to the



Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC).” Id.


33. NRDC explained that, for purposes of its request, the term “records” is



consistent with the meaning of the term under FOIA, including “documents of any



kind, including electronic as well as paper documents, e-mails, memoranda, letters,



writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or otherwise produced, reproduced, or



stored), reports, summaries, notes, meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and



any other compilations of data from which information can be obtained.” Id.


34. NRDC also requested that the Interior Department waive any fees for



the search and production of the requested records. NRDC is entitled to a waiver of



all fees pursuant to FOIA’s fee waiver provisions and the agency’s regulations. See


5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a).



35. NRDC submitted its request to the Interior Department’s Office of the



Secretary via the Interior Department’s online FOIA portal, in accordance with the



agency’s FOIA regulations and guidance.
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36. The Interior Department’s online portal sent NRDC an automated



e-mail response acknowledging receipt of the request on September 22, 2017.



37. The Interior Department’s response was due within twenty business



days of the request—i.e., by October 23, 2017. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). NRDC



received no response of any kind by that date.



38. On October 24, 2017—the day after FOIA’s statutory deadline had



run—a FOIA Officer from the Interior Department’s Office of the Secretary



e-mailed an acknowledgement letter to NRDC’s counsel. That letter stated that



NRDC’s “request was received in the Office of the Secretary FOIA office on



September 22, 2017, and assigned control number OS-2017-01247.”



39. The letter further stated: “Because we will need to consult with one or



more bureaus of the Department in order to properly process your request, the



Office of the Secretary FOIA office is taking a 10-workday extension under



43 C.F.R. § 2.19. For the same reason, we are placing your request under the



‘Complex’ processing track. See 43 C.F.R. § 2.15.”



40. Finally, the letter stated that the Interior Department had “classified



[NRDC’s] request as an ‘other-use request.’” Seeking clarification, NRDC’s counsel



asked the FOIA Officer by e-mail whether this meant the Interior Department had



denied NRDC’s fee waiver request. In an e-mail dated November 1, 2017, the FOIA



Officer responded: “It is not a denial of your fee waiver request. We are waiting to



determine if a fee waiver i[s] necessary depending on whether there will be any



fees.”
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41. NRDC never received any further communications from the Interior



Department relating to its FOIA request.



42. Even accounting for the belated ten-day extension, the Interior



Department’s response was due on November 7, 2017.



43. To date, the Interior Department still has not substantively responded



to NRDC’s FOIA request, produced any responsive records, claimed any



exemptions, or made a determination on NRDC’s fee waiver request.



NRDC’s second FOIA request to the Interior Department


# OS-2018-00232



44. On October 29, 2017, NRDC submitted a second FOIA request to the



Interior Department, this time seeking records relating to meetings between



Secretary Zinke or other Interior Department leadership and outside groups or



individuals regarding national monuments. See Exhibit B.



45. Specifically, NRDC sought the following records:



a. “[A]ny and all records in the possession, custody, or control of the



[Interior] Department . . . that pertain to meetings on or after January



20, 2017, attended by Secretary Ryan Zinke, Scott Hommel, Lori



Mashburn, James Cason, Doug Domenech, and/or Downey Magallanes,



relating to any national monument and/or to the Department’s review



of national monuments under Executive Order No. 13792, including:



b. “Any calendar entries, invitations, itineraries, or communications



referencing such meetings;
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c. “Any agendas, minutes, attendee lists, or presentations relating to



such meetings;



d. “Any records of individuals who attended these meetings or



accompanied the above-named officials on any of these occasions,



excluding current career federal employees;



e. “Any briefings, summaries, or materials prepared or transmitted in



relation to such meeting, whether before, during, or after the meeting



itself; and



f. “Any notes taken by any federal employee, including the above-named



officials.” Id.


46. NRDC explained that, for purposes of its request, the term “records” is



consistent with the meaning of the term under FOIA, including “documents of any



kind, including electronic and paper documents, emails, memoranda, letters,



writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or otherwise produced, reproduced, or



stored), reports, summaries, notes, meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and



any other compilations of data from which information can be obtained.” Id. 


47. NRDC also requested that the Interior Department waive any fees for



the search and production of the requested records. NRDC is entitled to a waiver of



all fees pursuant to FOIA’s fee waiver provisions and the agency’s regulations. See


5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a).
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48. NRDC submitted its request to the Interior Department’s Office of the



Secretary via the Interior Department’s online FOIA portal, in accordance with the



agency’s FOIA regulations and guidance.



49. The Interior Department’s online portal sent NRDC an automated



e-mail response acknowledging receipt of the request on October 29, 2017.



50. The Interior Department’s response was due within twenty business



days of the request—i.e., by November 28, 2017. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).



51. On November 21, 2017, a FOIA Officer from the Interior Department’s



Office of the Secretary e-mailed an acknowledgement letter to NRDC’s counsel.



That letter stated that NRDC’s “request was received in the Office of the Secretary



FOIA office on October 29, 2017, and assigned control number OS-2018-00232.”



52. The letter further stated: “Because we will need to consult with one or



more bureaus of the Department in order to properly process your request, the



Office of the Secretary FOIA office is taking a 10-workday extension under



43 C.F.R. § 2.19. For the same reason, we are placing your request under the



‘Complex’ processing track. See 43 C.F.R. § 2.15.”



53. Finally, the letter stated that the Interior Department had “classified



[NRDC’s] request as an ‘other-use request,’” and went on to explain: “[W]e are in the



process of determining whether or not your entitlements are sufficient to enable us



to process your request, or if we will need to issue a formal determination on your



request for a fee waiver.”
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54. NRDC never received any further communications from the Interior



Department relating to its FOIA request.



55. Accounting for a ten-day extension, the Interior Department’s response



was due on December 12, 2017.



56. To date, the Interior Department still has not substantively responded



to NRDC’s FOIA request, produced any responsive records, claimed any



exemptions, or made a determination on NRDC’s fee waiver request.



NRDC’s FOIA request to the Commerce Department



# DOC-IOS-2018-000178



57. Also on October 29, 2017, NRDC submitted a FOIA request to the



Commerce Department, seeking records relating to meetings between Secretary



Ross or another member of the Commerce Department’s leadership and outside



groups or individuals regarding national marine monuments or sanctuaries. See



Exhibit C.



58. Specifically, NRDC requested the following records:



a. “[A]ny and all records in the possession, custody, or control of the



[Commerce] Department . . . that pertain to meetings on or after



January 20, 2017, attended by Secretary Wilbur Ross and/or Earl



Comstock, relating to any national marine sanctuary or marine



national monument and/or to the Department’s review of national



marine sanctuaries and monuments under Executive Order No. 13795,



including:
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b. “Any calendar entries, invitations, itineraries, or communications



referencing such meetings;



c. “Any agendas, minutes, attendee lists, or presentations relating to



such meetings;



d. “Any records of individuals who attended these meetings or



accompanied Secretary Ross or Mr. Comstock on any of these



occasions, excluding current career federal employees;



e. “Any briefings, summaries, or materials prepared or transmitted in



relation to such meeting, whether before, during, or after the meeting



itself; and



f. “Any notes taken by any federal employee, including Secretary Ross or



Mr. Comstock.” Id.


59. NRDC explained that, for purposes of its request, the term “records” is



consistent with the meaning of the term under FOIA, including “documents of any



kind, including electronic as well as paper documents, e-mails, memoranda, letters,



writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or otherwise produced, reproduced, or



stored), reports, summaries, notes, meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and



any other compilations of data from which information can be obtained.” Id.


60. In its request, NRDC requested that the Commerce Department waive



any fees for the search and production of the requested records, pursuant to FOIA’s



and the agency’s fee waiver provisions. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l).
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61. NRDC submitted its request to the Commerce Department’s Office of



the Secretary via the federal government’s online FOIA portal, in accordance with



the agency’s FOIA regulations and guidance.



62. The federal government’s online FOIA portal sent NRDC an



automated e-mail response acknowledging receipt of the request on October 29,



2017, and assigning it tracking number # DOC-OS-2018-000178.



63. On October 31, 2017, NRDC’s counsel received another e-mail from the



federal government’s online FOIA portal advising that the request’s tracking



number had been changed to # DOC-IOS-2018-000178.



64. The Commerce Department’s response was due within twenty business



days of the request—i.e., by November 28, 2017. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).



65. On November 14, 2017, the Commerce Department sent NRDC’s



counsel an e-mail advising that NRDC’s fee waiver request had been “fully



granted.” Exhibit K. The Commerce Department did not respond substantively to



NRDC’s FOIA request by the statutory deadline, however.



66. To date, the Commerce Department still has not substantively



responded to NRDC’s FOIA request, produced any responsive records, or claimed



any exemptions.



* * *



Case 1:18-cv-00650   Document 1   Filed 01/24/18   Page 18 of 21








19


67. NRDC seeks a declaration that Defendants have violated the FOIA by



failing to respond to NRDC’s FOIA requests and failing to promptly release all



responsive, non-exempt records. NRDC also seeks an injunction ordering



Defendants to provide the requested records without further delay.



68. NRDC brings this action on behalf of itself and its members. NRDC



and its members have been and continue to be injured by Defendants’ failure to



provide responsive records. The requested relief will redress these injuries.



CLAIM FOR RELIEF



COUNT ONE

5 U.S.C. § 552(a) (FOIA)



All Defendants



69. NRDC incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs.



70. NRDC has a statutory right under FOIA to the records it seeks.



71. Defendants have violated their statutory duties under FOIA, 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a), and the applicable implementing regulations, to release all non-exempt,



responsive records to NRDC. Defendants have identified no basis, let alone any



valid basis, for withholding or partially withholding the records that are responsive



to NRDC’s FOIA requests.



72. NRDC is entitled to all non-exempt responsive documents at no cost



because disclosure of the requested records would contribute significantly to public



understanding and is not primarily in NRDC’s commercial interest. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a); 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l).
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73. NRDC is being harmed by Defendants’ unlawful withholding of the



requested records, and it will continue to be harmed unless Defendants are



compelled to comply with FOIA’s statutory requirements.



REQUEST FOR RELIEF



NRDC respectfully requests that this Court enter a judgment against



Defendants as follows:



A. Declare that Defendants have violated FOIA by failing to provide a



final determination as to whether they will comply with NRDC’s FOIA requests and



by failing to produce non-exempt records responsive to NRDC’s FOIA requests by



the statutory deadline;



B. Declare that Defendant Interior Department has violated FOIA by



failing to make a determination as to NRDC’s fee waiver requests;



C. Order Defendants to release to NRDC, without further delay and at no



cost to NRDC, all responsive, non-exempt records in their possession, custody, or



control;



D. If either Defendant contends that any responsive records are exempt or



partially exempt from disclosure under FOIA, order that Defendant to produce a log



identifying any such records or parts thereof and the basis for the withholdings, and



require Defendant to prove that its decision to withhold or redact any such records



is justified by law;



E. Order Defendant Interior Department to grant NRDC’s fee waiver in



full;



F. Award NRDC its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees; and
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G. Grant such other and further relief as the Court deems just and



proper.



Dated:  January 24, 2018  Respectfully submitted,



/s/ Nancy S. Marks   


Nancy S. Marks (NM3348)

Natural Resources Defense Council

40 West 20th Street

New York, NY 10011

Tel.: (212) 727-4414

Fax: (212) 795-4799

E-mail: nmarks@nrdc.org



Katherine Desormeau

(Pro Hac Vice applicant)

Natural Resources Defense Council

111 Sutter Street, 21st Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Tel.: (415) 875-6158

Fax: (212) 795-4799

E-mail: kdesormeau@nrdc.org



Counsel for NRDC
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October 29, 2017

 
Via online submission



Department of Commerce

FOIA Officer



Re: FOIA Request for Records Relating to Meetings Relating

to National Marine Sanctuaries and Monuments



Dear FOIA Officer:



I write on behalf of the Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC) to

request disclosure of records pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act

(FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552 et seq., and applicable Department of Commerce

regulations, 15 C.F.R. § 4.1-4.11. 


I. Description of Records Sought



Please produce any and all records in the possession, custody, or

control of the Department of Commerce (“the Department”) that pertain to

meetings on or after January 20, 2017, attended by Secretary Wilbur Ross

and/or Earl Comstock, relating to any national marine sanctuary or marine

national monument and/or to the Department’s review of national marine

sanctuaries and monuments under Executive Order No. 13795, including:



x Any calendar entries, invitations, itineraries, or communications

referencing such meetings;



x Any agendas, minutes, attendee lists, or presentations relating to

such meetings;



x Any records of individuals who attended these meetings or

accompanied Secretary Ross or Mr. Comstock on any of these

occasions, excluding current career federal employees;



x Any briefings, summaries, or materials prepared or transmitted in

relation to such meeting, whether before, during, or after the meeting

itself; and



x Any notes taken by any federal employee, including Secretary Ross or

Mr. Comstock.



For purposes of this request, the term “records” is consistent with the

meaning of the term under FOIA. This includes, but is not limited to,




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documents of any kind, including electronic as well as paper documents, e-
mails, memoranda, letters, writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or

otherwise produced, reproduced, or stored), reports, summaries, notes,

meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and any other compilations of data



from which information can be obtained.



 Under FOIA, you are obligated to provide records in a readily-
accessible electronic format and in the format requested. See, e.g., 5 U.S.C.

§ 552(a)(3)(B) (“In making any record available to a person under this

paragraph, an agency shall provide the record in any form or format

requested by the person if the record is readily reproducible by the agency in

that form or format.”). We request that you provide the responsive records

in electronic .pdf format without “profiles” or “embedded files.” Please do not

provide the records in a single or “batched” .pdf file. To the extent that a

subset of the requested records is readily available, please provide that

subset immediately while you continue to search for additional records to

complete your response.



If you decide to invoke any FOIA exemptions in response to this

request, please include in your response sufficient information for us to

assess the basis for the exemption(s), including any interest(s) that would be

harmed by release. Please include a detailed ledger which includes (1) basic

factual material about each withheld record, including the originator, date,

length, general subject matter, and location of each item; and (2) complete

explanations and justifications for the withholding, including the specific

exemption(s) under which the record (or portion thereof) was withheld and a

full explanation of how each exemption applies to the withheld material.

Such statements will be helpful in deciding whether to appeal an adverse

determination. Your written justification may help to avoid litigation.



If you determine that portions of any requested records are exempt

from disclosure, the FOIA requires that you produce any reasonably

segregable non-exempt portions within the statutory time limit. See 5

U.S.C. § 552(b). See, e.g., Gatore v. U.S. Dep’t of Homeland Sec., 177 F.

Supp. 3d 46, 53 (D.D.C. 2016); Gosen v. U.S. Citizenship & Immigration



Servs., 118 F. Supp. 3d 232, 243-44 (D.D.C. 2015).



Please produce the records on a rolling basis. The Department’s

search for or deliberations concerning certain records should not delay the

production of others that the Department has already retrieved and elected

to produce. See generally 15 C.F.R. § 4.7. If the Department takes the

position that any of these records are publicly available, please indicate

where each of them may be found.
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II. Request for a Fee Waiver



NRDC asks that the Department waive any fee it would otherwise

charge for the search and production of the records described above. FOIA

provides that a requester is entitled to a fee waiver when “disclosure of the

information is in the public interest because it [A] is likely to contribute

significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the

government and [B] is not primarily in the commercial interest of the

requester.” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); see also 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l). The

disclosure NRDC seeks here meets both these requirements.



A. Disclosure is likely to contribute significantly to public

understanding of the operations or activities of the

government



First, the disclosure requested here is “likely to contribute

significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the

government,” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii), based on the following factors. See

15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i)-(iv) (describing factors to be considered).



1. Subject of the request (15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i))



The requested records directly concern “the operations or activities of

the Government.” 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i). The records pertain to the

Department’s “review of all designations and expansions of National Marine

Sanctuaries, and of all designations and expansions of Marine National

Monuments under the Antiquities Act of 1906 . . . designated or expanded

within the 10-year period prior to the date of this order” and the

Department’s resulting report. Executive Order No. 13795, section 4(b)(i)-
(ii). Disclosure of the records will provide context for the Department’s

report and help the public to evaluate the Department’s recommendations

and whatever actions the President, Congress, or other federal government

officials take with respect to the affected sanctuaries and monuments.



2. Informative value of the information to be disclosed

(15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(ii))



Disclosure of the requested records is “‘likely to contribute’ to an

understanding of Government operations or activities.” 15 C.F.R. §

4.11(l)(2)(ii). The records are relevant to the Department’s review of

national marine sanctuaries and monuments, and therefore they are likely

to be “meaningfully informative” in providing context for the Department’s

report and for any actions the Administration may take with respect to

those sanctuaries or monuments. Id. Because the Department’s review has
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attracted broad public attention (as explained below), and because the

requested records have not previously been made available, disclosure will

“‘contribute’ to an increased public understanding of those operations or

activities.” Id.



3. Contribution to public understanding of the subject

(15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii))



Because NRDC is a “representative of the news media,” as explained

in Part III below, the Department must presume that this disclosure is

likely to contribute to public understanding of the subject of the disclosure.

15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii). However, even if NRDC were not a media

requester, NRDC satisfies the requirement that disclosure will “contribute

to the understanding of a reasonably broad audience of persons interested

in the subject.” Id.


NRDC does not seek the requested records for its own benefit.

Rather, it seeks the records to provide new information to the public about

the Department’s review process and its resulting report and

recommendations. Disclosure of this information will make possible a more

complete public understanding of the federal government’s decision-making

process and intentions regarding the national marine sanctuaries and

monuments at issue. See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii) (requiring requester to

show that disclosure will “contribute to the understanding of a reasonably

broad audience of persons interested in the subject, as opposed to the

individual understanding of the requester”). There is more than a

reasonable likelihood that disclosure of the requested records will

significantly increase public understanding of the government’s review

process and actions among a broad audience of interested people. See

Citizens for Responsibility & Ethics in Washington v. U.S. Dep’t of Health &



Human Servs., 481 F. Supp. 2d 99, 109 (D.D.C. 2006).



NRDC has both the ability and the intent to disseminate the

information obtained through this request “in a manner that will be

informative to the understanding of a reasonably broad audience of persons

interested in the subject.” 43 C.F.R. § 2.48(a)(2)(iv); see also id.

§ 2.48(a)(2)(v) (considering requester’s “ability and intent to disseminate the

information to a reasonably broad audience of persons interested in the

subject”). NRDC has more than two million members and online activists,

tens of thousands of whom have responded to action alerts relating to the

Department’s monument review in particular. And, as detailed below,

NRDC has extensive communications capabilities and a proven history of

disseminating information of public interest, including information obtained

from FOIA requests. NRDC has both the capability and the intent to

broadly disseminate the information it seeks here to its members and to the
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general public, thereby contributing to a better general understanding of

the Department’s review process and its ultimate findings.



NRDC uses numerous modes of communication to disseminate



information to its members and to the public at large. These include:



(1)NRDC’s website (http://www.nrdc.org), which is updated daily and

draws approximately 1.7 million page views and 1.5 million unique

page views per month, and which features NRDC staff blogs, original

reporting on environmental news stories, and in-depth analyses on

topics of public interest;



(2)NRDC’s Activist email list, which includes more than 2.4 million

subscribers who receive regular communications on urgent

environmental issues;



(3)NRDC Insider (http://www.nrdc.org/newsletter), a monthly electronic

environmental newsletter distributed by email to more than 1.47

million subscribers;



(4)NRDC’s Facebook page, with 909,921 likes and 872,632 followers;



(5)NRDC’s Twitter handle, with 274,922 followers;



(6)NRDC’s Instagram feed, with 111,024 followers;



(7)NRDC’s YouTube channel (https://www.youtube.com/user/NRDCflix),

with 21,050 subscribers; and



(8)online media outlets like Medium (https://medium.com/natural-
resources-defense-council) and Huffington Post

(http://www.huffingtonpost.com/topic/natural-resources-defense-
council).



NRDC also publishes legal and scientific analyses, policy documents, and

reports; issues press releases; and directs and produces movies (including

Sonic Sea, Stories from the Gulf, and Acid Test). NRDC has more than fifty

staff members dedicated to communications work.



In addition, NRDC employees and representatives are widely quoted

in the news media; participate in interviews on television, radio, and web

broadcasts; appear at conferences; provide congressional testimony; and

contribute articles and op-eds to numerous national newspapers, magazines,

academic journals, and books. See, e.g., Zoe Carpenter, After Promising a

“Fair Hearing” on Monuments, Secretary Zinke Shuts Out the Public, THE



NATION (May 18, 2017) (quoting NRDC Land and Wildlife Program Director
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Sharon Buccino); Op-Ed, Don’t Take Bears Ears Away from Us, SALT LAKE



TRIBUNE (May 6, 2017) (contributed by NRDC trustee Robert Redford);

Research Article, The Requirement To Rebuild U.S. Fish Stocks: Is It



Working? MARINE POLICY (July 2014) (co-authored by NRDC Oceans

Program Senior Scientist Lisa Suatoni and Senior Attorney Brad Sewell);

Transcript, Conservationists Call for Quiet: The Ocean Is Too Loud, ALL



THINGS CONSIDERED (July 28, 2013) (featuring NRDC Marine Mammal

Protection Program Director Michael Jasny); Testimony of Johanna Wald,

NRDC Senior Attorney, before the U.S. Senate Committee on Energy and

Natural Resources, Hearing on the California Desert Protection Act of 2010

(May 20, 2010).



NRDC’s legal and scientific experts routinely analyze information

obtained through FOIA and use it to inform the public about a variety of

environmental issues. See, e.g., Theo Spencer, The Fight to Stop a Strip

Mine Near Bryce Canyon: A History, NRDC Blog (June 5, 2017) (analyzing

documents obtained through partner organization’s FOIA request regarding

a proposed expansion of an open pit strip mine in Utah); Kevin Bogardus et

al., “Homework Assignment”: How Pebble Lobbied Trump’s EPA, E&E NEWS



(June 8, 2017) (quoting NRDC staff discussing results of a FOIA seeking

communications between EPA and Pebble Mine developers); Tom Neltner et

al., Generally Recognized as Secret: Chemicals Added to Food in the United



States, NRDC Report (2014) (analyzing FOIA documents relating to

potentially unsafe chemicals added to food); Carmen Cordova, Playing

Chicken with Antibiotics, NRDC Issue Brief (2014) (describing FDA records,

obtained through FOIA, which show widespread violations of the agency’s

safety standards for antibiotic feed additives); Dan Flynn, NRDC Releases

FSIS Inspection Reports on Foster Farms, FOOD SAFETY NEWS (Sept. 12,

2014) (reporting on documents NRDC obtained through FOIA relating to

safety violations by poultry company, and linking to the documents); Mae

Wu et al., Still Poisoning the Well: Atrazine Continues to Contaminate

Surface Water and Drinking Water in the United States, NRDC Report

(2010) (analyzing White House documents obtained through FOIA and from

other sources to inform the public about EPA’s decision not to protect

wildlife and workers from the pesticide atrazine). 


In sum, NRDC has a proven ability to digest, synthesize, and

disseminate information obtained through FOIA to a broad audience of

interested persons. NRDC’s more than two million members and activists,

when combined with the members of the general public who read NRDC’s

communications online and in the news media, clearly constitute “a

reasonably broad audience of persons interested in the subject.” 15 C.F.R. §

4.11(l)(2)(iii). NRDC intends to disseminate any newsworthy information in

the released records to this large audience in a manner that will
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meaningfully enhance the public’s understanding of the federal

government’s decision-making process. NRDC does not seek records that

have been previously disclosed to the public. See id. Disclosure may

therefore confirm, clarify, or contradict documents or statements in the

public domain or actions taken by the federal government, and it will enable

the public to better evaluate the federal government’s actions.



4. Significance of the contribution to public

understanding (15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iv))



Finally, the records requested will shed significant light on a matter

of considerable public interest and concern. See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iv).



The American public has demonstrated a strong interest in the

Department’s review of national marine sanctuaries and monuments.

According to the Regulations.gov website, nearly 100,000 non-duplicative

public comments relating to the Department’s review of national marine

sanctuaries and monuments were submitted online. See

https://www.regulations.gov/docket?D=NOAA-NOS-2017-0066 (last visited

Sept. 29, 2017). The Department’s review has also prompted many letters to

the editor and op-eds, widespread social media activism, and numerous

media reports in local and national publications. See, e.g., Guy Kovner,

Marine Sanctuaries that Protect California Coast Get Strong Public



Support, Conservationists Say, THE PRESS-DEMOCRAT (Aug. 17, 2017); Zack

Klyver, Op-Ed: Marine Monument Vital for a Healthy, Bountiful Ocean,

BANGOR DAILY NEWS (Aug. 3, 2017); David Helvarg, Op-Ed: Time Is

Running Out to Stop Trump From Opening California Marine Sanctuaries

to Oil Drilling, LOS ANGELES TIMES (July 7, 2017); Marine Conservation

Institute, Blog: Analysis Shows Overwhelming Public Support for Marine



Monuments and Sanctuaries (Aug. 15, 2017), at https://blog.marine-
conservation.org/2017/08/overwhelming-support-for-marine-monuments-
and-sanctuaries.html.



Despite this strong showing of public interest and concern, very little

information is publicly available about the Department’s information-
gathering and review process. Disclosure of the requested records

concerning the Department’s meetings with outside individuals and groups

will significantly contribute to public understanding of the Department’s

review process. Disclosure will also provide valuable context for

understanding the Department’s report, and will enable the public more

effectively to evaluate the legal and factual bases for the Department’s

assertions and recommendations.



For these reasons, NRDC has met the first prerequisite for a fee

waiver request under the FOIA.
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% Disclosure is not primarily in NRDC’s commercial

interest



Second, NRDC has no commercial interests that would be furthered

by the requested disclosure. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 15 C.F.R. §

4.11(l)(1)(ii). Therefore, it satisfies the second prerequisite for a fee waiver

request under the FOIA.



NRDC is a not-for-profit organization. It does not act as a middleman

to resell information obtained under FOIA. “Congress amended FOIA to

ensure that it be ‘liberally construed in favor of waivers for noncommercial

requesters.’” Judicial Watch v. Rossotti, 326 F.3d 1309, 1312 (D.C. Cir.

2003) (internal citation omitted); see also Better Gov’t Ass’n v. Dep’t of State,

780 F.2d 86, 88-89 (D.C. Cir. 1986) (recognizing that “[the fee waiver]

provision was added to FOIA in an attempt to prevent government agencies

from using high fees to discourage certain types of requesters and requests,

in particular those from journalists, scholars and nonprofit public interest

groups.” (internal quotation marks omitted)). Requesters wish to serve the

public by reviewing, analyzing, and disseminating newsworthy and

presently non-public information about the federal government’s decision-
making process with respect to national marine sanctuaries and

monuments, and this is precisely the sort of “investigation[]” of

“governmental choices and highlighting [of] possible abuses” for which the

fee waiver was enacted. Better Gov’t Ass’n, 780 F.2d at 93.



 Access to government records, disclosure forms, and similar materials

through FOIA requests is essential to NRDC’s role of educating its

members, activists, and the general public. NRDC has no commercial

interest in the disclosure of the records, and it will realize no commercial

benefit or profit from the disclosure of the requested records. For these

reasons, NRDC is entitled to a fee waiver under the FOIA.



III. Request for a Reduction of Fees



In the alternative, even if the Department denies NRDC’s fee waiver

request, NRDC qualifies as a “representative of the news media” that is

entitled to a reduction of fees under FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii), and

applicable regulations, 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(c), (d); see also id. § 4.11(b)(6)

(defining “[r]epresentative of the news media”).



A representative of the news media is “any person or entity that

gathers information of potential interest to a segment of the public, uses its
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editorial skills to turn the raw materials into a distinct work, and

distributes that work to an audience.” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii); see also

Elec. Privacy Info. Ctr. v. Dep’t of Def., 241 F. Supp. 2d 5, 6, 11-15 (D.D.C.

2003) (a “non-profit public interest organization” qualifies as a

representative of the news media under FOIA where it publishes books and

newsletters on issues of current interest to the public); Letter from

Alexander C. Morris, FOIA Officer, United States Dep’t of Energy, to

Joshua Berman, NRDC (Feb. 10, 2011) (granting NRDC media requester

status).



NRDC is in part organized and operated to gather and publish or

transmit news to the public. As described in detail in Section II above,

NRDC publishes original reports and analyses on conservation-related

topics on its website, in its newsletter, and in blog posts; it contributes

articles and op-eds to a variety of online and print platforms; and it

maintains free online libraries of documents, publications, and other

information of interest to the general public. These types of publications and

media sources constitute news media outlets for purposes of FOIA. See
OPEN Government Act of 2007, Pub. L. No. 110-175, § 3, 121 Stat. 2524

(2007) (codified at 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii)) (clarifying that “as methods of

news delivery evolve . . . such alternative media shall be considered to be

news-media entities”); see also 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(b)(6) (“Examples of news-
media entities are . . . publishers of periodicals . . . including news

organizations that disseminate solely on the Internet.”).



 Public interest organizations performing these sorts of public

communication functions “are regularly granted news representative

status.” Serv. Women’s Action Network v. Dep’t of Def., 888 F. Supp. 2d 282,

287-89 (D. Conn. 2012) (according media requester status to the American

Civil Liberties Union); see also Cause of Action v. Fed. Trade Comm’n, 961

F. Supp. 2d 142, 164 (D.D.C. 2013) (explaining that an organization can

qualify for media-requester status if it “distributes work to an audience and

is especially organized around doing so”).



NRDC intends to review the records it obtains through this FOIA

request and, if the information is appropriately newsworthy, to analyze

them, synthesize them with information from other sources, and create and

disseminate unique articles, reports, analyses, blogs, tweets, emails, and/or

other distinct informational works through one or more of its publications or

other suitable media channels. NRDC will not resell the information

obtained through this FOIA request to other media organizations. For these

reasons, even if the Department denies NRDC’s fee waiver request, it

should grant a fee reduction consistent with 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii).
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IV. Willingness to Pay Fees Under Protest



Please provide the records requested above regardless of your fee

waiver decision. In order to expedite a response, NRDC will, if necessary

and under protest, pay fees in accordance with the Department’s FOIA

regulations. See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11. Please contact me, however, before doing

anything that would cause the fee to exceed $250. NRDC reserves the right

to seek administrative or judicial review of any fee waiver denial.



V. Conclusion



Please email the requested records or, if it is not possible to email,

mail a CD of electronic copies of the requested records to me at the address

listed below. Please call or email me with any questions. Thank you for your

time.



Sincerely,



/s/ Katherine Desormeau  
Katherine Desormeau

Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc.

111 Sutter Street, 21st Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Tel: (415) 875-6158

kdesormeau@nrdc.org
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK



 
NATURAL RESOURCES DEFENSE 
COUNCIL, INC., 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 v. 
 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
 
and 
 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, 
 
 Defendants.   
 


 ) 
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) 
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)

)

)



Civil Action No. 18-cv-650



COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF



INTRODUCTION



1. Plaintiff Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc. (NRDC or Plaintiff),



brings this case to compel Defendants, the U.S. Department of the Interior (Interior



Department) and the U.S. Department of Commerce (Commerce Department)



(collectively, Defendants), to disclose records relating to the agencies’ reviews of



certain national monuments.



2. Over the course of the past year, Defendants have conducted



controversial “reviews” of at least twenty-seven national monuments established by



former Presidents Clinton, G.W. Bush, and Obama—including the Bears Ears



National Monument in Utah, the Grand Staircase-Escalante National Monument in
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Utah, and the Northeast Canyons and Seamounts Marine National Monument in



the Atlantic Ocean—for the purpose of making recommendations to the President



about whether to preserve those monuments, or to dismantle them and open them



to industrial resource extraction and other destructive uses. Despite an outpouring



of popular support for preserving existing national monuments, the President has



already acted to revoke national monument protections for huge swaths of Bears



Ears and Grand Staircase-Escalante.



3. In September and October 2017, NRDC sought production under the



Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552, of records relating to the



agencies’ review processes. As explained below, NRDC sought records relating to



the public comments that Defendants received, the meetings and communications



Defendants’ leadership had with non-governmental individuals and entities



(including industry groups), and the criteria by which Defendants weighed the



information they gathered. NRDC, its members, and the American public at large



have a right to know who is influencing the federal government’s decisions about



the fate of these iconic American lands and waters.



4. FOIA required Defendants to respond within twenty business days.



Yet Defendants did not respond substantively by that deadline, and they still have



not done so. Their failure to timely disclose the requested records violates FOIA.



5. NRDC seeks a declaration that Defendants violated FOIA by failing to



provide a final determination by the statutory deadline as to whether they will



comply with NRDC’s requests, and by failing to produce any responsive documents
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promptly thereafter. NRDC seeks an injunction ordering that Defendants disclose,



without further delay, all non-exempt, responsive records and portions of records to



NRDC. NRDC also seeks a declaration that, pursuant to FOIA, it is entitled to a fee



waiver in connection with its FOIA requests to the Interior Department.



JURISDICTION AND VENUE



6. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal



question) and 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B) (FOIA).



7. Venue is proper in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of



New York because NRDC resides and has its principal place of business in this



judicial district. 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B); 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e)(1).



THE PARTIES



8. Plaintiff NRDC is a national nonprofit advocacy organization with



hundreds of thousands of members nationwide. On behalf of its members, NRDC



engages in research, advocacy, public education, and litigation to protect public



health and the environment. NRDC has a long history of disseminating information



of public interest, including information obtained from FOIA requests.



9. Defendant Interior Department is an agency within the meaning of



5  U.S.C. §§ 551(1) and 552(f)(1), and it has possession or control of documents



NRDC seeks. The Office of the Secretary of the Interior is a component of the



Interior Department.



10. Defendant Commerce Department is an agency within the meaning of



5 U.S.C. §§ 551(1) and 552(f)(1), and it has possession or control of documents
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NRDC seeks. The Office of the Secretary of Commerce is a component of the



Commerce Department.



STATUTORY AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK



11. FOIA requires federal agencies to release records to the public upon



request, unless one of nine statutory exemptions from disclosure applies. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)-(b).



12. Within twenty business days of an agency’s receipt of a FOIA request,



the agency must “determine . . . whether to comply” with the request. Id.



§ 552(a)(6)(A)(i); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.16(a) (Interior FOIA regulation); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.6(b) (Commerce FOIA regulation). The agency must “immediately notify” the



requester of “such determination and the reasons therefor.” 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(6)(A)(i)(I); 43 C.F.R. § 2.21(b) (requiring Interior Department to



“immediately” send a written acknowledgement and tracking number if a request



will take longer than ten workdays to process).



13. Once an agency determines that it will comply with a FOIA request, it



must “promptly” release responsive, non-exempt records to the requester. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(6)(C)(i); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.22(c) (Interior FOIA regulation); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.7(c) (Commerce FOIA regulation).



14. In “unusual circumstances,” an agency may extend the twenty-day



time limit for responding to a FOIA request by up to ten working days. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(6)(B)(i); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.19(a)(1) (Interior FOIA regulation); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.6(b) (Commerce FOIA regulation).
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15. The agency must provide requested records at no or reduced cost “if



disclosure of the information is in the public interest because it is likely to



contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the



government and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester.”



5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); see also 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a) (Interior FOIA regulation);



15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l) (Commerce FOIA regulation).



16. If the agency fails to notify the requester of its determination within



the statutory time limit, the requester is “deemed to have exhausted his



administrative remedies” and may immediately file suit. 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(C)(i).



17. FOIA grants federal district courts authority to “enjoin [an] agency



from withholding agency records and to order the production of any agency records



improperly withheld from the complainant.” Id. § 552(a)(4)(B).



FACTS



18. On April 26, 2017, President Donald J. Trump issued Executive Order



13,792, titled “Review of Designations Under the Antiquities Act,” which directed



Secretary of the Interior Ryan Zinke to conduct a review of twenty-seven national



monuments created by President Trump’s predecessors. Exec. Order 13,792, 82 Fed.



Reg. 20,429 (Apr. 26, 2017). The Executive Order directed Secretary Zinke to



provide “recommendations for such Presidential actions, legislative proposals, or



other actions consistent with the law as the Secretary may consider appropriate” to
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“balance the protection of . . . objects against the appropriate use of Federal lands



and the effects on surrounding lands and communities.” Id.


19. Two days later, on April 28, 2017, President Trump issued another



executive order, this one titled “Implementing an America-First Offshore Energy



Strategy.” Exec. Order 13,795, 82 Fed. Reg. 20,815 (April 28, 2017). The order,



among other things, directed Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross to review marine



national monuments and national marine sanctuaries that had been designated or



expanded within the previous ten years. The executive order required the Secretary



of Commerce to “report the results of the review” within 180 days. Id.


20. The Interior Department and the Commerce Department subsequently



accepted public comments regarding the covered national monuments and marine



sanctuaries. See 82 Fed. Reg. 22,016 (May 11, 2017) (Interior review); 82 Fed. Reg.



28,827 (June 26, 2017) (Commerce review). On information and belief, Secretaries



Zinke and Ross and other agency officials also met with a variety of stakeholders,



including representatives of industry groups expressing interest in commercial



exploitation of the national monuments and marine sanctuaries under review.



21. On information and belief, Defendants collectively received over three



million public comments during their review period, and the overwhelming majority



of those comments called on Defendants and the Trump Administration to preserve



existing national monuments and marine sanctuaries.



22. Plaintiff NRDC submitted comments to the Interior and Commerce



Departments in support of national monuments in general, and in support of Bears
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Ears National Monument, Grand Staircase-Escalante National Monument, and



Northeast Canyons and Seamounts Marine National Monument in particular. In



addition, tens of thousands of NRDC’s individual members submitted comments to



the Interior and Commerce Departments in support of national monuments and



marine sanctuaries.



23. On August 24, 2017, Interior Secretary Zinke submitted his final



report to the President. Neither Secretary Zinke nor President Trump released the



report publicly at the time, but national news reporters obtained what appears to be



a leaked copy of the report, and Secretary Zinke released a substantially similar



version to the public on December 5, 2017. Both versions of the Interior report



recommended that the President unilaterally revoke or substantially weaken



protections for several national monuments, including the Bears Ears National



Monument, the Grand Staircase-Escalante National Monument, and the Northeast



Canyons and Seamounts Marine National Monument.



24. On October 25, 2017, Secretary Ross’s report describing the results of



the Commerce review was due to be completed and submitted to the President. To



date, neither Secretary Ross nor any other government official has released the



Commerce report publicly.



25. On December 4, 2017, President Trump issued two proclamations



dismantling Bears Ears National Monument and Grand Staircase-Escalante



National Monument. President Trump and other federal officials have indicated



that additional proclamations dismantling other national monuments would follow.
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26. The American public has a strong interest in understanding the



Interior and Commerce Departments’ monument review processes and the basis for



the Secretaries’ reports and recommendations to the President. That includes



understanding the criteria by which Interior and Commerce Department officials



reviewed, weighed, or discounted the public comments they received; the contents of



those comments; and the identities of industry representatives with whom Interior



and Commerce Department officials met and the contents of those meetings.



27. The Interior and Commerce Departments’ reviews of national



monuments and marine sanctuaries have generated intense, widespread, and



sustained public interest and concern. NRDC and its members are particularly



keenly interested in these review processes and their outcomes. Yet, despite the



public’s desire for transparency and input into the Administration’s review process,



Defendants have made very little information publicly available about their



information-gathering and review processes.



28. To better inform the American public at large, and NRDC members in



particular, about a topic of intense public concern, NRDC submitted the following



FOIA requests to the Interior Department and the Commerce Department.



NRDC’s first FOIA request to the Interior Department



# OS-2017-01247



29. According to the Regulations.gov website, the Interior Department



received more than 2.8 million public comments through its online portal relating to



the Department’s national monument review. Only 782,460 comments—less than a
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third of the total count of online submissions—were made publicly available online



as of the close of the comment period. The Regulations.gov website notes that



“agencies may choose to redact, or withhold, certain submissions . . . such as those



containing private or proprietary information . . . or duplicate/near duplicate



examples of a mass-mail campaign.”



30. Interior Secretary Zinke’s report to President Trump acknowledged



that the public “[c]omments received were overwhelmingly in favor of maintaining



existing monuments.” Memorandum for the President from Secretary Zinke, “Final



Report Summarizing Findings of the Review of Designations Under the Antiquities



Act” at 3 (Aug. 24, 2017). Secretary Zinke nevertheless opined that the



overwhelming public support for national monuments reflected not genuine popular



will, but rather, in his words, “a well-orchestrated national campaign organized by



multiple organizations.” Id. The report went on to dismiss what it called “form



comments associated with NGO-organized campaigns, which far outnumbered



individual comments,” opining that “[t]oo often it is the local stakeholders who lack



the organization, funding, and institutional support to compete with well-funded



NGOs.” Id. at 3, 8.



31. On September 22, 2017, in an effort to better understand the Interior



Department’s review process and the information underlying Secretary Zinke’s



report and recommendations, NRDC submitted a FOIA request to the Interior



Department. See Exhibit A.
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32. NRDC’s request sought the following records:



a. “Any and all comments the [Interior] Department received on or after



April 26, 2017 (whether via online submission, by mail, or by any other



means) that relate to national monuments, and that are not among the



782,460 comments publicly available on the Regulations.gov website.



This includes but is not limited to comments that include “private or



proprietary information” or that are considered “duplicate/near



duplicate examples of a mass-mail campaign.” If you determine that



any such comments (or any portions thereof) are exempt from



disclosure, please produce a detailed ledger explaining the basis for



each withheld comment or portion thereof.



b. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the Department’s or the Secretary’s directives,



policies, standards, or procedures for reviewing or analyzing public



comments relating to national monuments.



c. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the Department’s or the Secretary’s review of,



assessment of, or findings about public comments relating to national



monuments.



d. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the Department’s or the Secretary’s inquiry



into or findings about “NGO-organized campaigns” relating to the
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Department’s monument review, or directions or instructions



concerning such inquiry or findings.



e. “Any and all records created or transmitted on or after April 26, 2017,



that contain or relate to the basis for the Secretary’s statement that



there was “a well-orchestrated national campaign organized by



multiple organizations” to submit public comments.



f. “Any records created or transmitted by the Department (or any official



or staff-member thereof) on or after April 26, 2017, that relate to the



Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC).” Id.


33. NRDC explained that, for purposes of its request, the term “records” is



consistent with the meaning of the term under FOIA, including “documents of any



kind, including electronic as well as paper documents, e-mails, memoranda, letters,



writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or otherwise produced, reproduced, or



stored), reports, summaries, notes, meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and



any other compilations of data from which information can be obtained.” Id.


34. NRDC also requested that the Interior Department waive any fees for



the search and production of the requested records. NRDC is entitled to a waiver of



all fees pursuant to FOIA’s fee waiver provisions and the agency’s regulations. See


5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a).



35. NRDC submitted its request to the Interior Department’s Office of the



Secretary via the Interior Department’s online FOIA portal, in accordance with the



agency’s FOIA regulations and guidance.
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36. The Interior Department’s online portal sent NRDC an automated



e-mail response acknowledging receipt of the request on September 22, 2017.



37. The Interior Department’s response was due within twenty business



days of the request—i.e., by October 23, 2017. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). NRDC



received no response of any kind by that date.



38. On October 24, 2017—the day after FOIA’s statutory deadline had



run—a FOIA Officer from the Interior Department’s Office of the Secretary



e-mailed an acknowledgement letter to NRDC’s counsel. That letter stated that



NRDC’s “request was received in the Office of the Secretary FOIA office on



September 22, 2017, and assigned control number OS-2017-01247.”



39. The letter further stated: “Because we will need to consult with one or



more bureaus of the Department in order to properly process your request, the



Office of the Secretary FOIA office is taking a 10-workday extension under



43 C.F.R. § 2.19. For the same reason, we are placing your request under the



‘Complex’ processing track. See 43 C.F.R. § 2.15.”



40. Finally, the letter stated that the Interior Department had “classified



[NRDC’s] request as an ‘other-use request.’” Seeking clarification, NRDC’s counsel



asked the FOIA Officer by e-mail whether this meant the Interior Department had



denied NRDC’s fee waiver request. In an e-mail dated November 1, 2017, the FOIA



Officer responded: “It is not a denial of your fee waiver request. We are waiting to



determine if a fee waiver i[s] necessary depending on whether there will be any



fees.”
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41. NRDC never received any further communications from the Interior



Department relating to its FOIA request.



42. Even accounting for the belated ten-day extension, the Interior



Department’s response was due on November 7, 2017.



43. To date, the Interior Department still has not substantively responded



to NRDC’s FOIA request, produced any responsive records, claimed any



exemptions, or made a determination on NRDC’s fee waiver request.



NRDC’s second FOIA request to the Interior Department


# OS-2018-00232



44. On October 29, 2017, NRDC submitted a second FOIA request to the



Interior Department, this time seeking records relating to meetings between



Secretary Zinke or other Interior Department leadership and outside groups or



individuals regarding national monuments. See Exhibit B.



45. Specifically, NRDC sought the following records:



a. “[A]ny and all records in the possession, custody, or control of the



[Interior] Department . . . that pertain to meetings on or after January



20, 2017, attended by Secretary Ryan Zinke, Scott Hommel, Lori



Mashburn, James Cason, Doug Domenech, and/or Downey Magallanes,



relating to any national monument and/or to the Department’s review



of national monuments under Executive Order No. 13792, including:



b. “Any calendar entries, invitations, itineraries, or communications



referencing such meetings;
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c. “Any agendas, minutes, attendee lists, or presentations relating to



such meetings;



d. “Any records of individuals who attended these meetings or



accompanied the above-named officials on any of these occasions,



excluding current career federal employees;



e. “Any briefings, summaries, or materials prepared or transmitted in



relation to such meeting, whether before, during, or after the meeting



itself; and



f. “Any notes taken by any federal employee, including the above-named



officials.” Id.


46. NRDC explained that, for purposes of its request, the term “records” is



consistent with the meaning of the term under FOIA, including “documents of any



kind, including electronic and paper documents, emails, memoranda, letters,



writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or otherwise produced, reproduced, or



stored), reports, summaries, notes, meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and



any other compilations of data from which information can be obtained.” Id. 


47. NRDC also requested that the Interior Department waive any fees for



the search and production of the requested records. NRDC is entitled to a waiver of



all fees pursuant to FOIA’s fee waiver provisions and the agency’s regulations. See


5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a).
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48. NRDC submitted its request to the Interior Department’s Office of the



Secretary via the Interior Department’s online FOIA portal, in accordance with the



agency’s FOIA regulations and guidance.



49. The Interior Department’s online portal sent NRDC an automated



e-mail response acknowledging receipt of the request on October 29, 2017.



50. The Interior Department’s response was due within twenty business



days of the request—i.e., by November 28, 2017. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).



51. On November 21, 2017, a FOIA Officer from the Interior Department’s



Office of the Secretary e-mailed an acknowledgement letter to NRDC’s counsel.



That letter stated that NRDC’s “request was received in the Office of the Secretary



FOIA office on October 29, 2017, and assigned control number OS-2018-00232.”



52. The letter further stated: “Because we will need to consult with one or



more bureaus of the Department in order to properly process your request, the



Office of the Secretary FOIA office is taking a 10-workday extension under



43 C.F.R. § 2.19. For the same reason, we are placing your request under the



‘Complex’ processing track. See 43 C.F.R. § 2.15.”



53. Finally, the letter stated that the Interior Department had “classified



[NRDC’s] request as an ‘other-use request,’” and went on to explain: “[W]e are in the



process of determining whether or not your entitlements are sufficient to enable us



to process your request, or if we will need to issue a formal determination on your



request for a fee waiver.”
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54. NRDC never received any further communications from the Interior



Department relating to its FOIA request.



55. Accounting for a ten-day extension, the Interior Department’s response



was due on December 12, 2017.



56. To date, the Interior Department still has not substantively responded



to NRDC’s FOIA request, produced any responsive records, claimed any



exemptions, or made a determination on NRDC’s fee waiver request.



NRDC’s FOIA request to the Commerce Department



# DOC-IOS-2018-000178



57. Also on October 29, 2017, NRDC submitted a FOIA request to the



Commerce Department, seeking records relating to meetings between Secretary



Ross or another member of the Commerce Department’s leadership and outside



groups or individuals regarding national marine monuments or sanctuaries. See



Exhibit C.



58. Specifically, NRDC requested the following records:



a. “[A]ny and all records in the possession, custody, or control of the



[Commerce] Department . . . that pertain to meetings on or after



January 20, 2017, attended by Secretary Wilbur Ross and/or Earl



Comstock, relating to any national marine sanctuary or marine



national monument and/or to the Department’s review of national



marine sanctuaries and monuments under Executive Order No. 13795,



including:
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b. “Any calendar entries, invitations, itineraries, or communications



referencing such meetings;



c. “Any agendas, minutes, attendee lists, or presentations relating to



such meetings;



d. “Any records of individuals who attended these meetings or



accompanied Secretary Ross or Mr. Comstock on any of these



occasions, excluding current career federal employees;



e. “Any briefings, summaries, or materials prepared or transmitted in



relation to such meeting, whether before, during, or after the meeting



itself; and



f. “Any notes taken by any federal employee, including Secretary Ross or



Mr. Comstock.” Id.


59. NRDC explained that, for purposes of its request, the term “records” is



consistent with the meaning of the term under FOIA, including “documents of any



kind, including electronic as well as paper documents, e-mails, memoranda, letters,



writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or otherwise produced, reproduced, or



stored), reports, summaries, notes, meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and



any other compilations of data from which information can be obtained.” Id.


60. In its request, NRDC requested that the Commerce Department waive



any fees for the search and production of the requested records, pursuant to FOIA’s



and the agency’s fee waiver provisions. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 15 C.F.R.



§ 4.11(l).
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61. NRDC submitted its request to the Commerce Department’s Office of



the Secretary via the federal government’s online FOIA portal, in accordance with



the agency’s FOIA regulations and guidance.



62. The federal government’s online FOIA portal sent NRDC an



automated e-mail response acknowledging receipt of the request on October 29,



2017, and assigning it tracking number # DOC-OS-2018-000178.



63. On October 31, 2017, NRDC’s counsel received another e-mail from the



federal government’s online FOIA portal advising that the request’s tracking



number had been changed to # DOC-IOS-2018-000178.



64. The Commerce Department’s response was due within twenty business



days of the request—i.e., by November 28, 2017. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).



65. On November 14, 2017, the Commerce Department sent NRDC’s



counsel an e-mail advising that NRDC’s fee waiver request had been “fully



granted.” Exhibit K. The Commerce Department did not respond substantively to



NRDC’s FOIA request by the statutory deadline, however.



66. To date, the Commerce Department still has not substantively



responded to NRDC’s FOIA request, produced any responsive records, or claimed



any exemptions.



* * *
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67. NRDC seeks a declaration that Defendants have violated the FOIA by



failing to respond to NRDC’s FOIA requests and failing to promptly release all



responsive, non-exempt records. NRDC also seeks an injunction ordering



Defendants to provide the requested records without further delay.



68. NRDC brings this action on behalf of itself and its members. NRDC



and its members have been and continue to be injured by Defendants’ failure to



provide responsive records. The requested relief will redress these injuries.



CLAIM FOR RELIEF



COUNT ONE

5 U.S.C. § 552(a) (FOIA)



All Defendants



69. NRDC incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs.



70. NRDC has a statutory right under FOIA to the records it seeks.



71. Defendants have violated their statutory duties under FOIA, 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a), and the applicable implementing regulations, to release all non-exempt,



responsive records to NRDC. Defendants have identified no basis, let alone any



valid basis, for withholding or partially withholding the records that are responsive



to NRDC’s FOIA requests.



72. NRDC is entitled to all non-exempt responsive documents at no cost



because disclosure of the requested records would contribute significantly to public



understanding and is not primarily in NRDC’s commercial interest. 5 U.S.C.



§ 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 43 C.F.R. § 2.45(a); 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l).
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73. NRDC is being harmed by Defendants’ unlawful withholding of the



requested records, and it will continue to be harmed unless Defendants are



compelled to comply with FOIA’s statutory requirements.



REQUEST FOR RELIEF



NRDC respectfully requests that this Court enter a judgment against



Defendants as follows:



A. Declare that Defendants have violated FOIA by failing to provide a



final determination as to whether they will comply with NRDC’s FOIA requests and



by failing to produce non-exempt records responsive to NRDC’s FOIA requests by



the statutory deadline;



B. Declare that Defendant Interior Department has violated FOIA by



failing to make a determination as to NRDC’s fee waiver requests;



C. Order Defendants to release to NRDC, without further delay and at no



cost to NRDC, all responsive, non-exempt records in their possession, custody, or



control;



D. If either Defendant contends that any responsive records are exempt or



partially exempt from disclosure under FOIA, order that Defendant to produce a log



identifying any such records or parts thereof and the basis for the withholdings, and



require Defendant to prove that its decision to withhold or redact any such records



is justified by law;



E. Order Defendant Interior Department to grant NRDC’s fee waiver in



full;



F. Award NRDC its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees; and
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G. Grant such other and further relief as the Court deems just and



proper.



Dated:  January 24, 2018  Respectfully submitted,



/s/ Nancy S. Marks   


Nancy S. Marks (NM3348)

Natural Resources Defense Council

40 West 20th Street

New York, NY 10011

Tel.: (212) 727-4414

Fax: (212) 795-4799

E-mail: nmarks@nrdc.org



Katherine Desormeau

(Pro Hac Vice applicant)

Natural Resources Defense Council

111 Sutter Street, 21st Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Tel.: (415) 875-6158

Fax: (212) 795-4799

E-mail: kdesormeau@nrdc.org



Counsel for NRDC
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October 29, 2017

 
Via online submission



Department of Commerce

FOIA Officer



Re: FOIA Request for Records Relating to Meetings Relating

to National Marine Sanctuaries and Monuments



Dear FOIA Officer:



I write on behalf of the Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC) to

request disclosure of records pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act

(FOIA), 5 U.S.C. § 552 et seq., and applicable Department of Commerce

regulations, 15 C.F.R. § 4.1-4.11. 


I. Description of Records Sought



Please produce any and all records in the possession, custody, or

control of the Department of Commerce (“the Department”) that pertain to

meetings on or after January 20, 2017, attended by Secretary Wilbur Ross

and/or Earl Comstock, relating to any national marine sanctuary or marine

national monument and/or to the Department’s review of national marine

sanctuaries and monuments under Executive Order No. 13795, including:



x Any calendar entries, invitations, itineraries, or communications

referencing such meetings;



x Any agendas, minutes, attendee lists, or presentations relating to

such meetings;



x Any records of individuals who attended these meetings or

accompanied Secretary Ross or Mr. Comstock on any of these

occasions, excluding current career federal employees;



x Any briefings, summaries, or materials prepared or transmitted in

relation to such meeting, whether before, during, or after the meeting

itself; and



x Any notes taken by any federal employee, including Secretary Ross or

Mr. Comstock.



For purposes of this request, the term “records” is consistent with the

meaning of the term under FOIA. This includes, but is not limited to,




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documents of any kind, including electronic as well as paper documents, e-
mails, memoranda, letters, writings (handwritten, typed, electronic or

otherwise produced, reproduced, or stored), reports, summaries, notes,

meeting notes or minutes, text messages, and any other compilations of data



from which information can be obtained.



 Under FOIA, you are obligated to provide records in a readily-
accessible electronic format and in the format requested. See, e.g., 5 U.S.C.

§ 552(a)(3)(B) (“In making any record available to a person under this

paragraph, an agency shall provide the record in any form or format

requested by the person if the record is readily reproducible by the agency in

that form or format.”). We request that you provide the responsive records

in electronic .pdf format without “profiles” or “embedded files.” Please do not

provide the records in a single or “batched” .pdf file. To the extent that a

subset of the requested records is readily available, please provide that

subset immediately while you continue to search for additional records to

complete your response.



If you decide to invoke any FOIA exemptions in response to this

request, please include in your response sufficient information for us to

assess the basis for the exemption(s), including any interest(s) that would be

harmed by release. Please include a detailed ledger which includes (1) basic

factual material about each withheld record, including the originator, date,

length, general subject matter, and location of each item; and (2) complete

explanations and justifications for the withholding, including the specific

exemption(s) under which the record (or portion thereof) was withheld and a

full explanation of how each exemption applies to the withheld material.

Such statements will be helpful in deciding whether to appeal an adverse

determination. Your written justification may help to avoid litigation.



If you determine that portions of any requested records are exempt

from disclosure, the FOIA requires that you produce any reasonably

segregable non-exempt portions within the statutory time limit. See 5

U.S.C. § 552(b). See, e.g., Gatore v. U.S. Dep’t of Homeland Sec., 177 F.

Supp. 3d 46, 53 (D.D.C. 2016); Gosen v. U.S. Citizenship & Immigration



Servs., 118 F. Supp. 3d 232, 243-44 (D.D.C. 2015).



Please produce the records on a rolling basis. The Department’s

search for or deliberations concerning certain records should not delay the

production of others that the Department has already retrieved and elected

to produce. See generally 15 C.F.R. § 4.7. If the Department takes the

position that any of these records are publicly available, please indicate

where each of them may be found.
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II. Request for a Fee Waiver



NRDC asks that the Department waive any fee it would otherwise

charge for the search and production of the records described above. FOIA

provides that a requester is entitled to a fee waiver when “disclosure of the

information is in the public interest because it [A] is likely to contribute

significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the

government and [B] is not primarily in the commercial interest of the

requester.” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); see also 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l). The

disclosure NRDC seeks here meets both these requirements.



A. Disclosure is likely to contribute significantly to public

understanding of the operations or activities of the

government



First, the disclosure requested here is “likely to contribute

significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the

government,” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii), based on the following factors. See

15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i)-(iv) (describing factors to be considered).



1. Subject of the request (15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i))



The requested records directly concern “the operations or activities of

the Government.” 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(i). The records pertain to the

Department’s “review of all designations and expansions of National Marine

Sanctuaries, and of all designations and expansions of Marine National

Monuments under the Antiquities Act of 1906 . . . designated or expanded

within the 10-year period prior to the date of this order” and the

Department’s resulting report. Executive Order No. 13795, section 4(b)(i)-
(ii). Disclosure of the records will provide context for the Department’s

report and help the public to evaluate the Department’s recommendations

and whatever actions the President, Congress, or other federal government

officials take with respect to the affected sanctuaries and monuments.



2. Informative value of the information to be disclosed

(15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(ii))



Disclosure of the requested records is “‘likely to contribute’ to an

understanding of Government operations or activities.” 15 C.F.R. §

4.11(l)(2)(ii). The records are relevant to the Department’s review of

national marine sanctuaries and monuments, and therefore they are likely

to be “meaningfully informative” in providing context for the Department’s

report and for any actions the Administration may take with respect to

those sanctuaries or monuments. Id. Because the Department’s review has



Case 1:18-cv-00650   Document 1-3   Filed 01/24/18   Page 4 of 11








4



attracted broad public attention (as explained below), and because the

requested records have not previously been made available, disclosure will

“‘contribute’ to an increased public understanding of those operations or

activities.” Id.



3. Contribution to public understanding of the subject

(15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii))



Because NRDC is a “representative of the news media,” as explained

in Part III below, the Department must presume that this disclosure is

likely to contribute to public understanding of the subject of the disclosure.

15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii). However, even if NRDC were not a media

requester, NRDC satisfies the requirement that disclosure will “contribute

to the understanding of a reasonably broad audience of persons interested

in the subject.” Id.


NRDC does not seek the requested records for its own benefit.

Rather, it seeks the records to provide new information to the public about

the Department’s review process and its resulting report and

recommendations. Disclosure of this information will make possible a more

complete public understanding of the federal government’s decision-making

process and intentions regarding the national marine sanctuaries and

monuments at issue. See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iii) (requiring requester to

show that disclosure will “contribute to the understanding of a reasonably

broad audience of persons interested in the subject, as opposed to the

individual understanding of the requester”). There is more than a

reasonable likelihood that disclosure of the requested records will

significantly increase public understanding of the government’s review

process and actions among a broad audience of interested people. See

Citizens for Responsibility & Ethics in Washington v. U.S. Dep’t of Health &



Human Servs., 481 F. Supp. 2d 99, 109 (D.D.C. 2006).



NRDC has both the ability and the intent to disseminate the

information obtained through this request “in a manner that will be

informative to the understanding of a reasonably broad audience of persons

interested in the subject.” 43 C.F.R. § 2.48(a)(2)(iv); see also id.

§ 2.48(a)(2)(v) (considering requester’s “ability and intent to disseminate the

information to a reasonably broad audience of persons interested in the

subject”). NRDC has more than two million members and online activists,

tens of thousands of whom have responded to action alerts relating to the

Department’s monument review in particular. And, as detailed below,

NRDC has extensive communications capabilities and a proven history of

disseminating information of public interest, including information obtained

from FOIA requests. NRDC has both the capability and the intent to

broadly disseminate the information it seeks here to its members and to the
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general public, thereby contributing to a better general understanding of

the Department’s review process and its ultimate findings.



NRDC uses numerous modes of communication to disseminate



information to its members and to the public at large. These include:



(1)NRDC’s website (http://www.nrdc.org), which is updated daily and

draws approximately 1.7 million page views and 1.5 million unique

page views per month, and which features NRDC staff blogs, original

reporting on environmental news stories, and in-depth analyses on

topics of public interest;



(2)NRDC’s Activist email list, which includes more than 2.4 million

subscribers who receive regular communications on urgent

environmental issues;



(3)NRDC Insider (http://www.nrdc.org/newsletter), a monthly electronic

environmental newsletter distributed by email to more than 1.47

million subscribers;



(4)NRDC’s Facebook page, with 909,921 likes and 872,632 followers;



(5)NRDC’s Twitter handle, with 274,922 followers;



(6)NRDC’s Instagram feed, with 111,024 followers;



(7)NRDC’s YouTube channel (https://www.youtube.com/user/NRDCflix),

with 21,050 subscribers; and



(8)online media outlets like Medium (https://medium.com/natural-
resources-defense-council) and Huffington Post

(http://www.huffingtonpost.com/topic/natural-resources-defense-
council).



NRDC also publishes legal and scientific analyses, policy documents, and

reports; issues press releases; and directs and produces movies (including

Sonic Sea, Stories from the Gulf, and Acid Test). NRDC has more than fifty

staff members dedicated to communications work.



In addition, NRDC employees and representatives are widely quoted

in the news media; participate in interviews on television, radio, and web

broadcasts; appear at conferences; provide congressional testimony; and

contribute articles and op-eds to numerous national newspapers, magazines,

academic journals, and books. See, e.g., Zoe Carpenter, After Promising a

“Fair Hearing” on Monuments, Secretary Zinke Shuts Out the Public, THE



NATION (May 18, 2017) (quoting NRDC Land and Wildlife Program Director
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Sharon Buccino); Op-Ed, Don’t Take Bears Ears Away from Us, SALT LAKE



TRIBUNE (May 6, 2017) (contributed by NRDC trustee Robert Redford);

Research Article, The Requirement To Rebuild U.S. Fish Stocks: Is It



Working? MARINE POLICY (July 2014) (co-authored by NRDC Oceans

Program Senior Scientist Lisa Suatoni and Senior Attorney Brad Sewell);

Transcript, Conservationists Call for Quiet: The Ocean Is Too Loud, ALL



THINGS CONSIDERED (July 28, 2013) (featuring NRDC Marine Mammal

Protection Program Director Michael Jasny); Testimony of Johanna Wald,

NRDC Senior Attorney, before the U.S. Senate Committee on Energy and

Natural Resources, Hearing on the California Desert Protection Act of 2010

(May 20, 2010).



NRDC’s legal and scientific experts routinely analyze information

obtained through FOIA and use it to inform the public about a variety of

environmental issues. See, e.g., Theo Spencer, The Fight to Stop a Strip

Mine Near Bryce Canyon: A History, NRDC Blog (June 5, 2017) (analyzing

documents obtained through partner organization’s FOIA request regarding

a proposed expansion of an open pit strip mine in Utah); Kevin Bogardus et

al., “Homework Assignment”: How Pebble Lobbied Trump’s EPA, E&E NEWS



(June 8, 2017) (quoting NRDC staff discussing results of a FOIA seeking

communications between EPA and Pebble Mine developers); Tom Neltner et

al., Generally Recognized as Secret: Chemicals Added to Food in the United



States, NRDC Report (2014) (analyzing FOIA documents relating to

potentially unsafe chemicals added to food); Carmen Cordova, Playing

Chicken with Antibiotics, NRDC Issue Brief (2014) (describing FDA records,

obtained through FOIA, which show widespread violations of the agency’s

safety standards for antibiotic feed additives); Dan Flynn, NRDC Releases

FSIS Inspection Reports on Foster Farms, FOOD SAFETY NEWS (Sept. 12,

2014) (reporting on documents NRDC obtained through FOIA relating to

safety violations by poultry company, and linking to the documents); Mae

Wu et al., Still Poisoning the Well: Atrazine Continues to Contaminate

Surface Water and Drinking Water in the United States, NRDC Report

(2010) (analyzing White House documents obtained through FOIA and from

other sources to inform the public about EPA’s decision not to protect

wildlife and workers from the pesticide atrazine). 


In sum, NRDC has a proven ability to digest, synthesize, and

disseminate information obtained through FOIA to a broad audience of

interested persons. NRDC’s more than two million members and activists,

when combined with the members of the general public who read NRDC’s

communications online and in the news media, clearly constitute “a

reasonably broad audience of persons interested in the subject.” 15 C.F.R. §

4.11(l)(2)(iii). NRDC intends to disseminate any newsworthy information in

the released records to this large audience in a manner that will
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meaningfully enhance the public’s understanding of the federal

government’s decision-making process. NRDC does not seek records that

have been previously disclosed to the public. See id. Disclosure may

therefore confirm, clarify, or contradict documents or statements in the

public domain or actions taken by the federal government, and it will enable

the public to better evaluate the federal government’s actions.



4. Significance of the contribution to public

understanding (15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iv))



Finally, the records requested will shed significant light on a matter

of considerable public interest and concern. See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(l)(2)(iv).



The American public has demonstrated a strong interest in the

Department’s review of national marine sanctuaries and monuments.

According to the Regulations.gov website, nearly 100,000 non-duplicative

public comments relating to the Department’s review of national marine

sanctuaries and monuments were submitted online. See

https://www.regulations.gov/docket?D=NOAA-NOS-2017-0066 (last visited

Sept. 29, 2017). The Department’s review has also prompted many letters to

the editor and op-eds, widespread social media activism, and numerous

media reports in local and national publications. See, e.g., Guy Kovner,

Marine Sanctuaries that Protect California Coast Get Strong Public



Support, Conservationists Say, THE PRESS-DEMOCRAT (Aug. 17, 2017); Zack

Klyver, Op-Ed: Marine Monument Vital for a Healthy, Bountiful Ocean,

BANGOR DAILY NEWS (Aug. 3, 2017); David Helvarg, Op-Ed: Time Is

Running Out to Stop Trump From Opening California Marine Sanctuaries

to Oil Drilling, LOS ANGELES TIMES (July 7, 2017); Marine Conservation

Institute, Blog: Analysis Shows Overwhelming Public Support for Marine



Monuments and Sanctuaries (Aug. 15, 2017), at https://blog.marine-
conservation.org/2017/08/overwhelming-support-for-marine-monuments-
and-sanctuaries.html.



Despite this strong showing of public interest and concern, very little

information is publicly available about the Department’s information-
gathering and review process. Disclosure of the requested records

concerning the Department’s meetings with outside individuals and groups

will significantly contribute to public understanding of the Department’s

review process. Disclosure will also provide valuable context for

understanding the Department’s report, and will enable the public more

effectively to evaluate the legal and factual bases for the Department’s

assertions and recommendations.



For these reasons, NRDC has met the first prerequisite for a fee

waiver request under the FOIA.
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% Disclosure is not primarily in NRDC’s commercial

interest



Second, NRDC has no commercial interests that would be furthered

by the requested disclosure. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii); 15 C.F.R. §

4.11(l)(1)(ii). Therefore, it satisfies the second prerequisite for a fee waiver

request under the FOIA.



NRDC is a not-for-profit organization. It does not act as a middleman

to resell information obtained under FOIA. “Congress amended FOIA to

ensure that it be ‘liberally construed in favor of waivers for noncommercial

requesters.’” Judicial Watch v. Rossotti, 326 F.3d 1309, 1312 (D.C. Cir.

2003) (internal citation omitted); see also Better Gov’t Ass’n v. Dep’t of State,

780 F.2d 86, 88-89 (D.C. Cir. 1986) (recognizing that “[the fee waiver]

provision was added to FOIA in an attempt to prevent government agencies

from using high fees to discourage certain types of requesters and requests,

in particular those from journalists, scholars and nonprofit public interest

groups.” (internal quotation marks omitted)). Requesters wish to serve the

public by reviewing, analyzing, and disseminating newsworthy and

presently non-public information about the federal government’s decision-
making process with respect to national marine sanctuaries and

monuments, and this is precisely the sort of “investigation[]” of

“governmental choices and highlighting [of] possible abuses” for which the

fee waiver was enacted. Better Gov’t Ass’n, 780 F.2d at 93.



 Access to government records, disclosure forms, and similar materials

through FOIA requests is essential to NRDC’s role of educating its

members, activists, and the general public. NRDC has no commercial

interest in the disclosure of the records, and it will realize no commercial

benefit or profit from the disclosure of the requested records. For these

reasons, NRDC is entitled to a fee waiver under the FOIA.



III. Request for a Reduction of Fees



In the alternative, even if the Department denies NRDC’s fee waiver

request, NRDC qualifies as a “representative of the news media” that is

entitled to a reduction of fees under FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii), and

applicable regulations, 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(c), (d); see also id. § 4.11(b)(6)

(defining “[r]epresentative of the news media”).



A representative of the news media is “any person or entity that

gathers information of potential interest to a segment of the public, uses its
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editorial skills to turn the raw materials into a distinct work, and

distributes that work to an audience.” 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii); see also

Elec. Privacy Info. Ctr. v. Dep’t of Def., 241 F. Supp. 2d 5, 6, 11-15 (D.D.C.

2003) (a “non-profit public interest organization” qualifies as a

representative of the news media under FOIA where it publishes books and

newsletters on issues of current interest to the public); Letter from

Alexander C. Morris, FOIA Officer, United States Dep’t of Energy, to

Joshua Berman, NRDC (Feb. 10, 2011) (granting NRDC media requester

status).



NRDC is in part organized and operated to gather and publish or

transmit news to the public. As described in detail in Section II above,

NRDC publishes original reports and analyses on conservation-related

topics on its website, in its newsletter, and in blog posts; it contributes

articles and op-eds to a variety of online and print platforms; and it

maintains free online libraries of documents, publications, and other

information of interest to the general public. These types of publications and

media sources constitute news media outlets for purposes of FOIA. See
OPEN Government Act of 2007, Pub. L. No. 110-175, § 3, 121 Stat. 2524

(2007) (codified at 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii)) (clarifying that “as methods of

news delivery evolve . . . such alternative media shall be considered to be

news-media entities”); see also 15 C.F.R. § 4.11(b)(6) (“Examples of news-
media entities are . . . publishers of periodicals . . . including news

organizations that disseminate solely on the Internet.”).



 Public interest organizations performing these sorts of public

communication functions “are regularly granted news representative

status.” Serv. Women’s Action Network v. Dep’t of Def., 888 F. Supp. 2d 282,

287-89 (D. Conn. 2012) (according media requester status to the American

Civil Liberties Union); see also Cause of Action v. Fed. Trade Comm’n, 961

F. Supp. 2d 142, 164 (D.D.C. 2013) (explaining that an organization can

qualify for media-requester status if it “distributes work to an audience and

is especially organized around doing so”).



NRDC intends to review the records it obtains through this FOIA

request and, if the information is appropriately newsworthy, to analyze

them, synthesize them with information from other sources, and create and

disseminate unique articles, reports, analyses, blogs, tweets, emails, and/or

other distinct informational works through one or more of its publications or

other suitable media channels. NRDC will not resell the information

obtained through this FOIA request to other media organizations. For these

reasons, even if the Department denies NRDC’s fee waiver request, it

should grant a fee reduction consistent with 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii).
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IV. Willingness to Pay Fees Under Protest



Please provide the records requested above regardless of your fee

waiver decision. In order to expedite a response, NRDC will, if necessary

and under protest, pay fees in accordance with the Department’s FOIA

regulations. See 15 C.F.R. § 4.11. Please contact me, however, before doing

anything that would cause the fee to exceed $250. NRDC reserves the right

to seek administrative or judicial review of any fee waiver denial.



V. Conclusion



Please email the requested records or, if it is not possible to email,

mail a CD of electronic copies of the requested records to me at the address

listed below. Please call or email me with any questions. Thank you for your

time.



Sincerely,



/s/ Katherine Desormeau  
Katherine Desormeau

Natural Resources Defense Council, Inc.

111 Sutter Street, 21st Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

Tel: (415) 875-6158

kdesormeau@nrdc.org
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


     )



ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS  )



FOUNDATION,   )



     ) 


   Plaintiff, )



     )



v.     ) Civil Action No. 18-cv-00888



     )



NATIONAL MARINE  )



FISHERIES SERVICE,  )



     )



   Defendant. )



_____________________________ )



DECLARATION OF MARK H. GRAFF


Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I, Mark H. Graff, declare and state as follows:


1. I am currently the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Officer for the National Oceanic



and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), which is a part of the United States Department of



Commerce (DOC). I have occupied this position since September 6, 2015.  My primary duties


include management of requests submitted to NOAA for records made under both the FOIA, 5



U.S.C. § 552, and the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a (PA). In that capacity, I oversee



NOAA’s receipt and log-in of in-coming FOIA requests, the tasking and coordination of



searches for responsive records, and review of out-going responses.


2. The statements contained in this declaration are based upon my personal knowledge,



upon information provided to me in my official capacity, upon conclusions and determinations


reached and made in accordance therewith, and upon my personal examination of the withheld



and redacted documents.  I am personally familiar with the FOIA request of Plaintiff Ecological


Rights Foundation (ERF), which is at issue in this case. 


3. This Declaration is being submitted in support of DOC’s motion for summary judgment. 
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I. PLAINTIFF’S FOIA REQUEST AND NMFS’ INITIAL SEARCH



4. Plaintiff submitted the present FOIA request, dated December 6, 2016, seeking three



categories of documents: documents related to a July 24, 2014 email from Chris Yates


concerning input that he and other West Coast Region staff provided to NOAA HQ on the



impact of a June 11, 2013 memorandum from Earl Stockdale, Chief Counsel of the U.S. Army



Corps of Engineers (limited to documents generated on or prior to July 24, 2014, and only those



documents related to the input those members provided to NOAA HQ on the impact of the



memorandum); documents to or from Chris Keifer related to a draft letter to the U.S. Army



Corps of Engineers providing an informal letter with the results of a consultation pursuant to



Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act (ESA) for proposed activities at the Englebright Dam;


and documents since January 1, 2000 from any office with NOAA Fisheries Service related to



whether any entities are causing unauthorized take of threatened or endangered anadromous fish



in the Yuba River at or near Englebright Dam, Narrows 1 and 2 powerhouses, Daguerre Point


Dam, and the Hallwood-Cordua Diversion. A copy of Plaintiff’s FOIA request was submitted as


part of Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment, Hudak Declaration, Exhibit 1 (ECF no. 12-


14).



5.  In response to Plaintiff’s FOIA request, NOAA performed searches of the records in



NOAA Fisheries West Coast Region and the Office of Law Enforcement.


6. The offices involved in the initial search of NOAA Fisheries West Coast Region were the



West Coast Region Central Valley Area Office, the West Coast Region Sacramento Office, the



West Coast Region California Coastal Office, the West Coast Region Santa Rosa Office, the



West Coast Region Long Beach Office, and the West Coast Region Protected Resources


Division and the NOAA Office of the General Counsel Southwest Section.  These offices were
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chosen as they contain all the employees who have specific knowledge of the actions described



in plaintiff’s request and were likely to have potentially responsive documents.  In conducting



these searches, NMFS examined all email files, hard drives, cloud-based systems, and paper files


of the employees of the aforementioned offices.  As such, there were no other offices or locations


where responsive records were reasonably likely to be found, and the search was calculated to



uncover all relevant documents.


7. Seven search logs are available from this initial search of the NOAA West Coast Region.



These search logs are attached as Exhibit 1. The logs vary in the detail that they offer. For



example, the search performed by Jeff McLain was performed on December 13, 2016, and he



searched email for the terms “Chris Yates”, “Stockdale”, “Narrow 1”, “Narrow 2”, “Narrows II”,



and for email with metadata indicating that it was from Christopher Keifer and to Jeff McLain.



Gary Sprague’s search does not indicate the search parameters, but indicates that the search took



31.25 hours spread out between January 3-23, 2017. Maria Rea documented two distinct


searches, one for the keywords “Larry Thompson”, “Steve Edmundson”, “take”, “Don Tanner”,



“Englebright”, “Daguerre”, and “Narrows” since January 1, 2000, and one search seeking email


to or from Chris Keifer, Gary Sprague, or Howard Brown, or the draft Englebright letter, from


February 14 – March 25, 2014. Don Tanner, the Resident Agent for NOAA Fisheries West Coast


Region, documented a search but was sparse on the details.



8. An additional search was performed by NMFS’ Office of Law Enforcement. This search



targeted the terms Englebright Dam, Narrows 1 and 2 powerhouses, Daguerre Point Dam,



Hallwood-Cordua Diversion, Yuba River, Chris Yates, Stockdale memo, Englebright


concurrence letter, and Chris Keifer.
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9. 309 documents responsive to Plaintiff’s FOIA request was found through these searches.



On February 13, 2017, NOAA made a determination that it would withhold 54 of those



documents in part due to the presence of material exempt from disclosure pursuant to the



attorney-client privilege, the deliberative process privilege, the attorney work product privilege,



or because it contained personal information the disclosure of which would constitute a clearly



unwarranted invasion of privacy. The rest of the information in those documents was disclosed,



and the remainder of the documents were disclosed in full or were referred to other agencies


where the documents originated for a disclosure determination and direct response to the



requester. A copy of NOAA’s final determination was submitted as part of Plaintiff’s Motion for



Summary Judgment, Hudak Declaration, Exhibit 3 (ECF no. 12-16). 


10. On March 10, 2017, Plaintiff submitted an administrative appeal, challenging the partial


withholdings on 10 documents. A copy of Plaintiff’s appeal was submitted as part of Plaintiff’s


Motion for Summary Judgment, Hudak Declaration, Exhibit 4 (ECF no. 12-17). Those



documents contained withholdings pursuant to the attorney-client privilege and the deliberative



process, though sometimes the withholding was only labelled (b)(5) without specifying which



specific privilege encompassed by (b)(5) was being exerted.


11. Plaintiff’s appeal also challenged the adequacy of the search.


II. ADDITIONAL SEARCH PERFORMED BY NMFS


12. In response to Plaintiff’s appeal regarding the adequacy of the search, DOC’s Office of



the General Counsel reviewed the available search logs, made further inquiries about the



production of emails to and from the regional NMFS law enforcement agent Don Tanner and the



search performed by the Office of Law Enforcement, and determined that, in order to ensure that


all relevant documents had been located, additional searches would be advised. The additional
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searches were intended to ensure that a consistent set of search terms were used, and to



encompass all Office of Law Enforcement agents within the search.


13. Upon inquiry with Resident Agent Don Tanner, it was confirmed that he had located



numerous documents that were released to Plaintiff in full. In searching for responsive material,



the Resident Agent provided paper files and his computer to the regional FOIA coordinator. 


Both Resident Agent Tanner and the FOIA coordinator performed the relevant searches on the



machine, including on the Resident Agent’s email and hard drive.   While the Resident Agent


had been copied on the emails at issue, he did not author any responsive documents that were not


produced.


14. Upon inquiry with the Office of Law Enforcement, it was confirmed that two responsive



emails to/from Resident Agent Tanner had been located and produced to Plaintiff, though his


name and email address had been redacted pursuant to (b)(6). The Office of the General Counsel


informed that (b)(7)(C) is a more appropriate basis for redacting an agent’s name and email, and



the FOIA Coordinator for the Office of Law Enforcement took corrective action and re-released



those emails with a corrected redaction code. 


15. DOC’s Office of the General Counsel instructed that all offices perform a search using



the same keywords, checking both emails and network drives. The Office of Law Enforcement


was specifically instructed to search the documents of all agents, not just the regional Resident


Agent. The 45 sets of keywords to be used for the search were:
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1. Yates Stockdale 


2. Keifer Stockdale 


3. Keifer Draft Englebright


4. Concurrence Letter


5. Tanner Yuba


6. Tanner Englebright


7. Tanner Daguerre 


8. Tanner Narrows


9. Tanner Hallwood-Cordua



10. Thompson Yuba 


11. Thompson Englebright


12. Thompson Daguerre 


13. Thompson Narrows


14. Thompson Hallwood-Cordua 


15. Yates


16. Keifer 


17. Baker 


18. Tucker 


19. Thompson Take 


20. Thompson Death 


21. Thompson Mortality



22. Thompson Stranding 


23. Thompson 
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24. Dewatering 


25. Thompson Sprague 


26. Ellrott


27. Flow Deviations


28. rescue 


29. Englebright


30. Narrows


31. Hallwood 


32. Cordua 


33. Daguerre 


34. Take 


35. Yuba 


36. Yuba BiOp 


37. 2007 BiOp 


38. 2002 BiOp 


39. Powerhouses


40. Lawson Fite 


41. Narrows 1 


42. Narrows 2 


43. Brophy 


44. entrainment


45. Tanner
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16.  The additional searches were completed around Summer 2017.  The additional searches


did not uncover any additional responsive documents that had not already been produced to



Plaintiff.



17.  NOAA has now determined that it is no longer necessary to withhold information under



exemption 7(C) for two documents (0.7.1707.5395 and 0.7.1707.5396) and releases them in full. 


See Exhibit 2.



III. MATERIAL PARTIALLY REDACTED IN PLAINTIFF’S CHALLENGES


A. THE CONSULTATION CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO ESA SECTION 7


18.  Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA requires each federal agency (“action agency,” in this case,



the Corps) to ensure that any action authorized, funded, or carried out by that agency “is not


likely to jeopardize the continued existence of any endangered species or threatened species or



result in the destruction or adverse modification” of designated critical habitat. 16 U.S.C. §



1536(a)(2). 


19.  The action agency must consult with the appropriate “consulting agency” (here, NMFS)



whenever its action “may affect” a threatened or endangered species or critical habitat. 50 C.F.R.



§ 402.14(a). If the proposed action is “likely to adversely affect” a listed species or its critical


habitat, “formal consultation” is required. 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a). 


20.  Formal consultation begins when the action agency transmits a written request to the



consulting agency, which may take the form of a “biological assessment,” (BiOp) presenting a



description of the proposed action and evaluation of its potential effects. See 16 U.S.C. §



1536(c); 50 C.F.R. § 402.12. Formal consultation concludes with the issuance of a biological


opinion by the consulting agency. 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(l)(1).  A BiOp assesses the likelihood of
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jeopardy to the species and the likelihood that the proposed action will result in destruction or



adverse modification of critical habitat. See 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(g).


 21.  If the proposed action would cause jeopardy or adverse modification, the BiOp may



include a reasonable and prudent alternative (RPA) that the consulting agency “believes would



avoid the likelihood of” jeopardy or adverse modification of critical habitat. 50 C.F.R. § 402.02.



The RPA must comprise actions that can “be implemented in a manner consistent with the



intended purpose of the action,” and that are “consistent with the scope of the [action agency’s]


legal authority and jurisdiction,” and are “economically and technologically feasible.” Id. 


22.  The BiOp may include an Incidental Take Statement (“ITS”) that, if followed, provides


the action agency a safe harbor from liability under the ESA’s Section 9 prohibition on “take” of



listed species. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(4); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(i); see also 16 U.S.C. § 1536(o)(2).



An ITS will include “reasonable and prudent measures” and terms and conditions the consulting



agency considers necessary or appropriate to minimize the impact of such take. 50 C.F.R. §



402.14(i).



23.  Informal consultation is an optional process between the action agency and the Service



(again, here, NMFS) which can include various forms of communication about a proposed



action.  If during informal consultation it is determined by the Federal agency, with the written



concurrence of the Service, that the action is not likely to adversely affect listed species or



critical habitat, the consultation process is terminated, and no further action is necessary.  50



CFR § 402.13(a) 


24.  On May 12, 2014, NMFS’ West Coast Region issued a concurrence letter addressing the



U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ (Corps) maintenance and operation of Engelbright Dam on the



Yuba River in California.  The letter stated that on October 22, 2013, NMFS had received the
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Corps' request for a written concurrence with its determination that this action may affect, but


was not likely to adversely affect, federally listed threatened Central Valley (CV) spring-run



Chinook salmon, threatened California Central Valley (CCV) steelhead, threatened Southern



distinct population segment (DPS) of North American green sturgeon, and the designated critical


habitat for those listed species. NMFS prepared a response pursuant to section 7(a)(2) ESA, its


implementing regulations at 50 CFR § 402, and agency guidance for preparation of letters of



concurrence.  In the letter, NMFS concurred with the Corps' determination that the proposed



project was not likely to adversely affect the listed species treated within it, or their designated



critical habitats in the Yuba River. 


B. EXEMPTION APPLICABILITY



FOIA Exemption 5


25.    Exemption 5 protects interagency or intra-agency memorandums or letters which would



not be available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with the agency.  Exemption



5 protects, inter alia, predecisional deliberative memoranda and attorney-client communications. 


Deliberative Process Privilege


26.    In order for the deliberative process privilege to apply, the responsive materials


must be (a) predecisional and (b) deliberative.


27. Pursuant to Exemption 5, NOAA withheld portions of four of the documents listed below



in Section III.C.  Three are drafts of external correspondence regarding the Yuba River



consultation or biological assessments; one is an internal email providing a staff update on the



consultation. 
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28. Here, the information was predecisional because the documents antedate NOAA’s


decisions regarding these subjects and the agency was still considering its position on certain



legal analyses, draft responses and discussions or opinions on ESA interpretations.



29.    The information was deliberative because it reflects the deliberations of NOAA’s staff,



including internal comments, discussions, and recommendations of various agency employees,



including NMFS and the Office of General Counsel (GC) regarding the interpretation of ESA



laws, and draft memoranda, reports, or positions in agency discussions.


30.    The release of such information could have a chilling effect on the discussions within the



agency in the future, discouraging a frank and open dialogue among agency employees during



the formulation of legal interpretations NOAA creates, ESA reports, and inter-agency



collaborations on responses to concerns from members of the public.


Attorney Client Privilege



31.   The attorney-client privilege protects confidential communications between an


attorney and client relating to a legal matter for which the client has sought professional advice.


This privilege also encompasses any opinions given by an attorney to the client based upon facts


provided by the client.


32.   Pursuant to the attorney-client privilege, NOAA withheld information from the



responsive records that reflect or include confidential communications between NOAA



employees and GC and/or DOJ discussing ESA legal analysis, discussions between NOAA and



DOJ, and the legal review of the informal letter transmitting the Department’s position regarding



the ESA consultation.
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Segregability



33.    NOAA carefully reviewed each responsive record on a page by page and line by line



basis in an attempt to identify reasonably segregable, non-exempt information.



34.    Due to Plaintiff’s challenge, see supra paragraphs 10-11, NOAA conducted an additional


segregability review. 


35.    NOAA carefully reviewed each redacted or partially withheld record individually to



identify non-exempt information that could be reasonably segregated from exempt information



for release and implemented segregation where possible.



36.    NOAA has determined that there is no further reasonably segregable information to be



released and all segregable information has been released to Plaintiff.  Further disclosure of these



records would adversely affect the candor of future agency deliberations.



C.  DESCRIPTION OF THE DOCUMENTS


37. The following paragraphs contain a description as to why material was withheld for each



of the 10 documents challenged by Plaintiff.  The basis for the withholdings is outlined within



the accompanying Vaughn Index, attached as Exhibit 3.



38. Document 5079-1. This document is a 9-page ledger that was one of two attachments to



an email from Aimee Moore to Julia Caracoza, which is attached as Exhibit 4. As the email


clearly states, Ms. Moore was submitting the Yuba 2014 Englebright Dam Project Informal


Letter to NOAA’s Office of the General Counsel for review, as well as the routing and tracking



ledger sheet that comprises this challenged document. The material redacted from the document,



pursuant to the attorney-client privilege, consisted solely of comments directed to legal counsel


indicating why legal review of the letter was being requested, and informing legal counsel that


the letter related to a matter in active litigation.


Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 26   Filed 05/25/18   Page 12 of 16








39. Document 5200. This is a 2-page email chain between attorney Chris Keifer and biologist


Gary Sprague with the subject line “Re: Yuba BA”. The redacted material falls within the



attorney-client privilege and consists solely of discussion between agency staff and an attorney



regarding Biological Assessments received from the Corps. The material is also deliberative and



predecisional as it discusses impressions regarding the ability to move forward towards


consultation.



40. Document 5215. This document is an email conversation between attorney Chris Keifer,



Sacramento River Basin Chief Howard Brown, and biologist Gary Sprague. The redacted



material is attorney-client privileged and consists solely of a status update on the consultations.



Some of the material withheld is also deliberative and predecisional as it identifies proposed



future steps for consultation and a need for executive policy decision-making.


41. Document 5224. This one-page email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief clearly



identifies on its face that it was being sent to NOAA employees working on the policy and legal


aspects of the Section 7 consultation with the Corps. The redacted material falls under the



attorney-client privilege and deliberative process privilege and discusses changes in the scope of



the activities associated with the dams and the implications for the ongoing consultation.


42. Document 5247. This email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief to an attorney with



NOAA General Counsel was partially withheld pursuant to the attorney-client privilege. The



redacted material consists of agency staff and attorney deliberations upon how to respond to a



letter from Environmental Advocates, counsel for the plaintiffs in this case. The email attached



the letter from Environmental Advocates and the draft response (which is also being challenged).


43. Document 5247-2. This is the draft response to a letter received from Environmental


Advocates, and was enclosed in an email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief to an attorney
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with NOAA General Counsel seeking advice on the response. (See paragraph 42.) The redacted



material, withheld under the deliberative process privilege, revealed information about the



ongoing consultation, and indicated future steps that the agency would take to meet with



stakeholders, as well as the appropriate role of NMFS as not the lead Federal action agency.


44. Document 5250-1. This draft concurrence letter was attached to an email from Fish



Biologist Gary Sprague seeking review from NOAA legal counsel, attached as Exhibit 5.  This


material was withheld under the deliberative process privilege.  The material contains


discussions of proposed action, the authorities for the proposed action, the action area, the action



agency’s effects determination, the consultation history, future actions requiring separate



consultations, non-discretionary actions, discretionary actions, effects of the action, effects of the



proposed actions, conservation recommendations, and litigation history.


45. Document 5276-1. This is another copy of the routing and tracking ledger for the legal


review of the informal letter transmitting the Department’s position regarding the consultation.



(See paragraph 38.) The material redacted from the document, pursuant to the attorney-client


privilege, consisted solely of comments directed to legal counsel indicating why legal review of



the letter was being requested. The cover email to which this was enclosed is attached as


Exhibit 4.



46. Document 20774-2. This document was attached to a letter from DOJ Trial Attorney



Bradley Oliphant to fish biologist Brian Ellrott (copying NOAA counsel and DOJ environmental


law counsel). The document is another copy (see paragraph 44) of the concurrence letter in draft


state, showing suggested changes in NMFS’ concurrence letter to the Corps.  The material


redacted from the document was pursuant to the deliberative process privilege.
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47.  Document 30833. This document is a detailed legal analysis drafted by a NOAA attorney



entitled Analyzing Ongoing Projects Under Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act. It provides


a detailed legal framework analysis, a detailed review of the fundamental determinations that


must be made in any consultation, and a summary of key analytical steps.  It also identifies


policy choices regarding how the effects associated with the continued existence of structures


such as dams, and any non-discretionary actions required in connection with their operations,



should be treated in a Section 7 consultation. The material withheld in this document was


withheld pursuant to the deliberative process privilege and the attorney client privilege.  This is a



document devoted to considering the legal and policy considerations of how effects associated



with permanent structures such as dams should be treated in a Section 7 consultation, intended



for further internal policy development within NMFS.
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[PROPOSED] ORDER GRANTING

DEFENDANT’S CROSS MOTION FOR

SUMMARY JUDGMENT 


[PROPOSED] ORDER


 Having considered defendant National Marine Fisheries Service’s cross motion for summary



judgment, plaintiff’s motion, the parties’ briefs, oral argument on the motions, and the pleadings and


other papers on file in this action, the Court hereby GRANTS defendant’s cross motion for summary



judgment and DENIES plaintiff’s motion for summary judgment. 


IT IS SO ORDERED.


DATED:         _______________________



        HON. JACQUELINE SCOTT CORLEY


        United States Magistrate Judge 
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 NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION



 Please take notice that on July 19, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.,1 or as soon thereafter as the matter may be



heard in Courtroom F, 15th Floor of the United States District Courthouse, 450 Golden Gate Avenue,



San Francisco, California, the Honorable Jacqueline Scott Corley presiding, the defendant National


Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) will appear and move the Court for an order (1) granting summary



judgment in favor of NMFS pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 56, and (2) denying plaintiff’s


motion for summary judgment.  Defendant’s motion is based on this Notice of Motion and Motion, the



Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the Declaration of Mark Graff (“Graff Decl.”), the Declaration



of Jennifer S Wang (“Wang Decl.”), the pleadings and other papers on file in this action, and on such


oral argument and additional evidence as the Court may permit. 


RELIEF SOUGHT


 Defendant seeks an order granting summary judgment in its favor. 


ISSUES TO BE DECIDED



1.  Whether defendant conducted an adequate search in response to plaintiff’s Freedom of Information



Act (“FOIA”) request?


2. Whether defendant properly withheld material protected by the attorney-client and deliberative



process privileges pursuant to FOIA exemption (b)(5), 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(5)?


3. Whether defendant disclosed segregable, non-exempt material?


4. Whether plaintiff’s claim that the United States Department of Commerce failed to timely issue a



final determination on plaintiff’s appeal is moot?


5. Whether the Court should deny plaintiff’s requests for declaratory and injunctive relief as


unwarranted in this case?


 MEMORANUDM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES



I. INTRODUCTION 


This lawsuit relates to a FOIA request submitted by plaintiff, Ecological Rights Foundation



1 In compliance with Civil Local Rule 7-2(a), defendant has noticed this motion for a hearing

date more than 35 days from the date of this filing, but notes that pursuant to the Court’s Order re:
Settlement Conference, ECF No. 22, the Court will set a hearing date on the parties’ cross motions for

summary judgment after a settlement conference date has been set. 
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(“EcoRights”) to NMFS dated December 6, 2016.  NMFS (also known as “NOAA Fisheries”) is


responsible for the stewardship of the nation’s ocean resources and their habitat, and is an office of the



National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) within the United States Department of



Commerce (“DOC”).   Under the Endangered Species Act (“ESA”), NMFS is responsible for the



protection, conservation, and recovery of endangered and threatened marine and anadromous species.


NOAA completed its document release in response plaintiff’s FOIA request and issued its final


response on February 13, 2017.  NOAA released a total of 239 documents in their entirety, and 54



documents in part.  The issues raised in this lawsuit are those raised by plaintiff in its administrative



appeal of NOAA’s FOIA response:  plaintiff challenges the adequacy of search, and specifically,



whether the Office of Law Enforcement conducted a search for documents responsive to plaintiff’s


FOIA request, and the agency’s withholdings under FOIA exemption (b)(5) for material protected by the



attorney client and deliberative process privileges on ten documents. 


NMFS conducted searches that could be reasonably expected to discover records subject to the



FOIA responsive to plaintiff’s request, including a search of the Office of Law Enforcement.  As shown



by the concurrently-filed declaration of Mark Graff, the FOIA Officer for NOAA, which contains a



narrative summary of each of the ten documents at issue, the information withheld by NOAA is exempt


from disclosure. 


Plaintiff’s additional claims for relief fail.  Plaintiff’s claim related to the timeliness of DOC’s


determination on plaintiff’s administrative appeal is moot.  Defendant has now released the final


determination.  Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate that declaratory or injunctive relief is warranted. 


Accordingly, the Court should grant summary judgment in favor of defendant and deny plaintiff’s


summary judgment motion. 


II. BACKGROUND


A. Plaintiff’s FOIA Request



Plaintiff submitted a FOIA request to NMFS dated December 6, 2016 (“FOIA Request”).  The



FOIA request sought three categories of documents:


1. Any and all “documents” “related to” the “Chris Yates email” concerning input he, 
and any NMFS West Coast Region staff provided to NOAA HQ on the impact of the

“Stockdale Memo.”  This request is only for the input on the impact of the “Stockdale

Memo” the NMFS West Coast Region staff provided to NOAA HQ and is not a broader
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request for other documents related to the “Stockdale memo.”  The request is only for

“documents” generated on or prior to July 24, 2014. 


2. Any documents to or from NMFS staff Chris Kiefer2 “related to” the “draft
Englebright concurrence letter.” 


3. Any and all NOAA Fisheries “documents” from January 1, 2000 to the present, 
in the possession of any NOAA Fisheries Office, Department, and/or Division, 
including any NOAA law enforcement division, “related to” whether any entities or

individuals may have caused or did cause, or may be causing, or are causing 
“unauthorized take” of threatened or endangered anadromous fish in the Yuba River at, 
or in the vicinity of, Englebright Dam, Narrows 1 and 2 powerhouses, Daguerre Point
Dam, and the Hallwood-Cordua Diversion including but not limited to any and all
“documents” generated by, sent by, or received by NMFS Law Enforcement agent, Don

Tanner. 


See id. ¶ 4; Hudak Decl. Ex. 1 (FOIA Requst), ECF No. 12-14.  The “Stockdale Memo” referenced in



the FOIA Request refers to a memorandum dated June 11, 2013 from the United States Army Corp of



Engineers (“Corps”) Chief Counsel, Earl Stockdale, regarding guidance on Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA,



which requires federal agencies to consult with the United States Fish and Wildlife Service and NMFS


and ensure that proposed activities will not jeopardize the continued existence of any endangered or



threatened species or result in the destruction or adverse modification of designated critical habitats.  See



Hudak Decl. Ex. 1; Graff Decl. ¶ 18.  The Corps maintains and operates the Englebright Dam on the



Yuba River.  See Graff Decl. ¶ 24. 


NOAA provided its final response on February 13, 2017.  Id. ¶¶ 4, 9; Hudak Decl. Ex. 3



(February 13, 2017 Letter), ECF No. 12-16. Through its final response letter of February 13, 2017,



NOAA notified plaintiff of its appeal rights.  Hudak Decl. Ex. 3.  In its response, NOAA notified



plaintiff that it had located 309 documents responsive to plaintiff’s request; 239 of the responsive



documents were being released in their entirety online at


https://foiaonline.regluations.gov:443/foia/action/public/view/request/810733c7; 16 of the documents


originated from other agencies and were therefore referred to those agencies for a release determination



and direct response to plaintiff; and 54 of the responsive documents were being partially withheld under



FOIA exemptions 5 U.S.C. §§ 552(b)(5) and (b)(6).   See id.  The response letter explained that the



material subject to FOIA exemption (b)(5) contained information protected by the attorney-client


2 Keifer’s name is misspelled in the FOIA Request.
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privilege, attorney work product doctrine, and deliberative process privilege. Id.  NMFS further stated



that information was withheld under FOIA exemption (b)(6) to protect individuals’ privacy interest and



personally identifying information.  Id. 


B.  NOAA’s Search for Responsive Records


In response to the FOIA Request, NMFS performed searches of the records in the NOAA



Fisheries West Coast Region and NMFS’s Office of Law Enforcement (“OLE”).  Graff Decl. ¶ 5. 


Searches were conducted by the following NOAA Fisheries West Coast Region offices:  Central Valley



Area Office, Sacramento Office, California Coastal Office, Santa Rosa Office, Long Beach Office, and



Protected Resources Division.  Searches were also conducted by the NOAA Office of the General


Counsel Southwest Section.  Id. ¶ 6.   These offices were chosen because they contain all the employees


who have specific knowledge of the actions described in plaintiff’s FOIA Request and were therefore



likely to have potentially responsive documents.  Id.  The search terms used varied by personnel, but


included:  Chris Yates, Stockdale, Narrows 1, Narrows 2, Narrows II, From: Christopher Keifer to: Jeff



McLain, emails to/from Chris K., emails to/from Howard, emails to/from Gary S, draft Englebright


letter, Larry Thompson, Steve Edmundson, take, Don Tanner, Englebright, Daguerre, Narrows,



Hallwood, Cordua, Daguerre, Brophy, entrainment, Yuba River, Englebright Dam, Narrows 1 and 2


powerhouses, Daguerre Point Dam, Hallwood-Cordua Diversion, Chris Keifer, Draft Englebright


concurrence letter, Lawson Fite, Yates Stockdale, Keifer Stockdale, Keifer Englebright, Keifer Draft


Englebright Concurrence Letter, Tanner Yuba, Tanner Englebright, Tanner Daguerre, Tanner Narrows,



Tanner Hallwood-Cordua, Thompson Yuba, Thompson Englebright, Thompson Daguerre, Thompson



Narrows, Thompson Hallwood-Cordua, Thompson Take, Thompson Death, Thompson Mortality,



Thompson Stranding, Thompson Dewatering, Wooster Yuba, Wooster Englebright, Wooster Daguerre,



Wooster Narrows, Wooster Hallwood-Cordua, Wooster Take, Wooster Death, Thompson Wooster,



Wooster Stranding, Wooster Dewatering.  See id. ¶ 7, Ex. 1.  In conducting these searches, NMFS


examined all email files, hard drives, cloud-based systems, and paper files of the employees of the



above-listed offices.  Id. ¶ 6.



An additional search was performed by OLE.  This search targeted the terms:  Englebright Dam,



Narrows 1 and 2 powerhouses, Daguerre Point Dam, Hallwood-Cordua Diversion, Yuba River, Chris
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Yates, Stockdale memo, Englebright concurrence letter, and Chris Keifer.   Id. ¶ 8. 


C.  Plaintiff’s Administrative Appeal to DOC 


By letter dated March 10, 2017, plaintiff administratively appealed NOAA’s response to the



FOIA Request to the DOC, Office of General Counsel.  The appeal raised two issues:  (1) the adequacy



of NMFS’s search, and (2) the withholdings on ten documents.   See Hudak Decl. Ex. 4 (March 10, 2017



Letter), ECF No. 12-17.  Plaintiff asserted that search conducted was inadequate based on plaintiff’s


belief that none of the 309 documents released were from OLE.  See id. at 3.3  According to plaintiff,



“EcoRights knows from documents NMFS released in response to another FOIA request that OLE


agent, Don Tanner, at the very least, has information related to take at Englebright Dam and the Narrows


1 and 2 Powerhouses.”  Id.  Plaintiff asserted that this alleged “information” was not included in the



documents produced.  Id. Plaintiff requested that NMFS “perform a thorough search of OLE files and



release any and all documents responsive to item #3” of the FOIA Request.  Id. 


Plaintiff asserted that one of the documents on appeal contained redactions without any reference



to the FOIA exemption claimed, and that other documents identified FOIA exemption (b)(5) as the



exemption claimed, without specifying whether the material was protected under the attorney work



product doctrine, the attorney-client privilege, or the deliberative process privilege.  Id. at 3-6.   In



addition, plaintiff asserted that in the February 13, 2017 response, NMFS did not “offer any explanation



why the withholdings . . . are justified.”   Id. at 4.  Finally, plaintiff expressed its concern that “NMFS


perhaps had not complied with 5 U.S.C. §  552(b)’s requirement that when asserting a document


contains materials exempt from disclosure the agency must segregate out” non-exempt material, and



requested that NMFS review the ten records at issue on appeal and segregate out any releaseable



information.  Id. at 6.


D. Response to Plaintiff’s Administrative Appeal


In response to plaintiff’s appeal, DOC’s Office of the General Counsel reviewed the available



search logs, made further inquiries about the production of emails to and from the regional NMFS law



enforcement agent, Don Tanner, and the search performed by OLE.  Id. ¶ 12.  To ensure that all


3 Unless otherwise noted, page numbers to documents that are available on the Court’s docket
refer to the page number provided on the ECF runner. 
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responsive documents had been located, additional searches were conducted to ensure that a consistent


set of search terms were used and to encompass all OLE agents within the search.  Id.  All NOAA



Fisheries West Coast Region offices and OLE preformed a search, including both emails and network



drives, using the following 45 keywords:  Yates Stockdale, Keifer Stockdale, Keifer Draft Englebright,



Concurrence Letter, Tanner Yuba, Tanner Englebright, Tanner Daguerre, Tanner Narrows, Tanner



Hallwood-Cordua, Thompson Yuba, Thompson Englebright, Thompson Daguerre, Thompson Narrows,



Thompson Hallwood-Cordua, Yates, Keifer, Baker, Tucker, Thompson Take, Thompson Death,



Thompson Mortality, Thompson Stranding, Thompson, Dewatering, Thompson Sprague, Ellrott, Flow



Deviations, rescue, Englebright, Narrows, Hallwood, Cordua, Daguerre, Take, Yuba, YubaBiOp, 2007



BiOp, 2002 BiOp, Powerhouses, Lawson Fite, Narrows 1, Narrows 2, Brophy, entrainment, Tanner.  Id.



¶¶ 12, 15.  OLE’s search encompassed the documents of all agents, not just those of Tanner.  Id.  The


additional searches were completed aby around Summer 2017 and did not uncover any additional


responsive documents.  Id. ¶ 16.



During its review of plaintiff’s administrative appeal, DOC confirmed with Tanner that in his


original search, he had identified numerous documents, all of which had been released in full, and that


he did not author any responsive, unreleased documents.  In searching for responsive material Tanner



provided paper files and his computer to the regional FOIA coordinator, and both Tanner and the FOIA



coordinator performed searches on the computer, including a search of Tanner’s email and hard drive. 


Id. ¶ 13.   Upon inquiry to OLE, DOC confirmed that two emails to/from Special Agent Tanner had been



located and produced to plaintiff, though his email address and name had been redacted under FOIA


exemption (b)(6).  Id. ¶ 14.  The OLE FOIA coordinator was informed that FOIA exemption (b)(7)(C)



was a more appropriate basis, and on July 18, 2017, the FOIA coordinator uploaded a corrected version



of the two documents onto FOIAOnline, redacting the material under FOIA exemption (b)(7)(C).  Id.;


see also Def.’s Answer ¶ 22. 


Although DOC undertook various steps and inquiries in its review of the plaintiff’s


administrative appeal, a final determination was not made by the last anticipated release date in February



2018.  Plaintiff filed the instant lawsuit on February 10, 2018. 


Defendant answered the Complaint on March 19, 2018.  ECF No. 9.  Less than a week later, on
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March 23, 2018, plaintiff’s counsel informed defendant of its intent to file a summary judgment motion



“in the near future.”  Wang Decl. ¶ 2.  On April 3, 2018, in response to plaintiff’s stated intent to file an



early summary judgment motion, defendant’s counsel sent plaintiff’s counsel an email, explaining that


defendant disagreed with plaintiff’s allegations regarding whether certain NMFS offices were searched,



that the agency was willing to release an appeal determination shortly, and that the appeal determination



would address this the search issue raised by plaintiff.  Id.  Defendant proposed that the parties meet and



confer after plaintiff had an opportunity to review the appeal determination regarding the appropriate


next steps in the action.  Id.  By emails on April 4 and 5, 2018, plaintiff’s counsel declined defendant’s


proposal and stated that plaintiff would move forward with filing a summary judgment motion rather


than review the agency’s appeal response.  Id. ¶ 3  Plaintiff filed its Motion for Summary Judgment on



April 20, 2018, prior to the parties’ completion of its meet and confer efforts under Federal Rule of Civil


Procedure 26(f).  Id. ¶ 4.  The parties met and conferred pursuant to Rule 26(f) on April 23, 2018, and



filed a stipulated summary judgment briefing scheduled with the Court on April 27, 2018.  Id., ECF No.



16.  The Court approved the proposed briefing schedule on April 30, 2018.  ECF No. 17.   Defendant


has since released the final appeal determination on FOIAOnline.  See id. Ex. 1. 


III.  LEGAL STANDARD


  A principal purpose of summary judgment is to identify and dispose of factually unsupported



claims.  Celotex v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323-24 (1986).  Summary judgment is proper “if the movant


shows that there is no genuine dispute as to any material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a



matter of law.”  Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(a); see also Addisu v. Fred Meyer, Inc., 198 F.3d 1130, 1134 (9th Cir.



2000).  Summary judgment must be granted where a party fails to make a showing sufficient to establish



the existence of an element essential to that party’s case, and on which that party will bear the burden of



proof at trial.  Celotex, 477 U.S. at 322. 


“FOIA was enacted to facilitate public access to Government documents” and requires federal


agencies to release records responsive to a request for production.  Lahr v. Nat’l Transp. Safety Bd., 569



F.3d 964, 973 (9th Cir. 2009) (quotation marks and citation omitted); see 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(3)(A). 


“Congress recognized, however, that public disclosure is not always in the public interest.”  CIA v. Sims,



471 U.S. 159, 166-67 (1985).  “FOIA represents a balance struck by Congress between the public’s right
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to know and the government’s legitimate interest in keeping certain information confidential.”  Ctr. for


Nat’l Sec. Studies v. DOJ, 331 F.3d 918, 925 (D.C. Cir. 2003) (citing John Doe Agency v. John Doe



Corp., 493 U.S. 146, 152 (1989)).  Accordingly, “FOIA contemplates that some information may



legitimately be kept from the public.  The statute contains nine enumerated exemptions allowing the



government to withhold documents or portions of documents.”  Lahr, 569 F.3d at 973 (citing 5 U.S.C. §



552(b)(1)-(9)).  The FOIA Improvement Act of 2016, which was enacted on June 30, 2016, codified the



Department of Justice’s “foreseeable harm” standard and provides, among other things, that agencies


“shall withhold information” “only if the agency reasonably foresees that disclosure would harm an



interest protected by an exemption” or “disclosure is prohibited by law.”  5 U.S.C. §  552(a)(8)(A). 


In a FOIA case, “federal jurisdiction is dependent on a showing that an agency has (1)



‘improperly’ (2) ‘withheld’ (3) ‘agency records.’” Kissinger v. Reporters Comm. for Freedom of Press,



445 U.S. 136, 150 (1980).  “A federal court can provide a remedy pursuant to the FOIA only ‘if the



agency has contravened all three components of this obligation.’” Yonemoto v. Dep’t of Veterans


Affairs, 686 F.3d 681, 689 (9th Cir. 2012) (citation omitted) overruled on other grounds by Animal


Legal Defense Fund v. FDA, 836 F.3d 987 (9th Cir. 2016).  If the agency provides the plaintiff



everything to which he or she is entitled, the plaintiff’s FOIA claim will be moot.  Id.  A district court


only has jurisdiction to compel the agency to disclose improperly withheld agency records – records that


do not fall within an exemption.  Minier v. CIA, 88 F.3d 796, 803 (9th Cir. 1996).



FOIA cases are typically decided on motions for summary judgment.  Yonemoto, 686 F.3d at


688.  On a motion for summary judgment, the defending agency has the burden of showing that its


search was adequate and that any withheld documents fall within an exemption.  Carney v. Dep’t of


Justice, 19 F.3d 807, 812 (2d Cir. 1994).  The agency may meet its burden entirely through a reasonably



detailed affidavit describing the agency’s search and alleging facts sufficient to establish any claimed



exemptions.  See Yonemoto, 686 F.3d at 688; Lane v. Dep’t of the Interior, 523 F.3d 1128, 1135-36,



1139 (9th Cir. 2008); Lion Raisins v. Dep’t of Agric., 354 F.3d 1072, 1082 (9th Cir. 2004).  The court is


to accord substantial weight to an agency’s declarations regarding the application of an exemption from


disclosure.  See Shannahan v. IRS, 672 F.3d 1142, 1148 (9th Cir. 2012). 


IV. DEFENDANT IS ENTITLED TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT
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A. NOAA Conducted Adequate Search for Records


As described in the declaration of Mark Graff, the FOIA Officer for NOAA, NOAA conducted



searches that could be reasonably expected to discover records subject to the FOIA responsive to



plaintiff’s request.  Because those searches were adequate and conducted in good faith, they satisfied the



agency’s statutory obligations.  “The adequacy of the agency’s search is judged by a standard of



reasonableness, construing the facts in the light most favorable to the requestor.”  Citizens Comm’n on



Human Rights v. FDA, 45 F.3d 1325, 1328 (9th Cir. 1995) (citing Zemansky v. EPA, 767 F.2d 569, 571



(9th Cir. 1985)).  An agency’s search for records is considered “adequate” if it was conducted “using



methods which can be reasonably expected to produce the information requested.”  Nation Magazine v.



U.S. Customs Serv., 71 F.3d 885, 890 (D.C. Cir. 1995) (quoting Oglesby v. U.S. Dep’t of Army, 920 F.2d



57, 68 (D.C. Cir. 1990)); Lahr, 569 F.3d at 986; SafeCard Servs. Inc., 926 F.2d at1201 (the agency need



only show that “the search was reasonably calculated to discover the requested documents, not whether



it actually uncovered every document extant.”).  The “issue to be resolved is not whether there might


exist any other documents possibly responsive to the request, but rather whether the search for those


documents was adequate.”  Citizens Comm’n on Human Right, 45 F.3d at 1328; Iturralde v. Comptroller


of Currency, 315 F.3d 311, 315 (D.C. Cir. 2003) (“[T]he adequacy of a FOIA search is generally



determined not by the fruits of the search, but by the appropriateness of the methods used to carry out


the search.”).  An agency’s search need not be exhaustive, merely reasonable.  Oglesby, 920 F.2d at 68. 


The agency need not search every record system, but must conduct a good faith, reasonable search of



those systems of records likely to possess the requested records.  Id. 


An agency may establish the adequacy of its search by submitting a reasonably detailed, non-


conclusory affidavit describing its efforts, setting forth the search terms and the type of search



performed.  Zemansky, 767 F.2d at 571.  In evaluating the adequacy of a search, courts recognize that


“[a]gency affidavits enjoy a presumption of good faith, which will withstand purely speculative claims


about the existence of other documents.”  Ground Saucer Watch v. CIA, 692 F.2d 770, 771 (D.C. Cir.



1981).  The plaintiff bears an “evidentiary burden” to “present evidence rebutting the agency’s initial


showing of a good faith search.”  See Wilson v. DEA, 414 F. Supp. 2d 5, 12 (D.D.C. 2006).  An agency’s


“failure to turn up a particular document, or mere speculation that as yet uncovered documents might
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exist, does not undermine the determination that the agency conducted an adequate search for requested



records.”  Wilbur v. CIA, 355 F.3d 675, 678 (D.C. Cir. 2004) (per curiam).  “If an agency demonstrates


that it has conducted a reasonable search for relevant documents, it has fulfilled its obligations under



FOIA and is entitled to summary judgment on this issue.”  Garcia v. U.S. Dep’t of Justice, 181 F. Supp.



2d 356, 366 (S.D.N.Y. 2002). 


NOAA conducted an adequate search for records, searching in locations where responsive



documents are likely to be located, the NOAA Fisheries West Coast Region offices and OLE, and using



key words related to the requested subject matter.  See Graff Decl. ¶¶ 5-6.  For example, the first item in



plaintiff’s FOIA Request sought documents related to an email by Chris Yates, concerning input he and



other West Coast Region staff provided on the impact of the Stockdale memo.  The NOAA Fisheries


West Coast Region offices that contained the employees with specific knowledge of the actions


described in the FOIA Request performed a search of emails, hard drives, cloud-based systems, and


paper files using keywords, including, among others, Yates Stockdale, Keifer Stockdale, Stockdale, and



Yates.  See id. ¶¶ 6-7, 15.  The second item in the FOIA Request sought documents to or from Chris


Keifer, a NOAA attorney in the NOAA Office of the General Counsel Southwest Section, see e.g.,



Hudak Decl. Ex. 5 at 12, ECF No. 12-18, related to the “draft Englebright concurrence letter.”  NOAA’s


search included the documents of the NOAA Office of the General Counsel Southeast Section, and the



terms Keifer, Keifer Draft Englebright, Englebright, and concurrence letter, were amongst the search



terms used.  Graff Decl. ¶¶ 6-7, 15 & Ex. 1.  The last item of plaintiff’s FOIA Request sought


documents related to unauthorized take of threatened or endangered anadromous fish in the Yuba River



in the vicinity of Englebright Dam, Narrows 1 and 2 powerhouses, Daguerre Point Dam, and the



Hallwood-Cordua Diversion, including documents generated, sent, or received by Tanner.  The NOAA



Fisheries West Coast Region offices with the employees with specific knowledge of the actions


described in the FOIA Request and OLE, of which Tanner was a part, conducted searches, using terms


including:  Tanner Yuba, Tanner Englebright, Tanner Daguerre, Tanner Narrows, Tanner Hallwood-


Cordua, Thompson Yuba, Thompson Englebright, Thompson Daguerre, Thompson Narrows, Thompson



Hallwood-Cordua, take, Englebright, Narrows, Hallwood, Cordua, Daguerre, Yuba, Narrows 1, Narrows


2, and Tanner.  Id. ¶¶ 6-8, 15 & Ex. 1.  Moreover, Tanner was amongst the NMFS personnel who
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conducted searches in response to the FOIA Request.   Id. ¶¶ 7, 13-14. 


In both its administrative appeal and Motion for Summary Judgment, plaintiff articulates only



one alleged deficiency in the agency’s search:  failure by OLE and Tanner to search for responsive



records.  See Hudak Decl. Ex. 4 at 3. Pl. Mot. at 16-17.  Graff’s declaration has confirmed that both



OLE and Tanner conducted searches and described those searches.  Graff Decl. ¶¶ 6-8, 13-14. 


Based on documents released in response to the FOIA Request that, according to plaintiff,



indicate Tanner is involved in investigations related to flow fluctuations and poaching at the Yuba River,



plaintiff states that Tanner should have generated or received additional documents.  But this amounts to



nothing more than “’mere speculation that as yet uncovered documents might exist,” which is which is


not enough to ‘undermine the determination that the agency conducted an adequate search for the



requested records.’”  Morley v. CIA, 508 F.3d 1108, 1120 (D.C. Cir. 2007). 


Although plaintiff points to the absence of a one page email from the agency’s release to



plaintiff’s FOIA Request, Pl. Mot. at 16, the contents of that email show only that Fishery Biologist


Larry Thompson had made a plan to visit the lower Yuba River and to discuss stranding hazards with



Tanner because Tanner “may attend the future FERC public meeting on the subject.”  Linn Decl. Ex. H. 


There is no substantive discussion of any “take,” no reference to an investigation, no suggestion of any



steps that Tanner may have taken after the visit, and no suggestion that Tanner created any investigative



documents yet to be produced.  See id.  The agency’s alleged failure to locate this Thompson email,



Linn Decl. Ex. H, does not evidence a deficient search, nor suggest that additional responsive records


have yet to be uncovered.  See Wilbur, 355 F.3d at 678 (an agency’s “failure to turn up a particular



document . . . does not undermine the determination that the agency conducted an adequate search for



requested records.”).  Here, NMFS has demonstrated through the Graff declaration that it conducted a



reasonable search for relevant documents, and thus, has demonstrated that it is entitled to summary



judgment on this issue.  Plaintiff’s speculation does not overcome the presumption of the agency’s good



faith search. 


B. NOAA Properly Withheld Information under Applicable FOIA Exemptions


An agency may be entitled to summary judgment in a FOIA case if it demonstrates that no



material facts are in dispute, it has conducted an adequate search for responsive records, and each
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responsive record that it has located either has been produced to the plaintiff or is exempt from


disclosure.  See Weisberg v. Dep’t of Justice, 627 F.2d 365, 368 (D.C. Cir. 1980).  To meet its burden,



courts have long permitted agencies to rely on reasonably detailed and non-conclusory declarations


describing the agency’s search and alleging facts sufficient to establish any claimed exemptions.  See



Lane, 523 F.3d at 1135-36.  As discussed below, the Graff declaration demonstrates that the agency



properly withheld records in whole or in part that contained information that fell within FOIA



Exemption 5.



In the Motion, plaintiff challenges the agency’s assertion of FOIA exemptions 6 and 7(C) on two



documents.  Defendant has withdrawn its exemptions on these documents.  The documents records were



initially released with withholdings under FOIA exemption 6 in NMFS’ February 13, 2017 response to



the FOIA Request;  that claim of exemption was not raised in plaintiff’s administrative appeal. 


Subsequently, the two records were re-processed and released in July 2017, while DOC’s review of the



administrative appeal was pending.  No further withholdings were made to the records;  rather, FOIA



exemption 7(C) was added as grounds for the withholdings.  Graff Decl. ¶¶ 14, 17, Ex. 2.  A new



version of the records, without withholdings, is attached as Exhibit 2 to the Graff Declaration. 


1. NOAA properly identified the basis for its withholdings at the administrative

stage.


At the administrative stage, NMFS properly identified the exemptions it was claiming with



respect to the redacted documents at issue.   A FOIA response must identify “reasons” for a



determination.  See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i).  Plaintiff reads this provision to require the agency to


provide documentation similar to a Vaughn index or privilege log with its document release in order to



withhold any material.   According to plaintiff, NOAA’s FOIA response was deficient because the



agency “fail[ed]to identify the specific privilege under Exemption 5 claimed,  . . . to identify the



forseeable harm to a protected interest that might result from disclosure, . . . . to estimate the volume of



material withheld, and . . . to explain whether all segregable material had been released.”  Pl. Mot. at 19. 


Plaintiff misstates the law. 


During the administrative stage under FOIA, an agency need only “indicate the scope of the



documents it intends to produce and the exemptions it will claim.”  Citizens for Responsibility and



Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 25   Filed 05/25/18   Page 18 of 28








DEFENDANT’S CROSS-MSJ & OPP. TO PL.’S MSJ


CASE NO. 18-CV-888 JSC 13



1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


Ethics in Washington v. Federal Election Commission (“CREW”), 711 F.3d 180, 187 n. 4 (D.C. Cir.



203).  “An agency is not required to produce a document like a Vaughn index, which district courts


typically rely on in adjudicating summary judgment motions in FOIA case.”  Id.; see also Judicial


Watch, Inc. v. Clinton, 880 F. Supp. 1, 11 (D.D.C. 1995) (“Agencies need not provide a Vaughn Index


until ordered by the court after the plaintiff has exhausted the administrative process.”), aff’d, 76 F.3d



1232 (D.C. Cir. 1996). 


None of the cases cited by plaintiff support plaintiff’s contentions regarding the agency’s


obligations at the administrative stage.  Both Campbell v. United States Dep’t of Justice, 164 F.3d 20



(D.C. Cir. 1998) and Weiner v. FBI, 943 F.2d 927 (9th Cir. 1991), address what information an agency



must provide on summary judgment – not the administrative stage – to establish the agency’s


withholdings. 


Here, NOAA satisfied its statutory obligations at the administrative stage by identifying the



number of pages collected for processing and the specific exemptions being claimed for the



withholdings in its February 13, 2017 letter:  5 U.S.C. §  552(b)(5) attorney client work product, 5



U.S.C. §  552(b)(5) attorney client privilege, 5 U.S.C. §  552(b)(5) deliberative process, and 5 U.S.C.



§  552(b)(6) individuals’ right to privacy.  NMFS also labeled each redaction with the applicable FOIA



exemption.  See, e.g., Hudak Dec. Ex. 5.  The specific basis for the (b)(5) exemption claimed, whether



attorney client privilege, attorney work product doctrine, or deliberative process privilege, was included



on each redaction label.  Id. 


Plaintiff points to only three documents in the February 13, 2017 release, in which the specific



basis for the (b)(5) exemption claimed, whether attorney client privilege, attorney work product


doctrine, or deliberative process privilege, was not labelled.  The redaction labels on two emails released



to plaintiffs referenced (b)(5), without identifying whether attorney client privilege, attorney work



product doctrine, or the deliberative process privilege applied, see Hudak Decl. Ex. 5 at 11, 13;  the



material withheld on these pages is protected by both the attorney-client and deliberative process


privilege.  Graff Decl. Ex. 3 (Vaughn index) at Doc. Number 5200 & 5215.  A reference to (b)(5) was


not on the redaction label on a one page email in NMFS’s release, see Hudak Decl. Ex. 5 at 15; the



material withheld on this email is protected by both the attorney-client and deliberative process
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privileges.  Graff Decl. Ex. 3 at Doc. Number 5224.  This inadvertent error on a single redaction box



does not establish failure by the agency to comply with its FOIA obligations. 


Plaintiff seeks a declaratory judgment that NMFS’ withholdings without explanation or



identification of a foreseeable harm during the administrative stage violates FOIA.  Pl. Mot. at 17-19. 


Declaratory judgment is not warranted because, as discussed above, plaintiff misstates the law and the



agency’s obligations at the administrative stage.  Plaintiff cites no authority suggesting that the agency



must provide a document akin to a Vaughn index at the administrative stage, with its document release. 


2. NOAA properly withheld material pursuant to Exemption 5


  FOIA exemption 5 protects “inter-agency or intra-agency memorandums or letters which



would not be available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with the agency.”  5 U.S.C.



§  552(b)(5).  Exemption 5 is intended to protect “only those documents [that are] normally privileged in



the civil discovery context.”  NLRB v. Sears, Roebuck & Co., 421 U.S. 132, 149 (1975); United States v.



Weber Aircraft Corp., 465 U.S. 792, 800 (1984).  In the ten documents at issue here, NMFS withheld



two categories of documents pursuant to Exemption 5:  documents subject to the deliberative process


privilege and documents subject to the attorney-client privilege.  As demonstrated through the Graff



declaration, these exemption determinations were appropriate.  The material withheld from the ten



documents at issue are described in the Graff declaration and Vaugh Index attached as Exhibit 3 to the



Graff declaration. 


(i) NOAA properly withheld material under the deliberative process
standard



The deliberative process privilege protects agencies from being “forced to operate in a fishbowl.” 


EPA v. Mink, 410 U.S. 73, 87 (1973).  “[D]ocuments reflecting advisory opinions, recommendations and



deliberations comprising part of a process by which governmental decisions and policies are



formulated” qualify as “inter-agency or intra-agency” memoranda within the meaning of Exemption 5. 


Carter v. U.S. Dep’t of Commerce, 307 F. 3d 1084, 1089 (9th Cir. 2002) (quoting Dep’t of Interior v.



Klamath Water Users Protective Ass’n, 532 U.S. 1, 8 (2001)).  The deliberative process protection is not


altered when an agency makes a final decision, or decides not to make a decision, unless a record is
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expressly incorporated into some final agency action. NLRB v. Sears, Roebuck & Co., 421 U.S. 132, 161



(1975). 


For this privilege to apply, the document must be both (1) predecisional – “one prepared in order



to assist an agency decisionmaker in arriving at his decision, and . . . which reflect[s] the personal


opinions of the writer rather than the policy of the agency,” Carter, 307 F.3d at 1089 (internal quotation



omitted); and (2) deliberative, “in that it makes recommendations or expresses opinion on legal and


policy matters.”  Vaughn v. Rosen, 523 F.2d 1136, 1143-44 (D.C. Cir. 1975). 


In meeting the first requirement, that the document be predecisional, an agency need not point to



a specific final decision, but may show that the documents in question play a role in a particular



deliberative process.  Sears, Roebuck & Co., 421 U.S. at 150 n. 18.  Thus, as long as a document is


generated as part of such a process of agency decision-making, Exemption 5 can apply. 


Second, the agency must show that the document is deliberative in nature.  In determining



whether or not material is deliberative in nature, in National Wildlife Federation v. United States Forest


Service, 861 F.2d 1114 (9th Cir. 1988), the Ninth Circuit focused on “whether the document in question



is part of the deliberative process.”  Id. at 1119.  Based upon the policy of protecting agencies’



deliberative processes, not just agency documents or information, the Ninth Circuit held that “even if the



content of a document is factual, if disclosure of the document would expose the decision-making



process itself to public scrutiny by revealing the agency’s evaluation and analysis of the multitudinous


facts, the document would nonetheless be exempt from disclosure.”  Id.   As a result, the Ninth Circuit


has adopted a “process-oriented” or “functional” test in determining whether the deliberative process


privilege of Exemption 5 applies.  This test, “which looks to the underlying purpose of the deliberative



process privilege, is consistent with the ‘flexible, commonsense approach’ to Exemption 5 that has been



approved by the Supreme Court.”  Id. (quoting Mink, 410 U.S. at 91).


(a) Consultation conducted pursuant to ESA Section 7 


Section 7(a)(2) of the ESA requires each federal agency (“action agency,” in this case, the



Corps) to ensure that any action authorized, funded, or carried out by that agency “is not likely to



jeopardize the continued existence of any endangered species or threatened species or result in the



destruction or adverse modification” of designated critical habitat. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2). The action
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agency must consult with the appropriate “consulting agency” (here, NMFS) whenever its action “may



affect” a threatened or endangered species or critical habitat. 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a). If the proposed



action is “likely to adversely affect” a listed species or its critical habitat, “formal consultation” is


required. 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a). 


Formal consultation begins when the action agency transmits a written request to the consulting



agency, which may take the form of a “biological assessment,” presenting a description of the proposed



action and evaluation of its potential effects. See 16 U.S.C. § 1536(c); 50 C.F.R. § 402.12. Formal


consultation concludes with the issuance of a biological opinion (“BiOp”) by the consulting agency. 50



C.F.R. § 402.14(l)(1). A BiOp assesses the likelihood of jeopardy to the species and the likelihood that


the proposed action will result in destruction or adverse modification of critical habitat. See 50 C.F.R. §



402.14(g).  If the proposed action would cause jeopardy or adverse modification, the BiOp may include



a reasonable and prudent alternative (“RPA”) that the consulting agency “believes would avoid the



likelihood of” jeopardy or adverse modification of critical habitat. 50 C.F.R. § 402.02. 


  Informal consultation is an optional process between the action agency and the Service (again,



here, NMFS) which can include various forms of communication about a proposed action.  If during



informal consultation it is determined by the action agency, with the written concurrence of the Service,



that the action is not likely to adversely affect listed species or critical habitat, the consultation process is


terminated, and no further action is necessary.  50 CFR § 402.13(a).


 On May 12, 2014, NMFS’ West Coast Region issued a concurrence letter addressing the Corps’



maintenance and operation of Engelbright Dam on the Yuba River in California.  The letter stated that


on October 22, 2013, NMFS had received the Corps' request for a written concurrence with its


determination that this action may affect, but was not likely to adversely affect, federally listed



threatened Central Valley (CV) spring-run Chinook salmon, threatened California Central Valley (CCV)



steelhead, threatened Southern distinct population segment (DPS) of North American green sturgeon,



and the designated critical habitat for those listed species. NMFS prepared a response pursuant to section



7(a)(2) ESA, its implementing regulations at 50 CFR § 402, and agency guidance for preparation of



letters of concurrence.  In the letter, NMFS concurred with the Corps' determination that the proposed
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project was not likely to adversely affect the listed species treated within it, or their designated critical


habitats in the Yuba River.



(b) NOAA’s withholding of consultation related documents


Pursuant to Exemption 5, NMFS withheld portions of four of the documents at issue entirely



under the deliberative process privilege.  Three are drafts of external correspondence regarding the Yuba



River consultation or biological assessments; one is an internal email providing a staff update on the


consultation.  Graff Decl. ¶ 27, Ex. 3 at Docs. 5215, 5247-2, 5250-1, and 20774-2.  The information


withheld was predecisional because the documents antedate NOAA’s decisions regarding these subjects


and the agency was still considering its position on certain legal analyses, draft responses and



discussions or opinions on ESA interpretations.  Id. ¶ 28.  The information was deliberative because it


reflects the deliberations of NOAA’s staff, including internal comments, discussions, and



recommendations of various agency employees, including NMFS and the Office of General Counsel


(“GC”) regarding the interpretation of ESA laws, and draft memoranda, reports, or positions in agency



discussions.  Id. ¶ 29.  Graff has explained the foreseeable harm should such information be released. 


Graff explained that release of this information could have a chilling effect on the discussions within the



agency in the future, discouraging a frank and open dialogue among agency employees during the



formulation of legal interpretations NOAA creates, ESA reports, and inter-agency collaborations on



responses to concerns from members of the public.  Id. ¶ 30.  He further explained that further



“disclosure of these records would adversely affect the candor of future agency deliberations.”  Id. ¶ 36.   


(ii) NOAA properly withheld material under the attorney-client privilege

standard



The attorney-client privilege applies when a client communications something to his or her



lawyer with the intent that it remain confidential and for the purposes of securing either (i) an opinion on



law or (ii) legal services or (iii) assistance in some legal proceedings.  In re Lindsey, 158 F.3d 1263,



1270 (D.C. Cir. 1998).  In the FOIA context, documents are subject to the attorney-client privilege if the



communications suggest that the government is dealing with its attorneys as would any private party



seeking advice to protect personal interests.  Coastal States Gas Corp. v. Dep’t of Energy, 617 F.2d 854,



863 (D.C. Cir. 1980).  The privilege applies both to facts divulged by a client to his or her attorney, as
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well as “any opinions given by an attorney to his client based upon, and thus reflecting, those facts.” 


Elec. Privacy Info. Ctr. v. DHS, 384 F. Supp. 2d 100, 114 (D.D.C. 2005). 


Pursuant to the attorney-client privilege, NOAA withheld information from the responsive



records that reflect or include confidential communications between NOAA employees and GC and the



Department of Justice discussing ESA legal analysis, discussions between NOAA and Department of



Justice, and the legal review of the informal letter transmitting the Department’s position regarding the



ESA consultation.  Graff Decl. ¶¶ 31-32. 


C.  NOAA Has Met FOIA’s Segregability Requirement


Under FOIA, “[a]ny reasonably segregable portion of a record shall be provided to any person



requesting such record after deletion of the portions which are exempt . . . .”  5 U.S.C. §  552(b).   The



agency need not disclose non-exempt portions of a document if “they are inextricably intertwined with



exempt portions such that the excision of exempt information would impose significant costs on the



agency and produce an edited document with little informational value.”  Willamette Indus., Inc. v.


United States, 689 F.2d 865, 867-68 (9th Cir. 1982) (internal quotation marks and citations omitted). 


The agency must provide a “detailed justification” for its claim of non-segregability, but “is not required



to provide so much detail that the exempt material would be effectively disclosed.”  Johnson v. Exec.


Office for U.S. Attorneys, 310 F.3d 771, 776 (D.C. Cir. 2002) (citation omitted).  “The burden is on the



agency to establish that all reasonably segregable portions of a document have been segregated and



disclosed.”  Pac. Fisheries Inc. v. United States, 539 F.3d 1143, 1148 (9th Cir. 2008) (citing 5 U.S.C. § 


552(a)(4)(B), (b)).  “The agency can meet its burden by offering an affidavit with reasonably detailed



descriptions of the withheld portions of the documents and alleging facts sufficient to establish an



exemption.”  Pac. Fisheries, 539 F.3d at 1148 (internal citations omitted); see Hamdan v. U.S. Dep’t of


Justice, 797 F.3d 759, 779 (9th Cir. 2015). 


NMFS has met the segregability requirement.  Here, of the documents at issue, those withheld in



their entirety as material protected by the attorney-client privilege have no segregable parts. 


Accordingly, there are no segregable parts of the text of these documents.  See Pacific Fisheries, 539



F.3d at 1148; ACLU v. U.S. Dep’t of Justice, 880 F.3d 473, 488-89 (9th Cir. 2018); Hudak Decl. Ex. 4 at


11-12, 13-14, 15, 73-88.  Moreover, the Graff declaration describes the documents at issue, the
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information withheld, the exemptions claimed and why the exemptions apply.  Graff has explained that


a line by line review of documents was conducted.  Graff Decl. ¶ 33.  Based on that review, NOAA



determined there was no further information “that could be reasonably segregated from exempt


information for release and implemented segregation where possible.”  Id. ¶ 35.  See Johnson, 310 F.3d



at 776 (holding that the segregability requirement was met when the Vaughn index described each



document withheld and applicable exemption and when an agency affidavit stated that a line-by-line



review of documents had been conducted and that no releasable information could be reasonably



segregated).


D.  Declaratory and Injunctive Relief are Not Appropriate


This case does not present any circumstances that suggest either declaratory or injunctive relief is


appropriate.  A court that has jurisdiction to issue declaratory relief is under “no compulsion to exercise



that jurisdiction.”  Brillhart v. Excess Ins. Co. of America, 316 U.S. 491 (1942).  Rather, “[t]he decision



whether to grant declaratory relief is within the sound discretion of the district court.”  Olagues v.



Russoniello, 770 F.2d 791, 803 (9th Cir. 1985); United States v. State of Wash., 759 F.2d 1353, 1356



(9th Cir. 1985) (“The decision to grant declaratory relief is a matter of discretion, even when the court is


presented with a justiciable controversy.”).  “Declaratory relief should be denied when it will neither


serve a useful purpose in clarifying and settling the legal relations in issue nor terminate the proceedings


and afford relief from the uncertainty and controversy faced by the parties.”  United States v. State of


Wash., 759 F.2d at 1357; see Natural Res. Def. Council, Inc. v. EPA, 966 F.2d 1292, 1300 (9th Cir.



1992) (explaining that declaratory judgement is appropriate when there are pure legal issues at question



that need to be clarified by this Court to the parties and the public). 


Similarly, with respect to injunctive relief under FOIA, “[i]n utilizing its equitable powers to



enforce the provisions of the FOIA, the district court may consider injunctive relief where appropriate.” 


Long v. IRS, 693 F.2d 907, 909 (9th Cir. 1982).  In deciding whether to grant an injunction, the court


should consider the effect on the public of disclosure or nondisclosure, the good faith of any intent to



comply expressed by the agency, and the character of past violations.  Id. 


1.  Plaintiff’s claim is moot



Plaintiff complains that DOC failed to timely issue a response to plaintiff’s appeal.  Any FOIA
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claim premised on DOC’s failure to provide the final appeal determination is moot; the agency has


provided its determination, and indeed, had offered to provide the response without the need for the



present Motion.  Wang Decl. ¶ 5, Ex. 1. 


When a government agency fails to meet the timelines set in the FOIA, filing suit provides a



remedy by compelling the agency to act.  But once an agency has responded to the request the issue of



timeliness becomes moot.  See Voinche v. FBI, 999 F.2d 962, 963 (5th Cir. 1993) (“Insofar as [plaintiff]


challenged the tardiness of the FBI’s response, his claim was rendered moot by the FBI’s response to his


request.”); Tracy v. Department of Justice, 117 F.Supp.3d 1, 5 (D.D.C. July 31, 2015) (“Plaintiff is not


entitled to relief simply because the FBI disclosures were made more than 20 days after Plaintiff



submitted her FOIA request . . . .  Once the records are produced the substance of the controversy



disappears and becomes moot since the disclosure which the suit seeks has already been made.”). 


Furthermore, the extent of the delay has no bearing on the mootness of the claim.  Papa v. United States,



281 F.3d 1004, 1013 (9th Cir. 2002) (holding that “the production of all nonexempt material, however



belatedly, moots FOIA claims”); Carter v. Veterans Admin., 780 F.2d 1479, 1481 (9th Cir. 1986). 


Mere delay in issuing a final determination on plaintiff’s appeal does not warrant declaratory



judgment.  “Even if the agency does not adhere to FOIA's explicit timelines,” the consequence for a



delay is simply that the agency cannot use the administrative exhaustion requirement to prevent parties


from filing a case in court. Citizens for Responsibility & Ethics in Wash. v. Federal Election Com’m



(“CREW”), 711 F.3d 180, 189 (D.C. Cir. 2013).  Courts have recognized that “agencies may not always


be able to adhere to [FOIA] timelines.” Id (“[t]he 20-working day timeline is not absolute.”).  The court


“cannot focus on theoretical goals alone, and completely ignore the reality that these agencies cannot


possibly respond to the overwhelming number of requests received within the time constraints imposed



by FOIA.”  Cohen v. FBI, 831 F. Supp. 850, 853-54 (S.D. Fla. 1993). 


No exception to the mootness doctrine applies here.  While an agency’s pattern and practice of



delayed responses to FOIA requests by the same plaintiff may provide an exception to the mootness


doctrine, such a pattern does not exist here.  Cf. Biodiversity Legal Found. v. Badgley, 309 F.3d 1166,



1174 (9th Cir. 2002) (explaining that exception to mootness doctrine requires that the challenged action



will affect the plaintiff in the future); see Payne Entertainment v. United States, 837 F.2d 486 (D.C. Cir.



Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 25   Filed 05/25/18   Page 26 of 28








DEFENDANT’S CROSS-MSJ & OPP. TO PL.’S MSJ


CASE NO. 18-CV-888 JSC 21



1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


1988); see also S. Yuba River Citizens League v Nat’l Marine Fisheries Serv., 2008 WL 2523819 at 16. 


Here, plaintiff alleges a single instance where DOC delayed issuance of its response to plaintiff’s


administrative appeal.  Plaintiff provides no evidence to show a pattern by DOC of delayed response to



EcoRights’ administrative appeals, nor evidence, beyond a declaration stating that it is “likely” plaintiff



will submit FOIA requests to NMFS in the future, that this specific violation is likely to recur with



respect to any future administrative appeal by plaintiff. 


Plaintiff cannot point to any bad faith by DOC.  Rather, although the formal issuance of final


appeal determination was delayed, as demonstrated by the Graff declaration, the DOC undertook prompt


review of the issues raised on appeal.  As part of that process, by July 2017, NOAA Fisheries West


Coast Region and OLE completed additional searches to confirm that responsive records had been



located and had confirmed the scope of Tanner’s original search. 


None of the cases cited by plaintiff present circumstances similar to those of the present case. 


Plaintiff cites orders issued in Our Children’s Earth Foundation v. National Marine Fisheries Service


85 F. Supp. 3d 1075 (N.D. Cal. 2015) (OCE I) and Our Children’s Earth Foundation v. National


Marine Fisheries Service Case Nos. 14-4365 SC, 14-1130 SC, 2015 WL 4452136, (N.D. Cal. July 20,



2015) (OCE II).  But in both OCE I and OCE II multiple FOIA requests were at issue in the case, and



the agency response to those requests had been late.  Long v. IRS, is similarly distinguishable; the Court


found that IRS had repeatedly withheld or delayed release of a category of documents requested under



FOIA until a lawsuit was filed, even though it had acknowledged that no exemptions applied to the



documents at issue.  Long, 693 F.2d at 907 (granting injunctive relief by ordering the IRS to comply



with future requests for statistical tabulation on the Taxpayer Compliance Measurement program, which



is periodically released by the IRS); see also Ecological Rights Found. v. FEMA, No. 16-05254, 2017



U.S. Dist. LEXIS 197451 at 31 (N.D. Cal. Nov. 30, 2017) (granting declaratory relief where FEMA had


failed to timely fully respond to the three FOIA requests at issue); S. Yuba River Citizens League v.



National Marine Fisheries Serv., No. CIV. S-06-2845 LKK/JFM, 2008 WL 2523819 (E.D. Cal. June 20,



2008) (ordering declaratory and injunctive relief where the agency did not timely respond to the three


FOIA requests at issue in the case, had yet to respond to one and plaintiff had lodged another FOIA



request with the agency).
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2.  No injunctive relief is warranted


Plaintiff’s request for injunctive relief should be denied.  NOAA has shown good faith in



responding to plaintiff’s FOIA request, promptly releasing 239 documents in whole, and 54 in part, in



February 2017.   DOC promptly reviewed the issues raised in plaintiff’s March 10, 2017 appeal, which



included confirming the scope of the initial searches and directing that additional searches be completed



by both NOAA Fisheries West Coast Region and OLE.  These searches did not locate any additional


records.  Finally, before plaintiff filed its Motion, to the extent plaintiff sought an appeal determination,



even though it had raised the same issues for this Court’s review, defendant offered to provide it. 


As explained through the Graff declaration, NOAA is not improperly withholding material from


plaintiff.  Although plaintiff urges the Court to order immediate release of the ten records at issue,



should it find any inadequacy with the agency’s summary judgment submissions, the Ninth Circuit


instructs courts to ask the agency to provide further details and declarations through a Vaughn index to



determine if the redacted documents met FOIA exemptions as the appropriate remedy before granting an



injunction or declaratory judgment.  Wiener v. Federal Bureau of Investigation, 943 F.2d 972 (9th Cir.



1991); Pac. Fisheries, 539 F.3d 1143 (holding that the IRS did not provide sufficiently specific



information and should submit affidavits describing in more detail the withheld portions of these



documents on remand.); cf. Ecological Rights Found. v. FEMA, Case No. 16-cv-5254-MEJ, 2017 WL



5972702 (N.D. Cal. Nov. 30, 2017) (ordering agency to produce withheld documents after the Court had



previously provided FEMA “numerous opportunities” to address deficiencies in three Vaughn indices). 


V. CONCLUSION



For the foregoing reasons, defendant respectfully responses that the Court enter judgment in favor of



NMFS and deny plaintiff’s motion for summary judgment. 


DATED: May 25, 2018     Respectfully submitted,
        ALEX G. TSE    
        Acting United States Attorney 
   
        _/s/ _______________

        JENNIFER S WANG
        Assistant United States Attorney
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


     )



ECOLOGICAL RIGHTS  )



FOUNDATION,   )



     ) 


   Plaintiff, )



     )



v.     ) Civil Action No. 18-cv-00888



     )



NATIONAL MARINE  )



FISHERIES SERVICE,  )



     )



   Defendant. )



_____________________________ )



SECOND DECLARATION OF MARK H. GRAFF


Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I, Mark H. Graff, declare and state as follows:


1. I am currently the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Officer for the National Oceanic



and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), which is a part of the United States Department of



Commerce (DOC). I have occupied this position since September 6, 2015.  My primary duties


include management of requests submitted to NOAA for records made under both the FOIA, 5



U.S.C. § 552, and the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a (PA). In that capacity, I oversee



NOAA’s receipt and log-in of in-coming FOIA requests, the tasking and coordination of



searches for responsive records, and review of out-going responses.


2. The statements contained in this declaration are based upon my personal knowledge,



upon information provided to me in my official capacity, upon conclusions and determinations


reached and made in accordance therewith, and upon my personal examination of the withheld



and redacted documents.  I am personally familiar with the FOIA request of Plaintiff Ecological


Rights Foundation (ERF), which is at issue in this case. 
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3. I previously submitted a declaration, dated May 24, 2018, in this action (“May 24, 2018



Declaration”).  This Second Declaration is being submitted in support of Defendant’s Reply in



Support of Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment. 


I. ADDITIONAL SEARCH PERFORMED BY NMFS


4. As I explained in my May 24, 2018 Declaration, in response to Plaintiff’s appeal


regarding the adequacy of the search conducted in response to its December 6, 2016 FOIA


request, DOC’s Office of the General Counsel determined that, in order to ensure that all


relevant documents had been located, additional searches would be advised.  DOC’s Office of



the General Counsel instructed that the relevant offices (those involved in the initial searches


described in my prior Declaration), including Office of Law Enforcement (OLE), perform a



search using the same keywords, checking both emails and network drives.  All of the offices


tasked included a search of their paper records.  The end date used for the additional searches


was the date the search was executed.


5.   Upon inquiry with the OLE, DOC confirmed that two responsive emails to/from OLE



Resident Agent Don Tanner had been located and produced to Plaintiff, though his name and



email address had been redacted pursuant to (b)(6). The Office of the General Counsel informed



the OLE FOIA Coordinator that (b)(7)(C) is a more appropriate basis for redacting an agent’s


name and email, and the OLE FOIA Coordinator took corrective action and re-released those



emails with a corrected redaction code.  A similar version of one of these responsive emails had



been located through searches conducted by NOAA West Coast Region offices and produced to



Plaintiff, without redaction of Agent Tanner’s name and email address. These two emails were



produced, without redactions, to Plaintiff prior to Defendant’s Motion for Summary Judgment.
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6.   Prior to the February 13, 2017 final response to Plaintiff’s FOIA request, NOAA



determined that it is reasonably foreseeable that disclosure of the material withheld from release



would harm an interest protected by the exemptions claimed.  The agency’s evaluation of



reasonable harm was confirmed during DOC Office of the General Counsel’s consideration of



Plaintiff’s appeal. 


7.  In my May 24, 2018 declaration, I have discussed the foreseeable harm from disclosure



of the material on the ten documents at issue in Plaintiff’s lawsuit.  With respect to the



withholding of material protected by the attorney-client privilege, release of material protected



by the attorney-client privilege would have the foreseeable harm of discouraging NOAA staff



from seeking legal advice from NOAA attorneys regarding the legal implications of and legal


sufficiency of agency actions and discourage a frank and open dialogue regarding



implementation of policy and legal interpretations.  This will limit the NOAA attorneys ability to



advocate and offer advice to their client, NOAA staff. 


II. DESCRIPTION OF THE DOCUMENTS AT ISSUE



8.   To further explain the justification of asserting the applicable FOIA exemptions for the



withholdings at issue, NOAA is submitting the Revised Vaughn Index attached hereto as Exhibit


6.   As explained in my May 24, 2018 Declaration, NOAA withheld information on the ten



documents at issue under Exemption 5 as material protected by the attorney-client and



deliberative process privileges.  Upon additional review, NOAA is releasing two of the ten



documents at issue, Documents 5250-1 and 20774-2.  These two documents were drafts of the



May 12, 2014 concurrence letter issued by NMFS’ West Coast Region addressing the U.S. Army



Corps of Engineers’ (Corps) maintenance and operation of Engelbright Dam on the Yuba River



in California discussed at paragraph 24 of my May 24, 2018 Declaration. 
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9.   The following paragraphs contain an additional description as to why material was


withheld for each of the remaining eight documents at issue.  The basis for the withholdings is


outlined within the accompanying Revised Vaughn Index, attached as Exhibit 6.



10.   Each of the records over which NOAA has asserted the attorney-client privilege was sent


with the intent that it remain confidential, and that confidentiality was maintained. 


11. Document 5079-1. This document is a 9-page ledger that was one of two attachments to



an email from Aimee Moore to Julia Caracoza.  This document comprises a solicitation for legal


opinion from NOAA GC.  Specifically, NOAA GC was asked to render legal advice and opinion



as to whether there was a sufficient and reasonable legal basis for the administrative actions


proposed, and the material redacted from the document described why legal review of the letter



was being requested. 


12. Document 5200.  This is a 2-page email chain between attorney Chris Keifer and



biologist Gary Sprague with the subject line “Re: Yuba BA”.  The redacted material falls within



the attorney-client privilege and consists solely of discussion between agency staff and an



attorney regarding Biological Assessments received from the Corps.  These Biological


Assessments were part of an ESA consultation process that was the subject of then-pending



litigation.  The document reflects a confidential attorney-client discussion regarding the legal


completeness and sufficiency of the Biological Assessments and reflects the attorney’s thought


process.  The material is also deliberative and pre-decisional as it discusses impressions


regarding NMFS’s ability to move forward towards ESA Section 7 consultation.  The release of



the redacted material would have the foreseeable harm of discouraging a frank and open dialogue



among agency employees regarding the sufficiency of Biological Assessments and concerns with



moving forward in the ESA Section 7 process. 
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13. Document 5215. This document is an email conversation between attorney Chris Keifer,



Sacramento River Basin Chief Howard Brown, and biologist Gary Sprague. The redacted



material is attorney-client privileged and consists solely of a status update on the consultations. 


The redacted material reflects a confidential exchange between a NOAA scientist and a NOAA



attorney regarding agency compliance with requirements of a court order issued in then-pending



litigation about the subject consultation.  Some of the material withheld is also deliberative and



predecisional as it identifies proposed future steps for consultation and a need for executive



policy decision-making.  The release of the redacted material would have the foreseeable harm


of discouraging a frank and open dialogue among agency employees in considering the agency’s


next steps in the ESA Section 7 process. 


14. Document 5224. This one-page email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief – a NOAA



employee – clearly identifies on its face that it was being sent to NOAA employees working on



the policy and legal aspects of the Section 7 consultation with the Corps. The redacted material


falls under the attorney-client privilege and deliberative process privilege and discusses changes


in the scope of the activities associated with the dams and the implications for the ongoing



consultation.  The material redacted from this document consists of a confidential


communication by the Sacramento River Basin Chief to his attorney requesting legal advice on



an aspect of the Section 7 consultation process with the Corps.  The redacted material was also



withheld under the deliberative process privilege because it is pre-decisional, rendered before the



agency’s final letter of concurrence was issued, reflects the Section Chief’s view of a legal issue



raised in the consultation process, and solicits legal advice regarding that view.  The release of



the redacted material would have the foreseeable harm of discouraging NOAA staff from


seeking legal advice from NOAA attorneys regarding potential agency actions, and discouraging
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a frank and open dialogue among agency employees regarding the legal and policy implications


of potential agency action. 


15. Document 5247. This email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief to an attorney with



NOAA General Counsel was partially withheld pursuant to the attorney-client privilege. The



redacted material consists of agency staff and attorney deliberations upon how to respond to a



letter from Environmental Advocates, counsel for the plaintiffs in this case. The email attached



the letter from Environmental Advocates and the draft response (which is also being challenged). 


The redacted material comprises a request by agency staff to a NOAA attorney for legal advice



on how to respond during the course of an ESA consultation and litigation related to that


consultation. 


16. Document 5247-2. This is the draft response to a letter received from Environmental


Advocates, and was enclosed in an email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief to an attorney



with NOAA General Counsel seeking advice on the response. The redacted material, withheld



under the deliberative process and attorney-client privilege, revealed information about the



ongoing consultation, and indicated future steps that the agency considered taking to meet with



stakeholders, as well as the appropriate role of NMFS as not the lead Federal action agency.


The portions withheld represent deliberations that were predecisional in nature as the parties


were considering how to respond to Environmental Advocates, how to handle certain issues


discussed in Environmental Advocates’ letter, and what changes to make to the draft response. 


The disclosure of this draft would have the foreseeable harm of chilling communications from


NOAA staff to NOAA attorneys to seek legal advice regarding agency actions. 


17. Document 5276-1. This is another copy of the routing and tracking ledger for the legal


review of the informal letter transmitting the Department’s position regarding the consultation. 


Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 33-1   Filed 06/22/18   Page 7 of 13








18.  Document 30833. This document is a draft legal analysis prepared by a NOAA attorney



in the NOAA Office of General Counsel’s Fisheries and Protected Resources Section



entitled Analyzing Ongoing Projects Under Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act. It provides


a proposed, detailed legal framework for conducting Section 7 consultations, along with draft


suggestions for a legal approach that could be taken in consultations on particular types of



agency actions. The material withheld in this document was withheld pursuant to the deliberative



process privilege and the attorney client privilege.  The document is also protected attorney work



product.  This is a document was intended for further internal review, discussion, feedback and



development within NMFS and NOAA GC.  The document was drafted by a NOAA attorney in



consultation with other attorneys in response to a request by NOAA program managers for the



above-described legal analysis. It was provided as a draft for discussion purposes to various


individuals within NMFS and NOAA GC, including to the NMFS West Coast Regional


Administrator.  The issue addressed in this document had already been the subject of litigation. 


The redacted portions of the document reflect a draft legal analysis and draft proposed



consultation approach that could be applied on a national- or project-level basis and which, if



implemented, almost certainly would be the subject of legal challenges.  The material withheld is


pre-decisional and part of an ongoing discussion regarding development of agency legal and



policy positions.  The legal analysis reflected in the document was never finalized or adopted by



the agency as official legal guidance.  Release of the document would have a foreseeable chilling



effect on the discussions within the agency during the formulation of legal interpretations and



policy.  Moreover, release of the document would create confusion from members of the public



as the analysis and suggestions reflected in the document have not been adopted by the



agency.       
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Exhibit 6
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Ecological Rights Foundation v. NMFS, 18-cv-00888 (Revised Vaughn Index)



Document 


Number 


(short 


reference) 


Plaintiff's Ex.



5 Page



Number



(Docket No.



12-18) Information about record
 Exemptions Applied Basis for Exemptions



5079-1 2-10 9-page Routing & Tracking Ledger Sheet for the



consultation
 upon "Englebright Dam and Resevoir"



Was one of two attachments to an email from Aimee



Moore to Julia Caracoza, copying C3Judson Feder, Chris



Keifer, Gary Sprague, Howard Brown, and Anita



Deguzman, subject "Englebright Dam and Reservoir



Inofrmatl Consultation attached for GC Review", sent



April 23, 2014 2:40 PM.



(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege 


This document is a 9-page ledger that was one of two attachments to an email from Aimee



Moore to Julia Caracoza, which is attached as Exhibit 4. As the email clearly states, Ms.



Moore was submitting the Yuba 2014 Englebright Dam Project Informal Letter to NOAA’s



Office of the General Counsel for review, as well as the routing and tracking ledger sheet that



comprises this challenged document. The material redacted from the document, pursuant to



the attorney-client privilege, consisted solely of comments directed to legal counsel



indicating why legal review of the letter was being requested, and informing legal counsel



that the letter related to a matter in active litigation.   This document comprises a solicitation



for legal opinion from NOAA GC.  Specifically, NOAA GC was asked to render legal advice and



opinion as to whether there was a sufficient and reasonable legal basis for the administrative



actions proposed, and the material redacted from the document described why legal review



of the letter was being requested.



5200 11-12 2-page email from attorney Chris Kiefer to biologist Gary 


Sprague copying Sacramento River Basin Chief Howard 


Brown, subject “Re: Yuba BA”, sent October 30, 2013 


9:56 AM. The email chain contains an email from Gary 


Sprague sent October 30, 2013 at 7:38 AM. 


(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege and 


Deliberative Process 


Privilege 


This is a 2-page email chain between attorney Chris Keifer and biologist Gary Sprague with



the subject line “Re: Yuba BA”. The redacted material falls within the attorney-client privilege



and consists solely of discussion between agency staff and an attorney regarding Biological



Assessments received from the Corps. These Biological Assessments were part of an ESA



consultation process that was the subject of then-pending litigation.  The document reflects a



confidential attorney-client discussion regarding the legal completeness and sufficiency of



the Biological Assessments and reflects the attorney’s thought process.  The material is also



deliberative and pre-decisional as it discusses impressions regarding NMFS’s ability to move



forward towards ESA Section 7 consultation.  The release of the redacted material would



have the foreseeable harm of discouraging a frank and open dialogue among agency



employees regarding the sufficiency of Biological Assessments and concerns with moving



forward in the ESA Section 7 process.
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5215 13-14 Email conversation between attorney Chris Kiefer,



Sacramento River Basin Chief Howard Brown, and


biologist Gary Sprague, subject "Re: Yuba Consultation",



sent January 30, 2014 11:56 AM. The email chain


contains an email from Chris Kiefer sent January 30, 2014


11:06 AM.



(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege and 


Deliberative Process 


Privilege 


This document is an email conversation between attorney Chris Keifer, Sacramento River



Basin Chief Howard Brown, and biologist Gary Sprague. The redacted material is attorney-


client privileged and consists solely of a status update on the consultations.  The redacted



material reflects a confidential exchange between a NOAA scientist and a NOAA attorney



regarding agency compliance with requirements of a court order issued in then-pending



litigation about the subject consultation.  Some of the material withheld is also deliberative



and predecisional as it identifies proposed future steps for consultation and a need for



executive policy decision-making.  The release of the redacted material would have the



foreseeable harm of discouraging a frank and open dialogue among agency employees in



considering the agency’s next steps in the ESA Section 7 process.



5224 15 Email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief Howard 


Brown to Will Stelle, Maria Rea, Judson Feder, and Adam 


Issenberg, copying Gary Sprague and Chris Keifer, 


subject "Update on Yuba Consultations with  U.S. Army 


Corps", sent January 31, 2014 12:08 PM. 


(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege and 


Deliberative Process 


Privilege 


This one-page email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief clearly identifies on its face that it



was being sent to NOAA employees working on the policy and legal aspects of the Section 7



consultation with the Corps. The redacted material falls under the attorney-client privilege



and deliberative process privilege and discusses changes in the scope of the activities



associated with the dams and the implications for the ongoing consultation.  The material



redacted from this document consists of a confidential communication by the Sacramento



River Basin Chief to his attorney requesting legal advice on an aspect of the Section 7



consultation process with the Corps.  The redacted material was also withheld under the



deliberative process privilege because it is pre-decisional, rendered before the agency’s final



letter of concurrence was issued, reflects the Section Chief’s view of a legal issue raised in the



consultation process, and solicits legal advice regarding that view.  The release of the



redacted material would have the foreseeable harm of discouraging NOAA staff from seeking



legal advice from NOAA attorneys regarding potential agency actions, and discouraging a



frank and open dialogue among agency employees regarding the legal and policy



implications of potential agency action.



5247 18 Email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief Howard


Brown to attorney Chris Keifer, copying Gary Sprague



and Alice Berg, subject "Response to Environmental



Advocates", sent February 04, 2014 12:47 pm.



(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege 


This email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief to an attorney with NOAA General Counsel



was partially withheld pursuant to the attorney-client privilege. The redacted material



consists of agency staff and attorney deliberations upon how to respond to a letter from



Environmental Advocates, counsel for the plaintiffs in this case. The email attached the letter



from Environmental Advocates and the draft response (which is also being challenged). The



redacted material comprises a request by agency staff to a NOAA attorney for legal advice on



how to respond during the course of an ESA consultation and litigation related to that



consultation.
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5247-2 16-17 Word file titled "Stelle response to Environmental 


Advocates.docx". 


Was one of two attachments to document 5247 listed 


above. 


(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege and 


Deliberative Process 


Privilege 


This is the draft response to a letter received from Environmental Advocates, and was



enclosed in an email from the Sacramento River Basin Chief to an attorney with NOAA



General Counsel seeking advice on the response. The redacted material, withheld under the



deliberative process and attorney-client privilege, revealed information about the ongoing



consultation, and indicated future steps that the agency considered taking to meet with



stakeholders, as well as the appropriate role of NMFS as not the lead Federal action agency.



The portions withheld represent deliberations that were predecisional in nature as the



parties were considering how to respond to Environmental Advocates, how to handle certain



issues discussed in Environmental Advocates’ letter, and what changes to make to the draft



response.  The disclosure of this draft would have the foreseeable harm of chilling



communications from NOAA staff to NOAA attorneys to seek legal advice regarding agency



actions.



5276-1 38-46 A copy of the routing and tracking ledger for the legal



review of the informal letter transmitting NMFS' position


regarding the consultation. (See entry for document 5079-


1.)



(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege 


This is another copy of the routing and tracking ledger for the legal review of the informal



letter transmitting the Department’s position regarding the consultation. (See entry for



Document 5079-1)



30833 73-88 Document with the heading "Legal Analysis: Analyzing



Ongoing Projects Under Section 7 of the Endangered


Species Act (ESA) - Draft "



(b)(5) Attorney Client 


Privilege; Attorney 


Work Product; and 


Deliberative Process 


Privilege 


This document is a draft legal analysis prepared by a NOAA attorney in the NOAA Office of



General Counsel’s Fisheries and Protected Resources Section entitled Analyzing Ongoing



Projects Under Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act. It provides a proposed, detailed



legal framework for conducting Section 7 consultations, along with draft suggestions for a



legal approach that could be taken in consultations on particular types of agency actions. The



material withheld in this document was withheld pursuant to the deliberative process



privilege and the attorney client privilege.  The document is also protected attorney work



product.  This is a document was intended for further internal review, discussion, feedback



and development within NMFS and NOAA GC.  The document was drafted by a NOAA



attorney in consultation with other attorneys in response to a request by NOAA program



managers for the above-described legal analysis. It was provided as a draft for discussion



purposes to various individuals within NMFS and NOAA GC, including to the NMFS West



Coast Regional Administrator.  The issue addressed in this document had already been the



subject of litigation.  The redacted portions of the document reflect a draft legal analysis and



draft proposed consultation approach that could be applied on a national- or project-level



basis and which, if implemented, almost certainly would be the subject of legal challenges.



The material withheld is pre-decisional and part of an ongoing discussion regarding



development of agency legal and policy positions.  The legal analysis reflected in the



document was never finalized or adopted by the agency as official legal guidance.  Release of



the document would have a foreseeable chilling effect on the discussions within the agency



during the formulation of legal interpretations and policy.  Moreover, release of the



document would create confusion from members of the public as the analysis and



suggestions reflected in the document have not been adopted by the agency.
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I. INTRODUCTION 


This lawsuit relates to a FOIA request submitted by plaintiff, Ecological Rights Foundation



(plaintiff or “EcoRights”) to NMFS dated December 6, 2016.  The agency completed its document


release in response to plaintiff’s FOIA request and issued its final response on February 13, 2017,



releasing 239 documents in their entirety, and 54 documents in part. 


NMFS conducted searches that could be reasonably expected to discover records subject to



plaintiff’s request.  Based on various emails of a NMFS Fishery Biologist and a letter NMFS sent to the



Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”), plaintiff speculates that NMFS’ Office of Law



Enforcement (“OLE”) conducted an investigation and generated as yet uncovered records.  The emails


and letter do not evidence an OLE investigation;  rather, they refer to actions and duties of other entities


– California Department of Fish and Wildlife and FERC.   Having no grounds upon which to challenge



either the reasonableness of the agency’s search or good faith declarations, plaintiff asks to undertake



discovery, but fails to specify what facts could be elicited from such discovery. 


Plaintiff has challenged the agency’s withholdings under FOIA Exemption 5 for material


protected by the attorney client and deliberative process privileges on ten documents.  The agency has


agreed to release an unredacted version of two of the records previously at issue.  Only eight documents


remain in dispute.  The agency has explained, through its submissions, including a Second Declaration



of NOAA FOIA Officer Mark Graff (“Second Graff Decl.”) and revised Vaugh index filed concurrently



with this Reply Brief, the basis for the attorney-client and deliberative process privileges claimed. 


The remainder of plaintiff’s claims assert purported technical violations of FOIA that are either



moot or lack any legal support.  One, plaintiff complains of an inconsistency in the agency’s redaction



of OLE Agent Donald Tanner’s name and email information across three records in the agency FOIA



release.  The two records that contained redactions Exemptions 6 and 7(C) were re-released without


withholdings, and any claim regarding those exemptions is now moot.   Two, plaintiff complains that the



agency’s February 13, 2017 final response letter was deficient because it did not breakdown by page


count (as opposed to document count), the number of withholdings and only listed the exemption



categories (e.g., attorney-client, deliberative process, privacy) claimed, without providing information



about the basis for the withholdings.  Plaintiff does not cite a single case in support of its position. 
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Finally, although plaintiff’s lawsuit seeks the Court’s determination on the same issues raised in



plaintiff’s administrative appeal, in moving for summary judgment, plaintiff complained that it had not


received the agency’s appeal determination.  It is undisputed that the appeal determination has been



provided.  Any claim seeking the determination is now moot.  Plaintiff has failed to establish any pattern



and practice of delayed determinations on plaintiff’s administrative appeals that would warrant


declaratory or injunctive relief.  Accordingly, the Court should grant summary judgment in favor of



defendant and deny plaintiff’s summary judgment motion.



II. DEFENDANT IS ENTITLED TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT


A. NOAA Conducted a Search Reasonably Calculated to Uncover Responsive Records


NMFS has met its burden to demonstrate the adequacy of its search with “reasonably detailed,



nonconclusory affidavits submitted in good faith.”  Zemanksy v. EPA, 767 F.2d 569, 571 (9th Cir. 1985). 


An agency’s search for records is considered “adequate” if it was conducted “using methods which can



be reasonably expected to produce the information requested.”  Nation Magazine v. U.S. Customs Serv.,



71 F.3d 885, 890 (D.C. Cir. 1995) (quoting Oglesby v. U.S. Dep’t of Army, 920 F.2d 57, 68 (D.C. Cir.



1990)).  “[T]he issue to be resolved is not whether there might exist any other documents possibly



responsive to the request, but whether the search for those documents was adequate.”  Zemansky, 767



F.2d at 571 (emphasis original); SafeCard Servs. Inc. v. SEC, 926 F.2d 1197, 1201 (D.C. Cir. 1991) (the



agency need only show that “the search was reasonably calculated to discover the requested documents,



not whether it actually uncovered every document extant.”).  “Agency affidavits enjoy a presumption of



good faith, which will withstand purely speculative claims about the existence and discoverability of



other documents.”  Ground Saucer Watch v. CIA, 692 F.2d 770, 771 (D.C. Cir. 1981). 


The declarations provided by NOAA FOIA Officer Mark Graff , OLE Deputy Director Robert L.



Gregory (“Gregory Decl.”), and OLE Agent Tanner (“Tanner Decl.”), establish that the agency’s search



targeted the offices where responsive documents are likely to be located, the NOAA Fisheries West


Coast Region offices and OLE.  See ECF No. 26, Declaration of Mark Graff in Support of Defendant’s


Cross Motion for Summary Judgment (“Graff Decl.”)  ¶¶ 5-8, 13-15; Second Graff Decl. ¶ 4; Gregory



Decl. ¶¶ 11-17; Tanner Decl. ¶¶ 8-11.  Both hard copy and electronic files were searched, and the search



terms used were identified.  See id. Second Graff Decl. ¶ 4; Gregory Decl. ¶ 13; Tanner Decl. ¶ 8. 
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Plaintiff does not contend insufficiency in the search terms used or that relevant offices or personnel


were omitted from the search. 


Once an agency makes a showing that it conducted a search in good faith that was reasonably



calculated to uncover all relevant documents, the agency’s position can only be rebutted by showing that


the agency’s search was not made in good faith.  Maynard v. CIA, 986 F.2d 547, 560 (1st Cir.1993). 


The plaintiff bears an “evidentiary burden” to “present evidence rebutting the agency’s initial showing



of a good faith search.”  See Wilson v. DEA, 414 F. Supp. 2d 5, 12 (D.D.C. 2006).  An agency’s “failure



to turn up a particular document, or mere speculation that as yet uncovered documents might exist, does


not undermine the determination that the agency conducted an adequate search for requested records.” 


Wilbur v. CIA, 355 F.3d 675, 678 (D.C. Cir. 2004) (per curiam). 


Plaintiff has failed to meet its burden.  The primary search deficiency alleged is the absence of



investigative records in the agency’s FOIA release.  Citing various emails of NMFS Fishery Biologist,



Larry Thompson, and a letter from NMFS to FERC, plaintiff argues that based on the content of these



emails, OLE should have conducted an investigation.1  See ECF No. 12-1, Linn Decl. Exs. G-H; ECF


No. 30-1, Reply Linn Decl. Exs. 2-5.  But nothing in these emails suggest the agency’s search failed to



capture responsive records.  The records cited by plaintiff do not refer to the existence of an



investigation or creation of records by Agent Tanner.  None of the documents submitted with the



Plaintiff’s Opposition and Reply suggest the existence of as yet uncovered OLE records:  the emails


indicate that in 2015, FERC’s Office of Compliance was contacted about fish strandings, California



Department of Fish and Wildlife (“CDFW”) “technically have the lead” on fish rescues, and the decision



on any actions were up to CDFW.2  See Reply Linn Decl. Exs. 2-4.  The letter cited by plaintiff indicates


1 Though plaintiff expresses its belief that OLE should have undertaken investigations, this issue

is beyond the scope of the FOIA and not the proper subject of a FOIA lawsuit.  Pl. Opp. & Reply at n. 1. 


2 Plaintiff inaccurately states that defendant did not address an October 21, 2015 email from
Larry Thompson, see Linn Decl. Ex. G, in its Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment.  Plaintiff believes
that documents included in NMFS’ release, such as the October 21, 2015 email, indicate Tanner is
involved in investigations related to flow fluctuations and poaching at the Yuba River based solely on

plaintiff’s position that OLE should have initiated an investigation into the issues discussed in the

records.  See Def.’s Cross-Mot. for Summ. J. at 17.  This amounts to no more than “[m]ere speculation

that as yet uncovered documents might exist,” is which is not enough to “‘undermine the determination

that the agency conducted an adequate search for the requested records.’”  Morley v. CIA, 508 F.3d

1108, 1120 (D.C. Cir. 2007) (citation omitted).  In the Opposition and Reply, plaintiff introduces
additional records about the same incident discussed in the October 21, 2015 email, and suggests that
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that NMFS discussed fish strandings with FERC and refers to a process involving FERC, not an OLE



investigation.  See id. Ex. 5.  Tanner has further explained that although he received emails from


Thompson regarding the FERC project, Thompson did not make a referral to OLE to investigate take



allegations, and Tanner did not collect any records related to this incident.   Tanner Decl. ¶ 7. 


Defendant previously addressed a September 24, 2014 email authored by Thompson that


plaintiff referenced in its Motion for Summary Judgment:  the email indicates nothing more than a plan



by Thompson to visit the lower Yuba River and to discuss stranding hazards with Tanner because



Tanner “may attend the future FERC public meeting on the subject.”  Linn Decl. Ex. H.  The email did



not contain any substantive discussion of any “take,” reference to an investigation, suggestion of any



steps that Tanner may have taken after the visit, or suggestion that Tanner created any investigative



documents yet to be produced.  See id.  Tanner has explained that Thompson never made a referral to



OLE for the initiation of an investigation, and Tanner did not create any records related to his site visit. 


Tanner Decl. ¶¶ 5-7.  Tanner did not see any evidence of “take” at the site visit.  See id. 


Plaintiff further contends that Agent Tanner indicated in a February 13, 2014 email that he was


tracking fish strandings, but these reports were not located the agency’s search.  See Linn Decl. Exs. A-


B; Pl. Opp. & Reply at 9.  Plaintiff mischaracterizes Tanner’s statement.  The email shows that


Thompson forwarded to Tanner, among others, a letter about salmon strandings that NMFS filed in



proceedings on a FERC project and stated that he would keep the email recipients “abreast of the FERC


response.”  Tanner responded:  “Thanks Larry.  I’m keeping track of your reports.”   See Linn Decl. Exs.



A-C.   Tanner did not indicate that he was independently tracking fish strandings or creating any reports. 


Next, plaintiff challenges the adequacy of NOAA’s search on the ground that OLE, “and



particularly Agent Tanner,” did not search paper files.  Pl. Opp. & Reply at 8-9.  This ignores the facts


provided by Graff.  He explained that Tanner’s paper files were searched.  See Graff Decl. ¶ 13.  With



this Reply, defendant has provided the declaration of OLE Deputy Director Robert Gregory to further



plaintiff made defendant aware of these emails prior to Defendant’s Cross-Motion for Summary

Judgment.  See Pl. Opp. and Reply at 9-10.  Plaintiff fails to mention that plaintiff had these records
before it filed plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment, but did not identify or address them in its
Motion.  See Reply Linn Decl. Ex. 1.  As explained above, these emails further demonstrate the

speculative nature of plaintiff’s argument. 
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describe the OLE searches conducted as part of DOC’s inquiry in response to plaintiff’s appeal. 


Gregory has explained that in April 2017, OLE was tasked in undertaking additional searches, and that


search included both electronic and paper records.  See Gregory Decl. ¶ 13. 


Finally, plaintiff questions the search cut-off dates used in the searches that followed plaintiff’s


administrative appeal.  In his Second Declaration, Graff has explained that the cut-off date used in the



additional search conducted by NOAA Fisheries’ West Coast Region offices was the date the search was


executed.   Second Graff Decl. ¶ 4.  Gregory has similarly explained that the end date used by OLE was


the date the search was executed.  Gregory Decl. ¶ 13.



Here, NMFS has demonstrated through the Graff, Gregory, and Tanner declarations that it


conducted a reasonable search for relevant documents, and thus, has demonstrated that it is entitled to



summary judgment on this issue.  Plaintiff attempts to challenge the sufficiency of the agency’s search



based on its interpretation of emails, that on their face, do not indicate that an OLE investigation was


conducted.  Plaintiff’s arguments rely on nothing more than their belief that more action should have



been taken by OLE, ignores the facts provided by the agency’s declarations, and as such, do not


overcome the presumption of the agency’s good faith search. 


B. Plaintiff’s Request for Discovery Should Be Denied


Plaintiff also requests under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 56(d), that the Court permit


discovery related to defendant’s searches.  To obtain discovery under Rule 56(d), plaintiff must


demonstrate:  (1) that it has set forth in affidavit form the specific facts it hopes to elicit from further



discovery; (2) that the facts sought exist; and (3) that these sought-after facts are “essential” to resist


defendant’s summary judgment motion.  See California v. Campbell, 138 F.3d 772, 779 (9th Cir. 1998). 


A Rule 56(d) motion must show how additional discovery would preclude summary judgment and why



a party cannot immediately provide “specific facts” demonstrating a genuine issue of material fact.  See



Mackey v. Pioneer Nat’l Bank, 867 F.2d 520, 523-24 (9th Cir. 1989).   Plaintiff has not made such a


showing.  No declaration has been provided setting forth specific “essential” facts to be elicited from


discovery.  The Reply Linn Declaration does not describe what discovery plaintiff proposes to



undertake, or any facts that plaintiff believes would be obtained from that discovery. 
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None of plaintiff’s actions or contentions demonstrate grounds for discovery.  Plaintiff takes two



inconsistent positions.  It contends that the Reply Linn Declaration presents all the “requisite evidence”



allegedly demonstrating that “overlooked” material was not produced.   At the same time, plaintiff also



contends that it does not have “essential” evidence on the agency’s search and could not have obtained



needed evidence earlier because NMFS did not provide the appeal description and full description of its


search until May 25, 2018, with its summary judgment motion.  See Pl. Opp. & Reply at 6.  Plaintiff’s


own declarations contradict this assertion.  Defendant provided plaintiff’s counsel a detailed summary of



the agency’s search prior to May 25, 2018 and prior to the initial case management conference.  See


Reply Linn Decl. Ex. 1 (confirming plaintiff’s receipt of defendant’s receipt of NMFS’ search terms and



parameters); ECF No. 20, May 10, 2018 Joint Case Management Statement at 5.  Here, plaintiff was


informed that defendant was willing to provide an appeal determination, that the determination would



address the plaintiff’s concerns regarding the agency’s search, and that defendant proposed the parties


meet and confer after plaintiff had the opportunity to review the appeal determination.  ECF No. 27,


Declaration of Jennifer S Wang In Support of Defendant’s Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment and



Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment (“Wang Decl.”) ¶¶ 2-4.  Plaintiff ignored these



opportunities and opted to pursue an early summary judgment motion prior to the completion of the



parties’ Rule 26(f) conference and the initial case management conference.   See id. 


“Discovery is not favored in lawsuits under the FOIA.”  Judicial Watch v. U.S. Dep’t of Justice,



185 F. Supp. 2d 54, 65 (D.D.C. 2002).  Courts have uniformly acknowledged that discovery is “an



extraordinary procedure in a FOIA action.”  Thomas v. Dep’t of Health & Human Servs., 587 F. Supp.



2d 114, 115 (D.D.C. 2008); see also Lawyer’s Comm. for Civil Rights of San Francisco Bay Area v. U.S.



Dep’t of Treasury, 534 F. Supp. 2d 1126, 1131 (N.D. Cal. 2008) (observing that discovery is “sparingly



granted” in FOIA cases); Huene v. U.S. Dep’t of the Treas., No. 2:11-cv-01209 JAM KJN PS, 2012 WL



1681940, at *3 (E.D. Cal. May 14, 2012).  Discovery is typically only permitted in extreme cases, such



as whether there has been a showing of bad faith, which is not the case here.  A showing of bad faith is


“when there is evidence of wrongdoing such as illegal destruction of documents or a material conflict in



agency affidavits.”  Citizen for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington  v. U.S. Dep’t of Justice, 467 F.



Supp. 2d 40, 56 (D.D.C. 2006).  Discovery is not warranted “when it appears that discovery would only
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. . . afford [the plaintiff] an opportunity to pursue a bare hope of falling upon something that might


impugn the affidavits.”  Flowers v. Internal Revenue Serv., 307 F. Supp. 2d 60, 68 (D.D.C. 2004) (citing



Military Audit Project v. Casey, 656 F.2d 7y24, 751-52 (D.C. Cir. 1981).   Courts generally do not grant


discovery even if an agency’s affidavits regarding its search are deficient.  Instead, courts direct the



agency to supplement its affidavits.  Jarvik v. CIA, 741 F. Supp. 2d 106, 122 (D.D.C. 2010) (citing



Judicial Watch, 185 F. Supp. 2d at 65). 


The Court should not permit discovery.  Plaintiff has neither established the insufficiency of the



agency’s declarations, nor met Rule 56(d) requirements by setting forth specific facts to be elicited from


further discovery and explaining how the sought-after facts are “essential” to resist summary judgment. 


C. NOAA Properly Withheld Material Pursuant to Exemption 5 


Upon additional review, NOAA is releasing two of the ten documents at issue, Documents 5250-


1 and 20774-2.  These two documents were drafts of the May 12, 2014 concurrence letter issued by



NMFS addressing the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ (“Corps”) maintenance and operation of



Engelbright Dam on the Yuba River in California.  See Second Graff Decl. ¶ 8. 


NOAA has met its burden to establish exemptions for the eight documents that remain at issue,



and plaintiff has not offered any legitimate basis to challenge the decision to withhold the information. 


Documents 5079-1, Document 5276-1:  The only withholding that plaintiff appears to challenge on



these documents, which are solicitations for legal opinion from NOAA Office of General Counsel


(“GC”), is the redaction on the first page.  One, plaintiff speculates that the information redacted on the



first page is the same as that which appears, and was not redacted, on the second page.  There is no basis


for plaintiff’s speculation.  Two, plaintiff theorizes that the redacted information consists of facts that


are public knowledge, but does not explain why, if true, the material is not subject to Exemption 5.  The



attorney-client privilege applies to facts divulged by a client to his or her attorney.  See Elec. Privacy



Info. Ctr. v. DHS, 384 F. Supp. 2d 100, 114 (D.D.C. 2005). 


Document 5200:   NOAA has explained that the redacted material on this email consists of discussion



between NOAA staff and a NOAA attorney regarding Biological Assessments received from the Corps
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protected by the attorney-client and deliberative process privileges.  These Biological Assessments were



part of an Endangered Species Act (“ESA”) consultation process that was the subject of then-pending



litigation.  The redacted material constitutes a discussion between a client and his attorney regarding the



legal completeness and sufficiency of the Biological Assessments and reflects the attorney’s thought


process on that subject.  See Second Graff Decl. ¶ 12.  The revised Vaughn index further discloses the



context in which this email was prepared and the role of this document in the agency’s deliberations as


to future action by the agency:  it discusses impressions regarding NMFS’s ability to move forward



towards ESA Section 7 consultation.  See id. Ex. 6.  This type of internal analysis is exempt from


disclosure.  Nat'l Wildlife Fed'n v. U.S. Forest Serv., 861 F.2d 1114, 1118–19 (9th Cir. 1988) (“we



believe a better analytical tool than merely determining whether the material itself was essentially



deliberative or factual should be used: we should focus on whether the document in question is a part of



the deliberative process” and explaining that the deliberative process privilege has been held to cover all


“recommendations, draft documents, proposals, suggestions and other subjective documents which



reflect the personal opinions of the writer rather than the policy of the agency”). 


Document 5215:  As described in the revised Vaughn index, the redacted material on this email reflects


a confidential exchange between a NOAA scientist and a NOAA attorney regarding agency compliance



with requirements of a court order issued in then-pending litigation about the subject ESA Section 7



consultation.  See Second Graff Decl. Ex. 6.  The material is also deliberative and pre-decisional as it


identifies proposed future steps for consultation and a need for executive policy decision-making.  See



Nat’l Wildlife Fed’n, 861 F.2d at 1122 (documents properly withheld as deliberative where they



represent “the mental processes of the agency in considering alternative courses of action prior to



settling on a final plan”). 


Document 5224:  The material redacted from this email consists of a confidential communication by the



NMFS Sacramento River Basin Chief to his attorney requesting legal advice on an aspect of the ESA



Section 7 consultation process with the Corps.  See Second Graff Decl. Ex. 6.  The redacted material


was also withheld under the deliberative process privilege because it is pre-decisional, rendered before



the agency’s final letter of concurrence was issued, reflects the Section Chief’s view of a legal issue



raised in the consultation process, and solicits legal advice regarding that view.  Id.  This is precisely the
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type of material protected by the deliberative process privilege.  See Nat’l Wildlife Fed’n, 861 F.2d at


1118-19; Columbia Snake River Irrigators Ass’n v. Lohn, C07-1388MJP, 2008 WL 750574, at *3 (W.D.



Wash. March 19, 2008) (“recommendations, draft documents, proposals, suggestions and other



subjective documents which reflect the personal opinions of the written rather than the policy of the


agency . . . .are deliberative and are properly withheld under exemption five.”). 


Document 5247: NOAA has explained the applicability of the attorney-client privilege to this email.


The redacted material comprises a request by NOAA staff to a NOAA attorney for legal advice on how



to respond to Environmental Advocates, plaintiff’s counsel, during the course of an ESA consultation



and litigation related to that consultation.  See Second Graff Decl. Ex. 6. 


Document 5247-2. This is a draft response to a letter received from Environmental Advocates and was


attached to the above-described attorney-client communication, which sought legal advice on the



response.3  The portions withheld represent deliberations that were pre-decisional in nature as the parties


were considering how to respond to Environmental Advocates, how to handle certain issues discussed in



Environmental Advocates’ letter, and what changes to make to the draft response.   See Second Graff



Decl. Ex. 6.  FOIA protects not just records, but the agency’s deliberative process.  The exchange of



drafts is itself part of that process, and thus exempt from disclosure.  National Wildlife Fed’n, 861 F.2d



at 1118.  Moreover, in formulating a response to Environmental Advocates’ letter and evaluating how to



handle certain issues raised in the letter, NMFS “exercise[d] policy implicating judgment,” and the



document it created is deliberative and properly withheld under exemption five.   Columbia Snake River


Irrigators Ass’n, 2008 WL 750574, at *3. 


Document 30833: NOAA has explained  that this document was prepared by a NOAA attorney, at the



request of NOAA program managers for the legal analysis captured in the document, and is therefore


protected attorney-client communication.  The revised Vaughn index further explains that the legal


issues addressed are the subject of recurring litigation, and therefore also properly withheld as attorney



work product.4  See Graff Decl. Ex. 6.  The redacted portions of the document reflect a draft legal


3 Because this document is part of an attorney-client communication, the revised Vaughn index
reflects an additional basis for withholding the document under the attorney-client privilege.  See Graff

Decl. Ex. 6. 


4 The revised Vaughn reflects that an additional basis for withholding Document 30833 is the
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analysis and draft proposed consultation approach that could be applied on a national- or project-level


basis and which, if implemented, would likely be the subject of legal challenges.  See Second Graff



Decl. Ex. 6; Am. Civil Liberties Union of N. California v. United States Dep't of Justice, 880 F.3d 473,



487 (9th Cir. 2018) (attorney work product protection under exemption 5 applies to records prepared in



anticipation of recurring legal issues).  The revised Vaughn also discloses that the document was created



as part of an ongoing discussion regarding development of agency legal and policy positions, but the



legal analysis reflected in the document was never finalized or adopted by the agency as official legal


guidance.  This type of internal analysis and review is exempt from disclosure.  Nat’l Wildlife Fed’n,



861 F.2d at 1118. 


Plaintiff argues that because the agency did not assert deliberative process privilege over this


document during the administrative stage, the Court must ignore the assertion of the privilege in



litigation.  Plaintiff misstates the law.  The authority plaintiff cites, Nat’l Wildlife Fed’n v. NMFS, 481



F.3d 1224, 1237 n. 9 (9th Cir. 2007), does not discuss either FOIA or the deliberative process privilege. 


“[A]n agency does not waive FOIA exemptions by not raising them during the administrative process . .



. . [W]aiver is inappropriate because FOIA provides for de novo judicial review, 5 U.S.C. §



552(a)(4)(B); agencies do not litigate FOIA requests and therefore do not create a record suitable for


review.”  Young v. CIA, 972 F.2d 536, 538–39 (4th Cir. 1992) (“It is unremarkable that the CIA, when it


filed its declarations and Vaughn Indices, changed its position as to a few of the many documents


originally at issue two years before in the administrative proceeding.”); Gula v.Meese, 699 F. Supp. 956,



959 n. 2 (D.D.C. 1988);  (“[T]he defendant in a FOIA case may assert new exemptions at the federal


district court level . . . not previously asserted at the administrative level, even if the circumstances have



not changed in the interim.”). 


Plaintiff’s contention that the agency failed to maintain the confidentiality of attorney-client


communications is unsubstantiated.  Graff has confirmed that all documents with attorney-client


privilege material were confidential, and that the agency maintained that confidentiality.  See id. ¶ 10. 


attorney work production protection.  See id. 
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Plaintiff generally asserts, with respect to all of the documents at issue, that the agency has failed



to establish a foreseeable harm if the redacted information were released.   Plaintiff does not cite any



authority that suggests that such particularized explanation of the harm that would result from a client’s


solicitation of legal advice from his attorney in a Vaughn index is required to establish the exemption. 


With respect to all attorney-client communications, the fundamental harm is that disclosure breaks the



privilege.  See also Second Graff Decl. ¶ 7 (release of the material withheld under the attorney-client


privilege would discourage NOAA staff from seeking legal advice from NOAA attorneys about the legal


implications of and legal sufficiency of agency actions and discourage a frank and open dialogue



regarding implementation of policy and legal interpretations, with the result that NOAA GC’s ability to



advocate and offer advice to their clientwill be limited). 


Graff has previously explained that further disclosure of the records at issue would adversely



affect the candor of future agency deliberations.  See Graff Decl. ¶¶ 30, 36.  In his second declaration,



Graff has further explained that the agency evaluated each of the withholdings at issue to consider



whether a foreseeable harm would result from disclosure of the redacted information.  See Second Graff



Decl. ¶¶ 6-7.  The revised Vaugh index provides further details, with respect to each of the remaining



disputed assertions of the deliberative process privilege, the foreseeable harm that would result from


discovery of the redacted information.  See Second Graff Decl. Ex. 6.  


D. NMFS Has Met FOIA’s Segregability Requirement


The only alleged failures by NMFS to segregrate non-exempt material relate to the two draft


concurrence letters (documents 5250-1 and 20774-2).  Pl. Opp. & Reply at 24.  As discussed above,



defendant will release unredacted versions of these documents. 


E. Neither Declaratory Nor Injunctive Relief Is Warranted


None of plaintiff’s requests for declaratory or injunctive relief should be granted.  Plaintiff has


failed to demonstrate that either is warranted or appropriate in this case. 


1.  NOAA’s Complied With Obligations at the Administrative Stage


During the administrative stage under FOIA, an agency need only “indicate the scope of the



documents it intends to produce and the exemptions it will claim.”  Citizens for Responsibility and



Ethics in Washington v. Federal Election Commission (“CREW”), 711 F.3d 180, 187 n. 4 (D.C. Cir.
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203).  A FOIA response must identify “reasons” for a determination.  See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i). 


“The administrative process need not explore all issues or arguments.”  See id. 


Here, NOAA satisfied its statutory obligations at the administrative stage by identifying the



number of documents5 collected for processing, the number produced with and without redactions, and



the specific exemptions being claimed for the withholdings in its February 13, 2017 letter:  5 U.S.C. § 


552(b)(5) attorney client work product, 5 U.S.C. §  552(b)(5) attorney client privilege, 5 U.S.C. § 


552(b)(5) deliberative process, and 5 U.S.C. §  552(b)(6) individuals’ right to privacy.   See Bayala v.



U.S. Dep’t of Homeland Security, 72 F. Supp. 3d 260, 265-66 (D.D.C. 2014) rev’d on other grounds,



827 F.3d 31 (D.C Cir. 2016) (enumeration of applicable FOIA exemptions by reference to statutory



citation in letter sufficient to meet obligation that the agency provide “the reasons” for its


determinations).  At the administrative stage, NMFS properly identified the exemptions it was claiming



with respect to the redacted documents at issue.  The agency’s omission of a missing reference to (b)(5)



on a single redaction box on a one page email in NMFS’s release, does not constitute a failure by the



agency of complying with FOIA obligations.  See ECF No. 12-15, Hudak Decl. Ex. 5 at 15.  This is


particularly so, when, as discussed above, the agency has met its obligations by listing the relevant


FOIA exemptions in its February 13, 2017 letter and when the agency may assert new exemptions at the



district court level, not previously asserted at the administrative level.  See Young, 972 F.2d at 538–39



(agency does not waive FOIA exemptions by not raising them during the administrative process); Gula,



699 F. Supp. at 959 n. 2 (agency may assert new FOIA exemptions at the district court that were not


previously asserted at the administrative level). 


At the administrative stage, an “agency is not required to produce a document like a Vaughn



index, which district courts typically rely on in adjudicating summary judgment motions in FOIA case.” 


CREW, 711 F.3d at 187 n. 4.  Plaintiff admits that “[t]he law is clear that a Vaughn index is not


required” at the administrative stage, see Pl. Opp. & Reply at 14.  Although plaintiff asserts that it is not


asking the Court to issue an order requiring that NMFS issue a Vaughn index at the administrative stage,



5 In Defendant’s Cross Motion for Summary Judgment, mistakenly stated that the February 13,

2017 letter identified the number of pages collected for processing.  This error is immaterial as FOIA

does not require that an agency provide total number of pages collected for processing. 
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the information that it contends the agency must provide at the administrative stage, is, in substance, that


which would be included in a Vaughn index at summary judgment:  an explanation for withholding



information, an explanation for what foreseeable harm to a protected interest would result from


disclosures.  See Pl. Opp. and Reply at 10-11. 


Plaintiff identifies the following alleged failings of the agency’s February 13, 2017 final


response:  of the 54 documents produced with redactions, one redaction box on a single one-page email


did not contain an exemption basis; two redaction boxes simply listed (b)(5), and the response letter



failed to identify the number of pages (as opposed to the number of documents) collected for processing;


the number of pages in the 54 documents that contained redaction; how many were withheld under the



attorney-client privilege; how many were withheld under the deliberative process privilege; and how



many were withheld under Exemption 6.   Plaintiff does not cite a single case that supports its


contentions.  Moreover, through the agency’s document release, the agency provided plaintiff most of



the above-listed information:  the number of pages in the 54 documents that contained redaction, and on



all but three documents, the number of withholdings under the various exemptions claimed.  Plaintiff



was informed that the agency located 309 responsive records, and the disposition of those records. 


Declaratory judgment is not warranted because, as discussed above, plaintiff misstates the law and the



agency’s obligations at the administrative stage. 


2. Plaintiff’s Claims Are Moot


(i) Withholding under Exemption 6 and 7(C) 


The issue of whether Tanner’s name and contact information was properly withheld on two



emails under Exemption 6 and 7(C) is moot.  The agency has provided an unredacted version of the



emails.  Graff Decl. Ex. 2.  NOAA has determined that this withholding is no longer necessary.  Id. ¶ 17. 


This is not a concession by the agency on the propriety of the withholding.  FOIA “exemptions are



permissive, and an agency may voluntarily release information that it would be permitted to withhold



under the FOIA exemptions.” Mobil Oil Corp. v. U.S. E.P.A., 879 F.2d 698, 700 (9th Cir. 1989). 


Plaintiff has failed to explain any grounds to justify declaratory relief on an issue that is now



moot.  The limitations upon issuance of a declaratory judgment reflect concerns similar to those



underlying the case and controversy limitation of Article III.  See United States v. State of Wash., 759
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F.2d 1353, 1357 (9th Cir. 1985).  “Declaratory relief should be denied when it will neither serve a useful


purpose in clarifying and settling the legal relations in issue nor terminate the proceedings and afford



relief from the uncertainty and controversy faced by the parties.”  Id.; see  Olagues v. Russoniello, 770



F2d 791, 803 (9th Cir. 1985) (“allegations of a subjective ‘chill’ are not an adequate substitute for a



claim of a specific present objective harm or a threat of specific future harm” sufficient to establish



standing).  As plaintiff acknowledges, the information at issue – Agent Tanner’s name and email address


–was redacted on the two subject emails, but released on another version of one of the subject emails. 


See Linn Decl. at 3, Exs. A-D; Second Graff Decl. ¶ 5.  It is undisputed that plaintiff has had Tanner’s


information since the agency’s February 2017 response to the Request.  It is also undisputed that the



agency has now released the two subject emails without any redaction.  Graff Decl. Ex. 2.  Accordingly,



there is no existing controversy for this Court to decide. 


(ii) Determination on Administrative Appeal


Any FOIA claim premised on DOC’s failure to provide the final appeal determination is moot;


the agency has provided its determination, and indeed, had offered to provide the response without the



need for the present Motion.  Wang Decl. ¶ 5, Ex. 1.  When a government agency fails to meet the



timelines set in the FOIA, filing suit provides a remedy by compelling the agency to act.  But once an



agency has responded to the request the issue of timeliness becomes moot.  See Voinche v. FBI, 999



F.2d 962, 963 (5th Cir. 1993); Tracy v. Department of Justice, 117 F.Supp.3d 1, 5 (D.D.C. July 31,



2015).  Mere delay in issuing a final determination on plaintiff’s appeal does not warrant declaratory



judgment.  “Even if the agency does not adhere to FOIA's explicit timelines,” the consequence for a



delay is simply that the agency cannot use the administrative exhaustion requirement to prevent parties


from filing a case in court.  CREW, 711 F.3d at 189. 


No exception to the mootness doctrine applies here.  While an agency’s pattern and practice of



delayed responses to FOIA requests by the same plaintiff may provide an exception to the mootness


doctrine, plaintiff have failed to demonstrate that such a pattern exists here.  Cf. Biodiversity Legal


Found. v. Badgley, 309 F.3d 1166, 1174 (9th Cir. 2002) (explaining that exception to mootness doctrine



requires that the challenged action will affect the plaintiff in the future).  Here, plaintiff alleges a single



instance where DOC delayed issuance of its response to plaintiff’s administrative appeal.  Beyond



Case 3:18-cv-00888-JSC   Document 33   Filed 06/22/18   Page 19 of 20








DEFENDANT’S REPLY ISO CROSS-MSJ


CASE NO. 18-CV-888 JSC 15



1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


speculative a statement that plaintiff will “almost certainly” submit FOIA requests to NMFS in the



future, Reply Linn Decl. ¶ 10, plaintiff does not provide any evidence that EcoRights will submit a



FOIA request to NOAA, that EcoRights will administratively appeal NOAA’s response, and that


NOAA’s final determination on that appeal will be delayed.   Instead, plaintiff appears to suggest that it


need not demonstrate a pattern and practice relevant to EcoRights’ FOIA requests, and the specific



FOIA violations alleged in this lawsuit, because of a 2015 order of injunctive relief against NMFS. 


There is no legal basis for plaintiff’s argument.  The 2015 order related to a different plaintiff, different


FOIA requests, and a different FOIA violation – the agency’s failure to respond to multiple FOIA



requests submitted by Our Children’s Earth Foundation – not at issue here.  Our Children’s Earth



Foundation v. National Marine Fisheries Service 85 F. Supp. 3d 1075 (N.D. Cal. 2015) (OCE I) and



Our Children’s Earth Foundation v. National Marine Fisheries Service, Case Nos. 14-4365 SC, 14-


1130 SC, 2015 WL 4452136, (N.D. Cal. July 20, 2015) (OCE II).  Plaintiff cites no caselaw supporting



this position, that going forward, any plaintiff in a FOIA lawsuit against NMFS, may obtain declaratory



relief without the need to show a pattern and practice, regardless of the FOIA violation alleged. 


3. No Injunctive Relief is Warranted


In deciding whether to grant an injunction, the court should consider the effect on the public of



disclosure or nondisclosure, the good faith of any intent to comply expressed by the agency, and the



character of past violations.   Long v. IRS, 693 F.2d 907, 909 (9th Cir. 1982).  Here, plaintiff alleges one



instance where DOC delayed issuance of its response to plaintiff’s administrative appeal.  NMFS


showed good faith in responding to plaintiff’s FOIA request, promptly releasing its final response.  DOC


promptly reviewed the issues raised in plaintiff’s appeal and requested further searches be conducted. 


III. CONCLUSION



For the foregoing reasons, defendant respectfully responses that the Court enter judgment in



favor of NMFS and deny plaintiff’s motion for summary judgment. 


DATED: June 22, 2018     Respectfully submitted,
        ALEX G. TSE    
        Acting United States Attorney 
   
        _/s/_______________

        JENNIFER S WANG
        Assistant United States Attorney
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Tracking Number Type Track Requester Submitted



DOC-NOAA-2018-001367 Request Simple Celeste Manapsal 05/14/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001299 Request Simple Benita Whitfield 05/01/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001263 Request Simple Rose Santos 04/21/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000803 Request Simple Rose Santos 02/21/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000784 Request Simple Sean Ahern 11/10/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000670 Request Simple Rose Santos 01/31/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000604 Request Simple Mary McCullough 01/20/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000511 Request Simple Rose Santos 12/30/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-000298 Request Complex Charles Mouton 11/30/2016



DOC-NOAA-2018-000536 Request Simple Michael C. Ryan 01/06/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000765 Request Simple Naja Girard 02/01/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000303 Request Simple Ronald B. Hardwig 11/17/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-001419 Request Simple Daniel Bladele 04/27/2018



DOC-NOAA-2017-002002 Request Simple Daniel Bladele 09/15/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-001090 Request Simple Oryx Gazella 03/30/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001280 Request Simple John R. Leek 04/25/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001372 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 05/14/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001386 Request Complex Jared Cox 05/15/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001427 Request Simple Spencer Nathan Thal 05/22/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001422 Request Simple David Abell 04/18/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001289 Request Simple Sumona Majumdar 04/26/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001294 Request Simple Nathaniel Benforado 04/24/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001341 Request Simple Jesse Coleman 04/24/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001254 Request Simple Georgia Hancock 03/29/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000918 Request Simple Hallie G. Templeton 03/12/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001005 Request Simple Anne Philbrick 03/25/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000948 Request Simple Hallie G. Templeton 03/15/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000881 Request Simple Jeffrey Leary 02/27/2018



DOC-NOAA-2017-001190 Request Simple ERIC R. BOLINDER 05/09/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000763 Request Complex Adam Carlesco 02/14/2018



DOC-NOAA-2017-001992 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 09/26/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001991 Request Complex Thomas C. Sullivan 06/23/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000459 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 12/18/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000587 Request Simple Hallie G. Templeton 01/17/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000126 Request Complex HASSELMAN, JAN 10/18/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000070 Request Complex Cathy Readinger 10/03/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000422 Request Simple Philip N. Brown 12/08/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000318 Request Simple Sarah N. Emerson 11/21/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000183 Request Complex Sean Sherman 10/25/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001974 Request Complex Ryan P. Mulvey 09/21/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001798 Request Complex Brett Sommermeyer 08/31/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001741 Request Complex Vivian Wang 08/22/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001606 Request Complex Molly Masterton 07/26/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001394 Request Complex Ivy N. Fredrickson 06/19/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001316 Request Complex Chris Saeger 06/07/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001411 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 06/22/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001431 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 06/27/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001391 Request Complex Elizabeth A. Mitchell 06/16/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001092 Request Complex Brettny E. Hardy 04/26/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001093 Request Complex Brettny E. Hardy 04/26/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001094 Request Complex Brettny E. Hardy 04/26/2017








DOC-NOAA-2017-001220 Request Complex Nathan Eagle 05/16/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001217 Request Complex Nathan Eagle 05/16/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001219 Request Complex Nathan Eagle 05/16/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-000994 Request Complex Mariel Combs 04/10/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-000304 Request Complex Bryn Blomberg 11/30/2016



DOC-NOAA-2017-000170 Request Complex Kara McKenna 11/09/2016



DOC-NOAA-2016-001763 Request Complex Thomas Knudson 09/14/2016



DOC-NOAA-2016-000423 Request Complex Ryan P. Mulvey 12/21/2015



DOC-NOAA-2018-001392 Request Simple Abigail Smith 05/16/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001393 Request Simple Ivy N. Fredrickson 05/16/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001252 Request Simple John Greenewald, Jr. 04/09/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000802 Request Simple Patrick Martin 10/24/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000781 Request Simple Russ Kick 01/05/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000428 Request Complex Ryan P. Mulvey 12/11/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-001336 Request Simple Fred Millar 04/26/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000572 Request Simple Jeff Ruch 01/16/2018



DOC-NOAA-2017-000414 Request Complex Arnold &amp; Porter Kaye Scholer LLP01/09/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-000572 Request Simple Karen MacDonald 02/07/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000798 Request Complex Jonathan Clark 11/04/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001782 Request Simple Christine M. Walker 08/29/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000202 Request Complex Kaitlyn Shannon 11/01/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000273 Request Complex Andrew G. Ogden 11/14/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001678 Request Complex James Zeiler 08/07/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001009 Request Complex Edward Duhe 03/31/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001676 Request Complex Vincent C. Catania 08/09/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001569 Request Complex Sarah N. Emerson 07/19/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000816 Request Simple Susan Carroll 10/25/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000561 Request Simple Stephanie Kuzydym 01/12/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000580 Referral Simple Allan Blutstein 12/22/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-000790 Request Complex Brian Gaffney 03/14/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001059 Request Simple Richard Hirn 04/18/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-000768 Request Complex Julio C. Gomez 03/10/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-001291 Request Complex Heather Coleman 04/27/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001106 Request Complex Hallie G. Templeton 04/03/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001214 Request Simple Jason Bien 04/12/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000671 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 02/01/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000638 Request Complex Nicole Mason 01/11/2018



DOC-NOAA-2017-001796 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 08/31/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001975 Request Complex Margaret Townsend 08/31/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001954 Request Simple Alex Veeneman 09/28/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001565 Request Complex Charles Seife 06/19/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001523 Request Complex Brian L. Kahn 07/14/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-001391 Request Simple Michael L. Johnson 05/16/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001058 Request Simple Ryan P. Mulvey 03/28/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001163 Request Simple Michael L. Johnson 04/05/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000204 Request Simple Nicole Mason 11/01/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-001022 Request Simple Michael L. Johnson 03/27/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000892 Request Simple Florian C. Rabitz 03/06/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001322 Request Simple Liz Charboneau 05/03/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-001143 Request Simple Margaret Townsend 04/04/2018



DOC-NOAA-2017-001756 Request Simple Jeff Tollefson 08/24/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001734 Request Simple Andrew C. Revkin 08/21/2017








DOC-NOAA-2017-001739 Request Simple Lauren N. Evans 08/22/2017



DOC-NOAA-2017-001722 Request Simple Michael Ravnitzky 08/21/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-001266 Request Simple Todd B. Kimberlain 04/23/2018



DOC-NOAA-2018-000622 Request Simple Patricia Mann 12/28/2017



DOC-NOAA-2018-000554 Request Simple Terra Mowatt 01/08/2018








Assigned To Due Days Backlogged



AGO 06/13/2018 13



AGO 05/30/2018 23



AGO 05/21/2018 29



AGO 03/26/2018 69



AGO 03/19/2018 74



AGO 03/13/2018 78



AGO 02/22/2018 91



AGO 02/08/2018 100



AGO 01/13/2017 325



CAO 02/08/2018 20



CAO 03/29/2018 66



CAO 12/20/2017 133



LA 06/27/2018 3



LA 03/27/2018 68



NESDIS 05/02/2018 42



NMFS 05/23/2018 1



NMFS 06/28/2018 2



NMFS 06/28/2018 2



NMFS 06/21/2018 7



NMFS 06/20/2018 8



NMFS 05/30/2018 9



NMFS 06/13/2018 13



NMFS 06/12/2018 14



NMFS 06/04/2018 21



NMFS 04/26/2018 33



NMFS 05/31/2018 39



NMFS 04/26/2018 46



NMFS 04/02/2018 64



NMFS 06/22/2017 65



NMFS 03/29/2018 66



NMFS 09/14/2018 67



NMFS 03/20/2018 73



NMFS 09/20/2018 78



NMFS 03/07/2018 82



NMFS 05/18/2018 91



NMFS 12/14/2017 100



NMFS 01/16/2018 117



NMFS 01/09/2018 121



NMFS 12/13/2017 138



NMFS 11/21/2017 153



NMFS 10/25/2017 171



NMFS 10/06/2017 183



NMFS 09/21/2017 201



NMFS 08/11/2017 208



NMFS 07/21/2017 212



NMFS 08/10/2017 222



NMFS 07/28/2017 229



NMFS 08/01/2017 230



NMFS 07/03/2017 251



NMFS 07/03/2017 251



NMFS 07/03/2017 251








NMFS 08/16/2017 255



NMFS 06/20/2017 259



NMFS 06/20/2017 259



NMFS 05/09/2017 272



NMFS 01/13/2017 321



NMFS 01/05/2017 374



NMFS 10/27/2016 420



NMFS 02/04/2016 521



NOAA FOIA 06/19/2018 9



NOAA FOIA 06/19/2018 9



NOAA FOIA 05/21/2018 29



NOAA FOIA 03/21/2018 72



NOAA FOIA 03/19/2018 74



NOAA FOIA 02/01/2018 105



NOS 06/06/2018 18



NOS 02/21/2018 28



NOS 03/07/2017 30



NOS 03/10/2017 47



NOS 03/21/2018 72



NOS 09/27/2017 97



NOS 02/08/2018 105



NOS 12/14/2017 130



NOS 10/02/2017 154



NOS 05/23/2017 159



NOS 09/19/2017 196



NOS 09/05/2017 206



NWS 03/26/2018 69



NWS 02/14/2018 83



NWS 01/24/2018 111



NWS 04/17/2017 136



NWS 05/19/2017 236



NWS 04/12/2017 296



OAR 05/30/2018 23



OAR 05/29/2018 24



OAR 05/10/2018 36



OAR 03/14/2018 77



OAR 02/26/2018 89



OAR 10/25/2017 152



OAR 10/30/2017 168



OC 11/08/2017 13



OC 08/30/2017 209



OC 08/16/2017 219



OGC 06/19/2018 9



OGC 04/25/2018 22



OGC 05/14/2018 34



OGC 12/01/2017 38



OGC 04/25/2018 47



OGC 04/09/2018 59



USEC 06/06/2018 18



USEC 05/29/2018 20



USEC 09/22/2017 193



USEC 09/20/2017 195








USEC 09/20/2017 195



USEC 09/19/2017 196



WFMO 05/30/2018 23



WFMO 02/27/2018 88



WFMO 02/06/2018 102









Tracking Number Type Requester



DOC-NOAA-2017-000257 Request Christopher Hudak



DOC-NOAA-2015-000190 Request Miyo Sakashita



DOC-NOAA-2018-001441 Request Gordon Levack



DOC-NOAA-2018-001413 Request Erin Cosgrove



DOC-NOAA-2018-001369 Request PAUL A. KAMPMEIER



DOC-NOAA-2018-001401 Request Peter M. Frost



DOC-NOAA-2018-001270 Request Tom DePersia



DOC-NOAA-2018-001253 Request Kristopher Jones



DOC-NOAA-2018-001197 Request John R. Leek



DOC-NOAA-2018-001063 Request Caleb Jones



DOC-NOAA-2018-000986 Request Raymond Clarke



DOC-NOAA-2018-000768 Request JACKSON MINASIAN



DOC-NOAA-2018-000727 Request Tia Justice



DOC-NOAA-2018-000229 Request Nicole Mason



DOC-NOAA-2017-000058 Request Christopher T. Clack



DOC-NOAA-2017-000034 Request Christopher T. Clack



DOC-NOAA-2018-001255 Request Diamond Henry



DOC-NOAA-2018-000607 Request David E. Holcomb








Requester Organization Submitted Received Assigned To



Environmental Advocates 12/06/2016 12/06/2016 NMFS



Center for Biological Diversity 11/02/2014 11/03/2014 NMFS



05/24/2018 05/24/2018 NMFS



Delaware Riverkeeper Network 05/21/2018 05/21/2018 NMFS



Kampmeier &amp; Knutsen, PLLC 05/10/2018 05/10/2018 NMFS



Western Environmental Law Center 05/01/2018 05/01/2018 NMFS



Bigfish II Sportfishing Charters 04/23/2018 04/23/2018 NMFS



04/19/2018 04/19/2018 NMFS



San Diego Council of Divers 04/10/2018 04/10/2018 NMFS



Associated Press 03/26/2018 03/26/2018 NMFS



03/21/2018 03/21/2018 NMFS



MINASIAN, MEITH, SOARES, SEXTON &amp; COOPER, LLP02/14/2018 02/14/2018 NMFS



Logansport Historical Preservation Committee 02/11/2018 02/12/2018 NWS



11/03/2017 11/03/2017 OAR



10/13/2016 10/13/2016 OAR



10/11/2016 10/11/2016 OAR



Michigan State University 03/26/2018 03/26/2018 OAR



01/23/2018 01/23/2018 OAR








Perfected? Due Closed Date Status Dispositions



Yes 02/15/2017 06/28/2018 Closed Partial grant/partial denial



Yes 12/05/2014 06/14/2018 Closed Other - Admin close - still interested letter



Yes 07/12/2018 06/28/2018 Closed Full grant



Yes 06/19/2018 06/18/2018 Closed Full grant



Yes 06/27/2018 06/11/2018 Closed Full grant



Yes 07/03/2018 06/18/2018 Closed Full grant



Yes 05/21/2018 06/18/2018 Closed Fee-related reason



Yes 06/05/2018 06/04/2018 Closed All records referred to another agency



Yes 06/22/2018 06/21/2018 Closed Partial grant/partial denial



Yes 04/25/2018 06/01/2018 Closed Full denial based on exemptions



Yes 04/23/2018 06/01/2018 Closed Full grant



Yes 06/07/2018 06/07/2018 Closed Fee-related reason



Yes 03/14/2018 06/20/2018 Closed Fee-related reason



Yes 12/05/2017 06/15/2018 Closed Partial grant/partial denial



Yes 11/25/2016 06/06/2018 Closed Partial grant/partial denial



Yes 11/09/2016 06/06/2018 Closed Partial grant/partial denial



Yes 04/24/2018 06/15/2018 Closed Full grant



Yes 02/22/2018 06/07/2018 Closed No records








Detail



EcoRights requests that "You" please provide the following "documents": 1 . Any and all "documents" "related to" the "Chr



•    All documents and communications related to the National Marine Fisheries Service’s (NMFS) listing determinations o



Location and status of harbor seal Bo ... has number 67 in marine mammal inventory base



Any and all requests for technical assistance for projects or initiatives that would impact the Atlantic sturgeon in the Delaware River;



This is a request for documents and information pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U .S.C. &sect; 552, made on behalf



On August 5, 2011, NOAA's then-&shy;‐Northwest Region released the "Upper Willamette River Conservation and Recovery Plan for Chinook



This is a formal data request for information pertaining to the catches of commercial vessels allowed access to closed areas



This request for documents is made pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act. The request is related to the Maintenan



I submitted an Incidental Harassment Authorization request to Office of Protected Resources on 7/16/17 concerning pinnipeds



Observer logs for F/V Princess Hawaii for its latest (and last) trip



We are seeking catch and related data on South Pacific Tuna Corporation’s US Treaty licensed purse seine vessels for a



1. All records or documents, electronic, written, or otherwise, related or referring to Deer Creek, MiLL Creek, Antelope Creek, Stanford Vina, Stanford Vina Ranch Irrigation Company, Los



This is a request for all documentation (up to and including studies, research, and notations) concerning the affects



1. Official record of panel notes and recommendations ofNOAA's 2016 Leadership Competencies Development Program



UPDATED DESCRIPTION 10/26/16: All emails (and attachments) that have been received by or sent by the following NOAA employees



Emails (and attachments) that have been received by or sent by the following NOAA employees (over the course of



Dear FOIA Officer: This is a request under the Freedom of Information Act. I request that a copy of the following documents



All radar data captured by the National Weather Radar Testbed (Phased Array Site, Norman, OK) on May 20, 2013 from








to" the "Chris Yates email" concerning input he, and any NMFS West Coast Region staff provided to NOAA HQ on



rminations on the proposal to list 66 coral species and to reclassify elkhorn and staghorn corals under the Endange



 sturgeon in the Delaware River; Any and all requests for informal consultation for projects or initiatives that would impact the



 Information Act, 5 U .S.C. &sect; 552, made on behalf of Citizens Against the Barge Terminal (CABT). CABT is a non-profit corporation working to protect the Columbia River and associated riparian areas, businesses, and neighborhoods



 Willamette River Conservation and Recovery Plan for Chinook Salmon and Steelhead"; in Oregon. The Recovery Plan at page 11-&shy;‐9 cites



 to closed areas during 2017 and 2018 with EFPs issued by GARFO. The information I am requesting is: A. The date(s)



e Maintenance Dredging of Under Berths and Fairways at Emery Cove Marina Condominium performed by Curtin M



 on 7/16/17 concerning pinnipeds in La Jolla California which should have been reviewed within 45 days and assigned a publication number, or



vessels for an analysis that we are under-going related to Marine Stewardship Council (MSC) certification. As the re



 Creek, MiLL Creek, Antelope Creek, Stanford Vina, Stanford Vina Ranch Irrigation Company, Los Molinos Mutual Water Company, Deer



 concerning the affects and effects of wind turbines and commercial/industrial wind farms on radar used by NOAA/NWS for any and all purposes, with a primary interest in weather



 Development Program (LCDP X) for Oceanic and Atmospheric Research (OAR); 2. Official record of employee recommendations



 that have been received by or sent by the following NOAA employees since April of 2016 to the present:  1. Melinda Marquis [Melinda.Marquis@noaa.gov]



 (over the course of 2016); 1. Melinda Marquis [Melinda.marquis@noaa.gov], 2. Kevin Kelleher [Kevin.Kelleher@noaa.gov],



 the following documents be provided to me: the plans and additional information regarding the Detroit River Reefs restoration project under the Habitat plan for the Detroit River AOC



 on May 20, 2013 from 2:00PM CDT until 4:00PM CDT. (Essentially the EF-5 tornado event) This data requested would include (but not be limited to)








OAA HQ on the impact of the "Stockdale Memo." This request is only for the input on the impact of the "Stockdale M



he Endangered Species Act.   •    All documents and communications to and from all NMFS staff, including divisions



 that would impact the Atlantic sturgeon in the Delaware River; NMFS/NOAA responses to requests for informal consultation for projects



 a non-profit corporation working to protect the Columbia River and associated riparian areas, businesses, and neighborhoods from Columbia River Carbonates' proposal to build a barge terminal at 1903 Dike Road in Woodland, Washington. CABT's



9 cites a document entitled &quot;Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW). 2001b. Fisheries management and evaluation plan -&shy;



 requesting is: A. The date(s) these vessels were allowed access to the closed areas B. A breakout, by area (i.e, WGOM closed area, Cashes



 by Curtin Marine in 2017 located in Emeryville, CA (“Project”). Please provide me with copies of the following recor



 and assigned a publication number, or returned for any needed revisions. It was taken up by Jolie Harrison but then stopped. I am



n. As the result of recent changes in MSC fishery standards on compartmentalization, it requires all fishing gears o



 Company, Deer Creek Irrigation District, SVRIC, LMMWC, DCID, curtailment, curtailment orders, Deer Creek instream



 on radar used by NOAA/NWS for any and all purposes, with a primary interest in weather prediction, storm mapping/tracking over populated and un-populated areas



 employee recommendations to the OAR Assistant Administrator (AA), Craig N. McLean, in March 2016 from the 3 member



 [Melinda.Marquis@noaa.gov] 2. Kevin Kelleher [Kevin.Kelleher@noaa.gov] 3. Jennifer Mahoney [Jennifer.Mahoney@noaa.gov] 4. Stanley Benjamin [Stan.Benjamin@noaa.gov]



2. Kevin Kelleher [Kevin.Kelleher@noaa.gov], 3. Jennifer Mahoney [jennifer.mahoney@noaa.gov], that pertain to the following subjects; 1. The NEWS [National Energy with Weather



 restoration project under the Habitat plan for the Detroit River AOC.



 data requested would include (but not be limited to) Base Reflectivity, Base Velocity, Storm Relative Velocity and correlation coefficient radar products








tockdale Memo" that Chris Yates provided to NOAA HQ and the input on the impact of the "Stockdale Memo" the N



ng divisions beyond the Protected Resources division, concerning the petitioned, proposed, and listed corals  



 for informal consultation for projects or initiatives that would impact the Atlantic sturgeon in the Delaware River; Any and all requests



 Columbia River Carbonates' proposal to build a barge terminal at 1903 Dike Road in Woodland, Washington. CABT's



 management and evaluation plan -&shy;‐ Upper Willamette River winter steelhead in sport fisheries in the upper



 B. A breakout, by area (i.e, WGOM closed area, Cashes Ledge closure area etc.) of the following data: 1. The number of trips made 2. The number



owing records: 1 . All documents relating to any violation of statutes, regulations, or permits in conjunction with the P



 taken up by Jolie Harrison but then stopped. I am requesting electronic copies of all correspondence in or out of that Office concerning my numberless



ng gears on the fishing trip, no matter it's FAD/associated or free school, to be certified to maintain MSC status. In



 instream flows, Mill Creek instream flows, Antelope Creek instream flows, Deer Creek emergency regulations, Mill Creek



 mapping/tracking over populated and un-populated areas including hazards, injuries, and any/all cases where turbines/wind farms have impeded the function of



 the 3 member panel through Carolyn McDonald, OAR Representative; 3. The employee names that OAR submitted to NOAA Leadership in March 2016; 4. Emails



4. Stanley Benjamin [Stan.Benjamin@noaa.gov]   That pertains to the following subjects: 1.    The reasons



1. The NEWS [National Energy with Weather Systems] project, 2. The future direction of the NEWS project, 3. Plans



 Relative Velocity and correlation coefficient radar products at all angles scanned for that two hour window of time.  Updated request: 2/20/18








emo" the NMFS West Coast Region staff provided to NOAA HQ and is not a broader request for other documents



orals  See attached for full request and fee waiver request.



Any and all requests for formal consultation for projects or initiatives that would impact the Atlantic sturgeon in the Delaware River;



 Columbia River Carbonates' proposal to build a barge terminal at 1903 Dike Road in Woodland, Washington. CABT's mailing address is 1881 Dike Road, Woodland, Washington 98674. CABT does not intend to sell or otherwise make a profit from



 in the upper Willamette Basin. Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife, Portland, OR.; First, please provide us



 made 2. The number of boats that fished 3. The number of pounds of Haddock retained and sold on each trip and the value 4. The number



n with the Project. 2. All documents relating to complaints, fines, or Notice of Violations regarding the Project.



 that Office concerning my numberless IHA request. That would be letters, emails, notes, reports to or from Jolie Harrision or her staff, such as



C status. In a previous request – we sought and obtained information on the free school portion of our fishing activit



 emergency regulations, Mill Creek emergency regulations, Antelope Creek emergency regulations, Gretchen Umlauf, Curtis



 have impeded the function of radar. This request also encompasses any and all documentation (up to and including studies, res



 that OAR submitted to NOAA Leadership in March 2016; 4. Emails between Craig McLean and Gary Matlock on the LCDP in March 2016; 5. Emails



   The reasons behind the cancellation of the NEWS (National Energy with Weather System) project  2.    The decision making process



3. Plans of the NEWS project after October 1, 2016, 4. CIRES employee Christopher T M Clack, 5. Budget information on the Wind Boundary Layer [WBL] or Atmospheric



Updated request: 2/20/18  There was a Multi-Function Phased Array Radar site operational in Norman, Oklahoma on the date I referenced above (Also known at the








documents related to the "Stockdale memo." T



 sturgeon in the Delaware River; NMFS/NOAA responses to reques



 not intend to sell or otherwise make a profit from any documents disclosed in connec



 Fish and Wildlife, Portland, OR.; First, please provide us with a copy of the referenced fisheries management and evaluation plan for winter steelhead in sport fisheries



 retained and sold on each trip and the value 4. The number of Haddock discarded on each trip 5. The



 Jolie Harrision or her staff, such as Amy Sloan or J



hing activities. We ar



 emergency regulations, Gretchen Umlauf, Curtis Milliron, Patricia Bratcher, Trish Bratcher, Jason Rob



 any and all documentation (up to and including studies, res



 on the LCDP in March 2016; 5. Emails between Craig McLean and NOAA Leadership on the LCDP in March 2



   The decision making process of the cancellation



5. Budget information on the Wind Boundary Layer [WBL] or Atmospheric



Norman, Oklahoma on the date I referenced above (Also known at the time as the National Weather








 steelhead in sport fisheries in the upper Willamette River basin. Second, please provide us with any NOAA documents, analyses, or








 with any NOAA documents, analyses, or correspondence to evaluate a fisheries management and evaluation plan for winter steelhead in sport fisheries








 steelhead in sport fisheries in the upper Willamette River bas
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Organization 


Open Requests 


Previous Month End Incoming Requests Closed Requests 


Open Requests Current 


Month End Backlog 21-120 days Backlog 121-364 days 


Backlog 365 or 


more days 


Total


Backlog



AGO 11 4 0 13 8 1 0 9



CAO 3 0 0 4 2 1 0 3



CFO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



CIO/FOIA 6 2 0 7 6 0 0 6



GC 6 0 0 7 6 0 0 6



IA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



LA 3 0 0 3 2 0 0 2



NESDIS 3 1 0 3 1 0 0 1



NMFS 60 14 12 73 22 19 3 44



NOS 12 1 0 15 7 5 0 12



NWS 7 0 1 7 3 3 0 6



OAR 13 0 5 9 5 2 0 7



OMAO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



OC 4 0 0 4 1 2 0 3



PPI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



USEC 6 2 0 8 2 4 0 6



WFMO 5 0 0 5 3 0 0 3



NOAA Totals 139 24 18 158 68 37 3 108
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 



Yes, call them Draft Minutes as we do with the SAB minutes. 



On 6/16/2017 3:17 PM, Laura Newcomb - NOAA Affiliate wrote: 



Do you want any type of designation on the website to indicate the minutes have not yet 



been voted on and accepted by the members? 



On Fri, Jun 16, 2017 at 3:14 PM, Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



<cynthia.decker@noaa.gov> wrote: 



Great!  An accomplishment by the end of the week! 



On 6/16/2017 3:11 PM, Laura Newcomb - NOAA Affiliate wrote: 



great I can do that. 



Thanks! 



Laura 



On Fri, Jun 16, 2017 at 3:09 PM, Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



<cynthia.decker@noaa.gov> wrote: 



I don't have the document open in front of me but can we change "vote" 



to "agreed"?  If that makes sense in terms of English, then make that 



change and label the document Final (filename and Header) and let's call



it done. 



On 6/16/2017 3:07 PM, Laura Newcomb - NOAA Affiliate wrote: 



Hi Cynthia, 



The members did not send any changes or corrections. With 



regards to Richard's comments, on the word "vote" would 



you like to change or keep as is? 



Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



From: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 4:21 PM 



To: Laura Newcomb - NOAA Affiliate 



Subject: Re: Comments on draft minutes of March meeting 




mailto:cynthia.decker@noaa.gov

mailto:cynthia.decker@noaa.gov





I will work with IT to post after your final approval. 



Thanks, 



Laura 



On Tue, Jun 6, 2017 at 1:28 PM, Moss, Richard H



<rhm@pnnl.gov> wrote: 



Thanks for putting together a good set of minutes. In order to



get things moving, I have provided a high-level review



focused on the summary and sections of the detailed minutes



related to our report. Please see attached. I didn ’t propose 



alternative language for different forms of the word “vote” 



that appear in 3 instances. Since we operate by consensus, I



wasn ’t sure that word is appropriate, but I leave that to you to 



decide.



From my perspective, this is ready to circulate to members



with an appropriate deadline for comment that will still leave



us enough time to post the final minutes within the required



deadline.



Again, many thanks, 



Richard 



--


Richard H Moss 



Senior Scientist 



Joint Global Change Research Institute 



5825 University Research Court, Suite 3500 



College Park, MD 20740 



E-Mail: rhm@pnnl.gov 



Phone: 301-314-6711 



Fax: 301-314-6719 




mailto:rhm@pnnl.gov

mailto:rhm@pnl.gov
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--
Laura Newcomb, PhD 



Program Analyst 



Contractor – NOAA/OAR/LCI - Advisory Committee for the Sustained



National Cl imate Assessment 



CollabraLink Technologies, Inc . 



Phone: (301) 734-1274 



laura.newcomb@noaa.gov  |  http: //www.collabralink.com 



--


****************************** *************** 



Cynthia J.  Decker,  Ph. D 



Executive Director 



NOAA Science Advisory Board 



and 



NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



SSMC3,  Room 11230 



1315 East-West Hwy 



Silver Spring,  MD  20910 



Phone 301-734-1156 



Fax      301-713-1459 



Email:  cynthia. decker@noaa. gov 



****************************** ************** 



--
Laura Newcomb, PhD 



Program Analyst 



Contractor – NOAA/OAR/LCI - Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate



Assessment 



CollabraLink Technologies, Inc . 



Phone: (301) 734-1274 



laura.newcomb@noaa.gov  |  http: //www.collabralink.com 



--


****************************** *************** 



Cynthia J.  Decker,  Ph. D 



Executive Director 



NOAA Science Advisory Board 



and 



NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



SSMC3,  Room 11230 



1315 East-West Hwy 



Silver Spring,  MD  20910 



Phone 301-734-1156 



Fax      301-713-1459 



Email:  cynthia. decker@noaa. gov 



****************************** ************** 
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 



--
Laura Newcomb, PhD 



Program Analyst 



Contractor – NOAA/OAR/LCI - Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessment 



CollabraLink Technologies, Inc . 



Phone: (301) 734-1274 



laura.newcomb@noaa.gov  |  http://www.collabralink.com 



--


********************************************* 



Cynthia J.  Decker,  Ph. D 



Executive Director 



NOAA Science Advisory Board 



and 



NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



SSMC3,  Room 11230 



1315 East-West Hwy 



Silver Spring,  MD  20910 



Phone 301 -734-1156 



Fax      301 -713-1459 



Email:  cynthia. decker@noaa. gov 



******************************************** 
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		Re Comments on draft minutes of March meeting






 



We have a date!  Go ahead and let the FAC know. 



-------- Forwarded Message --------


Let’ s go with the 27th.



--


Richard H Moss 



Senior Scientist 



Joint Global Change Research Institute 



5825 University Research Court,  Suite 3500 



College Park,  MD 20740 



E-Mail:  rhm@pnnl. gov <mailto: rhm@pnl. gov> 



Phone:  301 -314-6711 



Fax:  301 -314-6719 



On 6/16/17,  1: 51 PM,  "Cynthia Decker -  NOAA Federal" <cynthia. decker@noaa. gov> 



wrote:  



   Richard,  



   We havea quorum of nine people confirmed for the SNCA FAC administrative



   call on June 27.   There were 10 people confirmed for the June 23 call



   time.   It is up to you to decide which date to pick.   As I told you,  I



   have worked it out with my sister to take the call from the car on my



   mobile.   We will hopefully have connectivity during the drive but if it



   drops out,  we can turn around and go back until we pick it up again.



   One other factor to consider as that the topic teams have j ust barely



   started their work so there may be more to discuss on the 27th compared



   to the 23rd.  



   No word yet on the FRN for the July 27 public teleconference.   If we



   miss the deadline for that,  my recommendation is that we use the time



   for another administrative call and have the public call on the



   September date we asked people to hold on their calendars.   At that



Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



From: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 4:23 PM 



To: Laura Newcomb; Elizabeth Akede 



Subject: Fwd: Re: SNCA FAC Admin call June 23 vs June 27 



Subject: Re: SNCA FAC Admin call June 23 vs June 27 



Date: Fri, 16 Jun 2017 18:43:31 +0000 



From: Moss, Richard H <rhm@pnnl.gov> 



To: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal <cynthia.decker@noaa.gov> 
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 



   time,  the group can approve the interim report in advance of the Sept.



   in-person meeting.   Just wanted to get this idea in front of you.  



   Let us know what you decide about the June date for the administrative call.  



   Thanks,  



   Cynthia 



--


   ********************************************* 



   Cynthia J.  Decker,  Ph. D 



   Executive Director 



   NOAA Science Advisory Board 



   and 



   NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



   SSMC3,  Room 11230 



   1315 East-West Hwy 



   Silver Spring,  MD  20910 



   Phone 301 -734-1156 



   Fax      301 -713-1459 



   Email:  cynthia. decker@noaa. gov 



   ******************************************** 
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		Fwd Re SNCA FAC Admin call June 23 vs June 27






 



Good afternoon! 



I apologize that I have not sent notes from this week's meeting until today. 



Have a terrific weekend! 



Kristen 



Kristen Rickett 



kristenr@hb-co.com 



HB & Company 

7315 Wisconsin Avenue 

Suite 400 West 

Bethesda, MD 20814 

240.744.7026 

240.744.7033 (fax) 



From:  Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal <cynthia.decker@noaa.gov> 



Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2017 6:24:38 AM 



To:  Kristen Rickett 



Cc:  elizabeth.akede@noaa.gov; Laura Newcomb - NOAA Affiliate; Brooke Rickett 



Subject: Re: Agenda 6.13.17 



Thanks for letting me know.  I will get back to you with a decision ASAP. 



On Tue, Jun 13, 2017 at 10:42 AM, Kristen Rickett <kristenr@hb-co.com> wrote: 



Good morning! 



Thank you very much for the update. 



If the hotel contract is signed and we cancel, the penalty will be the $4,000 meeting room rental 



fee.  There will not be a penalty for sleeping rooms because we negotiated a complimentary room 



block. 



Let me know if the team still wants to hold our call today. 



Thank you! 



Kristen 



Kristen Rickett 



kristenr@hb-co.com 



Kristen Rickett 



From: Kristen Rickett 



Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 4:29 PM 



To: Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal 



Cc: elizabeth.akede@noaa.gov; Laura Newcomb - NOAA Affiliate; Brooke Rickett 



Subject: Re: Agenda 6.13.17 



Attachments: NOAA Climate HBC Status NOTES 6.13.17.docx 
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HB & Company 

7315 Wisconsin Avenue 

Suite 400 West 

Bethesda, MD 20814 

240.744.7026 

240.744.7033 (fax) 



From:  Cynthia Decker - NOAA Federal <cynthia.decker@noaa.gov> 



Sent: Tuesday, June 13, 2017 8:45 AM 



To:  Kristen Rickett 



Cc: elizabeth.akede@noaa.gov ; Laura Newcomb - NOAA Affiliate; Brooke Rickett 



Subject: Re: Agenda 6.13.17 



Kristen, 



I will not be on the call.  With respect to the hotel contract, I am trying to get assurance the FAC 



charter will be renewed.  What is the penalty if the contract is signed and the meeting is cancelled? 



Cynthia 



On Mon, Jun 12, 2017 at 3:19 PM, Kristen Rickett <kristenr@hb-co.com> wrote: 



Good afternoon! 



Please find attached the agenda for tomorrow's meeting. 



Thank you! 



Kristen 



Kristen Rickett 



kristenr@hb-co.com 



HB & Company 

7315 Wisconsin Avenue 

Suite 400 West 

Bethesda, MD 20814 

240.744.7026 

240.744.7033 (fax) 



--


********************************************* 



Cynthia J. Decker, Ph.D 



Executive Director 



NOAA Science Advisory Board 



and 
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 



NOAA Scientific Integrity Officer 



SSMC3, Room 11230 



1315 East-West Hwy 
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Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessment 



Summary



This NOAA committee develops recommendations to make better use of data produced by the

US Global Change Research Program (USGCRP), a Congressionally-mandated interagency 



research program. Specifically, this Advisory Committee provides advice on making USGCRP

data more accessible and useful to private sector/civic organizations and state/municipal 

governments for their use in planning and decision-making in domains such as transportation, 

energy, water resources, and other infrastructure, or planning for coastal developments affected 

by expected changes in weather patterns and climate extremes. The committee is composed of 15 

members from academia, the private sector, municipal government, and non-governmental 

organizations from across the country. The committee is currently preparing a report in response

to a request from NOAA on behalf of the USGCRP. The report will provide options and 

recommendations on (1) identifying what data from the USGCRP is most needed to improve the

effectiveness and profitability of  regional and local level decision-making; (2) facilitating use of



USGCRP data by private sector and other non-governmental groups to develop products tailored 

for users; (3) improving interactions with end users, and (4) evaluating program effectiveness. 

The committee is currently seeking input from the public, including private sector and other 

groups that have been working with the data, to consider for its recommendations.
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Advisory Committee for the Sustained National Climate Assessment 


This document provides an overview of the Advisory Committee for the Sustained National 

Climate Assessment. This NOAA committee provides advice on a Congressionally-mandated

research program that integrates scientific investigation of global environmental changes across

13 Federal agencies. This overview document covers the following topics: (1) the context of the



committee with respect to the interagency US Global Change Research Program, (2) definition 

and goals of “sustained assessment”, (3) the terms of reference and membership of the

committee, and (4) the committee’s current task and pending request for public input. 



1. Committee context: US Global Change Research Program (USGCRP)



The USGCRP was established by an act of Congress in 1990 to coordinate research on how 

natural environmental processes and Earth systems (for example, oceans, glaciers/ice sheets, 

chemical composition of the atmosphere, weather patterns, flows of surface/sub-surface water, 

coastal processes, biodiversity) are being influenced by a wide variety of human activities. The

Global Change Research Act (PL101-606) establishes the program and requires (inter alia) the

participating agencies (including NOAA) to prepare coordinated budget submissions to the

Office of Management and Budget; coordinate US scientific research with other countries; and 

prepare “assessments” (evaluations of scientific information relevant for understanding changes 



and their impacts) not less frequently than every four years.



2. Sustained Assessment



“Assessments” are products that evaluate the state of science relevant to different policy-related 



and practical questions. The USGCRP has produced three such assessments in the form of

extensive technical reports. Such reports have been evaluated as inadequate for informing 

decisions in sectors such as energy, water resources, forestry, ecosystem management, coastal 

development, agriculture, public health, national security, and other areas. Thus, the National 

Academy of Sciences and other bodies have recommended that the USGCRP develop a

“sustained assessment” process that provides a more diverse set of data and information that 



better meet the needs of users. Such information can reduce losses in natural disasters and 

identify opportunities for sustainable development. “Sustained assessment” engages scientists

and stakeholders (end users in these and other sectors) in discovery, communication, and use of

scientific knowledge of global change. In addition to preparing reports, the sustained assessment

will provide a wider range of products including data sets, visualizations, maps and geographical 



information systems, decision support tools, and other science-based tools. A key objective is to 

increase access of the private sector and other groups to basic data provided by the USGCRP to 

enable them to develop needed products, including on a commercial basis, for end users, hence

increasing diversity of data interpretation and evaluation of impacts and response strategies.



3. History of the Advisory Committee 



The ACSNCA was established in 2015 by NOAA in consultation with the Office of Science and 

Technology Policy (in the Executive Office of the President) to provide advice on the sustained 
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assessment process to NOAA and, through the agency, to all 13 agencies of the USGCRP. The

language in the charter states that the purpose of the committee is to provide advice on 

assessment products and activities, including “engagement of stakeholders and on sustained 



assessment activities and the quadrennial National Climate Assessment Report.” Under the

Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA), a federal advisory committee can only be hosted and 

funded by one agency. NOAA agreed to take on this responsibility because of its existing 



portfolio of research and because of its experience in hosting previous FACA committees in

support of the National Climate Assessment efforts. The current membership is provided as an 

attachment to this document and consists of 15 members from academia, the private sector, non-
governmental organizations, and municipal governments. The chair of the committee is Dr. 

Richard H. Moss, a senior scientist with the Joint Global Change Research Program at the

University of Maryland.



4. Current Activity:  Developing Recommendations on Sustained Assessment 



The committee is currently preparing a short report (expected to be ~50 pages) in response to a

request made at its March 2017 meeting by NOAA on behalf of the USGCRP. The request 

states:



“In order for the USG to implement a vision for Sustained Assessment in time for the 5th 



(and future) National Climate Assessment, NOAA requests, on behalf of the USGCRP

and its member agencies, that the Advisory Committee for the Sustained National 



Climate Assessment develop a set of recommendations for a Sustained Assessment

process by Spring 2018. We also request a progress or interim report by September 30, 

2017. The recommendations should be feasible, realistic in terms of budget implications, 

and grounded in the Congressional mandate for a quadrennial assessment.”



The committee is developing recommendations on four key topics: 



1. Identifying the most important data, information, and activities for USGCRP to support 

assessment of the extent and implications of global change in the United States; 



2. Facilitating use of core USGCRP data by the private sector, state/local governments, and 

university-based and other groups to develop specialized (and potentially commercially-
provided) sustained assessment products for end users; 



3. Improving the development of partnerships and engagement with users of the assessment;

4. Evaluating the assessment for accuracy, trustworthiness, and utility to end users, to 



facilitate improvements in the USGCRP and activities of its participating agencies. 



The committee is attempting to prepare an interim report by September 2017 and a final report in 

the spring of 2018. It is using a process that includes opportunities for public input and review, 

consistent with the intent of the FACA. Its ability to keep to its timeline depends on being able to 

obtain public input in a timely fashion.
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Membership 



June 201 7 



Name (term expires) Position/Affiliation Brief Biographical Sketch Sector End Date of Appointment 



Susan Avery (2nd term 
201 9)



President Emerita, Woods Hole Oceanographic 
Institution 


Dr. Avery's research includes atmospheric circulation and

precipitation, the development of new radar techniques and 

instruments for observing the atmosphere, and the role of climate

science in decision support. 



Academia April 1 5, 201 9 



Maxine Burkett (1 st term

201 8) 



Professor of Law, University of Hawai'i 

Ms. Burkett specializes in climate change law and policy with a

specialty in climate ethics and climate equity especially as it 
pertains to island communities. 



Academia April 1 5, 201 8 



Ann Marie Chischilly (1 st 

term 201 9) 



Executive Director, Northern Arizona University - 
Institute for Tribal Envionrmental Professionals 


Ms. Chischilly's life and career is dedicated to advocating on 

behalf of tribes, including her own (Navajo Nation), throughout the 

United States on the issues of climate change and it’s impacts on 



Tribes and Indigenous peoples.



Academia April 1 5, 201 9 



Jan Dell (2nd term 2019), 

Vice Chair 



Vice President, Clean Energy, Water & Climate, Wood

Group 



Ms. Dell leads strategic development of projects in the energy-
water-climate nexus for global energy and chemical producers.



Industry April 1 5, 201 9 



Riley Dunlap (1st term 
201 8) 


Regents Professor of Sociology and Dresser Professor, 

Oklahoma State University 



Dr. Dunlap's research in environmental sociology has three major 

foci: (1 ) environmental concern; (2) the environmental movement; 
and (3) climate change. 



Academia April 1 5, 201 8 



Paul Fleming (2nd term 
201 9) 



Climate Resiliency Group Manager, Seattle Public 
Utilities 


Mr. Fleming works in water resources management, water utility 

management, climate risk management, use of climate

data/projections, climate assessment and adaptation, and 

decision making under uncertainty. 



Government April 1 5, 201 9 



Lucas Joppa (1 st term

201 9) 



Lead Environmental Scientst, Microsoft Research 



Dr. Joppa's work focuses on developing the science, policy, and 

tools and technology necessary to manage environmental

systems. His research is targeted towards achieving international

biodiversity conservation goals. 



Industry April 1 5, 201 9 



Kim Knowlton (1st term

201 8) 



Senior Scientist, Science Center Deputy Director, 

Natural Resources Defense Council and Assistant 

Clinical Professor, Columbia University 



Dr. Knowlton's research focuses on impacts of climate change on 

health relative to heat, air pollution, wildfires, extreme weather 

events, and infectious diseases; on the health costs of climate 
change; human vulnerability to climate impacts; and climate-
health preparedness and adaptation. 



NGO April 1 5, 201 8 



Maria Carmen Lemos (1 st 

term 201 9) 



Professor of Natural Resources and Environments, 

University of Michigan School of Natural Resources and 

Environment 



Dr. Lemos  researches the human dimensions of global change 

and social studies of science. 



Academia April 1 5, 201 9 



Jerry Melillo (2nd term 

201 9) 



Distinguished Scientst and Director Emeritus, The 
Ecosystems Center, Marine Biological Laboratory 


Dr. Melillo specializes in understanding the impacts of human 

activities on the biogeochemistry of ecological systems from local

to global scales, using a combination of field studies and 

simulation modeling.



NGO April 1 5, 201 9 



Richard Moss (1 st term

201 8), Chair 



Senior Scientist, Pacific Northwest National

Laboratory's Joint Global Change Research Institute at 

the University of Maryland 



Dr. Moss is a research scientist  studying interactions of human 

and natural systems affected by global environmental change. 



Academia April 1 5, 201 8 



Kristin Poppleton (1 st term 
201 9)  


Director of Education, Climate Generation - a Will

Steger Legacy 



Ms. Poppleton is a climate change educator whose work focuses

on developing, implementing, evaluating and sharing what 
constitutes effective climate literacy. 



NGO April 1 5, 201 9 



Michael Prather (2nd term 
201 9) 


Professor of Earth System Science, Univeristy of 
California, Irvine 


Dr. Prather has an extensive background in atmospheric

chemistry,  bio-geochemical cycles of greenhouse gases and 

aerosols. He also analyzes emerging issues in science and the

environment for statesmanship. 



Academia April 1 5, 201 9 
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Membership 



June 201 7 



Jessica Whitehead (1 st 
term 201 8) 



Coastal Communites Hazards Adaptation Specialist, 

North Carolina Sea Grant 



Dr. Whitehead's work in coastal climate extension engages local

stakeholders to develop solutions in anticipation of vulnerabilities

to near-term hazards, and  assists local communities in 

incorporating scenarios of long-term climate and sea level

changes in climate adaptation planning. 



Academia April 1 5, 201 8 



Daniel Zarrilli (1 st term 
201 9) 


Senior Director, Climate Poicy and Programs, and Chief 

Reslience Officer, New York City Office of the Mayor 



 Mr. Zarrilli is responsible for assessing and responding to the 

risks of climate change by implementing the resiliency program of 

OneNYC as well as overseeing the City of New York’s 



involvement with the New York City Panel on Climate Change 

and the Climate Change Adaptation Task Force. 



Government April 1 5, 201 9 






